

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2020    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on November 4, 2020.  


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


Revised AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 4, 2020 - Page 1 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda (Estimated Time)  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m.  


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda. 


If you have a comment regarding an item on the 
agenda prior to closed session, please submit your 
comment via email to boardclerk@sccs.net. 


   


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


5:35 p.m. Information for possible action 


2.2. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957)  


5:40 p.m. Information for possible action 


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome  


3.2. Agenda Changes, Additions or Deletions & 


Announcements 


 


   


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City 
School Board Members appreciate your presence 
and your comments regarding items not on the 
agenda are valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board Bylaw protocols, Trustees will not comment on 
Public Comments during this time. 


1/852







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2020    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on November 4, 2020.  


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


Revised AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 4, 2020 - Page 2 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


   


5. Superintendent's Report 6:35 p.m. 


5.1. Superintendent’s Reports  
 


5.2. Students’ Reports 
 


   


6. Board Members' Reports  
6:45 p.m. 


6.1. Board Members' Reports  
 


6.2. Board President's Report  
 


   


7. Approval of Minutes  None 


   


8. General Public Business   


8.1. Consent Agenda Non-Contract Items and 
Items to be Received: These matters may 
be passed by one roll call motion.  


7:00 p.m. 


8.1.1. Educational Services  


8.1.1.1. Single Plans for Student Achievement  


8.1.1.2. Gault Williams Annual Report 


 


 


8.1.2. Business Services  


8.1.2.1. Purchase Orders, Bids, & Quotes  


8.1.2.2. Warrant Register  


8.1.2.3. Long Term Debt Annual Report  


8.1.2.4. First Quarter Investment Report  


2/852







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2020    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on November 4, 2020.  


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


Revised AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 4, 2020 - Page 3 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.1.2.5. Resolution 17-20-21: Tax and Revenue 
Anticipation Notes and Related Documents 


 


8.1.2.6. Notice of Completion: Bond Projects 


 


 


8.1.3. Human Resources  


8.1.3.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  


8.1.3.2. Personnel Actions – Classified 


 


 


8.1.4. Governance/Superintendent  


8.1.4.1. Gifts  


   


8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.2.1. Educational Services None 


   


8.2.2. Business Services None 


   


8.2.3. Human Resources None 


   


8.2.4. Governance/Superintendent  


8.2.4.1. Consultant Services Agreement: Governance 
Meeting Facilitation 


 


   
8.3. Consent Agenda: Bond Projects 


Contracts, Agreements, Proposals, Bids & 
Change Orders 


 


3/852







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2020    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on November 4, 2020.  


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


Revised AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 4, 2020 - Page 4 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.3.1 Central Coast Construction Company: 
Contract: Santa Cruz High School Dust 
Collector Installation 


 


8.3.2. Dilbeck & Sons: Quote: Mission Hill Middle 
School Double Doors 


 


8.3.3.  Fiber Optic Telecom International: Quote: 
Districtwide Electronic Key Cards 


 


8.3.4. Kier & Wright: Change Order 1: Westlake 
Elementary School Boundary Survey for 
Fencing 


 


8.3.5. Kier & Wright: Proposal: Mission Hill Middle 
School Land Survey 


 


8.3.6. Moore Twining: Proposal: Geotechnical 
Engineering Gault Elementary School New 
Classroom Building 


 


8.3.7. Palace Business Solutions: Proposal: Santa 
Cruz High School Office Furniture 


 


8.3.8. SC Systems Inc: Quote: Soquel High School 
Wire Cleanup 


 


8.3.9. Swinerton Builders: Change Order 4: Soquel 
High School Modernization Phase 2 


 


   


8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  7:10 p.m. 


8.4.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


8.4.2. Acknowledgement of Gifts  


   


8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


   


4/852







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2020    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on November 4, 2020.  


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


Revised AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 4, 2020 - Page 5 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.1. Governance/Superintendent  


8.5.1.1. Staff Report: School Reopening Update 7:15 p.m. Staff will provide an update on school 
reopening plan.  


8.5.1.2. New Business: Board Policy Grading 7:45 p.m. Recommendation: Approve the policy for fourth 
and/or final reading. 


   


8.5.2. Educational Services  


8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Update on School Resource 
Officer Programs 


8:00 p.m. Staff will present an update on our School 
Resource Officer Programs. 


8.5.2.2. New Business: Soquel High School and 
Branciforte Small Schools: Northwest 
Evaluation Association Measures of 
Academic Progress Contract 
 


8:20 p.m. Recommendation: Approve the contract for 
Northwest Evaluation Association Measure of Academic 
Progress. 


8.5.3. Business Services  


8.5.3.1. New Business: Resolution 15-20-21 Parcel 
Tax Oversight Committee Bylaws 


8:35 p.m. Recommendation: Approve Resolution 15-20-
21 Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Bylaws. 


8.5.3.2. New Business: Fieldturf: Proposal: Mission 
Hill Middle School Athletic Field Replacement 


8:55 p.m. Recommendation: Approve the proposal for a 
new athletic field at Mission Hill Middle School. 


8.5.3.3. New Business: J-13A Attendance Waiver 9:05 p.m. Recommendation: Approve the J-13A 
Attendance Waiver. 


   


8.5.4. Human Resources  


8.5.4.1. New Business: SCCS District 2020-21 
Sunshine Articles to GSCFT 


9:15 p.m. Recommendation: Approve the SCCS District 
Sunshine Articles to GSCFT 2020-21. 


8.5.5. Governance/Superintendent   


8.5.5.1. New Business: Resolution 19-20-21 In 
Defense of Democracy 


9:25 p.m. Recommendation: Approve Resolution 19-20-
21 In Defense of Democracy. 


8.5.5.2. Board Policies: Second and/or Final Reading 
for CSBA Revisions & Updates 


9:35 p.m. Recommendation: Approve the revised policies 
for second and/or final reading. 


5/852







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2020    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on November 4, 2020.  


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


Revised AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 4, 2020 - Page 6 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.5.2. Discussion: Possible Items for Future 
Meeting Agendas 


9:50 p.m. 


   


9. Adjournment 
 


   


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


   


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


12. Adjournment  
 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education or may be viewed at the District Office, 133 Mission St. Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 
95060.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as 
any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open 
session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in 
closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Alyssa 
Martinez by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Alyssa Martinez por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 
 
Board Meeting Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on November 4, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


2. The Special Meeting on November 16, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


3. Study Session on November 18, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


4. The Special Meeting on December 2, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


6/852







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2020    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on November 4, 2020.  


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


Revised AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 4, 2020 - Page 7 of 7 


5. The Regular Meeting on December 15, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


6. The Regular Meeting on January 13, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


7. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 27, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


8. The Regular Meeting on February 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


9. The Regular Meeting on February 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


10. The Regular Meeting on March 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


11. The Regular Meeting on March 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


12. The Regular Meeting on April 14, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


13. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on April 28, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


14. The Regular Meeting on May 5, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


15. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on May 19, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


16. The Regular Meeting on June 2, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


17. The Regular Meeting on June 16, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


7/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:     Single Plans for Student Achievement  
 
MEETING DATE:   November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:   Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Single Plans for Student Achievement for Bayview Elementary, DeLaveaga 
Elementary, Gault Elementary, Westlake Elementary, Monarch Community Elementary School, 
Branciforte Middle School, Mission Hill Middle School, Harbor High School, Santa Cruz High 
School, Soquel High School, The Ark High School and Alternative Family Education. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to California Education Code Section 64001 and the federal Elementary and Secondary 
Education Act, schools that receive state and federal funds will consolidate all school plans into 
the Single Plan for Student Achievement. 
 
In 19-20, the Single Plans for Student Achievement template was updated to align with the 
Local Control Accountability template.  As such, it is important to note the following: 


1. The Single Plan for Student Achievement is a plan that is developed and approved 
annually, and metrics include projected, yearly incremental growth. 


2. Metrics in the plans include Dashboard ratings. Dashboard ratings are colored coded 
and ranked as following:  
 


a. Blue - Very High 
b. Green - High 
c. Yellow - Medium 
d. Orange - Low 
e. Red - Very Low  


 
 


3. Metrics in the plans may also include “Distance from Level 3” or “number of points 
above and below standard.” Distance from Level 3 measures how far (or the distance) 
each student is from the lowest possible scale score within the Level 3 (i.e., Standard 
Met) Smarter Balanced performance level. The Smarter Balanced Consortium has 
identified Level 3 as demonstrating the knowledge and skills necessary for students to 
be on track for college and career readiness at their grade level. 


8/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1.1. 


4. When discussing “Distance from Level 3,” a 3-point increase is often used. The growth of 
3 points is substantial within this measurement system and will result in a positive color 
change (or maintaining a high or very high rating) on the school’s California Dashboard. 
 


5. Because of the pandemic, the California Assessment of Student Performance and 
Progress (CAASPP) and Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) do not have updated 
data. Though we did not purchase MAP for 20-21 due to Distance Learning, MAP metrics 
remain in the plan as they will be important to gauge student progress once we return 
to in-person learning full-time. Additionally, though the 2020 CAASPP was cancelled, the 
2021 CAASPP is scheduled to happen next Spring.  
 


6. Some metrics are also incomplete. Suspension, expulsion and attendance data for 19-20  
are only reported up to March, 2020 due to school closures. Also, our English Language 
Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC) assessment data is incomplete as there 
were some students who were not assessed due to school closures in March, 2020.  


 
7. Growth targets have remained the same, though some may be adjusted in future Single 


Plans for Student Achievement as we learn more about how our student groups fared in 
Distance Learning and on next Spring’s CAASPP.  
 


School Site Councils are also required to develop the Single Plan for Student Achievement. The 
School Site Councils’ responsibilities include approving the plan, recommending it to the local 
governing board for approval, monitoring its implementation, and evaluating the effectiveness 
of the planned activities at least annually. For the 20-21 Single Plan for Student Achievement, 
guidance does not require collaboration with the site’s School Site Council, but our sites have 
consulted with their School Site Councils in the spirit of transparency and collaboration with our 
teachers, Classified staff and parents.  
 
The Single Plan for Student Achievement is a blueprint to improve the academic performance of 
all students. The purpose of the Single Plan for Student Achievement is to coordinate all 
educational services at the school. The Single Plan for Student Achievement addresses how 
funds provided to the school will be used to improve the academic performance of all pupils. 
The Single Plan for Student Achievement must integrate the purposes and requirements of all 
state and federal categorical programs in which the school participates.  
 
The Single Plan for Student Achievement serves as the organizer for an individual school’s 
improvement process, and this new Single Plan for Student Achievement template aligns with the 
Local Control Accountability Plan template. It addresses the root causes of student academic 
challenges and identifies and implements research-based instructional strategies to raise the 
achievement of students who are not yet proficient by state standards. The Single Plan for Student 
Achievement ensures that students are better equipped to achieve Common Core State Standards 
in English and math.  
 


9/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1.1. 


The reports presented to the Board are intended to show the progress schools have made toward 
meeting those goals.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social-emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


  


 


10/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


 
School Year:    2020-21   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus         


Address 840 North Branciforte Ave.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95062 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698234430195         


Principal Michelle McKinney         


District Name AFE         


SPSA Revision Date October 12, 2020         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date October 20, 2020         


Local Board Approval Date November 4, 2020         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


11/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Table of Contents 
 


SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 


Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 


School Vision and Mission ................................................................................................................................3 


School Profile ....................................................................................................................................................3 


Stakeholder Involvement ..................................................................................................................................3 


School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................5 


Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................5 


CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................8 


ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................12 


Student Population ..................................................................................................................................14 


Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................15 


Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................16 


Academic Engagement ...........................................................................................................................21 


Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................23 


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................25 


Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................25 


Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................28 


Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................31 


Budget Summary and Consolidation ..............................................................................................................34 


Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................34 


Allocations by Funding Source ................................................................................................................34 


Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................35 


Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................36 


Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................37 


School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................38 


Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................39 


 


12/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School Vision and Mission 
 
Inspired Purpose: 
 
AFE supports, nurtures and inspires families and students to discover and develop their potential through engaged 
learning, problem solving, and community involvement. 
 
Vision: 
 
AFE cultivates... 
 
the ability to use our minds well. 
the tools to choose our paths. 
the ability to act upon our passions. 
the desire to contribute to the local community and the world. 
the vision and heart to see and feel things from other perspectives. 
the ability to express our own voices. 
the habit of self-reflection. 
a sense of well-being. 
         


 


School Profile 
 
With the onset of COVID-19 school closures, AFE more than doubled its student population due to many elementary and 
secondary students attending public and private schools in 2019-20 choosing to opt for a more hands-on, family directed 
educational approach. Several AFE teachers retired in 2019-20 (2.2 FTE) and we hired 1.9 FTE before the summer 
ensued and AFE's population grew. Several teachers were transferred from comprehensive schools to be able to serve 
such rapid and explosive growth (4.2 FTE has been added, for a total of 7.7 FTE to serve 231 students). In addition, two 
part-time library media assistants were transferred to support the increased circulation needs of the Resource Center 
which is staffed by a .5 FTE library media assistant. The Small School library is assisting AFE families by facilitating 
intra-library loan of textbooks and trade books from other campuses. A retired teacher was able to apply her pre-
retirement hours to training the new staff in the practices, tools, and culture of homeschooling and AFE. In addition, the 
two returning AFE teachers are devoting many extra hours of training for the new teachers. In light of school closures, 
each teacher is offering one distance learning enrichment class each semester, and all parent-led activities are on hold 
until schools reopen at low or no restrictions per District and Public Health Department guidelines. A substantial barrier, 
once we were able to transfer teachers to serve the great number of students, is that AFE is needing to purchase 
materials for the Resource Center as the comprehensive schools cannot provide text books or student work books that 
are part of the Board approved adopted curriculum for elementary students. Many of the new families intend to return to 
the comprehensive schools once schools reopen at low or no restrictions. We expect a percentage will not return to their 
comprehensive neighborhood school as homeschooling is an attractive alternative for families that are finding ways for 
parents to balance working at home and/or only having one parent work outside the home. AFE also had to adjust its 
enrollment processes and the administrative staff has taken on all intake communication, teacher assignment, and SIS 
processes from the campus's registrar who is focusing on acquiring proper enrollment verification and health file 
paperwork for so many new students. 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools Alternative Family Education (AFE) is an independent home study school provided for 
kindergarten through twelfth grade students and families who prefer an individualized approach to education, combined 
with the support of school district resources. The program gives parents the responsibility to directly supervise 
instruction, with professional guidance from a credentialed teacher-consultant. The program is designed by and for 
homeschool families, with teacher-consultants who are knowledgeable and supportive of home-based learning, state 
frameworks, and school district curriculum guidelines. 
AFE shares a campus with three other small schools. You can read about our campus on the Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus (BSSC) website. 
Alternative Family Education, 840 N. Branciforte Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 95062 
         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 


13/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
This plan is reviewed and approved annually by the School Site Council, which consists of students, parents, classified 
and certificated staff, and administrators. In addition, the parent group reviews the plan while planning fundraising goals. 
The plan is available to stakeholders via the school's website. District personnel, Director of Curriculum, and Assistant 
Superintendent of Educational Services also provide input and suggestions for goal setting based on student data.         


 


14/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


American Indian     % 1.79% 0.89%         2 1 


African American     0.78% % 2.68% 1         3 


Asian     0.78% 4.46% 5.36% 1        5 6 


Filipino     % % 0.89%          1 


Hispanic/Latino     9.38% 11.61% 14.29% 12        13 16 


Pacific Islander     % % 0%          0 


White     81.25% 75% 69.64% 104        84 78 


Multiple/No Response     % % 6.25%          0 


 Total Enrollment 128 112 112 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


17-18 18-19 19-20 


Kindergarten        3 2 2 


Grade 1        5 3 5 


Grade 2        1 4 3 


Grade3        10 1 7 


Grade 4        3 7 3 


Grade 5        7 5 10 


Grade 6        9 10 7 


Grade 7        18 10 14 


Grade 8        19 20 14 


Grade 9        11 10 17 


Grade 10        15 11 8 


Grade 11        14 18 9 


Grade 12        13 11 13 


Total Enrollment        128 112 112 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Enrollment numbers are progressively higher through the rising grades.        


15/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


 


16/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


English Learners        0 2 3 0 1.8% 2.7% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        2 3 5 1.6% 2.7% 4.5% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)         0 0 0 0.0% 0.0% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. AFE does not serve many students learning English as an additional language.        


 


17/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 8 * * 20 * * 5 * * 5   25 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * *    
All 
Grades 


86 89 85 17 22 12 17 22 12 19.8 24.7 14.1 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 52.94 40.91 58.33 41.18 40.91 41.67 5.88 4.55 0.00 0.00 13.64 0.00 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades 76.47 54.55 66.67 17.65 40.91 33.33 5.88 4.55 0.00 
 


18/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades 64.71 61.90 41.67 35.29 23.81 58.33 0.00 14.29 0.00 
 


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades 29.41 45.45 58.33 70.59 45.45 41.67 0.00 9.09 0.00 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades 52.94 50.00 66.67 47.06 45.45 33.33 0.00 4.55 0.00 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Insignificant student participation makes it impossible to draw conclusions.        


 


19/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * *    


All 
Grades 


86 89 85 18 21 9 18 21 9 20.9 23.6 10.6 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 55.56 33.33 * 11.11 28.57 * 22.22 19.05 * 11.11 19.05 * 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades 55.56 33.33 * 16.67 42.86 * 27.78 23.81 * 


20/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


 
Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 


Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades 55.56 47.62 * 33.33 33.33 * 11.11 19.05 * 
 


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 6 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 7 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 8 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades 50.00 52.38 * 44.44 33.33 * 5.56 14.29 * 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Too few students participated to draw conclusions.        


 


21/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 2        *  *  *  *  


Grade 3        * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4         *  *  *  * 


All Grades              * * 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades         * * *  *  * * * 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades        * *  *  *  * * * 
 


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades         *  * * * * * * * 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades        * *  *  * * * 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades        * * * *  * * * 
 


22/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades         * * * * * * * 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades         * * * * * * * 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. *Small student participation makes it impossible to draw conclusions.        


 
 


23/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2018-19 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


112        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


17.0        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


1.8        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2018-19 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        2 1.8 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        19 17.0 


Students with Disabilities        19 17.0 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


American Indian        2 1.8 


Asian        5 4.5 


Hispanic        13 11.6 


Two or More Races        8 7.1 


White        84 75.0 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1.  


 
 


24/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
No Performance Color        


 
Mathematics 


 
No Performance Color        


 
College/Career 


 
No Performance Color        


Academic Engagement 


 
Graduation Rate 


 
No Performance Color        


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Blue        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Blue        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Attendance is a strength of the school.        


 
 


25/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


89.2 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++23.9 points         
11        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 


26/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


10        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


0 Students        


Reclassified English Learners 


0 Students        


English Only 


88.9 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++23.4 points         
11        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. AFE's integrated ELA is meeting the needs of enrolled students.        


 
 


27/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


8        


English Learners Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 


28/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


8        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner Reclassified English Learners English Only 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


8        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. AFE's mathematics instruction is meeting the needs of its students.        


 
 


29/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students:           


Performance Level: No Data        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Not enough data to make a conclusion        


 
 


30/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
0        


Orange        
0        


Yellow        
0        


Green        
1        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


2.4         


Declined -6         


82        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Declined -29.2         


14        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Declined -11.8         


18        


 


31/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Declined -9.1         


11        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


White     


 
Green         


3.3         


Declined -4.9         


60        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. More stringent adherence to attendance policies are an area for further investigation.        


 
 


32/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
138        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          2        


Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
25        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
26        


 


33/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          3        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          6        


Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
18        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          9        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
102        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
0         


2019     
0         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. AFE's students' needs are accommodated by the alternative setting.        


 
 


34/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Academic Literacy          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will make academic literacy growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
The staff is continuing to focus on developing writing rubrics and anchor papers in each writing type. This endeavor 
continues in order to raise academic rigor and to be able to provide parent/teachers with more concrete criteria that is in 
alignment with CCSS.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Developmental Writing rubrics of 4-
8th grade students        


 86% of targeted students made 
adequate yearly progress. 


 Maintain or improve 86% of all 
students making at least one year 
growth. 


CCAP writing requirement         83% of all high school students were 
on track for completion at the end of 
2019-20. 


 90% of students make adequate 
progress towards completion of 
CCAP requirements. 


Credit completion rates for high 
school students        


 96% of all high school students were 
on track for graduation requirements 
at the end of 2018-19. 


 Maintain or improve 96% of students 
will make adequate progress towards 
graduation credit requirement. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
A Tier 1 Academic Literacy school wide focus for the 2020-21 school year is on writing in all content areas. We will do 
this by focusing our year long site PD on scaffolding and supporting students with different types of academic writing by 
standardizing evaluation practices on writing rubrics in each writing type, developing anchor papers for each grade 
span during PLC work.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 


35/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-21 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin & SCIL        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3802.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description books and supplies        


Amount 1900.00        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Books and supplies        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Purchase and administer MAP for Math and Reading at least twice a year.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
ALL 3-11th grade students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, SCIL, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2400.00        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description purchase NWEA MAP Growth assessment for 160 students        


Amount 0.00        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Description Staff meeting time for data analysis and planning for instruction        


Strategy/Activity 3 


36/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Increase the diversity of materials available in the Resource Center        
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing in 2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1288.00        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Supplemental books and supplies to accommodate increased school population including 
district adopted curriculum/materials        


 


37/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Mathematics          


 
Goal Statement 
All students who are taking math will make mathematics growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
While AFE students are generally achieving growth goals based on MAP data, the annual parent survey from 2018-19 
(63%) reflected a need for family educators to learn about the NGSS, FOSS resources, concepts of focus questions, 
phenomenon-based inquiry, etc.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


A combination of MAP growth and/or 
paper-based assessment, and work 
samples demonstrate overall 
achievement in mathematics for 4th-
8th grade students        


 86% of targeted students made 
growth in mathematics. 


 90% of all students will achieve 
growth from fall to spring in 
mathematics. 


Parent and Staff survey of 
understanding NGSS        


 This is a new goal so there is no 
baseline from 2018-19. 


 80% of families attending parent 
education opportunities, and 100% of 
teachers, will demonstrate greater 
understanding of the NGSS via 
survey. 


Math requirements         This is a new goal so there is no 
baseline from 2018-19. 


 90% of students will complete Math 1 
by 11th grade or within two years of 
beginning that curriculum. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
A Tier 1 school wide focus for the 2019-21 school years is on Mathematics. We will do this by focusing our year long 
site PD on designing NGSS-based science resources for families, using science to support the math practices.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


38/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


All students will be supported by this strategy/activity.        
 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2019-21 school years.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin/SCIL        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2906.00        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Books and supplies        


Strategy/Activity 2 
In support of our school wide focus on Mathematics for the 2019-21 school years, we will use the services of a 
consultant to co-lead with teachers eight Parent Education sessions on NGSS including DCIs and CCCs; FOSS; 
science and math practices; etc.  for K-12 students. In coordination with site admin and SCIL, provider will work with 
AFE teachers to develop, plan and deliver professional development to family educators in grade span specific groups, 
K-12 groups, and other configurations.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2019-21 school years.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin/SCIL        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 400.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Professional Development provider 8 hrs.        


Amount 236.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Materials        


Amount 1364.00        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


39/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Science kits, instructional materials        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Professional learning related to Independent Studies.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000.00        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description CCIS compliance workshop 
 
        


 


40/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will feel connected to their school. Improve students' feelings of well-being, safety, and community through 
implementation of Restorative Justice principles and practices, and tenets and practices of Trauma-informed schools.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
As the student population is generally feeling connected to school, we created new goals and metrics to be able to refine 
specific areas for increasing feelings of safety and school connectedness at AFE. The 2018-19 parent survey results that 
had the greatest concern about school safety centered around the aging and safety condition of portable classroom 
facilities on the site.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Parent surveys         In 2019-20, 95% of survey 
respondents reported positive 
feelings about the school. 


 We expect that we will maintain or 
increase the rate of parents feeling 
connected to their school at 95% 
positive response. 


Student surveys         In 2019-20, 92% of survey 
respondents reported positive 
feelings about the school. 


 We expect that we will maintain or 
increase the rate of students feeling 
connected to their school at 92% 
positive response. 


Restorative Justice rating scales for 
staff        


 This is a new goal; no baseline data 
is available. 


 We expect that 90% of staff will 
increase their comfort with 
Restorative Justice principles and 
practices. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 2.4% of all students were chronically 
absent, or in this case, did not 
complete assignments on time. 


 No more than 2% of all students will 
be chronically absent. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 


41/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


In 2019-21, all Branciforte Small Schools staff (certificated and classified) will continue learning Restorative Justice 
principles and practices. This is a three-year commitment that aligns with the deep work and resources devoted to 
training and supporting adults and children in the practices and principles of Positive Discipline and Trauma Informed 
Services. We will develop student, parent and staff surveys on this topic, as well as use surveys provided by the 
consultant company.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
The 2019-21 academic years        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, SCIL, RJ Leadership team members        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0.00        


Source Other        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Branciforte Small schools will support an MOU with professional development services 
for training for all staff in principles and practices of Restorative Justice.        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Per the family survey, the school website will be improved and serve as the central source for information, 
announcements and forms.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
The 2020-21 academic year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin and staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0.00        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Description Staff time for developing the website to make it more user friendly and informative.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
The staff will attend the Caliciano Symposium-Childhood Trauma: Addressing the Clinical Needs from Current and 
Historical Perspectives        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


42/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


All students        
 
Timeline 
March 2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 934.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Conference attendance        


 


43/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application   


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  16,230.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


44/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


CARES Act         3,688.00 


LCFF - Base         3,906.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         5,372.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         3,264.00 


None Specified         0.00 


Other         0.00 
 


45/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         400.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         11,496.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 2,400.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 1,934.00 


None Specified         0.00 
 


46/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         CARES Act  1,288.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 CARES Act  2,400.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Base  2,906.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Base  1,000.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  400.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Supplemental  4,038.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  934.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  3,264.00 


None Specified         None Specified  0.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 Other  0.00 


 


47/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
2 School Principal        
4 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


4 Parent or Community Members        


2 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Naima Leal         X Principal        


Michelle McKinney         X Principal        


Dominc Yarbrough         X Classroom Teacher        


X Parent or Community Member        


Zack Garban         X Classroom Teacher        


Margi Ilic         X Classroom Teacher        


Peter Deutsch         X Classroom Teacher        


X Parent or Community Member        


Gail Mabrouk         X Other School Staff        


Tara McCullough         X Parent or Community Member        


Paul Liebetrau         X Parent or Community Member        


Crystal Williams-McNish         X Parent or Community Member        


Katiana Liebetrau         X Secondary Student        


Marcus Anderson         X Secondary Student        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


48/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 39 Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on . 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Michelle McKinney on  


 


49/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


 
School Year:    2020-21   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Ark Independent Studies         


Address 840 North Branciforte Ave.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95062 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698234430096         


Principal Michelle McKinney         


District Name Santa Cruz City Schools         


SPSA Revision Date October 2020         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date October 2020         


Local Board Approval Date November 4,2020         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


50/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


Table of Contents 
 


SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 


Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 


School Vision and Mission ................................................................................................................................3 


School Profile ....................................................................................................................................................3 


Stakeholder Involvement ..................................................................................................................................3 


School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................4 


Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................4 


CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................6 


ELPAC Results .........................................................................................................................................9 


Student Population ..................................................................................................................................11 


Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................12 


Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................13 


Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................22 


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................24 


Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................24 


Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................28 


Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................31 


Budget Summary and Consolidation ..............................................................................................................36 


Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................36 


Allocations by Funding Source ................................................................................................................36 


Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................37 


Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................38 


Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................39 


School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................40 


Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................41 


 


51/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School Vision and Mission 
 
At the Ark Independent Studies we connect with students as individuals, inspire students to find meaning, motivate 
students to take responsibility, and support students to discover and pursue their interests.         


 


School Profile 
 
Ark Independent Studies High School is a fully accredited public high school that currently serves approximately 80 
students in grades 6 through 12. As of the 2020-2021 school year, the Ark has added a 100% online middle school 
option to address several issues faced by our school district due to Covid-19 and the move the distance learning. We 
have also added an A to G curriculum, Edgenuity, to increase the ability for our students to have A to G pathways. Since 
moving to full distance learning, The Ark Independent Studies program has been essential in supporting students across 
the district. Our enrollment has increased from 49 students enrolled in the Fall of 2019 to 86 enrolled as of October 2020. 
Due to this, we have had to increase our staffing. We have recently added a .4 teacher to staff, as well as increasing our 
Math Lab teacher by .2. 
 
The Ark is housed on a Santa Cruz City Schools' campus that is home to four small alternative schools. The Ark serves 
students in multiple locations across the county to provide students and families convenient locations and access to 
academic programs, emotional support, and social opportunities. The Ark’s primary campus and textbook room is 
located mid-town on the Branciforte Small Schools Campus (BSSC); the Westside campus is located at Santa Cruz 
High; the Eastside campus is located at Harbor High; and the southside campus is at Soquel High. Students meet 
weekly for one hour with an instructor on a one-to-one basis.  During that time, the students are given specific 
assignments covering a minimum of 20 hours, and feedback on coursework is offered and assignments are evaluated. 
Students complete their weekly course work independently from the school location.  Students enrolled in a math course 
must attend a weekly Math Lab to receive focused support from a certificated math teacher. Again, due to our increase 
of enrollment, our Math Lab teaching position has been increased a full .2 to .4FTE.  Assignments are tailored to fit the 
individual students' interests, needs, and learning styles. All Ark teachers are fully credentialed, with a broad range of 
teaching experience and expertise. 
 
Ark is a school of choice that students and families may initiate a transfer to, or a guidance counselor may advise 
enrollment due to a variety of reasons that range from the need to make up missing credits to a concern with mental 
and/or physical health issues. Traditionally, students were able to join the program at the beginning of their 9th grade 
year. However, we have expanded our program to allow for students to enroll starting in 6th grade (for 100% Edgenuity 
only). The program is available to self-disciplined and motivated students who are working toward a high school diploma. 
It provides over 60 course offerings that include textbook and online classes and is accredited by the Western 
Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC). Ark’s program is in session for 180 days a year. 
         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Many stakeholders were involved in the annual SPSA review and update. As part of our full self-study for WASC 
accreditation, the schoolwide action plan was closely reviewed and revised at multiple staff and parent meetings in Fall 
2020. Our WASC visiting committee offered feedback on the plan during their March 2019 visit  resulting in further 
changes to our SPSA action plan. Finally, the BSSC School Site Council reviewed progress on the 2020-2021 SPSA 
and approved the goals, metrics, and schoolwide action plan changes for the 2020-21 SPSA.         


 


52/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


American Indian     % % 2.04%          1 


African American     % % 0%          0 


Asian     1.64% % 0% 1         0 


Filipino     % % 0%          0 


Hispanic/Latino     42.62% 39.66% 46.94% 26        23 23 


Pacific Islander     % % 0%          0 


White     49.18% 55.17% 51.02% 30        32 25 


Multiple/No Response     % % 0%          0 


 Total Enrollment 61 58 49 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


17-18 18-19 19-20 


Grade 9         3 4 


Grade 10        6 7 7 


Grade 11        25 18 13 


Grade 12        30 30 25 


Total Enrollment        61 58 49 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Enrollment has stabilized in the past two years. This can be attributed to the flexibility in meeting location for Ark 


students.        
2. Enrollment for the past two years has grown to meet maximum student enrollment based on Ark FTE.        


3. The percentage of Hispanic/Latino students has increased over the last three years (From 42.62% to 46.94%).        


 


53/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


English Learners        3 5 5 4.9% 8.6% 10.2% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        12 10 11 19.7% 17.2% 22.4% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)         0 0 0 0.0% 0.0% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The number of English learners attending the Ark remains very low.        


2. The administrator must continue to hold biannual language review team (LRT) meetings with Ark teachers of 
English Learners. This will ensure that the specific needs of English Learners are highlighted throughout the year.        


 


54/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * *    
All 
Grades 


* * * * * * * * *    
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades * * * * * * * * * 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades * * * * * * * * * 
 


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades * * * * * * * * * 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades * * * * * * * * * 


55/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


 
 


Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Too few students participated in the CAASPP in 2018-19 to make any relevant conclusions.        


2. CAASPP was not administered in 2019-20 due to COVID-19 and the shift to distance learning.        


 


56/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * *    


All 
Grades 


* * * * * * * * *    


* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades * * * * * * * * * 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades * * * * * * * * * 
 


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades * * * * * * * * * 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Too few students participated in the CAASP in 20119  to make any relevant conclusions.        


 


57/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 9         *  *  *  * 


Grade 11        * * * * * * * * 


Grade 12        * * * * * * * * 


All Grades              * 5 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


  11    * * * *  *  * * * 


All Grades        * * * *  * * * * * 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


  11    * * * *  *  * * * 


All Grades        * * * *  * * * * * 
 


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


  11    * * * *  *  * * * 


All Grades        * * * *  * * * * * 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades        * * * * * * * * 
 


58/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades        * *  * * * * * 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades         * * * * * * * 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


All Grades        * * * * * * * * 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Too few English learners took the ELPAC in 2018-19 to make any relevant conclusions.        


 
 


59/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2018-19 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


58        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


53.4        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


8.6        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2018-19 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        5 8.6 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        31 53.4 


Students with Disabilities        6 10.3 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


Hispanic        23 39.7 


Two or More Races        3 5.2 


White        32 55.2 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The percentage of Hispanic students at the Ark indicates a need to provide more translation of key Ark documents. 


Many Hispanic students' parents prefer Spanish communication.        
 
 


60/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
No Performance Color        


 
Mathematics 


 
No Performance Color        


 
College/Career 


 
Red        


Academic Engagement 


 
Graduation Rate 


 
Orange        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Blue        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The Ark was able to maintain their 0% suspension rate.        


2. Graduation rate numbers need to be improved and analyzed by individual student to determine if there are any 
patterns. The Ark has developed an end-of-year process to ascertain and analyze the reasons for student 
dropouts..        


3. The Ark needs to look into a different A-G curriculum provider to increase enrollment in A-G pathways, with the 
intention of improving the College/Career Dashboard        


 
 


61/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


 


62/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


0 Students        


Reclassified English Learners 


0 Students        


English Only 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Too few students participated in the CAASP in 2018-19 to make any relevant conclusions.        


 
 


63/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


English Learners Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Students with Disabilities 


 


64/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner Reclassified English Learners English Only 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Too few students participated in the CAASP in 2018-19 to make any relevant conclusions.        


 
 


65/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students:           


Performance Level: No Data        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The Ark has too few English learners to make any conclusions.        


 
 


66/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
College/Career 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Red         


0         


Declined -2.7         


42        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


 


67/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 


Class of 2017 
2.7 Prepared         


5.4 Approaching Prepared         
91.9 Not Prepared         


Class of 2018 
2.7 Prepared         


5.4 Approaching Prepared         
91.9 Not Prepared         


Class of 2019 
0 Prepared         


4.8 Approaching Prepared         
95.2 Not Prepared         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. We had a decline in our graduation rates which caused a decline in our College/Career Dashboard        


 
 


68/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


72.1         


Declined -10.8         


43        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


87         


Increased +10.8         


23        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


4        


 


69/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


82.4         


Maintained 0         


17        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


60.9         


Declined -20.1         


23        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 


2018         
82.9         


2019         
72.1         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Graduation rates have declined 10.8%, with 43 graduated students in 2019        


2. Graduation rate numbers need to be improved and analyzed by individual student to determine if there are any 
patterns. The Ark has developed an end-of-year process to ascertain and analyze the reasons for student drop outs..        


 
 


70/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


3        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
94        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          9        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
45        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
11        


 


71/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
45        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          5        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
44        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
0         


2019     
0         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The Ark has maintained their 0% suspension rate.        


 
 


72/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Academic literacy          


 
Goal Statement 
Develop, test, and revise ELA curriculum and assessments that support student mastery of Common Core Standards, 
and modify instructional practices to increase opportunities for critical thinking and problem solving for all students.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Despite gains related to reading achievement, student literacy achievement and literacy instruction must remain a focus 
to ensure academic growth.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


MAP-Reading assessment         In 2018-19, 73% of Ark students 
(11/15) who scored below the 70th 
percentile on the MAP reading 
assessment improved their reading 
comprehension (one grade level) as 
measured by at least a 5 percentile 
increase in scores (freshmen, 
sophomores, and juniors) or at least 
4 RIT points (all seniors). 
 
Note: We do not have MAP for the 
19-20 school year, which is why we 
are using 2018-19 data as our 
baseline. 
 


 80% of students who score below the 
70th percentile on the MAP reading 
assessment will improve their reading 
comprehension (one grade level) as 
measured by at least a 5 percentile 
increase in scores (freshmen, 
sophomores, and juniors) or at least 
4 RIT points (all seniors). 


Argumentative essay rubric scores         In 2019-20, 85% of Ark students 
improved their argumentative essay 
rurbric score by at least half a point 
each semester. 


 90% of students who score a 3 or 
below on the narrative essay writing 
rubric will increase their score by at 
least half a point each semester. 


Response to informative text rubric 
scores        


 In 2019-20, 92% of Ark students 
improved their paragraph DOK 
scores by at least half a point each 
semester. 


 95% of students who score a 3 or 
below on the Informative rubric 
(Written & Verbal DOK) will increase 
their score by at least half a point 
each semester. 


 


73/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Purchase and administer formative & summative assessments (MAP and CC student writing assessments) to all 
traditional Ark IS students at least twice a year; record and analyze results. Store and share results in Illuminate and 
shared Google document.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Ark teachers, Ark principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1500        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description MAP assessment for reading and math        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Implement, throughout all disciplines, evidence based instructional strategies including DOK (Depth of Knowledge) 
Levels 3 & 4 to ensure Common Core State Standards are adequately being addressed as well as to increase the rigor 
in learning.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrator, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Description Ark staff will work towards this goal in PLCs        


Strategy/Activity 3 


74/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


Place students who score below grade level on the MAP reading assessment on a Reading Advancement Plan with 
agreement from parent/ guardian, teacher, and student to support and advance reading skills.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students reading below grade level        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, parents/guardians, students        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Monitor progress of EL students in ELA through LRT (Language Review Team); coordinate services for ELs and 
recently re-designated ELs, and purchase appropriate curricular materials.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrator, teachers of English learners        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Purchase relevant books and supplies that support student achievement of schoolwide learning outcomes.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrator, principal's secretary, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,249        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


75/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase of needed books and supplies, particularly those associated with Edgenuity.        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Purchase & implement online program to support A-G pathway options and supplies and student achievement of 
schoolwide learning outcomes.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, Ark Teachers, Secondary Curriculum & Instruction Director        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description SCCS/The Ark will purchase Edgenuity online program in order to offer A-G pathways        


 


76/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Mathematics          


 
Goal Statement 
With the guidance of a 0.4 FTE credentialed math teacher, staff identifies and adopts mathematics curriculum and 
assessments that support student mastery of Common Core Power Standards, and modifies instructional practices to 
increase opportunities for critical thinking and problem solving for all students.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Student math achievement as measured by credit earning improved over the year, but fell far short of the expected 
outcome. It is clear that increased communication with the math lab teacher and Ark independent studies teahcers is 
needed to improve student performance.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Credit Earning         In 2019-20, 48% of Ark students 
earned 5 credits of math each 
semester. 


 70% of students enrolled in a math 
course will earn 5 or more credits 
each semester. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Continue to provide robust support for math program that includes a certificated math teacher based on a Math Lab 
model to provide CC Power Standards based course descriptions (a-g), curriculum, instruction, and assessments.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students enrolled in math class        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Math lab teacher, tutor, teachers, administrator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


77/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


Amount 3559        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .2 Increase of math lab teacher from 2019-20        


Amount 7385        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .2 Increase of math lab teacher from 2019-20        


Amount 11,900        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .2 Increase of math lab teacher from 2019-20        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Purchase District CC aligned math textbooks and materials as identified by a certificated math teacher.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students enrolled in math class        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Math lab teacher, tutor, teachers, administrator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1590        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Books and supplies as needed by certificated math teacher        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Align strategic CC Power Standards based instruction, and purposeful, authentic assessments to specified goals that 
are backed up with data that drives instruction.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students enrolled in math class        


 
Timeline 


78/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


2018-2025        
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Math lab teacher, teachers, administrator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Purchase and administer formative and summative assessments (MAP)  to all traditional Ark IS students at least twice 
a year; record and analyze results. Store and share results in Illuminate and shared Google document.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Ark students        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, Ark Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,000        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description For funding of the MAP Assessment, please see Goal #1, Activity 1.        


 


79/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
School connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
Improve school culture and climate through increased student participation and implementation of trauma informed 
tenets and Restorative Justice practices.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
The Ark’s continued focus on trauma informed practices and new focus on restorative justice principles and practices will 
ensure that students are taught, practice, and reflect on the use of self-regulation strategies and effective communication 
skills. Many Ark students have faced or are facing significant health issues. In order to help them deal with these issues, 
while still maximizing their learning, students need tools to reduce stress in the face of difficult circumstances. Survey 
and credit earning data shows that solidifying trauma informed practices will continue to benefit our students’ connection 
to school and their academic performance.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Parent/teacher/student conference 
attendance        


 In 2019-2020, 94% of Ark parents 
attended Fall & Spring conferences. 


 98% of parents/guardians will attend 
Fall and Spring Semester 
conferences. 


Locally created student and parent 
survey        


 In 2019-20, 94% responded that they 
regularly use self-regulation 
strategies. 


 95% of students & parents will 
respond positively to questions 2, 3 & 
5 on the student & parent surveys 
(2=school considers social & 
emotional student needs, 3=teachers 
explain stress relief techniques, 
5=students feel respected by 
teachers) 
 


Credit earning by semester         In 2019-20, 86% of Ark students 
earned at least 20 academic credits 
per semester. 


 90% of students will earn at least 20 
academic credits per semester while 
enrolled at the Ark. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 


80/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


Communicate Student Learning Outcomes (SLOs) to students and families        
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrator, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Explore, seek out, and participate in appropriate and relevant professional learning opportunities.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, administrator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 300.00        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Calciano Symposium        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Review school needs, goals and governance opportunities at the beginning and throughout the school year. Review 
the Ark Family Orientation PowerPoint for late starting students/families.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing to 2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, administrator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


81/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Hold 3 family/guardian conferences per year: start of school year, mid Semester 1, and mid Semester 2. Inform re UC 
A-G and non- A-G tracks  throughout the school year. Provide interpretation of all meetings for parents when needed 
and translate all relevant materials for Spanish speaking parents.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, administrator, school counselor        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Structure and define specific academic and post high school pathways to ensure all students are prepared for college, 
career, and other postsecondary high school options.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, administrator, school counselor        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Continue mindfulness and restorative justice training for teachers.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2018-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrator, SEEDS Community Resolution Center, teachers        


 


82/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Amount 0        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Description SEEDS for BSSC staff is funded in the 2020-2021 Costanoa SPSA        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Continue to offer enrichment opportunities (field trips, mini-classes) for students and families        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, administrator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Description If funding becomes available, we will move it here.        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Develop a monitoring system (dropout rate analysis, academic barriers table maintained, teacher input requested, 
principal and counselor consultation) to respond to student mental health needs to provide access to support services 
to support students (e.g an internal google form to track student mental health needs and our response)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students in need of mental health support        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrator, school counselor, mental health counselor, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Pilot a weekly College & Career exploration opportunity for students to learn more about Career Pathways in the 
community and beyond        


83/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Ark Students        


 
Timeline 
2019-2025        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrator, Ark Teachers, CTE Counselor        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


 


84/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  11,900 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  29,483.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


85/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


         0.00 


CARES Act         4,559.00 


Donations         300.00 


LCFF - Base         1,500.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         7,385.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         3,839.00 


None Specified         0.00 


Title I         11,900.00 
 


86/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


         0.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         22,844.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         6,339.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 300.00 


None Specified         0.00 
 


87/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


           0.00 


           0.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 CARES Act  3,559.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         CARES Act  1,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 Donations  300.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Base  1,500.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  7,385.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  3,839.00 


None Specified         None Specified  0.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  11,900.00 


 


88/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
2 School Principal        
4 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


5 Parent or Community Members        


2 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Naíma Leal         X Principal        


Michelle McKinney         X Principal        


Dominic Yarbrough         X Classroom Teacher        


X Parent or Community Member        


Peter Deutsch         X Classroom Teacher        


X Parent or Community Member        


Margi Illic         X Classroom Teacher        


Zack Garban         X Classroom Teacher        


Crystal Williams-McNish         X Parent or Community Member        


Paul Leibetrau         X Parent or Community Member        


Marcus Anderson         X Secondary Student        


Katiana Leibetrau         X Secondary Student        


Gail Mabrouk         X Other School Staff        


Tara McCullough         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


89/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 41 Ark Independent Studies


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on . 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Michelle McKinney on  


 


90/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


 
School Year:    2020-21     


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement 
(SPSA) Template 
 
Instructions and requirements for completing the SPSA template may be found in the SPSA Template 
Instructions. 


School Name 
Bay View Elementary 
School         


County-District-School 
(CDS) Code 


44698156049860         


Schoolsite Council 
(SSC) Approval Date 


October 2020         


Local Board Approval 
Date 


November 4, 2020         


 


Purpose and Description 
 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan (Select from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive Support 
and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 
X Additional Targeted Support and Improvement        
 Bay View qualified for ATSI because of all orange and red scores on the December 2019 dashboard 
in the areas of Chronic Absenteeism (orange), Suspensions (red), ELA (orange), and math (red) for 
students with disabilities.        


 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting the ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
The goals within this plan all address how Bay View staff will work to improve literacy, math, 
attendance and suspensions for students with disabilities. 
To move out of ATSI, the following would need to occur for students with disabilities: 
1.  Decrease the number of chronically absent students to 20% (24% in 2019).  We expect this part 
of the dash board to be suspended in 2020 due to changes in attendance accounting during COVID-
19 
2.  Decrease suspensions no more than 5 students total suspended (6 students in 2019) 
3.  Increase ELA CAASPP scores by 15 points 
4.  Increase Math CAASPP scores by 15 points 
         
 
Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this 
SPSA/Annual Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Throughout the year, input on stakeholder needs has been collected and analyzed.  A District-wide 
survey of staff was conducted in February about technology needs, facility needs, and district 
operations.  The results were examined by the district management team. Site principals will share 
findings with staff and determine areas of success and need in March.  Culture and Climate Surveys 


91/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


were administered in February and reviewed with staff in spring.  Staff would like to see more 
alignment across grade levels in all content areas. Staff also wanted to see school-wide emphasis 
on "Life Skills" development for our students. During the 2017-2018 school year, students 
participated in a social-emotional health survey to provide insight on the school's cultural climate. 
The PBIS site team also analyzed student referral data entered into our district data system 
(Illuminate) to identify areas of social-emotional need. Findings were used to inform our school's 
PBIS program focus. We noticed that there were many incidents of physical contact across all grade 
levels. Staff is interested in exploring new ways to help students learn to self-regulate when 
experiencing difficult emotions. In winter 2018, we analyzed our 2016-2017 CAASPP data alongside 
2016-2017 local benchmark data. We noticed that students fared better on the district benchmarks 
which led us to assume that the benchmark tests were not fully measuring the level of complexity 
that the CAASPP test does. The new 2017-2018 benchmark tests (NWEA) are more strongly 
aligned with CAASPP results. Across all grade levels, (for grades 3-5) CAASPP results show that 
more than half of our students are not meeting grade level standards in both ELA and Math (with the 
exception of grade 5 in ELA where 38% did not meet standard). In analyzing parent input for 
classroom placements, of the 37 participants, one parent was non-English speaking and four were 
Latino. More outreach efforts to support participation of Latino and non-English speaking students is 
needed.  The School Plan for Student Achievement 4 of 63 3/2/19 families is needed. Overall, 
parents expressed interest in ensuring that both the academic needs and the social emotional needs 
of their children were met. 
 
         
 


92/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


American Indian     % % 0%          0 


African American     2.33% 2.04% 1.64% 11        9 7 


Asian     2.75% 2.26% 2.1% 13        10 9 


Filipino     0.85% 0.68% 0.7% 4        3 3 


Hispanic/Latino     38.48% 40.27% 42.06% 182        178 180 


Pacific Islander     0.63% 0.45% 0.7% 3        2 3 


White     49.47% 47.51% 46.5% 234        210 199 


Multiple/No Response     % 0.45% 6.31%         2 0 


 Total Enrollment 473 442 428 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


17-18 18-19 19-20 


Kindergarten        79 68 66 


Grade 1        70 59 54 


Grade 2        72 71 64 


Grade3        98 69 70 


Grade 4        79 97 72 


Grade 5        75 78 102 


Total Enrollment        473 442 428 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Enrollment has declined.        


 


93/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


English Learners        113 99 98 23.9% 22.4% 22.9% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        22 25 28 4.7% 5.7% 6.5% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        23 13 6 15.9% 11.5% 6.1% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The percentage of English Language Learners (ELL) attending Bay View has declined over the past three years 


from 28.8% in 2015-16 to 27.8% in 2016-17 to 23.9% in 2017-18 to 17.2% and 22.4% in 2018-2019.  With a smaller 
percentage of ELL students, collaboration within and across grade levels will be critical to providing appropriate and 
targeted ELD instruction for smaller groups of students.        


2. The number of Fluent English Proficient students has steadily increased from  4/7% in 2017-2018 to 5.7% in 2018-
2019 to 6.5% in 2019-20.        


3. The decrease in RFEP percentage in 19-20 is because most students were unable to take the ELPAC, due to 
COVID-19 shut downs.        


 


94/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 81 102 68 76 98 68 76 98 68 93.8 96.1 100 


Grade 4 71 80 102 67 79 99 67 79 99 94.4 98.8 97.1 


Grade 5 112 76 82 109 72 81 109 72 81 97.3 94.7 98.8 
All 
Grades 


264 258 252 252 249 248 252 249 248 95.5 96.5 98.4 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2414.
0 


2418.
2 


2408.
7 


22.37 30.61 20.59 22.37 18.37 14.71 21.05 16.33 30.88 34.21 34.69 33.82 


Grade 4 2441.
3 


2441.
6 


2439.
3 


19.40 21.52 18.18 16.42 21.52 20.20 16.42 16.46 22.22 47.76 40.51 39.39 


Grade 5 2525.
4 


2482.
7 


2505.
0 


33.03 19.44 27.16 29.36 22.22 24.69 15.60 19.44 22.22 22.02 38.89 25.93 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 26.19 24.50 21.77 23.81 20.48 20.16 17.46 17.27 24.60 32.54 37.75 33.47 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 17.11 29.59 22.06 50.00 37.76 51.47 32.89 32.65 26.47 


Grade 4 13.43 17.72 16.16 47.76 40.51 43.43 38.81 41.77 40.40 


Grade 5 39.45 25.00 34.57 36.70 38.89 41.98 23.85 36.11 23.46 


All Grades 25.79 24.50 23.79 43.65 38.96 45.16 30.56 36.55 31.05 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 21.33 19.39 10.29 46.67 41.84 54.41 32.00 38.78 35.29 


Grade 4 14.93 18.99 19.19 47.76 45.57 43.43 37.31 35.44 37.37 


Grade 5 39.45 23.61 24.69 41.28 41.67 46.91 19.27 34.72 28.40 


All Grades 27.49 20.48 18.55 44.62 42.97 47.58 27.89 36.55 33.87 
 


95/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 22.37 27.55 17.65 55.26 56.12 60.29 22.37 16.33 22.06 


Grade 4 14.93 16.46 12.12 50.75 64.56 65.66 34.33 18.99 22.22 


Grade 5 26.61 8.33 25.93 58.72 62.50 54.32 14.68 29.17 19.75 


All Grades 22.22 18.47 18.15 55.56 60.64 60.48 22.22 20.88 21.37 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 30.26 28.57 20.59 36.84 40.82 48.53 32.89 30.61 30.88 


Grade 4 22.39 17.72 17.17 43.28 49.37 52.53 34.33 32.91 30.30 


Grade 5 34.86 20.83 32.10 45.87 44.44 37.04 19.27 34.72 30.86 


All Grades 30.16 22.89 22.98 42.46 44.58 46.37 27.38 32.53 30.65 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. A three year student cohort analysis of overall English Language Arts achievement shows significant decline in 


achievement.  In 2016-2017, the number of third graders NOT meeting standards was 55.26%.  In 2017-2018, the 
number of fourth graders NOT meeting standard was 56.97% representing a 1.7 % gain in proficiency.  Despite the 
gain, the proficiency rate for students as fifth graders is still 12% less than what this cohort achieved as third 
graders.  In 2018-2019, the number of fourth graders NOT meeting standards declined to 48.15 % representing a 
9% gain in achievement for this cohort.  Similar trends of growth in Grade 5 are seen in 2016-2017, the number of 
fourth graders NOT meeting standard was 64.22%. In 2018-2019, the number of fifth graders NOT meeting 
standards declined to 58.33 % representing a 6% gain in achievement for this cohort.        


2. A three year student cohort analysis of ELA achievement shows the reading domain to be the area of most 
significant gains in achievement in Grade 5.  In 2016-2017, the number of third graders NOT meeting standards 
was 32%.  In 2017-2018, the number of fourth graders NOT meeting standard was 41% representing 9% decline in 
achievement.   In 2018-2019, the number of fifth graders NOT meeting standard was 23% representing 18% gain in 
achievement.        


3. A three year student cohort analysis of ELA achievement shows the Research/Inquiry domain to be the only area of 
decline in achievement in Grade 5. In 2016-2017, the number of third graders NOT meeting standards was 32.89%.  
In 2017-2018, the number of fourth graders NOT meeting standard was 32.91% representing a stagnation in 
achievement. In 2018-2019, the number of fifth graders NOT meeting standard was 30.86% representing an almost 
2% decline in achievement.        


 


96/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 81 102 68 76 98 68 76 98 68 93.8 96.1 100 


Grade 4 71 80 102 67 80 100 67 80 100 94.4 100 98 


Grade 5 112 76 82 108 73 81 108 73 81 96.4 96.1 98.8 
All 
Grades 


264 258 252 251 251 249 251 251 249 95.1 97.3 98.8 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2419.
7 


2426.
4 


2421.
7 


9.21 24.49 19.12 39.47 26.53 23.53 14.47 19.39 26.47 36.84 29.59 30.88 


Grade 4 2446.
5 


2433.
4 


2439.
0 


10.45 5.00 8.00 14.93 23.75 21.00 38.81 33.75 29.00 35.82 37.50 42.00 


Grade 5 2503.
8 


2484.
8 


2473.
1 


26.85 12.33 22.22 15.74 19.18 12.35 22.22 32.88 19.75 35.19 35.62 45.68 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 17.13 14.74 15.66 22.71 23.51 18.88 24.30 27.89 25.30 35.86 33.86 40.16 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 25.00 33.67 30.88 36.84 32.65 29.41 38.16 33.67 39.71 


Grade 4 16.42 11.25 16.00 28.36 32.50 27.00 55.22 56.25 57.00 


Grade 5 28.70 16.44 22.22 26.85 35.62 27.16 44.44 47.95 50.62 


All Grades 24.30 21.51 22.09 30.28 33.47 27.71 45.42 45.02 50.20 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 21.05 28.57 23.53 43.42 39.80 50.00 35.53 31.63 26.47 


Grade 4 16.42 10.00 17.00 41.79 47.50 41.00 41.79 42.50 42.00 


Grade 5 26.85 12.33 22.22 37.96 46.58 30.86 35.19 41.10 46.91 


All Grades 22.31 17.93 20.48 40.64 44.22 40.16 37.05 37.85 39.36 
 


97/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 26.32 30.61 23.53 50.00 40.82 50.00 23.68 28.57 26.47 


Grade 4 10.45 11.25 15.00 50.75 46.25 37.00 38.81 42.50 48.00 


Grade 5 22.22 13.70 17.28 42.59 49.32 35.80 35.19 36.99 46.91 


All Grades 20.32 19.52 18.07 47.01 45.02 40.16 32.67 35.46 41.77 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. A three year student cohort analysis of overall Mathematics achievement shows significant decline in achievement.  


In 2016-2017, the number of third graders NOT meeting standards was 51.31%.In 2016-2017, the number of fourth 
graders NOT meeting standards grew to 71.25% representing  19.94% decline in achievement for this cohort.  In 
2018-2019, the number of fifth graders NOT meeting standard was 65.43% representing 5.82% gain in proficiency.  
Despite the gain, the proficiency rate for students as fifth graders is still 14.12% less than what this cohort achieved 
as third graders.        


2. A three year student cohort analysis of Mathematics shows that Communicating Reasoning is our greatest area of 
need.  In 2015-2016, the number of third graders NOT meeting standard was 23%.  In 2016-2017, the number of 
fourth graders NOT meeting standards grew to 42% representing a 19% loss in achievement for this cohort.  In 
2018-2019, the number of fifth graders NOT meeting standard was 46% representing 4% loss in achievement.  In  
three year span the overall loss in proficiency in this domain is 23%.        


3. A three year student cohort analysis of Mathematics shows Problem Solving and Modeling/Data Analysis to have 
the least amount of decline in achievement.  In 2015-2016, the number of third graders NOT meeting standard was 
35%.  In 2016-2017, the number of fourth graders NOT meeting standards grew to 42% representing a 7% decline 
in achievement for this cohort.  In 2017-2018, the number of fifth graders NOT meeting standard was 46% 
representing 4% decline in proficiency.        


 


98/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade K        1427.6 1433.5 1438.7 1450.4 1401.6 1393.6 22 19 


Grade 1        1444.6 1436.2 1466.8 1452.1 1421.9 1419.9 17 16 


Grade 2        1485.9 1483.5 1488.9 1498.0 1482.2 1468.2 17 17 


Grade 3        1492.8 1466.6 1506.7 1492.5 1478.1 1439.9 15 16 


Grade 4        1515.1 1489.7 1511.9 1501.2 1517.9 1477.6 18 16 


Grade 5        1523.5 1540.1 1525.6 1552.4 1520.8 1527.2 11 13 


All Grades              100 97 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 5.26 * 57.89 * 31.58 * 5.26 22 19 


   1    * 0.00 * 50.00 * 37.50 * 12.50 17 16 


   2    * 5.88 * 41.18 * 52.94  0.00 17 17 


   3    * 0.00 * 31.25 * 50.00 * 18.75 15 16 


   4    * 25.00 * 31.25 * 31.25 * 12.50 18 16 


   5    * 23.08 * 46.15 * 30.77 * 0.00 11 13 


All Grades        32.00 9.28 33.00 43.30 26.00 39.18 * 8.25 100 97 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 36.84 50.00 42.11 * 15.79 * 5.26 22 19 


   1    64.71 12.50 * 68.75 * 12.50 * 6.25 17 16 


   2    70.59 29.41 * 64.71 * 0.00  5.88 17 17 


   3    * 31.25 * 50.00  0.00 * 18.75 15 16 


   4    * 50.00 61.11 31.25  12.50 * 6.25 18 16 


   5    * 53.85 * 46.15  0.00 * 0.00 11 13 


All Grades        52.00 35.05 38.00 50.52 * 7.22 * 7.22 100 97 
 


99/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 5.26 * 31.58 50.00 57.89 * 5.26 22 19 


   1    * 0.00 * 12.50 * 62.50 * 25.00 17 16 


   2    * 5.88 * 23.53 * 52.94 * 17.65 17 17 


   3     0.00 * 6.25 * 31.25 * 62.50 15 16 


   4    * 6.25 * 12.50 * 31.25 * 50.00 18 16 


   5    * 7.69 * 23.08 * 53.85 * 15.38 11 13 


All Grades        14.00 4.12 32.00 18.56 27.00 48.45 27.00 28.87 100 97 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    50.00 10.53 50.00 84.21  5.26 22 19 


   1    64.71 31.25 * 56.25 * 12.50 17 16 


   2    70.59 17.65 * 76.47 * 5.88 17 17 


   3    * 0.00 * 75.00 * 25.00 15 16 


   4    * 18.75 * 62.50 * 18.75 18 16 


   5    * 15.38 * 84.62 * 0.00 11 13 


All Grades        49.00 15.46 44.00 73.20 * 11.34 100 97 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 42.11 * 52.63 * 5.26 22 19 


   1    * 18.75 * 75.00 * 6.25 17 16 


   2    76.47 47.06 * 52.94  0.00 17 17 


   3    73.33 93.75 * 6.25 * 0.00 15 16 


   4    72.22 81.25 * 12.50 * 6.25 18 16 


   5    * 100.00  0.00 * 0.00 11 13 


All Grades        65.00 61.86 28.00 35.05 * 3.09 100 97 
 


100/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 0.00 72.73 94.74 * 5.26 22 19 


   1    * 12.50 * 50.00 * 37.50 17 16 


   2    * 5.88 * 76.47 * 17.65 17 17 


   3     0.00 * 25.00 * 75.00 15 16 


   4    * 0.00 77.78 50.00 * 50.00 18 16 


   5    * 15.38 * 69.23 * 15.38 11 13 


All Grades        14.00 5.15 55.00 61.86 31.00 32.99 100 97 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 47.37 * 31.58 * 21.05 22 19 


   1    * 0.00 70.59 75.00 * 25.00 17 16 


   2    * 0.00 76.47 88.24  11.76 17 17 


   3    * 18.75 * 50.00 * 31.25 15 16 


   4    * 6.25 * 68.75 * 25.00 18 16 


   5    * 7.69 * 76.92 * 15.38 11 13 


All Grades        30.00 14.43 51.00 63.92 19.00 21.65 100 97 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Over half of our students are scored an overall language proficiency level of 3 or 4 (43 and 9 percent respectively).  


Thirty-nine percent scored an overall language proficiency level 2 and nine percent scored an overall language 
proficiency level 1.  Thus, most EL students have moderate or well developed English Development skills and EL 
target skills should focus on higher level and critical analysis skills.        


2. All EL students scored somewhat moderate or well developed in speaking,  listening, and writing domains of 
ELPAC test.  However, reading is the area of most need with 33% of EL students scoring as a "beginner" on 
ELPAC.  Data suggests more emphasis on reading skills are needed in our ELD instruction.        


3. An area of strength for our EL students is speaking with 62% scoring at the well-developed level.  ELD instruction 
should focus on using strength to build on area of need by increasing the amount of accountable student talk during 
reading instruction and ELD instruction.        


 


101/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2018-19 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


442        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


48.4        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


22.4        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


0.2        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2018-19 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        99 22.4 


Foster Youth        1 0.2 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        214 48.4 


Students with Disabilities        62 14.0 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        9 2.0 


Asian        10 2.3 


Filipino        3 0.7 


Hispanic        178 40.3 


Two or More Races        28 6.3 


Pacific Islander        2 0.5 


White        210 47.5 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our largest sub group is our socio-economically disadvantaged students which represent 50.5% of our student 


population.  It is critical that we continue to offer supports such as our food and nutrition, our breakfast and lunch 
program, Second Harvest Food Distribution program, and Dientes dental screening program at our school to 
support students.        


2. Our second largest sub group is our English Language Learner group.  Our Puentes (Spanish/English bilingual 
bridge program), designated and integrated ELD instruction are key supports in place to serve these students.        


3. White and Hispanic students are our largest racial groups (49% and 38% respectively).  However, we serve 
students from a variety of racial backgrounds and from diverse cultural homes.  We will continue to ensure that the 
curriculum we offer reflects the diversity of our student population.        


 
 


102/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Orange        


 
Mathematics 


 
Orange        


Academic Engagement 


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Orange        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Orange        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Equity report indicates (orange) "needs improvement" for school suspensions, English Language Arts, and 


Mathematics.        
2. Equity report indicates fair (yellow) progress in Attendance.        


3. Graduation Rates and College/Career Ready is not applicable for our school .        


 
 


103/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


3        
Orange        


1        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


18.2 points below standard         


Maintained ++2.4 points         


238        


English Learners 


 
Red         


91 points below standard         


Declined -8.3 points         


62        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Red         


72.8 points below standard         


Declined -11 points         


113        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


108.6 points below standard         


Increased ++10.3 points         


50        


 


104/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Hispanic 


 
Red         


71.8 points below standard         


Declined -3.7 points         


91        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


65.1 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++55.3 points         
16        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Green         


12.8 points above standard         


Maintained ++1.8 points         


114        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


116.7 points below standard         


Increased ++3.7 points         


43        


Reclassified English Learners 


32.9 points below standard         


Declined -13.1 points         


19        


English Only 


8.4 points above standard         


Increased ++7.3 points         


171        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our school achieved an overall medium "orange" status in ELA.  As such, we declined our level of achievement in 


ELA.        
2. Our white students represent the highest achieving student group in ELA (green) and outperform other student groups 


by two performance levels.        
3. Our socio-economically disadvantaged students and Hispanic students and students scored in orange.  Our students 


with disabilities and EL students represent our lowest achieving student groups scoring in the red.        
 
 


105/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


2        
Orange        


2        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


39.6 points below standard         


Declined -9.8 points         


238        


English Learners 


 
Red         


97.9 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -22.8 points         


62        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


88.9 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -24.9 points         


113        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Red         


122.4 points below standard         


Declined -6.3 points         


50        


 


106/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


American Indian Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


84.9 points below standard         


Declined -14.6 points         


91        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


20.6 points above standard         


Increased ++11.1 points         


16        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Yellow         


10.2 points below standard         


Declined -5.7 points         


114        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


117.8 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -18.2 points         


43        


Reclassified English Learners 


52.8 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -18.7 points         


19        


English Only 


18.4 points below standard         


Declined -3.7 points         


171        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our school showed overall needs improvement (orange) student performance in math.        


2. Our white students represent the highest achieving student group in math scoring fair (yellow).        


3. Our socio-economically disadvantaged students, EL students, and Hispanic students scored in needs improvement 
(orange).  Our students with disabilities represent our lowest achieving student groups in math and scored in the red.        


 
 


107/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


49.3 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 75          


Performance Level: Medium        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


21.3         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


29.3         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


45.3         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The majority of our students scored at a level 3 (33%).        


2. We have the fewest number of students (9%) in Level 1.        


3. Thirty-two percent of our students scored at level 4 and will be supported to prepare for reclassification.        


 
 


108/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
0        


Orange        
4        


Yellow        
1        


Green        
0        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


17.4         


Increased +1.1         


460        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


15.5         


Declined -2.4         


103        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


20         


Increased +0.9         


230        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


24.4         


Declined -3.8         


82        


 


109/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


9        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


10        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


17.9         


Increased +1.2         


190        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


3.4         


Declined -18.8         


29        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


White     


 
Orange         


19         


Increased +2.5         


216        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our overall absenteeism rate is in the Yellow Band which suggests more school-wide emphasis on attendance 


improvement is needed.        
2. Student groups in the Yellow Band for attendance include: Hispanic, English Language Learners, and Socio-


Economically Disadvantaged.   Our most needy subgroup with regards to attendance is our Students with Disabilities 
who are currently in the Red Band.  Our highest performing group is our White Students, however, they are at the 
Yellow band and show great need for improvement.        


3. Despite low performance, the following groups demonstrated decreases in absenteeism:  White students, All 
students.  While our Socio-economically disadvantaged students maintained their absenteeism rate.        


 
 


110/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


1        
Orange        


2        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


1.7         


Increased +0.3         
464        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


1         


Increased +1         
103        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          3        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          7        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


2.2         


Increased +0.6         
231        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Red         


7.3         


Increased +2.2         
82        


 


111/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          9        


American Indian Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          10        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          3        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


1.6         


Increased +1.6         
193        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
29        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          3        


White     


 
Green         


2.3         


Declined -0.6         
217        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
1.4         


2019     
1.7         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Data shows overall Yellow Performance for suspensions.        


2. English Learners and Hispanic students scored "blue" (highest performance) for school suspensions.        


3. Our greatest need with regards to suspensions is seen in the follow Orange Performing subgroups:  White, students 
with disabilities, and socio-economically disadvantaged students.        


 
 


112/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community. 
         


 


Goal 1 
All students will make academic literacy growth as measured by the CAASPP ELA assessment.          


 
Identified Need 
         


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts 
CAASPP Data: All Students        


 18.2 below standard  "All Students" will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts 
CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 91 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts 
CAASPP Data: Students with 
Disabilities        


 108.6 points below standard  Students with Disabilities will 
improve a minimum of 3 points 
on the 2020 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts 
CAASPP Data: 
Hispanic 
        


 71.8 points below standard  Hispanic students will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts 
CAASPP Data: 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 
        


 72.8 points below standard  Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students will 
improve a minimum of 3 points 
on the 2020 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts 
CAASPP Data: White        


 12.8 points above standard  Students identifying with two or 
more races will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 ELA CAASPP. 


 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 


113/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
During the 2018-2019 school year, our school focused on refining our progress monitoring system.  
We identified two summative assessments that will be used to monitor our growth in English 
Language Arts:  Fountas and Pinnel Benchmark Assessments System (F&P) and  Northwest 
Evaluation Assessment Measures of Academic success (NWEA MAP).  F & P is a 1:1 running 
record assessment that give teachers information about student reading skills and needs including: 
accuracy of words read, fluency, comprehension (literal and inferential) as well as measures 
students ability to respond to text both orally and in writing by making claims about the text and 
supporting those claims with text evidence.  In 2019-2020, F & P will be administer twice in kinder 
(winter and spring), three times in Grades 1-3 (fall, winter, and spring).  Our RTI reading 
intervention team will support teachers in Grades 4 & 5 in administering this assessments to 
students working far below grade level so that we can augment the type of support we provide, 
including providing foundational skills intervention.  This year, our school will also identify additional 
early literacy foundational skills assessments and proficiency cut marks for students in kinder.  We 
will use information gained in F & P training to determine which assessments we will foundation 
skills assessments we will administer in fall, winter, and spring.  In addition to F & P, teachers in 
Grades 2-5 will administer the NWEA MAP assessment three times a year (fall, winter, spring).  
The MAP assessment is a computer adapted test that provides comprehensive information about 
skill strength and need.  During the 2018-2019, we had several "early adopter" staff members get 
trained (by the site principal) and begin using F & P assessments.  Our RTI coordinator has 
provided several training opportunities for our staff in use of MAP assessments and report analysis 
protocols.  Our district data-base system, Illuminate, allows us to disaggregate data by sub group 
(language, gender, race, etc.) to help our teaching staff evaluate their progress on closing the 
achievement gap and providing high quality instruction for all students.  For the 2019-2020, the 
central office curriculum department will provide all K-2 teachers with training from Heinemann of 
use of F & P.  Teachers in other grades have the option to participate in that training.  Sub Release 
time will be provided to teachers to attend SLTs, to administer 1:1 assessments, and to work with 
colleagues on lesson and intervention plans. 
 
Teachers will have three opportunities to come together with their grade level colleagues and 
literacy support staff in Student Learning Team (SLT) meetings to analyze summative assessment 
data and create literacy-based Action Plans.  The Action Plans will serve as the blueprint for their 
PLC cycles of inquiry.  Teachers will also work in PLCs to create common formative assessments 
so that they can continue to make adjustments to their instructional and intervention plans 
throughout the cycle of inquiry.  Teachers will use findings from the assessments as a springboard 
for collaborative discussions at PLCs to answer PLC questions:  How will we respond if they don't 
learn it?  How will we respond if they already learned it?  In answering these questions, teachers 
will develop intervention and enrichment instructional plans.  To augment the efficiency of data 
collection, we will explore tech tools, such as the F & P App and Illuminate flexible online 
assessments.  If proven effective, we will develop a venue for training staff. 
 
In addition to grade level data team meetings, all members of our certificated staff participated in 
three school-wide data meetings a year.  At these meetings, we make all data walls from each 
grade (TK to 5th) visible to staff.  Staff is challenged to identify patterns related to student 


114/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


achievement, identify successes and challenges, and reflect on the effectiveness of our 
instructional and intervention plans. 
 
In addition to our core ELA/ELD instruction, teachers will Next Generation Science Standards 
(NGSS) instruction to support academic literacy development. In the 2019-2020 school year, 
teachers will identify common summative and formative NGSS assessments to be used in cycles of 
inquiry to monitor language and content area growth.  Teachers will utilize assessments provided in 
district adopted content curriculum (Benchmark Workshop and FOSS) and supplement with 
additional resources when appropriate. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
3000         LCFF - Supplemental 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Sub Release Time for SLTs, assessments (data 
collection and data analysis), and grade level 
planning 


121,977         District Funded 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
RTI Coordinator (salary) for SLT meetings 


3,000         LCFF - Supplemental 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Assessment tools such as assessment kits, 
software license, or ipads, chrome books, 
laptops, supplemental assessments 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
A Tier 1 Academic Literacy school wide focus for the 2019-20 school year will be to help our 
students construct (though speaking and/or writing) an argument based on evidence in both fiction 
and informational text.  We will achieve our goal by focusing our year long Professional 
Development (PD) on scaffolding and supporting student academic development through rigorous 
standards aligned whole group mini-lessons and personalized and targeted small group instruction.  
Teachers will participate in district literacy training including:  Fundamentals of Balanced Literacy 
Framework (presented by Momentum), Fountas and Pinnell Reading Assessment Training 
(presented by Heinemann) and Publisher training to provide an overview of our newly adopted 
literacy program.  In addition, our monthly SCIL led PD will focus on summative and formative data 
analysis protocols as the vehicle for designing targeted differentiated lessons and intervention 
plans in English Language Arts and Science.  Items addressed in these trainings throughout the 
year will include topics such as:  refining the design of our mini-lessons to augment student 
engagement, analysis of student work (including findings from running records and science 


115/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


notebooks) to design personalized instruction and structures for lifting the level of academic 
discourse among students. 
 
Our SCIL team will be made up of a core group of early adopters and teachers leaders, including 
representatives of primary grades and intermediate grades. Teachers will get additional training in 
literacy and NGSS from Columbia Teachers College, Bay Sci, and other high quality professional 
development organizations.  These teacher leaders will use insights gained from trainings to help 
develop our site long-term PD blueprint, design PD, and also help facilitate PD training sessions.  
Teachers will also be invited to observe exemplary teachers' classrooms and engage in classroom 
walk-throughs to broaden their perspective about best practices and widen their scope of 
professional resources. 
 
In 2019-2020, our school will adopt a new ELA instructional program.  We will also be rolling out a 
new NGSS Foss kit.  Sub release time and training costs will be available for teaching teams to 
attend trainings that will help them implement these new programs. 
 
In addition, we will provide routine training for classified staff (including RTI, ASES, and Special 
Education paraprofessionals) that work directly with students on data analysis and effective small 
group instructional strategies.  Trainings will be developed and facilitated by site principal and 
teacher leaders. 
 
Administration will be responsible for communicating instructional vision to the staff and parent 
community through various methods including newsletters, meetings (formal and informal) and 
electronic communication. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
6455         Title I 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 
Training costs (registration, travel, etc), sub 
release or extra-hourly pay for observations and 
trainings, training material (professional books, 
etc) 


2000         Title I 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
extended duty staff to plan and facilitated 
training beyond contractual work day 


          
 
Develop and deliver informative presentation for 
Family community 


Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


116/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Striving readers, including English Language Learners, Latino Students, Socio-economically 
Disadvantaged students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Site Principal and RTI coordinator will work in collaboration with the RTI team, Classroom 
Teachers, and Special Education Staff to plan Tier 2 and Tier 3 Reading Interventions. The team 
will identify students in need of intervention by analyzing multiple measures of achievement 
including:  MAP, F & P, ELPAC, CAASPP and other teacher developed assessments.  All reading 
interventions will incorporate a Balanced Literacy Approach to instruction and provide support in:  
foundational skills, fluency, comprehension, and response to reading (verbal and written).  RTI 
team will provide support to enable Tier 3 students to receive reading intervention in a small group 
setting.  Special attention will be given to creating lessons that engage traditionally 
underperforming students such as our English Language Learners and Latino students.  We will 
ensure that at least one member of our RTI Team is bilingual (Spanish/English) in order to be able 
to administer Spanish assessments and provide native language support for intervention. 
 
RTI Team will meet in monthly PLCs to analyze data and plan intervention.  Sub release time and 
extended duty hours will be available for teams of teachers requiring additional time for data 
analysis and intervention planning. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
0         District Funded 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
RTI coordinator salary already listed in above 
Strategy/Activity. 


2000         LCFF - Supplemental 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Sub release and extra hourly pay for teacher 
teams to collaborate around designing 
intervention lessons to be taught in the 
classroom.  Extra hourly pay for RTI to work in 
monthly PLCs to plan intervention. 


1500         LCFF - Supplemental 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental material needed to provide 
intervention including items such as response 
notebooks, leveled texts, chrome books and 
other technological tools 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 


117/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


All students will benefit from this action        
 
Strategy/Activity 
For the 2020-2021 School Year, our district will be providing ELA instruction via 100% online 
learning during the first semester.  Before the start of the second semester, the board will 
determine if our school will transition to hybrid learning for the second semester.  In TK and kinder, 
teachers will use a 1:1 virtual BPST assessment and our district writing benchmark test to assess 
grade level proficiency.  In grades 1-5, Teachers will use Pioneer Valley 1:1 assessments to 
determine grade level proficiency.  Teachers will provide a mixture of asynchronous and 
synchronous learning experiences for students.  To differentiate instruction, teachers will use the 
following strategies:  break out rooms, small group instruction, and office hours.  Teachers will work 
in teams to determine essential grade level standards to prioritize high leverage lessons and make 
short and long term instructional plans.  Teachers will use both formative and summative 
assessment data to provide students with feedback. 
 
At Bay View, we believe that building a strong Tier 1 program is critical to preventing learning loss 
and closing the achievement gap.  As such, we will invest in high quality professional development 
to support classroom teachers and support staff to provide high quality core instruction.  Our 
professional development will focus on building pedagogical knowledge around Blended Learning 
(a framework for using technology to leverage student learning and intentional asynchronous and 
synchronous instruction) and Zaretta Hammond's Culturally Responsive Teaching and the Brain 
framework (a research based approach to using neuroscience and culture to maximize learning 
opportunities for all students, especially our traditionally underperforming students).  We will use a 
combination of direct instruction and modeling from a curriculum consultant, peer-based lesson 
study, and teacher led inquiry groups, and collaborative curriculum development. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
4000         CARES Act 


 
Extra hourly pay to cover time to administer 
assessments 


4000         CARES Act 
 
Professional Development 


Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ELL, low income, homeless, foster youth, special education, striving learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
We understand that there are real barriers to students participating in online learning, such as poor 
internet service and parents work schedule.  As such, we will offer after school tutoring (virtually 


118/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


and eventually in person) and begin phasing in small cohorts of students to come onto campus.  In 
addition, in order to bridge the digital divide and meet learning needs we will provide students with 
adaptive technology resource (such as headsets, lap desks and instructional software) and 
personalized instructional material (such as leveled library of books and math manipulatives).        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
2500         CARES Act 


 
Staffing 


5000         CARES Act 
 
Tech and supplies for teachers and students 
and instructional resources 


 
 
  


119/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community. 
         


 


Goal 2 
All students will make mathematics growth as measured by CAASPP          


 
Identified Need 
         


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
All Students        


 13.5 points below standard  "All Students" will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
English Learners        


 68.9 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Students with Disabilities        


 31 points below standard  Students with Disabilities will 
improve a minimum of 3 points 
on the 2020 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged        


 53.9 points below standard  Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students will 
improve a minimum of 3 points 
on the 2020 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Hispanic        


 47.2 points below standard  Hispanic will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
White        


 11.2 points above standard  White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 Math CAASPP. 


 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 


120/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


All students will benefit from this strategy/action        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Our school has identified one summative assessment that will be used to monitor our growth in 
mathematics: Northwest Evaluation Assessment Measures of Academic success (NWEA MAP).  
The MAP assessment is a computer adapted test that provides comprehensive information about 
skill strength and need.  Our district data-base system, Illuminate, allows us to disaggregate data 
by sub group (language, gender, race, etc.) to help our teaching staff evaluate their progress on 
closing the achievement gap and providing high quality instruction for all students.  It is given three 
times a year (fall, winter, and spring) to students in grades 2-5.  In grades kinder and first, teachers 
have been using teacher-created assessment kits to monitor growth in math.  This year, we will 
formalize this process.  Teachers, Site Principal, RTI coordinator, and support staff will work 
together to determine which assessment and data collection system will be used as a common 
grade level summative assessment system to monitor our student's mathematical progress.  
Teachers will have three opportunities to come together with their grade level colleagues and 
instructional support staff in Student Learning Team (SLT) meetings to analyze summative 
assessment data and create math-based Action Plans. 
 
In addition to grade level data team meetings, all members of our certificated staff will participate in 
three school-wide data meetings a year.  At these meetings, we make all data walls from each 
grade (TK to 5th) visible to staff.  Staff work together to identify patterns related to student 
achievement, identify successes and challenges, and reflect on the effectiveness of our 
instructional and intervention plans. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
3000         LCFF - Supplemental 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Sub Release Time for SLTs, assessments (data 
collection and data analysis), and grade level 
planning 


0         District Funded 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
RTI coordinator to co-facilitate SLT meetings. 
Cost of RtI Coordinator already included in Goal 
#1. 


3000         LCFF - Supplemental 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Assessment tools such as assessment kits, 
software license, or ipads, chrome books, 
laptops 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


121/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students will benefit from this strategy/activity        
 
Strategy/Activity 
We will achieve our goal by focusing our year long Professional Development (PD) on scaffolding 
and supporting student academic development through rigorous standards aligned whole group 
mini-lessons and personalized and targeted small group instruction.  Our monthly SCIL led PD will 
focus on summative and formative data analysis protocols as the vehicle for designing targeted 
differentiated lessons and intervention plans.  Although a significant amount of our PD time will be 
spent targeting literacy instruction, this work will help students in mathematics by helping them 
develop skills needed to unpack word problems and mathematical instructions.  It will also help 
students learn to use sentence frames to cite evidence to support claims made which aligns with 
CCSS.MATH.PRACTICE.MP3 Construct viable arguments and critique the reasoning of others.  
Other items that will be addressed in site-based PD include topics such as:  refining the design of 
our mini-lessons to augment student engagement, analysis of student work (including findings from 
running records and science notebooks) to design personalized instruction and structures for lifting 
the level of academic discourse among students. 
 
Teachers will continue to use our district adopted math curriculum, Eureka, to provide core Tier 1 
instruction. Teachers are members of the Silicon Valley Math Initiative and have access to MARS 
tasks and other instruction and assessment resources.  Teachers are encouraged to participate in 
additional training such as S4C, SVMI lesson study, and other high quality trainings. Our fourth 
grade team uses MARS tasks to engage in lesson study each year to share resources and improve 
math instruction. Teachers will also be invited to observe exemplary teachers' classrooms and 
engage in classroom walk-throughs to broaden their perspective about best practices and widen 
their scope of professional resources. 
 
Administration will be responsible for communicating instructional vision to the parent community 
through various methods including newsletters, meetings (formal and informal) and electronic 
communication. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
3000         LCFF - Supplemental 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Sub Release Time for SLTs, assessments (data 
collection and data analysis), and grade level 
planning 


2000         Title I 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Training costs, sub release for observations, 
training material (professional books, etc) for 
certificated staff 


          


122/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


 
Develop and deliver informative presentation for 
Family community 


Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Striving learners, including English Language Learners, Latino Students, Socio-economically 
Disadvantaged students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Site Principal and RTI coordinator will work in collaboration with the RTI team, Classroom 
Teachers, and Special Education Staff to plan Tier 2 and Tier 3 Math Interventions. The team will 
identify students in need of intervention by analyzing multiple measures of achievement including:  
MAP, MARS tasks, ELPAC, CAASPP and other teacher developed assessments.  RTI team will 
provide support to enable Tier 3 students to receive reading intervention in a small group setting.  
Special attention will be given to creating lessons that engage traditionally underperforming 
students such as our English Language Learners and Latino students.  We will ensure that at least 
one member of our RTI Team is bilingual (Spanish/English) in order to be able to administer 
Spanish assessments and provide native language support for intervention. 
 
RTI Team will meet in monthly PLCs to analyze data and plan intervention.  Sub release time and 
extended duty hours will be available for teams of teachers requiring additional time for data 
analysis and intervention planning.  We are interested in piloting a new math intervention system 
this year.  We find that students need more time to develop fundamental number sense skills.  We 
will look into research-based programs, such as Marilyn Burns' intervention system, and identify a 
grade level to pilot the system. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
0         District Funded 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
RTI coordinator and RTI support staff salaries. 
Cost already included in Goal #1. 


2000         LCFF - Supplemental 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Sub release and extra hourly pay for teacher 
teams to collaborate around designing 
intervention lessons to be taught in the 
classroom 


2000         LCFF - Supplemental 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental material needed to provide 
intervention including items such as intervention 


123/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


units of study, chrome books and other 
technological tools 


2000         LCFF - Supplemental 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Sub release and extra hourly pay for teacher 
teams to collaborate around designing 
intervention lessons to be taught in the 
classroom.  Extra hourly pay for RTI to work in 
monthly PLCs to plan intervention. 


5000         Title I 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental extra hourly support to increase 
support staff to provide targeted math 
intervention 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students will benefit from this action        
 
Strategy/Activity 
For the 2020-2021 School Year, our district will be providing MATH instruction via 100% online 
learning during the first semester.  Before the start of the second semester, the board will 
determine if our school will transition to hybrid learning for the second semester.  In TK and kinder, 
teachers will use a 1:1 virtual assessments to assess grade level proficiency.  In grades 1-5, 
Teachers will use end of unit Eureka assessments to determine grade level proficiency. These 
assessments will be given via google forms and teams will develop protocols for administering.  
Teachers will provide a mixture of asynchronous and synchronous learning experiences for 
students.  To differentiate instruction, teachers will use the following strategies:  break out rooms, 
small group instruction, and office hours.  Teachers will work in teams to determine essential grade 
level standards to prioritize high leverage lessons and make short and long term instructional plans.  
Teachers will use both formative and summative assessment data to provide students with 
feedback. 
 
At Bay View, we believe that building a strong Tier 1 program is critical to preventing learning loss 
and closing the achievement gap.  As such, we will invest in high quality professional development 
to support classroom teachers and support staff to provide high quality core instruction.  Our 
professional development will focus on building pedagogical knowledge around Blended Learning 
(a framework for using technology to leverage student learning and intentional asynchronous and 
synchronous instruction) and Zaretta Hammond's Culturally Responsive Teaching and the Brain 
framework (a research based approach to using neuroscience and culture to maximize learning 
opportunities for all students, especially our traditionally underperforming students).  We will use a 
combination of direct instruction and modeling from a curriculum consultant, peer-based lesson 
study, and teacher led inquiry groups. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


124/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
4000         CARES Act 


 
Extra hourly pay to cover time to administer 
assessments 


4000         CARES Act 
 
Professional Development 


Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ELL, low income, homeless, foster youth, special education, striving learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
We understand that there are real barriers to students participating in online learning, such as poor 
internet service and parents work schedule.  As such, we will offer after school tutoring (virtually 
and eventually in person) and begin phasing in small cohorts of students to come onto campus.  In 
addition, in order to bridge the digital divide and meet learning needs we will provide students with 
adaptive technology resource (such as headsets, lap desks and instructional software) and 
personalized instructional material (such as leveled library of books and math manipulatives).        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
2500         CARES Act 


 
Staffing 


5000         CARES Act 
 
Tech and supplies for teachers and students 
and instructional resources 


 
 
  


125/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community. 
         


 


Goal 3 
All English Learners will be academically successful as measured by ELA CAASPP, Mathematics 
CAASPP, Chronic Absenteeism and Suspension Dashboard Indicators          


 
Identified Need 
         


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts 
CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 91 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 ELA CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
English Learners        


 97.9 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 
2020 Math CAASPP. 


Chronic Absenteeism: The 
percentage of English Learners 
chronically absent, meaning 
students that have been absent 
more than 10% of the school 
year.        


 15.5% chronically absent  We will decrease the 
percentage of chronically 
absent English Learners by at 
least .5%. 


Suspension Rate: The 
percentage of English Learners 
being suspended during the 
school year.        


 1% suspended at least once  We will maintain at 0-1% 


 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Language Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 


126/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


During Student Learning Team meetings (SLTs) staff will will use CAASPP ELA data, district 
benchmark data, and ELPAC data to determine the English Language Development needs of our 
English Language Learner students.  We will also administer ELPAC practice tests to further 
understand the needs of our EL students.  We will develop targeted designated and integrated ELD 
lessons.  We will also use the actions described in Goal #1, Goal #2, and Goal #4 to support EL 
growth and achievement by desegregating data and focusing our attention on the unique needs of 
our English Language Leaners.  During grade level and school-wide data meetings, we will pay 
particular attention to our EL students progress and reflect on the effectiveness of our T1, T2, and 
T3 ELA and Math instruction, as well as our designated and integrated ELD instruction. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
3000         LCFF - Supplemental 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Sub Release Time for SLTs, assessments (data 
collection and data analysis), and grade level 
planning 


2000         Title I 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Additional time (sub release, extra-hourly if 
needed) and resources for Puentes Teachers 
and any staff member interested in looking 
specifically at EL data and to plan instruction 
and targeted intervention with facilitative support 
when appropriate, including cross-grade level 
and Spanish English instructional articulation 


          
 
Time devoted to unpack ELPAC practice tests 
to better understand significance of ELPAC 
tests results and develop instructional and 
intervention plans. 


          
 
Structured and Intentional Teacher 
Observations  and collaborative planning time, 
including time to calibrate assessment protocols  
and develop and implement new assessment 
tools 


1000         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Purchase necessary technology to help collect, 
share and analyze data 


127/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


1000         Title I 
5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 
Additional training for certificated and classified 
staff to deepen understanding of researched-
based practices that yield optimal result 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Language Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Staff will use data to develop a comprehensive instructional and intervention support plan for 
English Language Development.   Instructional support and professional development will be 
available to certificated and classified staff which may include:  admin walkthroughs with specific 
and timely feedback, peer observations, coaching.  Administration will be responsible for 
communicating instructional vision to the parent community through various methods including 
newsletters, meetings (formal and informal) and electronic communication. 
 
 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
          


 
Revise master schedule to include time to 
support students to receive targeted designated 
and integrated ELD instruction.  Provide 
targeted ELD instruction that may necessitate 
additional support staff and resources. 


          
 
Additional PD, including admin walkthroughs 
and specific timely feedback, peer observations, 
coaching, etc. when appropriate 


1500         LCFF - Supplemental 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental material needed to provide 
intervention including items such as response 
notebooks, leveled texts, chrome books and 
other technological tools 


          
 


128/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


Develop and deliver informative presentation for 
Family community 


Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Language Learners and Redesigned English Language Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
For the 2020-2021 School Year, our district will be providing ELA instruction via 100% online 
learning during the first semester.  Before the start of the second semester, the board will 
determine if our school will transition to hybrid learning for the second semester.  In TK and kinder, 
teachers will use a 1:1 virtual BPST assessment and our district writing benchmark test to assess 
grade level proficiency.  In grades 1-5, Teachers will use Pioneer Valley 1:1 assessments to 
determine grade level proficiency.  Teachers will provide a mixture of asynchronous and 
synchronous learning experiences for students.  To differentiate instruction, teachers will use the 
following strategies:  break out rooms, small group instruction, and office hours.  Teachers will work 
in teams to determine essential grade level standards to prioritize high leverage lessons and make 
short and long term instructional plans.  Teachers will use both formative and summative 
assessment data to provide students with feedback. 
 
For the 2020-2021 School Year, our district will be providing MATH instruction via 100% online 
learning during the first semester.  Before the start of the second semester, the board will 
determine if our school will transition to hybrid learning for the second semester.  In TK and kinder, 
teachers will use a 1:1 virtual assessments to assess grade level proficiency.  In grades 1-5, 
Teachers will use end of unit Eureka assessments to determine grade level proficiency. These 
assessments will be given via google forms and teams will develop protocols for administering.  
Teachers will provide a mixture of asynchronous and synchronous learning experiences for 
students.  To differentiate instruction, teachers will use the following strategies:  break out rooms, 
small group instruction, and office hours.  Teachers will work in teams to determine essential grade 
level standards to prioritize high leverage lessons and make short and long term instructional plans.  
Teachers will use both formative and summative assessment data to provide students with 
feedback. 
 
At Bay View, we believe that building a strong Tier 1 program is critical to preventing learning loss 
and closing the achievement gap.  As such, we will invest in high quality professional development 
to support classroom teachers and support staff to provide high quality core instruction.  Our 
professional development will focus on building pedagogical knowledge around Blended Learning 
(a framework for using technology to leverage student learning and intentional asynchronous and 
synchronous instruction) and Zaretta Hammond's Culturally Responsive Teaching and the Brain 
framework (a research based approach to using neuroscience and culture to maximize learning 
opportunities for all students, especially our traditionally underperforming students).  We will use a 
combination of direct instruction and modeling from a curriculum consultant, peer-based lesson 
study, and teacher led inquiry groups. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 


129/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


 
4000         CARES Act 


 
Professional Development 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Language Learners and Redesigned English Language Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
We understand that there are real barriers to students participating in online learning, such as poor 
internet service and parents work schedule.  As such, we will offer after school tutoring (virtually 
and eventually in person) and begin phasing in small cohorts of students to come onto campus.  In 
addition, in order to bridge the digital divide and meet learning needs we will provide students with 
adaptive technology resource (such as headsets, lap desks and instructional software) and 
personalized instructional material (such as leveled library of books and math manipulatives).        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
2500         CARES Act 


 
Staffing 


5000         CARES Act 
 
Tech and supplies for teachers and students 
and instructional resources 


 
 
  


130/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         


 


Goal 4 
All students will feel connected to their school as measured by attendance data and school 
suspension data          


 
Identified Need 
         


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent 
of "All Students" absent more 
than 10% of the school year        


 17.4% chronically absent  We will decrease the 
percentage of chronically 
absent "All Students" by .5% or 
more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent 
of Students with Disabilities 
absent more than 10% of the 
school year        


 24.4% chronically absent  We will decrease the 
percentage of chronically 
absent Students with 
Disabilities by .5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent 
of Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students 
absent more than 10% of the 
school year        


 20% chronically absent  We will decrease the 
percentage of chronically 
absent Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students by 
.5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent 
of English Learners absent 
more than 10% of the school 
year        


 15.5% chronically absent  We will decrease the 
percentage of chronically 
absent English Learners by 
.5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent 
of Hispanic students absent 
more than 10% of the school 
year        


 17.9% chronically absent  We will decrease the 
percentage of chronically 
absent Hispanic students by 
.5% or more. 


Suspension: Percent of "All 
Students" suspended once 
during the school year        


 1.7% of all students were 
suspended once 


 We will decrease the 
percentage of suspensions for 
all students by .5% 


 


131/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
habitually truant students (with particular focus on special education, Latino, ELL,  and socio-
economically disadvantaged students)  and students at-risk of suspension        
 
Strategy/Activity 
We will use data-driven progress monitoring system to analyze our progress with school 
connectedness.  Our district data-base system, Illuminate, allows us to disaggregate attendance 
and behavioral data by sub group (language, gender, race, etc.) to help our teaching staff evaluate 
their progress on closing the achievement gap and providing high quality support for all students.  
We will provide support for specialized staff to analyze attendance and behavior data to determine 
appropriate student interventions.  Use technology to help collect, share and analyze data 
(Illuminate attendance and behavior reports) to be shared with staff on a trimester basis (at SLTs 
and beyond) and monthly with PBIS Team.  Establish monthly meetings with attendance clerk, 
bilingual community coordinator, RTI coordinator, counselor, PBIS coach to determine need and 
provide strategic support to students.  Augment communication to parent community regarding 
student progress updates and concerns related to attendance and behavior via written and 
electronic communication, telephone and in person meetings, home visits and parent education 
workshops. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
1500         Title I 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Extended extra-hourly duty (when appropriate) 
for support staff to attend data entry and data 
analysis training, to enter data into data system, 
and to run reports. 
 
 
 


1000         LCFF - Supplemental 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Resources necessary to establish a token 
reward and/or check in system for students 
related to their progress in attendance and 
behavior. 


1000         Title I 
5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 


132/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


Parent workshops and staff training to promote 
school connectedness 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students with special emphasis on habitually truant students (with particular focus on special 
education, Latino, ELL,  and socio-economically disadvantaged students)  and students at-risk of 
suspension        
 
Strategy/Activity 
We will provide strategic staff training to promote school connectedness.  Teachers will continue to 
implement our district adopted social-emotional curriculum:  Second Step.  We will support early 
adopters of Zones of Regulation and provide opportunities for them to share their learning with 
other staff members (staff meetings, MM, etc.)  We will provide additional training (optional) in 
researched-based practices that yield optimal result with regards to improving student school 
connectedness. We will develop survey system to get input from family community about student 
connectedness and develop and deliver informative presentation for our Bay View family 
community. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
1000         Title I 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 
Training costs related to professional 
development that promotes school 
connectedness 


Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
We will build upon our current PBIS program.  We will begin by using the  Tiered Fidelity Inventory 
Tool to establish PBIS implementation baseline and create long term PBIS action plan.  Our PBIS 
Team will meet prior to the opening of school to develop an action plan draft, get feedback from 
staff, and finalize plan.  The PBIS Team will meet monthly to monitor the plan and make 
adjustments as necessary. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


133/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
1500         LCFF - Supplemental 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Summer PBIS retreat:  extra hourly pay for 
attendees, meeting supplies 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ELL, low income, homeless, foster youth, special education, striving learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
We understand that there are real barriers to students participating in online learning, such as poor 
internet service and parents work schedule.  As such, we will offer after school tutoring (virtually 
and eventually in person) and begin phasing in small cohorts of students to come onto campus.  In 
addition, in order to bridge the digital divide and meet learning needs we will provide students with 
adaptive technology resource (such as headsets, lap desks and instructional software) and 
personalized instructional material (such as leveled library of books and math manipulatives). 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
 


Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ELL, low income, homeless, foster youth, special education, striving learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
To improve attendance and engagement, we will build upon our PBIS program,  Our PBIS team will 
look at student data and engage in assessments of needs and creating personalized action plans 
that may include token reward systems.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
3000         CARES Act 


 
Student Incentives or other adaptive material 
that will help augment student engagement 


134/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


 
 
  


135/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


Budget Summary 
 
Complete the table below. Schools may include additional information. Adjust the table as needed. The Budget Summary 
is required for schools funded through the ConApp, and/or that receive funds from the LEA for Comprehensive Support and 
Improvement (CSI). 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  $ 


Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI  $ 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  $221,932.00 


 
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 
 
List the additional Federal programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Adjust the table as needed. If 
the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program this section is not applicable and may be deleted. 
 
startcollapse 


Federal Programs  Allocation ($) 


Title I        $22,955.00 


 
Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school: $22,955.00 
 
List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Duplicate the 
table as needed. 
startcollapse 


State or Local Programs  Allocation ($) 


CARES Act        $45,500.00 


District Funded        $121,977.00 


LCFF - Supplemental        $31,500.00 


 
Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school: $198,977.00 
 
Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school: $221,932.00 


136/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
3 Classroom Teachers        


2 Other School Staff        


5 Parent or Community Members        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Yvette Garcia         X Principal        


Barbara Novelli         X Classroom Teacher        


Lauren Shiner         X Classroom Teacher        


Steve Kingsley-Jones         X Parent or Community Member        


Kristina Quilici         X Parent or Community Member        


Sanderline LaGrande         X Parent or Community Member        


Elisa Gonzales         X Other School Staff        


Juli Koch         X Classroom Teacher        


Karen Benitez          


Manuel Castaneda          


 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


137/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 48 Bay View Elementary School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on 5/16/19. 
 
Attested: 


 


 Principal, Yvette Garcia on 6/3/19 


 


 SSC Chairperson, Kristina Quilici on 6/4/19 


 


138/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


 
School Year:    2020-21   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Branciforte Middle School         


Address 315 Poplar St.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95062-1131 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698236060149         


Principal Casey O'Brien         


District Name Branciforte Middle School         


SPSA Revision Date June 4, 2019         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date October 21, 2020         


Local Board Approval Date November 4, 2020         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


139/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Table of Contents 
 


SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 


Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 


School Vision and Mission ................................................................................................................................3 


School Profile ....................................................................................................................................................3 


Stakeholder Involvement ..................................................................................................................................4 


School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................5 


Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................5 


CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................7 


ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................11 


Student Population ..................................................................................................................................14 


Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................15 


Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................16 


Academic Engagement ...........................................................................................................................21 


Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................23 


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................25 


Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................25 


Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................34 


Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................40 


Budget Summary and Consolidation ..............................................................................................................48 


Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................48 


Allocations by Funding Source ................................................................................................................48 


Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................49 


Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................50 


Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................51 


School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................52 


Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................53 


 


140/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


School Vision and Mission 
 
Vision Statement: Opening Minds - Opening Hearts - Opening Doors 
 
Mission Statement: Branciforte is a creative and stimulating learning community built on a foundation of respect and 
integrity, where individuals are safe, known well, and cared for, where everyone contributes and values the contributions 
of others, where everyone learns every day, and where scholarship leads to academic excellence. 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 
Branciforte Middle School serves a diverse student population primarily from the east side of Santa Cruz. Our academic 
program is designed to meet individual students’ needs. Our base program includes an English/Social Studies Core, 
math, science, P.E., and an elective. Our math classes use the College Prep Math curriculum with a focus on problem 
solving, explaining your reasoning, collaboration, and perseverance. The program includes both a standard middle 
school track and an opportunity for acceleration. For a school of our size, we have an outstanding exploratory program. 
At sixth grade, this includes options for Instrumental Music, Introduction to Computer Science, AVID (Advancement via 
Individual Determination - a college-preparatory program), and Woodshop. In the seventh and eighth grade, 
exploratories include: Instrumental Music, Art, AVID, Computer Science, and Culinary Arts. Students from our district’s 
Dual-Language Immersion program continue their studies in Spanish Language Arts on our site. 
 
Branciforte is proud of the many programs and services we offer. We have greatly expanded our access to technology, 
including: our state-of-the-art library computer lab staffed by our librarian; our "Bee Inn", (an innovation center designed 
to support use of technology in research, collaboration, and presentation, and a dedicated writing space); Chromebook 
carts in most classrooms, several sets of iPads, and technology curriculum in our elective program. Branciforte is also in 
it’s second round of a Computer Science for All grant that emphasizes computing for the social good - exposingall 
students to the benefits and opportunities in Computer Science.  Our Wednesday afternoon Arts Academy provides the 
opportunity for our students to participate in a variety of enrichment activities. Recent course offerings include: Baile 
Folklorico, Coding, ROV (under water robotics), Rock Band, Bike Club, Parkour, Visual Art & Gardening, Culinary Arts, 
Drumline and Ukulele. Bilingualism is supported in our Two Way Immersion program and our English Language 
Development (ELD) program. In the fall of 2016 we started the Academic Achievement Academy, an after-school 
program, on Monday through Thursday for two hours after school. This program includes an hour of academic support 
and an hour of enrichment activity including music, cooking, and physical activity 
 
Major Achievements:  In addition to the increase in access to technology and the CS f9or All Grant, we have been 
concentrating on improving academic support for our English learners and under-performing students. Our ELD offerings 
include three levels of ELD instruction, and access to bilingual learning assistants in some classes. Students struggling 
with math skills may: use iReady or get additional support from a math teacher during our sustained silent reading (SSR) 
time, or be enrolled in a math intervention class for a portion of their elective wheel or suring zero period. There is a 
strong focus on Trauma Informed Schools training for teachers and on the implementation of Social Emotional Learning 
strategies and curriculum. Many teachers practice mindfulness with their students on a regular basis. In the 2017-18 
school year the school implemented a Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS) program that emphasizes 
doing the right thing and rewards students for contributing positively to the school climate. This includes various lessons 
in the classroom, special events such as assemblies and random drawings for students who are making good decisions. 
 
At Branciforte we strive to involve families in the school community. Our Home and School Club, English Language 
Advisory Committee (ELAC), and School Site Council offer formal ways for parents to participate. We also host 
workshops on parenting and planning for college, a math and science night, and a Social Emotional Learning night for 
families. Our Home and School Club and ELAC parents partner to celebrate our community cultures. In the fall, we host 
an annual Tamalada that includes wonderful food, music and Baile Folklorico. In the spring, we host a Family Math Night 
in Spanish and our Spring Festival, which highlights student performances and fabulous food. The Tamalada and Spring 
Festival events bring thousands of dollars into Branciforte classrooms. 
 
Branciforte also involves families through celebrations of student learning. We host activities throughout the school year 
that celebrate student success, including music concerts, featuring performances from our Arts Academy classes, 
walking field trips for all grade levels throughout the year, a Turkey Trot (a Thanksgiving fun run), the Egyptian Museum 
for sixth graders, the Renaissance Presentations for seventh grade students, and an Invention Convention for eighth 
grade students. Our eighth graders also produce a Voices of Change night. This includes an evening of student 
produced videos, theatrical vignettes, and musical interludes. 


141/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


 
Focus for Improvement: We continue to work towards our goal that all students will be proficient or advanced in English 
Language Arts and math. Our professional development time focuses on building our repertoire of teaching strategies to 
engage students in the content, improving content literacy, increasing academic talk in the classroom, and developing 
priority learning goals and success criteria in each department. We are beginning the practice of an evidence, analysis, 
action Impact Protocol using student work on formative assessments to inform our practice. We have introduced the 
universal MAP test to evaluate student progress in math and reading and to assign students to intervention. 
 
Our school community coordinator provides support to our students and their families. This work has increased the 
connection between home and school. We work to promote a college-going culture at our school. Our AVID students 
visit universities and partner with UCSC tutors to develop college level study skills. All seventh graders visit either the 
University of California or the California State Monterey Bay campus. Students in our dual immersion program are 
working towards the Seal of Biliteracy, which represents master attainment of two or more languages. In addition, our 
school community coordinator is the driving force for the Latino Role Model conference that is held annually and 
provides students with the opportunity to hear Latino professionals talk about their preparation and experience in a wide 
range of careers. 
 
Leadership: Casey O'Brien is enjoying his 18th year as a principal but is in his third at Branciforte. He brings experience 
leading at both the high school and middle school level, leadership experience in Special Education and Student 
Services at the district level, has served as an adjunct professor in the Masters of Educational Leadership program at 
SJSU.  While at Aptos High School he was awarded the Association of California School Administrators (ACSA) Region 
10 Secondary Principal of the Year in 2014. 
 
Teachers, classified staff, students, parents, and administrators take part in decision making at this school. Teachers 
determine instructional methods as a team; the leadership team, along with the administration, plans staff development. 
Our School Site Council plays a key role in shaping our students’ educational experience. The Student Council advises 
the school administration and helps guide our activities and enrichment. 
 
         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
The SPSA is developed, monitored and reviewed annually across at least five evening SSC meetings.  The site principal 
also met and conferred with district personnel, the Site Leadership Team (SCIL), and the entire school staff during 
faculty meetings.  Principal offers invitation to review and discuss individually as necessary with any and all 
stakeholders.         


 


142/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


American Indian     0.21% 0.43% 0.22% 1        2 1 


African American     0.83% 1.72% 2.17% 4        8 10 


Asian     3.94% 4.09% 2.61% 19        19 12 


Filipino     0.83% 1.29% 0.43% 4        6 2 


Hispanic/Latino     47.93% 44.73% 47.39% 231        208 218 


Pacific Islander     0.21% 0.22% 0.22% 1        1 1 


White     42.75% 42.37% 42.83% 206        197 197 


Multiple/No Response     0.21% % 4.13% 1         0 


 Total Enrollment 482 465 460 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


17-18 18-19 19-20 


Grade 6        164 155 152 


Grade 7        162 152 155 


Grade 8        156 158 153 


Total Enrollment        482 465 460 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. There is a slight decrease in student enrollment over the past three years (482 to 460).        


2. Student group demographics have stayed relatively constant over the last 3 years.        


 


143/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


English Learners        80 79 84 16.6% 17.0% 18.3% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        121 106 90 25.1% 22.8% 19.6% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        19 11 18 18.1% 13.8% 22.8% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. There has been a slight increase in the overall percentage of English Learners at B40 over time (from 80 to 84 


students that are EL, 16.6% to 18.3%).        
2. The number of students who have reclassified as Fluent English Proficient has remained relatively static over the 


past 3 years.        
 


144/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 166 162 156 155 157 152 155 156 152 93.4 96.9 97.4 


Grade 7 165 168 154 157 159 150 157 159 150 95.2 94.6 97.4 


Grade 8 177 162 157 172 150 152 172 150 151 97.2 92.6 96.8 
All 
Grades 


508 492 467 484 466 454 484 465 453 95.3 94.7 97.2 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 2546.
5 


2540.
3 


2535.
3 


23.87 21.15 19.08 34.84 37.18 34.21 24.52 23.72 27.63 16.77 17.95 19.08 


Grade 7 2558.
4 


2569.
5 


2571.
9 


17.20 20.75 20.00 39.49 40.25 42.67 23.57 18.24 22.67 19.75 20.75 14.67 


Grade 8 2553.
2 


2561.
4 


2587.
3 


17.44 12.67 19.21 31.98 36.67 41.72 25.00 30.00 21.85 25.58 20.67 17.22 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 19.42 18.28 19.43 35.33 38.06 39.51 24.38 23.87 24.06 20.87 19.78 17.00 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 27.74 24.03 24.34 47.10 51.95 43.42 25.16 24.03 32.24 


Grade 7 33.12 34.59 27.33 40.13 41.51 48.00 26.75 23.90 24.67 


Grade 8 24.42 22.67 31.13 41.86 46.00 44.37 33.72 31.33 24.50 


All Grades 28.31 27.21 27.59 42.98 46.44 45.25 28.72 26.35 27.15 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 35.48 27.27 28.95 45.81 55.19 50.66 18.71 17.53 20.39 


Grade 7 26.75 37.11 34.90 56.05 49.69 46.98 17.20 13.21 18.12 


Grade 8 23.39 22.67 31.79 44.44 53.33 51.66 32.16 24.00 16.56 


All Grades 28.36 29.16 31.86 48.65 52.70 49.78 22.98 18.14 18.36 
 


145/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 20.65 17.53 16.45 67.10 68.18 71.71 12.26 14.29 11.84 


Grade 7 19.11 19.50 13.33 59.87 61.01 68.67 21.02 19.50 18.00 


Grade 8 18.02 18.67 20.53 59.30 63.33 65.56 22.67 18.00 13.91 


All Grades 19.21 18.57 16.78 61.98 64.15 68.65 18.80 17.28 14.57 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 32.90 30.52 23.68 49.03 58.44 60.53 18.06 11.04 15.79 


Grade 7 28.66 35.22 38.00 54.14 48.43 50.00 17.20 16.35 12.00 


Grade 8 29.07 34.00 33.77 41.86 46.67 49.67 29.07 19.33 16.56 


All Grades 30.17 33.26 31.79 48.14 51.19 53.42 21.69 15.55 14.79 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall ELA CAASPP scores have remained largely static over thee past three years with a slight growth in 2018-


19. Overall, the percentage of students remains above/at/near standard: 16-17 = 54%, 17-18 = 56%, 18-19 = 59% 
Relative area of strength in ELA is for above/at/near standard:  Research Inquiry = 85%, Listening = 85%, Writing = 
80%, Reading = 73%. 
 
        


2. Student Group Progress:  English Learners who exceeded or met standard increased from 3% to almost 5%. 
Additionally, there was a significant decrease in the percentage of ELs in the standard not met category over the 
past four years (15-16 = 95%, 16-17 = 84%, 17-18 = 61% and 18-19 = 59%.  This is very encouraging and is a 
school highlight for 2018-19 CAASPP.  Students with disabilities CAASPP ELA scores have improved over the past 
two years with an increase of 3% more students in the standards met & exceeded categories and with a decrease 
in standard nearly and not met categories over the past two years.  Students who are socio-economically 
disadvantaged have shown improvement, increasing the number of students in standard exceeded and met 
categories by 7% and standard not met category decreasing by 6%.        


3. There was no CAASPP given in the 2019-20 school year, which is why the most recent data analysis is looking at 
2018-19 data.        


 


146/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 166 162 155 161 158 149 161 158 149 97 97.5 96.1 


Grade 7 166 168 154 159 159 151 159 159 151 95.8 94.6 98.1 


Grade 8 177 162 157 174 150 153 174 150 152 98.3 92.6 97.5 
All 
Grades 


509 492 466 494 467 453 494 467 452 97.1 94.9 97.2 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 2516.
4 


2511.
9 


2498.
4 


19.88 15.19 17.45 20.50 18.35 11.41 22.36 31.01 29.53 37.27 35.44 41.61 


Grade 7 2538.
8 


2552.
9 


2535.
3 


12.58 25.79 19.21 27.04 20.13 25.17 33.33 26.42 25.83 27.04 27.67 29.80 


Grade 8 2521.
6 


2551.
4 


2567.
5 


17.24 20.67 27.63 15.52 15.33 22.37 20.11 30.00 18.42 47.13 34.00 31.58 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 16.60 20.56 21.46 20.85 17.99 19.69 25.10 29.12 24.56 37.45 32.33 34.29 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 22.98 19.74 16.78 29.81 41.45 28.19 47.20 38.82 55.03 


Grade 7 21.38 34.81 28.48 40.25 29.11 30.46 38.36 36.08 41.06 


Grade 8 19.54 24.00 35.53 29.89 38.00 30.26 50.57 38.00 34.21 


All Grades 21.26 26.30 26.99 33.20 36.09 29.65 45.55 37.61 43.36 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 23.60 16.46 18.79 41.61 48.10 46.31 34.78 35.44 34.90 


Grade 7 17.61 30.19 21.85 58.49 44.03 43.05 23.90 25.79 35.10 


Grade 8 18.39 24.67 26.32 35.06 46.00 42.11 46.55 29.33 31.58 


All Grades 19.84 23.77 22.35 44.74 46.04 43.81 35.43 30.19 33.85 
 


147/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 24.22 17.95 14.77 41.61 50.00 44.97 34.16 32.05 40.27 


Grade 7 16.35 25.32 20.53 57.86 55.06 58.28 25.79 19.62 21.19 


Grade 8 22.41 22.67 28.95 37.93 50.00 44.08 39.66 27.33 26.97 


All Grades 21.05 21.98 21.46 45.55 51.72 49.12 33.40 26.29 29.42 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall Math CAASPP scores have also remained largely static over thee past three years with a slight growth in 


2018-19. Overall, the percentage of students is above/at/near standard:  15-16 = 39%, 16-17 = 38%, 17-18 = 39%  
and 18-19 = 41% 
Relative area of strength in math is for above/at/near standard:  Communicating Reasoning = 70%, Problem 
Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis = 66%, Concepts and Procedures = 57%. 
 
        


2. Student Group Progress:  English Learners CAASPP Math scores have mostly remained stagnant. The percentage 
of EL students at the standard met category stayed the same and an increase in the standard not met category 
from 70% in 15-16 to 84% in 16-17, 82% in 17-18 and 89% in 18-19. Sp Ed students remained static in the 
categories of standard met and exceeded over past two years, but have shown an overall decrease in standard not 
met over past three 72% in 16-17, 77% in 17-18 and 65% in 18-19.  Students who are socio-economically 
disadvantaged showed improvement with an increase of 3% in the standards met and exceeded category in 18-19 
but have been relatively flat other than that increase.        


3. There was no CAASPP given in the 2019-20 school year, which is why the most recent data analysis is looking at 
2018-19 data.        


 


148/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6        1532.8 1549.9 1516.1 1553.4 1549.0 1545.9 31 24 


Grade 7        1532.5 1552.3 1519.5 1553.2 1545.1 1550.8 28 28 


Grade 8        1529.8 1551.2 1507.8 1555.0 1551.3 1546.9 17 19 


All Grades              76 71 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 54.17 41.94 29.17 * 12.50 * 4.17 31 24 


   7    * 32.14 * 39.29 * 14.29 * 14.29 28 28 


   8    * 26.32 * 52.63 * 5.26 * 15.79 17 19 


All Grades        35.53 38.03 35.53 39.44 18.42 11.27 * 11.27 76 71 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    35.48 79.17 48.39 16.67 * 0.00 * 4.17 31 24 


   7    46.43 50.00 * 25.00 * 14.29 * 10.71 28 28 


   8    * 52.63 * 31.58 * 0.00 * 15.79 17 19 


All Grades        43.42 60.56 34.21 23.94 * 5.63 * 9.86 76 71 
 


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 20.83 * 37.50 38.71 29.17 * 12.50 31 24 


   7    * 21.43 * 32.14 * 25.00 * 21.43 28 28 


   8    * 0.00 * 47.37 * 36.84 * 15.79 17 19 


All Grades        32.89 15.49 18.42 38.03 32.89 29.58 15.79 16.90 76 71 
 


149/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 37.50 64.52 54.17 * 8.33 31 24 


   7    * 17.86 50.00 53.57 * 28.57 28 28 


   8    * 15.79 * 63.16 * 21.05 17 19 


All Grades        31.58 23.94 56.58 56.34 * 19.72 76 71 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    41.94 87.50 54.84 8.33 * 4.17 31 24 


   7    71.43 75.00 * 14.29 * 10.71 28 28 


   8    * 73.68 * 10.53 * 15.79 17 19 


All Grades        56.58 78.87 34.21 11.27 * 9.86 76 71 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 20.83 * 45.83 48.39 33.33 31 24 


   7    * 25.00 * 35.71 53.57 39.29 28 28 


   8    * 15.79 * 47.37 * 36.84 17 19 


All Grades        32.89 21.13 19.74 42.25 47.37 36.62 76 71 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 45.83 67.74 50.00 * 4.17 31 24 


   7    * 17.86 60.71 71.43 * 10.71 28 28 


   8    * 0.00 * 89.47 * 10.53 17 19 


All Grades        30.26 22.54 63.16 69.01 * 8.45 76 71 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall scores suggest that 6th graders slightly outperform their 7th and 8th grade peers with 6th graders scoring at 


Level 4 overall.        
2. Oral language is a relative strength for our students when compared to written language.        


3. Not all ELs took the ELPAC in the 2019-20 school year due to COVID and shifting to distance learning in the spring, 
which is why the most recent data analysis is looking at 2018-19 data.        


 


150/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


 


151/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2018-19 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


465        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


47.7        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


17.0        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


0.4        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2018-19 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        79 17.0 


Foster Youth        2 0.4 


Homeless        3 0.6 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        222 47.7 


Students with Disabilities        67 14.4 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        8 1.7 


American Indian        2 0.4 


Asian        19 4.1 


Filipino        6 1.3 


Hispanic        208 44.7 


Two or More Races        24 5.2 


Pacific Islander        1 0.2 


White        197 42.4 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The biggest student groups at our school are: Hispanic, White, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, English 


Learners, and Students with Disabilities.        
 
 


152/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Green        


 
Mathematics 


 
Orange        


Academic Engagement 


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Green        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Green        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. English Language Arts, Suspension Rates, and Chronic Absenteeism Rates are all improving, as indicated by the 


overall green rating on our CA dashboard.        
2. Mathematics overall scores decreased, which is why our Mathematics rating is Orange on the CA Dashboard.        


 
 


153/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


4        
Green        


0        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


15.3 points above standard         


Increased +6.2 points         


445        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


59.8 points below standard         


Increased +13.1 points         


130        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


24.2 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +15.4 points         


219        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


58.2 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +22.3 points         


65        


 


154/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


8        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


86.9 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +24.5 points         


18        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


25.9 points below standard         


Increased +11.2 points         


198        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


31.4 points above standard         


Declined -13.2 points         


23        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Blue         


50.8 points above standard         


Maintained -1.1 points         


190        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


97.8 points below standard         


Increased +5.2 points         


61        


Reclassified English Learners 


26.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +21.1 points         


69        


English Only 


46.7 points above standard         


Maintained -1.5 points         


268        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall, Branciforte students are performing above standard (medium level) and overall scores have slightly 


increased.        
2. There is a significant achievement gap between white students and other student groups in ELA as indicated in the 


data above.        
3. Overall and all student groups either maintain or increased scores with exception of students in the Two or More 


Races student group.        
 
 


155/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


1        
Orange        


3        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


33 points below standard         


Declined -6.4 points         


442        


English Learners 


 
Red         


123.4 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -15.3 points         


128        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


82.2 points below standard         


Declined -3.3 points         


218        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


112.3 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +20.4 points         


63        


 


156/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


8        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


93.1 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +48.7 points         


18        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


87 points below standard         


Declined -13.2 points         


195        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0 points below standard         


Declined -3.3 points         


24        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Green         


6.5 points above standard         


Declined -9.7 points         


190        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


164.1 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -26.5 points         


61        


Reclassified English Learners 


86.5 points below standard         


Declined -3 points         


67        


English Only 


2.1 points above standard         


Declined -11.6 points         


269        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall, Branciforte students scored in the low range in mathematics, and there was a decrease in overall scores.        


2. All student groups decreased in their scores with the exception of students in the Students with Disabilities and Asian 
student groups. Students with Disabilities increased their math scores by 20.4 points and Asian students increased 
48.7 points.        


3. English Learners, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students, and Students with Disabilities are our lowest 
performing student groups in math.        


 
 


157/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


77.3 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 66          


Performance Level: Very High        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


10.6         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


12.1         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


15.1         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


62.1         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 77.3% of our English Learners are making adequate progress towards English language proficiency, which is much 


higher than the state average. We are proud of this data!        
 
 


158/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
0        


Orange        
0        


Yellow        
2        


Green        
3        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


8.6         


Declined Significantly -4.4         


475        


English Learners 


 
Green         


6.3         


Declined -4.8         


79        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


10.6         


Declined Significantly -5.4         


236        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


18.3         


Declined -8.3         


71        


 


159/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


10        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         


19        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


7.6         


Declined Significantly -5.2         


211        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


16         


Increased +3.5         


25        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Green         


9         


Declined Significantly -5.6         


201        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The number of overall students that are considered chronically absent decreased by 4.4%, putting us in the Green 


on this indicator.        
2. Our Students with Disabilities chronic absenteeism rate decreased by 8.3% and moved this student group into the 


yellow on the CA Dashboard. 18.3% of this student group is still considered chronically absent and is the student 
group that has the highest chronically absent rate, which means this is definitely still an area of focus for our school.        


 
 


160/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


4        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


3.3         


Declined -1.6         
484        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


3.6         


Maintained 0         
83        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          7        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


4.1         


Declined Significantly -3.4         
244        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Green         


6.8         


Declined -9.6         
73        


 


161/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          10        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
19        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          6        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


2.8         


Declined Significantly -3         
218        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


4         


Declined -8.5         
25        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1        


White     


 
Green         


3.4         


Declined -0.7         
203        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
5         


2019     
3.3         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All Students (School Placement) and all student groups decreased their suspension rates over the previous year's 


rating with the exception of English Learners who maintained a consistent rate of being suspended.        
2. All student groups are scoring in the Green with the exception of English Learners who scored a yellow on the CA 


Dashboard Suspension indicator.        
 
 


162/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
English Learner Progress & Academic Literacy          


 
Goal Statement 
English Learner Progress:  All Ever English Learners (IFEP, RFEP, ELs) will have academic success and social-
emotional well being in an asset-based, needs responsive learning community and will participate fully in our schools 
and graduate ready for college and career. 
Academic Literacy: All students will engage in daily relevant, complex reading, writing, speaking, listening across all 
content areas so they can build knowledge, engage in collaborative, academic discussions, and support a position with 
evidence. 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
In analyzing our CA Dashboard data, ELPAC data, and local assessments, we see the need to focus on increasing all of 
our students' academic literacy. Additionally, a significant number of our students are English Learners (ELs), and we 
want to ensure that our ELs are making progress and are successful in not only acquiring English language proficiency, 
but in being academically successful in all content areas.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


CAASPP - ELA         58% of students met or exceeded 
standard in 2018-2019 


 The number of students who meet or 
exceed standard will increase by 5% 
on the 2021 CAASPP. 


CAASPP - ELA         Socioeconomically Disadvantaged  -
25.5 avg points from standard (low) 


 Increase Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged student scores on 
2021 ELA CAASPP by 3 points or 
more, which will result in a positive 
increase on the CA Dashboard. 


CAASPP - ELA         Students with Disabilities  -59.6 avg 
points from standard (low) 


 Increase Students with Disabilities 
scores on 2021 ELA CAASPP by 3 
points or more, which will result in a 
positive increase on the CA 
Dashboard. 


CAASPP  - ELA         Hispanic  -26.8 avg points from 
standard (low) 


 Increase Hispanic students scores on 
2021 ELA CAASPP by 3 points or 
more, which will result in a positive 
increase on the CA Dashboard. 


CAASPP  - ELA         English Learners  -60.6 avg points 
from standard (very low) 


 Increase English Learner students 
scores on 2021 ELA CAASPP by 3 
points or more, which will result in a 


163/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


positive increase on the CA 
Dashboard. 


Spring 2021 School Wide Write 
Assessment (SWW)        


 54% of all students scored "Meeting 
Standard" or higher on the Spring 
2019 School Wide Writing district 
assessment. 


 All students will score "Meeting 
Standard" or higher in Spring 2021 
School Wide Write. 


Spring 2021 School Wide Write 
Assessment (SWW)        


 Average distance from peers on 2019 
spring SWW:  18.1% distance 
between Sp Ed students and their 
peers and 20.3% difference between 
ELs and their peers 


 We will close the achievement gap 
between Sp Ed students, EL students 
and their peers on SWW by 10% (to 
8.1% for Sp Ed and 10.3% for ELs). 


ELPAC         In spring 2019, 77% of English 
Learners grew at least one level of 
English Proficiency as demonstrated 
on the ELPAC. 


 80% or more of English Learners will 
grow at least one level of English 
Proficiency as demonstrated on the 
spring 2021 ELPAC. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Strategies Overview:  Teachers and school staff will present engaging and California Common Core Standards based 
lessons using evidence based strategies to engage all learners in English Language Arts and designated or integrated 
English Language Development for English Learners.  Strong Tier 1 strategies will provide a foundation for the bulk of 
all learners at B40.  For learners who need additional support Tier 2 and 3 strategies and programs will be employed 
during and after the regular school day.  Staff will engage in on-going professional development to improve teacher 
efficacy and curriculum and program alignment.  Particular focus will be paid to under performing student groups such 
as English learners and Student with Special needs. 
 
a.  During 2020-21, staff will continue to implement and refine Tier 1 strategies including: teacher clarity/visible learning, 
AVID strategies, productive student-talk strategies, integrated ELD, a pilot of Universal Design for Learning (UDL), 
Social Emotional Learning (SEL) and other evidence based and creative ways to connect with students and engage 
them in learning.  Administration and teacher collective efficacy groups will use classroom walk-throughs or peer 
observation process to enhance efficacy and to assess implementation.  Funds provided for staff to attend professional 
conferences, for release time pay, substitutes, guest presenters, consultant fees, and other similar professional 
development opportunities. 
Funds to pay for two AVID class/programs. 6th grade exploratory and 7/8th grade elective (LCFF Central $45,682). 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students and specific student groups listed above        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,000        


Source Title I        


164/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Funds provided to staff for travel and conference fees and reimbursement, consultant 
fees, release time subs, and other related PD needs        


Amount 45,682        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Funds to pay for two AVID class/programs - intro at 6th grade and 7/8th grade elective.        


Amount 4,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Funds provided for staff for release time pay for Language Review Teams (LRTs), ELD 
teacher release time, and other similar professional development opportunities.        


Strategy/Activity 2 
b.  Teachers use universal and common formative & benchmark  assessments to inform instruction.  Release days for 
School Wide Write (SWW) norming and scoring 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Core Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Release days for School Wide Write (SWW) norming and scoring, substitutes.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
c.  Provide opportunities for all students to have access to college and career literacy skills.  AVID, tutors, field trips.  
Purchase of common binders and supplies school wide. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, Socio-economically disadvantaged        


 


165/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase of common binders and supplies school wide.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
d.  Implement Silent Sustained Reading (SSR) time and provide multiple Tier 2 and 3 strategies utilizing this time in the 
schedule.  Pay for Reading Ally license so that students performing well below grade level can access core curriculum 
and literature.  Purchase Lexile leveled books.  Other high interest lower readability novels as needed. Replace worn 
texts and add culturally relevant novel sets. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Staff and Admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,600        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Pay for Reading Ally license        


Amount 10,000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Add or replace library instructional materials, replace old and worn textbooks        


Amount 5,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


166/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Description Upgrade novel sets and other related materials to be more current and culturally relevant 
to our student population (move towards being a "Project Lit" school.        


Strategy/Activity 5 
e.  After school support provided for homework completion, intervention support, and enrichment. 
During the school day (2) Bilingual para-pro X2 @ 3.75 hrs each.  One centrally funded for Newcomer program and the 
other via site Title 1 monies 
Two afterschool program paraprofessionals - support at-risk students. 
 
 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal and After School Program Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 35,206        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description AAA - afterschool program - 2 paraprofessionals        


Amount 13,501        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description During school day - Bilingual para-professional to support Newcomer program @ 3.75 
hrs        


Amount 13,501        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description During school day - Bilingual para-professional to support Newcomer program @ 3.75 
hrs        


Strategy/Activity 6 
f. Encourage parent involvement to support student learning 


• Community Coordinator - 
• Supplies, food, Childcare for Parent Ed Nights, ELAC, SSC, etc 
• EWA for extra hourly for Parent Coordinator to do translations or extra hours to support school at evening 


events etc. 


167/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Assistant Principal & School Community Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 43,525        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Community Coordinator        


Amount 500        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Supplies, food - Parent Ed nights        


Amount 29,044        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Community Coordinator        


Amount 500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Childcare - Parent Ed nights        


Amount 1,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description EWA for extra hourly for Parent Coordinator - evening translation and parent contacts        


Amount 2,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


168/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Description EWA for extra hourly for Parent Coordinator - evening translation and parent contacts        


Strategy/Activity 7 
g. ELD classes leveled with appropriate curriculum and support 


 Additional ELD sections for push-in support and lower class size - ELD 6 ($23,479) ELD 8 ($19,943) 
 Achieve3000 curriculum and other related ELD materials 
 PD for Achieve3000 


 Classroom materials, supplies, technology. 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
ELD Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 23,479        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description ELD 6 teacher        


Amount 19,943        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description ELD 8 teacher        


Amount 6,895        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Achieve3000 Curriculum for ELD and RSP classes        


Amount 4,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Classroom materials, supplies, technology.        


Amount 895        


169/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description PD for ELD teachers - Achieve3000        


Strategy/Activity 8 
h. Create 21st century, engaging learning opportunities using technological tools  


 New or replacement technology including chromebooks, laptops, ipads, printer, licenses, cartridges, and 
other related tech tools 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description New or replacement technology including chromebooks, laptops, ipads, printer, licenses, 
cartridges, and other related tech tools        


Amount 1,500        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Services (including tech liaison EWA).        


Strategy/Activity 9 
l. Provide rich classroom resources to engage students in their learning 


 classroom supplies, reimbursement for staff, or other classroom related needs. Paper, pens, pencils, clerical 
supplies, literary resources, art supplies, printer cartridges, tech supplies and and other classroom materials 
- provided with Site Council mini-grants. Staff come to SSC and ask for up to $1,000 per grant - must be 
connected to school goals and support at-risk student group(s). 


Departments to enhance or replace obsolete materials or add new materials as necessary 
 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 


170/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal & Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Classroom supplies, reimbursement for staff, or other classroom related needs.  Paper, 
pens, pencils, clerical supplies, literary resources, art supplies, printer cartridges, tech 
supplies and and other classroom materials - provided with Site Council mini-grants.  
Staff come to SSC and ask for up to $1,000 per grant - must be connected to school 
goals and support at-risk student group(s).        


Amount 5,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Departmental Supplies and/or materials replacement @ $1k each - Core, Math, Science, 
Phys Ed, Exploratory, SpEd.        


Strategy/Activity 10 
j.  Enhance Tier 1 classroom instructional strategies and enhance classroom environment with furniture and supplies.  
Begin gradual implementation of Social Emotional Learning (SEL) Curriculum and activities and Universal Design for 
Learning (UDL) with early innovators that are ready to learn and provide future professional development for other staff.  
(SUMS MTSS Grant $5,000).  2nd Step SEL curriculum. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, at-risk students (socio-emotionally and/or behaviorally)        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
All staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description (SUMS MTSS Grant $5,000).  2nd Step SEL curriculum, and other related needs to 
support SEL        


 


171/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Mathematics and Tiered Support          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will develop conceptual understanding, procedural skills and fluency that they will apply to make sense of 
mathematical problems and persevere in solving them.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
CA Dashboard CAASPP data indicates mathematics needs to be a focus at Branciforte Middle.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


CAASPP - Math         41% of students met or exceeded 
standard in 2018-2019 


 The percent of students who meet or 
exceed standard will increase by 5% 
on the 2020-21 CAASPP 


CAASPP - Math         Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students -82.2 avg points from 
meeting standard (low)  in 2018-19 


 Increase Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged student scores on 
math 2021 CAASPP by 3 points or 
more 


CAASPP - Math         Hispanic students -87 avg points from 
meeting standard (very low) in 2018-
19 


 Increase Hispanic students scores on 
math 2021 CAASPP by 3 points or 
more 


CAASPP - Math         Students with disabilities -112.3 avg 
points from meeting standard (very 
low) in 2018-19 


 Increase Students with Disabilities 
scores on math 2021 CAASPP by 3 
points or more 


CAASPP - Math         English Learners -123.4 avg points 
from meeting standard in 2018-19 


 Increase English Learner student 
scores on math 2021 CAASPP by 3 
points or more 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 


172/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Strategies Overview: Teachers and school staff will present engaging and California Common Core Standards based 
lessons using evidence based strategies to engage all learners in mathematics. Strong Tier 1 strategies will provide a 
foundation for the bulk of all learners at B40. For learners who need additional support Tier 2 and 3 strategies and 
programs will be employed during and after the regular school day. Staff will engage in on-going professional 
development to improve teacher efficacy and curriculum and program alignment. Particular focus will be paid to 
underperforming student groups such as English learners and Student with Special needs. 
 
a. All teachers will be able to implement the CPM and iReady math curriculum, including implementation of group 
activities that support accountable student talk of all students 


 New staff will participate in CPM training. 
 PLC time, professional conferences, and coaching will be provided to teachers to support implementation of 


CPM and iReady curriculum and SVMI strategies to implement Math Mindset and Goal Setting in the 
classroom. B40 will apply for Community Foundation Grant that will heavily support this work. $20,000 for 
teacher release time pay, travel and conference, subs, and other grant initiative work 


 Teachers will infuse technology into teaching and learning with innovative and advanced classroom 
strategies that engage students at a high level using tech tools or licenses. Pay for PD presenters, release 
time, and tech tools via mini-Tech Cadre through SCCS Tech Cadre 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students and specific student groups listed above        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Math Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 8,000        


Source Other        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description teacher release time pay, travel and conference, subs, and other NiC Math grant initiative 
work        


Strategy/Activity 2 
b.  RtI coach to support universal & benchmark assessments, identification of students for intervention and support of 
intervention strategies.  1.0 FTE RtI coach 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, under performing students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
RtI & Math Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


173/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Amount 117,095        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description RtI coach        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Add additional sections of mathematics to lower class size to benefit at-risk and all students 
Add Zero Period Math+ for intensive Tier 3 Intervention in Mathematics 
Add creative Culinary Arts elective to address math and ELA skills in the general education setting 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, under performing students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 17,709        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Math 1 - to lower all class sizes to better meet the needs of all and at-risk students        


Amount 16,468        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Zero Period Math+ Intervention class        


Amount 18,604        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Culinary Arts Teacher/class        


Amount 16,468        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Math 2 - to lower all class sizes to better meet the needs of all and at-risk students        


174/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Amount 16,468        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Math 2 (LPBG)        


Amount 18,324        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Math 3 - to lower all class sizes to better meet the needs of all and at-risk students        


Strategy/Activity 4 
d. Create and execute ways to bring math to a school wide level across all disciplines 


 Begin monthly all-staff meetings with math task or number talk to have whole school recognize cross 
curricular opportunities to pull math into their content areas 


 Problems of the Month on BeeTV. host math "contest" that all or most kids can access and give out prizes for 
kids who complete them. Complete 10 and get a "Math Guru" prize! 


 Funds for cool math or other schoolwide rewards or prizes 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal & SCIL Team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3,500        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Recognition prizes for math contests, PBIS and other related incentives        


Strategy/Activity 5 
e. Explore other ways to make math a priority and to create access to interventions  


 When creating the master schedule for 2019-20 - align math interventions and math teacher prep time to 
ease additional pressure on teachers and students (that exists when these courses are not aligned) 


 Explore the possibility of zero period for Integrated math to reduce "tracking" of advanced kids during the 
school day. Work to ensure all kids with math intervention have the opportunity for zero period PE. 


 Add additional section of Exploratory Computer Science for 6th graders 
 EWA for Computer Science professional development and release time planning 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


175/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


All students, under performing students        
 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 17,709        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Computer Science Exploratory Class - CS for All Grant        


Amount 10,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Hardware and/or software for PE and other content area Computer Science Projects.  
E.g. Strava premium accounts, heart rate and GPS devices and/or software and other 
related expenditures        


Amount 3,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description EWA for Computer Science professional development and release time planning        


Strategy/Activity 6 
h. Explore ways to continue folding Computer Science for all Grant initiatives with engineering standards into core 
curriculum areas. This has been done through 8th grade science robotics unit and Core class curriculum but can be 
extended to other areas.  


 release time pay for CS for All Grant coordinator to train teachers 
 robotics supplies 
 EWA - extra pay for Arts Academy Classes, (3 classes for one semester . E.g. drum line, rock band, mosaic, 


or other) $3,300, LCFF supplemental 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal & CS TOSA        


 


176/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Amount 3,300        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description EWA and/or extra pay for Arts Academy Classes - Measure O Parcel Tax Carryover        


 


177/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
Social Emotional Learning & School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will feel connected to the school and feel supported in their personal and academic growth. They will learn 
about and show growth in Social Emotional Learning (SEL) competencies of self-awareness, self-management, social 
awareness, relationship skills and responsible decision making.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Branciforte MS chronic absenteeism and suspension data indicate a focus on socio emotional supports and learning for 
students is a need. Teachers also report that this is a needed focus based on their classroom observations and as 
indicated in the MTSS self assessment rubric used by SCCS schools.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Social Emotional Health Survey 
(SEHS)        


 60% of the students in fall 2018 
responded “strongly agree” or “agree” 
to the prompt: “I  feel like I am a part 
of this school.” 


 In 2020-21, when taking the Social 
Emotional Health Survey (SEHS), 
70% of students will respond 
“strongly agree” or “agree” to the 
prompt: “I  feel like I am a part of this 
school”. 


Social Emotional Health Survey 
(SEHS)        


 68% of the students in fall 2018 
responded “strongly agree” or “agree” 
to the prompt: “I  feel safe in my 
school.” 


 In 2020-21, when taking the SEHS, 
78% of students will respond 
“strongly agree” or “agree” to the 
prompt: “I  feel safe in my school”. 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         All Students (School Placement) - 
8.6% (high) according to the 2018-19 
data on the most recent CA 
Dashboard. 


 Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
.5% on the 2021 CA Dashboard. 
 
 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         English Learners - 6.3% (high) 
according to the 2018-19 data on the 
most recent CA Dashboard. 


 Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
.5% on the 2021 CA Dashboard. 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         Socioeconomically. Disadvantaged - 
10.6%  (medium) according to the 
2018-19 data on the most recent CA 
Dashboard. 


 Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
1% on the 2021 CA Dashboard. 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         Hispanic - 7.6% (high) according to 
the 2018-19 data on the most recent 
CA Dashboard. 


 Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
.5% on the 2021 CA Dashboard. 


178/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         White - 9%  (high) according to the 
2018-19 data on the most recent CA 
Dashboard. 


 Decrease chronic absenteeism by 
.5% on the 2021 CA Dashboard. 


Chronic Absenteeism Data         Students with Disabilities - 18.3%  
(medium) according to the 2018-19 
data on the most recent CA 
Dashboard. 


 Decrease chronic absenteeism to 
less than 10% on the 2021 CA 
Dashboard. 


Suspension Data         All students - 3.3% (high) according 
to the 2018-19 data on the most 
recent CA Dashboard. 


 Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2021 CA 
Dashboard. 


Suspension Data         Socioeconomically Disadvantaged - 
4.1% (high) according to the 2018-19 
data on the most recent CA 
Dashboard. 


 Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2021 CA 
Dashboard. 


Suspension Data         Students with Disabilities - 6.8% 
(high) according to the 2018-19 data 
on the most recent CA Dashboard. 


 Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2021 CA 
Dashboard. 


Suspension Data         Hispanic - 2.8% (high) according to 
the 2018-19 data on the most recent 
CA Dashboard. 


 Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2021 CA 
Dashboard. 


Suspension Data         White - 3.4% (high) according to the 
2018-19 data on the most recent CA 
Dashboard. 


 Decrease student group suspension 
rates by 50% on the 2021 CA 
Dashboard. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Strategies Overview: Teachers and staff will continue to learn and improve our knowledge and skills in areas such as 
Trauma Informed Schools, Positive Behavior Interventions and Support (PBIS), and in Social Emotional Learning 
(SEL). The school will provide on-going professional development for veteran and new teachers in these areas. 
Additional support staff such as a second counselor, a social worker, and a community coordinator are added to our 
team and they all support our school connectedness goals. The school will track data such as qualitative data from the 
student Social Emotional Health Survey, chronic absenteeism, and suspension rates. School will refine or implement 
systems to encourage positive behavior and attendance.  
 
a. Maintain and refine PBIS, MTSS and other school connectedness strategies that create a rigorous learning 
environment with high expectations and appropriate support for all students  


 PBIS release days for planning 
 Stipends for 3 WEB leaders 
 WEB and ASB/Leadership T-shirts ($500 paid by Home and School Club)) 
 Attend PBIS and other similar trainings 
 Food, prizes, materials and school connectedness related rewards for positive attendance, behavior, and 


other PBIS related needs to improve behavior, connectedness, and decrease student discipline 
(suspension). 


 EWA extra pay for supervision help at lunch and/or after school activities, 
 Add zero period PE so ELs can take required ELD class and still access elective program 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 


179/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
All Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 24,655        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Zero period PE teacher        


Amount 3,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Stipends for 3 WEB leaders - Ease transition for new students - $1K each stipend        


Amount 6,500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description PD, conferences, sub pay, incentives, supplies that enhance the school connectedness 
and experience of our students        


Amount 2,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description EWA extra pay for supervision help at lunch and/or after school activities        


Amount 2,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description EWA extra pay for supervision help at lunch and/or after school activities,        


Strategy/Activity 2 
b. Design and implement school connectedness activities.  


 Enhance school environment to develop and continue pride in school facility and to enhance college and 
career going culture. 


 .09 FTE to implement multiple school connectedness strategies and to enhance School Leadership/Activities 
class work, (field trips, lunch time activities, SSR lessons,…) through ASB/Leadership class (Activities 
Director) $9,771 


 Enhance school by adding display cabinets, school pride and college awareness posters or other marketing 
materials, etc 


180/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


 Replace broken, old, obsolete classroom and/or office furniture, 
 Continue newly developed Student Support Team of counselors, admin, attendance specialist, social 


workers, and RtI specialist to reduce chronic absenteeism and reduce suspension of all and of at-risk 
student groups. Do this by implementation of restorative justice practices (in lieu of suspension), attendance 
goal setting, and student incentives. 


 Extra hourly pay for prep or supplies monies for club advisors to encourage and enhance club participation 
($100 per club per advisor) 


 EWA - Add five hours a week to Attendance Specialist/Health Clerk position for Campus Supervision and 
Connectedness activities for students 


 Upgrade outdoor life lab to excite kids about learning Science, Culinary Arts, Agriculture "Farm to table - 
needs electricity, water, improved seating and tables, storage and other related supplies 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, at-risk students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
All Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,100        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .09 FTE to implement multiple school connectedness strategies (Measure U Parcel Tax 
funds)        


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Enhance school by adding display cabinets, school pride and college awareness posters 
or other marketing materials        


Amount 10,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Replace broken, old, obsolete classroom and/or office furniture        


Amount 4,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description EWA - Add five hours a week to Attendance Specialist/Health Clerk position for Campus 
Supervision and Connectedness activities for students        


181/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Amount 8,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description -Upgrade outdoor life lab to excite kids about learning Science, Culinary Arts, Agriculture 
"Farm to table - needs electricity, water, improved seating and tables, storage and other 
related supplies        


Strategy/Activity 3 
 c. Design and implement Tier 1 & 2 strategies counseling strategies. 


 Counselors, school psychologist, social workers and administration work on developing Tier 1, 2 & 3 
practices and systems including bi-monthly mtgs to strategize and execute chronic absenteeism 
interventions and caseloads 


 Implement Second Step (evidence based) Social-Emotional Learning (SEL) curriculum across all 6th grade 
classrooms. Explore other evidence based and creative ways to connect with students and engage them in 
learning. 


 Train new staff, including para-professionals, in trauma informed schools practices 
 Pay School Support Staff members for after hours home visits for chronic absentees 
 .2 FTE Bilingual counselor (LCFF - $18,708) 
 .2 FTE Bilingual counselor (T1 $18,709) 
 Social Work Intern fees (LCFF $5,000) 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, at-risk students, Students with Disabilities and English Learners        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, AP, Counselors, & RtI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description School Support Staff members for after hours home visits for chronic absentees        


Amount 37,416        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .4 FTE Bilingual counselor - Measure U Parcel Tax funding        


Amount 5,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


182/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Description Social Work Intern fees        


Strategy/Activity 4 
d. Increase opportunities for non-certificated staff to be more involved in school activities and to receive more 
professional development in their work roles.  


 Release time sub pay and conferences for classified and other non-certificated staff. 
 Food for regular mtgs of classified staff. ($500 - donations acct) 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, at-risk students, Students with Disabilities and English Learners        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal & Classified Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Increase opportunities for non-certificated staff, PD or sub pay        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Respect staff and parents by offering food for meetings that are held at inopportune times of the day/eve        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description food and supplies for meetings        


Strategy/Activity 6 


183/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


f.  Bi-annually review the LGTBQ School Climate Survey with a representative group of students and staff.  Seek ways 
to improve overall rubric score to make safer climate for LGTBQ students. 
release time, subs, conference fees, pay for consultants, transportation to conferences or for PD. 
Increase engagement and school spirit and pride with spirit wear and other related school mascot wear etc 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, LGTBQ students, at-risk students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
AP        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Increase engagement and school spirit and pride with purchase of spirit wear and other 
related school mascot wear etc        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Provide small group academic cohorts during and after school - Tier 3 Interventions        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Identify and mitigate learning loss to reduce or prevent achievement gap growth due to COVID 19        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal & RtI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,550        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Discretionary CARES Act Learning Loss Funding - During School Day Support        


Amount 21,600        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


184/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Description Discretionary CARES Act Learning Loss Funding - Before/After School Support & 
Tutoring        


Amount 8,250        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Discretionary CARES Act Learning Loss Funding - Teacher and classroom supplies        


Amount 20,975        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Discretionary CARES Act Learning Loss Funding - hardware and software programs to 
aid Distance Learning and Hybrid Instruction        


 


185/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  89,000 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  751,462.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


186/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


CARES Act         61,375.00 


District Funded         365,727.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         150,714.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         11,600.00 


None Specified         5,000.00 


Other         8,000.00 


Title I         149,046.00 
 


187/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         456,770.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         153,577.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         121,720.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 17,395.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 2,000.00 


 


188/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 CARES Act  32,150.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         CARES Act  29,225.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  258,300.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  100,532.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         District Funded  6,895.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  86,670.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  32,544.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Supplemental  25,000.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  6,500.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  11,600.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         None Specified  5,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Other  8,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  71,650.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  20,501.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Title I  44,000.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  10,895.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  2,000.00 


 


189/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
2 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


3 Parent or Community Members        


1 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Casey O'Brien         X Principal        


Molly O'Neil         X Classroom Teacher        


Kaitlin Fasse         X Classroom Teacher        


Lisa Orozco         X Other School Staff        


Stephen Nakazawa-Hewitt         X Parent or Community Member        


Balam Latona         X Parent or Community Member        


Maureen Wyland         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


190/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 53 Branciforte Middle School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on 10/21/20. 
 
Attested: 


 


 Principal, Casey O'Brien on 10/21/20 


  SSC Chairperson, Balam Latona on 10/21/20 


 


191/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


 
School Year:    2020-21   


SPSA Title Page 


 
 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name DeLaveaga Elementary School         


Address 1145 Morrissey Blvd.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95065-1498 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698156049886         


Principal Robert S. Greenlee         


District Name De Laveaga Elementary School         


SPSA Revision Date October 13, 2020         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date October 2020         


Local Board Approval Date November 4, 2020         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


192/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Table of Contents 
 


SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 


Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 


School Vision and Mission ................................................................................................................................3 


School Profile ....................................................................................................................................................3 


Stakeholder Involvement ..................................................................................................................................3 


School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................4 


Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................4 


CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................6 


ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................10 


Student Population ..................................................................................................................................13 


Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................14 


Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................15 


Academic Engagement ...........................................................................................................................20 


Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................22 


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................24 


Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................24 


Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................32 


Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................36 


Goal 4 ......................................................................................................................................................39 


Budget Summary and Consolidation ..............................................................................................................44 


Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................44 


Allocations by Funding Source ................................................................................................................44 


Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................45 


Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................46 


Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................47 


School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................48 


Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................49 


 


193/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


School Vision and Mission 
 
DeLaveaga Elementary School’s Vision and Mission Statements 
 
DeLaveaga Elementary School is located on the east side of Santa Cruz near DeLaveaga City Park. The highly skilled 
and collaborative teaching staff has many years of professional experience. We emphasize a strong, enriched 
educational program, supplemented by the arts and sciences, which enables all children to reach their academic, social, 
and emotional potential, based on California Content Standards. DeLaveaga houses the district’s K-5 Spanish Two Way 
Immersion program, a program strand within our school. The goal of the program is for all students to be 
bilingual/bicultural in English and Spanish. We are fortunate to have a high rate of active parent participation to support 
the classrooms and programs at our school. 
 
VISION STATEMENT 
The DeLaveaga School Community considers every child unique and deserving of the highest quality education 
available so that they may reach their own full potential, both academically and socially. 
 
MISSION STATEMENT 
At DeLaveaga, we believe every person has value and the potential to achieve their goals. We believe families are equal 
partners who support their children, as well as the needs of the whole school community. We collaborate as a team so 
that all children can learn. School should be safe and fun, a place where each child wants to be each day. We celebrate 
our diverse world in which children’s languages and cultures, talents and dreams, are fostered and valued. We believe 
the transformative power of excellent teaching makes our beliefs become reality to support high levels of achievement 
for all students. 
         


 


School Profile 
 
DeLaveaga Elementary School is located on the east side of Santa Cruz near DeLaveaga Park. The highly skilled and 
collaborative teaching staff has many years of professional experience. We emphasize a strong, enriched educational 
program, supplemented by the arts and sciences, which enables all children to reach their academic, social, and 
emotional potential, based on California Content Standards. DeLaveaga houses the district’s K-5 Spanish Two Way 
Immersion program, a program strand within our school. The goal of the program is for all students to be 
bilingual/bicultural in English and Spanish. We are fortunate to have a high rate of active parent participation to support 
the classrooms and programs at our school. In the academic year 2020-21, approximately 475 students registered in the 
fall for its transitional kindergarten through fifth grades.         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Over the course of the 2020-21 academic year, during ELAC, SSC, SCIL, and Staff Meetings, I consulted with school 
staff and parents in the review and revision of our school plan.         


 


194/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


American Indian     0.36% 0.38% 0.57% 2        2 3 


African American     1.64% 1.7% 2.26% 9        9 12 


Asian     3.09% 3.03% 3.4% 17        16 18 


Filipino     % 0.38% 0.38%         2 2 


Hispanic/Latino     38.91% 38.64% 37.36% 214        204 198 


Pacific Islander     0.36% 0.38% 0.38% 2        2 2 


White     51.82% 51.89% 53.4% 285        274 283 


Multiple/No Response     % 0.38% 2.26%         2 0 


 Total Enrollment 550 528 530 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


17-18 18-19 19-20 


Kindergarten        112 115 114 


Grade 1        84 86 89 


Grade 2        85 79 81 


Grade3        100 72 74 


Grade 4        84 100 75 


Grade 5        85 76 97 


Total Enrollment        550 528 530 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. While DeLaveaga has a majority of "White" students we also have approximately 39% Hispanic and Latino 


students. The balance of our enrollment consists of African American, Asian, Filipino and Pacific Islander students. 
These number of remained consistent over the past 3 years.        


2. The Santa Cruz City Schools District has been in a period of declining enrollment, and this has also been the trend 
at DeLaveaga. Our current enrollment in 2020-21 is 475 students, a drop of 55 students from last year to this year.        


 


195/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


English Learners        125 113 111 22.7% 21.4% 20.9% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        37 41 36 6.7% 7.8% 6.8% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        16 11 3 11.3% 8.8% 2.7% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. With the trend of declining enrollment both in the district and the school site, we have also seen a reduction in our 


English Learner numbers. However, the percent of English Learners has remained about the same (from 22.7% to 
21.4%).        


2. We have increased (almost doubled)  the number and percent of English Learners being reclassified from 2015-16 
to 2017-18, and remained steady for 2018-2019. Our school site's focus on both Integrated and Designated ELD 
was a contributing factor.        


 


196/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 87 102 72 86 102 70 86 102 70 98.9 100 97.2 


Grade 4 91 80 98 87 78 97 87 78 97 95.6 97.5 99 


Grade 5 108 87 76 106 85 75 106 85 75 98.1 97.7 98.7 
All 
Grades 


286 269 246 279 265 242 279 265 242 97.6 98.5 98.4 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2427.
0 


2400.
9 


2413.
9 


27.91 12.75 17.14 20.93 26.47 22.86 26.74 30.39 32.86 24.42 30.39 27.14 


Grade 4 2469.
0 


2476.
2 


2472.
6 


26.44 28.21 23.71 24.14 30.77 35.05 18.39 17.95 14.43 31.03 23.08 26.80 


Grade 5 2521.
7 


2521.
8 


2530.
5 


27.36 34.12 34.67 34.91 25.88 28.00 16.04 15.29 20.00 21.70 24.71 17.33 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 27.24 24.15 25.21 27.24 27.55 29.34 20.07 21.89 21.49 25.45 26.42 23.97 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 31.40 14.71 25.71 40.70 49.02 47.14 27.91 36.27 27.14 


Grade 4 33.33 30.77 21.65 42.53 51.28 51.55 24.14 17.95 26.80 


Grade 5 35.85 38.82 34.67 45.28 40.00 45.33 18.87 21.18 20.00 


All Grades 33.69 27.17 26.86 43.01 46.79 48.35 23.30 26.04 24.79 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 18.60 6.86 14.29 47.67 52.94 48.57 33.72 40.20 37.14 


Grade 4 18.39 21.79 24.74 51.72 48.72 58.76 29.89 29.49 16.49 


Grade 5 33.96 38.82 34.67 39.62 35.29 52.00 26.42 25.88 13.33 


All Grades 24.37 21.51 24.79 45.88 46.04 53.72 29.75 32.45 21.49 
 


197/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 24.42 16.67 12.86 68.60 63.73 67.14 6.98 19.61 20.00 


Grade 4 14.94 19.23 22.68 64.37 69.23 62.89 20.69 11.54 14.43 


Grade 5 24.53 24.71 17.33 62.26 56.47 73.33 13.21 18.82 9.33 


All Grades 21.51 20.00 18.18 64.87 63.02 67.36 13.62 16.98 14.46 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 25.58 13.73 14.29 51.16 53.92 57.14 23.26 32.35 28.57 


Grade 4 31.03 32.05 19.59 48.28 51.28 56.70 20.69 16.67 23.71 


Grade 5 31.13 29.41 34.67 46.23 49.41 48.00 22.64 21.18 17.33 


All Grades 29.39 24.15 22.73 48.39 51.70 54.13 22.22 24.15 23.14 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 54.55% of students in grades 3-5 met or exceeded standard on the English Language Arts test. 23.97% of students 


in grades 3-5 did not meet standard. 21.49% nearly met.        
2. Cluster scores in Reading and Research/Inquiry are relatively stronger than Writing and Listening. These would be 


areas for focus for 2018-2019.        
3. The CAASPP was not taken in 2019 due to COVID 19 shut down, so there is no current score information for 


students        
 


198/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 87 102 72 86 102 70 86 102 70 98.9 100 97.2 


Grade 4 91 80 98 87 78 97 87 78 97 95.6 97.5 99 


Grade 5 108 87 76 106 85 75 106 85 75 98.1 97.7 98.7 
All 
Grades 


286 269 246 279 265 242 279 265 242 97.6 98.5 98.4 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2424.
8 


2411.
2 


2427.
6 


13.95 8.82 17.14 30.23 30.39 38.57 31.40 28.43 10.00 24.42 32.35 34.29 


Grade 4 2458.
9 


2466.
0 


2462.
2 


13.79 11.54 11.34 24.14 30.77 26.80 32.18 32.05 37.11 29.89 25.64 24.74 


Grade 5 2516.
5 


2508.
8 


2521.
2 


21.70 25.88 25.33 34.91 20.00 21.33 20.75 23.53 37.33 22.64 30.59 16.00 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 16.85 15.09 17.36 30.11 27.17 28.51 27.60 27.92 29.34 25.45 29.81 24.79 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 26.74 14.71 25.71 36.05 41.18 38.57 37.21 44.12 35.71 


Grade 4 21.84 19.23 19.59 40.23 35.90 36.08 37.93 44.87 44.33 


Grade 5 30.19 27.06 25.33 39.62 29.41 37.33 30.19 43.53 37.33 


All Grades 26.52 20.00 23.14 38.71 35.85 37.19 34.77 44.15 39.67 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 19.77 22.55 27.14 55.81 50.00 44.29 24.42 27.45 28.57 


Grade 4 19.54 23.08 18.56 49.43 51.28 55.67 31.03 25.64 25.77 


Grade 5 30.19 29.41 29.33 47.17 44.71 53.33 22.64 25.88 17.33 


All Grades 23.66 24.91 24.38 50.54 48.68 51.65 25.81 26.42 23.97 
 


199/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 18.60 10.78 20.00 56.98 56.86 54.29 24.42 32.35 25.71 


Grade 4 18.39 19.23 18.56 52.87 50.00 54.64 28.74 30.77 26.80 


Grade 5 23.58 23.53 21.33 50.94 47.06 57.33 25.47 29.41 21.33 


All Grades 20.43 17.36 19.83 53.41 51.70 55.37 26.16 30.94 24.79 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 45.87% of students tested in grades 3-5 met or exceeded standard. 75.21% of students tested in grades 3-5 nearly 


met, met, or exceeded standard.        
2. Cluster scores were relatively stronger in the area of concepts and procedures. Communicating Reasoning is an 


area of relative weakness, and would be areas for focus for 2018-2019.        
3. There was no CAASPP testing in 2019 due to COVID-19 shut downs, so there is no data for the 19-20 school year.        


 


200/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade K        1432.6 1436.0 1440.2 1445.7 1414.7 1413.1 31 21 


Grade 1        1438.0 1445.1 1456.5 1472.0 1419.2 1417.8 19 24 


Grade 2        1472.9 1465.5 1482.2 1495.8 1463.0 1434.8 27 16 


Grade 3        1483.4 1514.1 1482.6 1523.1 1483.8 1504.6 20 20 


Grade 4        1549.8 1519.4 1569.9 1515.1 1529.5 1523.2 13 18 


Grade 5        * * * * * * * 10 


All Grades              117 109 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    48.39 14.29 * 38.10 * 38.10 * 9.52 31 21 


   1    * 8.33 * 25.00 * 54.17 * 12.50 19 24 


   2    * 6.25 44.44 25.00 * 56.25 * 12.50 27 16 


   3    * 40.00 * 25.00 * 35.00 * 0.00 20 20 


   4    * 11.11 * 50.00  38.89  0.00 13 18 


   5    * * * * * *  * * * 


All Grades        30.77 20.18 34.19 32.11 21.37 41.28 13.68 6.42 117 109 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    51.61 19.05 * 42.86 * 28.57 * 9.52 31 21 


   1    * 33.33 * 37.50 * 25.00  4.17 19 24 


   2    51.85 43.75 * 43.75 * 12.50 * 0.00 27 16 


   3    * 55.00 * 25.00 * 10.00 * 10.00 20 20 


   4    84.62 50.00 * 44.44  5.56  0.00 13 18 


   5    * * * *  *  * * * 


All Grades        49.57 42.20 30.77 37.61 11.11 15.60 * 4.59 117 109 
 


201/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    41.94 14.29 * 23.81 41.94 52.38 * 9.52 31 21 


   1    * 4.17 * 4.17 * 45.83 * 45.83 19 24 


   2    * 0.00 * 12.50 * 25.00 * 62.50 27 16 


   3     10.00 * 30.00 * 50.00 * 10.00 20 20 


   4    * 5.56 * 44.44 * 38.89  11.11 13 18 


   5    * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        19.66 8.26 22.22 22.94 30.77 44.04 27.35 24.77 117 109 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    70.97 28.57 * 66.67 * 4.76 31 21 


   1    * 58.33 * 37.50 * 4.17 19 24 


   2    55.56 18.75 * 75.00 * 6.25 27 16 


   3    * 40.00 70.00 40.00 * 20.00 20 20 


   4    * 33.33 * 55.56  11.11 13 18 


   5    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        52.14 35.78 41.88 55.96 * 8.26 117 109 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    48.39 23.81 * 66.67 * 9.52 31 21 


   1    * 20.83 * 62.50  16.67 19 24 


   2    51.85 56.25 44.44 43.75 * 0.00 27 16 


   3    * 80.00 55.00 20.00 * 0.00 20 20 


   4    84.62 61.11 * 38.89  0.00 13 18 


All Grades        52.14 51.38 35.90 43.12 11.97 5.50 117 109 
 


202/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 4.76 64.52 90.48 * 4.76 31 21 


   1    * 12.50 * 50.00 * 37.50 19 24 


   2    * 0.00 44.44 50.00 * 50.00 27 16 


   3     15.00 * 65.00 60.00 20.00 20 20 


   4    * 11.11 * 50.00 * 38.89 13 18 


All Grades        18.80 10.09 53.85 63.30 27.35 26.61 117 109 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    38.71 28.57 48.39 52.38 * 19.05 31 21 


   1     4.17 * 37.50 * 58.33 19 24 


   2    * 0.00 62.96 31.25 * 68.75 27 16 


   3    * 10.00 55.00 85.00 * 5.00 20 20 


   4    * 33.33 * 61.11  5.56 13 18 


All Grades        22.22 17.43 54.70 54.13 23.08 28.44 117 109 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. About 72% of our students are in the Moderately or Well-Developed range in the Writing Domain. While in the 


Reading Domain, it was reversed - with approximately 85% of students scoring in the Beginning to Moderately 
ranges of the Domain.        


2. In Overall Language about 52% of our English Learners scored in the 3 or 4 Performance Levels, and about 48% 
scored at Levels 1 and 2.        


3. ELPAC testing was incomplete in 2019-20 due to the COVID-19 shut down.  There is no data for the 2019-20 
school year.        


 
 


203/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2018-19 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


528        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


36.6        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


21.4        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


0.4        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2018-19 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        113 21.4 


Foster Youth        2 0.4 


Homeless        8 1.5 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        193 36.6 


Students with Disabilities        66 12.5 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        9 1.7 


American Indian        2 0.4 


Asian        16 3.0 


Filipino        2 0.4 


Hispanic        204 38.6 


Two or More Races        17 3.2 


Pacific Islander        2 0.4 


White        274 51.9 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. DeLaveaga is a school with about 40% Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, with 22.7% English Learners and 0.5% 


Foster Youth.        
2. We have 0.7% Homeless and 12.9% Students with Disabilities.        


 
 


204/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Green        


 
Mathematics 


 
Green        


Academic Engagement 


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Orange        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Blue        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. We have done well at keeping our suspension rate low. We are at the highest performing level on this indicator.        


2. Our English Learner subgroup is performing at a very low level on the State Assessment. This is an area of focus 
for us this year.        


3. Three out of 5 groups did not do very well in the area of math. For this reason, a focus on Integrated ELD is 
designed to meet this need as well as that of our ELL group.        


 
 


205/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


4        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


3 points above standard         


Increased ++4.9 points         


240        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


62.2 points below standard         


Increased ++8.6 points         


63        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


41.6 points below standard         


Increased ++13.9 points         


84        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


19.7 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++24.3 points         
42        


 


206/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


35.9 points below standard         


Increased ++8.8 points         


93        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Green         


30.4 points above standard         


Maintained ++2.2 points         


128        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


82.7 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++29.5 points         
48        


Reclassified English Learners 


3.6 points above standard         


Maintained ++2.6 points         


15        


English Only 


24.4 points above standard         


Increased ++7.2 points         


167        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Even where we had low scores (SED, SPED, ELL, and Hispanic), we either increased or maintained ELA scores in 


all areas (only the Asian subgroup declined, but was still in the Very High status).        
2. Given the low scores for our ELLs, Hispanic, and SED students, we need to focus our ELA instruction and intervention 


on these groups.        
 
 


207/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


1        
Yellow        


3        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


13.5 points below standard         


Increased ++6.5 points         


240        


English Learners 


 
Orange         


68.9 points below standard         


Maintained ++0.7 points         


63        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


53.9 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++19.5 points         
84        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


31 points below standard         


Increased ++14.4 points         


42        


 


208/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


American Indian Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


47.2 points below standard         


Increased ++8.8 points         


93        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Green         


11.2 points above standard         


Increased ++8.2 points         


128        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


79.9 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++16.8 points         
48        


Reclassified English Learners 


33.5 points below standard         


Declined -10.8 points         


15        


English Only 


4.3 points above standard         


Increased ++12.1 points         


167        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Math is an area for focus this year. Almost all subgroups declined on math this year.        


2. A bright spot for us this year was our SPED students who had an increase of 11.2 points over the prior year!        


 
 


209/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


50 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 88          


Performance Level: Medium        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


22.7         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


27.2         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


6.8         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


43.1         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Again, as was mentioned earlier, our English Learner subgroup is struggling on EL progress towards Reclassification, 


and in the area of math. ELA (increased by 7.4 points), while slightly higher than the other areas, is still low.        
 
 


210/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
0        


Orange        
4        


Yellow        
1        


Green        
0        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


12.5         


Maintained +0.2         


536        


English Learners 


 
Orange         


12.3         


Maintained 0         


114        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


63.6         


Increased +1.1         


11        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


19.6         


Maintained -0.4         


199        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


13.3         


Maintained +0.3         


83        


 


211/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


9        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


6.3         


Maintained +0.4         


16        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


13.9         


Declined -2.1         


209        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


15         


Declined -4         


20        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


White     


 
Orange         


10.9         


Increased +1.6         


276        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our Chronic Absenteeism is high compared to the State rate. IN 2018, 12.3% of our students, 20% of our 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students, and 15.9% of our Hispanic students were Chronically Absent.        
 
 


212/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


1        
Blue        


4        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


0.2         


Declined -0.5         
544        


English Learners 


 
Blue         


0         


Declined -1.5         
117        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          3        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Declined -12.5         
16        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Blue         


0.5         


Declined -0.8         
206        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Green         


1.2         


Declined -2.3         
85        


 


213/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          9        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
16        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


Hispanic 


 
Blue         


0         


Declined -0.9         
212        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
21        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


White     


 
Blue         


0.4         


Declined -0.3         
280        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
0.7         


2019     
0.2         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our  work on Tier 1 and Tier 2 PBIS supports for all students has contributed to blue and green ratings for all students 


in this area.  This is a celebration for DLV!        
 
 


214/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Academic Literacy          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will make academic literacy growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
When analyzing our 2019-2020 CA Dashboard data, we see that "All Students" are in the "green", meaning that overall, 
our students have met their level achievement. Currently, our dashboard shows that "All Students" are +3 points above 
the standard. In addition, we see that many of our groups are not meeting the standard (ELLs, SWD, SED and 
Hispanic). For specific student group data, see the metrics and baseline below. Given our current Distance Learning 
situation, we will be utilizing alternative metrics and determining baseline within the next month.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: All Students        


 3 points above standard (Not 
currently being used in DL) 


 "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 62.2 points below standard (Not 
currently being used in DL) 


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Students with Disabilities        


 19.7 points below standard (Not 
currently being used in DL) 


 Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Hispanic        


 35.9 points below standard (Not 
currently being used in DL) 


 Hispanic students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged        


 41.6 points below standard (Not 
currently being used in DL) 


 Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2020 ELA CAASPP. 


MAP Reading for All Students         (Not currently being used in DL)  All students will meet their Expected 
Growth Targets by Spring 2020 


Lexia Progress Reports (All Grades)         Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


215/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Pioneer Valley F&P online test 
(Grades 1-5)        


 Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


ESGI Phonics Assessment (TK and 
Kindergarten)        


 Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
RtI Coordinator and Learning assistants will support English Learners’ progress towards proficiency in English 
Language Arts.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learner subgroup will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin & RtI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 30,839        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Academic Intervention support aide salaries for small group instruction based on student 
reading levels (Learning Assistants)        


Amount 0        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description RtI Coordinator Salary        


Amount 37,542        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Academic Intervention support aide salaries for small group instruction based on student 
reading levels (Learning Assistants)        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Standards-based assessments will be used to guide and modify language arts instruction. We will disaggregate data by 
program (EO and TWI).        


 


216/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin & RtI Coordinator, along with classroom teachers.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 37,345        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Assessments used will include: 
* MAP 
* Fountas and Pinnell (F & P) 
* Writing Assessment  (Needs to be revised to be coordinated with CCSS) 
* MASI 
        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Professional Development for teachers to learn new programs, instructional strategies (Literacy Strategies) and to 
collaborate with colleagues. This may be accomplished through participation in conferences, workshops, peer 
observations, and grade level articulation.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 6,555        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description * Release time for teachers 
* PD/PLC Days 
* Conferences 
* Workshops 
        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Technology will be updated. We will purchase new Chromebooks for assisting with ELA and assessment purposes. We 
will also purchase additional tech hardware as needed, as well as pay for repairs to keep our computers functioning. 


217/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


We will want to purchase additional Chromebooks as we will need laptops both at school and for home when we return 
to in-person instruction.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration and Technology Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 8,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase new Chromebook Cart with 30 Chromebooks        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Literacy Intervention, both during and after school, will address needs of struggling learners by providing phonics based 
instruction through SIPPS, Lexia, and writing support. Fund one Title 1 Intervention Coordinator/ teacher; fund learning 
asst. to provide small group support for Walk to Read and assessment.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners, students with disabilities, socioeconomically disadvantaged, and Hispanic students will be the focus 
of this activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, and  RtI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 7500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description ASSIPs (After School Support and Intervention Programs) 
* LISTOS 
* Reading and Writing Intervention for Grades 1-3 
* Homework Club 
* Tutoring for at-risk students 
        


Amount 5000        


Source Title I        


218/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description RtI Learning Assistants will provide small group intervention and assessment        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Student Learning Teams and Language Review Teams (3 x year) Grade level teams meet with RtI Coordinator to 
review student data (MAP, F & P, Others TBD) following trimester assessments.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Three times a year at each trimester - November, January and May        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin & RtI Coordinator, along with classroom teachers.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description SLTs and LRTs will review data to determine the learning needs of each student, as well 
as the English Language Development needs of our ELLs. Subs will be needed to 
release teachers to attend meetings.        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Purchase additional supplies and materials to support the academic literacy development of all students.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, RtI Coordinator and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 11,727        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Software: 
* Lexia 
* IStation 
* RAZKids 
Supplemental Leveled Reading Materials 


219/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Access to laminators, printers, maps, etc. 
        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Implement the newly adopted ELA/ELD Curricular Program School-wide and with fidelity, and provide teachers time to 
learn the program and plan instruction.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, RtI Coodinator and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description All teachers will implement, with fidelity the new ELA/ELD curriculum during a consistent 
and designed time of day.        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Science will be a focus for the year through the implementation of Integrated ELD, FOSS Kits and the Science 
Practices on a monthly basis.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, Science Leads and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Description Teachers will work together during grade level and PLC times to plan activities that 
develop and support language development through Science.        


Strategy/Activity 10 
We will continue with a focus on developing Integrated ELD lessons, not only through our ELA lessons, but in other 
subjects as well (math, science, social studies). Developing academic discourse will be a key component of these 
lessons. With Distance Learning, we want to make sure that teachers are using ELD strategies throughout the day in 
both synchronous and asynchronous instruction.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


220/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, Science Leads and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 11 
We will increase parent participation in school and through organized groups (PTC, ELAC, SSC, etc.). We will explore 
different ways of reaching out to recruit parents for volunteering, attending meetings, and through parent workshops.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, Science Leads and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Funds for speakers, trainers and materials        


Strategy/Activity 12 
Provide support in Spanish for our Dos Alas Program students to develop their Spanish literacy skills.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students in the Dos Alas, TWI program.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, TWI classroom teacher, and RtI Coodinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


221/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Description Provide additional staff support to TWI students in need of Spanish literacy support        


Amount 5400        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Classified, and in some cases Certificated staff will provide tutoring or small cohort 
support to at-risk students.        


 


222/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Mathematics          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will make mathematics growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
When analyzing our 2018-2019 CA Dashboard data, we see that "All Students" are in the "green", meaning that overall, 
our students have met their level achievement and are 13.5 points below standard. In addition, when we dig deeper into 
our different student groups, we see that there is significant need to improve our students' level of proficiency in 
mathematics, especially among our English Learners, Students with Disabilities, Hispanic students, and 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students. For specific student group data, see the metrics and baseline below.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: All 
Students        


 13.5 points below standard (Not 
being currently used) 


 "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2019 Math 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 68.9 points below standard (Not 
being currently used) 


 English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Students with Disabilities        


 31 points below standard (Not being 
currently used) 


 Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        


 53.9 points below standard (Not 
being currently used) 


 Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Hispanic        


 47.2 points below standard (Not 
being currently used) 


 Hispanic will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: White         11 points above standard (Not being 
currently used) 


 White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
Math CAASPP. 


Zearn Progress Reports         Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


223/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Unit Tests in Eureka Math Program         Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 Will be determining baseline following 
T1 assessments 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Teachers will implement the adopted math curriculum (Eureka) with fidelity.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be served by this activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration and classroom teachers.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Description There will be a designed time during the day for math instruction for each grade level.        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Teachers include research based engagement strategies, such as Integrated ELD, in their instruction to support ELL 
and all student learning.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be served by this activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Math intervention both during the day and after school will be provided to those students in need of additional support.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be considered for these programs, but will be selected based on assessment data, teacher 
recommendation, and parent agreement.        


 


224/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, RtI Coordinator and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Cost of certificated and classified staff to teach in after school programs        


Amount 8000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Small group support in math with our Response to Intervention teacher and Learning 
Assistants. In addition, students will have access a computer software program to 
support math skill/concept 
* IStation 
        


Amount 5400        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Classified and in some cases Certificated staff will tutor or provide small cohort support 
for at-risk students.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Materials and Supplies        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be served by this activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


225/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Description Printed and electronic materials to support math instruction        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Professional Development for staff and parents        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be served by this activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, RtI Coordinator, classroom teachers, and Bilingual Community Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Conferences, workshops, collaboration, and articulation days will provide teachers the 
time and training to better meet the needs of their students.        


Amount 0        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Presentations and training for parents to prepare them to support their child(ren) at home. 
Funded under Goal 1 
Some of the trainings could include Zearn, iStation, and Khan Academy. 
        


 


226/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
English Learner Progress          


 
Goal Statement 
All English Learners will be academically successful.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
About 72% of our students are in the Moderately or Well-Developed range in the Writing Domain. While in the Reading 
Domain, it was reversed - with approximately 85% of students scoring in the Beginning to Moderately ranges of the 
Domain. In Overall Language, about 52% of our English Learners scored in the 3 or 4 Performance Levels, and about 
48% scored at Levels 1 and 2. 
 
In addition to the ELPAC, our district monitors our English Learner progress by using the CA Dashboard Academic 
Performance, Academic Engagement, and School Conditions and Climate. In analyzing all of these data points, we see 
that supporting our English Learners in all areas needs to be a focus for our district. See below for specific English 
Learner metrics and data. 
          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 62.2 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 68.9 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
Math CAASPP. 


ELPAC Data         52% scored at a Level 3 or 4  65% will score at a Level 3 or 4. 


EL Student Suspensions         0%  Maintain 0% 
 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Integrated ELD (PD, admin walkthroughs, peer observations, coaching, etc.)... in the areas of ELA and math        


227/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, RtI Coordinator, classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Parent training on ELPAC and in math to better understand the Reclassification process, and the math program, and 
how they an support their child(ren) at home. Schedule time to provide explanations of the assessment process, test 
scores and data to parents!        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator and RtI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,500        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Training for parent in: 
* Eureka 
* Zearn 
* IStation 
* ELPAC 
 
Training can take place during: 
* ELAC meetings 
* Family Math Nights 
* Back to School Night 
 
Child Care cost for parents to increase attendance and participation 
        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Staffing and materials to support the LRT process and coordinate the ELPAC testing        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners (LEP, RFEP, IFEP)        


228/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator and RtI Coordinator and ELPAC Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description English Learner Designee to organize Language Review Team meetings, plan ELPAC 
schedule and testing, maintain records, and develop ELD programs.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Designated ELD for all English Language Learners        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator and RtI Coordinator and Classroom Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Description All ELLs will be grouped by proficiency levels for 30-45 minutes daily for ELD instruction. 
Annual and weekly schedule will be created by each grade level that shows when ELD 
instruction will happen. 
Some students, at the higher levels of English Proficiency will receive ELD instruction 
based on an Individual Service Plan (ISP) that identifies standards to be learned. 
        


Amount 5400        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Classified (and Certificated staff when possible) will provide ELD tutoring or small cohort 
support for our most at-risk English Language Learners        


 


229/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 4 
 
Subject 
School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will feel connected to their school.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
In analyzing the CA Dashboard chronic absenteeism data and suspension data, the California Healthy Kid Survey data, 
and the Socio-Emotional Health Survey we see that a focus on School Connectedness is an area of need. When 
determining the level of School Connectedness in our district, we are specifically looking at data related to students 
reporting they have supportive, caring relationships with adults, the curriculum and school activities are relevant and 
engaging, and there is a sense of student leadership and ownership on campus.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 12.5% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent "All Students" by 
.5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Students with Disabilities absent 
more than 10% of the school year        


 13.3% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Students with 
Disabilities by .5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 19.6% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students by .5% or 
more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
English Learners absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 12.3% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent English Learners 
by .5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Hispanic students absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 13.9% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Hispanic students 
by .5% or more. 


Suspension: Percent of Students with 
Disabilities suspended once during 
the school year        


 1.2% suspended  We will decease the percentage of 
suspended Students with Disabilities 
to less than 1%. 


Attendance/Engagement Gradebook 
Record        


    


 


230/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
PBIS principles and school wide expectations will be implemented school-wide. Counselor and principal will present 
PBIS video on school wide expectations at grade level assemblies in September. PBIS team will analyze behavior data 
from office referrals to monitor locations and types of behavior that needs attention. We will provide an updated "online" 
version of our Dragon Way Expectations, as well as a system for student (and staff) recognition (Dragon Tickets and 
Drawings).        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be served.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, counselor and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Teachers will systematically implement the following systems in their classrooms: 
* School-Wide Expectations - The Dragon Way 
 
Cost of Materials & Supplies to Implement the Dragon Wheel: 
* Dragon Tickets 
* Calming Corner/Space 
* Second Step 
* WITS 
* Zones of Regulation 
* Playground Games and Rules 
* Behavior Forms for Minor and Major Referrals 
        


Strategy/Activity 2 
We will improve school-wide attendance through identification of chronically absent and truant students, communication 
with staff and parents and intervention through conferences, Tier/SST meetings and SARB referrals, as well as tutoring 
and/or small cohort support.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be served by this activity        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, PBIS Committee, Attendance Clerk and classroom teachers        


231/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description We will develop a site-based system for address attendance issue. Some of which will 
include: 
 
Attendance/Truancy letters will be revised to better communicate the importance of 
attendance and the consequences of missing school. In addition, teachers will receive 
information on Chronic Absenteeism, along with Truancy to better address these issue 
within their classrooms 
 
We will better incorporate attendance into our Tier/SST and SLT meetings to more 
promptly address attendance issues. 
 
We will involve the Nurse, Health Clerk, and Bilingual Community Coordinator in the 
process so that other issues that may be affecting attendance can be more promptly 
addressed. 
 
We will look into the addition of a Student Attendance Award as a way to motivate 
students and parents to attend school daily. 
 
Cost of extra hourly for classified support staff to conduct above activities. 
        


Amount 5400        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Classified Staff (and Certificated when available) will provide tutoring and small cohort 
support for our most at-risk students.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Communicate with staff, students, and in particular parents about our School-wide Behavior System (The Dragon 
Way), along with the curriculum Second Step.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be served by this activity        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, Counselor, and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 350        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


232/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Description We will communicate through newsletters, parent meetings, Back To School Night, 
website and flyers information about our Dragon Way Program, including WITS, Zones of 
Regulation and instruction in the areas of focus: Optimism and Growth Mindset. Cost of 
promotional materials.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Celebrations for Positive Student Behavior        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be served by this activity        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, Counselor, and classroom teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 480        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description We will reinforce positive student behavior through: 
* Spirit Days 
* Dragon Tickets and Dragon Ticket Winners 
* Classroom Awards 
* Dragon Way Awards Assemblies 
* Dragon Way Celebration Assemblies 
* Student Leadership 
 
Cost of Materials & Supplies to Implement the above. 
        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Provide training in Playworks games and strategies for all staff        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be served by this activity        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administrator, Counselor, classroom teachers, and yard duty monitors        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Source Title I        


233/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Training of all school staff by Playworks program staff        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Student Referral System to better respond to student needs (PART - Participation and Attendance Review Team). This 
team will meet bimonthly to identify students at risked based on attendance and engagement measures.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
August 2020-June 2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, School Counselor, and PART (Participation and Attendance Review Team)        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0.00        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Provide parents training in technology (Seesaw, Google Classroom, email, and asynchronous apps (Lexia, Zearn, 
iStation, etc.) to better support their children both in Distance Learning and in-person learning.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be served by this activity        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing during the academic year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal and RtI (Response to Intervention) Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Provide funding for trainers and materials purchase and preparation.        


 


234/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application   


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  203,438.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


235/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


         0.00 


CARES Act         21,600.00 


District Funded         0.00 


Donations         2,500.00 


LCFF - Base         37,542.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         72,845.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         24,727.00 


Title I         44,224.00 
 


236/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


         0.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         18,555.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         97,481.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         79,402.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 2,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 6,000.00 


 


237/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


           0.00 


           0.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 CARES Act  21,600.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  0.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         District Funded  0.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 Donations  2,500.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Base  37,542.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  12,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Supplemental  52,845.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  2,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  6,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  24,727.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  6,555.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  35,839.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Title I  1,830.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  0.00 


 


238/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
2 Classroom Teachers        


2 Other School Staff        


5 Parent or Community Members        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Robert Greenlee         X Principal        


Elizabeth Becerra         X Other School Staff        


Carmen Zuniga         X Classroom Teacher        


Shanna Kiesz         X Classroom Teacher        


Jessica Serna Castenda         X Other School Staff        


Laura Jones         X Parent or Community Member        


Jessy Beckett Parr         X Parent or Community Member        


Shuntelle Emanuel         X Parent or Community Member        


Aimee Garcia         X Parent or Community Member        


Craig Hanna         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


239/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 49 DeLaveaga Elementary School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on October 23, 2020. 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Robert S. Greenlee on October 23, 2020 


  SSC Chairperson, Craig Hanna on October 23, 2020 


 


240/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 55 Gault Elementary School


 
School Year:    2020-21   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Gault Elementary School         


Address 1320 Seabright Ave.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95062-2525 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698156049894         


Principal Amariah Hernandez         


District Name Gault Elementary School         


SPSA Revision Date September 1, 2020         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date September 1, 2020         


Local Board Approval Date November 4, 2020         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


241/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Table of Contents 
 


SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 


Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 


School Vision and Mission ................................................................................................................................3 


School Profile ....................................................................................................................................................3 


Stakeholder Involvement ..................................................................................................................................4 


School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................5 


Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................5 


CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................7 


ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................11 


Student Population ..................................................................................................................................14 


Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................15 


Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................16 


Academic Engagement ...........................................................................................................................21 


Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................23 


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................25 


Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................25 


Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................34 


Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................39 


Goal 4 ......................................................................................................................................................45 


Budget Summary and Consolidation ..............................................................................................................50 


Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................50 


Allocations by Funding Source ................................................................................................................50 


Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................51 


Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................52 


Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................53 


School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................54 


Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................55 


 


242/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 55 Gault Elementary School


School Vision and Mission 
 
MISSION STATEMENT: 
We are a collaborative, creative community of professional educators committed to academic excellence in all areas. We 
build a strong foundation in literacy and mathematics for all children through a meaningful curriculum, focusing on the 
visual performing arts and sciences. We create a challenging and engaging environment that honors diversity, 
encourages community building, and inspires each student to do their personal best. We use effective educational 
practices based on the state standards, creative expression through the arts and social understanding. 
 
 
 
OUR VISION 
Gault is a safe and nurturing community that academically challenges students to become inspired life long learners and 
creative problem solvers. 
DISTRICT GOALS 
Listed below are the district goals that are supported by our school goals: 
 
All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities. 
SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the social 
emotional well-being of all students. 
We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS student 
community. 
We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching. 
SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 
Gault Elementary is a K-5 neighborhood school of about 340 students.  Gault School was constructed in 1928 and 
covers one city block on the eastside of the coastal city of Santa Cruz.  We serve students from our local neighborhood 
as well as those that reside in Beach Flats and Lower Ocean St. 
 
The Gault School programs emerge from a commitment to educating the whole child. All students receive instruction in 
art by a credentialed art teacher and students in 3rd-5th grades receive music lessons during the school week. We 
partner with EL Sistema music program to offer free after school music lessons to all students grades k-5. Gault students 
participate in our nutrition program, as well as hands on science in the life lab garden, which includes an outdoor kitchen.  
Over 90 students daily participate in our ASES afterschool program until 6:00 every evening.  During the ASES program 
our students receive homework support, academic help, physical activity and enrichment classes. Additionally students 
are a served snack and a supper meal. 
We have a library/media center staffed with a full time credentialed library teacher and a 4-hour library assistant. 
 
Our Special Education staff includes 2 Resource Specialists, 1 Speech/Language Therapists, two part time instructional 
aides, and services of Adaptive PE, OT, providing services to approximately 40 students.  Student Study Team meetings 
are held monthly during the school day with English and Spanish speaking teams of regular education and special 
education teachers.  We meet monthly for TIER 1 and Tier 2 meetings that address social emotional and academic 
concerns of students. We meet with grade levels and our Student Learning Team three times a year to discuss progress 
of all students, focusing on students approaching benchmark and those that are far behind.Additionally we hold 
language review team meetings 3x a year to monitor the growth of our English Language learner students. 
 
We offer many intervention services before, during, and after school as part of our instructional program.  We have an 
RTI model that includes interventions during the instructional and after school day. Through categorical funds we provide 
reading support services with additional staff including 7 classroom tutors, direct services from an intervention 
coordinator/teacher, Mathematics  tutorial, English Language Development, ASES, one before school tutorial and 
several Supplemental Education Service (SES) classes in reading and mathematics. 
All grade levels K-5 provide leveled instruction of English Language Development (30 minutes for grades K-3 and 45 
minutes grades 4-5) to English Learners through grade level teams. 
 


243/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Our continuing Life Lab program, including garden and kitchen, is enhanced by the collaboration with the Nutrition 
Network Grant Coordinator. We partner with several community partners including the Santa Cruz Warriors, Second 
Harvest food bank, Dientes, Food What!, NOAA foundation, Ecology Action and other local businesses to enrich our 
students lives. 
 
         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Our School site council meets quaterly to give imput to the single plan. Our GPTO and ELAC also has opportunities 
monthly to communicate information to admin and staff to better inform our site plan.         


 


244/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 55 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


American Indian     % % 0%          0 


African American     2.13% 1.17% 0.6% 8        4 2 


Asian     % % 0%          0 


Filipino     0.27% % 0% 1         0 


Hispanic/Latino     63.47% 64.04% 67.86% 238        219 228 


Pacific Islander     % % 0.6%          2 


White     30.13% 30.99% 28.27% 113        106 95 


Multiple/No Response     % 0.29% 2.68%         1 0 


 Total Enrollment 375 342 336 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


17-18 18-19 19-20 


Kindergarten        73 55 78 


Grade 1        46 66 38 


Grade 2        75 40 64 


Grade3        57 73 40 


Grade 4        61 45 66 


Grade 5        63 63 50 


Total Enrollment        375 342 336 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gault Elementary has seen a continuous decline in enrollment over the past 4 years. We attribute this decline to the 


rising housing costs in our neighborhood and surrounding areas.        
 


245/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 55 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


English Learners        176 156 156 46.9% 45.6% 46.4% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        23 28 27 6.1% 8.2% 8.0% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        16 19 7 8.6% 10.8% 4.5% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gault has a significant number of second language learners many of whom reside in the Beach Flats and lower 


Ocean neighborhoods.        
2. In the 2018-19 school year Gault had 10 newcomers mostly from EL Salvador.        


 


246/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 55 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 63 52 69 61 52 69 61 52 69 96.8 100 100 


Grade 4 72 62 50 70 57 48 70 57 48 97.2 91.9 96 


Grade 5 63 61 62 62 61 61 62 61 61 98.4 100 98.4 
All 
Grades 


198 175 181 193 170 178 193 170 178 97.5 97.1 98.3 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2383.
3 


2375.
3 


2397.
4 


19.67 7.69 14.49 11.48 15.38 23.19 21.31 30.77 23.19 47.54 46.15 39.13 


Grade 4 2396.
7 


2413.
2 


2433.
1 


8.57 17.54 16.67 12.86 10.53 14.58 10.00 19.30 27.08 68.57 52.63 41.67 


Grade 5 2467.
4 


2424.
9 


2459.
0 


14.52 8.20 18.03 20.97 16.39 11.48 29.03 13.11 19.67 35.48 62.30 50.82 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 13.99 11.18 16.29 15.03 14.12 16.85 19.69 20.59 23.03 51.30 54.12 43.82 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 11.48 7.69 13.04 27.87 46.15 44.93 60.66 46.15 42.03 


Grade 4 14.29 15.79 18.75 31.43 38.60 39.58 54.29 45.61 41.67 


Grade 5 11.29 13.11 18.03 50.00 21.31 36.07 38.71 65.57 45.90 


All Grades 12.44 12.35 16.29 36.27 34.71 40.45 51.30 52.94 43.26 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 16.39 9.62 15.94 44.26 40.38 52.17 39.34 50.00 31.88 


Grade 4 4.29 16.07 16.67 40.00 35.71 45.83 55.71 48.21 37.50 


Grade 5 24.19 8.20 22.95 37.10 34.43 44.26 38.71 57.38 32.79 


All Grades 14.51 11.24 18.54 40.41 36.69 47.75 45.08 52.07 33.71 
 


247/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 13.11 9.62 10.14 49.18 65.38 78.26 37.70 25.00 11.59 


Grade 4 8.57 8.77 12.50 45.71 57.89 62.50 45.71 33.33 25.00 


Grade 5 8.06 11.48 16.39 59.68 36.07 49.18 32.26 52.46 34.43 


All Grades 9.84 10.00 12.92 51.30 52.35 64.04 38.86 37.65 23.03 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 13.11 11.54 11.59 49.18 42.31 52.17 37.70 46.15 36.23 


Grade 4 8.57 14.04 16.67 48.57 40.35 50.00 42.86 45.61 33.33 


Grade 5 17.74 11.48 13.11 41.94 32.79 32.79 40.32 55.74 54.10 


All Grades 12.95 12.35 13.48 46.63 38.24 44.94 40.41 49.41 41.57 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. We did meet our site goal around CAASP ELA data as we saw significant growth.        


 


248/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 55 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 63 52 69 61 52 69 61 52 69 96.8 100 100 


Grade 4 72 62 50 70 60 48 70 60 48 97.2 96.8 96 


Grade 5 63 61 62 62 61 60 62 61 60 98.4 100 96.8 
All 
Grades 


198 175 181 193 173 177 193 173 177 97.5 98.9 97.8 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2398.
6 


2382.
5 


2415.
7 


14.75 7.69 17.39 22.95 13.46 24.64 18.03 28.85 20.29 44.26 50.00 37.68 


Grade 4 2412.
7 


2429.
2 


2417.
7 


2.86 13.33 10.42 15.71 8.33 12.50 25.71 31.67 29.17 55.71 46.67 47.92 


Grade 5 2447.
5 


2434.
1 


2465.
1 


1.61 8.20 15.00 16.13 3.28 6.67 32.26 24.59 25.00 50.00 63.93 53.33 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 6.22 9.83 14.69 18.13 8.09 15.25 25.39 28.32 24.29 50.26 53.76 45.76 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 21.31 15.38 24.64 29.51 21.15 31.88 49.18 63.46 43.48 


Grade 4 7.14 20.00 10.42 25.71 21.67 25.00 67.14 58.33 64.58 


Grade 5 6.45 9.84 16.67 35.48 9.84 21.67 58.06 80.33 61.67 


All Grades 11.40 15.03 18.08 30.05 17.34 26.55 58.55 67.63 55.37 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 19.67 11.54 24.64 36.07 42.31 43.48 44.26 46.15 31.88 


Grade 4 5.71 18.33 8.33 41.43 31.67 43.75 52.86 50.00 47.92 


Grade 5 3.23 8.20 23.33 48.39 36.07 36.67 48.39 55.74 40.00 


All Grades 9.33 12.72 19.77 41.97 36.42 41.24 48.70 50.87 38.98 
 


249/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 26.23 9.62 23.19 34.43 51.92 49.28 39.34 38.46 27.54 


Grade 4 8.57 15.00 8.33 30.00 26.67 37.50 61.43 58.33 54.17 


Grade 5 1.61 8.20 11.67 43.55 36.07 35.00 54.84 55.74 53.33 


All Grades 11.92 10.98 15.25 35.75 37.57 41.24 52.33 51.45 43.50 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall we saw a decline students near or meeting standards in all math areas.        


 


250/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 55 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade K        1417.2 1419.9 1433.3 1439.8 1379.4 1373.0 45 24 


Grade 1        1469.5 1456.7 1480.0 1478.7 1458.6 1434.2 22 39 


Grade 2        1486.4 1467.5 1501.6 1481.7 1470.9 1452.9 35 17 


Grade 3        1483.7 1502.8 1481.4 1517.0 1485.4 1488.1 23 29 


Grade 4        1505.4 1503.1 1501.1 1509.9 1509.3 1495.8 20 24 


Grade 5        1544.8 1557.7 1547.3 1568.0 1541.9 1546.9 25 21 


All Grades              170 154 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    26.67 16.67 33.33 29.17 * 33.33 24.44 20.83 45 24 


   1    50.00 10.26 * 43.59 * 25.64 * 20.51 22 39 


   2    45.71 17.65 37.14 47.06 * 23.53  11.76 35 17 


   3     17.24 * 44.83 * 37.93 * 0.00 23 29 


   4    * 29.17 * 41.67 * 20.83 * 8.33 20 24 


   5    68.00 47.62 * 28.57 * 23.81  0.00 25 21 


All Grades        35.29 21.43 34.12 39.61 18.82 27.92 11.76 11.04 170 154 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    40.00 20.83 24.44 33.33 * 33.33 * 12.50 45 24 


   1    68.18 33.33 * 35.90 * 23.08 * 7.69 22 39 


   2    68.57 41.18 * 35.29 * 11.76  11.76 35 17 


   3    * 44.83 47.83 44.83 * 10.34 * 0.00 23 29 


   4    * 50.00 * 41.67 * 0.00 * 8.33 20 24 


   5    80.00 61.90 * 33.33 * 4.76  0.00 25 21 


All Grades        53.53 40.91 28.24 37.66 8.82 14.94 9.41 6.49 170 154 
 


251/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 0.00 * 25.00 33.33 50.00 31.11 25.00 45 24 


   1    * 7.69 * 17.95 * 38.46 * 35.90 22 39 


   2    * 0.00 37.14 47.06 * 29.41 * 23.53 35 17 


   3     0.00 * 27.59 * 51.72 * 20.69 23 29 


   4    * 16.67 * 16.67 * 41.67 * 25.00 20 24 


   5    * 9.52 48.00 47.62 * 33.33 * 9.52 25 21 


All Grades        18.24 5.84 30.00 27.92 25.88 41.56 25.88 24.68 170 154 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    53.33 16.67 26.67 62.50 * 20.83 45 24 


   1    68.18 51.28 * 46.15 * 2.56 22 39 


   2    60.00 41.18 40.00 52.94  5.88 35 17 


   3    * 17.24 65.22 72.41 * 10.34 23 29 


   4    * 37.50 60.00 54.17 * 8.33 20 24 


   5    56.00 14.29 * 80.95 * 4.76 25 21 


All Grades        50.00 31.17 40.00 60.39 10.00 8.44 170 154 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    35.56 33.33 42.22 37.50 * 29.17 45 24 


   1    72.73 23.08 * 64.10 * 12.82 22 39 


   2    80.00 58.82 * 23.53 * 17.65 35 17 


   3    47.83 82.76 * 17.24 * 0.00 23 29 


   4    60.00 70.83 * 20.83 * 8.33 20 24 


   5    88.00 100.00 * 0.00  0.00 25 21 


All Grades        61.76 57.79 27.06 31.17 11.18 11.04 170 154 
 


252/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * 0.00 60.00 83.33 26.67 16.67 45 24 


   1    * 10.26 * 48.72 * 41.03 22 39 


   2    31.43 0.00 34.29 64.71 34.29 35.29 35 17 


   3     0.00 * 51.72 56.52 48.28 23 29 


   4    * 16.67 60.00 45.83 * 37.50 20 24 


   5    * 14.29 52.00 76.19 * 9.52 25 21 


All Grades        21.18 7.14 47.06 59.74 31.76 33.12 170 154 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    24.44 25.00 44.44 37.50 31.11 37.50 45 24 


   1    * 5.13 54.55 61.54 * 33.33 22 39 


   2    * 0.00 71.43 94.12 * 5.88 35 17 


   3    * 20.69 56.52 68.97 * 10.34 23 29 


   4    * 12.50 * 66.67 * 20.83 20 24 


   5    52.00 19.05 * 76.19 * 4.76 25 21 


All Grades        29.41 13.64 52.94 65.58 17.65 20.78 170 154 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gault has a significant number of ELL students  154 (k-5) that must participate in the ELPAC exam each Winter.        


2. Our current data illustrates approximately 30% of students maintained their identified English proficiency level, 30% 
grew a English language level or more and 30% dropped a level.        


3. Of the 30% who dropped we observed large group of 3rd graders were a part of that group, we attribute this to an 
exam change of moving from a k-2 exam to 3-5 exam and a lack of consistent instruction in grammar, which we are 
now addressing in our new ELA/ELD adoption.        


 
 


253/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 55 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2018-19 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


342        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


69.6        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


45.6        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


0.9        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2018-19 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        156 45.6 


Foster Youth        3 0.9 


Homeless        3 0.9 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        238 69.6 


Students with Disabilities        64 18.7 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        4 1.2 


Hispanic        219 64.0 


Two or More Races        12 3.5 


White        106 31.0 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gault has a significant title 1 population over 70%. There are a vast number of needs for students living in poverty, 


Gault is truly a wrap around service school, providing breakfast, lunch and dinner, counseling services, after school 
programs.        


2. Gault has a significant population of ELL students 46.9 % which illustrates our need for a consistent viable ELD 
program and daily instruction and ongoing translation.        


 
 


254/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 55 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Yellow        


 
Mathematics 


 
Yellow        


Academic Engagement 


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Orange        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Orange        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our English Learner progress and Suspension Rate indicators are both areas of strength at Gault.        


2. Four of our five student groups are in the orange category and performing below grade level in ELA and math.        


 
 


255/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 55 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


3        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


0        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Yellow         


41.2 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++24.1 points         
173        


English Learners 


 
Orange         


83.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++18.3 points         
87        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


67.4 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++29.9 points         
121        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


90.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++26.1 points         
42        


 


256/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 55 Gault Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


74.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++20.1 points         
112        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
Blue         


26.2 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++35.2 points         
55        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


94.9 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++22.9 points         
69        


Reclassified English Learners 


37.7 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++30.3 points         
18        


English Only 


2.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++24.7 points         
82        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. English learners, Socioeconomically disadvantaged, Students with disabilities, and Hispanic students are very low 


on ELA as measured by CAASPP.        
2. Performance of English only students and RFEP students declined significantly.        


 
 


257/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 55 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


4        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Yellow         


49.5 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++19.3 points         
172        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


80.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++22.3 points         
87        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


70.4 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++27.5 points         
121        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


90.7 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++31.4 points         
41        


 


258/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 55 Gault Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


73.6 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++25.1 points         
112        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Green         


2.7 points above standard         


Increased ++12.6 points         


54        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


94.9 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++17.2 points         
69        


Reclassified English Learners 


26.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++57.9 points         
18        


English Only 


18.1 points below standard         


Increased ++14.5 points         


81        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All subgroups experienced a decline in mathematics on CAASPP.        


 
 


259/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 55 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


55.1 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 127          


Performance Level: High        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


14.9         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


29.9         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


7.8         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


47.2         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Progress in acquiring English improved significantly for English Learners.        


2. English learners are very low in their English Language Arts CAASPP assessment.        


3. English learners are low in their Mathematics CAASPP assessment.        


 
 


260/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 55 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
3        


Orange        
2        


Yellow        
0        


Green        
0        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


18.6         


Increased +2         


355        


English Learners 


 
Orange         


16         


Increased +2.8         


163        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Red         


21.3         


Increased Significantly +4.1         


249        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Red         


21.7         


Increased +6         


83        


 


261/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 55 Gault Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Hispanic 


 
Red         


18.9         


Increased Significantly +3.5         


227        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


15.4         


Declined -3.4         


13        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


White     


 
Orange         


17.1         


Increased +0.6         


111        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 


 


 
 


262/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 55 Gault Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


2        
Orange        


2        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


2.8         


Increased +1.5         
358        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


0.6         


Increased +0.6         
164        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Red         


3.2         


Increased Significantly +2.2         
250        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Red         


7.1         


Increased +2.4         
84        


 


263/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 55 Gault Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          4        


American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


3.1         


Increased +1.9         
229        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
13        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Orange         


2.7         


Increased +1.9         
112        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
1.2         


2019     
2.8         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Students with disabilities and White students are suspended at a higher rate than the other groups.        


2. English Learners and Socioeconomically students have a low suspension rate are therefore in the "blue" category.        


 
 


264/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS          


 
Goal Statement 
SCHOOLWIDE ACADEMIC GOAL 
100% students will make progress on the Pioneer Literacy assessment. Student progress will be made thru guided 
reading groups, eduprotocals, tier 2 interventions, tutoring and small cohort learning for those who qualify 
 
 
 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Pioneer literacy assessment- Local ELA assessment for 2020          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: All Students        


 41.2 points below standard  "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 83.1 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Students with Disabilities        


 90.8 points below standard  Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: 
Hispanic 
        


 74.8 points below standard  Hispanic students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
        


 67.4 points below standard  Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2020 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: White        


 26.2 points above standard  White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


265/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 55 Gault Elementary School


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Student Learning Teams will collaborate, give input and implement both formative and summative ELA assessments to 
have on going reading assessments to identify students who are in need of additional support. 
Release time or supplemental pay for members of the Tier 1, SST & Cost  teams focusing on second and third tier 
students. 
Teachers will be supporting other teachers with strategies and interventions to support students learning. Substitutes 
and release time. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity with an emphasis on Title 1 students and ELL        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing for 2020-21 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
RTI Coordinator, Tier 1 /Tier 2 meetings        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description certificated substitutes and certificated extra hourly        


Amount 1,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Classified extra hourly        


Amount 1000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Organizational materials related to data teams        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Professional Learning communities will collaborate at grade level meetings to discuss progress of all students focusing 
on target students.  Teachers learn best practices for all students. Peer observations to support highly qualified 
teachers in developing best practices to support struggling students or curriculum area focus. 2 times in the year        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


266/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 55 Gault Elementary School


All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity with an emphasis on Title 1 students and ELL        
 
Timeline 
209-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, SCIL        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 12,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description SCIL Stipends        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Continue implementation and support of GLAD. Highly qualified teachers will attend the GLAD training. Teachers will 
modify and differentiate instruction using research-based strategies to best meet the individual needs of the students. 
Release time for planning. Consultation with GLAD trainers to coach teachers. Purchase GLAD materials for targeted 
grade levels.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity with an emphasis on Title 1 students and ELL        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing 2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, Certificated teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4000        


Source Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description HQT will attend GLAD training        


Amount 2000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Substitutes for certificated teachers        


Amount 2500        


Source Title I        


267/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Supplies and materials for GLAD curriculum, includes, poster paper, marker sets, 
lamination, INK for printing, color copies etc.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Hourly Guided reading coach for certificated teachers in grades Tk-3        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity with an emphasis on Title 1 students and ELL        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing year of 2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, PBIS Team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description TK-3rd grade teachers will be coached by a HQT in Guided Reading strategies and 
balanced literacy program strategies        


Strategy/Activity 5 
RtI 
Differentiated Support - instructional aides and instructional techs will support classroom instruction and new ELD 
program implementation. Additional computers, software, books, and materials will be purchased to support classroom 
differentiation. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity with an emphasis on Title 1 students and ELL in small 
groups        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing 2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
RTI, Admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 116,864        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description RTI coordinator funded through central funds        


268/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Amount 23,826        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description RTI Instructional Techs to support small group interventions and tier 2 interventions 
funded through central funds        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Professional development for ASES staff and additional hourly to support students in afterschool setting and provide 
interventions. 
Materials and supplies for ASES to support student learning, including books, music, activities. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
TItle 1 students        


 
Timeline 
2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, ASES coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 35,000        


Source After School and Education Safety (ASES)        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Enrichment provider for ASES program        


Amount 2,000        


Source After School and Education Safety (ASES)        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Materials for ASES        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Library to support academic literacy with use of digital literacy programs, books, multiples collection and supplies for 
nonfiction text to support integrated ELD and academic literacy        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, Librarian        


269/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 55 Gault Elementary School


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1500        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Funds to purchase digital literacy resources        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Purchase Books for the library and multiples collection to support ELA nonfiction text to support integrated ELD and 
academic literacy        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, RTI, Librarian        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase Books for the library and multiples collection to support ELA, nonfiction and 
fiction        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Purchase technology supplies        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, Librarian        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 7000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


270/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Description Purchase MACbooks or equivalent to support digital literacy in the classroom and access 
to online ELA resources        


Strategy/Activity 10 
Learning goals  in all classrooms for content lesson.  Teachers will post them on the board and students should be able 
to explain the learning goal.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
August-June        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
SCIL Team, Principal, All staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 11 
Supplies for parent education meetings such as cafecitos, presentations, family engagement        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
RTI Coordinator, Principal, librarian, counselor        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1500        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase materials, communication supplies and food for parent engagement events        


Strategy/Activity 12 
School Visitations and PD trainings for staff        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 


271/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 55 Gault Elementary School


RTI, Principal, Counselor        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Admin, teachers will visit other school sites to observe practices, programs and strategies        


Strategy/Activity 13 
Materials such as classroom supplies i.e Easels, notepads, markers and additional supplies and books for meeting the 
varied needs in classrooms.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
August-June        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, ASES Coord, RTI        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase needed materials for TIER1 and TIER 2 programs and strategies        


Strategy/Activity 14 
Instructional aides/IT  will be hired to conduct small group interventions        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, RTI        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 25,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


272/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Description Instructional aides/IT  will be hired to conduct small group interventions        


Strategy/Activity 15 
Purchase 15-16 new MACbook airs to support data talks, and universal screener implementation        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
July- June        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 17,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase MACbooks to support the implementation of digital path of ELA program, 
instruction in classroom etc        


 


273/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
ENGLISH LANGUAGE DEVELOPMENT ELD          


 
Goal Statement 
 
For the 2020 School all ELL students will make progress on Pioneer ELA assessments. 
 
 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Pioneer ELA assessment          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 83.1 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 80.8 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
Math CAASPP. 


Suspension Rate: The percentage of 
All students being suspended during 
the school year.        


 Yellow Indicator - 0.6% suspended at 
least once 


 We will maintain at 0.6% to 0% of our 
English Learners being suspended. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Language Review Team- Student learning teams will review student data to inform instruction and instructional 
practices for ELD, monitor student progress towards reclassification 
 
District policy requires a minimum of 30 minutes daily of ELD instruction for Kindergarten and 45 minutes 1st-5th 
grades. Teachers will augment classroom based ELD to meet the required minutes by using district adopted curriculum 
        


 


274/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Grade level teams        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description release time for ELD planning and Language Review teams        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Teachers will be trained on a new program or strategies GLAD, SVMI Number talks to better meet the needs of English 
Learners along with collaboration time to develop the program, as well as trainings in Science to support English 
Learners assessing all curricular areas. 
 
Teachers will be trained to analyze ELPAC data and determine best strategies for taking the ELPAC and teachers will 
understand ELPAC data to better inform their instruction, 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
ADmin, RTI, certificated teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description release time for teachers, training opportunities for teachers        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Continue implementation and support of GLAD. Highly qualified teachers will attend the GLAD training. Teachers will 
modify and differentiate instruction using research-based strategies to best meet the individual needs of the students. 
Release time for planning. Consultation with GLAD trainers to coach teachers. Purchase GLAD materials for targeted 
grade levels. Purchase of materials for newcomer students        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


275/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 55 Gault Elementary School


All students with emphasis on title 1 and ELL students        
 
Timeline 
2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Newcomer students receive additional small group instruction during school day to practice English 
Curriculum needed for interventions 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 , ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal/Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 56,153        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .5 FTE Newcomer Teacher        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Principal/, Community coordinator will present information to parents in ELAC about ELD program, assessments, and 
student results. Handouts will be sent home.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
TITLE 1 , ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal/Comm. Coord.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 150        


276/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Materials, color copies for ELAC presentations        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Training in reclassification requirements will be provided to parents via ELAC meetings.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, community coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Community coordinator extra hourly for translation and additional parent meetings        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Outreach will be provided to increase involvement of parents of English Learners in all school wide events such as 
Cafecitos, Family Fridays, ELAC/GPTA, conferences, childcare and van expenses for transportation to parent events. 
Food, materials, computers for communication will be provided.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal/CoSchool Coord.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5900: Communications        


Description Outreach will be provided to increase involvement of parents of English Learners in all 
school wide events such as Cafecitos, Family Fridays, ELAC/GPTA, conferences, 
childcare and van expenses for transportation to parent events.        


277/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Strategy/Activity 8 
Survey school site regarding feedback for ELL and Title 1 supports, Bond Measures and input for LCAPP spending        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal/Comm Coord.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 42,594        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Community Coordinator Salary        


 


278/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
MATHEMATICS          


 
Goal Statement 
 
For the 2020-21 school 100% of Gault students will participate in Zearn weekly for independent math instruction and 
practice. 
 
 
 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
2020 Zearn program          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: All 
Students        


 49.5 points below standard  "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2019 Math 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 80.8 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Students with Disabilities        


 90.7 points below standard  Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        


 70.4 points below standard  Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Hispanic        


 73.6 points below standard  Hispanic will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: White         2.7 points above standard  White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019 
Math CAASPP. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 


279/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 55 Gault Elementary School


   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Student Learning Teams will collaborate, give input on Zearn instructional reports to have ongoing math talks to identify 
students who are in need of additional support. 
supplemental pay for members of the Tier 1, SST & Cost  teams focusing on second and third tier students. 
Teachers will be supporting other teachers with strategies and interventions to support students learning. Substitutes 
and release time. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with emphasis on TItle 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers , principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Substitute teachers        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Teachers will collaboratively use and adapt formative assessments from Eureka math to help drive the instruction for all 
students        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2019-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Grade Level Team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 3 
To retain and attract HQT teachers provide opportunities to observe Cognitively Guided Lessons Eureka math and 
Other math trainings, including continued participation for grades 2-3 in the county NIC grant cohort        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with emphasis on Title 1 and ELL students        


 


280/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2000        


Source Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Admin, staff will attend PD opportunities        


Strategy/Activity 4 
To retain and attract HQT Admin may research and pursue professional development trainings in Math, Science, 
Reading, Writing, ELD and common core standards.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with emphasis on Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2000        


Source Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Admin and Staff will pursue professional development trainings in Math, Science, 
Reading, Writing, ELD and common core standards.  When needed and appropriate, 
housing and meals will be covered for staff, including classified and management.        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Teachers will have the opportunity to observe math lessons and be able to discuss best practices with colleagues and 
examine vertical alignment with supplemental materials such as equations, math games, Khan Academy, Eureka math, 
ZEARN        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with emphasis on title 1 and ELL        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 


281/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Teachers, RTI, Admin        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Release time for staff to participate in peer observations and create materials        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Students in the ASES afterschool program will use technology, chromebooks to access ZEARN, KHAN ACADEMY and 
more        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
TITLE 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, ASES staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 7 
Teachers will utilize GLAD strategies in developing Math.  Materials may be needed, release time for making materials        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Al students with emphasis on Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, Admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Subs for release time.        


Strategy/Activity 8 
RTI coordinator will focus on TIER 2 math groups for grades 2nd and 3rd grade        


 


282/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 9 
Use technology and other means to enhance Math lessons for students with current/updated hardware, software and 
tech support. New technology may need to be bought to allow students access to the math curriculum in the library and 
in the classrooms. This includes computers as a teaching tool for all classrooms.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with emphasis on Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, Teachers, RTI        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 15,000        


Source Other        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Technology purchases multi-funded using CS for All grant money and district LCFF base 
dollars.        


Strategy/Activity 10 
Provide parent education trainings in Math during parent meetings in Spanish and English specifically targeting ELL  
and title 1 parents 
 
Provide parent education and enrichment around Common Core Math, such as family math night and new standards 
education 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Staff        


283/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 55 Gault Elementary School


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Paid hourly for staff to host family math night and festivals        


 


284/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 4 
 
Subject 
Culture and Climate          


 
Goal Statement 
Every student will feel a strong sense of well-being and connectedness as a result of learning in school environments 
where conditions enable every student to achieve to the best of their ability and be successful in all aspects of learning 
and life. 
 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Illuminate engagement records          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 18.6% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent "All Students" by 
.5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
White Student absent more than 10% 
of the school year        


 17.1% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent White students by 
.5%or more 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Students with Disabilities absent 
more than 10% of the school year        


 21.7% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Students with 
Disabilities by .5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 21.3% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students by .5% or 
more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
English Learners absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 16% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent English Learners 
by .5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Hispanic students absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 18.9% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Hispanic students 
by .5% or more. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
students of Two or More Races 


 15.4% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent students of Two or 
More Races by .5% or more. 


285/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


absent more than 10% of the school 
year        


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
 
 
Access to technology with which to connect with school staff and peers on a regular basis 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with emphasis on title 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, community coordinator, staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Continued implementation and professional development regarding PBIS for all staff to encourage motivation for 
student attendance        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with emphasis on title 1 and ELL        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, Counselor, PBIS team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Release or hourly for PBIS team        


Amount 1000        


286/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Materials, prizes for PBIS program        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Access to a balance of social/emotional and academic learning to develop executive functioning skills        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
When need arises        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Counselor, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Access to counseling services 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
20-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Counselor        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 5 
Use family contracts that provide incentives for student attendance        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Counselor, Principal, staff        


 


287/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Amount 800        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Materials, resources for incentives        


Strategy/Activity 6 
We will seek opportunities for social work, counselor interns to work with families        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Counselor, principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Stipend for Intern        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Purchase materials and tools to support de-escalation of Tier 2, 3 behaviors, including materials and tool kits        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
 
Timeline 
Sept-June        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal , Counselor, PBIS        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 8 
Provide teachers training and resources for supporting students with trauma informed services 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Title 1 and ELL students        


288/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 55 Gault Elementary School


 
Timeline 
20-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal,        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source LCFF        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Enrichment provider for music in ASES        


Strategy/Activity 9 
COntinue school wide celebrations and assemblies for climate and community building        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
TItle 1 and ELL students        


 
Timeline 
20-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal, teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Buses, costs for field trips, assemblies, classroom presentations        


Amount 1000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Fund school wide activities/assemblies        


 


289/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application   


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  427,387.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


290/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 55 Gault Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


After School and Education Safety (ASES)         37,000.00 


District Funded         98,747.00 


LCFF         1,000.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         208,990.00 


Other         15,000.00 


Title I         56,650.00 


Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality         10,000.00 
 


291/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 55 Gault Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         229,017.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         93,420.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         56,950.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 39,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 7,000.00 


5900: Communications         2,000.00 
 


292/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 55 Gault Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         After School and Education Safety 
(ASES) 


 2,000.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 After School and Education Safety 
(ASES) 


 35,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  56,153.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  42,594.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF  1,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  163,864.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  24,826.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Supplemental  17,300.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  3,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Other  15,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  5,000.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  26,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Title I  22,650.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  1,000.00 


5900: Communications         Title I  2,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title II Part A: Improving Teacher 
Quality 


 4,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 Title II Part A: Improving Teacher 
Quality 


 6,000.00 


 


293/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 55 Gault Elementary School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
2 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


1 Parent or Community Members        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Amariah Hernandez         X Principal        


Ebby Della Mora         X Other School Staff        


Lacie Wheeler         X Classroom Teacher        


Raven Graham         X Parent or Community Member        


Meghan Caspers         X Classroom Teacher        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


294/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 55 Gault Elementary School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 


 X State Compensatory Education Advisory Committee        


 X English Learner Advisory Committee        
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on May 25, 2013. 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Amariah Hernandez on  


  SSC Chairperson, Lacie Wheeler on  


 


295/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 55 Harbor High School


 
School Year:    2020-21   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Harbor High School         


Address 300 La Fonda Ave.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95062-1431 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698234432340         


Principal Tracey Runeare         


District Name Harbor High School         


SPSA Revision Date October 20, 2020         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date October 20, 2020         


Local Board Approval Date November 4, 2020         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


296/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 55 Harbor High School


Table of Contents 
 


SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 


Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 


School Vision and Mission ................................................................................................................................3 


School Profile ....................................................................................................................................................3 


Stakeholder Involvement ..................................................................................................................................3 


School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................5 


Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................5 


CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................7 


ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................11 


Student Population ..................................................................................................................................14 


Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................15 


Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................16 


Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................25 


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................27 


Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................27 


Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................35 


Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................43 


Goal 4 ......................................................................................................................................................49 


Budget Summary and Consolidation ..............................................................................................................50 


Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................50 


Allocations by Funding Source ................................................................................................................50 


Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................51 


Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................52 


Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................53 


School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................54 


Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................55 


 


297/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 55 Harbor High School


School Vision and Mission 
 
Mission: 
Educating all students to become critical thinkers and globally-minded community members. 
 
Vision: 
Where adults and students are respectful and own their learning. Harbor High graduates are college and career ready 
and equipped with the skills needed to become the best version of themselves. 
 
Staff Values: 
We believe in our school. 
We know all students can learn. 
We respect and believe in students. 
We use data and research to design and improve curriculum. 
We have clear and consistent student expectations. 
We are kind, caring, and accessible. 
We have high expectations and clearly-communicate success criteria. 
We collaborate for students. 
We are flexible and adaptable. 
We make student-centered decisions. 
We grow professionally to meet student needs. 
We listen and engage with each other professionally, respectfully and openly. 
We are responsive and supportive. 
We value and communicate with our stakeholders. 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 
Harbor High School opened its doors in 1968 and just celebrated its 50th anniversary in September 2018. Harbor is 
located on the central coast of California in the City and County of Santa Cruz. The Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education serves ten county school districts including Santa Cruz City Schools (SCCS). Harbor, home of the Pirates, is 
one of three comprehensive high schools, 2 middle schools and 5 elementary schools in SCCS. Harbor High has a 
current enrollment of 847 students for grades 9-12, and the school offers students a multitude of learning and 
extracurricular opportunities to facilitate the growth and development of each student who walks onto our campus. 
Harbor provides a comprehensive education that includes a full athletic program, AVID program, Newcomer English 
Language Development program, SAIL special education program, and Career Technical Education (CTE) program on 
the campus. 
 
Harbor High school is a welcoming place where with a diverse student population and numerous opportunities for 
students to learn and grow. 54% of our students qualify for Free or Reduced Lunch benefits and many of our students 
come from under-resourced families. In 2017-18 we had 133 (16%) English Learners and 5 (4%) of our students  
Redesignated Fully English Proficient. In response to an increasing newcomer ELD population (30 new-to-the-US 
students enrolling at Harbor since August 2015), in 2012-2013 Harbor developed a program for non-English-speaking 
students. Over the past few years, Harbor has engaged in professional development activities focused on collaboration 
and the consistency of instruction and services that students receive. This includes weekly collaboration in departments 
and Professional Learning Communities, Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership (SCIL) meetings, and professional 
development trainings in Staff Meetings. As a way to build student-ness, we added the Organized Binder system for 
freshmen and sophomores to build a foundational approach to organization. In 2013 Harbor High was named the School 
of the Year by the Santa Cruz Educational Foundation. In 2014-15 Harbor was selected as a Gold Ribbon School Award 
School and a Title 1 Academic Achievement Award School for our work increasing our academic culture and student 
ownership of learning through our adoption of the Organized Binder System and our AVID program. In 2016 Harbor High 
was chosen by Educational Results Partnership (ERP) and the Campaign for Business and Education Excellence 
(CBEE) as a California Honor Roll recipient for being a school that demonstrates high levels of student academic 
achievement, improvement in achievement over time, and reduction in achievement gaps. 
         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 


298/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 55 Harbor High School


How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Harbor’s Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is an annual plan of actions to raise the academic performance of 
all students with an emphasis on our areas of growth as indicated in our WASC recommendations and student 
performance data. Harbor’s School Site Council (SSC) operates as oversight for the SPSA and monitors progress 
towards the action plan annually to revise or refine the following academic year’s SPSA. The SSC format is transparent 
and aligned with the SCCS LCAP goals to support our English Learners, Foster Youth, and Low Income students.         


 


299/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 55 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


American Indian     0.43% 0.24% 0.21% 4        2 2 


African American     1.08% 0.59% 0.96% 10        5 9 


Asian     2.48% 1.54% 2.14% 23        13 20 


Filipino     1.30% 0.71% 0.43% 12        6 4 


Hispanic/Latino     55.08% 56.53% 54.33% 510        476 508 


Pacific Islander     0.22% % 0.11% 2         1 


White     35.96% 35.63% 36.36% 333        300 340 


Multiple/No Response     % 0.71% 5.45%         6 0 


 Total Enrollment 926 842 935 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


17-18 18-19 19-20 


Grade 9        264 217 285 


Grade 10        230 254 224 


Grade 11        202 192 236 


Grade 12        230 179 190 


Total Enrollment        926 842 935 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Harbor's largest demographic group is Hispanic/Latino with White being the second largest demographic group.        


2. Enrollment has increased over the past 3 years (from 926 in 2017-18 to 935 in 2019-20).        


 


300/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 55 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


English Learners        128 109 124 13.8% 12.9% 13.3% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        329 316 338 35.5% 37.5% 36.1% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        5 4 4 4.1% 3.1% 3.7% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The number of students who have been identified as English Learners has remained relatively steady throughout 


the last three years.        
 


301/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 55 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 234 199 188 211 171 181 210 171 181 90.2 85.9 96.3 
All 
Grades 


234 199 188 211 171 181 210 171 181 90.2 85.9 96.3 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 2607.
3 


2602.
6 


2627.
9 


32.86 27.49 35.36 27.62 32.75 33.70 19.52 22.81 19.34 20.00 16.96 11.60 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 32.86 27.49 35.36 27.62 32.75 33.70 19.52 22.81 19.34 20.00 16.96 11.60 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 39.52 28.65 41.44 40.48 56.73 40.88 20.00 14.62 17.68 


All Grades 39.52 28.65 41.44 40.48 56.73 40.88 20.00 14.62 17.68 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 33.81 36.26 39.23 40.95 40.35 48.07 25.24 23.39 12.71 


All Grades 33.81 36.26 39.23 40.95 40.35 48.07 25.24 23.39 12.71 
 


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 34.29 23.98 30.94 48.10 61.99 59.12 17.62 14.04 9.94 


All Grades 34.29 23.98 30.94 48.10 61.99 59.12 17.62 14.04 9.94 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 41.43 42.11 44.20 38.57 40.94 45.86 20.00 16.96 9.94 


All Grades 41.43 42.11 44.20 38.57 40.94 45.86 20.00 16.96 9.94 


302/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 55 Harbor High School


 
 


Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The reading and writing scores improved greatly when comparing the 2019 scores to the 2018 scores in the ELA 


subcategory.        
2. Our participation rate for CAASPP is high at 96.3% (the state requirement is at least 95% of students participate in 


testing).        
3. Our Listening scores are high at 91% above, met, or near standard with reading as the lowest scoring sub category 


of ELA at 82% above, met, or near standard.        
 


303/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 55 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 234 199 188 217 176 185 216 176 185 92.7 88.4 98.4 
All 
Grades 


234 199 188 217 176 185 216 176 185 92.7 88.4 98.4 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 2578.
4 


2576.
3 


2588.
6 


16.67 13.64 16.76 22.22 22.73 26.49 20.37 25.57 22.16 40.74 38.07 34.59 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 16.67 13.64 16.76 22.22 22.73 26.49 20.37 25.57 22.16 40.74 38.07 34.59 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 26.39 25.14 30.27 24.07 29.14 27.57 49.54 45.71 42.16 


All Grades 26.39 25.14 30.27 24.07 29.14 27.57 49.54 45.71 42.16 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 20.37 18.29 18.92 41.20 49.71 46.49 38.43 32.00 34.59 


All Grades 20.37 18.29 18.92 41.20 49.71 46.49 38.43 32.00 34.59 
 


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 22.22 18.86 18.92 51.39 50.29 56.22 26.39 30.86 24.86 


All Grades 22.22 18.86 18.92 51.39 50.29 56.22 26.39 30.86 24.86 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 43.25% of students were at or above standard in overall CAASPP math. (2018 statewide average for Math 11th 


grade CAASPP 36.37% met or exceeded).        
2. In the subcategory of concepts and procedures, student scores increased 3.56%.        


304/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 55 Harbor High School


3. In the subcategory of communicating reason, student scores increased 5.95%.        


 


305/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 55 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 9        1530.8 1537.2 1515.4 1541.6 1545.6 1532.3 26 28 


Grade 10        1487.3 1516.2 1460.7 1511.4 1513.4 1520.3 27 30 


Grade 11        1502.0 1503.8 1483.4 1477.1 1520.2 1529.9 30 28 


Grade 12        1530.5 1559.4 1522.9 1552.0 1537.6 1566.1 31 22 


All Grades              114 108 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 21.43 * 32.14 * 25.00 * 21.43 26 28 


  10    * 26.67 * 10.00 * 33.33 48.15 30.00 27 30 


  11    * 10.71 * 17.86 * 32.14 46.67 39.29 30 28 


  12    * 13.64 * 31.82 * 31.82 * 22.73 31 22 


All Grades        23.68 18.52 25.44 22.22 14.91 30.56 35.96 28.70 114 108 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    42.31 28.57 * 35.71  17.86 * 17.86 26 28 


  10    * 33.33 * 13.33 * 16.67 44.44 36.67 27 30 


  11    * 17.86 * 21.43 * 14.29 40.00 46.43 30 28 


  12    54.84 27.27 * 31.82 * 22.73 * 18.18 31 22 


All Grades        37.72 26.85 25.44 25.00 * 17.59 32.46 30.56 114 108 
 


306/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 55 Harbor High School


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 7.14 * 21.43 * 42.86 * 28.57 26 28 


  10    * 10.00 * 13.33 * 40.00 55.56 36.67 27 30 


  11    * 0.00 * 14.29 * 53.57 56.67 32.14 30 28 


  12    * 9.09 35.48 18.18 * 50.00 38.71 22.73 31 22 


All Grades        * 6.48 26.32 16.67 17.54 46.30 47.37 30.56 114 108 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 14.29 42.31 75.00 * 10.71 26 28 


  10    * 10.00 40.74 56.67 44.44 33.33 27 30 


  11    * 0.00 40.00 53.57 43.33 46.43 30 28 


  12    * 4.55 48.39 68.18 * 27.27 31 22 


All Grades        21.05 7.41 42.98 62.96 35.96 29.63 114 108 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    65.38 57.14 * 25.00 * 17.86 26 28 


  10    44.44 46.67 * 20.00 40.74 33.33 27 30 


  11    50.00 32.14 * 32.14 36.67 35.71 30 28 


  12    67.74 68.18 * 13.64 * 18.18 31 22 


All Grades        57.02 50.00 14.04 23.15 28.95 26.85 114 108 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 17.86 46.15 46.43 42.31 35.71 26 28 


  10    * 16.67 * 50.00 59.26 33.33 27 30 


  11    * 3.57 * 46.43 66.67 50.00 30 28 


  12    * 18.18 38.71 50.00 48.39 31.82 31 22 


All Grades        11.40 13.89 34.21 48.15 54.39 37.96 114 108 
 


307/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 55 Harbor High School


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 7.14 57.69 71.43 * 21.43 26 28 


  10    * 3.33 * 60.00 * 36.67 27 30 


  11    * 10.71 40.00 60.71 36.67 28.57 30 28 


  12    * 4.55 48.39 86.36 * 9.09 31 22 


All Grades        28.07 6.48 43.86 68.52 28.07 25.00 114 108 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. For all Domains, students that scored within the Somewhat/Moderate range need to be disaggregated to determine 


those who are close to Well Developed and those who need more targeted interventions.        
2. 50% of students scored in the Well Developed range for Speaking.        


3. 40% of students scored at a Level 3 and Level 4 for Overall Language.        


 
 


308/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 55 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2018-19 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


842        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


55.1        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


12.9        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


0.1        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2018-19 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        109 12.9 


Foster Youth        1 0.1 


Homeless        5 0.6 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        464 55.1 


Students with Disabilities        93 11.0 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        5 0.6 


American Indian        2 0.2 


Asian        13 1.5 


Filipino        6 0.7 


Hispanic        476 56.5 


Two or More Races        34 4.0 


White        300 35.6 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Over half (55.1%) of Harbor High School students are socioeconomically disadvantaged        


2. 12.9% of Harbor High School students are English Learners.        


 
 


309/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 55 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Blue        


 
Mathematics 


 
Green        


 
College/Career 


 
Yellow        


Academic Engagement 


 
Graduation Rate 


 
Green        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Green        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All CA Dashboard indicators are in the Blue or Green (the two highest dashboard ratings) with the exception of the 


College and Career Readiness Indicator, which is Yellow.        
 
 


310/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 55 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


2        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


46.8 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +28.6 points         


176        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


79.4 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +49.2 points         


31        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


16.6 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +20.5 points         


102        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


66.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +38.4 points         


19        


 


311/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 55 Harbor High School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


9.5 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +17.6 points         


97        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
Blue         


94.1 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +36.8 points         


66        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


98.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +46.4 points         


22        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


9        


English Only 


86.6 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +34.7 points         


88        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All student groups increased their scores on the ELA CAASPP.        


2. There was an overall increase of 28.6 points on the ELA CAASPP, and the average student score is 46.8 points 
above standard.        


3. There is a gap in performance between the white student group (94.1 points above standard) and all other student 
groups.        


 
 


312/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 55 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


2        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


32.7 points below standard         


Increased +14.9 points         


177        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


147.4 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +19.4 points         


31        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


67.3 points below standard         


Maintained -1.7 points         


103        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


174.3 points below standard         


Increased +11.2 points         


19        


 


313/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 55 Harbor High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


79.3 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -16.2 
points         


98        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Blue         


25.6 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +48.4 points         


66        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


171.7 points below standard         


Increased +13.7 points         


22        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


9        


English Only 


10 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +37.1 points         


89        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. English Learners, White students, and Students with Disabilities all increased in math.        


2. Hispanic and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students declined.        


3. There was an overall increase of 14.9 points on the Math CAASPP.        


 
 


314/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 55 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


44.2 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 95          


Performance Level: Low        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


35.7         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


5.2         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


38.9         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 44.2% of our English Learners grew one or more Proficiency levels from 2017-18 to 2018-19.        


2. Data shows that continued focus on English Learner Progress is appropriate with regard to the SPSA and school 
goals regarding professional development and desired outcomes for ELs.        


3. No Harbor English Learners decreased in their levels of English Proficiency, meaning they either maintained or grew 
in their English Proficiency as measured by the ELPAC.        


 
 


315/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 55 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
College/Career 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Yellow         


50.3         


Maintained +1.4         


181        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


 


316/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 55 Harbor High School


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 


Class of 2017 
48.9 Prepared         


22.9 Approaching Prepared         
28.3 Not Prepared         


Class of 2018 
48.9 Prepared         


22.9 Approaching Prepared         
28.3 Not Prepared         


Class of 2019 
50.3 Prepared         


18.8 Approaching Prepared         
30.9 Not Prepared         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. There is a slight increase in the percent of students considered prepared over the past 3 years (48.9% in 2017 & 


2018 compared to 50.3% in 2019).        
2. Continued emphasis of resources, time, and planning for all students to support in increasing the number of students 


being college and career ready is needed indicated as a need by the data.        
 
 


317/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 55 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


1        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


2        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


89.5         


Increased +2         


181        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


74.2         


Increased +9.8         


31        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


87.5         


Increased +37.5         


16        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


90.1         


Increased +6.2         


121        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


52.2         


Declined -18.7         


23        


 


318/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 55 Harbor High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


91.5         


Increased +10.1         


106        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Orange         


87.7         


Declined -6.3         


57        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 


2018         
87.5         


2019         
89.5         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Harbor increased their graduation rate from 87.5% in 2018 to 89.5% in 2019. Harbor is above the statewide graduation 


rate of 82.7%.        
2. English Learners and Students with Disabilities need to continue to be a focus for our SPSA, school goals, and 


professional development.        
 
 


319/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 55 Harbor High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


1        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


5        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


3.6         


Declined -0.8         
879        


English Learners 


 
Green         


3.3         


Declined -2.5         
123        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Declined -13.6         
14        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


4.8         


Declined -1.3         
483        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Green         


1.9         


Declined -6.6         
105        


 


320/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 55 Harbor High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          5        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


7.7         


Increased +7.7         
13        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          6        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


3.6         


Declined Significantly -2.1         
497        


Two or More Races 


 
Green         


2.8         


Declined -2.6         
36        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Orange         


3.4         


Increased +0.9         
320        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
4.4         


2019     
3.6         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Harbor decreased their suspension rate from .8% (from 4.4% in 2018 to 3.6% in 2019). This decrease resulted in an 


overall Green rating on the CA Dashboard Suspension Rate.        
2. Almost all major student groups decreased their suspension rate with a slight increase in the white student group.        


 
 


321/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 55 Harbor High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Strategic Focus Areas: Math, Academic Literacy, and English Learner Progress          


 
Goal Statement 
We will have clarity of learning for all students          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
In our WASC self-study, staff determined that to better meet the needs of our Hispanic/Latino students, socio-
economically disadvantaged students, and English Learners, we must develop an even more rigorous academic 
program that will include the supports necessary to increase student success. This will result in increased A-G 
completion rates, improved CAASPP scores and higher rates of graduation. The work of staff includes developing cross-
curricular connections and practices along with building intra-departmental communication to help students better 
access the curriculum and provide reinforcement in content-area academic skills. A renewed focus on consistency in 
grading policies and practices in PLCs and departments is needed to ensure that our grading structures are not 
preventing students from reaching A-G completion, graduation, and advancing through department pathways in math, 
science, and world language.Consistency in curriculum among same courses, the use and implementation of the 
Organized Binder by all teachers, and parent/student and teacher communication through Illuminate are areas of growth. 
More time and planning will be devoted to debriefing CAASPP, NWEA/MAP, PSAT and AP scores as a staff to develop 
purposeful responses to students’ results in these areas, including reteaching and interventions as needed.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Teacher Syllabus 
Gradebook alignment for teachers 
Student and parent survey regarding 
consistency 
        


 A-G rate for all students 2017-2018 
50.4% 


 Increase A-G rate for all students 
2020-2021 by 2% to 52.4% 
Increased A, B, C, grades 
Fewer course re-takes 
 


Student and teacher use of AVID or 
Organized Binder 
Learning intention visibly displayed in 
a common location in each classroom 
        


 A-G rate for all students 2017-2018 
50.4% 


 Increase A-G rate for all students 
2020-2021 by 2% to 52.4% 
Increased A, B, C grades 
Students can state the Learning 
Intention 
 
 


Each course has at least one 
common formative 
assessment/assignment per unit        


 A-G rate for all students 2017-2018 
50.4% 


 Increase A-G rate for all students 
2020-2021 by 2% to 52.4% 
Increase A-G rate for all students 
2020-2021 
Increased A, B, C, grades 


322/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 55 Harbor High School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


 


List of students in tier 2 interventions 
Master Schedule with tier 2 
intervention options 
        


 Graduation rate for all students 
87.4% 


 Proper placement of student in Tier 2 
Interventions and increased 
graduation rate by 1.5% 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: All students        


 46.8 points above standard-Highest 
(State results for all students is High) 
Harbor increased for all students 


 All students improve 3 points on 2021 
ELA CAASPP 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Hispanic students        


 9.5 points above standard-High 
(State results for Hispanic students is 
Medium) Harbor increased 
significantly for Hispanic students 


 Hispanic students will improve 3 
points on 2021 ELA CAASPP 


California Dashboard Graduation 
Rate for all students        


 89.5% points above-High (State 
results for all students is High) Harbor 
increased for all students 


 All students will increase 1.5% on 
graduation rate 


California Dashboard Graduation 
Rate for Hispanic students        


 91.5%-High (State results for 
Hispanic students is High) Harbor 
increased for Hispanic students 


 Hispanic students will increase 1.5% 
on graduation rate 


Math CAASPP Data: All students         -32.7 points from standard-High 
(State results for All students is High) 
Harbor increased for all students 


 All students improve 3 points on 2021 
Math CAASPP 


Math CAASPP Data: Hispanic 
students        


 -79.3 points from standard-Low 
(State results for Hispanic students is 
Medium) Harbor declined for 
Hispanic students 


 Hispanic students improve 3 points 
on 2021 Math CAASPP 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
1.1 We will define and implement common school-wide grading practices.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
SCIL 
Administrators 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 12,000.00        


Source Title I        


323/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 55 Harbor High School


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.1 A-Release Time for common teaching and assessment practices to develop learning 
progressions, success criteria, and aligned grading practices        


Amount 400.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 1.1 B-Training for common teaching and assessment practices        


Amount 3945.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 1.1 C-CSA TurnItIn.com service        


Amount 500.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.1 D - Release time for common teaching and assessment practices for AVID students        


Strategy/Activity 2 
1.2 We will display and reference Learning Intentions daily.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
Administrators 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3500.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.2 A-Release Time        


Amount 2400.00        


Source Title I        


324/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 55 Harbor High School


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 1.2 B-Training        


Strategy/Activity 3 
1.3 We will give one common formative assignment/common assessment (CFA) 1x per unit        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
August 2020        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
Administrators 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 400.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.3 A-Release Time        


Amount 400.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 1.3 B-Training        


Amount 1000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.3 C-PLC Substitutes        


Strategy/Activity 4 
1.4 We will analyze school-wide and teacher-created assessment data to identify students needing Tier 2 interventions        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 


325/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 55 Harbor High School


Teachers 
RTI Coordinator 
Counselors 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 702.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.4 A-Release Time        


Amount 500.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 1.4 B-Training        


Strategy/Activity 5 
1.6 Provide books, supplies for classrooms/students/teachers, and supplemental instructional materials for all courses        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
Textbook clerk 
Librarian 
Finance clerk 
Administrator 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 30,716.00        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 1.5 A-Curriculum materials, library books, and texts for all subjects        


Amount 51,915.00        


Source General Fund        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 1.5 B-Classroom supplies, furniture, printer supplies, etc.        


326/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 55 Harbor High School


Amount 20,000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 1.5 C-Classroom supplies, furniture, printer supplies, etc.        


Amount 15,000.00        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined        


Description 1.5 D-Technology applications for Distance Learning        


Amount 47,930.00        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined        


Description 1.5 E-Classroom supplies, furniture, printer supplies, etc.        


Amount 68,000        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined        


Description 1.5 F-Technology for students        


Amount 32,518.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined        


Description 1.5 G-Technology for students        


Strategy/Activity 6 
1.7 We will support the International Baccalaureate Diploma Program at our school        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
Counselors 
SCIL 
PLCs 
Administrators 
        


 


327/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 55 Harbor High School


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Amount 11,650.00        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 1.6 A-IB fees        


Amount 27,160.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 1.6 B-Staff training for IB, or AP, or other curricular workshops to support IB and AP        


Amount 10,818.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.6 C-Staff training for IB        


Amount 8000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.6 D-Release Time for teacher planning        


Amount 2000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.6 E-Release Time for teacher planning        


Amount 21,164.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.6 F-IB Coordinator        


Amount 2876.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.7 H-IB CAS Coordinator        


Strategy/Activity 7 


328/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 55 Harbor High School


1.8 All staff will use the Organized Binder or AVID Binder system        
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, Organized Binder representative, Administrators        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 1.7 A-CSA with Mitch Weathers of Organized Binder        


Amount 500.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 1.7 B-Copies of binder pages and binders for students        


Amount 1000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.7 C-Training and release time for teacher training of Organized Binder system        


Amount 5000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.7 D-Final exam Study Fest; hours for teacher support        


 


329/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 55 Harbor High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Strategic Focus Areas: Math, Academic Literacy, and English Learner Progress          


 
Goal Statement 
We will provide targeted interventions for all students with a focus on EL, Hispanic/Latino, and Socio-Economically 
Disadvantaged students          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
The Harbor High community is highly invested in examining our practices and striving to have more students use school-
wide supports. For instance, student access and use of our After School Learning Center as an intervention for 
struggling students and staff use of differentiation strategies in the classroom are areas where we can improve our 
support for student achievement.  There is a need for increased education for teachers in the areas of differentiated 
instruction and implementation of intervention systems. Training in NWEA/MAP would support teachers’ ability to 
determine which students need specific intervention in math and ELA. Additionally, there is need to expand use of the 
Organized Binder to more classes .Develop a range of targeted in class academic interventions and responsive systems 
of support available for students in need. Staff needs training  to develop additional strategies for increased 
differentiation in classroom lessons and activities and staff identified a need to align school-wide instructional practices 
that allow students  multiple attempts to show mastery and/or growth in their learning.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Graduation Rate         2019 Graduation rate for all students 
89.5% 


 Increased graduation rate by 1.5% in 
2021 


A-G Rate         A-G rate for all students 2017-2018 
50.4% 


 Increase A-G completion by 2% to 
52.4% 


Semester Grades         86.3% of student 1st semester 
grades were A, B, &/or C's in 2019-
20. 


 90% of 1st semester grades will be A, 
B, &/or C's in 2020-21. 


California Dashboard College and 
Career Readiness Measure: all 
students        


 50.3%-Medium (State report for all 
students is Medium) Harbor 
maintained for all students 


 All students will increase 1.5% on the 
2020 College and Career Readiness 
CA Dashboard 


California Dashboard College and 
Career Readiness Measure: Hispanic 
students        


 44.3%-High (State report for Hispanic 
students is Medium) Harbor 
increased for Hispanic students 


 Hispanic students will increase 1.5% 
on the 2020 College and Career 
Readiness CA Dashboard 


Graduation Rate: English Learners         74.2%-Medium (Harbor High English 
Learner graduation rate increased 
9.8% from prior year) 


 English Learners will increase their 
Graduation Rate by 5% in 2021. 


330/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 55 Harbor High School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Learner Progress         44.2% of English Learners improved 
their English Language Proficiency as 
measured by the spring 2019 
ELPAC. 


 At least 50% of English Learners will 
increase their English Language 
Proficiency level as measure by the 
spring 2021 ELPAC. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
2.1 We will utilize integrated ELD strategies in the classroom        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students; focus on English Learners        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
Administrators 
Aides 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2500.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.1 A-Provide release time or Extra Work Agreements for teachers to work in PLCs on 
ELD instructional strategies or integrated ELD training        


Amount 2500.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.1 B-Provide substitutes to release teachers for Language Review Team analysis of 
English Learners' progress        


Amount 500.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.1 C-Train all teachers on Integrated ELD instructional practices        


Amount 35,000.00        


Source Title I        


331/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 55 Harbor High School


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 2.1 D-Provide literature in English and Spanish at a variety of lexile levels for students to 
read for pleasure and accelerate English acquisition        


Amount 5000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.1 E-Provide staffing for library before school year starts to prepare students with 
textbooks and recreational reading materials        


Amount 700.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 2.1 F-ELD curriculum        


Strategy/Activity 2 
2.2 We will implement in-school interventions opportunities        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students; focus on students who need academic support        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
Administrators 
SCIL 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 2.2 A-Provide credit acceleration opportunities through Cyberhigh towards graduation 
and A-G status        


Amount 20,650.00        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.2 B-Support English Language Learners in ELD classes and mainstream classes, and 
After School Learning Center with tutors (Bilingual math tutors and HH Homework club) 
(District LCFF)        


332/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 55 Harbor High School


Amount 24,000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.2 C-Support English Language Learners in ELD classes and mainstream classes, and 
After School Learning Center with tutors        


Amount 112,519.00        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.2 D-RTI Coordinator (District LCFF)        


Amount 38,140.00        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.2 E-Academic Intervention/Math and Reading intervention/Transitional English for 
English Learners (District LCFF)        


Amount 1000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description 2.2 G-Snacks for students in the After School Learning Center (ASL)        


Amount 21,600.00        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.2 H-Small Group tutoring        


Strategy/Activity 3 
2.3 Create and implement a toolkit of Tier I and Tier 2 intervention strategies        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
SCIL        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 400.00        


333/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 55 Harbor High School


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.3 A-Release Time        


Amount 2000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.3 B-Training        


Amount 42,081.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.3 C-Provide instructional aides in math classes and in the library After School Learning 
center to support teachers and students through additional hours        


Strategy/Activity 4 
2.4 We will offer opportunities for students to be involved in after school enrichment courses to meet their needs and 
interests beyond the comprehensive school program        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 9500.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.4 A-CSA with UCSC for MESA contract        


Amount 800.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.4 B-MESA club advisor compensation        


Amount 1000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


334/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 55 Harbor High School


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.4 C-Transportation for MESA activities        


Amount 500.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 2.4 D-Supplies for MESA        


Strategy/Activity 5 
2.5 We will offer AVID at all levels and provide funding for field trips, classes, materials/curriculum, and supplies        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
First generation college students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
AVID teachers 
AVID coordinator 
Counselors 
Teachers 
Administrator 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 45,704.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.5 A-AVID courses TOK and AVID 9 (Title 1 Site)        


Amount 2000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.5 B-Field Trips, supplies        


Amount 1000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 2.5 C-AVID curriculum        


Amount 2000.00        


335/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 55 Harbor High School


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.5 D-AVID teacher training        


Strategy/Activity 6 
2.6 We will offer courses at all English Learner levels to support students' acquisition of English        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers, Administrator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 94,682.00        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.6 A-Newcomer ELD, ELD 2, Newcomer Marine Science, .2 Counselor for ELs (Title 1 
District)        


Amount 58,946.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.6 B-ELD 1 & 3 and Leadership        


Strategy/Activity 7 
2.7 We will support all students by providing opportunities for college        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with an emphasis on SED, Latinx, and English learners        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Counselors, Administrators        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 8003.63        


336/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 55 Harbor High School


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 2.7 A-Scholarship coordinator        


Amount 5000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.7 B-PSAT test fees        


Amount 4000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.7 C-SAT preparation course fees        


Amount 9164.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.7 D-AP Test fees        


Amount 5000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 2.7 E-Student supports for high school pathway, planning, transition to high school, and 
transition to college (counseling supplies/supports)        


 


337/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 55 Harbor High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
Strategic Focus Area: School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
We will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the social 
emotional well-being of all students          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Harbor’s school culture and support for student personal and academic growth is strong and it is a priority to continue 
the practices that have made it strong. Our students have access to many adults on campus, including our teachers, 
counselors, school community coordinator, health clerk, athletic director, and administrators. The Organized Binder is 
our strongest tier 1 academic practice at Harbor and about 2/3 of staff uses the Organized Binder system.  Our work 
promoting school culture and pride has resulted in an increase in sports participation, school pride, and attendance at 
dances and sporting events. Our After-School Learning Center, which is open four days a week, is an outside support 
that many students access for additional help with homework and test preparation and we see a need to structure that 
support even more. 
 
Our school’s master schedule, student enrollment practices, and course offerings are designed to create equity in 
student access and performance. We provide support to students with and without financial need and many resources 
are provided to students at a reduced cost or free of charge, such as entrance to home sports games, PE uniforms, 
sports physicals, classroom supplies, backpacks, PSAT preparation courses and more. Harbor provides support for 
Spanish Speaking parents and students and our school community coordinator is an essential component of our school 
culture and support for students. Though Harbor has decreased overall behavior referrals and events over the last four 
years, there is still a disproportionate number of Latino males referred for minor behavior incidents. More staff training in 
cultural proficiency and restorative practices would support this need. Furthermore, staff has identified that teachers 
need to be trained to implement AVID and integrated ELD strategies to better support all students. Teachers need 
training and practice in  Illuminate  to increase parent/student communication. 
          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Student participation in athletics         58% of Harbor students participated 
in 1 or more sports during 2017-2018 


 Increase or maintain percent of 
students participating in athletics. 
(Note: Due to current athletic 
restrictions, this may not be 
measurable for 2020-21) 


Parent participation in ELAC, 
Boosters, and school events        


 93.8% of parents report 
agree/strongly agree to "I have 
opportunities to become involved in 
school activities." 


 Increase or maintain percent of 
parents agree/strongly agree to 
survey question "I have opportunities 


338/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 55 Harbor High School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


to become involved in school 
activities." 


Sales of Pirate Pride products         2018-2019 sales $3514.00 for Pirate 
Pride products 


 Increase in sales of Pirate Pride 
products 


Number of teacher referrals         561 teacher referrals in 2017-2018 
for student behavior events (class 
misconduct, defiance, inappropriate 
language, disrespect, derogatory 
comment, unsafe behavior) 


 Decrease in number of teacher 
referrals for student behavior by 10% 


California Dashboard Suspension 
Rate: All students        


 3.6%-High (State report for all 
students is Medium) Harbor 
suspension rate for all students 
declined 


 Decline suspension rate by 1.5% for 
all students 


California Dashboard Suspension 
Rate: Hispanic Students        


 3.6%-High (State report for Hispanic 
students is Medium) Harbor 
suspension rate for Hispanics 
declined 


 Decline suspension rate by 1.5% for 
Hispanic students 


California Dashboard Suspension 
Rate: English Learners        


 3.3%-High (State report for English 
Learners is Medium) Harbor 
suspension rate for ELs declined 


 Decline suspension rate by 1.5% for 
English Learners 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
3.1 We will train teachers on restorative practices        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Teachers 
SCIL 
Administrators 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.1 A-Supplies and tools for teachers and staff on restorative practices and PBIS, cultural 
proficiency, and school culture/climate        


Amount 300.00        


339/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 55 Harbor High School


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.1 B- Screen all students on the Social Emotional Health Survey        


Strategy/Activity 2 
3.2 We will support student participation in school activities, athletics, and clubs        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Athletic Director 
Activities Director 
Teachers 
Administrators 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4933.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.2 A-Enrichment provider for football conditioning        


Amount 2000.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.2 B-Schoolwide and evening events related to a college-going culture        


Amount 2399.37        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 3.2 C-Five Star Students system for tracking intervention needs        


Amount 24,638.00        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.2 D-Activities Director release time .4 (LCFF District)        


340/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 55 Harbor High School


Amount 3538.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.2 E-180 hours Enrichment provider for Escapades Dance at Harbor        


Amount 500.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.2 F-Yearbook camp        


Strategy/Activity 3 
3.3 Promote positive culture and climate through school culture with visible Harbor logo products        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Activities Director 
Athletic Director 
Teachers 
Counselors 
Administrators 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2000.00        


Source Site Based Gifts and Donations        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.3 A-Provide Harbor community with Harbor-wear and other promotional items to 
support school spirit (0051 Donations)        


Amount 2000.00        


Source Site Based Gifts and Donations        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.3 B-Provide teachers with classrooms supports regarding school culture around 
instructional vision and school connectedness (0051 Donations)        


Amount 250.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


341/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 55 Harbor High School


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.3 C-Celebrate academic achievements of our students with an academic awards 
ceremony        


Strategy/Activity 4 
3.4 Provide departments with needed supplies, furniture, learning extension, and classroom needs to support 
instruction        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrators        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5534.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.4 A-Departments and teachers have access to supplies needed to support students, 
instructionally and social emotionally        


Amount 650.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description 3.4 B-Shakespeare Santa Cruz performance to English and other classes        


Strategy/Activity 5 
3.5 We will provide parents and students a full time school community coordinator        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students with a focus on English Learners        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
School community coordinator 
Administrator 
Counselors 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


342/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 55 Harbor High School


Amount 43,756.00        


Source LCFF - Base        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.5 A-School Community Coordinator .5 position funding (District LCFF)        


Amount 2000.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.5 B-Recruit ELAC parents for meetings, events, and DELAC        


Amount 500.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.5 C-Additional hours for translation at events and all written materials to parents (61 
MAA)        


Amount 43,756.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 3.5 D-School Community Coordinator .5 position funding        


Strategy/Activity 6 
3.6 We will support the Freshman transition to high school        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Freshmen        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Link Crew advisor 
Link Crew Leaders 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3200.00        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description 3.6 A-Link Crew leaders and advisor, materials and supplies        


 


343/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 55 Harbor High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 4 
 
Subject 
          


 
Goal Statement 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
         
         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 
startcollapse  
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
 
Timeline 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


 


344/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 55 Harbor High School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  313,000 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  1,090,838.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


345/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 55 Harbor High School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


CARES Act         152,530.00 


District Funded         106,332.00 


General Fund         51,915.00 


LCFF - Base         239,703.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         210,937.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         30,716.00 


Site Based Gifts and Donations         4,000.00 


Title I         294,705.00 
 


346/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 55 Harbor High School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


0000: Unrestricted         1,000.00 


0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined         163,448.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         452,751.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         217,655.63 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         163,315.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 92,668.37 


 


347/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 55 Harbor High School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally 
Defined        


 CARES Act  130,930.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 CARES Act  21,600.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  94,682.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 District Funded  11,650.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         General Fund  51,915.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Base  175,297.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Base  64,406.00 


0000: Unrestricted         LCFF - Supplemental  1,000.00 


0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally 
Defined        


 LCFF - Supplemental  32,518.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  69,084.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  57,692.63 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Supplemental  9,484.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  41,158.37 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  30,716.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Site Based Gifts and Donations  4,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  113,688.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  73,957.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Title I  67,200.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  39,860.00 


 


348/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 55 Harbor High School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
2 Classroom Teachers        


2 Other School Staff        


2 Parent or Community Members        


1 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Tracey Runeare         X Principal        


Shannon Greene         X Other School Staff        


Katrina Wedding         X Classroom Teacher        


Matthew Oderman         X Classroom Teacher        


George Bunch         X Parent or Community Member        


Eyva Weiss         X Secondary Student        


Dean Lundgren         X Parent or Community Member        


Rosario Weckler         X Other School Staff        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


349/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 55 Harbor High School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on October 20, 2020. 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Tracey Runeare on October 20, 2020 


  SSC Chairperson,  on October 20, 2020 


 


350/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


 
School Year:    2020-21   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Mission Hill Middle School         


Address 425 King St.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3411 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698236060156         


Principal Kat McElwee         


District Name Mission Hill Middle School         


SPSA Revision Date October 5, 2020         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date October 5, 2020         


Local Board Approval Date November 4, 2020         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


351/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Table of Contents 
 


SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 


Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 


School Vision and Mission ................................................................................................................................3 


School Profile ....................................................................................................................................................3 


Stakeholder Involvement ..................................................................................................................................3 


School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................4 


Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................4 


CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................6 


ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................10 


Student Population ..................................................................................................................................12 


Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................13 


Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................14 


Academic Engagement ...........................................................................................................................19 


Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................21 


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................23 


Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................23 


Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................37 


Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................47 


Budget Summary and Consolidation ..............................................................................................................59 


Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................59 


Allocations by Funding Source ................................................................................................................59 


Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................60 


Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................61 


Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................62 


School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................63 


Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................64 


 


352/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


School Vision and Mission 
 
MHMS Vision:  All Mavericks are learners who who persevere, collaborate and innovate. We grow into our world with 
responsibility and integrity. 
 
MHMS Mission:  Engaging students' hearts and minds - every student, every day. 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 
Mission Hill Middle School is located on the central coast of California in a residential community on the west side of 
Santa Cruz. We are situated between King Street and Mission Street, within walking distance of downtown, and in close 
proximity to the University of California. Mission Hill serves about 615 students in grades 6 through 8, and our student 
body reflects the wide range of socioeconomic and cultural diversity found in the neighborhoods of west side Santa Cruz. 
 
Through partnership and collaboration with its stakeholders, Mission Hill is able to provide a safe environment for 
students and a positive school climate that supports all learners. Mission Hill places great value on academic rigor while 
also being mindful of the unique, social-emotional needs of adolescents. This sentiment is apparent in our school 
mission: "Engaging students' hearts and minds; every student, every day." In addition to rigorous academic instruction, 
we also support students in the pursuit of the Maverick Essentials - Perseverance, Responsibility, Integrity, Innovation, 
Collaboration. The Essentials are referenced in our school vision: "All Mavericks are learners who persevere, 
collaborate, and innovate. We grow into our world with responsibility and integrity." 
 
Mission Hill Middle School believes: 


• all students should be known and valued 
• all students can learn 
• that rigorous academic instruction is essential to students' academic growth 
• in providing a safe and caring environment in which students and staff respect one other 
• in maintaining high expectations for all learners 
• that music and the arts are important 
• that educational equity is essential for all students to feel connected and be successful 
• in doing whatever is necessary to close the achievement gap 
• in challenging all learners 
• that demographics should not determine outcomes 


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
The SPSA is developed, monitored and reviewed annually across at least four evening SSC meetings.  The site principal 
also met and conferred with district personnel, the Site Leadership Team (SCIL), and the entire school staff during 
faculty meetings.  Principal offers invitation to review and discuss individually as necessary with any and all 
stakeholders.         


 


353/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


American Indian     0.65% 0.16% 0.16% 4        1 1 


African American     2.28% 2.8% 2.08% 14        17 13 


Asian     4.72% 3.62% 3.36% 29        22 21 


Filipino     0.49% 0.49% 0.32% 3        3 2 


Hispanic/Latino     31.87% 30.31% 30.08% 196        184 188 


Pacific Islander     0.81% 0.33% 0.16% 5        2 1 


White     54.15% 55.19% 56.32% 333        335 352 


Multiple/No Response     0.16% 0.82% 7.52% 1        5 0 


 Total Enrollment 615 607 625 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


17-18 18-19 19-20 


Grade 6        221 186 182 


Grade 7        176 238 203 


Grade 8        218 183 240 


Total Enrollment        615 607 625 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. White students are the largest demographic group.        


2. The second largest demographic group is Hispanic/Latino students.        


3. Enrollment has remained relatively stable over the last three years.        


 


354/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


English Learners        41 37 42 6.7% 6.1% 6.7% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        118 111 109 19.2% 18.3% 17.4% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        15 12 11 24.6% 29.3% 29.7% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. According to our enrollment data, the number of ELs and number of RFEPs is staying relatively consistent over the 


past 3 years.        
 


355/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 184 218 185 177 214 179 177 214 179 96.2 98.2 96.8 


Grade 7 217 171 240 213 167 231 213 166 231 98.2 97.7 96.3 


Grade 8 191 212 182 186 210 176 186 210 176 97.4 99.1 96.7 
All 
Grades 


592 601 607 576 591 586 576 590 586 97.3 98.3 96.5 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 2559.
4 


2546.
8 


2560.
9 


29.38 23.36 27.93 35.59 36.45 36.31 23.16 21.50 20.11 11.86 18.69 15.64 


Grade 7 2577.
5 


2584.
2 


2575.
3 


24.88 24.70 22.51 39.44 46.39 42.42 20.66 16.27 19.48 15.02 12.65 15.58 


Grade 8 2584.
5 


2590.
0 


2599.
7 


25.27 24.29 22.73 33.87 38.57 46.02 22.04 19.05 21.02 18.82 18.10 10.23 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 26.39 24.07 24.23 36.46 40.00 41.64 21.88 19.15 20.14 15.28 16.78 13.99 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 41.81 31.31 30.17 39.55 47.20 46.93 18.64 21.50 22.91 


Grade 7 32.86 36.75 30.30 46.48 46.99 47.19 20.66 16.27 22.51 


Grade 8 36.02 37.62 35.23 42.47 36.67 45.45 21.51 25.71 19.32 


All Grades 36.63 35.08 31.74 43.06 43.39 46.59 20.31 21.53 21.67 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 29.94 31.31 34.64 50.85 44.39 50.28 19.21 24.30 15.08 


Grade 7 37.56 35.54 33.33 42.72 50.60 51.08 19.72 13.86 15.58 


Grade 8 33.33 34.29 31.82 44.62 42.86 53.41 22.04 22.86 14.77 


All Grades 33.85 33.56 33.28 45.83 45.59 51.54 20.31 20.85 15.19 
 


356/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 28.25 21.96 23.46 64.97 63.55 67.04 6.78 14.49 9.50 


Grade 7 22.54 19.28 17.32 63.38 69.28 74.03 14.08 11.45 8.66 


Grade 8 25.27 33.33 26.14 60.75 55.71 68.75 13.98 10.95 5.11 


All Grades 25.17 25.25 21.84 63.02 62.37 70.31 11.81 12.37 7.85 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 35.03 36.92 38.55 52.54 48.13 49.16 12.43 14.95 12.29 


Grade 7 46.95 42.17 35.06 42.25 47.59 48.48 10.80 10.24 16.45 


Grade 8 31.72 40.00 40.34 53.76 42.38 46.02 14.52 17.62 13.64 


All Grades 38.37 39.49 37.71 49.13 45.93 47.95 12.50 14.58 14.33 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our CAASPP ELA scores are still relatively flat overall.  We hope that our school-wide focus on increasing students' 


general academic vocabulary will boost all areas of standardized testing in English Language Arts.        
2. While the All Student group is above standard, there is still a pronounced gap between ELs and English only 


students.        
3. Our low SES student group, students with disabilities group, and Hispanic student group are still far below standard.        


 


357/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 184 218 185 178 215 180 178 215 180 96.7 98.6 97.3 


Grade 7 217 171 240 215 167 232 215 167 232 99.1 97.7 96.7 


Grade 8 191 212 182 188 210 175 187 210 175 98.4 99.1 96.2 
All 
Grades 


592 601 607 581 592 587 580 592 587 98.1 98.5 96.7 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6 2552.
3 


2535.
0 


2529.
1 


21.35 25.58 18.89 29.78 21.86 19.44 33.15 29.30 35.56 15.73 23.26 26.11 


Grade 7 2581.
2 


2570.
5 


2555.
7 


31.63 23.95 25.43 29.77 30.54 28.02 25.58 28.74 21.98 13.02 16.77 24.57 


Grade 8 2575.
1 


2598.
4 


2600.
1 


26.20 32.86 32.00 22.99 21.90 25.14 27.81 26.19 25.14 22.99 19.05 17.71 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 26.72 27.70 25.38 27.59 24.32 24.53 28.62 28.04 27.09 17.07 19.93 23.00 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 31.46 28.84 22.78 43.82 39.07 37.78 24.72 32.09 39.44 


Grade 7 41.86 36.53 34.91 35.81 40.12 31.03 22.33 23.35 34.05 


Grade 8 30.48 35.71 38.29 38.50 39.52 38.29 31.02 24.76 23.43 


All Grades 35.00 33.45 32.20 39.14 39.53 35.26 25.86 27.03 32.54 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 19.66 25.58 20.56 56.18 42.33 47.78 24.16 32.09 31.67 


Grade 7 31.63 28.74 28.45 51.63 53.29 50.86 16.74 17.96 20.69 


Grade 8 32.09 33.81 33.71 40.64 52.86 47.43 27.27 13.33 18.86 


All Grades 28.10 29.39 27.60 49.48 49.16 48.89 22.41 21.45 23.51 
 


358/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 6 30.34 26.98 22.78 49.44 46.98 49.44 20.22 26.05 27.78 


Grade 7 33.95 26.35 25.43 56.28 56.89 52.59 9.77 16.77 21.98 


Grade 8 31.55 39.52 28.57 44.39 41.43 58.29 24.06 19.05 13.14 


All Grades 32.07 31.25 25.55 50.34 47.80 53.32 17.59 20.95 21.12 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our CAASPP math scores are relatively flat overall.  We hope that our school-wide focus on increasing students' 


general academic vocabulary (Goal #1 & #2) coupled with the focus on building students' understanding of 
mathematical vocabulary will boost all areas of standardized testing in Mathematics.        


2. While our All Student group has remained relatively stable, the gap has widened amongst almost all groups -  
ELStudents, Students with Disabilities, Hispanic, low SES Students.        


 


359/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 6        1499.3 1542.8 1480.2 1524.2 1518.2 1561.2 11 13 


Grade 7        1545.5 1520.9 1528.3 1501.3 1562.3 1540.0 11 15 


Grade 8        1566.0 * 1557.3 * 1574.4 * 12 8 


All Grades              34 36 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 46.15 * 7.69 * 38.46 * 7.69 11 13 


   7    * 26.67 * 53.33 * 6.67 * 13.33 11 15 


   8    * * * * * *  * 12 * 


All Grades        47.06 38.89 35.29 33.33 * 19.44 * 8.33 34 36 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 46.15 * 23.08 * 23.08 * 7.69 11 13 


   7    * 33.33 * 46.67 * 6.67 * 13.33 11 15 


   8    * * * *  *  * 12 * 


All Grades        55.88 47.22 32.35 30.56 * 13.89 * 8.33 34 36 
 


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 23.08 * 30.77 * 30.77 * 15.38 11 13 


   7    * 20.00 * 40.00 * 26.67 * 13.33 11 15 


   8    * * * * * * * * 12 * 


All Grades        47.06 25.00 * 36.11 * 27.78 * 11.11 34 36 
 


360/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 46.15 * 53.85 * 0.00 11 13 


   7    * 46.67 * 40.00 * 13.33 11 15 


   8    * * * *  * 12 * 


All Grades        44.12 47.22 44.12 47.22 * 5.56 34 36 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 30.77 * 61.54 * 7.69 11 13 


   7    * 26.67 * 60.00 * 13.33 11 15 


   8    * * * *  * 12 * 


All Grades        58.82 36.11 35.29 55.56 * 8.33 34 36 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 23.08 * 53.85 * 23.08 11 13 


   7    * 20.00 * 60.00 * 20.00 11 15 


   8    * * * * * * 12 * 


All Grades        41.18 30.56 * 50.00 32.35 19.44 34 36 
 


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   6    * 53.85 * 46.15 * 0.00 11 13 


   7    * 6.67 * 80.00 * 13.33 11 15 


   8    * * * *  * 12 * 


All Grades        * 25.00 67.65 69.44 * 5.56 34 36 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Based on this data, more than 70% of students are at Level 3 or 4 on the ELPAC which is highly encouraging and 


may reflect the recent work we have put into improving the instruction in our Designated ELD class, as well as the 
schoolwide emphasis on Academic Language (Tier 2 Vocabulary).        


2. Additionally, the data shows that almost 40% of students (38.89% precisely) are at Level 4 which means that over a 
third of our EL students are getting the highest rating possible on the ELPAC.        


 
 


361/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2018-19 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


607        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


36.1        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


6.1        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2018-19 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        37 6.1 


Homeless        1 0.2 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        219 36.1 


Students with Disabilities        68 11.2 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        17 2.8 


American Indian        1 0.2 


Asian        22 3.6 


Filipino        3 0.5 


Hispanic        184 30.3 


Two or More Races        38 6.3 


Pacific Islander        2 0.3 


White        335 55.2 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 36.1% of our students are socioeconomically disadvantaged.        


2. 6.1% of our students are English Learners.        


 
 


362/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Green        


 
Mathematics 


 
Yellow        


Academic Engagement 


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Red        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Green        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our ELA overall CA Dashboard rating is Green due to our overall student scores being in the meeting standard 


range.        
2. Our suspension rate has improved over the previous year.        


3. Our Chronic Absenteeism rate increased, which resulted in a red rating on the CA Dashboard.        


 
 


363/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


1        
Yellow        


3        
Green        


1        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


28.4 points above standard         


Increased +4.5 points         


570        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


46.9 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +31.1 points         


85        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


19.9 points below standard         


Increased +11.9 points         


217        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


80.7 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +29.7 points         


63        


 


364/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


37.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +38.3 points         


14        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


80.8 points above standard         


Declined -10.4 points         


19        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


23.3 points below standard         


Increased +10.1 points         


178        


Two or More Races 


 
Green         


55.3 points above standard         


Declined -6.3 points         


35        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


White     


 
Blue         


54.6 points above standard         


Increased +3 points         


317        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


68.5 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +44.6 points         


32        


Reclassified English Learners 


33.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +27.9 points         


53        


English Only 


43 points above standard         


Maintained +0.1 points         


426        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. While our All Student group ELA scores are relatively stable compared to last year, we still have a big gap between 


our White student group and all other groups.        
 
 


365/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


4        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Yellow         


7.1 points below standard         


Declined -7.3 points         


569        


English Learners 


 
Orange         


96 points below standard         


Increased ++7.7 points         


85        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


68.6 points below standard         


Declined -4.6 points         


217        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


129.2 points below standard         


Increased ++6.8 points         


63        


 


366/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


101.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +21.2 points         


14        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


68.5 points above standard         


Maintained -1.8 points         


19        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


68.3 points below standard         


Declined -6.2 points         


178        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


31.7 points above standard         


Declined Significantly -36.3 
points         


35        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


White     


 
Green         


23.4 points above standard         


Declined -5.5 points         


316        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


109.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +18.4 points         


32        


Reclassified English Learners 


88.1 points below standard         


Increased +4.6 points         


53        


English Only 


9.7 points above standard         


Declined -10.1 points         


425        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. While our All Student groups Math scores are relatively stable compared to last year, we still have a gap between our 


White student group and all other groups.        
 
 


367/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


67.7 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 31          


Performance Level: Very High        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


19.3         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


12.9         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


9.6         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


58.0         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our EL students are performing well on the ELPAC.  67.7% of our English Learners grew in their English Language 


proficiency as measure by the ELPAC. This is considered "Very High" by the state.        
 
 


368/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
3        


Orange        
2        


Yellow        
0        


Green        
1        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Red         


16.1         


Increased Significantly +3.8         


627        


English Learners 


 
Green         


7.7         


Declined -12.8         


39        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Red         


22.5         


Increased Significantly +3.1         


236        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Red         


20.3         


Increased +4.1         


74        


 


369/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


29.4         


Increased +0.8         


17        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


4.5         


Increased +1.1         


22        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


14         


Increased +0.9         


186        


Two or More Races 


 
Orange         


13.2         


Increased +0.7         


38        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


White     


 
Red         


16.8         


Increased Significantly +5.4         


357        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. When it comes to attendance, we have work to do.  Our chronic absenteeism rate of 16.1% is higher than the 10% 


state average.        
2. We need to decrease our Chronic Absenteeism rate for all student groups.        


 
 


370/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


4        
Blue        


2        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


1.4         


Declined -1.4         
633        


English Learners 


 
Blue         


0         


Declined -2.2         
40        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


2.9         


Declined -1.7         
239        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Green         


5.4         


Declined -5.9         
74        


 


371/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


11.8         


Increased +5.1         
17        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
23        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          4        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


2.1         


Declined -1.9         
188        


Two or More Races 


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
38        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2        


White     


 
Green         


0.6         


Declined -2.1         
359        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
2.8         


2019     
1.4         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our suspension rate has improved from 2.8% in 2018 to 1.4% in 2019. This has resulted in a Green rating on the CA 


Dashboard Suspension Rate.        
 
 


372/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Literacy and Equity          


 
Goal Statement 
MHMS will create an educational environment that supports all learners in achieving high levels of literacy. Specifically, 
we will maintain our high overall scores on CAASPP and the I-Ready Diagnostic and close the gap between the “white 
only” group and the “Hispanic”, “Sw/D”, and “Low SES” groups on these reading assessments. 
 
 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Literacy is probably the single most important student skill for success in high school, college, and career. Improving 
students' literacy skills means they can access text and will be more likely to experience success in all content areas - 
from English Language Arts to Mathematics, History, and Science. Language is thinking and thinking is language.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


The “All Students” group will improve 
by at least 3 points on ELA CAASPP 
testing (from 27 points above 
standard to 30 points above standard 
or greater). 
 
        


 27 points above standard  30 points above standard 


The “English Learners” group will 
improve by at least 3 points on ELA 
CAASPP testing (from 71.6 points 
below standard to 68 points below 
standard or lower). 
 
        


 71.6 points below standard  68.6 points below standard 


The “Students with Disabilities” group 
will improve by at least 3 points on 
ELA CAASPP testing (from 81.6 
points below standard to 79 points 
below standard or lower). 
 
        


 81.6 points below standard  78.6 points below standard 


373/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


The “Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged” group will improve by 
at least 3 points on MATH CAASPP 
testing (from 68.6 points below 
standard to 65 points below standard 
or lower). 
 
        


 68.6 points below standard  65.6 points below standard 


The “Hispanic” group will improve by 
at least 3 points on ELA CAASPP 
testing (from 68.3 points below 
standard to 65 points below standard 
or lower). 
 
        


 68.3 points below standard  65.3 points below standard 


English Learner Progress on ELPAC         67.7% of English Learners grew one 
or more levels in their English 
language proficiency as measured by 
the spring 2019 ELPAC. 


 At least 70% of Mission Hill's English 
Learners will grow one or more levels 
in their English Language proficiency 
as measured by the spring 2021 
ELPAC. 


i-Ready Diagnostic in Reading, Fall to 
Spring        


 This is a new metric for the 2020-21 
school year, and baseline 
assessment data is not yet available. 


 For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring:  the All 
Student group will increase their 
percentile by a minimum of 4 
percentile points. 


i-Ready Diagnostic in Reading, Fall to 
Spring:  the Hispanic/Latinx group        


 This is a new metric for the 2020-21 
school year, and baseline 
assessment data is not yet available. 


 For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring:  the 
Hispanic/Latinx group will increase 
their percentile by a minimum of 5 
percentile points. 


i-Ready Diagnostic in Reading, Fall to 
Spring: the Students w/ Disabilities 
group        


 This is a new metric for the 2020-21 
school year, and baseline 
assessment data is not yet available. 


 For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: the Students 
w/ Disabilities group will increase 
their percentile by a minimum of 5 
percentile points. 


i-Ready Diagnostic in Reading, Fall to 
Spring:  the English Learner group        


 This is a new metric for the 2020-21 
school year, and baseline 
assessment data is not yet available. 


 For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring:  the English 
Learner group will increase their 
percentile by a minimum of 5 
percentile points. 


i-Ready Diagnostic in Reading, Fall to 
Spring: the low SES group        


 This is a new metric for the 2020-21 
school year, and baseline 
assessment data is not yet available. 


 For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: the low SES 
group will increase their percentile by 
a minimum of 5 percentile points. 


Principal walk-through Integrated 
ELD data        


   Principal walk-through data will show 
that Integrated ELD strategies  
(sentence starters, sentence frames, 
word banks, direct vocabulary 
instruction) are incorporated into 
instruction at least 50% of the time. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


374/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Strategy/Activity 1 
Collaborative Team meetings will occur at least weekly to focus on the implementation of equitable and aligned 
curricula through high quality instructional practices including: visible learning strategies, trauma-informed strategies, 
and integrated ELD strategies. Teams will work together to write essential learnings, create formative assessments, 
examine student work, and design next steps in learning including intervention and extension.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, EL students, RSP student, struggling students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, SCIL Leads, All Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
All students’ reading levels will be assessed through the i-Ready reading diagnostic assessment. The data gathered 
from this diagnostic will be used to determine student placement in Tier 2/3 reading interventions and to create 
differentiated  instruction in Tier 1 classrooms. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, EL students, RSP student, struggling students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, RTI Coordinator, ELA Teachers, Math Teachers, Intervention Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description i-Ready Reading Diagnostic Assessment. This reading assessment was given to us at no 
charge because we purchased the i-Ready/Math Ready math curriculum.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Learning Loss Mitigation funds will be used to hire three to four after school tutors (in addition to those in the WAVE 
program) to staff a Tier 2 literacy and math intervention program.  This program will be called MHMS Study Club. Each 
tutor will be in charge of about 10 students and activities will include: silent reading,  i-Ready work time, small group 
work, and individual check-ins. The RTI Coordinator will be responsible for managing this program and training all 
tutors. 
 
        


 


375/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Tier 2 Students in Math and Reading        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, RTI Coordinator, Study Club Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,600        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Learning Ally        


Amount 18,000        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Tutor salaries for Study Club        


Strategy/Activity 4 
RtI Coordinator will continue to monitor the progress of students in Tier 1, 2, 3 and work with admin and teachers to 
design/adapt reading and writing interventions as needed. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students, struggling students, ELD students, Resource students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, RTI Coordinator, School Counselors, ELA and Math Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 100,574        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.0 FTE RtI Coordinator        


Strategy/Activity 5 


376/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Admin will routinely conduct classroom walk through observations to gather data on schoolwide use of Integrated ELD 
strategies and Visible Learning strategies. This data will be used to inform instruction and provide meaningful feedback 
to teachers. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students, struggling students, ELD students, Resource students        


 
Timeline 
2020.2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 6 
The MHMS School Site Council will continue to meet at least 4x/yr to monitor the implementation of the site plan and 
budget, to examine schoolwide data, to provide input, and to make changes as necessary. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, School Site Council        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 300        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of hourly pay for staff representatives to School Site Council        


Strategy/Activity 7 
The MHMS SCIL team will be composed of teacher representatives from across all content areas and admin and 
counseling representatives.  The SCIL team will continue to meet monthly to plan and guide professional development 
activities for staff in accordance with school goals, to examine schoolwide data, to support each other's  growth as 
Teacher Leaders, and to make leadership decisions for the site. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, EL students, RSP student, struggling students        


 


377/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, SCIL Leads        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description stipends for SCIL Leads        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Staff will be provided with opportunities and encouraged  to attend professional development related to Goal 1 and its 
action steps. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, EL students, RSP student, struggling students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description cost of professional development activities and travel expenses as necessary        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Technology will be purchased to support high quality, 21st century instruction schoolwide. This may include 
replacement of aging technology such as chromebooks, headphones, printers, projectors, speakers, teacher laptops,  
and document cameras as well as the purchase of new technology.  New chromebooks carts will be purchased to 
cover the replacement of devices that were given out to families.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, EL students, RSP student, struggling students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 


378/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Site Admin, School Office Manager        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 6000-6999: Capital Outlay        


Description replacement cost of technology        


Amount 52000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 6000-6999: Capital Outlay        


Description cost of 4 new chromebook carts        


Strategy/Activity 10 
At the start of the year, all teachers will receive a “Teacher Binder” which identifies all special population students (EL, 
RFEP, Resource, 504, in transition, etc.), houses IEPs and 504 Plans, and all handouts from school-wide Professional 
Development. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Fall 2020        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, School Office Manager        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 200        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description cost of new binders and materials        


Strategy/Activity 11 
AVID will continue to support identified  students with literacy, organization, and other academic skills. Student 
materials and instructional materials will be purchased to support this. AVID Teachers and other staff will attend AVID 
Trainings as needed. The AVID Site Team will continue to meet monthly to create AVID Site Plan, review AVID data, 
monitor implementation of the AVID program, and to meet all compliance requirements for AVID certification.  In 
addition, two chromebook carts will be purchased specifically for the AVID classrooms to support students' 
development in 21st century skills.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
AVID Students        


379/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, AVID Teachers, AVID Site Team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 40,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of 0.4 AVID electives (part of allocated FTE)        


Amount 20,000        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of 0.2 AVID electives (funded by Santa Cruz Community Foundation Grant)        


Amount 2,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Funding for AVID Path Trainings        


Amount 1,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description extra hourly for AVID Teachers to attend AVID mini-trainings (Title 1) 
 
        


Amount 1,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description extra hourly for AVID Site Team meetings        


Amount 26000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 6000-6999: Capital Outlay        


Description cost of 2 chromebook carts for AVID rooms        


380/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Strategy/Activity 12 
Academic Literacy classes will support EL students’ growth in reading, writing, speaking, and listening in English. 
Emphasis will be placed on increasing students' knowledge and use of general academic language as well as providing 
support with content and skills emphasized in general education classes.  Student materials and instructional materials 
will be purchased to support this. Two para-educators will be hired to support students in Academic Literacy classes 
and to provide push-in support for newcomers in their general education classes.  Additionally, a chromebook cart will 
be purchased for ELD students to use in class to support their development of 21st century skills. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, ELD Teachers, all Teachers of EL students        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of 2 bilingual paraeducators for ELD classes        


Amount 1,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description curricular materials for ELD classes        


Amount 13000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 6000-6999: Capital Outlay        


Description cost of one chromebook cart        


Strategy/Activity 13 
ELAC will be used as an outreach vehicle to Spanish-speaking families. Funds will be used to pay for babysitting, 
translation, and food. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 


381/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


2020-2021        
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, School Community Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description cost of food for ELAC parents        


Amount 1,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description cost of babysitter for ELAC meetings        


Strategy/Activity 14 
Community Coordinator will continue to support communication between home and school and to especially support 
our Spanish-speaking students and families. In addition, the Community Coordinator will continue to work with the AP 
to plan and implement monthly ELAC meetings. A portion of the Communicator Coordinator hours will be paid out of 
the school budget. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, School Community Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 0.15 FTE Community Coordinator 
 
        


Strategy/Activity 15 
Read 180, our Tier 3 Reading Intervention, will support students needing to make significant reading growth. 
Instructional materials will be purchased to support this. In addition, System 44, the phonics program aligned with Read 
180 will be used in Tier 3 classrooms, including SPED, to support readers who are far below grade level.        


382/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
struggling readers        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, Intervention Teachers, Resource Teachers, SDC Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 0.2 Intervention Teacher (Read 180) - funded centrally through LCFF Supplemental 
funds 
 
        


Amount 17,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Read 180 curriculum update 
 
 
 
        


Amount 1,200        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description System 44 update        


Strategy/Activity 16 
We will continue to replenish and update our library with high interest, relevant novels and non-fiction reading 
selections.  Additionally, many books from last year were not been returned (due to the switch to distance learning) so 
our library collection needs more support than is our norm. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 


383/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Site admin, Teacher Librarian        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description New library books to update collection        


Strategy/Activity 17 
LRT meetings will continue to happen twice yearly to monitor the progress of EL and RFEP students.  New Teachers 
will receive training from ELD Teachers on how to use ELPP and their role in LRTs.  In addition, The ELD Task Force 
will continue to meet monthly to review data regarding English Language (EL) Learners, examine our 
practices/protocols for serving ELs and their families, and to make recommendations for changes targeted to reduce 
the instructional gap.  Members of the ELD Task Force will include the Academic Literacy teachers, the School 
Community Coordinator, the WAVE Coordinator, the RTI Coordinator,  representatives from admin and counseling, and 
teacher reps from across the campus. 
 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
ELD and RFEP Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, RTI Coordinator, Counseling Staff, ELD Teachers, All Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 300        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description hourly pay for new teachers to be trained on the ELPP and for ELD Teachers to lead 
training 
 
 
        


Amount 2,200        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of roving guest teachers for LRT meetings        


Amount 2,500        


384/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description hourly pay for teachers on ELD Task Force 
 
        


Strategy/Activity 18 
Admin, ELA staff, Teacher Librarian, and district staff  will work together to maintain and continue implementation of the 
reading comprehension program - Reading Counts -  to be used with all students.    In addition, the SDC classes will 
continue to work with students that are far below grade level in both reading and math. To support students’ reading 
needs, the SDC teachers will use leveled readings w/ comprehension questions from Reading A-Z. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, Teacher Librarian, ELA Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,300        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description cost of Reading Counts program (PTSA funds were used for this purchase in Summer 
2020) 
 
        


Amount 115.45        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Reading A-Z subscription 
 
        


Strategy/Activity 19 
As a school site, we will continue to offer the option of a Zero Period PE to provide ELD, RSP, AVID, and other student 
groups with the ability to have a preferred elective class.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
ELD Students, Resource Students, AVID Students        


 
Timeline 


385/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


2020-2021        
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, PE Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of adding 0.2 PE  for Zero Period PE        


Strategy/Activity 20 
To support all teachers in having appropriate, grade level, and differentiated texts for all students, a NewsELA license 
will be purchased. This paid version of NewsELA will integrate directly with Google Classroom. In addition, NewsELA 
training will be made available to all staff. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, Teacher Librarian, All Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 6,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description NewsELA site license 
 
        


 


386/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Mathematics          


 
Goal Statement 
MHMS will create an educational environment that supports all learners in high levels of achievement in mathematics. 
Specifically, we will maintain our high overall scores on CAASPP and I-Ready Diagnostic and close the gap between the 
“white only” group and the “Hispanic”, “Sw/D”, and “Low SES” groups on these math assessments. 
 
          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Math is an important "gate keeper" course in high school. Students with capable math skills are able to access higher 
courses in both math and science which sets students up for success in high school, college, and beyond.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


The "All Students" group will improve 
by at least 3 points on MATH 
CAASPP testing (from 7.1 point 
above standard to 10.1 points above 
standard or greater).        


 7.1 points above standard on 2019 
CAASPP 


 10.1 points above standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


The "English Learner" group will 
improve by at least 3 points on MATH  
CAASPP testing (from 96 points 
below standard to 93 points below 
standard or lower).        


 96 points below standard on 2019 
CAASPP 


 93 points below standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


The "Students with Disabilities" group 
will improve by at least 3 points on 
MATH CAASPP testing (from 129.2 
points below standard to 126.2 points 
below standard).        


 129.2 points below standard on 2019 
CAASPP 


 126.2 points below standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


The "Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged" group will improve by 
at least 3 points on MATH CAASPP 
testing (from 68.6 points below 
standard to 65.6 points below 
standard).        


 68.6 points below standard on 2019 
CAASPP 


 65.6 points below standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


The "Hispanic" group will improve by 
at least 3 points on MATH CAASPP 


 68.3 points below standard on 2019 
CAASPP 


 65.3 points below standard on 2021 
CAASPP 


387/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


testing (from 68.3 points below 
standard to 65.3 points below 
standard).        


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The All Student group will increase 
their percentile by a minimum of 4 
percentile points (from 54.39 to 
58.39). 
 
        


 54.39  58.39 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The Hispanic/Latinx group will 
increase their percentile by a 
minimum of 5 percentile points (from 
44.32 to 49.32). 
        


 44.32  49.32 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The Students w/ Disabilities group 
will increase their percentile by a 
minimum of 5 percentile points (from 
36.19 to 41.19). 
        


 36.19  41.19 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The English Learner group will 
increase their percentile by a 
minimum of 5 points (from 18.38 to 
23.38). 
        


 18.38  23.38 


For the i-Ready Diagnostic in 
Reading, Fall to Spring: 
The low SES group will increase their 
percentile by a minimum of 5 
percentile points. 
        


 Working to disaggregate data.   


Principal walk-through data focused 
on Teacher Clarity moves (Learning 
Goals and Success Criteria), 
Trauma-Informed Practices, and 
Integrated ELD strategies (sentences 
starters, sentence frames, word 
banks, direct vocabulary instruction)        


 Gathering baseline data  Principal walk-through data will show 
that Teacher Clarity moves (Learning 
Goals and Success Criteria) are 
regularly incorporated into instruction 
(posted on the board, stated aloud, or 
both) in Math classes at least 85% of 
the time, that Trauma-Informed 
Practices are incorporated into 
instruction at least 50% of the time, 
and that Integrated ELD strategies 
(sentences starters, sentence frames, 
word banks, direct vocabulary 
instruction) are incorporated into 
instruction at least 50% of the time. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 


388/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Collaborative Team meetings will occur at least weekly to focus on the implementation of equitable and aligned 
curricula through high quality instructional practices including: visible learning strategies, trauma-informed strategies, 
and integrated ELD strategies. Teams will work together to write essential learnings, create formative assessments, 
examine student work, and design next steps in learning including intervention and extension. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, SCIL Leaders, All Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
All students’ math levels will be assessed through the i-Ready mathematics diagnostic assessment. The data gathered 
from this diagnostic will be used to determine student placement in Tier 2/3 math interventions and to create 
differentiated  instruction in Tier 1 classrooms. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, struggling math students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2012        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, RTI Coordinator, Math Teachers, Intervention Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 53,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description iReady & Ready Math curriculum were purchased as distance learning MS math 
curriculum        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Learning Loss Mitigation funds will be used to hire 4 after school tutors (in addition to those in the WAVE program) to 
staff a Tier 2 literacy and math intervention program.  This program will be called MHMS Study Club. Each tutor will be 
in charge of about 10 students and activities will include: silent reading, i-Ready work time, small group work, and 


389/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


individual check-ins. The RTI Coordinator will be responsible for managing this program and training all tutors. Funds 
for 20hrs/week of tutoring will come from  District allocation of Learning Loss Mitigation (LLM) Funds. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Tier 2 students, students struggling in math        


 
Timeline 
Fall 2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Description See Goal #1 for budget information.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
RtI Coordinator will continue to monitor the progress of students in Tier 1, 2, 3 and work with admin and teachers to 
design/adapt math interventions as needed.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description RtI Coordinator. See Goal #1 for budget information        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Admin will routinely conduct classroom walk throughs in math classrooms to gather data on schoolwide math 
instruction. This data will be used to inform instruction and provide meaningful feedback to math teachers. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 


390/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Site admin        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 6 
The MHMS School Site Council will continue to meet at least 4x/yr to monitor the implementation of the site plan and 
budget, to examine schoolwide data, to provide input, and to make changes as necessary. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
 
Timeline 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Description See Goal #1 for budget information.        


Strategy/Activity 7 
The MHMS SCIL team will be composed of teacher representatives from across all content areas and admin and 
counseling representatives.  The SCIL team will continue to meet monthly to plan and guide professional development 
activities for staff in accordance with school goals, to examine schoolwide data, to support each other's  growth as 
Teacher Leaders, and to make leadership decisions for the site. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, SCIL Leads        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Description See Goal #1 for budget information.        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Staff will be provided with opportunities and encouraged  to attend professional development related to Goal 2 and its 
action steps. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, students struggling with Math        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


391/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, all Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Math related professional development.        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Technology will be purchased to support high quality, 21st century instruction schoolwide. This may include 
replacement of aging technology such as chromebooks, headphones, printers, projectors, speakers, teacher laptops,  
and document cameras as well as the purchase of new technology. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, School Office Manager        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 6000-6999: Capital Outlay        


Description Cost of replacement tech        


Strategy/Activity 10 
All Math Teachers will receive training in new i-Ready Math curricula.  In addition, all Math teachers will receive training 
in Equatio which will support Students w/ Disabilities in completing online coursework. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students, Students w/ Disabilities, struggling Math students        


 
Timeline 
Fall 2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
 


392/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Amount 1,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Hourly pay for teachers doing i-Ready training outside of contract hours        


Strategy/Activity 11 
WAVE, our after school program, will continue to focus on math and helping to improve students’ math work completion 
and math grades. During online learning, WAVE staff will work 1:1 and in small groups with students to support math 
and all content areas as needed. Special focus will also be given to relationship-building and socio-emotional supports 
for students.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
WAVE (We All Value our Education) Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, WAVE Coordinator, WAVE Staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 35,633        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Salaries for WAVE program staff        


Amount 1,000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Supplies for enrichment portion of WAVE (after school) Program        


Strategy/Activity 12 
Khan Academy, Khan Academy Spanish, and I-Ready will be used to support instruction for Spanish-speaking students 
and English-speaking students below grade level.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Struggling Math Students who are Bilingual        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, RTI Coordinator, Math Teachers, ELD Teachers        


393/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 0        


Description Khan Academy is a free online curricular resource.        


Strategy/Activity 13 
Tier 3 Math (Mindset Math)  will continue to support students who are below grade level in math. Student materials,  
instructional materials, and technology  will be purchased to support this intervention class.  In addition the Mindset 
Math Teacher and RTI Coordinator will have two release days (each) to plan intervention curriculum.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Struggling Math students        


 
Timeline 
2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal & Math Teacher        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Salary for 0.2 Intervention Teacher (Mindset Math)        


Amount 400        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Cost of guest teachers for Mindset Math Teacher and RTI Coordinator release days to 
plan intervention curriculum.        


Strategy/Activity 14 
Math textbooks in Spanish, at the appropriate grade level, will be purchased for our newcomer students. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Bilingual Math Students        


 
Timeline 
Fall 2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, School Office Manger, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


394/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Amount 300        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Cost of Math workbooks in Spanish        


Strategy/Activity 15 
Learning Loss Mitigation funds will be used to hire 1-2 additional para-educators to push in to math classes and provide 
support to students not at grade level (as determined by i-Ready Math Diagnostic testing) who are unable/unwilling to 
participate in WAVE or MHMS Study Club. 
 
 
 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, struggling Math students        


 
Timeline 
Fall 2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 30,000        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Cost of 2 paraeducators for Math        


Strategy/Activity 16 
Math materials to be created and sent home for distance learning (whiteboards, markers, etc.).        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
Fall 2020        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal and Math Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 700        


395/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Cost of Math materials to be sent home (whiteboards, markers, etc.)        


 


396/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
MHMS will improve school climate and culture by focusing on students’ behavioral, social, and emotional needs. 
Specifically we will continue our implementation of schoolwide Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS),  
reduce our chronic absenteeism rate, and add Trauma Informed strategies to our classroom practices.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
In order to support all learners, schools need to focus on social-emotional learning just as much as academics. Many 
students cannot engage academically until their socio-emotional needs are met; and students are more likely to achieve 
academically when learning institutions consider and support the whole child.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


The chronic absenteeism rate of 
16.1% (Fall 2019) will drop to at least 
10.1%, which is the state’s chronic 
absenteeism rate.        


 16.1% chronic absenteeism  10.1% chronic absenteeism 


When taking the Social Emotional 
Health Survey (SEHS), 80% of 
students will respond “strongly agree” 
or “agree” to the prompt: “I  feel like I 
am a part of this school” (71% in Fall 
2018, 70% in Fall 2019) 
 
        


 70%  80% 


When taking the SEHS, 80% of 
students will respond “strongly agree” 
or “agree” to the prompt: “I  feel safe 
in my school” (74.5% in Fall 2018, 
72% in Fall 2019). 
 
        


 72%  80% 


In 2019, the number of students 
suspended at least once will 
decrease by 0.5%. (2.8% students 
suspended at least once in 2018).        


 2.8%  2.3% 


397/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Principal walk-through data will show 
that Teacher Clarity moves (Learning 
Goals and Success Criteria) are 
regularly incorporated (posted on the 
board, stated aloud, or both) into 
instruction at least 85% of the time. 
 
        


 75% in 2019-20  85% in 2020-21 


Principal walk-through data will show 
that Trauma-Informed Practices are 
incorporated into instruction at least 
50% of the time. 
 
        


 This is a new metric, which means 
we have no baseline data. 


 50% 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
The PBIS Team will consist of the PBIS Coordinator, the RTI Coordinator, Admin and Counseling representatives, and 
teacher representatives from across content areas. The PBIS Team will meet monthly to continue to build and refine 
our PBIS practices, to design PBIS protocols, to create student incentive programs, to monitor data, and to determine 
PD needs for staff.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, PBIS Coordinator, PBIS Team, all teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2500        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Teacher hourly for PBIS Team meetings        


Amount 20,000        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Salary for 0.2 PBIS Coach (paid for by Santa Cruz Community Foundation Grant)        


Strategy/Activity 2 


398/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


The Social-Emotional Health Survey will be administered to all students. Counseling and Admin staff will take action 
steps for the whole school, small groups, and individuals as indicated by the survey results.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
Fall 2020        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin Team, PE Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 3 
Learning Loss Mitigation funds will be used to pay extra hourly for our School Psychologist to develop Professional 
Development for all staff on Trauma Informed Practices. The Professional Development for all staff will be delivered 
monthly during MHMS Staff Meetings and will be focused on Tier 1 strategies to use within the classroom to lower 
affective filters of students so that learning can occur. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students, students needing social-emotional support and feeling effects of trauma        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Admin, School Psychologist        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Extra hourly for School Psych to plan Trauma Informed professional development for 
MHMS staff        


Strategy/Activity 4 
RtI Coordinator will continue to monitor the progress of students in Tier 1, 2, 3 and work with admin and teachers to 
design/adapt math interventions as needed.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students, students in Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 


399/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description RtI Coordinator. See Goal #1 for budget information.        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Admin will routinely conduct classroom walk through observations to gather data on schoolwide use of  Visible Learning 
strategies and Trauma-Informed strategies. This data will be used to inform instruction and provide meaningful 
feedback to teachers.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 6 
The MHMS School Site Council will continue to meet at least 4x/yr to monitor the implementation of the site plan and 
budget, to examine schoolwide data, to provide input, and to make changes as necessary. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, School Site Council        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Description See Goal #1 for budget information.        


Strategy/Activity 7 
The MHMS SCIL team will be composed of teacher representatives from across all content areas and admin and 
counseling representatives.  The SCIL team will continue to meet monthly to plan and guide professional development 
activities for staff in accordance with school goals, to examine schoolwide data, to support each other's  growth as 
Teacher Leaders, and to make leadership decisions for the site.        


 


400/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all new students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, PBIS Coordinator, Counseling staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description SCIL Stipends. See Goal #1 for budget information.        


Strategy/Activity 8 
PBIS Team members will attend PBIS Cohort training sessions with Santa Clara County Office of Education.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, PBIS Team memnbers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4,250        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description cost of PBIS training for SCCOE        


Amount 4,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description extra hourly pay for teachers who attend PBIS trainings outside of contract hours        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Teachers and staff will liberally use Mighty Maverick tickets (or raffle tickets in virtual setting) to highlight/incentivize 
positive behaviors. Students can earn incentives by accumulating tickets. 
 
 
        


 


401/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, PBIS Coordinator, PBIS Team, all teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 500        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description for Mighty Maverick paper tickets or raffle tix        


Amount 500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description $500 for mason jars for each class        


Amount 500        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description Cost of student class incentives for each teacher        


Strategy/Activity 10 
The PBIS coordinator, PBIS Team members, and other staff and volunteers will work to maintain and staff  the PBIS 
Student Store (whether virtual or in-person). 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, PBIS Coordinator, PBIS Team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,000        


Source ASB        


402/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description student “prizes” for PBIS store        


Amount 1,500        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description Cost of student gift cards (paid by PTSA)        


Strategy/Activity 11 
The schoolwide matrix of behavioral expectations (PBIS) will be included in the school planner and explicitly taught in 
orientation programs, within classroom settings, and through MHTV.  Additionally, behavioral expectations will be 
posted in multiple settings across the campus. The behavioral matrix will be adjusted to support positive behaviors in 
the virtual setting.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, PBIS Coordinator, PBIS Team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,500        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Cost of signage for different areas of campus        


Strategy/Activity 12 
Maverick Essentials will be incorporated into instruction across the school.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, all teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 13 


403/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Positive postcards, reflecting the Maverick Essentials will be sent home to recognize student success.        
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2019-2020        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, RTI Coordinator, all teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 100        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description cost of having postcards printed with MHMS logo        


Strategy/Activity 14 
The Maverick Mentor program will continue. Maverick Mentors will be used to support new student orientation 
programs (before and during the school year) and to support family events (BTSN, Open House, etc.) throughout the 
school year. 
 
 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, Counseling staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 400        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description Cost of  Maverick Mentor t-shirts        


Amount 200        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


404/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Description cost of end-of-year Mav Mentor Celebration        


Strategy/Activity 15 
Student of the Grading Period selections (by teachers and staff) every six weeks will be based on the Maverick 
Essentials.  Additionally, Essential Excellence assemblies will happen three times a year and will focus on the Maverick 
Essentials.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, School Registrar, School Community Coordinator, all Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 100        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description Cost of student certificates        


Amount 250        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description cost of or student gifts (MHMS notebooks) for being selected as Student of the Grading 
Period        


Amount 200        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description  
cost of covering student donations to charitable organizations 
        


Amount 500        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description Cost of Essential Excellence stickers or other recognition awards (ASB)        


Strategy/Activity 16 
Administration, the RtI Coordinator, and Counseling staff will discuss students’ academic, behavioral, and social-
emotional needs during weekly MHMS Cabinet meetings.  In addition, Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions for behavioral and 
social-emotional needs will be created. 


405/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Tier 2  interventions -  small groups 
Tier 3 interventions -  1:1 check-ins (Counseling, Admin, RtI) 
Other supports (Social Worker, outside counseling, Parent Education). 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students in Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, RTI Coordinator, School Counselors,  Intervention Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 500        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description cost of Intervention curriculum for Counseling        


Strategy/Activity 17 
The entire staff will continue to support the use of the organized binder system to help students organize their learning, 
gain executive function skills, and enhance study skills. Scholarships will be provided to students who need them. (For 
the 2020-2021 school year, scholarships were provided to all students.)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, School Office Manager, School Community Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 6,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description cost of  organized binder materials        


Amount 5,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description cost of MHMS Planners        


406/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Strategy/Activity 18 
An Attendance Task Force will be created to meet weekly to look at attendance data and devise strategies to improve 
school-wide attendance. The Attendance Task Force will include the AP, Community Coordinator, Attendance Tech, 
ELD Teachers, and others as needed. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
students struggling with attendance issues        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, attendance tech, Attendance Task Force, counseling staff, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Cost of student attendance incentives        


Strategy/Activity 19 
The Attendance Tech will make timely phone calls to families regarding attendance issues. A portion of the Attendance 
Tech hours will be paid out of the school budget. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, attendance tech        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 8,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description cost of adding 0.25 FTE for attendance tech        


Strategy/Activity 20 
MHMS will continue to hold Club Fairs 1-2 x/yr. Students will be encouraged to create their own clubs or join existing 
clubs. Club membership will be open to all students.        


407/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
all students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
site admin, all Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 100        


Source ASB        


Budget Reference 0000: Unrestricted        


Description cost of Club Fair posters & materials        


Amount 200        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Cost of materials for Counseling-based clubs (Mindfulness, Mellow Mondays, etc.)        


 


408/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  145,000 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  620,622.45 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


409/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


         0.00 


ASB         3,650.00 


CARES Act         53,700.00 


District Funded         306,307.00 


Donations         43,000.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         77,700.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         1,300.00 


Title I         134,965.45 
 


410/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 61 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


0000: Unrestricted         6,650.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         270,774.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         121,633.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         99,315.45 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 5,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 16,250.00 


6000-6999: Capital Outlay         101,000.00 
 


411/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 62 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


           0.00 


0000: Unrestricted         ASB  3,650.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 CARES Act  5,000.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 CARES Act  48,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         CARES Act  700.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  190,574.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  35,633.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         District Funded  77,600.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 District Funded  2,500.00 


0000: Unrestricted         Donations  3,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Donations  40,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  1,300.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  8,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Supplemental  5,900.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  500.00 


6000-6999: Capital Outlay         LCFF - Supplemental  62,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  1,300.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  33,900.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  30,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Title I  13,815.45 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  2,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 Title I  16,250.00 


6000-6999: Capital Outlay         Title I  39,000.00 


 


412/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 63 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
1 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


5 Parent or Community Members        


0 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Kat McElwee         X Principal        


Amrik Nijor         X Other School Staff        


John Sapp         X Classroom Teacher        


Victoria Zumaya Long         X Parent or Community Member        


Sebastian Little         X Parent or Community Member        


Thao Mai         X Parent or Community Member        


Micah Silvey         X Parent or Community Member        


Roxanne Olson         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


413/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 64 of 64 Mission Hill Middle School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on October 5th, 2020. 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Kat McElwee on October 5th, 2020 


  SSC Chairperson, Victoria Zumaya Long on October 5th, 2020 


 


414/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
School Year:    2020-21   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 


Campus         
Address 840 North Branciforte Ave.         


Santa Cruz, CA 95062 
County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698156108203         


Principal Michelle McKinney         


District Name Monarch Elementary School         


SPSA Revision Date October 20, 2020         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date October 20, 2020         


Local Board Approval Date November 4, 2020         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


415/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Table of Contents 
 


SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 


Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 


School Vision and Mission ................................................................................................................................3 


School Profile ....................................................................................................................................................7 


Stakeholder Involvement ..................................................................................................................................8 


School and Student Performance Data ..........................................................................................................10 


Student Enrollment ..................................................................................................................................10 


CAASPP Results .....................................................................................................................................12 


ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................16 


Student Population ..................................................................................................................................19 


Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................20 


Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................21 


Academic Engagement ...........................................................................................................................26 


Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................28 


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................30 


Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................30 


Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................34 


Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................37 


Goal 4 ......................................................................................................................................................41 


Budget Summary and Consolidation ..............................................................................................................44 


Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................44 


Allocations by Funding Source ................................................................................................................44 


Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................45 


Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................46 


Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................47 


School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................48 


Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................49 


 


416/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School Vision and Mission 
 
Inspired Purpose 
A community of creative problem solvers learning to use their hearts and minds together. 
 
Vision 
Monarch students are expressive communicators and creative problem solvers who are willing to take risks. They take 
on leadership roles and have a voice in the school. They are competent and confident learners, both individually and in 
groups. Monarch students use their minds well: they find evidence, see from multiple viewpoints, discover connections, 
make suppositions, and determine relevance (Habits of Mind). They display personal best effort and are kind and helpful. 
They demonstrate listening skills and the ability to follow directions. Students develop a strong social consciousness that 
manifests in real social action. Monarch parents are involved in shared governance through active membership in Site 
Council and the Monarch Community School Parent Board. They are fundraisers. They are actively involved in school 
wide jobs. They are committed to clear communication with each other, the staff, and the students. Monarch parents are 
partners in supporting the educational mission of the school. 
 
Mission 
Students learn a foundation of skills and knowledge that will serve them well in life and in their academic careers. The 
Monarch "Bill of Rights" is the guide post for eliciting safe, pro-social behavior. All students are known well by many 
adults, including parents who volunteer in the classroom. The small size of the school, as well as parental and campus-
wide involvement, help to create good spirit and a sense of community. Students are usually grouped according to their 
learning needs, not their grade level or age. Students take responsibility for their learning and the learning of their fellow 
students by creating and evaluating learning goals, developing excellent Habits of Mind, creating culminating projects, 
exercising choices at multiple points in the curriculum, and initiating real-world actions, including community service. 
Curriculum and instructional strategies are planned collaboratively and adapted to the learning styles and developmental 
stages of the students. 
 
Monarch Alternative Community School Visioning Document/Long Range Plan 
Revised May 2016 
 
Basic Assumptions: 
At Monarch Community School we believe that for a school to operate effectively, its staff, parents, and students need to 
have a shared educational philosophy. We believe that learning is a lifelong process, that we are all learners, (students, 
teachers, and parents alike), and that there are developmental stages of social and academic maturity. People learn best 
from hands-on experiences both individually and in multi-age groups. Finally, and perhaps most importantly, we must 
feel safe and cared for in order to develop to our fullest potential. 
 
Philosophy: 
At Monarch, we believe that learning happens best when we are all working together, (students, teachers, and parents), 
to develop a rich learning environment spanning home, school, and the greater community. We are committed to 
providing a developmentally appropriate learning environment in which students are ‘constructing’ their own knowledge 
connected to their real lives and building upon their prior experiences.  We believe that students learn best when they 
are involved and engaged in purposeful learning in which they have: 
 
o Ownership and responsibility 
o A balance of choice and direction, experience and practice 
o Knowledgeable guides (adults, parents, mentor students) 
 
At Monarch, we nurture a culture of respect, where each individual works toward his or her personal best both 
academically and socially. 
 
What follows are descriptions of the Guiding Principles and Practices that are rooted in our assumptions about learning, 
and bring our philosophy to life.  They are generally broken down into three component areas: 1) Social-Emotional 
Curriculum, 2) Academic (Cognitive) Curriculum, and 3) Shared Governance/Community Relationships. 
 
Component I 
 
Social-Emotional Curriculum: 
 
Guiding Principles: 


417/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


The social-emotional curriculum is the foundation of our program. It is based on our beliefs about what is important for 
the social and emotional functioning of the school community. Our first and foremost goal is to create a healthy 
environment of mutual respect and dignity for both children and adults. This foundation gives the academic curriculum a 
place to root itself and grow.  To that end, we address several overall areas of social-emotional development: 
 
1. Intrapersonal skills: the ability to understand personal emotions and to use that understanding to develop self-
discipline and self-control and to learn from experiences. 
 
o We work toward helping young people develop into empowered, compassionate beings. 
o We support students in developing self-awareness so they can use their personal power to make choices that 
influence what happens to them as individuals and the community as a whole. 
o We create curriculum that develops self-esteem, a sense of competence, and a desire to learn. 
 
2. Interpersonal skills: the ability to work with others through listening, communicating, cooperating, negotiating, sharing 
and empathizing. 
 
o Spending time together in mixed-age groupings builds community and fosters a caring, closer-knit community. 
o We need to feel safe and included in order to develop to our fullest potential. 
o Students and adults need to feel that they contribute in meaningful ways and are needed. 
o All students and adults are capable people working toward their personal best. 
o We are all working toward being the best communicators and problem solvers we can be. 
 
3. Systemic skills: the ability to respond to the limits and consequences of every day life with responsibility, adaptability, 
flexibility and integrity. 
 
o We nurture tolerance, social justice, and personal responsibility. 
o We encourage students to take risks. We see making mistakes as an important part of social emotional development 
and learning. 
o We guide students toward developing self-motivation and self-direction in social and academic pursuits. 
o We lead students toward a sense of industry and competence, in both work and play. 
 
4. Judgment skill: the ability to develop wisdom and evaluate situations according to appropriate values. 
 
o We all have personal power that we can use to make good choices and influence what happens to our community and 
us. 
o We all work toward understanding how our behavior affects others, our community and the greater community. 
o Students and adults need to have many opportunities to improve their communication and problem solving skills 
through daily practice. 
o As students grow, we expect them to take on more responsibility for themselves, others and the community. 
 
5. Adults in the community accept responsibility for aiding and guiding students in their social emotional growth. 
 
o Adults role model the same open communication skills and problem solving techniques they wish students to use with 
each other in their behavior with other adults. 
o Adults are facilitators who direct children toward pro-social behaviors. 
o The staff shares a commitment to providing kind, firm behavior agreements and consequences. 
 
Current Practices: 
o Staff works collaboratively on both academic and social emotional issues. 
o Reading Buddies are used to develop and promote multi-age peer interactions, as are frequent cooperative, small 
group projects. 
o Our School Bill of Rights is used as a guide for behavior. A school-wide behavior agreement based on this is 
discussed and signed by all families when the year starts. Both are referenced frequently throughout the year. 
o Class meetings, all school community meetings, student leadership team, parent meetings, and staff meetings are all 
used as places to problem solve and discuss issues. They also serve to develop leadership skills and shared 
responsibility for our school community. 
o We all work to take responsibility and care for our community, school, materials and each other through classroom and 
school wide jobs. 
o Fun days, field trips, and learning celebrations are used to build community, share and celebrate. 
o Have a shared language for problem solving and create clear and reasonable consequences when needed. 
o Social activism and community service components of our program are developed. 
o Positive Discipline skills training for staff and parents is developed. 


418/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


o School-wide diversity and inclusion strategies and education are in place. 
o Support Monarch Community and Parent Board in various diversity celebratory events (i.e. Dia del Nino). 
o All BSSC shared professional development in Trauma Informed Schools. 
o Flexibility with location and structure of Community Meeting to meet the needs of the current student population. 
o In 2015-16, addition of part-time counseling services. 
 
 
Practices we are working toward: 
o Strengthen social activism and community service in all classes. 
o Supporting and developing the economic, ethnic, and language diversity of our community. 
o Investigate an anti-bias curriculum, i.e. Teaching Tolerance, Human Rights Campaign, etc. 
 
 
Component II 
 
The Academic (Cognitive) Curriculum 
With a strong and stable social-emotional curriculum as a foundation, the academic curriculum offers the students the 
framework to stretch themselves intellectually. Over the years at Monarch students progress from learning skills to 
developing and mastering these skills and then applying them. Through experiential learning they broaden and deepen 
their understanding of themselves and the world around them. 
 
Guiding Principles: 
1.Teaching and facilitating: 
 
Developmentally appropriate practice focuses on taking students from where they are and guiding them towards 
achieving their full potential.  Developmentally appropriate practice is rooted in Constructivist theory which is based on 
the idea that learning is most meaningful when based upon prior experience and connected to real life.  Adults in a 
Constructivist classroom scaffold student learning supporting students in stretching beyond their comfort zone and 
challenging them to reach beyond their current understandings. Engaging curriculum strategies that incorporate the 
Multiple Intelligences (linguistic, logical-mathematical, spatial, bodily kinesthetic, musical, interpersonal, intrapersonal, 
and ecological) are essential. 
 
Students are grouped in a variety of heterogeneous and homogenous groupings, with a low student to adult ratio. Adults 
and student mentors are integral to each student’s success as they assist the students in creating goals, taking 
responsibility for and reflecting upon their own learning. 
 
2. Curricular planning: 
 
We have created a thematic multi-year curricular plan, that is used school-wide. We use “backward planning” 
(Understanding by Design) methods to design curriculum and establish essential questions that guide thematic learning. 
Basic skills and Common Core State Standards (CCSS) are integrated into this plan as appropriate. Input to the 
curriculum comes from staff, students, and parents. The staff engages in training to support the process and refine their 
craft. Teachers have collaborative planning time in which they prepare the environment for learning, design curriculum, 
plan lessons, and coordinate instruction. 
 
3. Assessment and accountability: 
 
Our assessment system is based on portfolios that contain student work samples, assessments and rubrics that each 
student maintains throughout their time at Monarch. We utilize authentic assessment such as reflection on the student’s 
own learning, self-evaluation, teacher observation, basic skills assessment (to inform instruction), and provide ongoing 
progress information for parents as well as the greater community. Student portfolios, in combination with the 
assessment practices, give a balanced, authentic representation of the students’ learning. Exit criteria presentations are 
the culminating rite of passage where students exhibit present evidence of their learning over their years at Monarch. 
 
Current Practices: 
o Our math, reading and writing workshops offer differentiated instruction, which is designed to take advantage of small, 
strength-based, multi-age, group instruction. 
o Thematic centers and activities offer student opportunities for student- or teacher-selected, adult- or student-directed 
activities. 
o We offer elective courses that are led by teachers, parents, students, and other community volunteers and reflect the 
instructor’s and students' interests. 
o We offer choice time (exploration, play, and creativity), projects and learning centers. 


419/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


o We provide school wide inquiry-based, thematic, integrated curriculum school wide. 
o We integrate the Habits of Mind and Exit Criteria expectations throughout the students’ years at Monarch. 
o We provide access to art, music, and P.E. 
o Students have opportunities for multi-age social and academic activities. 
o Teachers, students and parents collaborate to generate the students’ learning goals. 
o Teachers connect lesson planning with formative assessments. 
o We maintain portfolios of select student work and assessments. 
o Parent conferences occur twice a year (more often if needed) to keep parents informed of students’ achievements and 
needs. At least one of these conferences is student led. 
o Twice yearly progress reports and conference records are maintained. 
o We provide training opportunities for our in-class adult community in order to have everyone (staff and volunteers) 
connected and working together in the best academic interests of the students. 
o We have a clearly defined family participation component that supports our academic goals. 
o We have standardized and formalized assessment components of our academic program, including development of 
school-wide formative assessments. 
o Students of Concern format is used three times a year to implement supports and on-going assessment for struggling 
students. 
o Working with English Language Development consultants on integrating ELD strategies into curriculum 
o Adding additional components to the student portfolios, including reflections and observations, and/or project-specific 
rubrics. 
o Adjusted grade span in portfolio system to TK-2 and 3-5. 
o Added exit criteria reference in Thematic Planning documents. 
 
Practices we are working toward: 
o More functionally integrating the portfolios into the students’ learning process by using developmental rubrics in each 
subject area, including Social Emotional skills. 
o Improving our ability to generate and evaluate clear academic and social goals that are both teacher and student 
initiated and measurable. 
o Continue building intervention support opportunities for struggling and language diverse students. 
 
Component III 
 
Shared Governance/Community Relationships 
In order for the social emotional and academic components to flourish, many different systems and activities must 
function behind the scenes.  We are a small, public school with limited funding. In order to provide the variety of 
educational options and small group instruction we feel is critical to student learning, we need a committed parent 
community who are highly involved in the education of our students and the running of our school. At Monarch it really 
does take the whole village to raise a child. 
 
Guiding Principles: 
o We share a community-wide vision and philosophy. We understand that this philosophy develops, grows, and changes 
over time, but we work to maintain its focus. 
o We are a small, family oriented, cooperative community that relies on dependable family participation. We offer equal 
access to our program regardless of in-district address, ability, personal connections, and language. All families are 
welcome. 
o We hope to instill a sense of social responsibility, ecological awareness and an understanding of the deep connection 
between the inner life of people and the surrounding environment. 
o We recognize the necessary relationship between school and community. We strive to maintain a positive image in the 
community through open communication. We work to build and maintain positive relationships with the community 
(district, S.C., etc.), other schools, other teachers, etc. 
o All levels (students, parents, and staff) participate in governance of the school. 
 
Current Practices: 
Many of these practices apply to more than one principle. The following bullet points are grouped according to the 
primary constituency they concern. 
 
Monarch Community School 
o Courses - weekly, parent/student, or volunteer led elective courses whose focus is team building and social ease 
among multi-age members. 
o Field trips – monthly school-wide and/or core group trips generally related to current curricular theme. 
o Family participation Agreement – families provide consistent classroom assistance as well as participate in out-of-
classroom projects or jobs. 


420/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


o Student Leadership Team – has community-based responsibilities including planning and presiding at school events, 
as well as events outside the school community. 
o Fundraising 
o Parent meetings – classroom, committee, emergency, community building, planning, and parent education/training. 
o Regular class meetings, all-school weekly meetings 
o Prompt response to parent concerns 
o Open, consistent communication between school and home (newsletter, phone tree, email, buddies, classroom 
coordinators, weekly school bulletins, one-on-one conferencing). 
 
District 
o Open enrollment 
o Adhere to district mandates and policies 
o Maintain positive relationship with the district 
o Open to visits from district and school board 
o Maintain positive relationship with teachers’ and classified employees’ unions 
o Santa Cruz Education Foundation 
o CHS buddy classes 
o All BSSC events (i.e. Dia del Nino, Storytelling Festival, etc.) 
o All BSSC Site Council 
o All BSSC and Branciforte Middle School shared professional development in Trauma Informed Schools 
o Representation on district-wide committees, task forces, PLCs 
 
 
State 
o Site Council – oversees LCAP funds, annual Site Plan/Single Plan for Student Achievement, when funds are available 
o Consider Common Core State Standards in curriculum planning 
o Maintain positive relationship with state 
o Adhere to Ed code, Section 504 and IEP rules, including instructional minutes, staffing ratios, etc. 
o Advocate for increased revenues 
 
Global 
o Guest speakers who share their experiences 
o Field trips 
o School wide projects 
 
Practices we are working towards: 
o Increasing family participation 
o Increasing fundraising including grant writing 
o Develop school-wide and/or group specific project focused on community service and social justice 
o Clarify and develop role of student leadership team 
o Increasing participation in ELAC 
o Regular interaction/outreach with local Headstart 
o Recruiting and maintaining support staff (Community Coordinator, learning assistants, etc.) 
 
 
References 
Koetzsch, R. (1997).  The Parents’ guide to alternatives in education.  Boston, MA:  Shambala. 
Nelson, J., Lott, L., & Glenn, S. (2000). Positive discipline in the classroom: Developing mutual respect, cooperation and 
responsibility in your classroom.  Roseville, CA:  Prima Publishers. 
Rogoff, B., Goodman Turkanis, C., & Bartlett, L. (2001).  Learning together:  Children and adults in a school community.  
Oxford; New York:  Oxford Univ. Press. 
 
 
 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 


421/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


With the onset of COVID-19 school closures in March 2020, Monarch teachers and students were forced into Distance 
Learning with minimal opportunity for professional development and transition time to the new format. As a result, one of 
the six teachers left the school in March creating a classroom full of students without a teacher and we resorted to 
bringing a retired teacher in as a full-time substitute teacher. Over the summer, several families opted to leave the school 
for homeschooling or other educational options, reducing our enrollment from 149 to 134. This led to the elimination of 
an entire class of students, and we permanently lowered our staff to 5 teachers, and retained our two part time learning 
assistants. Unfortunately our students experienced degrees of learning loss in the spring. Over the summer, the five 
teachers took opportunities to participate in voluntary professional development offered by the Santa Cruz City School 
District and SC County Office Education to prepare for Distance Learning in the fall semester. As the fall semester 
commenced, the students and families were adapting to the routines and tools of Distance Learning. Without the benefit 
of end of year assessment and in-person beginning of year assessment, we are finding that students are requiring higher 
levels of support. Many of our students are at our school of choice as they thrive in a social learning environment and the 
loss of this teaching tool has had an impact on student progress. In addition, at the end of the 2019-20 school year, we 
emptied our classrooms of instructional materials and are carrying out bi-monthly materials distribution days, emptying 
reserves of materials that have yet to be able to be replenished, including hundreds of titles from the BSSC library.  
 
Following the lead of the Santa Cruz City Schools District’s guidelines, we restructured the school days to meet and 
exceed the daily minimum requirement for instructional minutes. As Monarch is a community school, we place a value on 
small group instruction, and have been able to provide such by scheduling synchronous and asynchronous instruction 
throughout the school day. Teachers offer an additional 90 minutes of office hours and/or individual 1:1 assessment and 
intervention appointments each day of the week in order to meet the needs of the students. Students are afforded 
multiple opportunities to connect with their teachers and peers each day via synchronous Zoom meetings, messages via 
Google classroom, and direct email communication. Monarch has been able to maintain its school wide emphasis on 
thematic learning in the fall with a focus on Participating in Democracy.  
 
As we look forward to welcoming small cohorts of students back to campus we will need to add several paraeducators 
and tutors to help support them in person. As we prepare for a hybrid reopening at some point in 2020-21 we expect to 
continue to need these additional personnel to support the students who are not in the classroom.  


• ------------------------- 


Monarch is a small alternative elementary school. We provide a developmental approach, where each child is seen as 
an individual with various strengths and needs. Our curriculum uses science and social studies themes from the 
Common Core State Standards to teach both basic skills and critical thinking to our students in mixed-age groups.  
 
The foundation of our program is a robust social-emotional curriculum, based on the Positive Discipline philosophy. Our 
goal is to create a healthy environment of mutual respect and dignity for both children and adults, as well as to foster 
good communication and problem-solving skills. This foundation gives the academic curriculum a place to root and grow.  
 
Monarch is located on the Branciforte Small Schools Campus (BSSC) and has five multiage classrooms. Children are 
grouped according to their academic and social strengths, not according to their age alone. The school benefits from the 
support of the nonprofit Monarch Community Board, a group of parents that supports parent participation, parent 
education, and fund-raising within our school community. Parent participation is critical to the running of the school and 
the spirit of the community.  
 
This year, students successfully “graduated” from Monarch to Branciforte and Mission Hill Middle Schools, Alternative 
Family Education (AFE) Home school, Georgiana Bruce Kirby Preparatory School and Pacific Collegiate Charter School.  
 
Every year, graduating students demonstrate their mastery of our exit criteria to a panel of adults and peer students. 
Graduating students present evidence showing their academic growth in all subject areas including Math and English 
Language Arts, as well as leadership development, while at Monarch School.  
 
In March, 2020, Monarch School began Distance Learning due to the COVID-19 pandemic. All instruction shifted to an 
online platform, and each classroom began utilizing Google Classroom as means of organizing instructional resources 
and communication from classroom to family.  
 


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 


422/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
This plan is reviewed and approved annually by the School Site Council, which consists of students, parents, classified 
and certificated staff, and administrators. In addition, the parent group reviews the plan while planning fundraising goals. 
The plan is available to stakeholders via the school's website. District personnel, Director of Curriculum, and Assistant 
Superintendent of Instruction also provide input and suggestions for goal setting based on student data.         


 


423/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


American Indian     % % 0%          0 


African American     5.59% 5.67% 2.99% 8        8 4 


Asian     % 0.71% 2.99%         1 4 


Filipino     % % 0%          0 


Hispanic/Latino     24.48% 26.24% 25.37% 35        37 34 


Pacific Islander     % % 0%          0 


White     63.64% 58.16% 64.18% 91        82 86 


Multiple/No Response     % 2.13% 4.48%         3 0 


 Total Enrollment 143 141 134 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


17-18 18-19 19-20 


Kindergarten        23 24 23 


Grade 1        22 22 24 


Grade 2        23 20 23 


Grade3        22 26 20 


Grade 4        28 22 24 


Grade 5        25 27 20 


Total Enrollment        143 141 134 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Adding 20 students and an additional classroom complies with Class Size reduction.        


2. The multi-age nature of the classrooms allows families to enroll multiple members of their families in a school with 
consistent pedagogy, rigor, and emphasis on social/emotional curriculum.        


3. The current classroom configuration necessitates enrolling students in to the intermediate classrooms, therefore 
creating inconsistency in commitments and understanding of pedagogy and expectations of rigor, and invites 
students who  have been chronically unsuccessful to have opportunities for building different sets of skills and 
coping strategies.        


 


424/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


English Learners        29 28 22 20.3% 19.9% 16.4% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        11 9 9 7.7% 6.4% 6.7% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        1 0 1 3.4% 0.0% 3.6% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Students are not reclassifying while in the K-5 grades.        


2. Over the years, the school's EL population is maintaining at above 20%.        


3. In order to stay within EL parity for the District average, the school might increase its EL population by 5%.        


 


425/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * 25 * * 4 * * 4   16 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 5 * 25 25 * 13 6 * 13 6  52 24 
All 
Grades 


* 75 70 * 17 11 * 17 11  22.7 15.7 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 2475.
1 


* * 7.69 * * 15.38 * * 38.46 * * 38.46 * 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A * 5.88 45.45 * 23.53 18.18 * 35.29 9.09 * 35.29 27.27 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 7.69 * * 61.54 * * 30.77 * 


All Grades * 5.88 36.36 * 70.59 36.36 * 23.53 27.27 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 7.69 * * 38.46 * * 53.85 * 


All Grades * 11.76 18.18 * 41.18 63.64 * 47.06 18.18 
 


426/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 15.38 * * 69.23 * * 15.38 * 


All Grades * 17.65 36.36 * 64.71 36.36 * 17.65 27.27 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 23.08 * * 46.15 * * 30.77 * 


All Grades * 29.41 54.55 * 35.29 18.18 * 35.29 27.27 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The data presented in these tables is not statistically significant.        


2. Not statistically significant sample size.        


 


427/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * 25 * * 4 * * 4   16 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * *    


Grade 5 * 25 25 * 11 6 * 11 6  44 24 
All 
Grades 


* 75 70 * 16 11 * 16 11  21.3 15.7 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 2431.
8 


* * 9.09 * * 0.00 * * 27.27 * * 63.64 * 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A * 6.25 9.09 * 12.50 9.09 * 25.00 27.27 * 56.25 54.55 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 0.00 * * 27.27 * * 72.73 * 


All Grades * 6.25 9.09 * 31.25 18.18 * 62.50 72.73 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 9.09 * * 27.27 * * 63.64 * 


All Grades * 12.50 9.09 * 31.25 36.36 * 56.25 54.55 
 


428/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 4 * * * * * * * * * 


Grade 5 * 0.00 * * 27.27 * * 72.73 * 


All Grades * 12.50 9.09 * 31.25 54.55 * 56.25 36.36 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Not statistically significant sample size.        


2. The data presented in these tables is not statistically significant.        


 


429/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade K        * * * * * * * 4 


Grade 1        * * * * * * * * 


Grade 2        * * * * * * * 5 


Grade 3        * * * * * * * 4 


Grade 4        * * * * * * * 8 


Grade 5        * * * * * * * 5 


All Grades              30 28 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * * * *  *  * * * 


   1    * *  *  * * * * * 


   2    * *  * * *  * * * 


   3     * * * * * * * * * 


   4    * * * * * *  * * * 


   5     * * * * *  * * * 


All Grades        * 14.29 * 50.00 * 17.86 * 17.86 30 28 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * * * *  *  * * * 


   1    * * * * * *  * * * 


   2    * * * *  *  * * * 


   3    * * * * * * * * * * 


   4    * * * * * *  * * * 


All Grades        36.67 39.29 43.33 42.86 * 7.14 * 10.71 30 28 
 


430/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K     * * * * *  * * * 


   1    * *  *  * * * * * 


   2     * * * * * * * * * 


   3     * * * * * * * * * 


   4    * * * * * * * * * * 


   5     * * * * *  * * * 


All Grades        * 7.14 * 17.86 * 39.29 43.33 35.71 30 28 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   3    * * * * * * * * 


   4    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        46.67 17.86 36.67 64.29 * 17.86 30 28 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   1    * * * * * * * * 


   3    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        43.33 53.57 50.00 39.29 * 7.14 30 28 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   3    * * * * * * * * 


   4    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 10.71 * 53.57 53.33 35.71 30 28 
 


431/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   1    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 3.57 56.67 64.29 40.00 32.14 30 28 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The data presented in these tables is not statistically significant.        


2. Not statistically significant sample size.        


 
 


432/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2018-19 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


141        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


36.9        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


19.9        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2018-19 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        28 19.9 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        52 36.9 


Students with Disabilities        22 15.6 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        8 5.7 


Asian        1 0.7 


Hispanic        37 26.2 


Two or More Races        10 7.1 


White        82 58.2 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The school is within SED parity for the District average.        


2. The school's population of students with disabilities is within the RtI pyramid model's 20/80 Tier 3 to Tiers 1 and 2 
expectation.        


3. In order to stay within EL parity for the District average, the school might increase its EL population by 5%.        


 
 


433/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
No Performance Color        


 
Mathematics 


 
No Performance Color        


Academic Engagement 


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Orange        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Blue        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Chronic absenteeism is a place for improvement.        


 
 


434/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


2.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++42.5 points         
11        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 


435/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Reclassified English Learners 


0 Students        


English Only 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


5        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Not statistically significant sample size.        


2. The data presented in these tables is not statistically significant.        


 
 


436/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
No Performance Color         


87 points below standard         


Increased ++10.8 points         


11        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Foster Youth 


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


 


437/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


American Indian Asian     Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Pacific Islander White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Reclassified English Learners English Only 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


5        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Not statistically significant sample size.        


2. The data presented in these tables is not statistically significant.        


 
 


438/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


70.8 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 24          


Performance Level: Very High        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


12.5         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


16.6         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


4.1         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


66.6         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The school will construct goals that will support English Language Learners.        


 
 


439/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
1        


Orange        
3        


Yellow        
1        


Green        
0        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


17.7         


Increased +4.5         


141        


English Learners 


 
Orange         


20         


Maintained 0         


30        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


19.2         


Increased +1.6         


52        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


20         


Declined -2.6         


30        


 


440/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


8        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


Hispanic 


 
Red         


29.7         


Increased +4.7         


37        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


23.1         


13        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


White     


 
Orange         


12.2         


Increased +2.3         


82        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Attention to chronic absenteeism is a place for growth at this school.        


2. Attention to supporting Hispanic students with chronic absenteeism is a place for growth at this school.        


 
 


441/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


5        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


0         


Declined -0.7         
142        


English Learners 


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
31        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
53        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Blue         


0         


Declined -3.2         
30        


 


442/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          8        


American Indian Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1        


Filipino 


Hispanic 


 
Blue         


0         


Declined -2.8         
38        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


0         


13        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
82        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
0.7         


2019     
0         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All staff is participating in 12 hours of training in Restorative Justice principles and practices as part of a three-year 


implementation plan at the school.        
 
 


443/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Academic Literacy          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will make academic literacy growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
When analyzing student growth on the reading developmental rubric and F&P/DRA assessment of all students, we find 
that overall students are not meeting the projected growth criteria. With the onset of COVID-19 school closures in March 
2020, Monarch teachers and students were forced into Distance Learning with minimal opportunity for transition to the 
new format. As a result, one of the six teachers left the school in March creating a classroom full of students without a 
teacher and we resorted to bringing a retired teacher in as a full-time substitute teacher.  Unfortunately our students 
experienced degrees of learning loss in the spring. Without the benefit of end of year assessment and in-person 
beginning of year assessment, we are finding that students are requiring higher levels of support. Many of our students 
are at our school of choice as they thrive in a social learning environment and the loss of this teaching tool has had an 
impact on student progress. As Monarch is a community school, we place a high value on small group instruction, and 
were not able to provide such instruction, nor viable, end of year assessment data in 2019-20.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


F&P Assessment:  All students are 
expected to make at least one year of 
growth        


 This is a new metric.  Baseline data 
will be available at the end of the 
2020-21 school year 


 Establish baseline scores for all 
students 


Developmental Reading Rubric: All 
students are expected to make at 
least one year of growth.        


 In 2019-20, 65% of all students 
moved at least one column on the 
rubric. 6% did not make adequate 
growth. 


 We will increase the percentage of all 
students making at least one year 
growth on the developmental reading 
rubric by at least 6% to 100%. 


Developmental Writing Rubric: All 
students are expected to make at 
least one year of growth.        


 In 2019-20 55% of all students 
moved at least one column on the 
rubric. 4% did not make adequate 
growth. 


 We will increase the percentage of all 
students making at least one year 
growth on the developmental writing 
rubric by at least 4% to 100%. 


MAP Reading: All students in grades 
3-5 will make at least one year of 
growth        


 This is a new metric.  Baseline data 
will be available at the end of the 
2020-21 school year 


 Establish baseline scores for all 
students 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 


444/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
A Tier 1 Academic Literacy school wide focus for the 2020-21 school year is on reading and writing in all content areas. 
1. We will do this by focusing our year long site PD on scaffolding and supporting students with different types of 
academic writing via digital formats. 
2. We will change our common formative and summative reading assessment tools to more closely reflect the demands 
of the Common Core. Teachers will be trained to use these new tools to inform instruction, support students in short 
and long-term goal setting that is in alignment with developmental rubrics, and provide a data format to share with 
families on how to work with their students outside of school. 
3. In our PLC we will be trained to use Writers Workshop checklists and other formative assessments to support 
students in self-evaluation and goal setting. 
4. We will offer after school tutoring in grade span groupings during Distance Learning. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-21 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Staff, admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2800        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description After School Tutoring        


Amount 5000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Books and Supplies        


Strategy/Activity 2 
A Tier 1 & Tier 2 strategy/activity will be to offer online supports for literacy instruction. 
Purchase and Professional Development for online academic literacy supports, including Epic books, Lexia, Learning 
Ally 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students of Concern and students learning English as an additional language, as well as general ed classrooms        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-21 school year.        


 


445/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Person(s) Responsible 
Directors of Curriculum        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Online Learning Licenses        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description See Goal 1, Strategy 1. Instructional materials for academic intervention and instruction        


Strategy/Activity 3 
A Tier 1 & Tier 2 strategy will be to purchase and administer the MAP Growth from NWEA online assessment for 
Reading and Mathematics.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students grades 3-5        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing in 2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
admin and staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 900.00        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description MAP growth assessment        


Strategy/Activity 4 
A Tier 2 strategy/activity will be to offer small group cohort support/paraeducators during Distance Learning in grade 
span groups in early literacy.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students of Concern in grade span groups        


 
Timeline 
Two semesters based on student need        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
admin and staff        


 


446/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Amount 23,800        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Small group cohort support        


Amount 1400        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Small group cohort support        


Amount 5800        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Small group cohort support        


Amount 3125        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Books and materials to support learning        


 


447/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Mathematics          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will make mathematics growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
When analyzing student growth on MAP assessment of third though fifth grade students, we find that overall students 
are not meeting the projected growth criteria. Students in the younger grades, however, are making greater advances on 
local summative assessments. We believe this may be the case because the younger students are exposed to 
Cognitively Guided Instruction and are constructing their own meaning whereas the older students are relying more on 
traditional methods.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Developmental Mathematics Rubric: 
All students are expected to make at 
least one year of growth.        


 In 2019-20 , 53% of all students 
moved at least one column on the 
rubric. 47% did not make adequate 
growth. 


 We will increase the percentage of all 
students making at least one year 
growth by at least 5%. 


MAP Growth data: All students are 
expected to make at least one year's 
growth.        


 In 2019-20, 79% of students who 
were able to complete two 
administrations made at least one 
year's growth in the MAP RIT score. 


 We will increase the percentage of 
students making at least one year's 
growth by 10%. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
A Tier 1 Mathematics school wide focus for the 2020-21 school year is on improving practice with the CCSS 
Mathematics standards and practices. 
1. We will do this by focusing our year long site PD on implementing the standards and practices through deepening 
teachers' understanding of tools such as Problem of the Month, MARS tasks, Eureka Math strategies, and Cognitively 
Guided Instruction, and participate in school wide Project Based Learning professional development. 
2. We will use data cycles and lesson study to meet students' needs while building on foundational learning in our PLC 
work. 


448/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


3. We will review, align, and revise assessment tools to more closely reflect the demands of the Common Core in our 
PLC meetings. 
4. Purchase classroom materials that support the needs of diverse learners. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-21 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Admin, teachers, SCIL leader 
        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4618        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase classroom materials that support the needs of diverse learners        


Amount 3125        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Instructional materials        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Provide targeted in class support for Students of Concern.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students of Concern as identified by teachers.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing in 2020-21        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
admin, staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 14,000        


Source Title I        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Part time instructional interventionist        


449/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Strategy/Activity 3 
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
 
Timeline 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


 


450/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
English Learner Progress          


 
Goal Statement 
All English Learners will be academically successful.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
The spring of 2018 was the first administration of the new California English Learner assessment called English 
Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC). Our Dashboard shows that 71% of students are making 
progress towards English language proficiency. Due to school closure the spring 2019 administration was canceled. 
Hopefully, we will have an administration of the ELPAC in spring of 2020 and be able to use this tool to better support EL 
students in the academic progress. 
 
In addition to the ELPAC, our school monitors our English Learner progress by using the CA Dashboard Academic 
Engagement, and School Conditions and Climate data, as well as growth on the English Language Proficiency Profile 
(ELPP); achievement of Individualized Service Plan (ISP) goals; and the Mathematics developmental rubrics. In 
analyzing all of these data points, we see that supporting our English Learners in academic areas needs to be a focus 
for our school. See below for specific English Learner metrics and data. 
          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism: The 
percentage of English Learners 
chronically absent, meaning students 
that have been absent more than 
10% of the school year.        


 In the 19-20 school year, 20% of 
English Learners were chronically 
absent. 


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent English Learners 
by at least 5%. 


Suspension Rate: The percentage of 
English Learners being suspended 
during the school year.        


 In the 19-20 school year there were 
zero suspensions of English 
Learners. 


 Continue to maintain zero 
suspensions of English Learners in 
2020-21. 


Growth on the ELPP rubric: using the 
criteria on the ELPP, individualized 
goals for each student are created 
and revised at two Language Review 
Team (LRT) meetings per year.        


 In 2019-20, 75% made at least one 
year's growth, 7% did not. 


 We will increase the percentage of 
English Learners improving on the 
ELPP by at least 5%. 


ISP: Students receive integrated and 
direct ELD instruction in support of 


 In the 19-20 school year, 75% of 
English Learners showed 
improvement on the ELLP. 


 We will increase the percentage of 
English Learners improving on the 
ELPP by at least 5%. 


451/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


achieving individualized English 
Language Development criteria.        


Developmental Mathematics Rubric: 
Students are expected to make at 
least one year of growth.        


 In the 19-20 school year, 33% of 
English Learners made at least one 
year of growth 


 We will increase the percentage of 
English Learners making at least one 
year growth by at least 5%. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
School Community Liaison will facilitate communication with Spanish speaking families including translation at all 
meetings and for documents regarding students' progress, schedule meetings and conferences with Spanish speaking 
families, and assist with monitoring in class parent participation. Through ELAC meetings, Spanish speaking parents 
will be exposed to instructional strategies and assessment practices for English development, and how to support their 
students at home.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 
2020-21 academic year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Admin, teachers, consultant, SCIL, Counselor, Community Liaison        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description School Community Liaison SF (salary listed in Goal #4)        


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Strategy/Activity 2 
The part-time para-educator assists English learners in the General Ed classroom with small group and individual 
support, under the direction of the certificated teachers.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language Learners        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-21 school year.        


452/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, SCIL, teachers, instructional tech        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description paraeducator        


Strategy/Activity 3 
The bi-lingual .2 FTE school counselor will have regular meetings with English Learners to help navigate the social and 
academic demands of school, through Lunch Bunch, supporting students in the General Ed classroom, and meeting 
with students as needed.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
EL students        


 
Timeline 
Throughout the 2020-21 year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
admin        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Part-time social emotional counselor NGP        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Instructional supplies to support students in improving academic and language outcomes.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English language learners        


 
Timeline 
March 2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
admin, staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4858        


453/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Instructional materials        


 


454/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 4 
 
Subject 
School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will feel connected to their school. Improve students'  feelings of well-being, safety, and community through 
implementation of Restorative Justice principles and practices, Positive Discipline, and tenets and practices of Trauma-
informed schools.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
In analyzing the CA Dashboard chronic absenteeism data, the California Healthy Kid Survey data, and the Socio-
Emotional Health Survey we see that a focus on School Connectedness is an area of need. When determining the level 
of School Connectedness in our school, we are specifically looking at data related to students reporting they have 
supportive, caring relationships with adults and peers, and there is a sense of student safety that promotes pro-social 
behaviors on campus.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 17.7% of all students were chronically 
absent in 2019-20. 


 We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent "All Students" by 
5% or more. 
 


SEHS survey: School Belonging and 
Membership data        


 23% of the students surveyed 
responded 'never' to School 
Belonging statements. 


 We will decrease the percentage of 
students who don't feel a sense of 
belonging by 5% or more. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
In 2020-21, all Branciforte Small Schools staff (certificated and classified) will continue learning Restorative Justice 
principles and practices. This is a three-year commitment that aligns with the deep work and resources devoted to 
training and supporting adults and children in the practices and principles of Positive Discipline and Trauma Informed 
Services.  We will develop  student, parent and staff surveys on this topic, as well as use surveys provided by the 
consultant company. The part-time school counselor will reinforce the social-emotional curriculum in her meetings with 
groups and individual students.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


455/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


All students        
 
Timeline 
The 2020-21 academic year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, SCIL, RJ Leadership team member        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source Other        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Branciforte Small schools will support an MOU with professional development services 
for training for all staff in principles and practices of Restorative Justice.        


Strategy/Activity 2 
In addition to the further implementation of Restorative Justice practices, families and staff will be offered (funded by 
the PTA) trainings in Positive Discipline. Staff will continue to teach and implement grounding strategies with students, 
SCIL team and other teachers may form a study group to plan for fourth year of implementation, and use resources 
from Sanford Harmony curriculum to work towards this School Connectedness goal.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
The 2020-21 academic year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, consultant        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source None Specified        


Budget Reference None Specified        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Monarch school is home to a diverse population including several African or African-American students (9%). In 
addition, four students identify as trans-gender (3%); 20% of the students are English Learners; 14% of the students 
are fully served in the Resource program; 3 students are in adoptive families; and one student uses a power 
wheelchair. In order to build on this diversity, we will continue to develop and implement a Creating a Community of 
Belonging Program. 
1. We will work with a team of parent volunteers trained in Cultural Competency to develop and implement an on-going 
support group for people who want to work towards Cultural Competency. 
2. We will investigate presentations from local community resources will be offered to the students and staff. 
3. The Community Building committee will continue to work with the parent community to promote inclusion and equity 
in conjunction with the School Community Liaison. 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


456/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
Timeline 
The 2020-21 academic year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, SCIL, consultant        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 240        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Book study texts for staff development        


Strategy/Activity 4 
The ELAC, School Site Council, and parent group will have at least one yearly joint meeting co-facilitated by school 
community coordinator.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, families of English Learners        


 
Timeline 
The 2020-21 academic year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin, SCIL, School Community Liaison        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description School Community Liaison        


 


457/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application   


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  69,666.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


458/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


CARES Act         36,316.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         11,700.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         6,250.00 


Title I         15,400.00 
 


459/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         2,800.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         45,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         20,966.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 900.00 


 


460/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 CARES Act  2,800.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 CARES Act  23,800.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         CARES Act  9,716.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  5,800.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Supplemental  5,000.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  900.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  6,250.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title I  15,400.00 


 


461/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
2 School Principal        
4 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


5 Parent or Community Members        


2 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Naima Leal         X Principal        


Michelle McKinney         X Principal        


Dominc Yarbrough         X Classroom Teacher        


X Parent or Community Member        


Zack Garban         X Classroom Teacher        


Margi Ilic         X Classroom Teacher        


Peter Deutsch         X Classroom Teacher        


X Parent or Community Member        


Gail Mabrouk         X Other School Staff        


Paul Leibetrau         X Parent or Community Member        


Tara McCullough         X Parent or Community Member        


Crystal Williams-McNish         X Parent or Community Member        


Katiana Leibetrau         X Secondary Student        


Marcus Anderson         X Secondary Student        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


462/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 49 Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on . 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Michelle McKinney on  


 


463/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


 
School Year:    2020-21   


SPSA Title Page 


 
 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 


464/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Santa Cruz High School         


Address 415 Walnut Ave         
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3633 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 4469823447109         


Principal Michelle Poirier         


District Name Santa Cruz High School         


SPSA Revision Date October 8, 2020         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date October 21, 2020         


Local Board Approval Date November 4, 2020         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


465/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Table of Contents 
 


SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 


Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................3 


School Vision and Mission ................................................................................................................................4 


School Profile ....................................................................................................................................................4 


Stakeholder Involvement ..................................................................................................................................5 


School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................6 


Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................6 


CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................8 


ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................11 


Student Population ..................................................................................................................................14 


Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................15 


Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................16 


Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................25 


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................27 


Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................27 


Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................31 


Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................35 


Budget Summary and Consolidation ..............................................................................................................40 


Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................40 


Allocations by Funding Source ................................................................................................................40 


Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................41 


Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................42 


Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................43 


School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................44 


Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................45 


 


466/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School Vision and Mission 
 
Our vision is to nurture lifelong learners who demonstrate critical thinking, creativity, integrity, and personal responsibility 
as members of our school and community.  We collaborate to ensure equity to achieve college and career readiness for 
all students. 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 
Santa Cruz High School is a comprehensive high school of approximately 1,100 students. Santa Cruz High School uses 
the Excel Block Schedule. Under this model, students take three or four ninety-minute classes each day for eighteen 
weeks in the fall, and three or four different classes for eighteen weeks in the spring. In this model, one semester is 
equivalent to a year-long class in a more traditional system. This system allows students to concentrate on fewer 
courses at a time. The option to take a fourth period allows students to participate in our instrumental and vocal music 
programs, leadership, AVID, etc. without giving up academic classes.  Special Education students are generally 
scheduled into a daily tutorial as a fourth class. Students behind in credits are also scheduled into four classes to provide 
an opportunity to get back on track for graduation. 
 
Despite the forecasted declining enrollment trends through 2025, we are committed to providing a comprehensive 
program that supports the success and meets the needs of all students. The majority of our classes are designed to 
meet A-G standards. In addition, we dedicate significant resources to provide appropriate support for the range of 
students’ needs. 
 
We offer a Transitional English class for our small population of EL students with intermediate and early advanced 
English language development levels.  Our AVID team - comprised of four AVID teachers, a counselor and an assistant 
principal - attends the AVID Summer Institutes, where they participate in professional development about accessing 
information from the AVID program, including new strategies for delivery of AVID elements. 
 
Santa Cruz High offers a range of service options for eligible students in our Special Education department.  We have 
RSP tutorial classes to support students with IEPs. In 2018-19, we implemented a schedule which allows for a student to 
have either a 45 minute or a 90 minute tutorial period. The IEP emphasizes the student's participation in the general 
education curriculum and the IEP team includes general education teachers. Since 2016, the school has been utilizing a 
co-teaching experience between math teachers and resource specialists; we plan to continue with this practice in 2020-
21.  The school offers a variety of Special Day Class (SDC) classes and the students benefit from regular field trip 
opportunities in the community. 
 
Starting in 2015-16, SCHS hired a Multi-tiered Support System Coordinator to help struggling Integrated Math 1 
students. Currently we offer AP courses in Calculus AB and BC, Statistics, Computer Science A, English Literature and 
Composition, English Language and Composition, Biology, Chemistry, Physics 1 and 2, Spanish, French, World History, 
US History, and Environmental Science. We are planning to offer AP Biology in the 2019-20 school year. 
 
Santa Cruz High is also a strong advocate of arts in education. We continue to provide an exceptional fine and 
performing arts program with courses in painting, ceramics, jewelry, photography, video production, vocal and 
instrumental music, and theater. Our Cardinal Regiment continues to earn first place awards in Marching Band and Color 
Guard band reviews. In addition to our robust academic program, Santa Cruz High supports a wide range of extra-
curricular activities. A strong athletic program frequently reaches CCS level competitions while several teams have won 
the CIF State Academic Award each year. The drama department has presented two student-run productions a year for 
several years, and beginning in 2015-16, a third production has been added. The Santa Cruz Mock Trial team has been 
county champion for nine out of the last twelve years.  Students also participate in a variety of extra-curricular clubs 
ranging from the Rainbow Alliance to the Ping Pong Club, and from the Latinx Student Union to the Origami Club. The 
Rainbow Alliance, SCHS’s Gay-Straight Alliance Club, is very active at school and in the community.  They have hosted 
well-received events such as the “Diversity Dance” and the Dialogue Conference, at which students had the opportunity 
to talk with teachers and other guest speakers regarding gender identity, sexuality and other LGBT issues.  The Black 
Student Union attends regional and state leadership conferences every year, and has recently added an annual spring 
break trip to visit HBCUs.  The Global Student Embassy has organized community based eco action programs in 
Ecuador and Nicaragua. 
 
Santa Cruz High students participate in the countywide Regional Occupation Program in order to gain exposure to post-
high school careers. In addition, SCHS houses entire CTE pathway programs in Computer Science, Automotive Repair, 


467/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Bicycle Repair, Cabinetry, and Digital Media Arts Design.  Within the limitations of our resources, Santa Cruz High 
School will endeavor to support and promote student participation in CTE and ROP.  Additionally, our CTE counselor, 
Sheri Williams, is developing a job shadowing program which we anticipate will provide some very necessary insight into 
planning for their futures.  The incorporation of the Naviance program into the counseling curriculum assists students in 
identifying career interests and selecting postsecondary opportunities to meet their goals. 
 
Santa Cruz High School uses student performance data to assess our students and programs and presents this data to 
the school community in a number of venues. The data is shared annually with staff. Data is shared at parent nights 
including: Back to School Nights, Red and White Fair (Open House for prospective families), and Incoming Ninth Grade 
Parent Night (orientation for families of entering students), Math Information Night, the English Language Advisory 
Committee (ELAC) meetings, Parents of African-American Students (PAAS) meetings, PTA meetings, and School Board 
meetings. 
 
The Santa Cruz Building Leadership Team (BLT) consists of a teacher leader from each department who facilitates 
department professional development focusing on analyzing local data to enhance student performance. Departments 
meet twice monthly to share and analyze student work, develop common assessments and to use data cycles to 
determine the effectiveness of a variety of formative assessments.  District-led professional development opportunities 
have been offered and our teachers have participated in PD in the areas of Universal Design for Learning, Integrated 
and Designated English Language Development, Response to Intervention (RTI) Implementation, Next Generation 
Science Standards Implementation, Silicon Valley Math Initiative Trainings, Math Teacher Leaders and district Santa 
Cruz Instructional Leader workshops. In addition, through attending job-alike professional development meetings twice 
monthly provided by the district Special Education Department, our Special Education teachers have had the opportunity 
to share best practices and to participate in IEP Compliance Trainings. The trainings have been devised to train teachers 
how to align IEPs with compliance requirements as well as to revise and fix errors found in a state compliance audit. 
 
         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
This report will be reviewed by necessary stakeholders beginning with the School Site Council, the Building Leadership 
Team, the English Learners Advisory Committee, faculty, staff, student representatives, and parent support groups. In 
addition, the School Site Council reviews, gives input, monitors, and approves the SPSA annually. 
 
         


 


468/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


American Indian     0.66% 0.44% 0.27% 7        5 3 


African American     2.45% 2.28% 2.44% 26        26 27 


Asian     2.17% 3.59% 4.43% 23        41 49 


Filipino     0.94% 0.7% 0.9% 10        8 10 


Hispanic/Latino     27.02% 28.55% 29.57% 287        326 327 


Pacific Islander     0.19% 0.26% 0.36% 2        3 4 


White     60.45% 56.57% 55.88% 642        646 618 


Multiple/No Response     0.09% 2.19% 6.15% 1        25 0 


 Total Enrollment 1062 1,142 1,106 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


17-18 18-19 19-20 


Grade 9        274 323 255 


Grade 10        286 276 330 


Grade 11        259 275 253 


Grade 12        243 268 268 


Total Enrollment        1,062 1,142 1,106 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The cost of housing and the relative unavailability of high-paying jobs has made Santa Cruz one of the most 


unaffordable areas in the country.  This has been a negative driver for young families to put down roots here.  As a 
result, overall enrollment in the district is on a trajectory of steady decline.  However, Santa Cruz High School’s 
enrollment has been holding relatively steady.  We have benefitted from open enrollment from other area schools to 
counteract this local trend.  The percentages of our major student demographic groups have remained relatively 
stable: White ˜ 56%, Hispanic/Latino ˜ 30%, with other groups making up the remaining 14%.  We continue to note 
an increase in the numbers who are not reporting an ethnicity (that is, from ~1% to ~6%) in 2019-20.  This year 
marks the second year that families enter their own enrollment information. 
 
        


 


469/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


English Learners        31 38 40 2.9% 3.3% 3.6% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        193 221 221 18.2% 19.4% 20.0% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        2 0 0 5.6% 0.0% 0.0% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. English Learner enrollment has continued to see a slight increase over the past three years, from 2.9% in 2017-18 


up to 3.6% in 2019-20.        
 


470/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 234 244 257 232 228 251 231 228 251 99.1 93.4 97.7 
All 
Grades 


234 244 257 232 228 251 231 228 251 99.1 93.4 97.7 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 2591.
8 


2617.
2 


2630.
2 


21.21 26.75 35.06 36.80 40.35 36.25 25.11 21.05 16.73 16.88 11.84 11.95 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 21.21 26.75 35.06 36.80 40.35 36.25 25.11 21.05 16.73 16.88 11.84 11.95 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 42.42 47.37 38.65 38.96 38.60 45.82 18.61 14.04 15.54 


All Grades 42.42 47.37 38.65 38.96 38.60 45.82 18.61 14.04 15.54 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 18.61 26.75 37.60 54.11 53.95 51.20 27.27 19.30 11.20 


All Grades 18.61 26.75 37.60 54.11 53.95 51.20 27.27 19.30 11.20 
 


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 30.30 26.75 32.67 56.28 67.54 58.96 13.42 5.70 8.37 


All Grades 30.30 26.75 32.67 56.28 67.54 58.96 13.42 5.70 8.37 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 22.94 34.21 48.00 59.31 52.19 43.60 17.75 13.60 8.40 


All Grades 22.94 34.21 48.00 59.31 52.19 43.60 17.75 13.60 8.40 


471/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


 
 


Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The percentage of Overall Student Participation increased on the ELA CAASPP.        


2. ELA scores have been steadily increasing over the past three years.        


3. The only subtest of the ELA that is flat to declining is Reading, while there have been significant increases in 
Writing and Research/Inquiry.        


 


472/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 234 244 257 231 231 249 231 231 249 98.7 94.7 96.9 
All 
Grades 


234 244 257 231 231 249 231 231 249 98.7 94.7 96.9 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 2592.
9 


2612.
2 


2660.
1 


12.12 23.81 33.33 28.14 22.51 30.12 27.27 25.54 22.09 32.47 28.14 14.46 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 12.12 23.81 33.33 28.14 22.51 30.12 27.27 25.54 22.09 32.47 28.14 14.46 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 30.74 35.06 53.63 29.87 31.60 27.02 39.39 33.33 19.35 


All Grades 30.74 35.06 53.63 29.87 31.60 27.02 39.39 33.33 19.35 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 15.15 25.11 31.45 46.32 45.02 49.19 38.53 29.87 19.35 


All Grades 15.15 25.11 31.45 46.32 45.02 49.19 38.53 29.87 19.35 
 


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 19.48 27.27 36.95 54.55 52.38 50.60 25.97 20.35 12.45 


All Grades 19.48 27.27 36.95 54.55 52.38 50.60 25.97 20.35 12.45 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The Overall Student participation percentages again increased on the math CAASPP.        


2. Math scores have continued to steadily increase over the past three years.        


 


473/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 9        * 1536.3 * 1523.3 * 1549.0 * 11 


Grade 10        * * * * * * * 8 


Grade 11        * * * * * * * 8 


Grade 12        * * * * * * * 5 


All Grades              27 32 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 0.00 * 54.55  18.18 * 27.27 * 11 


  10    * * * *  * * * * * 


  11     * * *  * * * * * 


  12    * * * * * *  * * * 


All Grades        * 6.25 59.26 37.50 * 25.00 * 31.25 27 32 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 27.27 * 18.18  36.36 * 18.18 * 11 


  10    * * * * * * * * * * 


  11    * * * *  * * * * * 


  12    * * * *  *  * * * 


All Grades        48.15 18.75 * 31.25 * 28.13 * 21.88 27 32 
 


474/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9     0.00 * 27.27 * 45.45 * 27.27 * 11 


  10    * * * * * * * * * * 


  11     * * * * * * * * * 


  12    * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 0.00 48.15 31.25 * 28.13 * 40.63 27 32 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 9.09 * 81.82 * 9.09 * 11 


  10    * * * * * * * * 


  11    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 12.50 48.15 59.38 * 28.13 27 32 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 54.55 * 18.18 * 27.27 * 11 


  10    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        66.67 53.13 * 21.88 * 25.00 27 32 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 9.09 * 63.64 * 27.27 * 11 


  10    * * * * * * * * 


  12    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 15.63 59.26 40.63 * 43.75 27 32 
 


475/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 0.00 * 81.82 * 18.18 * 11 


  10    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 0.00 70.37 75.00 * 25.00 27 32 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. There are too few students to produce adequate data to make judgements of student needs.        


2. Further disaggregation of students is needed to strategically and appropriately respond to student needs.        


 
 


476/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2018-19 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


1142        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


32.6        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


3.3        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


0.1        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2018-19 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        38 3.3 


Foster Youth        1 0.1 


Homeless        5 0.4 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        372 32.6 


Students with Disabilities        101 8.8 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        26 2.3 


American Indian        5 0.4 


Asian        41 3.6 


Filipino        8 0.7 


Hispanic        326 28.5 


Two or More Races        62 5.4 


Pacific Islander        3 0.3 


White        646 56.6 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The percentages of our major student demographic groups have remained relatively stable: White ˜ 60%, 


Hispanic/Latino ˜ 27%, with other groups making up the remaining 13%.  We note a sudden bump up in the 
numbers who are not reporting an ethnicity (that is, from 1 – 2 students to 25) in 2018-19.  This year marks the first 
year that families enter their own enrollment information. 
 
 
        


 
 


477/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Green        


 
Mathematics 


 
Blue        


 
College/Career 


 
Green        


Academic Engagement 


 
Graduation Rate 


 
Green        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Green        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All SCHS indicators are in the Blue or Green, which are the two highest ratings possible on the CA Dashboard.        


 
 


478/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


2        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


46.4 points above standard         


Increased +12.6 points         


249        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


9        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


1.8 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +23.7 points         


81        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


98.3 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -27.8 points         


16        


 


479/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


9        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


7.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +17.3 points         


63        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


14.7 points above standard         


Increased +4 points         


17        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Green         


71 points above standard         


Increased +10.8 points         


146        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


English Only 


57.7 points above standard         


Increased +6.9 points         


197        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Significant increase with all students        


2. Significant decline in achievement with students with disabilities.  Smaller decline with Hispanic students.        


3. Some of our subgroups are too small to be statistically significant, but we see an achievement gap between Whites 
and Hispanics.  Socioeconomically disadvantaged students also have lower achievement.        


 
 


480/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


2        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


33.3 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +48.9 points         


247        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


9        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


7.2 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +47.8 points         


80        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


132.3 points below standard         


Declined Significantly -27.2 points         


15        


 


481/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


7        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


9        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


4        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


22.2 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +32.3 points         


63        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


30.8 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 +111.2 points         
17        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


White     


 
Blue         


60.7 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +53 points         


144        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


English Only 


44.7 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +50.8 points         


195        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All students, including every subgroup, showed improvement in mathematics.        


2. Focused improvement needs to occur with:  Two or more races, socioeconomically disadvantaged, and students with 
disabilities.        


3. The achievement gap between Whites and Hispanics are smaller in Math.  Also, socioeconomically disadvantaged 
students have higher performance in Math than in English.        


 
 


482/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


13.3 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 30          


Performance Level: VeryLow        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


53.3         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


33.3         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


3.3         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 0% of SCHS English Learners grew 1 or more levels in their English Proficiency. 13.3% of SCHS English Learners 


were considered to make adequate progress toward English Proficiency as measured by the ELPAC.        
2. More than half of the English Learners are showing decreases in their ELPI level, while one third of them did not 


advance a level.        
 
 


483/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
College/Career 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


56         


Maintained 0         


266        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


 


484/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 


Class of 2017 
56 Prepared         


21.2 Approaching Prepared         
22.8 Not Prepared         


Class of 2018 
56 Prepared         


21.2 Approaching Prepared         
22.8 Not Prepared         


Class of 2019 
56 Prepared         


22.9 Approaching Prepared         
21.1 Not Prepared         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Growth was maintained compared to the 2017 cohort        


2. There was a slight decrease in the number of students not prepared        


3. Focus should be given to improving Hispanic College and Career Readiness, which declined slightly in the Class of 
2019.        


 
 


485/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


1        
Blue        


2        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


94.7         


Maintained -0.7         


266        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Blue         


95.2         


Maintained +0.3         


104        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


70.8         


Declined -9.2         


24        


 


486/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


5        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


8        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


94.5         


Increased +2         


73        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


81.3         


Declined -18.8         


16        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
Blue         


95.7         


Maintained -0.3         


161        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 


2018         
95.4         


2019         
94.7         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall graduation rate has remained consistent; need to focus on increasing the graduation rate of Hispanic 


students.        
2. Students with disabilities show slight decline.        


3. Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students showed an increase in graduation rates.        


 
 


487/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


2        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


2        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


1.5         


Maintained 0         
1175        


English Learners 


 
Blue         


0         


Declined -3.1         
42        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          2        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          8        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


2.8         


Increased +0.4         
392        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Green         


4.6         


Declined -0.5         
109        


 


488/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


3.6         


Declined -3.3         
28        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          5        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
42        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          8        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


2.1         


Increased +0.4         
341        


Two or More Races 


 
Yellow         


2.8         


Maintained -0.2         
71        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          3        


White     


 
Green         


1.2         


Maintained 0         
677        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
1.5         


2019     
1.5         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The overall student suspension rate stayed the same at 1.5%.        


 
 


489/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
Improve school climate and culture by providing opportunities for student voice, participation, and ownership of learning 
while challenging and supporting students in their personal and academic growth .          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
The area of school connectedness continues to be a focus based upon student/staff/parent survey data, student 
participation data, CA Dashboard absenteeism and suspension data, California Healthy Kid Survey data and the Socio-
Emotional Health Survey data.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Student participation data (clubs, 
activities, athletics) match 
demographics        


 2018-2019 baseline data on activities 
director accomplisments, athletic 
participation data 


 Increase of 1%.  With COVID, it is 
more difficult to create these 
opportunities and we are still 
uncertain about whether we can have 
athletics. 


Chronic Absenteeism 
All students/Students with 
Disabilities/Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged/English Learners/ 
Hispanic/ 
 
        


 2018-2019 Baseline data on chronic 
absenteeism: 
All students 14.0% (134/1158) 
H/L 13.5% (53/335) 
Af Am 20.0% (1/28) 
SED 16.0% (53/309) 
SWD 26.9% (26/107) 
EL 20.2% (8/39) 
RFEP 9.2% (23/178) 
Ever EL 12.2% (31/217) 
HMLS 15.4% (3/8) 
Migrant 9.1% (5/24) 
Foster 0% (0/1) 
 


 Decrease chronic absenteeism rate 
by 5% of base  percent in each 
demographic group 


Suspension Rate         Overall 2018-2019 Student 
Suspension Rate:  1.5 % 


 Decrease the overall student 
suspension rate in 20-21 by .3%, for 
an overall rate of 1.2%. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 


490/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Provide students with involvement opportunities in activities, athletics, academics, and input into school policies and 
expectations.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, activities director, athletic director, counselors, advisers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 37,570        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .40 FTE Activities Director-- 
Continue to increase student involvement in school-based activities and governance.  
Coordinates the LINK Crew program.  Supports the development and sponsorship of 
student clubs. 
 
 
        


Amount 123,418        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Full Time athletic director --provides support and program coordination.  Develops and 
maintains athletic code of ethics and monitors academic standing.        


Amount 21,439        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 0.2 FTE Academic Counselor        


Amount 10,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Student Peer Tutors 
provide academic support to students before/after school, lunches and 4th period. 
        


491/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Strategy/Activity 2 
Provide wellness opportunities and support for all students        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, Counselors, Social/Emotional counselors, Social Workers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 61,258        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 0.4 MFT Counselor Intern providing individual counseling support.  Coordinates the 
MENtors program        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Provide connections for students, families and community        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners and Hispanic/Latino students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, Counselors        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 18,073        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 0.4 Parent/Community Coordinator        


Amount 27,110        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description 0.6 Parent/School Community Coordinator        


Strategy/Activity 4 


492/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Online purchasing system for student/community purchases of school merchandise, charges for school events, AP and 
PSAT testing payments.  Tracks student engagement data        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Adminstrators, Activities Director, Athletic Director, Finance Tech        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2000        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description ASB Works, or other online payment system        


 


493/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Academic Achievement with a Specific Focus on Academic Literacy and Math          


 
Goal Statement 
Provide professional development in order to implement common instructional strategies and aligned curriculum; 
common assessments in like courses; common grading practice using local data and student voice; while providing a 
supportive learning experience for all students.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Review of the CA Dashboard Academic Performance, Academic Engagement, and School Conditions and Climate 
indicate a need to support all students (including GAP students) in aligned instructional and grading practices, while 
providing additional intervention and support for struggling learners.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


CAASPP English Language Arts         ALL: 46.4 points above standard 
Low Income: 1.8 points above 
standard 
SPED:  98.3 points below standard 
Hispanic/Latino: 7.8 points below 
standard 
 


 Improve 3 points or more 
 
ALL: 49.4 points above standard 
Low Income: 4.8 points above 
standard 
SPED: 95.3 points below standard 
Hispanic/Latino: 4.8 points below 
standard 
 


CAASPP Math         ALL: 33.3 points above standard 
Low Income: 7.2 points below 
standard 
SPED: 132.3 points below standard 
Hispanic/Latino: 22.2 points below 
standard 
 


 Improve 3 points or more 
 
ALL: 36.3 points above standard 
Low Income: 4.2 points below 
standard 
SPED: 129.3 points below standard 
Hispanic/Latino: 19.2 points below 
standard 
 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Provide and facilitate professional development and collaboration in the following areas: 


494/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Academic Literacy--daily relevant, complex reading,writing, speaking and listening 
Develop common instructional strategies and aligned curriculum in course alike courses. 
Research and determine best practices in common grading practices 
Provide AVID-specific professional development and learning opportunities for certificated staff 
 
 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students, RFEP, Low income Students, Special Education        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, BLT members, MTSS Coordinators, certificated staff, classified academic support staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 66,935        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description MTSS Coordination (Math) Tso 
Support struggling learner support and assessment coordination.  Provide data to math 
teachers to help guide instruction and  determine appropriate interventions. 
        


Amount 57,457        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description MTSS Coordination (ELA) Palumbo 
Support struggling learner support and assessment coordination.  Provide data to 
teachers to help guide instruction and determine appropriate interventions. 
Develop and support school-wide literacy focus, with a focus on providing school-wide 
professional development on AVID instructional strategies. 
        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Provide identified students with additional academic intervention and support.  Specific focus:  mathematics 
(Math/Algebra Foundations and Integrated Math 1A/1B), ELA,  AVID (academic/social-emotional/College & Career)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students, low income, Special Education, Hispanic        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, BLT, MTSS Coordinators, AVID Coordinator        


 


495/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Amount 21,728        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Math Intervention Program (S. Kumaishi) 
Develop 2 sections of protected math intervention program (Math/Alg 1 Foundations).  
Coordinate the development of a co-teaching model, with an emphasis on social-
emotional interventions 
        


Amount 15,968        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 0.17 AVID 9 Instruction (Rowe-Kairys) 
 
Continue and increase the number of students served in AVID 
Assist MTSS ELA Coordinator facilitate school-wide AVID instructional strategies PD and 
implementation 
 
        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Provide professional development opportunities,  release time and/or extra work agreement to certificated staff for the 
purpose of developing:  common instructional strategies, common assessments, common grading practices        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, BLT, MTSS Coordinator, Certificated staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 15,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Professional development opportunities for certificated/classified staff 
Release/sub-time for collaboration 
Extra work agreement for time spent on goal activities and curriculum development 
        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Software and teacher supplies for distance learning and hybrid learning        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


496/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


All students        
 
Timeline 
Ongoing 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administrators        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 24,400        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Reimburse the purchase of document cameras, monitors, microphones, webcams, 
software, etc. as teachers deem necessary ($400 per teacher)        


Amount 20,000        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Purchase of software for hybrid/distance learning (TpT, Nearpod, Pivot, etc.)        


 


497/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
Equity          


 
Goal Statement 
Create and maintain equitable educational opportunities and outcomes for all students by providing high quality 
classroom instruction and curriculum that promotes college and career readiness with academic interventions in place to 
eliminate barriers to student success          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Data from SBAC scores, with focus on low performing students and subgroups. Data from CA Dashboard.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


SBAC ELA 
All Students 
RFEP 
Low Income 
Special Education 
        


 2018-2019 Data 
71%meet/exceed 
43% meet/exceed 
55% meet/exceed 
14% meet/exceed 
 


 2020-2021 
75% 
48% 
60% 
25% 
 


SBAC Math 
All Students 
RFEP 
Low Income 
Special Education 
        


 2018-2019 Data 
63% meet/exceed 
54% meet/exceed 
54% meet/exceed 
8% meet/exceed 
 


 2020-2021 
68% 
60% 
60% 
16% 
 


A-G Completion Rate         2018-19 
 
74% are A-G, 4-year college eligible 
 


 2020-21 
 
76% are A-G, 4-year college eligible 
 


Advanced Placement Testing data         2018-19 78% scores were 3 or higher 
2019-20 72% scores were 3 or higher 
 


 2020-2021 
74% scores at 3 or higher 
 


Graduation Rate         2018-19 
 
All: 94.7% 
Low Income: 95.2% 
Students with Disabilities: 70.8% 
Hispanic/Latino: 94.5% 


 2020-21 
 
All: 96.7% (increase 2%) 
Low Income: 96.2% (increase 1%) 
Students with Disabilities: 75.8%  
(increase 5%) 


498/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


 
 


Hispanic/Latino: 96.5% (increase 2%) 
 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Provide mathematics small group tutoring for struggling students.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All 
Subgroups (RFEP, Limited Income, special education, Hispanic) 
        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, BLT, Certificated staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,650        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Academic Intervention/Tutoring (Anapolosky)        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Supporting transitional English students with academic intervention and support        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Transitional English Students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2019-2020 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Building administration, BLT, Transitional English Teacher        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 29,722        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


499/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Description 0.33 FTE Classroom teacher for transitional English class (Dustin Carr)        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Professional development and Training (AVID and AP Specific)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, BLT, MTSS, AVID Coordinator, AP Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 9,795        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Staff and area conference attendance at AVID and/or AP training opportunities        


Strategy/Activity 4 
AP Testing Supplemental Support        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Socioeconomically disadvantaged        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, AVID/AP Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,400        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Support socioeconomically disadvantaged students with AP testing fee payments        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Technology Access and improved communication for All Students        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
ALL with focus on socioeconomically disadvantaged        


500/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,593        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Distance Learning Programs & Supplies, Calculators, including infrastructure needs        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Student Supplies        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Low Income        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administrative team, counseling team, AVID site team, certificated staff        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3000        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchasing of supplies for low income students        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Small Group Tutoring        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students, Low Income, EL, RFEP        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
MTSS Coordinator, Site administrators, Counselors, Parent/Community Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


501/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Amount 41600        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description One-on-one and small group after-school virtual tutoring in curricular areas of greatest 
need (math, science, social studies, LOTE)        


 


502/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  0 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  640,116.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


503/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


CARES Act         111,593.00 


District Funded         357,270.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         171,253.00 
 


504/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         261,469.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         239,859.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         47,993.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 24,400.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 66,395.00 


 


505/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         CARES Act  47,993.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 CARES Act  22,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 CARES Act  41,600.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  215,779.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  141,491.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  45,690.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  98,368.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  2,400.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  24,795.00 


 


506/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
3 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


3 Parent or Community Members        


2 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Michelle Poirier         X Principal        


Kirsten Pohlman         X Parent or Community Member        


Victoria Sanchez-Toledo         X Parent or Community Member        


Renee Golder         X Parent or Community Member        


Cathy McDougall         X Classroom Teacher        


Lindsay Behr         X Classroom Teacher        


Rita Medina         X Other School Staff        


Gwyneth Holcomb         X Secondary Student        


Amine Bouchti         X Classroom Teacher        


Sam Attard         X Secondary Student        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


507/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 45 Santa Cruz High School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on 10/21/20. 
 
Attested: 


 


 Principal, Michelle Poirier on 10-23-2020 


 


 SSC Chairperson, Lindsay Behr on 10-23-2020 


 


508/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 53 Soquel High School


 
School Year:    2020-21   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Soquel High School         


Address 401 Old San Jose Rd.         
Soquel, CA 95073-2213 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698234437406         


Principal Greg O'Meara         


District Name Soquel High School         


SPSA Revision Date October 16, 2020         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date October 16, 2020         


Local Board Approval Date November 4, 2020         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


509/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 53 Soquel High School


Table of Contents 
 


SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 


Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 


School Vision and Mission ................................................................................................................................3 


School Profile ....................................................................................................................................................3 


Stakeholder Involvement ..................................................................................................................................3 


School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................5 


Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................5 


CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................7 


ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................11 


Student Population ..................................................................................................................................14 


Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................15 


Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................16 


Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................25 


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................27 


Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................27 


Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................32 


Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................38 


Goal 4 ......................................................................................................................................................44 


Budget Summary and Consolidation ..............................................................................................................48 


Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................48 


Allocations by Funding Source ................................................................................................................48 


Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................49 


Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................50 


Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................51 


School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................52 


Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................53 


 


510/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 53 Soquel High School


School Vision and Mission 
 
Vision:   Soquel High is a diverse, creative, and professional learning community that encourages and supports all 
Knights to achieve intellectual and personal excellence, and to be prepared for college, career, and society. 
 
Mission:  Educate - Engage - Empower 
 
Values: Kindness, Collaboration, Equity, Diversity, Integrity, Responsibility, Safety 
 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 
School Profile 
 
The forty-acre Soquel High School campus is located on a plateau in the foothills of this Coastal California community 
one mile from the shores of Monterey Bay, six miles south of Santa Cruz and forty-five miles north of Carmel.  Soquel 
High is bordered by the confluence of Soquel Creek as it flows to Capitola-By-The-Sea through the wooded 
surroundings of this campus.  Fishing, hiking, bicycling, running, and aquatic sports are all popular pastimes for Soquel 
families and are reflected in many annual events. 
 
Strong as a “commute” community to the employment centers of Monterey, Santa Cruz, Scotts Valley, San Jose and the 
Silicon Valley, Soquel (a Costanoan Indian word for “place of the willows”) takes pride in its own social and commercial 
center of Soquel Village with its shops, businesses and recreational areas. 
 
The Santa Cruz City Schools District is comprised of four elementary schools, two middle schools, three comprehensive 
high schools, one continuation high school, and several alternative programs available to middle school and senior high 
school students.  The Western Association of Schools and Colleges accredits schools in our district. 
 
Students at Soquel High School reside in the Soquel Village area, Capitola-By-The-Sea, Live Oak, Aptos, Watsonville, 
and parts of Santa Cruz and Scotts Valley.  These students come from the Soquel Elementary School District, the Live 
Oak Elementary School District, the Mountain School District, Pajaro Valley School District, and Santa Cruz City 
Schools.  Students are served by Cabrillo Community College, University of California at Santa Cruz (UCSC), California 
State University at Monterey Bay and are in proximity to San Jose State University and many Santa Cruz County 
Regional Occupational Programs. 
 
Soquel High School is a comprehensive public school with a student population of approximately 1,200 in grades nine 
through twelve.  Soquel offers and affirms a challenging and rigorous academic program leading to graduation as well as 
surpassing college entrance requirements.  Computer research, several career technical education (CTE) programs 
articulated with area community colleges and training programs, a vital visual and performing arts department as well as 
honors and thirteen advanced placement courses in all academic areas exemplify the excellence sought by this school.  
Students from a broad and diverse suburban population come together at Soquel to learn and grow toward their futures. 
 
 
Greg O'Meara, Principal 
Derek Kendall, Assistant Principal 
Jose Quevedo, Assistant Principal 
Stuart Walters, Athletic Director 
Layla Dawson, Activities Director 
 
 
 
 
 
         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 


511/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 53 Soquel High School


How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
School Site Council oversees our SPSA and regularly meets to discuss and give input into different aspects of our 
SPSA. The Soquel High School SSC consists of certificated faculty, classified staff, site administration, students, and 
parents/guardians. Additionally, the Soquel ELAC annually reviews and gives input the Soquel SPSA as does the 
Soquel Student Leadership team, and Soquel SCIL team. 
 
         


 


512/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 53 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


American Indian     0.26% 0.34% 0.28% 3        4 3 


African American     0.43% 0.26% 0.28% 5        3 3 


Asian     1.99% 1.28% 1.3% 23        15 14 


Filipino     1.30% 1.36% 1.3% 15        16 14 


Hispanic/Latino     36.19% 35.72% 36.83% 418        419 397 


Pacific Islander     0.26% 0.09% 0.19% 3        1 2 


White     52.99% 52.94% 53.53% 612        621 577 


Multiple/No Response     0.17% 2.22% 6.31% 2        26 0 


 Total Enrollment 1155 1,173 1,078 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


17-18 18-19 19-20 


Grade 9        356 343 224 


Grade 10        286 314 322 


Grade 11        295 247 294 


Grade 12        218 269 238 


Total Enrollment        1,155 1,173 1,078 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our overall student population slightly decreased in 2019-2020        


2. Our two largest groups based on ethnicity (White/Hispanic) These population sizes continue to remain relatively 
similar over the previous three years.        


 


513/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 53 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


English Learners        50 47 40 4.3% 4.0% 3.7% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        241 260 255 20.9% 22.2% 23.7% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        7 8 7 11.5% 16.0% 14.9% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our English Learner population is decreasing. It should be noted that Soquel High does not have a newcomer 


program for English Learners. Harbor High School in Santa Cruz City Schools is our comprehensive high school 
offering a newcomer program.        


2. During the 2019-20 school year, 3.7% of our students were EL and 14.9% were RFEP.        


 


514/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 53 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 223 284 238 211 262 234 211 262 234 94.6 92.3 98.3 
All 
Grades 


223 284 238 211 262 234 211 262 234 94.6 92.3 98.3 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 2625.
5 


2585.
8 


2630.
5 


33.65 22.90 32.48 34.12 32.06 38.03 17.06 19.08 20.51 15.17 25.95 8.97 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 33.65 22.90 32.48 34.12 32.06 38.03 17.06 19.08 20.51 15.17 25.95 8.97 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 44.08 36.64 43.10 43.13 41.98 44.83 12.80 21.37 12.07 


All Grades 44.08 36.64 43.10 43.13 41.98 44.83 12.80 21.37 12.07 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 37.44 27.20 37.23 40.76 42.91 48.92 21.80 29.89 13.85 


All Grades 37.44 27.20 37.23 40.76 42.91 48.92 21.80 29.89 13.85 
 


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 39.34 22.52 32.19 52.13 62.98 62.23 8.53 14.50 5.58 


All Grades 39.34 22.52 32.19 52.13 62.98 62.23 8.53 14.50 5.58 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 35.07 25.57 42.24 47.87 47.33 50.00 17.06 27.10 7.76 


All Grades 35.07 25.57 42.24 47.87 47.33 50.00 17.06 27.10 7.76 


515/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 53 Soquel High School


 
 


Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall ELA/Literacy CAASPP Achievement for All Students for 2018-2019 improved from 2017-2018.        


2. Regarding overall CAASPP Achievement for All Students for 18-19, the percentage of students who nearly met or 
did no meet standard on ELA/Literacy declined.        


 


516/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 53 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 223 284 238 211 261 229 211 261 229 94.6 91.9 96.2 
All 
Grades 


223 284 238 211 261 229 211 261 229 94.6 91.9 96.2 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 11 2559.
9 


2547.
8 


2590.
4 


9.95 9.20 10.92 21.33 18.01 30.13 24.17 22.61 25.76 44.55 50.19 33.19 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 9.95 9.20 10.92 21.33 18.01 30.13 24.17 22.61 25.76 44.55 50.19 33.19 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 18.48 20.31 26.20 27.96 23.37 32.31 53.55 56.32 41.48 


All Grades 18.48 20.31 26.20 27.96 23.37 32.31 53.55 56.32 41.48 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 14.69 13.41 17.47 48.34 40.61 55.46 36.97 45.98 27.07 


All Grades 14.69 13.41 17.47 48.34 40.61 55.46 36.97 45.98 27.07 
 


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 11 14.69 11.49 21.40 50.71 52.11 53.28 34.60 36.40 25.33 


All Grades 14.69 11.49 21.40 50.71 52.11 53.28 34.60 36.40 25.33 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall ELA/Literacy Mathematics Achievement for All Students for 2018-2019 improved from 2017-2018.        


2. Regarding overall CAASPP Achievement for All Students for 18-19, the percentage of students who nearly met or 
did not meet standard on Mathematics declined.        


517/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 53 Soquel High School


 


518/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 53 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade 9        1561.4 1531.3 1563.3 1524.5 1559.0 1537.3 18 16 


Grade 10        1520.9 1560.8 1512.5 1559.8 1528.6 1561.2 11 17 


Grade 11        1523.2 * 1596.2 * 1449.8 * 13 4 


Grade 12        * * * * * * * 7 


All Grades              52 44 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 6.25 * 37.50 * 37.50 * 18.75 18 16 


  10    * 41.18 * 17.65 * 29.41 * 11.76 11 17 


  11    * * * * * * * * 13 * 


  12    * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        34.62 20.45 36.54 36.36 * 29.55 * 13.64 52 44 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 12.50 * 43.75 * 37.50 * 6.25 18 16 


  10    * 41.18 * 29.41 * 17.65 * 11.76 11 17 


  11    * * * *  *  * 13 * 


  12    * * * *  *  * * * 


All Grades        55.77 25.00 34.62 40.91 * 27.27 * 6.82 52 44 
 


519/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 53 Soquel High School


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 0.00 * 18.75 * 43.75 * 37.50 18 16 


  10    * 17.65 * 41.18 * 23.53 * 17.65 11 17 


  11    * * * * * * * * 13 * 


  12    * * * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 6.82 30.77 38.64 30.77 31.82 26.92 22.73 52 44 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 0.00 * 81.25 * 18.75 18 16 


  10    * 29.41 * 47.06 * 23.53 11 17 


  11    * * * *  * 13 * 


All Grades        38.46 11.36 51.92 65.91 * 22.73 52 44 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    77.78 68.75 * 25.00 * 6.25 18 16 


  10    * 82.35 * 5.88 * 11.76 11 17 


  11    92.31 * * *  * 13 * 


All Grades        82.69 77.27 * 15.91 * 6.82 52 44 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 0.00 * 43.75 * 56.25 18 16 


  10    * 23.53 * 47.06 * 29.41 11 17 


  11    * * * * * * 13 * 


  12    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        * 9.09 44.23 54.55 44.23 36.36 52 44 
 


520/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 53 Soquel High School


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   9    * 6.25 66.67 75.00 * 18.75 18 16 


  10    * 5.88 * 82.35 * 11.76 11 17 


  11    * * * * * * 13 * 


  12    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        32.69 6.82 50.00 79.55 * 13.64 52 44 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The number of students who are at a Level 4 declined from 17-18, while the number of students at Level 3 


remained steady.        
2. Only 7% of students are in Level 1 in 18-19.        


 
 


521/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 53 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2018-19 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


1173        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


34.1        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


4.0        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


0.3        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2018-19 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        47 4.0 


Foster Youth        4 0.3 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        400 34.1 


Students with Disabilities        103 8.8 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        3 0.3 


American Indian        4 0.3 


Asian        15 1.3 


Filipino        16 1.4 


Hispanic        419 35.7 


Two or More Races        68 5.8 


Pacific Islander        1 0.1 


White        621 52.9 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 34.1% of our students are socioeconomically disadvantaged. This means over one-third of our students qualify for 


free/reduced lunch and/or have parent(s) who did not receive a high school diploma.        
2. White students continue to be the largest demographic group; Hispanic is our second largest demographic group.        


3. Approximately 8.8% of our student's have disabilities. It is important for faculty and staff to get to know their 
student's with IEPs and provide them with their required accommodations and supports.        


 
 


522/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 53 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Blue        


 
Mathematics 


 
Green        


 
College/Career 


 
Yellow        


Academic Engagement 


 
Graduation Rate 


 
Yellow        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Orange        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our graduation rates are "Yellow" for the 18-19 school year.  This color designation is a result of a slight overall 


decrease in graduation rate.        
2. The suspension rate is designated "Orange" due to a slight increase in suspensions in 18-19 (6.2% were 


suspended at least once.  This is an increase of 2.6% compared to 17-18) 
 
        


3. English Language Arts had a blue rating and Math has a Green rating. These are both due to overall increases in 
student performance on the ELA & Math CAASPP assessments that students in 11th grade take annually.        


 
 


523/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 53 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


2        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


48.6 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +45.5 points         


229        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


8        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


19 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +54.1 points         


79        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


67.7 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +51 points         


15        


 


524/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 53 Soquel High School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


27.7 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +68.8 points         


86        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


72.2 points above standard         


12        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
Blue         


59.9 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +33.5 points         


121        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


5        


English Only 


58.4 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +37.8 points         


169        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Every student group at Soquel HS improved significantly in the area of English Language Arts, resulting in the "All 


Students "  designated as "Blue".        
2. Hispanic students and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students improved significantly (68.8 pts/54.1 pts 


respectively)  This growth earned a "Green" designation.        
 
 


525/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 53 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


2        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


37.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +42.8 points         


224        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


8        


Foster Youth 


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Yellow         


71.5 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +55.7 points         


76        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


189 points below standard         


Increased +3.7 points         


15        


 


526/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 53 Soquel High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American American Indian Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


Hispanic 


 
Yellow         


66.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +62.9 points         


86        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


10.8 points below standard         


12        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Green         


23.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +33.7 points         


116        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


3        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


5        


English Only 


28.1 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 +34 points         


164        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The "All Students" grouping increased significantly.  (42.8 Pts) However this is slightly below standard (37.1 pts) 


Subsequently, this grouping is designated "Green"        
2. Socioeconomically Disadvantaged and Hispanic students increased significantly, (55.7/62.9 pts respectively) 


However both groups are still below standard, resulting in a "Yellow" designation.        
 
 


527/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 53 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


41.5 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 41          


Performance Level: Low        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


39.0         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


19.5         


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


7.3         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


34.1         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. There is no color designation to the low number of English Learners at Soquel HS (41 students)        


2. 41.5%  of EL students are making progress towards English proficiency.  Efforts to address this will be incorporated 
into the school plan for student achievement.        


 
 


528/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 53 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
College/Career 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Yellow         


49.5         


Maintained +1.1         


275        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


 


529/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 53 Soquel High School


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Hispanic 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


White     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0 Students        


 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 


2019 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 


Class of 2017 
48.4 Prepared         


24 Approaching Prepared         
27.6 Not Prepared         


Class of 2018 
48.4 Prepared         


24 Approaching Prepared         
27.6 Not Prepared         


Class of 2019 
49.5 Prepared         


20.4 Approaching Prepared         
30.2 Not Prepared         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The percentages of our student who are considered "prepared" increased from 48.4% to 49.5%.        


2. Our Socioeconomically Disadvantaged student group, Special Education student group, and Hispanic student group 
all increased.        


 
 


530/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 53 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


2        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


0        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Yellow         


91.6         


Declined -4.7         


275        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


76.9         


Declined -15.4         


13        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


89.1         


Declined -8.7         


110        


Students with Disabilities 


 
No Performance Color         


80         


Declined -13.3         


20        


 


531/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 53 Soquel High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


8        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


88.2         


Declined -9.1         


85        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


91.7         


Declined -2.5         


12        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
Yellow         


92.7         


Declined -2.9         


165        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 


2018         
96.3         


2019         
91.6         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. SHS graduation rate decreased from 96.3% in 2017-2018 to 91.6% in 2018-2019. This decrease resulted in a Yellow 


designation on the CA Dashboard.        
 
 


532/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 53 Soquel High School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


1        
Orange        


4        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


1        
Blue        


0        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Orange         


6.2         


Increased +2.6         
1224        


English Learners 


 
Green         


4.2         


Declined -1.3         
48        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Orange         


6.5         


Increased +2.1         
416        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


8.7         


Increased +1.6         
115        


 


533/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 53 Soquel High School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          3        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          4        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


0         


Maintained 0         
15        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


6.3         


Increased +0.4         
16        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


5.3         


Increased +0.4         
437        


Two or More Races 


 
Orange         


8.1         


Increased +4.3         
99        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1        


White     


 
Red         


6.8         


Increased Significantly +3.9         
649        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
3.6         


2019     
6.2         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The SHS Suspension rate increased 2.6%, for an overall suspension rate of 6.2%. This decrease caused the CA 


Dashboard Suspension Rating to be designated Orange.        
2. The suspension rate increased for all student groups with the exception of English Learners who saw a decline in 


suspension.        
 
 


534/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 53 Soquel High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Literacy in All Content Areas          


 
Goal Statement 
Student A-G completion rates will increase by 3% for traditionally under-represented student populations, specifically 
English Learners, Hispanic/Latino, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, and Students With Disabilities.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Our ELs, Hispanic/Latino, SED, and SWD students are under-performing in comparison to their White peers.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


A-G completion for white students 
compared to under-represented 
student populations, specifically 
English Learners, Hispanic/Latino, 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, 
and Students With Disabilities.        


 A-G met for the Class of 2019-2020 
69% (156 of 227) of all grads 
67% (2 of 3) English Learners 
63% (52 of 83) Hispanic 
72% (88 of 122) White 
73% (16 of 22) Other Races 
59% (40 of 68) Socio Economically 
Disadvantaged (SED) 
25%%  (3 of 12) Students with 
Disabilities (SWD) 
 
 
A-G met for the Class of 2018-2019 
64% (166 of 259) of all grads 
17% (1 of 6) English Learners 
49% (39 of 80) Hispanic 
69% (107 of 156) White 
83% (19 0f 23) other races 
43% (37 of 86) Socio Economically 
Disadvantaged (SED) 
19%  (3 of 16) Students with 
Disabilities (SWD) 
 
 
 


 Soquel High School A-G completion 
rates will increase by 3% for 
traditionally under-represented 
student populations, specifically 
English Learners, Hispanic/Latino, 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, 
and Students With Disabilities. 


 


535/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 53 Soquel High School


Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Provide an ELA Support Class entitled  English PLUS.  Students enroll in course when struggling in ELA class. This is 
especially crucial for providing support in a distance learning environment. Criteria for enrollment: Achievement data, 
teacher recommendation.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students who are struggling in English class and receiving grade of C- or lower.  ELA teacher can recommend students 
for the course.        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
ELA teacher and ELA PLUS teacher        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description This is a .2 FTE section/course designed specifically to support under-performing 
students.        


Strategy/Activity 2 
During bi-weekly PLC meetings, SCIL teams will discuss low performing students, engage in data cycles, re-teach 
based on data, and share best practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or department colleagues. SCIL stipends to pay 
for 13 teacher leaders @ $1,650 each;        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, SCIL team        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 21,450        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Each content area has a SCIL leader who facilitates PLC meeting with content area 
departments.        


536/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 53 Soquel High School


Strategy/Activity 3 
Homework Club        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, teachers, and school counselors        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 10,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Hourly pay for two teachers to run homework club.        


Amount 5,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Retired ELA and ELD teacher to support students in Homework Club two days per week.        


Amount 10,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Hourly pay for University (UCSC) students to provide tutoring to students in Homework 
Club.        


Amount 20,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 6000-6999: Capital Outlay        


Description Additional technology to increase student access to on-line learning        


Amount 21,600        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description On-Line Small group and individual tutoring via Soquel HS Virtual Tutoring Center 
(Learning Loss Mitigation Funding)        


Strategy/Activity 4 


537/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 53 Soquel High School


Additional Technology to support 1:1 Student/Chromebook allocation.        
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Soquel High School Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 70,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 6000-6999: Capital Outlay        


Description Additional Chromebooks to support 1:1 Student/Chromebook ratio        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Collaboration release time for staff in order to support instructional strategies and articulation between departments        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration and Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Collaboration Time        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Implementation of Small Cohorts to expand In-Person Learning        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Students most at risk for non-engagement        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 


538/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 53 Soquel High School


Person(s) Responsible 
Administration/Certificated/Classified        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Staffing for Small Cohorts        


Amount 5,000        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Supplies to support small cohorts        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Technology and Supplies to support Distance Learning        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration/Certificated/Classified        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 30,000        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 6000-6999: Capital Outlay        


Description Technology to support access to on-line learning (Software/Hardware)        


Amount 5,000        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Supplies to support distance learning (Students)        


 


539/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 53 Soquel High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
We will continue to focus on equity as it relates to school-wide student involvement in extracurricular activities.  
Specifically, the demographics of our student population will be reflected in ASB Leadership, AVID, campus clubs, 
athletics, theatre productions, and participation in our music programs.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Our ELs, Hispanic/Latino, SED, and SWD students are less involved in our school community compared to their White 
peers. Students participating in ASB, Athletics, Campus Clubs, and Performing Arts are White/Caucasian.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Student groups participating in 
Athletics        


 2019-2020 
 
21%  EL 
28%  SED 
16%  SpEd 
33%  Hispanic 
 
 
2018-2019 
 
5.3% EL 
17.5% SED 
4.3% SpEd 
25.4% Hispanic 
 


 2020-2021 
 
24% EL (maintain or improve 2019-
20 % of ELs participating in athletics) 
31% SED 
19% SpEd 
36% Hispanic 
 


Student groups participating in 
Advancement Via Individual 
Determination (AVID)        


 2019-2020 
 
21% EL 
21% SED 
3% SpEd 
20% Hispanic 
 
 
2018-2019 
 


 2020-2021 
 
24% EL  (maintain or improve 2018-
19 % of ELs participating in AVID) 
24% SED  (maintain or improve 
2018-19 % of SED participating in 
AVID) 
6% SpEd 


540/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 53 Soquel High School


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


34% EL 
54% SED 
2.8% SpEd 
71% Hispanic 
 


23% Hispanic  (maintain or improve 
2018-19 % of Hispanics participating 
in AVID) 
 


Student groups participating in 
Campus Organizations        


 2019-2020 
 
33% EL 
30% SED 
20% SpEd 
29% Hispanic 
 
2018-2019 
 
4.5% EL 
28% SED 
6.8% SpEd 
37% Hispanic 
 


 2020-2021 
 
36% EL  (maintain or improve 2018-
19 % of ELs participating in campus 
organizations) 
33% SED 
23% SpEd 
32% Hispanic 
 


Student groups participating in 
Performing Arts        


 2019-2020 
 
10% EL 
18% SED 
14% SpEd 
17% Hispanic 
 
 
2018-2019 
 
2.6% EL 
30% SED 
9.3% SpEd 
36% Hispanic 
 


 2020-2021 
 
13% EL 
21% SED 
17% SpEd 
20% Hispanic 
 


Student groups participating in 
Leadership Class        


 2019-2020 
 
0% EL 
2% SED 
0% SpEd 
2% Hispanic 
 
2018-2019 
 
0% EL 
14% SED 
0% SpEd 
22% Hispanic 
 


 2020-2021 
 
3% EL 
5% SED 
3% SpEd 
5% Hispanic 
 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Spanish translation at parent events, translation of all documents for our families, Spanish translation on our website.  
Additional supplies to support community events.        


541/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 53 Soquel High School


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Spanish-speaking students and families.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing for the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
School Administration, School Community Coordinator, Counseling Secretary        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5900: Communications        


Description Translation of all documents for our families, Spanish translation on our website.        


Amount 500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Spanish translation at evening and after school events        


Amount 3,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Funds for food and beverages, supplies for parent evenings throughout year        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Provide ongoing counseling support including information regarding connecting students to our school community.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing for the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, school counselor        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 16,810        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


542/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 53 Soquel High School


Description Additional .2 FTE (20%) for bilingual school counselor.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Provide students and families with ongoing information and support regarding our school.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing for the 2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
School Community Coordinator, Site Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 35,774        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Additional .4  FTE (40%) for bilingual school community coordinator.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Link Crew Leaders address school involvement during Freshmen and New Student Orientation and through the 
beginning of the school year. This work is part of a Link Crew curricular pillar and is supported by two Link Crew 
Teacher Mentors.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All 9th grade and new students enrolling at Soquel High School.        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, Link Crew Mentors (two teachers)        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 4,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Funds for supplies for new student orientation        


Amount 3,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


543/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 53 Soquel High School


Description Stipends for Link Crew Leaders        


Amount 10,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Additional professional development for Link Crew Leaders and Coordinators        


Strategy/Activity 5 
National Coalition Building Institute (NCBI) training (Diversity & Inclusion workshops) in all freshmen PE classes.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All 9th grade students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, Link Crew Mentors and Link Crew Students, PE teachers (to give permission)        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 2,500        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Funds to support NCBI training        


Amount 3,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Professional Development to enhance NCBI implementation        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Specific Professional Development in the area of Restorative Justice        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Soquel High School Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration and Teachers        


 


544/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 53 Soquel High School


Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Contractual services with SEEDS (Restorative Justice)        


 


545/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 53 Soquel High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
English Learner Progress          


 
Goal Statement 
The demographics of students in our most challenging courses (AP & Honors), will be reflective of our overall school 
demographics. Specifically, 35% of our population is Hispanic/Latino, so our challenging courses should be at/near 35% 
Hispanic/Latino.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
Our Hispanic/Latinx and English Language Learners are under-performing their peers.  The majority of students taking 
our most challenging courses are white/Caucasian. This population is not representative of our overall student 
population, which is only 56% white/Caucasian.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Student groups participating in 
Honors/AP Courses        


 2019-2020 
 
19% EL Taking Honors/AP 
40% SED Taking Honors/AP 
4% SpEd Taking Honors/AP 
35% Hispanic Taking Honors/AP 
 
 
2018-2019 
 
0.7% EL Taking Honors/AP 
21% SED Taking Honors/AP 
2% SpEd Taking Honors/AP 
27% Hispanic Taking Honors/AP 
 
 


 2020-2021 
 
Our school demographics will be 
mirrored in our AP/Honors courses: 
4% EL 
34.1% SED 
9.8% SpEd 
37.3% Hispanic 
 
 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Continue to support our under-performing ELL, Hispanic/Latinx student populations by offering additional counseling 
services outside contracted hours.        


 


546/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 53 Soquel High School


Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All English Language Learners and Hispanic/Latinx students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, School Counselors, School Community Coordinator; administrative team will evaluate and analyze 
grading data and share with SCIL team and then all faculty.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Administrative/Counseling team will evaluate and analyze grading data and share with 
SCIL team and then all faculty.        


Strategy/Activity 2 
During bi-weekly PLC meetings, SCIL teams will discuss low performing students, engage in data cycles, re-teach 
based on data, and share best practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or department colleagues. SCIL stipends to pay 
for 13 teacher leaders @ $1,500 each;        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners and Hispanic/Latinx students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, SCIL Leaders        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description SCIL teams will discuss low performing students, engage in data cycles, re-teach based 
on data, and share best practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or department 
colleagues.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Monitoring of Tier 1/School-wide Expectations (WASC)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021School Year        


 


547/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 53 Soquel High School


Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 4 
Transitional English yearlong course to support our ELL population; .2 FTE provided for ELD teacher        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Language students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
District office, Site Administration, and ELD Teacher        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .2 FTE Transitional English course for English Learners        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Homework Club, after school support and tutoring        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Hourly pay for two teachers to run homework club        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Hourly pay for University (UCSC) students to tutor Soquel High students        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 


548/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 53 Soquel High School


All Students        
 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Homework Club is offered daily after school from 2:45 - 3:45 p.m. Hourly pay for 
University (UCSC) students to tutor Soquel High students        


Strategy/Activity 7 
Retired ELA teacher to support students in Homework Club        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 20,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Retired ELA and ELD teacher tutors two days per week in Homework Club        


Strategy/Activity 8 
Teachers provide after school tutoring beyond contractual hours        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


549/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 53 Soquel High School


Amount 3,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Teachers support under-performing students after school        


Strategy/Activity 9 
Four sections of AVID offered (one) at each grade level        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All AVID students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, AVID teacher        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 80,000        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description AVID instructor to teach all four grade level sections of AVID        


Strategy/Activity 10 
Math support class for students who are struggling with Integrated Math 1 and Math 2.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, Math Teachers, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description .4 FTE for Math PLUS;        


Strategy/Activity 11 
RTI Coordinator for Math; credentialed math teacher        


550/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 53 Soquel High School


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2019-20 school year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, RTI coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.0 FTE to support intervention class, data gathering and analysis, PLC work, common 
assessment, grading alignment, and new teacher support.        


Strategy/Activity 12 
Collaboration release time for staff in order to support instructional strategies and articulation between departments        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All English Learners at Soquel High School        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Release days for teacher collaboration        


 


551/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 53 Soquel High School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 4 
 
Subject 
Math Progress          


 
Goal Statement 
The percentage of 9th grade students passing Integrated Math 1 by the end of 9th grade with a C- or better, will increase 
by 5%          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
All 9th grade students pass Integrated Math 1 during their 9th grade year.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Six week marking period grading data 
and semester 1 and 2 grades.        


 2019-2020 94% of Integrated Math 1 
students met this goal 
2018-2019 84% of Integrated Math 1 
students met this goal. 
 


 2020-2021, 96% of Integrated Math 1 
students will pass Integrated Math 1 
with C- or better. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Implementation of Math PLUS Intervention Sections (x2) Site administration, RTI Coordinator, and math teachers will 
evaluate and analyze Math 1 grading data for all 9th graders enrolled in Math 1 to determine how many students met 
this school goal. The Math PLC will discuss these percentages and will analyze and how to increase this student 
performance data.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 


552/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 53 Soquel High School


Site Administration, Math Teachers, RTI Coordinator        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 38,859        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Two Math PLUS intervention classes for students        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Full time RTI coordinator to support math department with data gathering and analysis, PLC work, creating common 
assessments, department-wide grading alignment, support with Math PLUS intervention classes, and new teacher 
support.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site administration, RTI coordinator, math teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 121,090        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 1.0 FTE to support intervention class, data gathering and analysis, PLC work, common 
assessment, grading alignment, and new teacher support.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
During bi-weekly PLC meetings, SCIL teams will discuss low performing students, engage in data cycles, re-teach 
based on data, and share best practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or department colleagues. SCIL stipends to pay 
for 13 teacher leaders @ $1,500 each;        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, RTI Coordinator, Math Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Source District Funded        


553/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 53 Soquel High School


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description SCIL stipends for 13 teacher leaders @ $1,500 each; SCIL teams will discuss low 
performing students, engage in data cycles, re-teach based on data, and share best 
practices with course-alike, grade-alike, or department colleagues.        


Strategy/Activity 4 
Lunch time math tutoring for low performing math students        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration, Math Teachers, RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures        


Description Lunch time math tutoring incentives for low performing math students to attend volunteer 
tutoring        


Strategy/Activity 5 
Collaboration/Release time for Math teachers (Each teacher allocated 2 days per Semester)        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students enrolled in Math classes at Soquel High School        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021 School Year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site Administration and SHS Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5,000        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description 14 total days (7 teachers @ 2 days)        


Strategy/Activity 6 
Implementation of MAP (Measure of Academic Progress) to support data analysis within Math Department.        


554/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 53 Soquel High School


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
2020-2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
SCIL Leader/Math Teachers/RTI Coordinator        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 7,000        


Source CARES Act        


Budget Reference 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures        


Description Periodic assessment for Math students to gauge academic achievement.        


 


555/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 53 Soquel High School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  0 


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  614,083.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


556/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 53 Soquel High School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


CARES Act         52,000.00 


District Funded         400,583.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         161,500.00 
 


557/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 53 Soquel High School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         385,209.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         62,874.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         14,000.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        


 6,500.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        


 25,000.00 


5900: Communications         500.00 


6000-6999: Capital Outlay         120,000.00 
 


558/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 53 Soquel High School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 CARES Act  5,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         CARES Act  10,000.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 CARES Act  7,000.00 


6000-6999: Capital Outlay         CARES Act  30,000.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  343,209.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  57,374.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  42,000.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  500.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF - Supplemental  4,000.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  6,500.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        


 LCFF - Supplemental  18,000.00 


5900: Communications         LCFF - Supplemental  500.00 


6000-6999: Capital Outlay         LCFF - Supplemental  90,000.00 


 


559/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 53 Soquel High School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
2 Classroom Teachers        


2 Other School Staff        


3 Parent or Community Members        


2 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Greg O'Meara         X Principal        


Alyssa Snyder         X Classroom Teacher        


Ana Martinez         X Classroom Teacher        


Kelly Moker         X Other School Staff        


Ava Burke         X Secondary Student        


Sanda Mendoza-Ortega         X Secondary Student        


Annie Marie Weiss         X Parent or Community Member        


Sophia Sorensen         X Parent or Community Member        


Lori Vienna         X Other School Staff        


Julie DeBernardo         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


560/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 53 Soquel High School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 


 X English Learner Advisory Committee        
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on 10.21.20. 
 
Attested: 


  Principal, Greg O'Meara on 10.21.20 


  SSC Chairperson, Ava Burke on 10.21.20 


 


561/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


 
School Year:    2020-21   


SPSA Title Page 
 


 


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Template 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is meant to consolidate all school-level planning efforts into one plan for 
programs funded through the consolidated application (ConApp), pursuant to the California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 
 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a strategic plan that 
maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 52853(b) and 52855. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. The SPSA provides schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing 
the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 
 
LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles 
of action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
School Name Westlake Elementary School         


Address 1000 High St.         
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-2596 


County-District-School (CDS) Code 44698156049928         


Principal Clyde Curley         


District Name Westlake Elementary         


SPSA Revision Date October 24, 2020         


Schoolsite Council (SSC) Approval Date October 24, 2020         


Local Board Approval Date November 4, 2020         


 
In the pages that follow, please describe the school’s plan for making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment 
with other federal, state, and local programs. 


562/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Table of Contents 
 


SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 


Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 


School Vision and Mission ................................................................................................................................3 


School Profile ....................................................................................................................................................3 


Stakeholder Involvement ..................................................................................................................................3 


School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................5 


Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................5 


CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................7 


ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................11 


Student Population ..................................................................................................................................14 


Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................15 


Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................16 


Academic Engagement ...........................................................................................................................21 


Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................23 


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................25 


Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................25 


Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................28 


Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................31 


Goal 4 ......................................................................................................................................................34 


Budget Summary and Consolidation ..............................................................................................................36 


Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................36 


Allocations by Funding Source ................................................................................................................36 


Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................37 


Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................38 


Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................39 


School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................40 


Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................41 


 


563/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


School Vision and Mission 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools District Mission 
Santa Cruz City Schools, part of a dynamic and diverse coastal community, will ensure that each student acquires the 
necessary knowledge, skills and values to achieve his or her highest aspirations and to be a contributing member of a 
rapidly changing society. A highly qualified, inspired, and dedicated staff, in partnership with our families and community, 
will provide a well-balanced education in a safe environment, utilizing effective educational practices and technologies. 
 
Westlake Elementary School Mission 
Westlake is a place where children are supported to achieve their highest potential academically, physically, socially and 
emotionally.  Our school community inspires life long learning.  We are problem solvers who celebrate our diverse 
perspectives and experiences.  Positivity and optimism are core values that guide our learning. 
 
         


 


School Profile 
 
Westlake Elementary School is located on the northwest side of Santa Cruz, California, near the campus of the 
University of California at Santa Cruz (UCSC). Westlake Elementary School is known throughout the Santa Cruz area for 
its commitment to academic excellence and the arts.  This reputation is possibly due to the hard work of a dedicated and 
talented staff, the full participation of parents, and community involvement.  Westlake has four focus areas that guide the 
work of the school under the umbrella of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support: Academic Literacy, Mathematics, School 
Connectedness and English Language Development.  The Westlake community is also dedicated to providing a well 
rounded education which includes a rich Visual and Performing Arts program, Science Garden, Library Media Center 
and Playground Coaches. 
 
The tiered levels of support in the Response to Instruction framework is used to guide both the academic and social 
emotional learning programs at the school.  Teachers work in Professional Learning Communities organized by grade 
level or department.  Teams meet regularly to unpack essential standards, review common assessments and align 
instructional practices. The Common Core State Standards have been adopted by the school district and are used to 
guide the curriculum.  Teams of teachers unpack the standards to identify learning goals and student success criteria.  
Measured Academic Progress assessments are used three times per year in reading and math to identify student 
learning needs and to measure growth.  The Positive Behavior Instruction Supports program supports a positive school 
culture and climate.  Grade level representatives work with the School Counselor and Principal to develop, maintain and 
monitor school climate.  Systems for positive reinforcement at the student, classroom and school level are used to 
support students meeting expectations, following rules and creating a safe and orderly school environment.  Behavior 
tracking forms and office referrals are used to gather information about behavioral challenges.  All students receive 
lessons from the social emotional learning program, Second Step.  Some students receive small group or individual 
support from the School Counselor.  English language development is provided to all students that are learning English.  
Support in the classroom is provided to individuals and small groups by an Instructional Technician.  Classroom teachers 
provide daily English language development focused on academic vocabulary. 
 
Students at Westlake receive a rich and well rounded education.  The Visual and Performing Arts programs at Westlake 
includes K-5 Visual Art, K-5 Music and K-5 Dance.  All students visit the Science Garden for weekly lessons.  The 
Library has over 20 thousand volumes and is staffed by a Library Media Teacher and Library Media Assistant.  
Playground coaches structure recess and lunch activities and provide lessons to classes.  These programs are 
supported by the City of Santa Cruz community through parcel taxes and donations to the Westlake PTA.  Together 
these programs make Westlake a great place to learn and grow. 
 
         


 


Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual Review and 
Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 


564/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


The School Site Council meets as needed to provide input to the SPSA, monitor progress towards goals, and approve 
expenditures.  The Site Council also reviews the prior year SPSA and achievement of annual goals.  The Westlake PTA 
and PTA Executive Board are consulted on the school goals annually.  An annual review of the prior year goals and 
current year goals is also provided at the first PTA meeting of the year.         


 


565/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 


 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 


Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


American Indian     0.18% 0.19% 0% 1        1 0 


African American     1.08% 1.13% 1.28% 6        6 7 


Asian     5.95% 4.73% 6.93% 33        25 38 


Filipino     % 0.19% 0%         1 0 


Hispanic/Latino     20.36% 23.25% 22.08% 113        123 121 


Pacific Islander     % % 0%          0 


White     61.98% 60.3% 61.13% 344        319 335 


Multiple/No Response     % 0.19% 8.58%         1 0 


 Total Enrollment 555 529 548 
 


Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 


 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 


Number of Students 
Grade 


17-18 18-19 19-20 


Kindergarten        108 90 103 


Grade 1        74 91 78 


Grade 2        87 79 98 


Grade3        93 87 85 


Grade 4        87 96 87 


Grade 5        106 86 97 


Total Enrollment        555 529 548 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Enrollment has declined over the last three years.        


2. The demographic distribution of students has remained relatively constant with 20% Hispanic and 60% white.        


 


566/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 


Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 


17-18 18-19 19-20 17-18 18-19 19-20 


English Learners        40 42 49 7.2% 7.9% 8.9% 


Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        46 32 43 8.3% 6.0% 7.8% 


Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        7 1 7 10.9% 2.5% 16.7% 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Approximately 10% of students are reclassified as Fluent English Proficient.        


2. Approximately 7% of all students are English Learners.        


 


567/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 


 
Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 92 92 86 85 92 79 85 91 79 92.4 100 91.9 


Grade 4 109 86 94 101 82 93 101 81 93 92.7 95.3 98.9 


Grade 5 98 106 87 93 103 82 93 103 82 94.9 97.2 94.3 
All 
Grades 


299 284 267 279 277 254 279 275 254 93.3 97.5 95.1 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes.  


Overall Achievement for All Students 
Mean Scale Score % Standard 


Exceeded 
% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 


Met 
% Standard Not 


Met 
Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2470.
5 


2476.
5 


2485.
5 


43.53 51.65 55.70 25.88 23.08 24.05 22.35 15.38 12.66 8.24 9.89 7.59 


Grade 4 2515.
8 


2505.
1 


2527.
3 


41.58 43.21 52.69 33.66 23.46 25.81 12.87 19.75 11.83 11.88 13.58 9.68 


Grade 5 2547.
5 


2552.
1 


2551.
0 


39.78 45.63 43.90 29.03 25.24 25.61 12.90 15.53 17.07 18.28 13.59 13.41 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 41.58 46.91 50.79 29.75 24.00 25.20 15.77 16.73 13.78 12.90 12.36 10.24 
 


Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 41.67 48.35 53.16 44.05 38.46 37.97 14.29 13.19 8.86 


Grade 4 43.56 34.57 51.61 47.52 55.56 39.78 8.91 9.88 8.60 


Grade 5 41.94 46.60 46.34 40.86 39.81 39.02 17.20 13.59 14.63 


All Grades 42.45 43.64 50.39 44.24 44.00 38.98 13.31 12.36 10.63 
 


Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 


Grade Level 
16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 36.90 38.46 41.77 51.19 46.15 50.63 11.90 15.38 7.59 


Grade 4 34.00 39.51 45.16 52.00 41.98 47.31 14.00 18.52 7.53 


Grade 5 47.31 50.49 39.02 38.71 33.01 45.12 13.98 16.50 15.85 


All Grades 39.35 43.27 42.13 47.29 40.00 47.64 13.36 16.73 10.24 
 


568/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 33.33 36.26 45.57 61.90 58.24 48.10 4.76 5.49 6.33 


Grade 4 32.67 37.04 35.48 56.44 55.56 62.37 10.89 7.41 2.15 


Grade 5 35.48 30.10 28.05 53.76 60.19 57.32 10.75 9.71 14.63 


All Grades 33.81 34.18 36.22 57.19 58.18 56.30 8.99 7.64 7.48 
 


Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 41.67 47.25 44.30 46.43 45.05 50.63 11.90 7.69 5.06 


Grade 4 47.52 28.40 39.78 45.54 60.49 51.61 6.93 11.11 8.60 


Grade 5 44.09 52.43 48.78 37.63 33.01 34.15 18.28 14.56 17.07 


All Grades 44.60 43.64 44.09 43.17 45.09 45.67 12.23 11.27 10.24 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 76% of students in grades 3-5 met or exceeded standard on the English Language Arts test.        


2. Clusters show strong performance in all areas. Listening cluster appears to be an area for growth.        


 


569/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 


 


Overall Participation for All Students 


# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 


% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 92 92 86 87 92 82 87 92 82 94.6 100 95.3 


Grade 4 109 86 94 101 84 94 101 84 94 92.7 97.7 100 


Grade 5 98 106 87 92 103 83 92 103 83 93.9 97.2 95.4 
All 
Grades 


299 284 267 280 279 259 280 279 259 93.6 98.2 97 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 


 


Overall Achievement for All Students 


Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 


% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 


% Standard Not 
Met 


Grade 
Level 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 


Grade 3 2468.
8 


2458.
1 


2475.
7 


33.33 32.61 37.80 34.48 34.78 35.37 19.54 20.65 15.85 12.64 11.96 10.98 


Grade 4 2495.
3 


2478.
3 


2512.
3 


22.77 17.86 28.72 32.67 27.38 40.43 36.63 35.71 23.40 7.92 19.05 7.45 


Grade 5 2545.
6 


2553.
7 


2559.
1 


36.96 45.63 42.17 28.26 20.39 21.69 17.39 19.42 22.89 17.39 14.56 13.25 


All Grades N/A N/A N/A 30.71 32.97 35.91 31.79 27.24 32.82 25.00 24.73 20.85 12.50 15.05 10.42 
 


Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 40.23 45.65 52.44 41.38 34.78 30.49 18.39 19.57 17.07 


Grade 4 28.71 30.95 40.43 48.51 32.14 42.55 22.77 36.90 17.02 


Grade 5 42.39 55.34 49.40 32.61 22.33 33.73 25.00 22.33 16.87 


All Grades 36.79 44.80 47.10 41.07 29.39 35.91 22.14 25.81 16.99 
 


Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 44.83 35.87 42.68 45.98 45.65 45.12 9.20 18.48 12.20 


Grade 4 28.71 23.81 35.11 54.46 52.38 57.45 16.83 23.81 7.45 


Grade 5 43.48 41.75 39.76 38.04 42.72 46.99 18.48 15.53 13.25 


All Grades 38.57 34.41 39.00 46.43 46.59 50.19 15.00 19.00 10.81 
 


570/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 


% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 


16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 16-17 17-18 18-19 
Grade 3 47.13 41.30 42.68 45.98 44.57 50.00 6.90 14.13 7.32 


Grade 4 32.67 27.38 42.55 55.45 48.81 50.00 11.88 23.81 7.45 


Grade 5 36.96 40.78 42.17 48.91 41.75 43.37 14.13 17.48 14.46 


All Grades 38.57 36.92 42.47 50.36 44.80 47.88 11.07 18.28 9.65 
 


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 68% of all students met or exceeded standard.        


2. 3rd grade had the highest number of students who met or exceeded standard at 72%.        


 


571/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


ELPAC Results 
 


ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 


Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


Grade K        1445.9 * 1447.7 * 1442.1 * 16 7 


Grade 1        * 1432.7 * 1450.3 * 1414.8 * 12 


Grade 2        * * * * * * * 6 


Grade 3        * * * * * * * 8 


Grade 4        * * * * * * * 5 


Grade 5        * * * * * * * 7 


All Grades              37 45 
 


Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * * * * * * * * 16 * 


   1    * 8.33  58.33 * 0.00 * 33.33 * 12 


   2    * * * *  *  * * * 


   3     * * *  * * * * * 


   4    * *  * * * * * * * 


   5    * *  * * *  * * * 


All Grades        45.95 15.56 * 40.00 * 17.78 * 26.67 37 45 
 


Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * * * * * * * * 16 * 


   1    * 41.67  25.00 * 8.33 * 25.00 * 12 


   2    * * * *  *  * * * 


   3     * * *  * * * * * 


   4    * * * *  * * * * * 


   5    * *  * * *  * * * 


All Grades        48.65 31.11 * 33.33 * 13.33 * 22.22 37 45 
 


572/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 


Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * * * * * * * * 16 * 


   1    * 8.33 * 16.67 * 41.67 * 33.33 * 12 


   2    * * * *  * * * * * 


   3     * * * * * * * * * 


   4     * * * * * * * * * 


   5    * *  * * *  * * * 


All Grades        29.73 8.89 35.14 17.78 * 40.00 * 33.33 37 45 
 


Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    68.75 * * * * * 16 * 


   1    * 58.33 * 25.00 * 16.67 * 12 


   3    * * * * * * * * 


   4    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        51.35 31.11 * 48.89 * 20.00 37 45 
 


Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * * * * * * 16 * 


   1    * 25.00 * 50.00  25.00 * 12 


   3    * * * * * * * * 


   4    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        48.65 40.00 35.14 35.56 * 24.44 37 45 
 


Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    * * * * * * 16 * 


   1    * 33.33 * 16.67 * 50.00 * 12 


   2    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        35.14 13.33 37.84 46.67 * 40.00 37 45 
 


573/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 


Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 


Level 
17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 17-18 18-19 


   K    81.25 * * * * * 16 * 


   1     0.00 * 58.33 * 41.67 * 12 


   3    * * * * * * * * 


All Grades        40.54 13.33 40.54 53.33 * 33.33 37 45 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 28/45 students tested scored level 3 or 4 in Oral Language.  28/45 of students tested were at the well, somewhat, 


or moderate range in Written Language.        
2. In the domains of language, reading had the lowest number of students scoring well developed.  This indicates a 


continued need to support our English Learners in their reading development.        
 


 


574/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 


2018-19 Student Population 


Total 
Enrollment 


529        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 


Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 


21.4        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 


English  
Learners 


7.9        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 


Foster 
Youth 


0.4        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 


 
2018-19 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 


Student Group Total Percentage 


English Learners        42 7.9 


Foster Youth        2 0.4 


Homeless        3 0.6 


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        113 21.4 


Students with Disabilities        82 15.5 
 


Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 


Student Group Total Percentage 


African American        6 1.1 


American Indian        1 0.2 


Asian        25 4.7 


Filipino        1 0.2 


Hispanic        123 23.3 


Two or More Races        53 10.0 


White        319 60.3 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. One in every five students qualifies for free or reduced lunch.        


2. Less than 10% of all students are English learners.        


 
 


575/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Overall Performance 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 


Academic Performance 


 
English Language Arts 


 
Blue        


 
Mathematics 


 
Blue        


Academic Engagement 


 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
Yellow        


Conditions & Climate 


 
Suspension Rate 


 
Green        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Chronic Absenteeism is an area for growth.        


 
 


576/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


2        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


51.5 points above standard         


Increased ++11.1 points         


255        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


12.8 points below standard         


Declined -13.6 points         


21        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


4.9 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++15.9 points         
50        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


12.3 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++36.4 points         
54        


 


577/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


9        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


6.8 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 ++17 points         


60        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


64.3 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++42.6 points         
19        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


0 Students        


White     


 
Blue         


66.2 points above standard         


Increased ++8.1 points         


162        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


41.8 points below standard         


11        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


10        


English Only 


57.1 points above standard         


Increased ++13.4 points         


218        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall high performance for all students.        


2. Sub group performance needing improvement for Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students, and Students with 
Disabilities.        


3. Hispanic student performance is disproportionately lower than all students and needs improvement.        


 
 


578/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
Mathematics 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


0        
Yellow        


1        
Green        


2        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Blue         


31.1 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++17.1 points         
255        


English Learners 


 
No Performance Color         


21.5 points below standard         


Maintained -1.2 points         


21        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


14.9 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++16.4 points         
50        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


34.8 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 
 ++37 points         


54        


 


579/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


3        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


9        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


8.5 points below standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++20.6 points         
60        


Two or More Races 


 
No Performance Color         


48.2 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++31.2 points         
19        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Blue         


43.9 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++18.7 points         
162        


 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 


Current English Learner 


41.7 points below standard         


11        


Reclassified English Learners 


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


10        


English Only 


35.3 points above standard         


Increased 
Significantly 


 ++18.6 points         
218        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall high performance for all students.        


2. Sub group performance needing improvement for Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students, and Students with 
Disabilities.        


3. Hispanic student performance is disproportionately lower than all students and needs improvement.        


 
 


580/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 


 English Learner Progress 


 
No Performance Color         


46.4 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          


Number of EL Students: 28          


Performance Level: Medium        


 


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 


Decreased  
One ELPI Level 


28.5         


Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 


Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 


3.5         


Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 


42.8         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Almost half of all English learners met the reclassification criteria for ELPAC in 2018.        


 
 


581/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 


Red        
1        


Orange        
3        


Yellow        
2        


Green        
1        


Blue        
0        


 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Yellow         


10.5         


Declined -1.3         


552        


English Learners 


 
Yellow         


17         


Declined -8         


53        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


2        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          


5        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Red         


22.8         


Increased +0.5         


123        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Yellow         


14         


Declined -1.2         


100        


 


582/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


6        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Asian     


 
Orange         


6.5         


Increased +0.9         


31        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


1        


Hispanic 


 
Orange         


13.3         


Increased +3         


128        


Two or More Races 


 
Orange         


18.2         


Increased +1.8         


55        


Pacific Islander 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          


0        


White     


 
Green         


8.2         


Declined Significantly -4         


330        


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. English Learners and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged student groups have higher percentages of chronic 


absenteeism than other groups.        
 
 


583/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


School and Student Performance Data 
 


Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 


 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  


Red 
 


Orange 
 


Yellow 
 


Green 
 


Blue 


Highest 
Performance 


 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 


Red        


0        
Orange        


3        
Yellow        


0        
Green        


3        
Blue        


1        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 


All Students 


 
Green         


0.5         


Increased +0.4         
554        


English Learners 


 
Orange         


1.9         


Increased +1.9         
53        


Foster Youth 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          2        


Homeless 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          5        


Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 


 
Green         


0.8         


Maintained 0         
123        


Students with Disabilities 


 
Orange         


2         


Increased +1         
101        


 


584/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 


African American 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          6        


American Indian 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1        


Asian     


 
Blue         


0         


Maintained 0         
31        


Filipino 


 
No Performance Color         


Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1        


Hispanic 


 
Green         


0.8         


Maintained -0.1         
129        


Two or More Races 


 
Orange         


1.8         


Increased +1.8         
56        


Pacific Islander White     


 
Green         


0.3         


Increased +0.3         
330        


 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 


2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 


2017     2018     
0.2         


2019     
0.5         


 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Suspensions are low.        


 
 


585/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 1 
 
Subject 
Academic Literacy          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will make growth of at least 3 points in the distance from me on ELA CAASPP.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
When analyzing our CA Dashboard data, we see that "All Students" are in the "green", meaning that overall, our 
students have maintained their level of achievement. Currently, our dashboard shows that "All Students" are 41 points 
above the standard. However, when we dig deeper into our different student groups, we see that many of our groups are 
not meeting the standard. For specific student group data, see the metrics and baseline below.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: All Students        


 51.5 points above standard  "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2019-20 ELA 
CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 12.8 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019-20 
ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: Students with Disabilities        


 12.3 points below standard  Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2019-
20 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
        


 4.9 points above standard  Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019-20 ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: 
Hispanic 
        


 6.8 points above standard  Hispanic students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019-20 
ELA CAASPP. 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: White        


 66.2 points above standard  White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019-20 
ELA CAASPP. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 


586/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
A Tier 1 Academic Literacy school wide focus for the 2019-20 school year is on implementing the Readers Workshop 
curriculum.   We will do this by focusing our year long site PD on using professional learning communities to identify 
essential standards, common assessments, and align instruction.  We will use assessment results to create and 
maintain a system of interventions for students that do not master standards and extensions for those that do.  
Paraeducators will push into classrooms to support Tier 2 interventions in the classroom.  Paraeducators will provide 
Tier 3 interventions to students.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All student groups will be supported by this strategy/activity.        


 
Timeline 
Ongoing throughout the 2019-21 school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Site admin & SCIL        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 16,242        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Paraeducator Academic Intervention        


Amount 13,802        


Source LCFF - Supplemental        


Budget Reference 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries        


Description Paraeducator Academic Intervention        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Teachers will participate in lesson study and peer observations to develop collective teacher efficacy.  Specifically, 
these cycles will focus on implementation of Benchmark Workshop, and in-class Tier 2 reading interventions.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students will be served by this strategy.        


 
Timeline 
Teachers will participate in at least two peer observations during the 2019-2 1school year.        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal.  SCIL Team.  Teachers.        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 3,600        


587/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Source Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Substitutes        


 


588/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 2 
 
Subject 
Mathematics          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will make mathematics growth.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
When analyzing our CA Dashboard data, we see that "All Students" are in the "green", meaning that overall, our 
students have maintained their level achievement. Currently, our dashboard shows that "All Students" are 14.6 points 
above standard. In addition, when we dig deeper into our different student groups, we see that there is significant need 
to improve our students' level of proficiency in mathematics, especially among our English Learners, Students with 
Disabilities, Hispanic students, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students. For specific student group data, see the 
metrics and baseline below.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: All 
Students        


 31.3 points above standard  "All Students" will improve a minimum 
of 3 points on the 2019-2020 Math 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 21.5 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019-
2020 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Students with Disabilities        


 34.8 points below standard  Students with Disabilities will improve 
a minimum of 3 points on the 2019-
2020 Math CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        


 14.9 points below standard  Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019-2020 Math 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: 
Hispanic        


 8.5 points below standard  Hispanic will improve a minimum of 3 
points on the 2019-2020 Math 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: White         43.9 points above standard  White students will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2019-
2020 Math CAASPP. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 


589/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


   
startcollapse 


Strategy/Activity 1 
Provide students with access to appropriate instructional materials in math by purchasing student consumable 
materials for Eureka Math.        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students.        


 
Timeline 
Annually        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 15,000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Eureka Math consumables        


Strategy/Activity 2 
Math Mondays 


• Provide math games weekly on Mondays in the library at lunch in order to develop a culture of math as a fun 
and important part of our school. 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All students        


 
Timeline 
January 2020-June 2020        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration, Parents        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 500        


Source Parent-Teacher Association (PTA)        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Math game purchase        


Strategy/Activity 3 


590/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Math Intervention 


 Identify, purchase, and implement a technology based math intervention to be used as a Tier 2 intervention 
in the classroom. 


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
November 2019 to June 2021        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration, Intervention Coordinator, Teacher        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 5000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Online math intervention program subscription        


 


591/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 3 
 
Subject 
English Learner Progress          


 
Goal Statement 
All English Learners will be academically successful.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
55% of students tested on the ELPAC scored at either a Level 3 or Level 4. 
 
In the domains of language, reading had the lowest number of students scoring well developed.  This indicates a 
continued need to support our English Learners in their reading development. 
 
In addition to the ELPAC, our district monitors our English Learner progress by using the CA Dashboard Academic 
Performance, Academic Engagement, and School Conditions and Climate. In analyzing all of these data points, we see 
that supporting our English Learners in all areas needs to be a focus for our district. See below for specific English 
Learner metrics and data. 
 
 
          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


English Language Arts CAASPP 
Data: English Learners        


 12.8 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 ELA 
CAASPP. 


Mathematics CAASPP Data: English 
Learners        


 21.5 points below standard  English Learners will improve a 
minimum of 3 points on the 2020 
Math CAASPP. 


Chronic Absenteeism: The 
percentage of English Learners 
chronically absent, meaning students 
that have been absent more than 
10% of the school year.        


 17% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent English Learners 
by at least .5%. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


592/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Strategy/Activity 1 
Integrated ELD 
Staff will review Integrated ELD strategies for implementation in the classroom. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners        


 
Timeline 
All year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration, SCIL Team, Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
 


Strategy/Activity 2 
Designated ELD 
 
Provide designated ELD to groups of students. 
Purchase licenses of Rosetta Stone for students to use as part of their classroom Tier 1 instruction. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners        


 
Timeline 
All year        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration, RTI Coordinator, Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 1000        


Source Lottery:  Instructional Materials        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Purchase licenses of Rosetta Stone for students to use as part of their classroom Tier 1 
instruction.        


Strategy/Activity 3 
Progress Monitoring 
 
Classroom teachers and admin will meet after trimester 1 and 2 to monitor EL progress 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
English Learners        


 
Timeline 


593/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


November 2020, March 2021        
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration, RTI Coordinator, Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 560        


Source Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Substitute teachers        


 


594/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
   


Goal 4 
 
Subject 
School Connectedness          


 
Goal Statement 
All students will feel connected to their school. The percentage of students that are chronically absent will decrease from 
5% in 2019-2020.          


 
LCAP Goal 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.         
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.         
         
         
         
                 


 
Basis for this Goal 
In analyzing the CA Dashboard chronic absenteeism data, the California Healthy Kid Survey data, and the Social-
Emotional Health Survey we see that a focus on School Connectedness is an area of need. When determining the level 
of School Connectedness in our district, we are specifically looking at data related to students reporting they have 
supportive, caring relationships with adults, the curriculum and school activities are relevant and engaging, and there is a 
sense of student leadership and ownership on campus.          


 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metric/Indicator Baseline Expected Outcome 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of "All 
Students" absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 10.5% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent "All Students" by 
1%. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Students with Disabilities absent 
more than 10% of the school year        


 14% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Students with 
Disabilities students by 1%. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students absent more than 10% of 
the school year        


 22.8% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students by 1%. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
English Learners absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 17% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent English Learners 
by 1%. 


Chronic Absenteeism: Percent of 
Hispanic students absent more than 
10% of the school year        


 13.3% chronically absent  We will decrease the percentage of 
chronically absent Hispanic students 
by 1%. 


 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
   
startcollapse 


595/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Strategy/Activity 1 
Attendance monitoring 
Classrooms at each grade level with the best attendance will be identified weekly and given a shout out during weekly 
announcements. 
Classrooms at each grade level with the best attendance will be identified monthly and be given a certificate of 
excellent attendance. 
Teachers will be given monthly attendance reports for their class and will contact chronically absent students letting 
them know they are missed. 
Administration will monitor attendance reports monthly and will contact families of chronically absent students to 
determine root cause, develop an attendance plan, and provide needed support. 
Teachers will be released by substitutes to meet with parents of students that are chronically absent to develop 
improvement plans. 
        


 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
All Students        


 
Timeline 
Weekly, Monthly and Quarterly        


 
Person(s) Responsible 
Administration, Attendance Clerk, Teachers        


 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 


Amount 500        


Source Donations        


Budget Reference 4000-4999: Books And Supplies        


Description Attendance incentives        


Amount 560        


Source District Funded        


Budget Reference 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries        


Description Substitutes        


 


596/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Budget Summary and Consolidation 
   


The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. The Consolidation of Funds is required for a 
school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp and consolidating those funds as part of a schoolwide program. 
 
Budget Summary 
 


Description  Amount 


Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application   


Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  56,764.00 


 
Allocations by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 


597/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Funding Source  Amount 


District Funded         560.00 


Donations         500.00 


LCFF - Supplemental         30,044.00 


Lottery:  Instructional Materials         21,000.00 


Parent-Teacher Association (PTA)         500.00 


Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality         4,160.00 
 


598/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         4,720.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         30,044.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         22,000.00 
 


599/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 


Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 District Funded  560.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Donations  500.00 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        


 LCFF - Supplemental  30,044.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  21,000.00 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Parent-Teacher Association (PTA)  500.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        


 Title II Part A: Improving Teacher 
Quality 


 4,160.00 


 


600/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
4 Classroom Teachers        


1 Other School Staff        


5 Parent or Community Members        
 
startcollapse 


Name of Members  Role 


Clyde Curley         X Principal        


Kathy Griffith         X Classroom Teacher        


Rossell Bocaletti         X Other School Staff        


Haylee Fox         X Classroom Teacher        


Eleanor Jonas         X Classroom Teacher        


Krista Holt         X Classroom Teacher        


Brianna Donaldson         X Parent or Community Member        


Linda Imonode Skemer         X Parent or Community Member        


Yihsu Chen         X Parent or Community Member        


Jorian Wilkins         X Parent or Community Member        


Antonella Gentile         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 


601/852







School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 41 Westlake Elementary School


Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 


Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on 10/24/2019. 
 
Attested: 


 


 Principal, Clyde Curley on 10/24/2019 


 


 SSC Chairperson, Brianna Donaldson on 10/24/2019 


 


602/852







 


 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1.2 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
  
   


AGENDA ITEM:  Gault Williams Annual Report 
  
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
  
FROM:                      Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
  
THROUGH:               Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Williams Annual Report from the Santa Cruz County Office of Education. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Santa Cruz County Office of Education Coordinator of Curriculum and Instruction sends an 
annual report to the Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education regarding the County Office of 
Education Williams Compliance Team visit, inspection and findings. This report is required by 
Education Code. There are no negative findings. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
  
This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
  
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
  


 


603/852







 


 


BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr 
Ms. Rose Filicetti 
Ms. Sandra Nichols 
Ms. Sue Roth 
Mr. Dana M. Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez 
Mr. Bruce Van Allen 


400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 ⬩ Tel (831) 466-5600 ⬩ Fax (831) 466-5607 ⬩ www.santacruzcoe.org 


 


 
Gault Elementary School  


Williams Settlement Legislation Report 2020 -21 
 
Date: October 27, 2020 
Date of Visit: August 21, 2020  1:00pm 
Principal: Amariah Hernandez 
Number of Classrooms Visited: 8 
Visiting Committee Members: Tom Tatum and George Lopez 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
School Facilities: 
As determined by the Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT) Gault Elementary School was 
found to be in “Good” repair with a rating of 96.38%.   See attached FIT report. 
 
Teacher Assignment Monitoring: 
For 2019-2020, there were no teacher mis-assignments or vacancies at any time during 
the school year. 
 
During our visit, the 2020-2021 Master Schedule or Teacher Assignment Listing was 
collected and has been submitted to the Santa Cruz County Office of Education Human 
Resources Department for their review. 
 
School Accountability Report Card: 
The SARC report for 2018-19 is available on the Santa Cruz City Schools District 
Website.  The SARC accurately reflects the findings by the Williams  committee 
members. 
 


604/852







 


 


BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr 
Ms. Rose Filicetti 
Ms. Sandra Nichols 
Ms. Sue Roth 
Mr. Dana M. Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez 
Mr. Bruce Van Allen 


400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 ⬩ Tel (831) 466-5600 ⬩ Fax (831) 466-5607 ⬩ www.santacruzcoe.org 


 
Instructional Materials: 
This year, because of constraints imposed by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Instructional 
Materials portion of the Williams Review was accomplished through teacher surveys 
and questionnaires backing up the signed “Principal’s 2020-2021 Williams Sufficiency 
Assurance” document.  That document is attached to this summary.  
Based on this documentation and assurance, the Williams Coordinator has found that 
all students have access to sufficient instructional materials, including textbooks, in the 
core subject areas. 
 
Uniform Complaint Postings: 
Notices regarding the Williams Lawsuit and Complaint Procedure were current and 
posted in all classrooms.  
 
 
Tom Tatum,  


 
Santa Cruz County Office Of Education, Williams Coordinator 
ttatum@santacruzcoe.org 
 
Attachments: Facility Inspection Tool 2020 - 2021 


Principal’s 2020-2021 Williams Sufficiency Assurance 
 
 


605/852







 


 


BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr 
Ms. Rose Filicetti 
Ms. Sandra Nichols 
Ms. Sue Roth 
Mr. Dana M. Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez 
Mr. Bruce Van Allen 


400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 ⬩ Tel (831) 466-5600 ⬩ Fax (831) 466-5607 ⬩ www.santacruzcoe.org 


 


 
Santa Cruz County Superintendent of Schools 


WILLIAMS SETTLEMENT LEGISLATION  
ANNUAL REPORT FOR SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS ELEMENTARY DISTRICT 


2020-21 FISCAL YEAR 
 
 
The Williams Settlement Legislation requires the County Superintendent of Schools to 
annually monitor and report on schools ranked in Deciles 1-3.  The Santa Cruz County 
Superintendent of Schools and staff at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education are 
responsible for: 
 


1. Determining if students have “sufficient” standards-aligned instructioinal 
materials in four core subject areas (English language arts, mathematics, 
history/social studies and science), including science laboratory 
equipment in grades 9-12, and, as appropriate, in foreign languages, and 
health; 


2. Determining if there is any facility condition that “poses an emergency or 
urgent threat to the health or safety of pupils or staff”; 


3. Determining if the school has provided accurate data on the annual 
School Accountability Report Card (SARC) related to the sufficiency of 
instructional materials and the safety, cleanliness, and adequacy of school 
facilities; 


4. Ensuring that a Uniform Complaint Process (UCP) policy is in use and 
UCP notices are posted in all classrooms and in administrative offices; 
and 


5. Determining if there are any Teacher Mis-Assignments or Teacher 
Vacancies at these schools. 
 


This report presents the results of our visit and review at Gault Elementary in the Santa 
Cruz City Schools Elementary District for the period of August - October 2020.  A 
complete Site Summary Report and Facilities Inspection Tool for this school has been 


606/852







 


 


BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr 
Ms. Rose Filicetti 
Ms. Sandra Nichols 
Ms. Sue Roth 
Mr. Dana M. Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez 
Mr. Bruce Van Allen 


400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 ⬩ Tel (831) 466-5600 ⬩ Fax (831) 466-5607 ⬩ www.santacruzcoe.org 


 
included with this Annual Report for submission to District and COE Board Members 
and Superintendents. 
 
Our findings for each area are as follows: 
 
Instructional Materials 
 
The team found that all students had access to sufficient instructional materials, 
including textbooks, in the core subject areas.  Gault Elementary, when reviewed for 
instructional materials/textbook sufficiency, fully complied with the Williams settlement. 
 
Facility Inspections 
 
Utilizing the Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT), as developed by the Office of Public 
Schools Construction to determine if a school facility is in “good repair” as defined by 
Education Code (EC) Section 17002(d)(1) and to rate the facility pursuant to EC Section 
17002(d)(2), a school facilities inspection was completed at Gault Elementary School. 
Our visiting team reviewed the previous year’s FIT report, annual FIT reports submitted 
by the district, and inspected restrooms, common areas, kitchen/multi-purpose facilities, 
and 25% of the school classrooms. 
 
Gault Elementary was determined to be in “Good” repair, evaluated at 96.38%. 
 
School Accountability Report Cards (SARC) 
 
The Williams Settlement included language regarding the accuracy of data reported in 
the School Accountability Report Card (SARC).  The 2018-19 SARC for Gault 
Elementary is available on the CA Department of Education Website 
(http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/).  
 
In reviewing the 2018-19 report, the SARC for Gault Elementary accurately reflects the 
findings by the Williams committee members. 


607/852







 


 


BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr 
Ms. Rose Filicetti 
Ms. Sandra Nichols 
Ms. Sue Roth 
Mr. Dana M. Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez 
Mr. Bruce Van Allen 


400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 ⬩ Tel (831) 466-5600 ⬩ Fax (831) 466-5607 ⬩ www.santacruzcoe.org 


 
 
Teacher Mis-assignments/Vacancies 
 
In the year previous, 2019-20, there were no mis-assignments or teacher vacancies. 
 
During our visit, the 2020-21 Teacher Assignment Listing was collected and has been 
submitted to the Santa Cruz County Office of Education Human Resources Department 
for their annual review.  SCCS has worked collaboratively with the Santa Cruz County 
Office of Education to ensure that teachers are appropriately credentialed and placed in 
the correct teaching assignments.  
 
Uniform Complaint Process 
 
All classrooms must have the Uniform Complaint Process Classroom Notice posted. 
The team found that of the 25% of classrooms visited at each site, ALL classes had 
current notices posted in both Spanish and English. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Facility Inspection Tool 2020 - 2021 
Gault Elementary School Williams Settlement Legislation Report 2020-21 
 
 
Tom Tatum 


  
Santa Cruz County Office of Education, Williams Coordinator 
ttatum@santacruzcoe.org 
 


608/852







609/852







610/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Purchase Orders, Bids and Quotes  
 
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the purchase orders, quotes, bids and proposals from 10/10/2020 through 
10/23/2020. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors or ratification within 60 days as allowed by Education 
Code 17605. Also included for pre-approval are 2020-21 purchase orders which will be entered 
before the next regular Board meeting for Facility Services, Transportation, Food Services, and 
Central Purchasing for routine supplies and services. 
 
The following definitions are provided to clarify the differences between purchase orders, 
quotes and bids: 
 
Purchase Orders: 
All purchases shall be made by formal contract or purchase order or shall be accompanied by a 
receipt. The Superintendent or designee may create a "blanket" or "open" purchase order 
system for the purchase of minor items as needed from a vendor.  
 
Quotes: 
For the purchase of materials and supplies between $15,000 and $60,000 more than one quote 
is required and may be verbal or written. When purchases will be $15,000 to $95,200 for 
contracted work other than Public Works Projects and $60,000 to $95,200 for materials and 
supplies, several vendors are contacted for written quotes/proposals. This process, though not 
as rigorous as a bid, ensures that the District has involved more than one vendor and will 
secure a competitive price.  
   
Bids/RFP: 
A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, distribution of written 
specification regarding the work or materials, and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, 
must be followed for contracted work other than CUPCCAA Public Works Projects projected to 
cost $95,200 and over, or for materials and supplies in the sum of $95,200 or over unless a 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is being utilized under PCC 20118. Under CUPCCAA 
contracts may be awarded up to $60,000 without additional quotes. Informal bidding 


611/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.1. 


procedures are followed for Public Works projects from $60,000 to $200,000 and a formal bid 
process occurs for Public Works projects over $200,000 (PCC 20117(B), 20651(B). Bids are 
solicited from a wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is made 
to the lowest responsible bidder and that the District receives the best price available. 
   
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


612/852







Board Report with Fund and Resource 


Description


ReqPay11g


Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/10/2020 - 10/23/2020


PO
Number


Req Fund
Order Amt


Ordr
Loc


Req
FundRequisition Information


Resource
DescriptionVendor Name


BPO21-00015 150.00 M&O20/21 OPEN PO, BATTERY 


PARTS/SUPPLIES FOR M&O


01 ONGOING & MAJORBATTERIES PLUS


BPO21-00016 1,000.00 TRNHoffice supplies 01 SE:PROJECT WORKPALACE BUSINESS SOL


BPO21-00017 1,000.00 TRNHoffice supplies 01 SE:PROJECT WORKAMAZON.COM


PO21-00012 1,050.00 TRANOpen PO for Drivers Physical Exams 01 TRANSPORT:HOMEDOCTORS ON DUTY MED


PO21-00023 2,850.00 TRANOpen PO for Bus Repairs 01 TRANSPORT:HOMENORTH BAY FORD


PO21-00689 3,621.55 TRANCFP - Bus Seats/Service 01 TRANSPORT:SPECIA-Z BUS SALES INC


PO21-00729 1,813.55 HHSEarbuds 01 LEARN LOSS MITICDW GOVERNMENT INC.


PO21-00756 792.52 CATPPalace art supplies for Monarch 01 LEARN LOSS MITIPALACE BUSINESS SOL


PO21-00760 3,676.79 HHSCustom Tote Bags 01 LEARN LOSS MITISPORTS DESIGN INC


PO21-00849 2,162.60 BSSQuote #49123.  Workbooks-Monarch 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCHANDWRITING WITHOUT


PO21-00850 1,087.00 SQHSLicenses 01 ESSERSPOTIFY USA INC


PO21-00851 3,239.83 SQHSMetal Shop tools 01 C. PERKINS CTE:PAXTON PATTERSON IN


PO21-00852 454.48 BSSAFE math books 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCZ TWIST BOOKS INC


PO21-00853 390.00 CURRCTE: League Cycling Certification 


Training


01 CAREER TECHNICALEAGUE OF AMERICAN 


PO21-00854 1,012.67 BMSBook Cover Machine 01 DONATIONSCOLIBRI SYSTEM


PO21-00855 500.00 BMSSupplies for Teachers 01 NO REPORTING REHOME DEPOT INC


PO21-00856 50.00 SPEDCFP: EXP.LEARING CONSULTING 


SERVICES


01 SE:STATE LOCALEXPRESSIVE LEARNING


PO21-00857 288.00 SCHSCONFIRMING FOR PAYMENT-CSA 01 NO REPORTING REPLANNED PARENTHOOD 


PO21-00858 294.53 DLELScholastic News for TWI 1st grade 01 NO REPORTING RESCHOLASTIC MAGAZINE


PO21-00859 300.00 DLELLifelab Amazon Open PO 01 DONATIONSAMAZON.COM


PO21-00860 721.54 DLELScholastic News for K-3 01 NO REPORTING RESCHOLASTIC MAGAZINE


PO21-00861 11,307.38 HHSSchoolwide Tshirts 01 NO REPORTING RESPORTS DESIGN INC


PO21-00862 1,562.52 HHSMusic 01 Measure TJW PEPPER & SON INC


PO21-00863 27,540.27 M&ODLV UTILITY INFRASTRUCTURE 21 BOND, MEASURE BPG&E


PO21-00864 9,650.00 M&OMH SWITCHGEAR REPLACEMENT 


DSA PLAN FIELD REVIEW


21 BOND, MEASURE ADIVISION OF STATE A


PO21-00865 9,650.00 M&OWL SWITCHGEAR REPLACEMENT 


DSA PLAN FIELD REVIEW


21 BOND, MEASURE BDIVISION OF STATE A


PO21-00866 43,340.29 M&OBV UTILITY INFRASTRUCTURE 21 BOND, MEASURE BPG&E


PO21-00867 6,000.00 BVELCSA - Jennifer Russo, Consultant 01 ESEA:TEACHER QUJENNIFER RUSSO


PO21-00868 1,335.91 BVELLibrary Supplies - Porterfield 


QUO-173720-Q1L1R5


01 DONATIONSJUNIOR LIBRARY GUIL


PO21-00869 162.92 BVELLibrary supplies - Porterfield(cart ID 


1459759


01 DONATIONSDEMCO INC


PO21-00870 1,094.96 HHSCFP - Books 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCTEXTBOOK WAREHOUSE


PO21-00871 2,289.00 SUPTSuperintendent ACSA Renewal 01 NO REPORTING REACSA


PO21-00872 89.91 HHSStickers 01 DONATIONSALPHAGRAPHICS SANTA


PO21-00873 8,895.00 M&O225 SWIFT ST. FUMIGATION 01 OTHER RESTRICTE4 LESS TERMITE INC


PO21-00874 1,635.90 CATPCengage Learning Addl Licenses 01 CRF COVIDCENGAGE LEARNING


PO21-00875 115.45 MHMSReading A-Z for Hadzis -SPSA Title 1 


Goal 1


01 BAS GNT LOW-INCLEARNING A-Z


The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 


authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 


and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Oct 26 2020  4:00PM


Page 1 of 2


613/852







Board Report with Fund and Resource 


Description


ReqPay11g


Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/10/2020 - 10/23/2020


PO
Number


Req Fund
Order Amt


Ordr
Loc


Req
FundRequisition Information


Resource
DescriptionVendor Name


PO21-00876 500.00 BMSPrizes for Students 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCAMAZON.COM


PO21-00877 1,514.21 GAELPosters for COVID Guidelines 01 ESSERBROPRINTS INC


PO21-00878 600.00 DLEL2020-21 Open PO Office Cartridges 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDICARTRIDGE WORLD


PO21-00879 344.80 BMSOnline Subcription for Band 01 ESSERSPOTIFY USA INC


PO21-00880 1,300.00 BMSOnline Subcription B40MS 01 ESSEREDPUZZLE INC


PO21-00881 2,000.00 BMSOnline Subscription B40MS 01 ESSERPADLET


PO21-00882 1,589.57 SQHSKiln Repair 01 Measure TPHOENIX CERAMICS SU


PO21-00883 1,000.00 GAELHeadphones for Cohorts 01 ESSERAMAZON.COM


PO21-00884 1,000.00 M&OSCH NEW ELECTRICAL DSA FEE 21 BOND, MEASURE ADIVISION OF STATE A


PO21-00885 8,398.17 GAELiPads for Teachers 01 ESSERAPPLE COMPUTER INC


PO21-00886 325.00 GAELiPad Cases 01 ESSERAMAZON.COM


PO21-00887 1,000.00 GAELSupplies for Learning Cohorts 01 ESSERPALACE BUSINESS SOL


PO21-00888 4,062.53 M&ONB GYM DSA FEE 21 BOND, MEASURE BDIVISION OF STATE A


PO21-00889 988.72 SQHSCFP -- PRINTING SERVICES 01 DONATIONSTHE PRINT GALLERY


PO21-00890 1,000.00 SQHSPRINTING SERVICES 01 DONATIONSTHE PRINT GALLERY


PO21-00891 1,309.42 HHSClassroom Supplies 01 Measure THENRY SCHEIN INC


PO21-00892 100.00 DOCUSTODIAL/BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON.COM


PO21-00893 1,350.00 HHSPREPAY - IB Workshop 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCINTERNATIONAL BACCA


PO21-00894 2,500.00 BMSOnline Subcription B40MS 01 ESSERKAMI


PO21-00895 1,190.81 MHMSSystem 44 Renewal Plan-SPSA Title 1 


Goal 1


01 BAS GNT LOW-INCHOUGHTON MIFFLIN CO


PO21-00896 111.22 HHSOffice Supplies 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON.COM


PO21-00897 500.00 MHMSOpen PO for woodshop-Wells 01 OTHER RESTRICTESAN LORENZO LUMBER 


PO21-00898 3,278.27 HHSBook Covers 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCCOLIBRI SYSTEM


PO21-00899 493.40 HHSBook Supplies 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCDEMCO INC


PO21-00900 284.03 HHSPlaques 01 NO REPORTING REFOLLETT SCHOOL SOLU


PO21-00901 8,789.71 HHSMusic Supplies/instruments 01 Measure TWOODWIND AND BRASSW


PO21-00902 1,680.00 CURRQuaver Music Curriculum 01 CRF COVIDQUAVERED INC


PO21-00903 1,008.00 BMSOnline Subscription B40MS 01 ESSERKIDS DISCOVER LLC


Total 199,342.43 


The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 


authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 


and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Oct 26 2020  4:00PM


Page 2 of 2


614/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.2. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report. The report covers vendor warrants issued 
from 10/13/2020 through 10/27/2020.  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


615/852







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 10/13/2020 through 10/27/2020


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


954706 10/19/2020 APPI 45.85 


954707 10/19/2020 B & B SMALL ENGINE REPAIR 87.85 


954708 10/19/2020 CENTRAL HOME SUPPLY 1,212.87 


954709 10/19/2020 CERTIFIED BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY TESTING LLC 3,391.00 


954710 10/19/2020 CHEMTROL 725.51 


954711 10/19/2020 CINTAS CORPORATIONS 400.92 


954712 10/19/2020 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 1,694.97 


954713 10/19/2020 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 158.49 


954714 10/19/2020 GRAINGER INC 162.99 


954715 10/19/2020 GRANITE ROCK COMPANY 513.75 


954716 10/19/2020 HINES PEST & WEED CONTROL DBA R AURIA INC 110.00 


954717 10/19/2020 HOME DEPOT INC 854.22 


954718 10/19/2020 INDEPENDENT ELECTRICAL SUPPLY 165.02 


954719 10/19/2020 INDEPENDENT RENTAL CO 425.08 


954720 10/19/2020 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 1,046.68 


954721 10/19/2020 RIVERSIDE LIGHTING 120.78 


954722 10/19/2020 SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME CENTER 380.03 


954723 10/19/2020 SANTA CRUZ AUTO PARTS INC 163.99 


954724 10/19/2020 SANTA CRUZ RECORDS MANAGEMENT 80.00 


954725 10/19/2020 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO 2,055.92 


954726 10/19/2020 SUPERIOR ALARM CO 237.50 


954727 10/19/2020 TOYOTA MATERIAL HANDLING NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 1,410.03 


954728 10/19/2020 Brooks, Jessica E 383.52 


954729 10/19/2020 Ezroj, David M 77.09 


954730 10/19/2020 Czaikoski, Donna 53.12 


954731 10/19/2020 Hedrick-Farr, Amy R 250.00 


954732 10/19/2020 Cheman, Charlene 100.00 


954733 10/19/2020 Davis, Steve P 60.00 


954734 10/19/2020 Martinez, Ana 40.00 


954735 10/19/2020 ABRITE ORGANIZATION, THE 36,672.75 


954736 10/19/2020 ALPHAGRAPHICS SANTA CRUZ 128.53 


954737 10/19/2020 AMAZON.COM 62.16 


954738 10/19/2020 AMS.NET 1,830.00 


954739 10/19/2020 AT&T MOBILITY 3,266.37 


954740 10/19/2020 BALANCE4KIDS 18,427.58 


954741 10/19/2020 BLACKSTONE INDUSTRIES LLC 519.63 


954742 10/19/2020 CENGAGE LEARNING 50.00 


954743 10/19/2020 CONTINENTAL ATHLETIC 7,500.00 


954744 10/19/2020 DANIELSEN CO. 1,268.55 


954745 10/19/2020 DANNIS WOLIVER KELLEY 495.00 


954746 10/19/2020 DELTA EDUCATION INC 2,574.46 


954747 10/19/2020 EDPUZZLE INC 1,300.00 


954748 10/19/2020 FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS INC 462.73 


954749 10/19/2020 GOLD STAR FOODS 1,591.37 


954750 10/19/2020 JERENE LACEY 5,916.73 


954751 10/19/2020 LEARNING WITHOUT TEARS 758.55 


954752 10/19/2020 LOZANO SMITH LLP 13,596.04 


954753 10/19/2020 NASCO 139.78 


954754 10/19/2020 P & R PAPER SUPPLY COMPANY INC 351.55 


Page 1 of 4


Generated for Michaela Cirerol (MCIREROL), Oct 27 2020  7:12AM014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


616/852







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 10/13/2020 through 10/27/2020


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


954755 10/19/2020 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 1,163.04 


954756 10/19/2020 PRODUCERS DAIRY FOODS INC 1,697.80 


954757 10/19/2020 ROGER'S REFRIGERATION INC 3,010.72 


954758 10/19/2020 SANTA CRUZ AUTO PARTS INC 60.33 


954759 10/19/2020 SAVVAS LEARNING COMPANY LLC 2,999.13 


954760 10/19/2020 SOLAR ENERGY OF AMERICA 1 LLC 7,567.39 


954761 10/19/2020 SOLAR ENERGY OF AMERICA 1 LLC 23,180.95 


954762 10/19/2020 SOQUEL CREEK WATER DISTRICT 7,682.55 


954763 10/19/2020 STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 38.00 


954764 10/19/2020 TREERING CORPORATION 1,860.99 


954765 10/19/2020 TURNITIN LLC 3,445.00 


954766 10/19/2020 WATSONVILLE COAST PRODUCE 1,747.50 


954767 10/19/2020 ZOOM VIDEO COMMUNCATIONS INC 2,183.01 


954768 10/19/2020 LOZANO SMITH LLP 135.00 


954769 10/19/2020 DEVELOPMENT GROUP INC 6,022.04 


954770 10/19/2020 M3 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING 1,224.95 


954771 10/19/2020 MADI 19SIX ARCHITECTS 59,895.25 


955344 10/26/2020 NATIONAL FITNESS CAMPAIGN LP 119,990.00 


955345 10/26/2020 AMERICAN SUPPLY CORP 22,917.92 


955346 10/26/2020 Johnston, Jennifer L 18.23 


955347 10/26/2020 Ezroj, David M 157.08 


955348 10/26/2020 Hernandez, Amariah A 660.68 


955349 10/26/2020 Kemerling, Patricia A 21.94 


955350 10/26/2020 Sihler, Kris L 69.97 


955351 10/26/2020 Haeger, Katrina E 100.66 


955352 10/26/2020 DOCTORS ON DUTY MEDICAL GROUP 1,193.50 


955353 10/26/2020 BARTOS ARCHITECTURE INC 87,795.85 


955354 10/26/2020 ACE PORTABLE SERVICES 2,373.50 


955355 10/26/2020 APPI 217.36 


955356 10/26/2020 BATTERIES PLUS 26.15 


955357 10/26/2020 CENTRAL HOME SUPPLY 40.39 


955358 10/26/2020 CINTAS CORPORATIONS 469.14 


955359 10/26/2020 COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 159.94 


955360 10/26/2020 CRW INDUSTRIES INC 14,487.00 


955361 10/26/2020 CRYSTAL SPRINGS WATER 29.50 


955362 10/26/2020 DIRECT LINE TELE RESPONSE 3.00 


955363 10/26/2020 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 484.26 


955364 10/26/2020 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 167.49 


955365 10/26/2020 FLYERS ENERGY LLC 1,822.62 


955366 10/26/2020 HINES PEST & WEED CONTROL DBA R AURIA INC 95.00 


955367 10/26/2020 HOME DEPOT INC 384.62 


955368 10/26/2020 INDEPENDENT ELECTRICAL SUPPLY 66.68 


955369 10/26/2020 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 984.66 


955370 10/26/2020 KONE INC 1,865.26 


955371 10/26/2020 LINCOLN AQUATICS 1,324.26 


955372 10/26/2020 NORTH BAY FORD 112.75 


955373 10/26/2020 PAPE MATERIAL HANDLING INC 463.00 


955374 10/26/2020 SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME CENTER 337.86 


955375 10/26/2020 SANTA CRUZ AUTO PARTS INC 63.01 


Page 2 of 4


Generated for Michaela Cirerol (MCIREROL), Oct 27 2020  7:12AM014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


617/852







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 10/13/2020 through 10/27/2020


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


955376 10/26/2020 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO 188.95 


955377 10/26/2020 SOQUEL NURSERY GROWERS INC 161.51 


955378 10/26/2020 SUPERIOR ALARM CO 315.00 


955379 10/26/2020 TURF & INDUSTRIAL EQUIPMENT CO 115.90 


955380 10/26/2020 UNITED RENTALS 698.16 


955381 10/26/2020 WESTSIDE HARDWARE 38.89 


955382 10/26/2020 PG&E 2,500.00 


955383 10/26/2020 PG&E 43,340.29 


955384 10/26/2020 PG&E 27,540.27 


955385 10/26/2020 MADI 19SIX ARCHITECTS 4,417.50 


955386 10/26/2020 A-Z BUS SALES INC 106.72 


955387 10/26/2020 AMAZON.COM 2,716.91 


Unpaid Tax


2,720.88 Expensed Amount


3.97 


955388 10/26/2020 CALIF DOJ ACCTNG CUST #140415, ORI AB476 1,600.00 


955389 10/26/2020 CATTOS GRAPHICS INC 303.27 


955390 10/26/2020 CDW GOVERNMENT INC. 4,146.04 


955391 10/26/2020 CENGAGE LEARNING 299.25 


955392 10/26/2020 COMMUNITY TEAM BUILDERS 500.00 


955393 10/26/2020 COMPLETE MAILING SERVICE INC 402.20 


955394 10/26/2020 DANIELSEN CO. 805.00 


955395 10/26/2020 DICK BLICK CO. 1,567.82 


955396 10/26/2020 GOLD STAR FOODS 2,125.51 


955397 10/26/2020 GREENWASTE RECOVERY INC 6,607.56 


955398 10/26/2020 MAGNOLIA SUN LLC 4,646.90 


955399 10/26/2020 NAVIANCE INC 3,750.00 


955400 10/26/2020 NORTH BAY FORD 1,512.87 


955401 10/26/2020 OFFICE DEPOT 28.62 


955402 10/26/2020 P & R PAPER SUPPLY COMPANY INC 255.18 


955403 10/26/2020 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 846.16 


955404 10/26/2020 PRODUCERS DAIRY FOODS INC 587.05 


955405 10/26/2020 ROGER'S REFRIGERATION INC 245.08 


955406 10/26/2020 SANTA CRUZ AUTO PARTS INC 54.77 


955407 10/26/2020 SANTA CRUZ, CITY OF 507.79 


955408 10/26/2020 SCHOLASTIC MAGAZINES INC. 4,450.05 


955409 10/26/2020 SISC 1,219,405.10 


955410 10/26/2020 SPORTS DESIGN INC 3,445.44 


955411 10/26/2020 TEXTBOOK WAREHOUSE 3,580.71 


955412 10/26/2020 THE HARTFORD LTD ATTN: GROUP BENEFITS 3,657.51 


955413 10/26/2020 WATSONVILLE COAST PRODUCE 873.50 


955414 10/26/2020 FIONA CAMAKAKA 500.00 


955415 10/26/2020 GINGER HURLEY 500.00 


955416 10/26/2020 JESSICA FAIRLIE 500.00 


955417 10/26/2020 MELIA FURST 1,000.00 


955418 10/26/2020 NICOLE QING 500.00 


955419 10/26/2020 HARTFORD LIFE 3,296.34 


955420 10/26/2020 BELLI ARCHITECTURAL GROUP INC 33,263.79 


955421 10/26/2020 DEVELOPMENT GROUP INC 15,116.81 


Page 3 of 4


Generated for Michaela Cirerol (MCIREROL), Oct 27 2020  7:12AM014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


618/852







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 10/13/2020 through 10/27/2020


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


955422 10/26/2020 DIVISION OF STATE ARCHITECT ACCOUNTS 


RECEIVABLE


9,650.00 


955423 10/26/2020 DIVISION OF STATE ARCHITECT ACCOUNTS 


RECEIVABLE


9,650.00 


955424 10/26/2020 KLEINFELDER INC 301.50 


955425 10/26/2020 LEACH GROUP INC 35,400.00 


955426 10/26/2020 LEATHERMAN, DON B 680.00 


955427 10/26/2020 LOCATELLI MOVING & STORAGE INC 9,010.00 


955428 10/26/2020 MADI 19SIX ARCHITECTS 2,320.50 


955429 10/26/2020 MOORE TWINING ASSOCIATES INC 1,450.00 


955430 10/26/2020 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 4,200.00 


955431 10/26/2020 SWINERTON BUILDERS 619,274.25 


955432 10/26/2020 SYSTEMS & SPACE INC 95,522.33 


955433 10/26/2020 TD SPORTS GROUP LLC 6,000.00 


955434 10/26/2020 VERDE DESIGN INC 4,770.00 


2,697,384.89  157Total Number of Checks


Fund Recap


Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount


01 GENERAL/COUNTY SCHOOL 1,485,945.11 115 


13 CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE 14,887.42 14 


14 DEFERRED MAINTENANCE 14,487.00 1 


21 BUILDING 1,179,069.33 25 


73 FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRU 3,000.00 5 


Net (Check Amount)


Less Unpaid Tax Liability


Total Number of Checks 2,697,388.86 157 


3.97 


2,697,384.89 


Page 4 of 4


Generated for Michaela Cirerol (MCIREROL), Oct 27 2020  7:12AM014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


619/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Long-Term Debt Annual Report 
 
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Long-Term Debt Report. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This is an annual report on the District’s long-term debt obligations.  The District’s long-term 
debt is currently composed of facilities Bond Measures and a Certificate of Participation (COP) 
that was issued in 2010 to install the artificial turf field at Branciforte Middle School.  The 
District investigated an early payoff of the COP, but there is a penalty for early payment as the 
financing was through the American Recovery and Investment Act of 2009.   
 
Long-Term Debt Summery and 2020-2021 Annual Payment 


 Principal Interest 
Total Amount 


Owed 


Total Long Term Debt 166,559,432 79,113,224 245,672,656 


2020-2021 Annual Payment 9,168,768 6,945,169 16,113,937 


 
 
General Obligation Bonds: Secondary School District Debt Summary 


Debt Description Principal Interest Amount Owed 
Date of Final 


Payment 
Funding 
Source 


Measure H 1998 Election 1,637,508 3,522,492 5,160,000 2/1/2026 
Property 


Taxes 


Measure H 1998 Election 2013 
Refunding 


21,650,000 3,925,587 25,530,587 8/1/2029 
Property 


Taxes 


Measure A 2016 Election,  
Series A 


43,870,000 23,272,162 67,142,162 8/1/2042 
Property 


Taxes 


Measure A 2016 Election, 
 Series B 


42,000,000 21,643,650 63,643,650 8/1/2045 
Property 


Taxes 


Total Amount Owed Secondary 109,112,508 52,363,891 161,476,399   


2020-2021 Annual Payment 6,091,540 4,629,235 10,720,775   


620/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.3. 


General Obligation Bonds: Elementary School District Debt Summary 


Debt Description Principal Interest Amount Owed 
Date of Final 


Payment 
Funding 
Source 


Measure E 1998 Election 766,924 1,633,076 2,400,000 2/1/2026 
Property 


Taxes 


Measure E 1998 Election 2013 
Refunding 


11,795,000 2,096,225 13,891,225 8/1/2029 
Property 


Taxes 


Measure B 2016 Election,  
Series A 


23,350,000 11,651,250 35,001,250 8/1/2042 
Property 


Taxes 


Measure B 2016 Election, 
 Series B 


20,400,000 11,007,981 31,407,981 8/1/2045 
Property 


Taxes 


Total Amount Owed 
Elementary 


56,311,924 26,388,532 82,700,456 
  


2020-2021 Annual Payment 2,937,228 2,247,134 5,184,362   


 
Branciforte Middle School Qualified School Construction Bond 


 Principal Interest Amount Owed 


2020-2021 Annual Payment 140,000 68,800 208,800 


Total Amount Owed 1,000,000 283,549 1,283,549 


Funding Source RDA Funds   


Date of Final Payment 05/01/2027   


 
Long Term Debt Recap 


District Debt Description Principal Interest 
Amount 


Owed 


Date of 
Final 


Payment 


Funding 
Source 


Secondary Measure H 1998 Election 1,637,508 3,522,492 5,160,000 2/1/2026 
Property 


Taxes 


Secondary 
Measure H 1998 Election 
2013 Refunding 


21,650,000 3,925,587 25,530,587 8/1/2029 
Property 


Taxes 


Secondary 
Measure A 2016 Election,  
Series A 


43,870,000 23,272,162 67,142,162 8/1/2042 
Property 


Taxes 


Secondary 
Measure A 2016 Election, 
 Series B 


42,000,000 21,643,650 63,643,650 8/1/2045 
Property 


Taxes 


Elementary Measure E 1998 Election 766,924 1,633,076 2,400,000 2/1/2026 
Property 


Taxes 


Elementary 
Measure E 1998 Election 
2013 Refunding 


11,795,000 2,096,225 13,891,225 8/1/2029 
Property 


Taxes 


Elementary 
Measure B 2016 Election,  
Series A 


23,350,000 11,651,250 35,001,250 8/1/2042 
Property 


Taxes 


621/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.3. 


Elementary 
Measure B 2016 Election, 
 Series B 


20,400,000 11,007,981 31,407,981 8/1/2045 
Property 


Taxes 


Both 
2010 Certificate of 
Participation (QSCB) 


1,135,000 360,801 1,495,801 5/1/2027 RDA Funds 


 
Total Amount Owed 116,559,432 79,113,224 


245,672,65
6 


  


 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Total long-term debt is $245,672,656.  The 2020-21 annual payment is $16,113,937.  Funding 
source:  Property Taxes and Redevelopment Agency Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


 


 


622/852







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.2.4. 
 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  First Quarter Investment Report  
 
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the First Quarter Investment Report for 2020-21. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
SB564, effective January 1, 1996, requires local governments in California, including school 
districts, to make quarterly reports to the Governing Board on the investments of the agency. 
 
District cash for all funds is on deposit with and is invested by the Santa Cruz County Auditor-
Controller.  The report of interest rates for the period 7/1/20 through 9/30/20 is attached.  The 
Quarterly Investment Report from the Santa Cruz County Treasurer's Office is an insert to the 
Board agenda book.  
 
The quarterly interest rate that applies to all funds has been: 
 


   1st Q 2nd Q 3rd Q 4th Q   


  2014-15 0.409% 0.425% 0.498% 0.517%   


  2015-16 0.623% 0.585% 0.676% 0.723%   


  2016-17 0.777% 0.764% 0.912% 0.965%   


  2017-18 0.977% 1.081% 1.307% 1.456%   


  2018-19 1.610% 1.863% 2.211% 2.330%   


  2019-20 2.312% 2.174% 1.965% 1.449%   


  2020-21 1.045%      


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The table above shows the interest rates in all funds since 2014-15. The interest earned year to 
date through the 1st Quarter of 2020-21 was $172,407.69. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


623/852







COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ Prepared by: 


INTEREST APPORTIONMENT Updated on: 


GENERAL FUND EARNINGS


INTEREST ON CASH IN TREASURY GL 101 INTEREST ON CASH IN TREASURY GL 101


GEN FUND GEN FUND


TOTAL Prefix ID & FX % OF TOTAL Prefix ID & FX % OF 


APPORTIONED 40430/40434 TOTAL RATE APPORTIONED 40430/40434 TOTAL RATE


A B C A B C


JUL 759,577.68             84,313.80               11.100% 1.106% JUL 1,629,218.53          285,242.46             17.508% 2.350%


AUG 671,499.51             72,434.00               10.787% 1.064% AUG 1,558,637.82          255,055.60             16.364% 2.294%


SEPT 576,628.33             61,113.35               10.598% 0.964% SEPT 1,402,182.82          220,160.88             15.701% 2.293%


1ST QTR 2,007,705.52 217,861.15 10.851% 1.045% 1ST QTR 4,590,039.17 760,458.94 16.568% 2.312%


OCT OCT 1,376,063.92          209,558.10             15.229% 2.253%


NOV NOV 1,360,003.58          307,301.39             22.596% 2.245%


DEC DEC 1,509,718.59          324,393.65             21.487% 2.024%


2ND QTR 0.00 0.00 0.000% 0.000% 2ND QTR 4,245,786.09 841,253.14 19.814% 2.174%


JAN JAN 1,580,642.15          291,418.12             18.437% 2.104%


FEB FEB 1,283,773.36          212,593.65             16.560% 1.950%


MAR MAR 1,394,601.48          194,860.40             13.972% 1.842%


3RD QTR 0.00 0.00 0.000% 0.000% 3RD QTR 4,259,016.99 698,872.17 16.409% 1.966%


APR APR 1,237,871.93          249,404.99             20.148% 1.587%


MAY MAY 1,137,954.74          191,938.53             16.867% 1.441%


JUNE JUNE 965,341.63             149,595.73             15.497% 1.318%


4TH QTR 0.00 0.00 0.000% 0.000% 4TH QTR 3,341,168.30 590,939.25 17.687% 1.449%


TOTALS 2,007,705.52 217,861.15 10.851% 1.045% TOTALS 16,436,010.55 2,891,523.50 17.593% 1.975%


FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20


Jessica Renda


10/8/2020


https://sccsnet-my.sharepoint.com/personal/alyssamartinez_sccs_net/Documents/Documents/Board Meetings/11.04.20/20-21 
Int History.xls19-20 Updated on 10/27/2020


624/852







Dr. Faris Sabbah, Superintendent · 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060


MEMO


DATE:


TO: DISTRICT BUSINESS MANAGERS


FROM: Elizabeth Heimsoth, Sr. Account Specialist IV   466-5623


SUBJECT: 2020-2021 INTEREST SEPT. 2020


The following summary of the Auditor - Controller's interest rates is provided for your information.
1ST QTR  2ND QTR


FY 20/21 JULY AUGUST SEPT. AVERAGE OCT. NOV. DEC. AVERAGE
1.106% 1.064% 0.964% 1.045% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000%


3RD QTR 4TH QTR
JAN. FEB. MARCH AVERAGE APRIL MAY JUNE AVERAGE


0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000%


 FY 20/21 1.045%


PRIOR YEARS AVERAGE - PROVIDED BELOW IS A LISTING OF THE ANNUALIZED
    INTEREST RATES FOR THE LAST 24 FISCAL YEARS.


YEAR RATE YEAR RATE YEAR RATE
FY 20/21 1.05% FY 12/13 0.35% FY 04/05 2.20%


FY 19/20 1.98% FY 11/12 0.49% FY 03/04 1.30%


FY 18/19 1.97% FY 10/11 0.59% FY 02/03 1.99%


FY 17/18 1.21% FY 09/10 0.81% FY 01/02 3.28%


FY 16/17 0.86% FY 08/09 1.88% FY 00/01 6.28%


FY 15/16 0.65% FY 07/08 4.16% FY 99/00 5.82%


FY 14/15 0.45% FY 06/07 5.27% FY 98/99 5.40%


FY 13/14 0.36% FY 05/06 4.23% FY 97/98 5.57%


CC Rebecca Olker


October 27, 2020


625/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Resolution # 17-20-21 for Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes 
and Related Documents 


 
MEETING DATE: November 4, 2020  
 
FROM: Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution # 17-20-21, authorizing the borrowing of funds for fiscal year 2020-21,  the 
issuance and sale of one or more series of 2020-21 tax and revenue anticipation notes,  
participation in the California School Cash Reserve Program and a request to the County Board 
of Supervisors to issue and sell said series of notes. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
By passing the resolution before the Board, the District will have the opportunity to participate 
in the California School Cash Reserve Program sponsored by California School Boards 
Association Finance Corporation.  The Cash Reserve Program pools the issuance of tax and 
revenue anticipation notes (TRANS) from school districts, community college districts, and 
county offices of education from across the state.  TRANs are short-term debt instruments 
issued by school districts throughout the State to create an additional reserve to the general 
fund.  In the Santa Cruz City School District, this reserve will act as a cushion to the general fund 
as we experience temporary cash flow needs caused by the deferral of state apportionment 
payments.  Issuing TRANs through a pooled program will provide lower costs than if the district 
issues its TRAN individually.  
 
The proceeds from the sale of the TRANs will be invested in the Santa Cruz County investment 
pool while not needed for cash flow.  The investment return on the TRAN proceeds will help 
offset the cost of issuing a TRAN.  
 
The attached model helps estimate the net cost of the TRAN to the District.  It takes the 
issuance costs, interest costs and interest earnings into account.  The issuance costs assuming 
the full $5 million is issued is $23,250.  As shown in the model, the District may earn enough 
interest to cover the TRAN interest costs and partially cover the issuance costs.   
 
The TRAN will be repaid after the 2020/21 fiscal year apportionment deferrals are repaid from 
July 2021 to November 2021. 
 
 


626/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.5. 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
$23,250 in issuance costs, LCFF base (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 
 


627/852







Sources Issue Date 02/25/21
Prinicpal 5,000,000       Maturity Date 01/31/22
Premium 127,630           
Earnings 35,267             Coupon 3.00%
Total 5,162,897       Yield 0.25%


Price 102.553%
Uses


Principal Repayment 5,000,000       
Interest Repayment 140,000           
Costs of Issuance 23,250             
Total 5,163,250       


Estimated Net Benefit(Cost) (353)                 


Monthly Rate Date Note Proceeds
Interest 
Credited Draw


Draw 
Repayment


Note 
Repayment


Monthly Cash 
Flow


Interest 
Earnings


Cumulative 
Balance


2/25/2021 5,104,380       0 0 5,104,380       5,104,380       
1.00% 3/31/2021 0 0 -                        5,104               5,104,380       
1.00% 4/30/2021 0 0 -                        4,254               5,104,380       
1.00% 5/31/2021 13,612             0 0 13,612             4,254               5,117,992       
1.00% 6/30/2021 (5,000,000) 0 (5,000,000)      4,265               117,992           
1.00% 7/31/2021 0 1,000,000 1,000,000       98                     1,117,992       
1.00% 8/31/2021 5,295               0 1,000,000 1,005,295       932                  2,123,287       
1.00% 9/30/2021 0 1,000,000 1,000,000       1,769               3,123,287       
1.00% 10/31/2021 0 1,000,000 1,000,000       2,603               4,123,287       
1.00% 11/30/2021 7,808               0 1,000,000 1,007,808       3,436               5,131,095       
1.00% 12/31/2021 0 0 -                        4,276               5,131,095       
1.00% 1/31/2022 8,552               0 0 (5,140,000)      (5,131,448)      4,276               (353)                 


Total 5,104,380       35,267             (5,000,000) 5,000,000 (5,140,000)      35,267             


Santa Cruz City Schools
Estimated TRAN Economics


October 27, 2020


628/852







4135-0131-2801.3


THIS RESOLUTION MUST BE DISCUSSED, CONSIDERED AND DELIBERATED BY
THE  GOVERNING  BOARD  AS  A  SEPARATE  ITEM  OF  BUSINESS  ON  THE
GOVERNING  BOARD’S  AGENDA  IN  ACCORDANCE  WITH  CALIFORNIA
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 53635.7.


DISTRICT RESOLUTION


NAME OF DISTRICT:  SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT*


LOCATED IN:  COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ


MAXIMUM AMOUNT OF BORROWING:  $5,000,000


RESOLUTION  OF  THE  GOVERNING  BOARD  AUTHORIZING  THE
BORROWING  OF  FUNDS  FOR  FISCAL  YEAR  2020-2021  AND  THE
ISSUANCE AND SALE OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF 2020-2021 TAX
AND  REVENUE  ANTICIPATION  NOTES  THEREFOR  AND
PARTICIPATION  IN  THE  CALIFORNIA  SCHOOL CASH  RESERVE
PROGRAM AND REQUESTING THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF
THE COUNTY TO ISSUE AND SELL SAID SERIES OF NOTES


WHEREAS, school  districts,  community  college  districts  and  county  boards  of
education  are  authorized  by  Sections 53850  to  53858,  both  inclusive,  of  the  California
Government  Code (the “Act”) (being Article 7.6,  Chapter 4,  Part 1, Division 2,  Title 5 of the
Government Code) to borrow money by the issuance of temporary notes; and


WHEREAS, the governing board (the “Board”) has determined that, in order to satisfy
certain obligations and requirements of the school district, community college district or county
board of education specified above (the “District”), a public body corporate and politic located in
the County designated above (the “County”), it is desirable that a sum (the “Principal Amount”),
not  to exceed the Maximum Amount of Borrowing designated above, be borrowed for such
purpose during its fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 (“Fiscal Year 2020-2021”) by the issuance of
its 2020-2021 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (the first series of which shall be referred to
herein as the “Series A Notes” and any subsequent series of which shall be referred to herein as
“Additional Notes,” and collectively with the Series A Notes, the “Notes”), in one or more series
(each a “Series”), therefor in anticipation of the receipt by or accrual to the District during Fiscal


** If the Name of the District indicated on the face hereof is not the correct legal name of the District which adopted 
this Resolution, it shall nevertheless be deemed to refer to the District which adopted this Resolution, and the Name 
of the District indicated on the face hereof shall be treated as the correct legal name of said District for all purposes 
in connection with the Program (as hereinafter defined).


629/852







4135-0131-2801.3


Year 2020-2021 of taxes, income, revenue (including, but not limited to, revenue from the state
and federal governments), cash receipts and other moneys provided for such fiscal year for the
general fund and, if so indicated in a Pricing Confirmation (as defined in Section 4 hereof),
capital fund and/or special revenue fund (or similarly named fund or funds as indicated in such
Pricing Confirmation) of the District; and


WHEREAS, the Principal Amount may, as determined by the Authorized Officer (as
hereinafter defined), be divided into two or more portions evidenced by two or more Series of
Notes, which Principal Amount is to be confirmed and set forth in the Pricing Confirmation if
one Series of Notes is issued, or if more than one Series of Notes are issued, such Principal
Amount will be equal to the sum of the Series Principal Amounts (as defined in Section 2 hereof)
as confirmed and set forth in the Pricing Confirmation applicable to each Series of Notes; and


WHEREAS, the District hereby determines to borrow, for the purposes set forth above,
the Principal Amount by the issuance, in one or more Series, of the Notes;** and


WHEREAS, because the District does not have fiscal accountability status pursuant to
Section 1080, Section 42647, Section 42650 or Section 85266 of the California Education Code,
it  requests  the  Board  of  Supervisors  of  the  County  to  borrow,  on  the  District’s  behalf,  the
Principal Amount by the issuance of the Notes in one or more Series; and


WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 53853 of the Act, if the Board of Supervisors of the
County fails or refuses to authorize the issuance of the Notes within the time period specified in
said Section 53853, following receipt of this Resolution, and the Notes, in one or more series, are
issued in conjunction with tax and revenue anticipation notes, in one or more series, of other
Issuers (as hereinafter defined), the District may issue the Notes, in one or more series, in its
name pursuant to the terms stated herein; and


WHEREAS, it appears, and this Board hereby finds and determines, that the Principal
Amount, when added to the interest payable thereon, does not exceed eighty-five percent (85%)
of the estimated amount of the uncollected taxes, income, revenue (including, but not limited to,
revenue from the state and federal governments), cash receipts and other moneys provided for
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 which will be received by or which will accrue to the District during such
fiscal year for the general fund and, if so indicated in a Pricing Confirmation, capital fund and/or
special  revenue  fund  (or  similarly  named  fund  or  funds  as  indicated  in  such  Pricing
Confirmation) of the District and which will be available for the payment of the principal of each
Series of Notes and the interest thereon; and


WHEREAS, no money has heretofore been borrowed by or on behalf of the District
through the issuance of tax anticipation notes or temporary notes in anticipation of the receipt of,
or payable from or secured by, taxes, income, revenue (including, but not limited to, revenue
from the state and federal governments),  cash receipts and other moneys provided for Fiscal
Year 2020-2021 which will be received by or will accrue to the District during such fiscal year


*** Unless the context specifically requires otherwise, all references to “Series of Notes” herein shall be deemed to 
refer, to (i) the Note, if issued in one series by the County (or the District, as applicable) hereunder, or (ii) each 
individual Series of Notes severally, if issued in two or more series by the County (or the District, as applicable) 
hereunder.


2


630/852







4135-0131-2801.3


for the general fund and, if so indicated in a Pricing Confirmation, capital fund and/or special
revenue fund (or similarly named fund or funds as indicated in such Pricing Confirmation) of the
District; and


WHEREAS, pursuant  to  Section 53856  of  the  Act,  certain  taxes,  income,  revenue
(including, but not limited to, revenue from the state and federal governments), cash receipts and
other moneys which will be received by or accrue to the District during Fiscal Year 2020-2021
are  authorized  to  be  pledged  for  the  payment  of  the  principal  of  each  Series  of  Notes  (as
applicable) and the interest thereon (as hereinafter provided); and


WHEREAS, the District has determined that it is in the best interests of the District to
participate  in  the  California  School  Cash  Reserve  Program  (the  “Program”),  whereby
participating  school  districts,  community  college  districts  and  county  boards  of  education
(collectively, the “Issuers”) will simultaneously issue tax and revenue anticipation notes; and


WHEREAS, the Program has been designed with alternative structures, each of which
the District desires to approve; and


WHEREAS, under  the first  structure (the “Certificate  Structure”),  the District  would
issue one or more Series of Notes, each Series of Notes to be marketed with some or all of the
notes issued simultaneously by other Issuers participating in the Program, and Piper Sandler &
Co.,  as  underwriter  for  the  Program  (the  “Underwriter”),  and  Dale  Scott  &  Company,  as
financial advisor for the Program (the “Financial Advisor”), would form one or more pools of
notes or series of certificates (the “Certificates”) of participation (the “Series of Certificates”)
distinguished  by  (i)  whether  and  what  type(s)  of  Credit  Instrument  (as  hereinafter  defined)
secures notes comprising each Series of Certificates, and (ii) possibly other features, all of which
the District hereby authorizes the Underwriter and the Financial Advisor to determine; and


WHEREAS, the Certificate Structure requires the Issuers participating in any particular
Series of Certificates to deposit their applicable series of tax and revenue anticipation notes with
U.S.  Bank  National  Association,  as  trustee  (the  “Trustee”),  pursuant  to  a  trust  agreement
between  such  Issuers  and  the  Trustee  (the  trust  agreement  applicable  to  each  Series  of
Certificates, in the form presented to this meeting, with such changes, insertions and omissions
as  are  made pursuant  to  this  Resolution,  being  referred  to  herein  collectively  as,  the  “Trust
Agreement”), and requires the Trustee, pursuant to the Trust Agreement, to execute and deliver
the Certificates evidencing and representing proportionate undivided interests in the payments of
principal  of  and  interest  on  the  tax  and  revenue  anticipation  notes  issued  by  the  Issuers
comprising such Series of Certificates; and


WHEREAS, if the Certificate Structure is implemented, the District desires to have the
Trustee execute and deliver a Series of Certificates which evidences and represents interests of
the  owners  thereof  in  each  Series  of  Notes  issued  by  the  District  and  the  notes  issued
simultaneously by other Issuers participating in such Series of Certificates; and


WHEREAS, as additional security for the owners of each Series of Certificates, all or a
portion of the payments by all of the Issuers of their respective series of notes comprising such
Series of Certificates may or may not be secured by an irrevocable letter (or letters) of credit or


3


631/852







4135-0131-2801.3


policy (or policies)  of insurance or other credit  instrument  (or instruments)  (collectively,  the
“Credit Instrument”) issued by the credit provider (or credit providers) (collectively, the “Credit
Provider”) designated in the applicable Trust Agreement, as finally executed, pursuant to a credit
agreement  (or  agreements)  or  commitment  letter  (or  letters)  (such  credit  agreement  (or
agreements) or commitment letter (or letters), if any, in the forms presented to this meeting, with
such changes, insertions and omissions as are made pursuant to this Resolution, being referred to
herein collectively as, the “Credit Agreement”) identified in the applicable Trust Agreement, as
finally executed, between, in the case of an irrevocable letter (or letters) of credit or policy (or
policies)  of  insurance  or  other  credit  instrument  (or  instruments),  the  Issuers  and  the
corresponding Credit Provider; and


WHEREAS, pursuant to the Certificate Structure, the Underwriter will submit an offer to
purchase  each  Series  of  Notes  issued  by the  District  and  the  notes  issued  by  other  Issuers
participating in the same Series of Certificates all as evidenced and represented by such Series of
Certificates (which offer will specify, as designated in the Pricing Confirmation applicable to the
sale of such Series of Notes to be sold by the District, the principal amount, interest rate and
Credit Instrument (if any)), and has submitted a form of certificate purchase agreement (such
certificate  purchase  agreement,  in  the  form  presented  to  this  meeting,  with  such  changes,
insertions and omissions as are made pursuant to this Resolution, being referred to herein as, the
“Certificate Purchase Agreement”) to the Board; and


WHEREAS, pursuant  to  the  Certificate  Structure  each  participating  Issuer  will  be
responsible for its share of (i) the fees of the Trustee and the costs of issuing the applicable
Series of Certificates, (ii) if applicable, the fees of the Credit Provider(s), and (iii) if applicable,
the  Issuer’s  allocable  share  of  all  Predefault  Obligations  and  the  Issuer’s  Reimbursement
Obligations, if any (each as defined in the Trust Agreement); and


WHEREAS, the Certificate Structure requires that each participating Issuer approve the
Trust  Agreement,  the  alternative  Credit  Instruments  and Credit  Agreements,  if  any,  and the
Certificate Purchase Agreement in substantially the forms presented to the Board, with the final
type  of  Credit  Instrument  and  corresponding  Credit  Agreement  determined  in  the  Pricing
Confirmation applicable to the sale of each Series of Notes to be sold by the District; and


WHEREAS, under  the  second  structure  (the  “Bond  Pool  Structure”),  participating
Issuers would be required to sell each series of their tax and revenue anticipation notes to the
California School Cash Reserve Program Authority (the “Authority”) pursuant to note purchase
agreements (such note purchase agreements, in the form presented to this meeting, with such
changes,  insertions and omissions as are made pursuant  to this  Resolution,  being referred to
herein  as,  the  “Note  Purchase  Agreements”),  each  between  such  individual  Issuer  and  the
Authority, and dated as of the date of the Pricing Confirmation applicable to the sale of the
individual Issuer’s series of notes to be sold, a form of which has been submitted to the Board;
and


WHEREAS, the  Authority,  pursuant  to  advice  of  the  Underwriter  and the  Financial
Advisor, will form one or more pools of notes of each participating Issuer (the “Pooled Notes”)
and assign each respective series of notes to a particular pool (the “Pool”) and sell a series of
senior  bonds  (each a  “Series  of  Senior  Bonds”)  and,  if  desirable,  a  corresponding series  of


4


632/852







4135-0131-2801.3


subordinate bonds (each a “Series of Subordinate Bonds” and collectively with a Series of Senior
Bonds,  a  “Series  of  Pool  Bonds”)  secured  by each  Pool  pursuant  to  an  indenture  and/or  a
supplement thereto (the original indenture and each supplement thereto applicable to a Series of
Pool Bonds to which the Note shall  be assigned is hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Indenture”) between the Authority and the Trustee, each Series of Pool Bonds distinguished by
(i) whether or what type(s) of Credit Instrument(s) secure(s) such Series of Pool Bonds, (ii) the
principal amounts or portions of principal amounts of the notes of such respective series assigned
to  the  Pool,  or  (iii)  other  factors,  and  the  District  hereby  acknowledges  and  approves  the
discretion of the Authority, acting upon the advice of the Underwriter and the Financial Advisor,
to assign the District’s Notes of such respective Series to such Pool and such Indenture as the
Authority may determine; and


WHEREAS, at the time of execution of the Pricing Confirmation applicable to the sale
of each Series of Notes to be sold by the District, the District will (in such Pricing Confirmation)
request the Authority to issue a Series of Pool Bonds pursuant to an Indenture to which such
Series of Notes identified in such Pricing Confirmation will be assigned by the Authority in its
discretion,  acting  upon the  advice  of  the  Underwriter,  which  Series  of  Pool  Bonds  will  be
payable from payments of all or a portion of principal of and interest on such Series of Notes and
the other respective series of notes of other participating Issuers assigned to the same Pool and
assigned to the same Indenture to which the District’s Series of Notes is assigned; and


WHEREAS, as additional security for the owners of each Series of Pool Bonds, all or a
portion of the payments by all of the Issuers of the respective series of notes assigned to such
Series of Pool Bonds may or may not be secured (by virtue or in form of the Series of Pool
Bonds, as indicated in the Pricing Confirmation applicable to such Series of Pool Bonds, being
secured in whole or in part) by one or more Credit Instruments issued by one or more Credit
Providers  designated  in  the  applicable  Indenture,  as  finally  executed,  pursuant  to  a  Credit
Agreement, if any, identified in the applicable Indenture, as finally executed, between, in the
case of an irrevocable letter (or letters) of credit or policy (or policies) of insurance or other
credit instrument (or instruments), the Issuers and the corresponding Credit Provider; and


WHEREAS, pursuant to the Bond Pool Structure each Issuer, whose series of notes is
assigned to a Pool as security for a Series of Pool Bonds, will be responsible for its share of
(i) the fees of the Trustee and the costs of issuing the applicable Series of Pool Bonds, (ii), if
applicable, the fees of the Credit Provider(s), and (iii) if applicable, the Issuer’s allocable share
of all Predefault Obligations and the Issuer’s Reimbursement Obligations, if any (each as defined
in the Indenture) applicable to such Series of Pool Bonds; and


WHEREAS, the Bond Pool Structure requires that each participating Issuer approve the
Indenture,  the  alternative  Credit  Instruments  and  Credit  Agreements,  if  any,  and  the  Note
Purchase Agreement in substantially the forms presented to the Board, with the final type of
Credit Instrument and corresponding Credit Agreement, if any, to be determined in the Pricing
Confirmation applicable to the sale of each Series of Notes to be sold by the District; and


WHEREAS, pursuant to the Bond Pool Structure, the Underwriter will submit an offer
to the Authority to purchase, in the case of each Pool of notes, the Series of Pool Bonds which
will be secured by the Indenture to which such Pool will be assigned; and


5


633/852







4135-0131-2801.3


WHEREAS, all or portions of the net proceeds of each Series of Notes issued by the
District,  may  be  invested  in  one  or  more  Permitted  Investments  (as  defined  in  the  Trust
Agreement or the Indenture, as applicable), including under one or more investment agreements
with  one  or  more  investment  providers  (if  any),  the  initial  investment  of  which  is  to  be
determined in the Pricing Confirmation related to such Series of Notes; and


WHEREAS, it is necessary to engage the services of certain professionals to assist the
District in its participation in the Program;


NOW, THEREFORE, the  Board  hereby finds,  determines,  declares  and resolves  as
follows:


Section 1.            Recitals  .  All the above recitals are true and correct and this Board so finds
and determines.


Section 2.        Issuance of Notes.  


(A) Initial Issuance of Notes  .  This Board hereby determines to borrow, and hereby
requests the Board of Supervisors of the County to borrow for the District, in anticipation of the
receipt by or accrual to the District during Fiscal Year 2020-2021 of taxes, income, revenue
(including, but not limited to, revenue from the state and federal governments), cash receipts and
other  moneys  provided for  such fiscal  year  for  the  general  fund and,  if  so indicated  in  the
applicable  Pricing  Confirmation,  the  capital  fund  and/or  special  revenue  fund  (or  similarly
named fund or funds as indicated in such Pricing Confirmation)* of the District, and not pursuant
to any common plan of financing of the District, by the issuance by the Board of Supervisors of
the  County,  in  the  name of  the  District,  of  Notes  under  Sections 53850  et  seq. of  the  Act,
designated generally as the District’s “2020-2021 [Subordinate]** Tax and Revenue Anticipation
Notes, Series __” in one or more of the following Series, in order of priority of payment as
described herein:


(1) the  Series  A Notes,  being the  initial  Series  of  Notes  issued under  this
Resolution, together with one or more Series of Additional Notes issued in accordance
with the provisions of Section 2(B) hereof and payable on a parity with the Series A
Notes (collectively, the “Senior Notes”); and


(2) one or  more Series  of  Additional  Notes  issued in  accordance  with  the
provisions of Section 2(B) hereof and payable on a subordinate basis to (i) any Senior
Notes,  and (ii)  any previously issued Subordinate Notes if  so specified in the related
Pricing Confirmation (collectively, the “Subordinate Notes”), which Subordinate Notes
shall be identified as such.


Each such Series of Notes shall be issued in the form of one registered note at the principal
amount  thereof  (the  “Series  Principal  Amount”)  as  set  forth  in  the  applicable  Pricing
Confirmation and all  such Series Principal Amounts aggregating to the Principal Amount set
forth in such Pricing Confirmations, in each case, to bear a series designation, to be dated the


* * For purposes of this Resolution, such funds shall be referred to as the “capital fund” and “special revenue fund.”
**** A Series of Notes shall bear the “Subordinate” designation if it is a Series of Subordinate Notes.


6


634/852







4135-0131-2801.3


date  of  its  respective  delivery  to  the  respective  initial  purchaser  thereof,  to  mature  (without
option of prior redemption) not more than thirteen (13) months thereafter on a date indicated on
the face thereof and determined in the Pricing Confirmation applicable to such Series of Notes
(collectively, the “Maturity Date”), and to bear interest, payable at the applicable maturity (and,
if the maturity is longer than twelve (12) months, an additional interest payment shall be payable
within  twelve  (12)  months  of  the  issue  date,  as  determined  in  the  applicable  Pricing
Confirmation)  and computed  upon the  basis  of  a  360-day year  consisting  of  twelve  30-day
months, at a rate not to exceed twelve percent (12%) per annum as determined in the Pricing
Confirmation applicable to such Series of Notes and indicated on the face of such Series of Notes
(collectively, the “Note Rate”).


With  respect  to  the  Certificate  Structure,  if  a  Series  of  Notes  as  evidenced  and
represented by the corresponding Series of Certificates is secured in whole or in part by a Credit
Instrument and is not paid at maturity or is paid (in whole or in part) by a draw under, payment
by or claim upon a Credit Instrument which draw, payment or claim is not fully reimbursed on
such  date,  such  Series  of  Notes  shall  become  a  Defaulted  Note  (as  defined  in  the  Trust
Agreement), and the unpaid portion thereof with respect to which a Credit Instrument applies for
which reimbursement on a draw, payment or claim has not been fully made shall be deemed
outstanding and shall continue to bear interest thereafter until paid at the Default Rate (as defined
in the Trust Agreement).  If a Series of Notes as evidenced and represented by the corresponding
Series of Certificates is unsecured in whole or in part and is not fully paid at the Maturity Date,
the unpaid portion thereof (or the portion thereof to which no Credit Instrument applies which is
unpaid) shall be deemed outstanding and shall continue to bear interest thereafter until paid at the
Default Rate.


With respect to the Bond Pool Structure, if a Series of Pool Bonds issued in connection
with a Series of Notes is secured in whole or in part by a Credit  Instrument  or such Credit
Instrument secures the Series of Notes in whole or in part and all principal of and interest on
such Series of Notes is not paid in full at maturity or payment of principal of and interest on such
Series of Notes is paid (in whole or in part) by a draw under, payment by or claim upon a Credit
Instrument which draw, payment or claim is not fully reimbursed on such date, such Series of
Notes  shall  become a  Defaulted  Note  (as  defined in  the  Indenture),  and the  unpaid  portion
thereof with respect to which a Credit Instrument applies for which reimbursement on a draw,
payment or claim has not been fully made shall be deemed outstanding and shall continue to bear
interest thereafter until paid at the Default Rate (as defined in the Indenture).  If a Series of Notes
or the Series of Pool Bonds issued in connection therewith is not so secured in whole or in part
and such Series of Notes is not fully paid at the Maturity Date, the unpaid portion thereof (or the
portion  thereof  to  which  no  Credit  Instrument  applies  which  is  unpaid)  shall  be  deemed
outstanding and shall continue to bear interest thereafter until paid at the Default Rate.


In each case set forth in the preceding two paragraphs, the obligation of the District with
respect to such Defaulted Note or unpaid Series of Notes shall not be a debt or liability of the
District  prohibited  by Article XVI,  Section 18 of  the California  Constitution  and the District
shall not be liable thereon except to the extent of the income and revenue provided for Fiscal
Year 2020-2021 within the meaning of Article XVI, Section 18 of the California Constitution, as
provided in Section 8 hereof.


7


635/852







4135-0131-2801.3


Both the principal  of and interest  on each Series of Notes shall  be payable in lawful
money of the United States of America, but only upon surrender thereof, at the corporate trust
office of U.S. Bank National Association in Los Angeles, California, or as otherwise indicated in
the Trust Agreement or the Indenture, as applicable.  The Principal Amount may, prior to the
issuance of any Series of Notes, be reduced from the Maximum Amount of Borrowing specified
above, in the discretion of the Underwriter upon consultation with the Authorized Officer.  The
Principal Amount shall, prior to the issuance of the last Series of Notes, be reduced from the
Maximum Amount of Borrowing specified above if and to the extent necessary to obtain an
approving legal  opinion of  Orrick,  Herrington  & Sutcliffe  LLP (“Bond Counsel”)  as  to  the
legality thereof or, if applicable, the exclusion from gross income for federal tax purposes of
interest thereon (or on any Series of Pool Bonds related thereto).  The Principal Amount shall,
prior to the issuance of the last Series of Notes, also be reduced from the Maximum Amount of
Borrowing specified above, and other conditions shall be met by the District prior to the issuance
of each Series of Notes, if and to the extent necessary to obtain from the Credit Provider that
issues the Credit  Instrument securing the corresponding Series of Certificates evidencing and
representing such Series of Notes or the related Series of Pool Bonds to which such Series of
Notes is assigned its agreement to issue the Credit Instrument securing such Series of Certificates
or Series of Pool Bonds, as the case may be.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
herein, if applicable, the approval of the corresponding Credit Provider of the issuance of such
Series of Notes and the decision of the Credit Provider to deliver the Credit Instrument shall be
in the sole discretion of the Credit Provider, and nothing herein shall be construed to require the
Credit Provider to issue a Credit Instrument or to approve the issuance of such Series of Notes.


In the event the Board of Supervisors of the County fails  or refuses to authorize the
issuance of the Notes within the time period specified in Section 53853 of the Act, following
receipt of this Resolution, this Board hereby authorizes issuance of such Notes, in the District’s
name, in one or more series, pursuant to the terms stated in this Section 2 and the terms stated
hereafter.  The Notes, in one or more series, shall be issued in conjunction with the note or notes
(in each case, in one or more series) of one or more other Issuers as part of the Program and
within the meaning of Section 53853 of the Act.


(B) Issuance  of  Additional  Notes  .   The  District  (or  the  County  on  its  behalf,  as
applicable) may at any time issue pursuant to this Resolution, one or more Series of Additional
Notes consisting of Senior Notes or Subordinate Notes (including Subordinate Notes that are
further  subordinated  to  previously  issued  Subordinate  Notes,  as  provided  in  the  applicable
Pricing  Confirmation),  subject  in  each  case  to  the  following  specific  conditions,  which  are
hereby made conditions precedent to the issuance of any such Series of Additional Notes:


(1) The District shall not have issued any tax and revenue anticipation notes
relating to the 2020-2021 fiscal year except (a) in connection with the Program under this
Resolution, or (b) notes secured by a pledge of its Unrestricted Revenues (as defined in
Section 8) that is subordinate in all respects to the pledge of its Unrestricted Revenues
hereunder;  the  District  shall  be  in  compliance  with  all  agreements  and  covenants
contained herein; and no Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing with
respect to any such outstanding previously issued notes or Series of Notes.


8


636/852







4135-0131-2801.3


(2) The  aggregate  Principal  Amount  of  Notes  issued  and  at  any  time
outstanding hereunder shall not exceed any limit imposed by law, by this Resolution or
by  any  resolution  of  the  Board  amending  or  supplementing  this  Resolution  (each  a
“Supplemental Resolution”).


(3) Whenever the District shall determine to issue, execute and deliver any
Additional Notes pursuant to this Section 2(B), the Series Principal Amount of which,
when added to the Series Principal Amounts of all Series of Notes previously issued by
the  District,  would  exceed  the  Maximum  Amount  of  Borrowing  authorized  by  this
Resolution, the District shall adopt a Supplemental Resolution amending this Resolution
to increase the Maximum Amount of Borrowing as appropriate and shall submit such
Supplemental  Resolution  to  the  Board  of  Supervisors  of  the  County  as  provided  in
Section 53850  et seq. of the Act with a request that the County issue such Series of
Additional Notes in the name of the District as provided in Sections 2(A) and 9 hereof.
The  Supplemental  Resolution  may  contain  any  other  provision  authorized  or  not
prohibited by this Resolution relating to such Series of Additional Notes.


(4) The District may issue a Series of Additional Notes that are Senior Notes
payable  on a  parity  with all  other  Series  of  Senior  Notes  of  the  District  or  that  are
Subordinate  Notes  payable  on  a  parity  with  one  or  more  Series  of  outstanding
Subordinate Notes, only if it obtains (a) the consent of each Credit Provider relating to
each  previously  issued  Series  of  Notes  that  will  be  on  a  parity  with  such Series  of
Additional  Notes,  and  (b)  evidence  that  no  rating  then  in  effect  with  respect  to  any
outstanding  Series  of  Certificates  or  Series  of  Bonds,  as  applicable,  from  a  Rating
Agency will be withdrawn, reduced, or suspended solely as a result of the issuance of
such  Series  of  Additional  Notes  (a  “Rating  Confirmation”).   Except  as  provided  in
Section  8,  the  District  may  issue  one  or  more  Series  of  Additional  Notes  that  are
subordinate  to  all  previously  issued  Series  of  Notes  of  the  District  without  Credit
Provider  consent  or  a Rating  Confirmation.   The District  may issue tax and revenue
anticipation notes other than in connection with the Program under this Resolution only if
such notes are secured by a pledge of its Unrestricted Revenues that is subordinate in all
respects to the pledge of its Unrestricted Revenues hereunder.


(5) Before  such Additional  Notes  shall  be  issued,  the District  shall  file  or
cause to be filed the following documents with the Trustee:


(a) An Opinion of Counsel to the District to the effect that (A) such
Additional Notes constitute the valid and binding obligations of the District, (B)
such Additional Notes are special obligations of the District and are payable from
the  moneys  pledged  to  the  payment  thereof  in  this  Resolution,  and  (C)  the
applicable Supplemental Resolution, if any, has been duly adopted by the District.


(b) A certificate of the District certifying as to the incumbency of its
officers and stating that the requirements of this Section 2(B) have been met.


(c) A  certified  copy  of  this  Resolution  and  any  applicable
Supplemental Resolution.


9


637/852







4135-0131-2801.3


(d) If this Resolution was amended by a Supplemental Resolution to
increase the Maximum Amount of Borrowing, the resolution of the County Board
of Supervisors approving such increase in the Maximum Amount of Borrowing
and the issuance of such Additional Notes, or evidence that the County Board of
Supervisors has elected to not issue such Additional Notes.


(e) An  executed  counterpart  or  duly  authenticated  copy  of  the
applicable Certificate Purchase Agreement or Note Purchase Agreement.


(f) A Pricing Confirmation relating to the Series of Additional Notes
duly executed by an Authorized Officer (as defined in Section 4).


(g) The Series of Additional  Notes duly executed by the applicable
County  representatives  as  provided  in  Section  9  hereof,  or  executed  by  the
applicable Authorized Officers of the District if the County shall have declined to
issue  the  Series  of  Additional  Notes  in  the  name  of  the  District,  either  in
connection with the initial issuance of the Series A Notes or in connection with
any Supplemental Resolution increasing the Maximum Amount of Borrowing.


(h) If  the  Additional  Notes  are  to  be  parity  Senior  Notes  or  parity
Subordinate  Notes,  the  Credit  Provider  consent(s)  and Rating  Confirmation(s)
required pursuant to paragraph (4) above.


Upon the delivery to  the Trustee of the foregoing instruments  and, if  the Bond Pool
Structure is implemented, satisfaction of the provisions of Section 2.12 of the Indenture with
regard to the issuance of a corresponding Series of Additional Bonds (as defined therein), the
Trustee shall authenticate and deliver said Additional Notes to, or upon the written request of,
the District.  Upon execution and delivery by the District and authentication by the Trustee, said
Additional  Notes  shall  be  valid  and binding  obligations  of  the  District  notwithstanding  any
defects in satisfying any of the foregoing requirements.


(C) Debt Management Policy With Respect to Notes  . Notwithstanding any other debt
management policy of the District heretofore or hereafter adopted, the debt management policy
of the District pertaining to each Series of Notes shall be consistent with, and the Board hereby
approves, the following:  (i) the proceeds of each Series of Notes may be used and expended by
the District  for any purpose for which the District  is  authorized to use and expend moneys,
including but not limited to current expenses, capital expenditures, investment and reinvestment,
and the discharge of any obligation or indebtedness of the District, as provided by Section 53852
of the Act; (ii) the debt that may be issued pursuant to this debt management policy is limited to
each Series of Notes authorized under this Resolution; (iii) each Series of Notes shall be issued
to manage the cash flow requirements of the District based on the District’s budgetary needs and
consistent with the limitations provided for in this  Resolution;  (iv) the objective of this  debt
management policy is to implement cost effective cash flow borrowing under the Program for
Fiscal Year 2020-2021, whereby participating school districts, community college districts and
county boards of education throughout the State of California will simultaneously issue tax and
revenue  anticipation  notes;  and  (v)  to  ensure  the  proceeds  of  each  Series  of  Notes  will  be
directed to their intended use, moneys allocable to each Series of Notes from the sale of the


10


638/852







4135-0131-2801.3


corresponding Series of Certificates or Pool Bonds, as applicable, net of the District’s share of
the costs of issuance, shall be deposited in the District’s Proceeds Subaccount (as hereinafter
defined) attributed to such Series of Notes and held and invested by the Trustee under the Trust
Agreement or the Indenture, as applicable, for the District and said moneys may be used and
expended  by  the  District  for  such  use  upon  requisition  from such  Proceeds  Subaccount  as
specified in the Trust Agreement or the Indenture, as applicable. Any debt management policy
adopted by the Board hereafter in contravention of the foregoing shall be deemed to modify the
authorization contained herein only if it shall specifically reference this Resolution and Section.
With the passage of this Resolution, the Board hereby certifies that the District has adopted local
debt policies with respect to each Series of Notes issued pursuant to this Resolution that comply
with California Government Code Section 8855(i), and that the Notes authorized to be issued
pursuant to this Resolution are consistent with such policies, and instructs Bond Counsel (as
hereinafter  defined)  to  check on behalf  of the District  the “Yes” box relating  thereto  in the
Report of Proposed Debt Issuance filed pursuant to California Government Code Section 8855
with respect to each Series of Notes issued pursuant to this Resolution.


Section 3.            Form of Notes  .  Each Series of the Notes shall be issued in fully registered
form without coupons and shall be substantially in the form and substance set forth in Exhibit A,
attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein, the blanks in said form to be filled in with
appropriate words and figures.


Section 4.            Sale of Notes; Delegation  .  Any one of the President or Chairperson of the
Board,  the  Superintendent,  the  Assistant  Superintendent  for  Business,  the  Assistant
Superintendent for Administrative Services, the business manager, director of business or fiscal
services or chief financial/business officer of the District, as the case may be, or, in the absence
of said officer, his or her duly appointed assistant (each an “Authorized Officer”),  is hereby
authorized  and  directed  to  negotiate,  with  the  Underwriter  (if  the  Certificate  Structure  is
implemented) or the Authority (if the Bond Pool Structure is implemented), an interest rate or
rates on each Series of the Notes to the stated maturity or maturities thereof, which shall not, in
any individual  case,  exceed twelve percent  (12%) per  annum (per  Series of Notes),  and the
purchase price to be paid by the Underwriter or the Authority, as applicable, for the respective
Series  of  the  Notes,  which  purchase  price  shall  be  at  a  discount  which  when added to  the
District’s share of the costs of issuance shall not be more than the greater of (a) one percent (1%)
of (i) the Principal Amount of the Note, if only one Series of Notes is issued or (ii) the Series
Principal Amount of each individual Series of Notes, if more than one series is issued, or (b) five
thousand dollars ($5,000).  If such interest rate and price and other terms of the sale of the Series
of Notes set out in the Pricing Confirmation applicable to such Series of Notes are acceptable to
said Authorized Officer, said Authorized Officer is hereby further authorized and directed to
execute and deliver the pricing confirmation supplement applicable to such Series of Notes to be
delivered by the Underwriter (on behalf of itself, if the Certificate Structure is implemented and
on behalf of the Authority, if the Bond Pool Structure is implemented) to the District on a date
within five (5) days, or such longer period of time as agreed by the Underwriter or the Authority,
as applicable,  of said negotiation of interest  rates and purchase price during the period from
May 1, 2020 (or the date of adoption of this Resolution if after May 1, 2020) through June 15,
2021  (the  “Pricing  Confirmation”),  substantially  in  the  form  presented  to  this  meeting  as
Schedule  I  to  the  Certificate  Purchase  Agreement  or  the  Note  Purchase  Agreement,  as
applicable, with such changes therein as said Authorized Officer shall require or approve, and


11


639/852







4135-0131-2801.3


such other  documents  or  certificates  required  to  be executed  and delivered  thereunder  or  to
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, for and in the name and on behalf
of the District, such approval by this Board and such officer to be conclusively evidenced by
such execution and delivery.  In the event more than one Series of Notes are issued, a separate
Pricing Confirmation shall  be executed and delivered corresponding to each Series of Notes.
Any  Authorized  Officer  is  hereby  further  authorized  to  execute  and  deliver,  prior  to  the
execution  and  delivery  of  the  Pricing  Confirmation  applicable  to  a  Series  of  Notes,  the
Certificate Purchase Agreement or the Note Purchase Agreement applicable to such Series of
Notes, substantially in the forms presented to this meeting, which forms are hereby approved,
with  such  changes  therein  as  said  officer  shall  require  or  approve,  such  approval  to  be
conclusively  evidenced  by  such  execution  and  delivery;  provided,  however,  that  any  such
Certificate Purchase Agreement or Note Purchase Agreement shall not be effective and binding
on  the  District  until  the  execution  and  delivery  of  the  corresponding  Pricing  Confirmation.
Delivery of a Pricing Confirmation by fax or telecopy of an executed copy shall  be deemed
effective execution and delivery for all purposes.  If requested by said Authorized Officer at his
or her option, any duly authorized deputy or assistant of such Authorized Officer may approve
said interest rate or rates and price by execution of the Certificate Purchase Agreement or the
Note Purchase Agreement(s), as applicable, and/or the corresponding Pricing Confirmation(s).


Section 5.            Program Approval  .   The District  hereby delegates  to  the  Authority  the
authority to select which structure (i.e., the Certificate Structure or the Bond Pool Structure) shall
be  implemented,  with  the  Authorized  Officer  of  the  District  accepting  and  approving  such
selection by execution of the applicable Pricing Confirmation.


(A) Certificate Structure  . If the Certificate Structure is implemented, each Series of
Notes of the District shall be combined with notes of other Issuers into a Series of Certificates as
set  forth  in  general  terms  in  the  Pricing  Confirmation  (which  need  not  include  specific
information about such other notes or Issuers) applicable to such Series of Notes, and shall be
marketed and sold simultaneously with such other notes of that Series with such credit support
(if any) referred to in the Pricing Confirmation, and shall be evidenced and represented by the
Certificates which shall evidence and represent proportionate, undivided interests in such Series
of  Notes  in  the  proportion  that  the  face  amount  of  such Series  of  Notes  bears  to  the  total
aggregate face amount of such Series of Notes and the notes issued by other Issuers which the
Series of Certificates represent.  Such Certificates may be delivered in book-entry form.


The  District  hereby  delegates  to  the  Authority  the  authority  to  select  the  Credit
Instrument(s), Credit Provider(s) and Credit Agreement(s), if any, for each Series of Certificates
which evidences and represents interests of the owners thereof in the related Series of Notes of
the District and the notes issued by other Issuers evidenced and represented by such Series of
Certificates, all of which shall be identified in, and approved by the Authorized Officer of the
District executing, the Pricing Confirmation for such Series of Notes, the Trust Agreement and
the Credit Agreement(s) (if any), for and in the name and on behalf of the District, such approval
of such officer to be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Pricing Confirmation, the
Trust Agreement and the Credit Agreement(s) (if any).


The form of Trust Agreement, alternative general types of Credit Instruments and forms
of  Credit  Agreements,  if  any,  presented  to  this  meeting  are  hereby  approved,  and  each


12


640/852







4135-0131-2801.3


Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Trust Agreement
and the Credit Agreement(s), if applicable, which shall be identified in the Pricing Confirmation
for the related Series of Notes, in substantially one or more of said forms (a substantially final
form of Credit Agreement to be delivered to such Authorized Officer concurrent with the Pricing
Confirmation), with such changes therein as said officer shall require or approve, such approval
of  this  Board  and  such  officer  to  be  conclusively  evidenced  by  the  execution  of  the  Trust
Agreement, Credit Agreement(s) and Pricing Confirmation, respectively.


The  form of  the  Preliminary  Official  Statement  presented  to  this  meeting  is  hereby
approved,  and  the  Underwriter  is  hereby  authorized  to  distribute  the  Preliminary  Official
Statement  in  connection  with  the  offering  and  sale  of  each  Series  of  Certificates.   Each
Authorized  Officer  is  hereby  authorized  and  directed  to  provide  the  Underwriter  with  such
information relating to the District as the Underwriter shall reasonably request for inclusion in
the  Preliminary  Official  Statement  for  each  Series  of  Certificates.   Upon  inclusion  of  the
information relating to the District therein, the Preliminary Official Statement for the applicable
Series of Certificates shall be, except for certain omissions permitted by Rule 15c2-12 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”), deemed final within the meaning of
the  Rule;  provided  that  no  representation  is  made  as  to  the  information  contained  in  a
Preliminary  Official  Statement  relating  to  the  other  Issuers  or  any Credit  Provider,  and the
Authority is hereby authorized to certify on behalf of the District that each Preliminary Official
Statement is, as of its date, deemed final within the meaning of the Rule.  If, at any time prior to
the execution of a Pricing Confirmation, any event occurs as a result of which the information
contained in the related Preliminary Official Statement relating to the District might include an
untrue statement  of a material  fact  or omit  to state any material  fact  necessary to  make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading,
the  District  shall  promptly  notify  the  Underwriter.   The  Authority  is  hereby authorized  and
directed, at or after the time of the sale of any Series of Certificates, for and in the name and on
behalf  of  the  District,  to  execute  a  final  Official  Statement  in  substantially  the  form of  the
Preliminary Official Statement presented to this meeting, with such additions thereto or changes
therein  as  the  Authority  may  approve,  such  approval  to  be  conclusively  evidenced  by  the
execution and delivery thereof.


The Trustee is authorized and directed to execute each Series of Certificates on behalf of
the District pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the related Trust Agreement, in the
aggregate principal amount specified in the Trust Agreement, and substantially in the form and
otherwise containing the provisions set forth in the form of the Certificate contained in the Trust
Agreement.  When so executed, each Series of Certificates shall be delivered by the Trustee to
the Underwriter upon payment of the purchase price thereof, pursuant to the terms of the Trust
Agreement and the applicable Certificate Purchase Agreement.


Subject  to  Section  8  hereof,  the  District  hereby  agrees  that  if  a  Series  of  Notes  as
evidenced and represented by a Series of Certificates shall become a Defaulted Note, the unpaid
portion thereof or the portion to which a Credit Instrument applies for which full reimbursement
on  a  draw,  payment  or  claim  has  not  been  made  by  the  Maturity  Date  shall  be  deemed
outstanding and shall not be deemed to be paid until (i) the Credit Provider providing a Credit
Instrument with respect to such Series of Certificates, and therefore, if applicable, all or a portion
of such Series of Notes, if any, has been reimbursed for any drawings, payments or claims made


13


641/852







4135-0131-2801.3


under  the Credit  Instrument  with respect  to  such Series  of Notes,  including interest  accrued
thereon, as provided therein and in the applicable Credit Agreement, and (ii) the holders of the
Series  of  Certificates  which  evidence  and  represent  such  Series  of  Notes  are  paid  the  full
principal  amount  represented by the unsecured portion of  such Series  of Notes  plus  interest
accrued thereon (calculated at the Default Rate) to the date of deposit of such aggregate required
amount with the Trustee.  For purposes of clause (ii) of the preceding sentence, holders of the
applicable Series of Certificates will be deemed to have received such principal amount and such
accrued interest upon deposit of such moneys with the Trustee.


The District agrees to pay or cause to be paid, in addition to the amounts payable under
each Series of Notes, any fees or expenses of the Trustee and, to the extent permitted by law, if
such Series of Notes as evidenced and represented by the related Series of Certificates is secured
in  whole  or  in  part  by  a  Credit  Instrument,  any Predefault  Obligations  and Reimbursement
Obligations (to the extent not payable under such Series of Notes), (i) arising out of an “Event of
Default” hereunder or (ii) arising out of any other event (other than an event arising solely as a
result of or otherwise attributable to a default by any other Issuer).  In the case described in (ii)
above with respect to Predefault Obligations, the District shall owe only the percentage of such
fees, expenses and Predefault Obligations equal to the ratio of the Principal Amount (or Series
Principal Amount as applicable) of its Series of Notes over the aggregate Principal Amounts (or
Series Principal Amounts, as applicable) of all series of notes, including such Series of Notes, of
the Series of Certificates of which such Series of Notes is a part, at the time of original issuance
of  such Series  of  Certificates.   Such additional  amounts  will  be paid  by the District  within
twenty-five (25) days of receipt by the District of a bill therefor from the Trustee.


If the Certificate Structure is implemented, any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized
to execute and deliver any Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Obligations, Form
8038-G of the Internal Revenue Service (“Form 8038-G”), in connection with the issuance of a
Tax-Exempt (as defined in Section 7) Series of Notes and the related Series of Certificates.  To
the extent permitted by law, the Authority, the Trustee, the Underwriter, the Financial Advisor
and Bond Counsel are each hereby authorized to execute and deliver any Form 8038-G for and
on behalf of the District in connection with the issuance of a Tax-Exempt Series of Notes and the
related Series of Certificates, as directed by an Authorized Officer of the District.


(B) Bond Pool Structure  . If  the  Bond  Pool  Structure  is  implemented,  the  Pricing
Confirmation for a Series of Notes may, but shall not be required to, specify the Series of Pool
Bonds to which such Series of Notes will be assigned (but need not include information about
other series of notes assigned to the same pool or their Issuers).


The  District  hereby  delegates  to  the  Authority  the  authority  to  select  the  Credit
Instrument(s),  Credit  Provider(s)  and Credit  Agreement(s),  if  any,  for  each  Series  of  Senior
Bonds and corresponding Series of Subordinate Bonds, if any, to which each Series of Notes
issued by the District will be assigned, all of which shall be identified in, and approved by the
Authorized Officer of the District executing, the Pricing Confirmation for such Series of Notes
and the Credit Agreement(s) (if any), for and in the name and on behalf of the District, such
approval  of  such  officer  to  be  conclusively  evidenced  by  the  execution  of  the  Pricing
Confirmation and the Credit Agreement(s) (if any).


14


642/852







4135-0131-2801.3


The alternative general types of Credit Instruments and the forms of Credit Agreements,
if any, presented to this meeting are hereby approved, and each Authorized Officer is hereby
authorized and directed to execute and deliver a Credit Agreement(s), if any, which shall  be
identified in the Pricing Confirmation for the related Series of Notes, in substantially one or more
of said forms (a substantially final form of Credit Agreement to be delivered to such Authorized
Officer concurrent with the Pricing Confirmation), with such changes therein as said officer shall
require or approve, such approval of this Board and such officer to be conclusively evidenced by
the execution of the Credit Agreement and Pricing Confirmation, respectively.


The form of Indenture presented to this meeting is hereby acknowledged and approved,
and it is acknowledged that the Authority will execute and deliver the Indenture and one or more
Supplemental Indentures, which shall be identified in the Pricing Confirmation applicable to the
Series of Notes to be issued, in substantially one or more of said forms with such changes therein
as  the  Authorized  Officer  who executes  such Pricing  Confirmation  shall  require  or  approve
(substantially final forms of the Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture (if applicable) to be
delivered to the Authorized Officer concurrently with the Pricing Confirmation applicable to the
Series of Notes to be issued), such approval of such Authorized Officer and this Board to be
conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Pricing Confirmation applicable to such Series of
Notes.  It is acknowledged that the Authority is authorized and requested to issue one or more
Series of Pool Bonds (consisting of a Series of Senior Bonds and, if desirable, a corresponding
Series of Subordinate Bonds) pursuant to and as provided in the Indenture as finally executed
and, if applicable, each Supplemental Indenture as finally executed.


Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to provide the Underwriter
with such information relating to the District  as the Underwriter shall  reasonably request for
inclusion  in  the Preliminary  Official  Statement(s)  and Official  Statement(s)  of  the Authority
relating  to  a  Series  of  Pool  Bonds.   If,  at  any  time  prior  to  the  execution  of  a  Pricing
Confirmation,  any  event  occurs  as  a  result  of  which  the  information  contained  in  the
corresponding Preliminary Official Statement or other offering document relating to the District
might include an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary
to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading, the District shall promptly notify the Underwriter.


Subject  to Section 8 hereof,  the District  hereby agrees  that  if  a  Series of Notes shall
become a Defaulted Note, the unpaid portion thereof or the portion to which a Credit Instrument
applies for which full reimbursement on a draw, payment or claim has not been made by the
Maturity  Date shall  be deemed outstanding and shall  not be deemed to be paid until  (i)  any
Credit Provider providing a Credit Instrument with respect to such Series of Notes or the Series
of Pool Bonds issued in connection with such Series of Notes, has been reimbursed for any
drawings, payments or claims made under the Credit Instrument with respect to such Series of
Notes,  including  interest  accrued  thereon,  as  provided  therein  and  in  the  applicable  Credit
Agreement, and (ii) the holders of such Series of Notes or the Series of the Pool Bonds issued in
connection  with  such Series  of  Notes  are  paid  the  full  principal  amount  represented  by the
unsecured portion of such Series of Notes plus interest accrued thereon (calculated at the Default
Rate) to the date of deposit of such aggregate required amount with the Trustee.  For purposes of
clause (ii) of the preceding sentence, holders of such Series of Pool Bonds will be deemed to


15


643/852







4135-0131-2801.3


have received such principal amount and such accrued interest upon deposit of such moneys with
the Trustee.


The District agrees to pay or cause to be paid, in addition to the amounts payable under
each Series of Notes, any fees or expenses of the Trustee and, to the extent permitted by law, if
such Series of Notes is secured in whole or in part by a Credit Instrument (by virtue of the fact
that the corresponding Series of Pool Bonds is secured by a Credit Instrument), any Predefault
Obligations  and Reimbursement  Obligations  (to  the  extent  not  payable under such Series  of
Notes), (i) arising out of an “Event of Default” hereunder or (ii) arising out of any other event
(other than an event arising solely as a result of or otherwise attributable to a default by any other
Issuer).  In the case described in (ii) above with respect to Predefault Obligations, the District
shall owe only the percentage of such fees, expenses and Predefault Obligations equal to the ratio
of the Principal Amount (or Series Principal Amount as applicable) of its Series of Notes over
the aggregate Principal Amounts (or Series Principal Amounts, as applicable) of all series of
notes, including such Series of Notes, assigned to the Series of Pool Bonds issued in connection
with such Series of Notes, at the time of original issuance of such Series of Pool Bonds.  Such
additional amounts will be paid by the District within twenty-five (25) days of receipt by the
District of a bill therefor from the Trustee.


(C) Appointment of Professionals  .  Dale Scott & Company (and/or such other firm or
firms as shall be selected by the Authority as designated in the applicable Pricing Confirmation
and  approved  and  accepted  by  an  Authorized  Officer  by  the  execution  of  such  Pricing
Confirmation) is hereby appointed and/or approved as financial advisor for the Program, the law
firm of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP (and/or such other firm or firms as shall be selected
by the Authority as designated in the applicable Pricing Confirmation and approved and accepted
by an Authorized Officer by the execution of such Pricing Confirmation) is hereby appointed
and/or approved as bond counsel for the Program, Piper Sandler & Co. (and/or such other firm or
firms as shall be selected by the Authority as designated in the applicable Pricing Confirmation
and  approved  and  accepted  by  an  Authorized  Officer  by  the  execution  of  such  Pricing
Confirmation) is hereby appointed and/or approved as underwriter for the Program and the law
firm of Kutak Rock LLP (and/or such other firm or firms as shall be selected by the Authority as
designated in the applicable Pricing Confirmation and approved and accepted by an Authorized
Officer by the execution of such Pricing Confirmation) is hereby appointed and/or approved as
special counsel to the District in connection with the Program.


Section 6.            No Joint Obligation  .  


(A) Certificate Structure  . If the Certificate Structure is implemented, each Series of
Notes of the District shall be marketed and sold simultaneously with the notes of other Issuers
and shall  be  aggregated  and combined  with  such notes  of  other  Issuers  participating  in  the
Program into a Series of Certificates evidencing and representing an interest in several, and not
joint,  obligations  of  each  Issuer.   The  obligation  of  the  District  to  owners  of  a  Series  of
Certificates  is  a  several  and  not  a  joint  obligation  and  is  strictly  limited  to  the  District’s
repayment  obligation  under  this  Resolution,  the  resolution  of  the  County  providing  for  the
issuance  of  the  Note,  if  applicable,  and  the  applicable  Series  of  Notes  as  evidenced  and
represented by such Series of Certificates.  Owners of Certificates, to the extent of their interest
in a Series of Notes, shall be treated as owners of such Series of Notes and shall be entitled to all


16


644/852







4135-0131-2801.3


the  rights  and security  thereof;  including  the  right  to  enforce  the  obligations  and covenants
contained in this Resolution and such Series of Notes.  The District hereby recognizes the right
of the owners of a Series of Certificates acting directly or through the Trustee to enforce the
obligations and covenants contained in the Series of Notes evidenced and represented thereby,
this Resolution and the Trust Agreement.  The District shall be directly obligated to each owner
of  a  Series  of  Certificates  for  the  principal  and  interest  payments  on  the  Series  of  Notes
evidenced  and  represented  by  such  Certificates  without  any  right  of  counterclaim  or  offset
arising out of any act or failure to act on the part of the Trustee.


(B) Bond Pool Structure  . If the Bond Pool Structure is implemented, each Series of
Notes will be issued in conjunction with a series of notes of one or more other Issuers and will be
assigned to a Pool in order to secure a corresponding Series of Pool Bonds.  In all cases, the
obligation of the District  to make payments on or in respect to each Series of its Notes is a
several and not a joint obligation and is strictly limited to the District’s repayment obligation
under this Resolution, the resolution of the County providing for the issuance of the Note, if
applicable, and such Series of Notes.


Section 7.            Disposition of Proceeds of Notes  .  The moneys received from the sale of
each Series of Notes evidenced and represented by a Series of Certificates or each Series of Pool
Bonds issued in connection with a Series of Notes, as the case may be, allocable to the District’s
share of the costs of issuance (which shall include any fees and expenses in connection with the
related Credit Instrument(s) applicable to such Series of Notes or Series of Pool Bonds) shall be
deposited in an account in the Costs of Issuance Fund established for such Series of Notes or
such Series of Pool Bonds, as applicable, and held and invested by the Trustee under the Trust
Agreement or the Indenture, as applicable, and expended as directed by the Financial Advisor (if
the  Certificate  Structure  is  implemented)  or  the  Authority  (if  the  Bond  Pool  Structure  is
implemented)  on Costs of Issuance as provided in the Trust Agreement  or the Indenture,  as
applicable.  The moneys allocable to each Series of Notes from the sale of the corresponding
Series of Certificates or Pool Bonds, as applicable, net of the District’s share of the costs of
issuance, is hereby designated the “Deposit to Proceeds Subaccount” and shall be deposited in
the District’s Proceeds Subaccount attributed to such Series of Notes hereby authorized to be
created pursuant to, and held and invested by the Trustee under, the Trust Agreement or the
Indenture,  as applicable,  for the District  and said moneys may be used and expended by the
District for any purpose for which it is authorized to use and expend moneys, upon requisition
from  such  Proceeds  Subaccount  as  specified  in  the  Trust  Agreement  or  the  Indenture,  as
applicable.  The Pricing Confirmation applicable to each Series of Notes shall set forth such
amount of the Deposit to Proceeds Subaccount.  Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to
approve the amount of such Deposit to Proceeds Subaccount.  Subject to Section 8 hereof, the
District  hereby  covenants  and  agrees  to  replenish  amounts  on  deposit  in  each  Proceeds
Subaccount  attributed  to  a  Series  of  its  Note  to  the  extent  practicable  from any  source  of
available funds up to an amount equal to the unreplenished withdrawals from such Proceeds
Subaccount.


The Trustee shall transfer to each Payment Account (hereinafter defined) relating to a
Series of Notes from amounts on deposit in the related Proceeds Subaccount attributed to such
Series of Notes on the first day of each Repayment Period (as defined hereinafter) (or such other
day of each Repayment Period designated in the Pricing Confirmation applicable to a Series of


17


645/852







4135-0131-2801.3


Notes), amounts which, taking into consideration anticipated earnings thereon to be received by
the Maturity Date, are equal to the percentages of the principal and interest due with respect to
such Series  of  Notes  at  maturity  for  the  corresponding Repayment  Period  set  forth in  such
Pricing Confirmation; provided, however, that on the twentieth day of the next to last Repayment
Period designated in such Pricing Confirmation (or such other day designated in the Pricing
Confirmation applicable to a Series of Notes), or, if only one Repayment Period is applicable to a
Series of Notes, on the twentieth day of the month preceding the Repayment Period designated in
such Pricing Confirmation (or such other day designated in the Pricing Confirmation applicable
to  a  Series  of  Notes),  the  Trustee  shall  transfer  all  remaining  amounts  in  the  Proceeds
Subaccount attributed to the Series of Notes to the related Payment Account all as and to the
extent provided in the Trust Agreement or the Indenture, as applicable; provided, however, that
with respect to the transfer in or prior to any such Repayment Period,  as applicable,  if  said
amount in the Proceeds Subaccount attributed to a Series of Notes is less than the corresponding
percentage set forth in the Pricing Confirmation applicable to the related Series of Notes of the
principal  and interest  due with respect to such Series of Notes at  maturity,  the Trustee shall
transfer to the related Payment Account attributed to such Series of Notes of the District  all
amounts on deposit in the Proceeds Subaccount attributed to such Series of Notes on the day
designated for such Repayment Period.


For Notes issued in calendar year 2020 and issued as Tax-Exempt (or the related Series
of Pool Bonds are issued as Tax-Exempt), in the event either (A) the Series Principal Amount of
such Notes, together with the aggregate amount of all tax-exempt obligations (including any tax-
exempt leases, but excluding private activity bonds), issued and reasonably expected to be issued
by the District (and all subordinate entities of the District) during calendar year 2020, will, at the
time of the issuance of such Notes (as indicated in the certificate of the District executed as of
the date of issuance of such Notes  (each “District Certificate”)) exceed fifteen million dollars
($15,000,000), or (B) the Series Principal Amount of such Notes, together with the aggregate
amount of all tax-exempt obligations not used to finance school construction (including any tax-
exempt leases, but excluding private activity bonds), issued and reasonably expected to be issued
by the District (and all subordinate entities of the District) during calendar year 2020, will, at the
time of the issuance of such Notes (as indicated in the related District Certificate), exceed five
million  dollars  ($5,000,000),  the  second  following  paragraph  will  apply.   In  such case,  the
District shall be deemed a “Safe Harbor Issuer” with respect to such Notes.


For Notes issued in calendar year 2021 and issued as Tax-Exempt (or the related Series
of Pool Bonds are issued as Tax-Exempt), in the event either (A) the Series Principal Amount of
such Notes, together with the aggregate amount of all tax-exempt obligations (including any tax-
exempt leases, but excluding private activity bonds), issued and reasonably expected to be issued
by the District (and all subordinate entities of the District) during calendar year 2021, will, at the
time of the issuance of such Notes (as indicated in the certificate of the District executed as of
the date of issuance of such Notes  (each “District Certificate”)) exceed fifteen million dollars
($15,000,000), or (B) the Series Principal Amount of such Notes, together with the aggregate
amount of all tax-exempt obligations not used to finance school construction (including any tax-
exempt leases, but excluding private activity bonds), issued and reasonably expected to be issued
by the District (and all subordinate entities of the District) during calendar year 2021, will, at the
time of the issuance of such Notes (as indicated in the related District Certificate), exceed five


18


646/852







4135-0131-2801.3


million dollars ($5,000,000), the following paragraph will apply.  In such case, the District shall
be deemed a “Safe Harbor Issuer” with respect to such Notes.


Amounts in any Proceeds Subaccount relating to a Tax-Exempt Series of Notes of the
District (or any Tax-Exempt Series of Pool Bonds related thereto) and attributable to cash flow
borrowing shall  be  withdrawn and  expended  by the  District  for  any purpose  for  which  the
District is authorized to expend funds from the general fund of the District, but, with respect to
general fund expenditures, only to the extent that on the date of any withdrawal no other funds
are available  for such purposes without legislation or judicial  action or without a legislative,
judicial or contractual requirement that such funds be reimbursed.  If on no date that is within six
months  from the date  of issuance of each Tax-Exempt Series of Notes (or any Tax-Exempt
Series of Pool Bonds related thereto), the balance in the related Proceeds Subaccount attributable
to cash flow borrowing and treated for federal tax purposes as proceeds of such Tax-Exempt
Series of Notes (or such Tax-Exempt Series of Pool Bonds) is low enough so that the amounts in
the Proceeds Subaccount attributable to such Tax-Exempt Series of Notes (or such Tax-Exempt
Series  of  Pool  Bonds)  qualify  for  an  exception  from the  rebate  requirements  (the  “Rebate
Requirements”) of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”), the District
shall promptly notify the Trustee in writing and, to the extent of its power and authority, comply
with instructions from Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel, supplied to it by the
Trustee as the means of satisfying the Rebate Requirements.


The term “Tax-Exempt” shall mean, with respect to interest on any obligations of a state
or local government, that such interest is excluded from the gross income of the holders thereof
for federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Code, whether or not such interest
is  includable  as  an  item of  tax  preference  or  otherwise  includable  directly  or  indirectly  for
purposes  of  calculating  other  tax  liabilities,  including  any  alternative  minimum  tax  or
environmental tax under the Code.  Each Series of Notes issued hereunder (or any Series of Pool
Bonds related thereto) may be issued as a Tax-Exempt Series of Notes (or Tax-Exempt Series of
Pool Bonds) or such that the interest on such Series of Notes (or such Series of Pool Bonds) is
not Tax-Exempt.


Section 8.            Source of Payment  .


(A) Pledge  .  The term “Unrestricted Revenues” shall mean the taxes, income, revenue
(including, but not limited to, revenue from the state and federal governments), cash receipts and
other moneys provided for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 which will be received by or will accrue to the
District  during  such  fiscal  year  for  the  general  fund  and,  if  so  indicated  in  a  Pricing
Confirmation,  capital  fund and/or special  revenue fund (or similarly named fund or funds as
indicated in such Pricing Confirmation) of the District and which are lawfully available for the
payment of current expenses and other obligations of the District.  As security for the payment of
the principal  of and interest  on all  Series of Notes issued hereunder,  subject  to the payment
priority provisions of Section 17 hereof and this Section 8, the District hereby pledges the first
Unrestricted Revenues to be received by the District  in the periods specified in each Pricing
Confirmation  as  Repayment  Periods  (each  individual  period  a  “Repayment  Period”  and
collectively “Repayment Periods”), in an amount equal to the percentages of the principal and
interest due with respect to each Series of Notes at maturity for the corresponding Repayment
Period specified in such Pricing Confirmations (the “Pledged Revenues”).


19


647/852







4135-0131-2801.3


(B) Lien and Charge  .  As provided in Section 53856 of the Act, all Series of Notes
issued hereunder and the interest thereon, subject to the payment priority provisions of Section
17 hereof and this Section 8, shall be a first lien and charge against, and shall be payable from
the first moneys received by the District from, the Pledged Revenues.


(C) General Obligation  .  As provided in Section 53857 of the Act, notwithstanding
the provisions of Section 53856 of the Act and of subsection (B) of this Section, all Series of
Notes issued hereunder shall be general obligations of the District and, in the event that on the
tenth Business Day (as defined in the Trust Agreement or the Indenture, as applicable) of each
such Repayment Period (or such other day of each Repayment Period designated in the Pricing
Confirmation applicable to a Series of Notes) the District has not received sufficient Unrestricted
Revenues  to  permit  the  deposit  into  each  Payment  Account  of  the  full  amount  of  Pledged
Revenues to be deposited therein from said Unrestricted Revenues in such Repayment Period,
then the amount of any deficiency shall be satisfied and made up from any other moneys of the
District lawfully available for the payment of the principal of all Series of Notes and the interest
thereon, as and when such other moneys are received or are otherwise legally available, in the
following order of priority: first, to satisfy pro-rata any deficiencies attributable to any Series of
Senior  Notes;  second,  to  satisfy  pro-rata  any  deficiencies  attributable  to  any  Series  of
Subordinate Notes (except for any Series of Subordinate Notes described in the next clause); and
thereafter, to satisfy any deficiencies attributable to any other Series of Subordinate Notes that
shall  have been further subordinated to previously issued Series of Subordinate Notes in the
applicable Pricing Confirmation, in such order of priority.


(D) Payment  Accounts  .   In  order  to  effect,  in  part,  the  pledge  provided  for  in
subsection (A) of this Section, the District  agrees to the establishment and maintenance as a
special  fund of  the  District  of  a  separate  Payment  Account  for  each Series  of  Notes  issued
hereunder  (each  a  “Payment  Account”)  by  the  Trustee  under  the  Trust  Agreement  or  the
Indenture, as applicable, and the Trustee is hereby appointed as the responsible agent to maintain
such fund until the payment of the principal of the corresponding Series of Notes and the interest
thereon, and the District hereby covenants and agrees to cause to be deposited directly in each
Payment Account (and shall request specific amounts from the District’s funds on deposit with
the  County  Treasurer  for  such  purpose)  a  pro-rata  share  (as  provided  below)  of  the  first
Unrestricted  Revenues  received  in  each  Repayment  Period  specified  in  the  Pricing
Confirmation(s) and any Unrestricted Revenues received thereafter until the amount on deposit
in each Payment Account, taking into consideration anticipated investment earnings thereon to
be received by the Maturity Date applicable to the respective Series of Notes (as set forth in a
certificate  from the  Financial  Advisor  to  the  Trustee),  is  equal  in  the respective  Repayment
Periods  identified  in  the  Pricing  Confirmation  applicable  to  such  Series  of  Notes  to  the
percentages of the principal of and interest due with respect to such Series of Notes at maturity
specified in the Pricing Confirmation applicable to such Series of Notes;  provided that such
deposits  shall  be  made  in  the  following  order  of  priority:  first,  pro-rata  to  the  Payment
Account(s) attributable to any applicable Series of Senior Notes; second, pro-rata to the Payment
Account(s) attributable to any applicable Series of Subordinate Notes (except for any Series of
Subordinate  Notes  described  in  the  next  clause);  and  thereafter,  to  the  Payment  Account(s)
attributable  to  any other applicable  Series  of Subordinate  Notes that  shall  have been further
subordinated  to  previously  issued  Series  of  Subordinate  Notes  in  the  applicable  Pricing
Confirmation, in such order of priority.


20


648/852







4135-0131-2801.3


Subject to the payment priority provisions of Section 17 hereof and this Section 8, any
moneys placed in the Payment Account attributed to a Series of Notes shall be for the benefit of
(i) the owners of the applicable Series of Certificates if the Certificate Structure is implemented
and the holders of the Series of Pool Bonds issued in connection with the Pool of which such
Series  of  Notes  is  a  part  if  the Bond Pool  Structure  is  implemented,  and (ii)  (to  the extent
provided in the Trust Agreement or the Indenture, as applicable) the Credit Provider(s), if any.
Subject to the payment priority provisions of Section 17 hereof and this Section 8, the moneys in
the Payment Account attributed to the Series of Notes shall be applied only for the purposes for
which the Payment Account is created until the principal of such Series of Notes and all interest
thereon are paid or until provision has been made for the payment of the principal of such Series
of Notes at maturity of such Series of Notes with interest to maturity (in accordance with the
requirements  for  defeasance  of  the  related  Series  of  Certificates  or  Series  of  Bonds,  as
applicable, as set forth in the Trust Agreement or the Indenture, as applicable) and, if applicable
(to the extent provided in the Trust Agreement or the Indenture, as applicable, and, if applicable,
the  corresponding  Credit  Agreement),  the  payment  of  all  Predefault  Obligations  and
Reimbursement Obligations owing to the corresponding Credit Provider.


(E) Determination of Repayment Periods  .  With respect to each Series of Notes, the
length of any individual Repayment Period determined in the related Pricing Confirmation shall
not exceed the greater  of three (3) consecutive calendar  months or ninety (90) days and the
number of Repayment Periods determined in the related Pricing Confirmation shall not exceed
six (6);  provided, however, that (1) the first Repayment Period of any Series of Subordinate
Notes shall not occur prior to the end of the last Repayment Period of any outstanding Series of
Notes  of  a  higher  priority  without  the consent  of each Credit  Provider  for such outstanding
Notes; and (2) if the first Repayment Period of any Series of Subordinate Notes overlaps the last
Repayment Period of any outstanding Series of Notes of a higher priority, no deposits shall be
made in the Payment Account of such Subordinate Notes until all required amounts shall have
been  deposited  into  the  Payment  Account(s)  of  all  outstanding  Series  of  Notes  of  a  higher
priority without the consent of each Credit Provider for such outstanding Notes.  Any Authorized
Officer  is  hereby  authorized  to  approve  the  determination  of  the  Repayment  Periods  and
percentages of the principal and interest due with respect to each Series of Notes at maturity
required to be on deposit  in the related Payment Account  in each Repayment  Period,  all  as
specified  in  the  Pricing  Confirmation  applicable  to  such Series  of  Notes,  by  executing  and
delivering  the  Pricing  Confirmation  applicable  to  such Series  of  Notes,  such execution  and
delivery to be conclusive evidence of approval by this Board and such Authorized Officer.


(F) Application of Moneys in Payment Accounts  .  On any interest payment date (if
different from the Maturity Date) and on the Maturity Date of a Series of Notes, the moneys in
the Payment Account attributed to such Series of Notes shall be transferred by the Trustee, to the
extent necessary, to pay, in the case of an interest payment date, the interest, and in the case of
the  Maturity  Date,  the  principal  of  and  interest  with  respect  to  such  Series  of  Notes  or  to
reimburse  the  Credit  Provider(s)  for  payments  made  under  or  pursuant  to  the  Credit
Instrument(s), subject to the payment priority provisions of Section 17 hereof and this Section 8.
In  the  event  that  moneys  in  the  Payment  Account  attributed  to  any  Series  of  Notes  are
insufficient to pay the principal of and/or interest with respect to such Series of Notes in full on
an interest payment date and/or the Maturity Date, moneys in such Payment Account together


21


649/852







4135-0131-2801.3


with moneys in the Payment Accounts of all other outstanding Series of Notes issued by the
District shall be applied in the following priority:


(1) with respect to all Series of Senior Notes:


a. first, to pay interest with respect to all Series of Senior Notes pro-
rata;


b. second, (if on the Maturity Date) to pay principal of all Series of
Senior Notes pro-rata;


c. third,  to reimburse each Credit  Provider for payment,  if  any, of
interest  with respect  to all  Series  of Senior Notes pro-rata  (or on such
other  basis  as  set  for  in  the  Trust  Agreement  or  the  Indenture,  as
applicable);


d. fourth, to reimburse each Credit Provider for payment, if any, of
principal with respect to all Series of Senior Notes pro-rata (or on such
other  basis  as  set  for  in  the  Trust  Agreement  or  the  Indenture,  as
applicable);


e. fifth, to pay pro-rata (or on such other basis as set for in the Trust
Agreement  or  the  Indenture,  as  applicable)  any  Reimbursement
Obligations  of  the  District  and  any  of  the  District’s  pro  rata  share  of
Predefault Obligations owing to each Credit Provider relating to all Series
of Senior Notes, as applicable;


(2) then, with respect to all Series of Subordinate Notes (except for any Series
of  Subordinate  Notes  described  in  paragraph  (3)  below),  to  make  the  pro-rata  payments
corresponding to each such Series of Subordinate Notes equivalent to the payments described
above in paragraphs (1)(a) through (e), in such order;


(3) then, with respect to all other Series of Subordinate Notes that have been
further subordinated to previously issued Series of Subordinate Notes in the applicable Pricing
Confirmation, to make the pro-rata payments corresponding to each such Series of Subordinate
Notes equivalent to the payments described above in paragraphs (1)(a) through (e), in such order;
and


(4) lastly, to pay any other Costs of Issuance not previously disbursed.


Any moneys remaining in or accruing to the Payment Account attributed to each such Series of
Notes after the principal of all the Series of Notes and the interest thereon and any Predefault
Obligations and Reimbursement Obligations,  if applicable,  and obligation,  if any, to pay any
rebate amounts in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement or the Indenture, as
applicable,  have  been paid,  or  provision  for  such  payment  has  been  made,  if  any,  shall  be
transferred by the Trustee to the District, subject to any other disposition required by the Trust
Agreement, the Indenture or the related Credit Agreement(s), as applicable.


22


650/852







4135-0131-2801.3


Nothing herein shall be deemed to relieve the District from its obligation to pay its Note
of any Series in full on the applicable Maturity Date(s).


(G) Investment of Moneys in Proceeds Subaccounts and Payment Accounts  .  Moneys
in  the  Proceeds  Subaccount  attributed  to  each  Series  of  Notes  and  the  Payment  Account
attributed  to  such  Series  of  Notes  shall  be  invested  by  the  Trustee  pursuant  to  the  Trust
Agreement or the Indenture,  as applicable,  in an investment  agreement or agreements and/or
other Permitted Investments as described in and under the terms of the Trust Agreement or the
Indenture, as applicable, and as designated in the Pricing Confirmation applicable to such Series
of Notes.  The type of initial investments to be applicable to the proceeds of the Series of Notes
shall be determined by the District as designated in the Pricing Confirmation applicable to such
Series of Notes.  In the event the District  designates an investment agreement or investment
agreements as the investments, the District hereby appoints the bidding agent designated in the
Pricing Confirmation (the “Bidding Agent”) as its designee as a party authorized to solicit bids
on or negotiate the terms of the investment  agreement  or investment agreements and hereby
authorizes and directs the Trustee to invest such funds pursuant to such investment agreement or
investment agreements (which (i) shall be with a provider or providers, or with a provider or
providers whose obligations are guaranteed or insured by a financial entity, the senior debt or
investment contracts or obligations under its investment contracts of which are rated in one of
the two highest long-term rating categories  by the rating agency or agencies  then rating the
applicable Series of Certificates or Series of Pool Bonds (each, a “Rating Agency”), or whose
commercial paper rating is in the highest rating category (with regard to any modifiers) of each
such Rating Agencies, or (ii) shall be fully collateralized by investments listed in subsection (1)
of the definition of Permitted Investments set forth in the Trust Agreement or the Indenture, as
applicable,  as required by such Rating Agencies to be rated in one of the two highest rating
categories,  and  shall  be  acceptable  to  the  corresponding  Credit  Provider,  if  any,  and  the
particulars of which pertaining to interest rate or rates and investment provider or providers will
be set forth in the Pricing Confirmation applicable to such Series of Notes) and authorizes the
Trustee to enter into such investment agreement or agreements on behalf of the District.  The
Bidding Agent, on behalf  of itself and any investment broker retained by it,  is authorized to
accept a fee from the investment provider in an amount not in excess of 0.2% of the amount
reasonably expected, as of the date of acquisition of the investment contract, to be invested under
the investment contract over its term.  Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed
to execute and deliver such side letter  or letters as are reasonably required by an investment
agreement provider, acknowledging such investment and making reasonable representations and
covenants with respect thereto.  The District’s funds in the Proceeds Subaccount attributed to
each  Series  of  Notes  and  the  Payment  Account  attributed  to  such  Series  of  Notes  shall  be
accounted for separately.  Any such investment by the Trustee shall be for the account and risk
of the District, and the District shall not be deemed to be relieved of any of its obligations with
respect to any Series of Notes, the Predefault Obligations or Reimbursement Obligations, if any,
by reason of such investment of the moneys in its Proceeds Subaccount applicable to such Series
of Notes or the Payment Account applicable to such Series of Notes.


Notwithstanding  any  other  investment  policy  of  the  District  heretofore  or  hereafter
adopted, the investment policy of the District pertaining to each Series of Notes and all funds and
accounts  established in  connection  therewith  shall  be consistent  with,  and the  Board hereby
authorizes  investment  in,  the Permitted Investments.   Any investment  policy adopted by the


23


651/852







4135-0131-2801.3


Board hereafter in contravention of the foregoing shall be deemed to modify the authorization
contained herein only if it shall specifically reference this Resolution and Section.


Section 9.            Execution of Note  .  Any one of the Treasurer of the County, or, in the
absence of said officer,  his  or her duly appointed assistant,  the Chairperson of the Board of
Supervisors of the County or the Auditor (or comparable financial officer) of the County shall be
authorized to execute each Note of any Series issued hereunder by manual or facsimile signature
and the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of the County or any Deputy Clerk shall be authorized
to countersign each such Note by manual  or facsimile  signature and to affix the seal of the
County to each such Note either manually or by facsimile impression thereof.  In the event the
Board of Supervisors of the County fails or refuses to authorize issuance of the Series of Notes
as referenced in Section 2 hereof, any one of the President or Chairperson of the governing board
of the District or any other member of such board shall be authorized to execute the Note by
manual or facsimile signature and the Secretary or Clerk of the governing board of the District,
the  Superintendent  of  the  District,  the  Assistant  Superintendent  for  Business,  the  Assistant
Superintendent for Administrative Services, the business manager, director of business or fiscal
services  or  chief  financial/business  officer  of  the  District,  as  the  case  may  be,  or  any  duly
appointed  assistant  thereto,  shall  be authorized  to  countersign each such Note by manual  or
facsimile  signature.   Said  officers  of  the  County  or  the  District,  as  applicable,  are  hereby
authorized to cause the blank spaces of each such Note to be filled in as may be appropriate
pursuant to the applicable Pricing Confirmation.  Said officers are hereby authorized and directed
to cause the Trustee, as registrar and authenticating agent, to authenticate and accept delivery of
each such Note pursuant to the terms and conditions of the corresponding Certificate Purchase
Agreement or Note Purchase Agreement, as applicable, this Resolution and the Trust Agreement
or Indenture, as applicable.  In case any officer whose signature shall appear on any Series of
Notes shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Series of Notes, such signature
shall  nevertheless  be  valid  and  sufficient  for  all  purposes,  the  same  as  if  such  officer  had
remained in office until delivery.  Each Series of the Notes shall have thereon a certificate of
authentication substantially in the form hereinafter set forth duly executed by the Trustee and
showing the date of authentication.  Each Series of the Notes shall not be valid or obligatory for
any purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit under this Resolution unless and until such
certificate of authentication shall have been duly executed by the Trustee by manual signature,
and such certificate of authentication upon any such Series of Notes shall be conclusive evidence
that  such  has  been  authenticated  and  delivered  under  this  Resolution.   The  certificate  of
authentication on a Series of Notes shall be deemed to have been executed by the Trustee if
signed by an authorized officer of the Trustee.  The Notes need not bear the seal of the District, if
any.


Section 10.          Note  Registration  and  Transfer  .    As  long  as  any  Series  of  the  Notes
remains outstanding, the District shall maintain and keep, at the principal corporate trust office of
the Trustee, books for the registration and transfer of each Series of the Notes.  Each Series of
the Notes shall initially be registered in the name of the Trustee under the Trust Agreement or
Indenture, as applicable, to which such Series of the Notes is assigned.  Upon surrender of a Note
of  a  Series  for  transfer  at  the  office  of  the  Trustee  with  a  written  instrument  of  transfer
satisfactory to the Trustee, duly executed by the registered owner or its duly authorized attorney,
and upon payment of any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect
to such transfer, the County or the District,  as applicable, shall execute and the Trustee shall


24


652/852







4135-0131-2801.3


authenticate and deliver, in the name of the designated transferee, a fully registered Note of the
same Series.  For every transfer of a Note of a Series, the District, the County or the Trustee may
make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to
be paid with respect to the transfer, which sum or sums shall be paid by the person requesting
such transfer as a condition precedent to the exercise of the privilege of making such transfer.


(A) Subject to Section 6 hereof,  the County,  the District  and the Trustee and their
respective  successors  may deem and treat  the  person in  whose name a Note  of  a  Series  is
registered as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and the County, the District and the
Trustee and their respective successors shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary, and
payment of or on account of the principal of such Note shall be made only to or upon the order of
the registered  owner thereof.   All  such payments  shall  be valid  and effectual  to  satisfy and
discharge the liability upon such Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.


(B) Any Note of a Series may, in accordance with its terms, be transferred upon the
books required to be kept by the Trustee, pursuant to the provisions hereof by the person in
whose name it is registered, in person or by his duly authorized attorney, upon surrender of such
Note for cancellation, accompanied by delivery of a written instrument of transfer, duly executed
in form approved by the Trustee.


(C) The  Trustee  or  the  Authorized  Officer  of  the  District,  acting  separately  or
together, are authorized to sign any letter or letters of representations which may be required in
connection with the delivery of any Series of Certificates or Series of Pool Bonds (in each case,
to which such Series of Notes is assigned),  if such Series of Certificates  and Series of Pool
Bonds are delivered in book-entry form.


(D) The Trustee will keep or cause to be kept, at its principal corporate trust office,
sufficient books for the registration and transfer of each Note of a Series issued, which shall be
open  to  inspection  by  the  County  and  the  District  during  regular  business  hours.   Upon
presentation for such purpose, the Trustee shall,  under such reasonable regulations as it may
prescribe, register or transfer or cause to be registered or transferred, on such books, the Notes of
a Series presented as hereinbefore provided.


(E) If any Note of a Series shall  become mutilated,  the County or the District,  as
applicable, at the expense of the registered owner of such Note of a Series, shall execute, and the
Trustee shall thereupon authenticate and deliver a new Note of like tenor, series and number in
exchange and substitution for the Note so mutilated, but only upon surrender to the Trustee of
the Note so mutilated.  Every mutilated Note so surrendered to the Trustee shall be cancelled by
it and delivered to, or upon the order of, the County or the District, as applicable.  If any Note of
a Series shall be lost, destroyed or stolen, evidence of such loss, destruction or theft may be
submitted to the County, the District and the Trustee and, if such evidence be satisfactory to
them and indemnity satisfactory to them shall be given, the County or the District, as applicable,
at the expense of the registered owner, shall execute, and the Trustee shall thereupon authenticate
and deliver a new Note of like tenor, series and number in lieu of and in substitution for the Note
so lost, destroyed or stolen (or if any such Note of a Series shall have matured (as of the latest
maturity date indicated on the face thereof) or shall be about to mature (as of the latest maturity
date indicated on the face thereof), instead of issuing a substitute Note, the Trustee may pay the


25


653/852







4135-0131-2801.3


same without surrender thereof).  The Trustee may require payment of a sum not exceeding the
actual cost of preparing each new Note issued pursuant to this paragraph and of the expenses
which may be incurred by the County or the District,  as applicable,  and the Trustee in such
preparation.  Any Note of a Series issued under these provisions in lieu of any Note of a Series
alleged to be lost, destroyed or stolen shall constitute an original additional contractual obligation
on the part of the County (on behalf of the District) or on the part of the District, as applicable,
whether or not the Note of a Series so alleged to be lost, destroyed or stolen be at any time
enforceable by anyone, and shall  be entitled to the benefits  of this Resolution with all  other
Notes of the same Series secured by this Resolution.


Section 11.          Covenants  Regarding  Transfer  of  Funds  .   It  is  hereby covenanted  and
warranted  by  the  District  that  it  will  not  request  the  County  Treasurer  to  make  temporary
transfers of funds in the custody of the County Treasurer to meet any obligations of the District
during Fiscal Year 2020-2021 pursuant to Article XVI, Section 6 of the Constitution of the State
of California; provided, however, that the District may request the County Treasurer to make
such temporary transfers of funds if (A) all amounts required to be deposited into the Payment
Account(s) of all outstanding Series of Notes (regardless of when due and payable) shall have
been deposited into such Payment Account(s), (B) at the time of such transfer (and at the time of
any subsequent issuance of a Series of Additional Notes hereunder), the amount to be transferred
pursuant to Article XVI, Section 6 of the Constitution of the State of California together with the
amounts required to be deposited into the Payment Account(s) of all outstanding Series of Notes
(and such Series of Additional Notes) and not yet deposited into such Payment Account(s) does
not exceed 85 percent of the District’s Unrestricted Revenues yet to be received by the District,
(C) upon receipt  of  the amount  to  be transferred  pursuant  to  Article  XVI,  Section  6 of  the
Constitution of the State of California, the District shall cause all or a portion of such transferred
amount to be deposited in the Payment Account(s) established hereunder such that all amounts
required  to  be  deposited  into  the  Payment  Account(s)  of  all  outstanding  Series  of  Notes
(regardless of when due and payable) shall have been deposited into such Payment Account(s),
or (D) the amount transferred pursuant to Article XVI, Section 6 of the Constitution of the State
of California shall be repaid on or prior to the issuance of any Series of Notes, including from
proceeds of such Series of Notes.


Section 12.          Representations and Covenants  .


(A) The District is a political subdivision duly organized and existing under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of California and has all necessary power and authority to (i) adopt
this Resolution and any supplement hereto, and enter into and perform its obligations under the
Certificate Purchase Agreement(s) or the Note Purchase Agreement(s), as applicable, the Trust
Agreement(s),  if applicable,  and the Credit Agreement(s), if applicable,  and (ii) authorize the
County to issue one or more Series of Notes on its behalf or, if applicable, issue one or more
Series of Notes.


(B) (i) Upon the issuance of each Series of Notes, the District  will  have taken all
action required to be taken by it to authorize the issuance and delivery of such Series of Notes
and the performance of its obligations thereunder, (ii) the District has full legal right, power and
authority to request the County to issue and deliver such Series of Notes on behalf of the District


26


654/852







4135-0131-2801.3


and to perform its obligations as provided herein and therein, and (iii) if applicable, the District
has full legal right, power and authority to issue and deliver each Series of Notes.


(C) The issuance of each Series of Notes,  the adoption of this  Resolution and the
execution  and  delivery  of  the  Certificate  Purchase  Agreement(s)  or  the  Note  Purchase
Agreement(s), as applicable, the Trust Agreement(s), if applicable, and the Credit Agreement(s),
if  applicable,  and compliance  with  the  provisions  hereof  and  thereof  will  not  conflict  with,
breach or violate any law, administrative regulation, court decree, resolution, charter, by-laws or
other agreement to which the District is subject or by which it is bound.


(D) Except as may be required under blue sky or other securities law of any state or
Section 3(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, there is no consent, approval, authorization or other
order of, or filing with, or certification by, any regulatory authority having jurisdiction over the
District required for the issuance and sale of each Series of Notes or the consummation by the
District of the other transactions contemplated by this Resolution except those the District shall
obtain or perform prior to or upon the issuance of each Series of Notes.


(E) The District has (or will have prior to the issuance of the first Series of Notes)
duly, regularly and properly adopted a budget for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 setting forth expected
revenues and expenditures and has (or will have prior to the issuance of the first Series of Notes)
complied with all  statutory and regulatory requirements with respect to the adoption of such
budget.  The District hereby covenants that it will (i) duly, regularly and properly prepare and
adopt its revised or final budget for Fiscal Year 2020-2021, (ii) provide to the Trustee, the Credit
Provider(s), if any, the Underwriter and the Financial Advisor, promptly upon adoption, copies
of such revised or final budget and of any subsequent revisions, modifications or amendments
thereto and (iii) comply with all applicable law pertaining to its budget.


(F) The County has experienced an ad valorem property tax collection rate of not less
than eighty-five percent (85%) of the average aggregate amount of  ad valorem property taxes
levied within the District in each of the five fiscal years from Fiscal Year 2014-2015 through
Fiscal Year 2018-2019, and the District, as of the date of adoption of this Resolution and on the
date of issuance of each Series of Notes, reasonably expects the County to have collected and to
collect at least eighty-five percent (85%) of such amount for Fiscal Years 2019-2020 and 2020-
2021, respectively.


(G) The District (i) is not currently in default on any debt obligation, (ii) to the best
knowledge of the District, has never defaulted on any debt obligation, and (iii) has never filed a
petition in bankruptcy.


(H) The District’s most recent audited financial statements present fairly the financial
condition of the District as of the date thereof and the results of operation for the period covered
thereby.  Except as has been disclosed to the Underwriter and the Credit Provider(s), if any, there
has  been no change in  the financial  condition  of  the District  since the date  of such audited
financial statements that will in the reasonable opinion of the District materially impair its ability
to perform its obligations under this Resolution and each Series of Notes.  The District agrees to
furnish to the Underwriter, the Financial Advisor, the Trustee and the Credit Provider(s), if any,


27


655/852







4135-0131-2801.3


promptly, from time to time, such information regarding the operations, financial condition and
property of the District as such party may reasonably request.


(I) There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity,
before or by any court, arbitrator, governmental or other board, body or official, pending or, to
the best knowledge of the District, threatened against or affecting the District questioning the
validity of any proceeding taken or to be taken by the District in connection with each Series of
Notes, the Certificate Purchase Agreement(s) or the Note Purchase Agreement(s), as applicable,
the Trust Agreement or the Indenture,  as applicable,  the Credit  Agreement(s),  if any, or this
Resolution, or seeking to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the execution, delivery or performance by
the District of any of the foregoing, or wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would
have a materially adverse effect on the District’s financial condition or results of operations or on
the  ability  of  the  District  to  conduct  its  activities  as  presently  conducted  or  as  proposed or
contemplated to be conducted, or would materially adversely affect the validity or enforceability
of, or the authority  or ability of the District  to perform its obligations under, each Series of
Notes, the Certificate Purchase Agreement(s) or the Note Purchase Agreement(s), as applicable,
the Trust Agreement or the Indenture,  as applicable,  the Credit  Agreement(s),  if any, or this
Resolution.


(J) The District will not directly or indirectly amend, supplement, repeal, or waive
any portion of this Resolution (i) without the consents of the Credit Provider(s), if any, or (ii) in
any way that would materially adversely affect the interests of any holder or owner of any Series
of the Notes, Certificates or Pool Bonds, as applicable, issued in connection with any Series of
the Notes; provided, however that, if the Program is implemented, the District may adopt one or
more Supplemental Resolutions without any such consents in order to increase the Maximum
Amount of Borrowing in connection with the issuance of one or more Series of Additional Notes
as provided in Section 2(B)(4) hereof.


(K) Upon issuance of a Series of Notes, such Series of Notes, this Resolution and the
corresponding  Credit  Agreement  will  constitute  legal,  valid  and  binding  agreements  of  the
District, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, except as such enforceability may
be limited by bankruptcy or other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally, the application of
equitable  principles  if  equitable  remedies  are  sought,  the  exercise  of  judicial  discretion  in
appropriate  cases  and  the  limitations  on  legal  remedies  against  school  districts,  community
college districts and county boards of education, as applicable, in the State of California.


(L) It is hereby covenanted and warranted by the District that all representations and
recitals contained in this Resolution are true and correct, and that the District and its appropriate
officials have duly taken, or will take, all proceedings necessary to be taken by them, if any, for
the levy, receipt, collection and enforcement of the Pledged Revenues in accordance with law for
carrying out the provisions of this Resolution and each Series of Notes.


(M) The District shall not incur any indebtedness that is not issued in connection with
the Program under this Resolution and that is secured by a pledge of its Unrestricted Revenues
unless  such  pledge  is  subordinate  in  all  respects  to  the  pledge  of  Unrestricted  Revenues
hereunder.


28


656/852







4135-0131-2801.3


(N) So long as any Credit Provider is not in default under the corresponding Credit
Instrument, the District hereby agrees to pay its pro rata share of all Predefault Obligations and
all Reimbursement Obligations attributable to the District in accordance with provisions of the
applicable Credit Agreement,  if any, and/or the Trust Agreement or Indenture,  as applicable.
Prior  to  the Maturity  Date  of  a  Series  of  Notes,  moneys in  the District’s  Payment  Account
attributed to such Series of Notes shall not be used to make such payments.  The District shall
pay such amounts promptly upon receipt of notice from the Credit Provider that such amounts
are  due  to  it  by  instructing  the  Trustee  to  pay such amounts  to  the  Credit  Provider  on the
District’s behalf by remitting to the Credit Provider moneys held by the Trustee for the District
and then available for such purpose under the Trust Agreement or the Indenture, as applicable.  If
such moneys held by the Trustee are insufficient to pay the District’s  pro rata share of such
Predefault Obligations and all Reimbursement Obligations attributable to the District (if any), the
District  shall  pay  the  amount  of  the  deficiency  to  the  Trustee  for  remittance  to  the  Credit
Provider.


(O) So  long  as  any  Series  of  Certificates  or  Pool  Bonds  executed  or  issued  in
connection  with  a  Series  of  Notes  are  Outstanding,  or  any  Predefault  Obligation  or
Reimbursement Obligation is outstanding, the District will not create or suffer to be created any
pledge of or lien on such Series of Notes other than the pledge and lien of the Trust Agreement
or the Indenture, as applicable.


(P) As of the date of adoption of this Resolution, based on the most recent report
prepared by the Superintendent of Public Instruction of the State of California, the District does
not have a negative certification (or except as disclosed in writing to the Underwriter and the
Credit Provider(s), if any, a qualified certification) applicable to the fiscal year ending June 30,
2020  (the  “Fiscal  Year 2019-2020”)  within  the  meaning  of  Section 42133  of  the  California
Education Code.  The District covenants that it will immediately deliver a written notice to the
Authority,  the  Underwriter,  the  Financial  Advisor,  the  Credit  Provider(s),  if  any,  and  Bond
Counsel  if  it  (or,  in the case of County Boards of Education,  the County Superintendent  of
Schools) files with the County Superintendent of Schools, the County Board of Education or the
State  Superintendent  of  Public  Instruction  or  receives  from  the  County  Superintendent  of
Schools or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction a qualified or negative certification
applicable to Fiscal Year 2019-2020 or Fiscal Year 2020-2021 prior to the respective Closing
Date referenced in each Pricing Confirmation or the Maturity Date of each Series of Notes.


(Q) The District will maintain a positive general fund balance in Fiscal Year 2020-
2021.


(R) The District will maintain an investment policy consistent with the policy set forth
in Section 8(G) hereof.


(S) The District  covenants  that  it  will  immediately  deliver  a written  notice  to the
Authority,  the  Underwriter,  the  Financial  Advisor,  the  Credit  Provider(s),  if  any,  and  Bond
Counsel upon the occurrence of any event which constitutes an Event of Default hereunder or
would constitute an Event of Default but for the requirement that notice be given, or time elapse,
or both. 


29


657/852







4135-0131-2801.3


Section 13.          Tax Covenants  .   The District will not take any action or fail to take any
action if such action or failure to take such action would adversely affect the exclusion from
gross income of the interest payable on each Tax-Exempt Series of Notes (or on any Tax-Exempt
Series  of  Pool  Bonds related  thereto)  under  Section 103 of  the Code.   Without  limiting  the
generality  of the foregoing,  the District  will  not make any use of the proceeds of any Tax-
Exempt  Series of the Notes or any other funds of the District  which would cause any Tax-
Exempt Series of the Notes (or on any Tax-Exempt Series of Pool Bonds related thereto) to be an
“arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code, a “private activity bond” within
the meaning of Section 141(a) of the Code, or an obligation the interest on which is subject to
federal income taxation because it is “federally guaranteed” as provided in Section 149(b) of the
Code.  The District, with respect to the proceeds of each Tax-Exempt Series of the Notes (or on
any Tax-Exempt Series of Pool Bonds related thereto), will comply with all requirements of such
sections of the Code and all regulations of the United States Department of the Treasury issued
or applicable thereunder to the extent that such requirements are, at the time, applicable and in
effect.


(A) In the event the District is deemed a Safe Harbor Issuer (as defined in Section 7)
with respect to a Tax-Exempt Series of Notes (or any Tax-Exempt Series of Pool Bonds related
thereto), this subsection (B) shall apply.  The District covenants that it shall make all calculations
in a reasonable and prudent fashion relating to any rebate of excess investment earnings on the
proceeds of each such Tax-Exempt Series of Notes (or such Tax-Exempt Series of Pool Bonds
related thereto) due to the United States Treasury, shall segregate and set aside from lawfully
available sources the amount such calculations may indicate may be required to be paid to the
United  States  Treasury,  and shall  otherwise  at  all  times  do and perform all  acts  and things
necessary  and  within  its  power  and  authority,  including  complying  with  the  instructions  of
Orrick,  Herrington & Sutcliffe  LLP, Bond Counsel referred to in Section 7 hereof to assure
compliance with the Rebate Requirements.  If the balance in the Proceeds Subaccount attributed
to cash flow borrowing and treated for federal  tax purposes as proceeds of the Tax-Exempt
Series of Notes (or any Tax-Exempt Series of Pool Bonds related thereto) is not low enough to
qualify amounts in the Proceeds Subaccount attributed to cash flow borrowing for an exception
to the Rebate Requirements on at least one date within the six-month period following the date of
issuance  of  the  Tax-Exempt  Series  of  Notes  (or  Tax-Exempt  Series  of  Pool  Bonds  related
thereto) (calculated in accordance with Section 7), the District  will reasonably and prudently
calculate the amount, if any, of investment profits which must be rebated to the United States and
will immediately set aside, from revenues attributable to the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 or, to the
extent not available from such revenues, from any other moneys lawfully available, the amount
of any such rebate in the Rebate Fund referred to in this Section 13(B).  In addition, in such
event,  the  District  shall  establish  and  maintain  with  the  Trustee  a  fund  (with  separate
subaccounts therein for each such Tax-Exempt Series of Notes (or such Tax-Exempt Series of
Pool  Bonds related  thereto)  if  more than one series  is  issued)  separate  from any other  fund
established and maintained hereunder and under the Indenture or Trust Agreement, as applicable,
designated as the “2020-2021 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note Rebate Fund” or such other
name as the Trust Agreement or the Indenture, as applicable, may designate.  There shall be
deposited  in  such  Rebate  Fund  such  amounts  as  are  required  to  be  deposited  therein  in
accordance with the written instructions from Bond Counsel pursuant to Section 7 hereof.


30


658/852







4135-0131-2801.3


(B) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution to the contrary, upon the
District’s failure to observe, or refusal to comply with, the covenants contained in this Section
13, no one other than the holders or former holders of each Tax-Exempt Series of Notes (or any
Tax-Exempt  Series  of  Pool  Bonds  related  thereto),  the  Certificate  or  the  Bond  owners,  as
applicable,  the  Credit  Provider(s),  if  any,  or  the  Trustee  on their  behalf  shall  be  entitled  to
exercise  any  right  or  remedy  under  this  Resolution  on  the  basis  of  the  District’s  failure  to
observe, or refusal to comply with, such covenants.


(C) The covenants contained in this Section 13 shall survive the payment of all Series
of the Notes.


Section 14.          Events of Default and Remedies  .  


If any of the following events occurs, it is hereby defined as and declared to be and to
constitute an “Event of Default”:


(A) Failure by the District to make or cause to be made the deposits to any
Payment Account required to be made hereunder on or before the fifteenth (15th) day
after the date on which such deposit is due and payable, or failure by the District to make
or cause to be made any other payment required to be paid hereunder on or before the
date on which such payment is due and payable;


(B) Failure by the District to observe and perform any covenant, condition or
agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Resolution, for a period of
fifteen (15) days after written notice,  specifying such failure and requesting that it  be
remedied,  is  given  to  the  District  by  the  Trustee  or  any Credit  Provider,  unless  the
Trustee and such Credit Provider shall all agree in writing to an extension of such time
prior to its expiration;


(C) Any warranty,  representation or other statement  by or on behalf  of the
District contained in this Resolution or the Certificate Purchase Agreement(s) or the Note
Purchase  Agreement(s),  as  applicable  (including  the  Pricing  Confirmation(s)),  or  the
Credit Agreement(s) or in any requisition delivered by the District or in any instrument
furnished in compliance with or in reference to this Resolution or the Certificate Purchase
Agreement(s)  or  the  Note  Purchase  Agreement(s),  as  applicable,  or  the  Credit
Agreement(s) or in connection with any Series of the Notes, is false or misleading in any
material respect;


(D) Any event of default constituting a payment default occurs in connection
with any other bonds, notes or other outstanding debt of the District;


(E) A  petition  is  filed  against  the  District  under  any  bankruptcy,
reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation
law of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect and is not dismissed within 30
days after such filing, but the Trustee shall have the right to intervene in the proceedings
prior to the expiration of such 30 days to protect its  and the Certificate  or the Bond
owners’ (or Noteholders’) interests;


31


659/852







4135-0131-2801.3


(F) The District files a petition in voluntary bankruptcy or seeking relief under
any provision of any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment
of debt, dissolution or liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in
effect, or consents to the filing of any petition against it under such law;


(G) The District admits insolvency or bankruptcy or is generally not paying its
debts  as  such  debts  become  due,  or  becomes  insolvent  or  bankrupt  or  makes  an
assignment  for the benefit  of creditors,  or a custodian (including without limitation a
receiver, liquidator or trustee) of the District or any of its property is appointed by court
order or appointed by the State Superintendent of Public Instruction or takes possession
thereof and such order remains in effect or such possession continues for more than 30
days, but the Trustee shall  have the right to intervene in the proceedings prior to the
expiration  of  such 30 days  to  protect  its  and the Certificate  or  the Bond owners’  or
Noteholders’ interests; and


(H) An “Event of Default” under the terms of the resolution,  if any, of the
County providing for the issuance of the Notes (and any Series thereof).


Whenever any Event of Default referred to in this Section 14 shall have happened and be
continuing, subject to the provisions of Section 17 hereof, the Trustee shall, in addition to any
other remedies provided herein or by law or under the Trust Agreement or the Indenture,  as
applicable, have the right, at its option without any further demand or notice, to take one or any
combination of the following remedial steps:


(1) Without declaring any Series of Notes to be immediately due and payable,
require  the  District  to  pay  to  the  Trustee,  for  deposit  into  the  applicable  Payment
Account(s) of the District under the Trust Agreement or the Indenture, as applicable, an
amount equal to all of the principal of all  Series of Notes and interest  thereon to the
respective  final  maturity(ies)  of  such  Series  of  Notes,  plus  all  other  amounts  due
hereunder, and upon notice to the District the same shall become immediately due and
payable by the District without further notice or demand; and


(2) Take whatever other action at law or in equity (except for acceleration of
payment on any Series of Notes) which may appear necessary or desirable to collect the
amounts then due and thereafter to become due hereunder or to enforce any other of its
rights hereunder.


Notwithstanding the foregoing, and subject to the provisions of Section 17 hereof and to
the  terms  of  the  Trust  Agreement  or  the  Indenture,  as  applicable,  concerning  exercise  of
remedies which shall control if inconsistent with the following, if any Series of Notes is secured
in whole or in part by a Credit Instrument or if a Credit Provider is subrogated to rights under
any Series of Notes,  as long as each such Credit  Provider has not failed to comply with its
payment obligations under the corresponding Credit Instrument, each such Credit Provider shall
have the right to direct the remedies upon any Event of Default hereunder, and as applicable,
prior  consent  shall  be required  to  any remedial  action  proposed to  be taken by the  Trustee
hereunder, except that nothing contained herein shall affect or impair the right of action of any


32


660/852







4135-0131-2801.3


owner of a Certificate to institute suit  directly against the District to enforce payment of the
obligations evidenced and represented by such owner’s Certificate.


If any Credit Provider is not reimbursed on any interest payment date applicable to the
corresponding Series of Notes for the drawing, payment or claim, as applicable,  used to pay
principal of and interest on such Series of Notes due to a default in payment on such Series of
Notes by the District, as provided in the Trust Agreement or in the Indenture, as applicable, or if
any principal of or interest on such Series of Notes remains unpaid after the Maturity Date of
such Series of Notes, such Series of Notes shall be a Defaulted Note, the unpaid portion thereof
or the portion (including the interest  component,  if  applicable)  to which a Credit  Instrument
applies  for  which  reimbursement  on  a  draw,  payment  or  claim has  not  been made shall  be
deemed outstanding and shall bear interest at the Default Rate until the District’s obligation on
the Defaulted Note is paid in full or payment is duly provided for, all subject to Section 8 hereof.


Section 15.          Trustee  .  The Trustee is hereby appointed as paying agent, registrar and
authenticating agent for any and all Series of Notes.  The District hereby directs and authorizes
the payment by the Trustee of the interest on and principal of any and all Series of Notes when
such become due and payable from the corresponding Payment Account held by the Trustee in
the name of the District in the manner set forth herein.  The District hereby covenants to deposit
funds in each such Payment Account at the times and in the amounts specified herein to provide
sufficient moneys to pay the principal of and interest on any and all Series of Notes on the day or
days on which each such Series matures.  Payment of any and all Series of Notes shall be in
accordance  with  the  terms  of  the  applicable  Series  of  Notes  and  this  Resolution  and  any
applicable Supplemental Resolution.


The District  hereby agrees to maintain the Trustee under the Trust Agreement  or the
Indenture, as applicable, as paying agent, registrar and authenticating agent of any and all Series
of Notes.


The District  further  agrees  to  indemnify,  to  the extent  permitted  by law and without
making any representation as to the enforceability of this covenant, and save the Trustee, its
directors, officers, employees and agents harmless against any liabilities which it may incur in
the  exercise  and  performance  of  its  powers  and  duties  under  the  Trust  Agreement  or  the
Indenture, as applicable, including but not limited to costs and expenses incurred in defending
against any claim or liability, which are not due to its negligence or default.


Section 16.          Sale of Notes  .  If the Certificate Structure is implemented, each Series of
Notes as evidenced and represented by the applicable Series of Certificates shall be sold to the
Underwriter, in accordance with the terms of the Certificate Purchase Agreement applicable to
such Series of Notes, in each case as hereinbefore approved.  If  the Bond Pool Structure is
implemented, each Series of Notes shall be sold to the Authority in accordance with the terms of
the Note Purchase Agreement applicable to such Series of Notes, in each case as hereinbefore
approved.


Section 17.          Subordination  .   (a)   Anything  in  this  Resolution  to  the  contrary
notwithstanding,  the  indebtedness  evidenced  by  each  Series  of  Subordinate  Notes  shall  be
subordinated and junior in right of payment, to the extent and in the manner hereinafter set forth,


33


661/852







4135-0131-2801.3


to  all  principal  of,  premium,  if  any,  and  interest  on  each  Series  of  Senior  Notes  and  any
refinancings, refundings, deferrals, renewals, modifications or extensions thereof.


In the event of (1) any insolvency, bankruptcy, receivership, liquidation, reorganization,
readjustment, composition or other similar proceeding relating to the District or its property, (2)
any proceeding for the liquidation, dissolution or other winding-up of the District, voluntary or
involuntary,  and  whether  or  not  involving  insolvency  or  bankruptcy  proceedings,  (3)  any
assignment  for  the  benefit  of  creditors,  or  (4)  any  distribution,  division,  marshalling  or
application of any of the properties or assets of the District or the proceeds thereof to creditors,
voluntary or involuntary, and whether or not involving legal proceedings, then and in any such
event, payment shall be made to the parties and in the priority set forth in Section 8(F) hereof,
and each party of a higher priority shall first be paid in full before any payment or distribution of
any character, whether in cash, securities or other property shall be made in respect of any party
of a lower priority.


The subordination provisions of this Section have been entered into for the benefit of the
holders of the Series of Senior Notes and any Credit Provider(s) that issues a Credit Instrument
with  respect  to  such  Series  of  Senior  Notes  and,  notwithstanding  any  provision  of  this
Resolution,  may  not  be  supplemented,  amended  or  otherwise  modified  without  the  written
consent of all such holders and Credit Provider(s).


Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution, the terms of this Section shall
continue to be effective or be reinstated, as the case may be, if at any time any payment of any
Series of Senior Notes is rescinded, annulled or must otherwise be returned by any holder of
Series  of  Senior  Notes  or  such  holder’s  representative,  upon  the  insolvency,  bankruptcy  or
reorganization of the District or otherwise, all as though such payment has not been made.


In no event may any holder of all or any part of the Series of Subordinate Notes, or the
corresponding Credit Provider(s), exercise any right or remedy available to it on account of any
Event of Default on the Series of Subordinate Notes, (1) at any time at which payments with
respect thereto may not be made by the District on account of the terms of this Section, or (2)
prior to the expiration of forty-five (45) days after the holders of the Series of Subordinate Notes,
or the corresponding Credit Provider(s), shall have given notice to the District and to the holders
of the Series of Senior Notes and the corresponding Credit Provider(s), of their intention to take
such action.


The terms of this Section, the subordination effected hereby and the rights of the holders
of the Series of Senior Notes shall  not be affected by (a) any amendment of or addition or
supplement  to  any  Series  of  Senior  Notes  or  any  instrument  or  agreement  relating  thereto,
including without limitation, this Resolution, (b) any exercise or non-exercise of any right, power
or remedy under or in respect of any Series of Senior Notes or any instrument or agreement
relating  thereto,  or  (c)  any  waiver,  consent,  release,  indulgence,  extension,  renewal,
modification, delay or other action, inaction or omission, in respect of any Series of Senior Notes
or any instrument or agreement  relating thereto or any security therefor  or guaranty thereof,
whether or not any holder of any Series of Subordinate Notes shall have had notice or knowledge
of any of the foregoing.


34


662/852







4135-0131-2801.3


In the event that a Series of Additional Subordinate Notes is further subordinated in the
applicable Pricing Confirmation, at the time of issuance thereof, to all previously issued Series of
Subordinate Notes of the District, the provisions of this Section 17 relating to Series of Senior
Notes  shall  be  applicable  to  such  previously  issued  Series  of  Subordinate  Notes  and  the
provisions of this Section 17 relating to Series of Subordinate Notes shall be applicable to such
Series of Additional Subordinate Notes.


Section 18.          Continuing Disclosure Undertaking  .   The provisions of this  Section  18
shall be applicable only if the Certificate Structure is implemented; provided, however, in the
event the Bond Pool Structure is implemented, the District covenants to report to the Authority
and  the  Trustee  the  occurrences  of  the  events  described  in  paragraphs  (A)(1)j  and (A)(2)h,
below, within five business days of such occurrence.


(A) The  District  covenants,  for  the  sole  benefit  of  the  owners  of  each  Series  of
Certificates  which  evidence  and represent  the applicable  Series  of  Notes  (and,  to  the  extent
specified in this Section 18, the beneficial owners thereof), that the District shall:


(1) Provide  in  a  timely  manner  not  later  than  ten  business  days  after  the
occurrence  of  the  event,  through  the  Trustee  acting  as  dissemination  agent  (the
“Dissemination Agent”), to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, notice of any of
the following events with respect to an outstanding Series of Notes of the District:


a. Principal and interest payment delinquencies on such Series of Notes and 
the related Series of Certificates;


b. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 
difficulties;


c. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 
difficulties;


d. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;


e. Adverse tax opinions or issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determination of taxability or of a Notice of Proposed 
Issue (IRS Form 5701 TEB);


f. Tender offers;


g. Defeasances;


h. Rating changes; or


i. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated 
person.


For the purposes of the event identified in subsection i., the event is considered to
occur when any of the following occur:   the appointment  of a receiver,  fiscal


35


663/852







4135-0131-2801.3


agent or similar officer for the District in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or
governmental  authority  has  assumed  jurisdiction  over  substantially  all  of  the
assets  or business of the District,  or if  such jurisdiction has been assumed by
leaving the existing governmental body and officials or officers in possession but
subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the
entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation
by  a  court  or  governmental  authority  having  supervision  or  jurisdiction  over
substantially all of the assets or business of the District.


j. Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or
other similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the District, any
of which reflect financial difficulties.


(2) Provide  in  a  timely  manner  not  later  than  ten  business  days  after  the
occurrence of the event, through the Dissemination Agent, to the Municipal Securities
Rulemaking Board, notice of any of the following events with respect to an outstanding
Series of Notes of the District, if material:


a. Unless described in subsection (A)(1)e., other material notices or 
determinations by the Internal Revenue Service with respect to the tax 
status of such Series of Notes and the related Series of Certificates or other
material events affecting the tax status of such Series of Notes and the 
related Series of Certificates;


b. Modifications to rights of owners and beneficial owners of the Series of 
Certificates which evidence and represent such Series of  Notes;


c. Optional, contingent or unscheduled bond calls;


d. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of such Series
of Notes;


e. Non-payment related defaults;


f. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the
District or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the District, 
other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive 
agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive 
agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms; 


g. Appointment of a successor or additional Trustee or the change of name of
a Trustee; or


h. Incurrence of a financial obligation of the District, or agreement to 
covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar 
terms of a financial obligation of the District, any of which affect security 
holders. 


36


664/852







4135-0131-2801.3


For the purposes of the events listed as (1)j. and (2)h., the term “financial 
obligation” means a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into in 
connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or 
planned debt obligation; or (iii) guarantee of (i) or (ii).  The term financial 
obligation shall not include municipal securities as to which a final official 
statement has been provided to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
consistent with the Rule.


Whenever  the  District  obtains  knowledge of  the occurrence  of  an event  described in
subsection (A)(2) of this Section, the District shall determine if such event would be material
under applicable federal securities laws. The Authority and the Dissemination Agent shall have
no responsibility  for  such determination  and  shall  be  entitled  to  conclusively  rely  upon the
District’s determination.


If the District learns of the occurrence of an event described in subsection (A)(1) of this
Section,  or determines that the occurrence of an event described in subsection (A)(2) of this
Section would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the District shall within ten
business days of occurrence, through the Dissemination Agent, file a notice of such occurrence
with  the  Municipal  Securities  Rulemaking  Board.  The  District  shall  promptly  provide  the
Authority  and  the  Dissemination  Agent  with  a  notice  of  such  occurrence  which  the
Dissemination Agent agrees to file with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.


All documents provided to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board shall be provided
in an electronic format, as prescribed by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, and shall
be  accompanied  by  identifying  information,  as  prescribed  by  the  Municipal  Securities
Rulemaking Board.


(B) In the  event  of  a  failure  of  the  District  to  comply  with any provision  of  this
Section, any owner or beneficial owner of the related Series of Certificates may take such actions
as may be necessary and appropriate,  including seeking mandate or specific  performance by
court order, to cause the District to comply with its obligations under this Section. A default
under this Section shall not be deemed an Event of Default under Section 14 hereof, and the sole
remedy under this Section in the event of any failure of the District to comply with this Section
shall be an action to compel performance.


(C) For the purposes  of this  Section,  a  “beneficial  owner” shall  mean any person
which has the power, directly or indirectly, to make investment decisions concerning ownership
of any Certificates of the Series which evidences and represents such Series of Notes (including
persons  holding  Certificates  through nominees,  depositories  or  other  intermediaries  and  any
Credit Provider as a subrogee).


(D) The  District’s  obligations  under  this  Section  shall  terminate  upon  the  legal
defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of its Note. If such termination occurs prior to
the final  maturity  of the related  Series  of  Certificates,  the District  shall  give notice of  such
termination in the same manner as for a listed event under subsection (A)(1) of this Section.


37


665/852







4135-0131-2801.3


(E) The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the content
of any notice or report prepared by the District pursuant to this Section. In no event shall the
Dissemination Agent be responsible for preparing any notice or report or for filing any notice or
report  which  it  has  not  received in  a  timely  manner  and in  a  format  suitable  for  reporting.
Nothing in this Section shall be deemed to prevent the District from disseminating any other
information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Section or any other means of
communication, or including any other notice of occurrence of a listed event under subsection
(A)(1) or (A)(2) of this Section (each, a “Listed Event”), in addition to that which is required by
this Section. If the District chooses to include any information in any notice of occurrence of a
Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Section, the District shall
have no obligation under this Section to update such information or include it  in any future
notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.


(F) Notwithstanding  any  other  provision  of  this  Resolution,  the  District  with  the
consent of the Dissemination Agent and notice to the Authority may amend this Section, and any
provision of this Section may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied:


(1) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of subsection (A) of
this  Section,  it  may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances  that
arises from a change in legal requirements,  change in law, or change in the identity,
nature or status of an obligated person with respect to the applicable Series of Notes and
the related Series of Certificates, or the type of business conducted;


(2) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would in
the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements
of the Rule at the time of the original issuance of the applicable Series of Notes and the
related Series of Certificates, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations
of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and


(3) The  amendment  or  waiver  does  not,  in  the  opinion  of  nationally
recognized  bond  counsel,  materially  impair  the  interests  of  the  owners  or  beneficial
owners  of  the  related  Certificates.  In  the  event  of  any  amendment  or  waiver  of  a
provision of this Section, notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for
an event listed under subsection (A)(1) of this Section, and shall include, as applicable, a
narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver; provided, however, the
District shall be responsible for preparing such narrative explanation.


(G) The Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth
in this Section. The Dissemination Agent shall not be liable for the exercise of any of its rights
hereunder or for the performance of any of its obligations hereunder or for anything whatsoever
hereunder,  except  only  for  its  own  willful  misconduct  or  gross  negligence.  Absent  gross
negligence or willful misconduct, the Dissemination Agent shall not be liable for an error of
judgment. No provision hereof shall require the Dissemination Agent to expend or risk its own
funds or otherwise incur any financial or other liability or risk in the performance of any of its
obligations hereunder, or in the exercise of any of its rights hereunder, if such funds or adequate
indemnity against such risk or liability is not reasonably assured to it. The District hereby agrees
to compensate the Dissemination Agent for its reasonable fees in connection with its services


38


666/852







4135-0131-2801.3


hereunder, but only from the District’s share of the costs of issuance deposited in the Costs of
Issuance Fund held and invested by the Trustee under the Trust Agreement.


(H) This section shall  inure solely to the benefit of the District,  the Dissemination
Agent, the Underwriter, any Credit Provider and owners and beneficial owners from time to time
of the Certificates, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.


Section 19.          Approval of Actions  .  The aforementioned officers of the County or the
District, as applicable, are hereby authorized and directed to execute each Series of Notes and to
cause the Trustee to authenticate and accept delivery of each Series of Notes pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the applicable Certificate Purchase Agreement and Trust Agreement or
the applicable Note Purchase Agreement and the Indenture, as applicable.  All actions heretofore
taken by the officers and agents of the County, the District or this Board with respect to the sale
and issuance of the Notes and participation in the Program are hereby approved, confirmed and
ratified and the officers and agents of the County and the officers of the District  are hereby
authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the District,  to do any and all
things and take any and all actions and execute any and all certificates, requisitions, agreements,
notices, consents, and other documents, including tax certificates, letters of representations to the
securities  depository,  investment  contracts  (or  side  letters  or  agreements  thereto),  other  or
additional municipal insurance policies or credit enhancements or credit agreements (including
mutual insurance agreements) or insurance commitment letters, if any, and closing certificates,
which they, or any of them, may deem necessary or advisable in order to consummate the lawful
issuance  and  delivery  of  each  Series  of  Notes,  execution  or  issuance  and  delivery  of  the
corresponding Series of Certificates or Series of Pool Bonds, as applicable, and investment of the
proceeds thereof, in accordance with, and related transactions contemplated by, this Resolution.
The officers of the District referred to above in Section 4 hereof, and the officers of the County
referred  to  above  in  Section  9  hereof,  are  hereby  designated  as  “Authorized  District
Representatives” under the Trust Agreement or the Indenture, as applicable.


In  the  event  that  any  Series  of  Notes  or  a  portion  thereof  is  secured  by  a  Credit
Instrument, the Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to provide the applicable
Credit Provider with any and all information relating to the District as such Credit Provider may
reasonably request.


Section 20.          Proceedings Constitute Contract  .  The provisions of each Series of Notes
and of this Resolution shall constitute a contract between the District and the registered owner of
such Series of Notes, the registered owners of the Series of Certificates or Bonds to which such
Series of Notes is assigned, and the corresponding Credit Provider(s), if any, and such provisions
shall be enforceable by mandamus or any other appropriate suit, action or proceeding at law or in
equity in any court of competent jurisdiction, and shall be irrepealable.


Section 21.          Limited  Liability  .   Notwithstanding  anything  to  the  contrary  contained
herein or in any Series of Notes or in any other document mentioned herein or related to any
Series of Notes or to any Series of Certificates or Series of Pool Bonds to which such Series of
Notes may be assigned, the District shall not have any liability hereunder or by reason hereof or
in  connection  with  the  transactions  contemplated  hereby  except  to  the  extent  payable  from


39


667/852







4135-0131-2801.3


moneys  available  therefor  as  set  forth  in  Section 8 hereof,  and the  County  is  not  liable  for
payment of any Note or any other obligation of the District hereunder.


Section 22.          Severability  .  In the event any provision of this Resolution shall be held
invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate
or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.


Section 23.          Submittal of Resolution to County  .  The Secretary or Clerk of the Board of
the District is hereby directed to submit one certified copy each of this Resolution to the Clerk of
the  Board  of  Supervisors  of  the  County,  to  the  Treasurer  of  the County and to  the  County
Superintendent of Schools.


40


668/852







4135-0131-2801.3


EXHIBIT A
FORM OF NOTE


R-1 $_________


______________ DISTRICT/___________ BOARD OF EDUCATION


COUNTY OF ____________, CALIFORNIA


2020-2021 [SUBORDINATE]* TAX AND REVENUE ANTICIPATION NOTE, SERIES __


Date of
Original Issue


REGISTERED OWNER: U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, AS TRUSTEE


SERIES PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:  ________________ DOLLARS


Interest Rate Maturity Date
___% _______, 20__


First
Repayment Period


Second
Repayment Period


Third
Repayment Period


Fourth
Repayment Period


Fifth 
Repayment Period


__% of the total of 
[principal] [interest] 
[principal and 
interest] due at 
maturity


__% of the total of  
[principal] [interest]
[principal and 
interest] due at 
maturity


__% of the total of 
[principal] [interest]
[principal and 
interest] due at 
maturity


__% of the total of 
[principal] [interest]
[principal and 
interest] due at 
maturity


100% of the total of 
principal and interest
due at maturity**


FOR  VALUE  RECEIVED,  the  District/Board  of  Education  designated  above  (the
“District”), located in the County designated above (the “County”), acknowledges itself indebted
to and promises to pay on the maturity date specified above to the registered owner identified
above, or registered assigns, the principal amount specified above, together with interest thereon
from the date hereof until the principal amount shall have been paid, payable [on _________ 1,
20__ and] on the maturity date specified above in lawful money of the United States of America,
at the rate of interest specified above (the “Note Rate”).  Principal of and interest on this Note are
payable in such coin or currency of the United States as at the time of payment is legal tender for
payment of private and public debts, such principal and interest to be paid upon surrender hereof
at  the  principal  corporate  trust  office  of  U.S.  Bank  National  Association  in  Los  Angeles,
California, or its successor in trust (the “Trustee”).  Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a
360-day year, consisting of twelve 30-day months, in like lawful money from the date hereof
until the maturity date specified above and, if funds are not provided for payment at the maturity,
thereafter on the basis of a 360-day year for actual days elapsed until payment in full of said
principal  sum.  Both the principal  of and interest  on this  Note shall  be payable only to  the
registered  owner  hereof  upon  surrender  of  this  Note  as  the  same  shall  fall  due;  provided,
however,  no interest  shall  be payable  for any period after  maturity  during which the holder
hereof fails to properly present this Note for payment.  If the District fails to pay interest on this
Note on any interest  payment date or to pay the principal  of or interest  on this Note on the


* TAX AND REVENUE ANTICIPATION NOTE, SERIES __* To bear this designation if this Note is a Series of Subordinate Notes.
**** Length and number of Repayment Periods and percentages and amount of principal of Note shall be determined
in Pricing Confirmation (as defined in the Resolution).


A-1


669/852







4135-0131-2801.3


maturity date or the [Credit Provider(s)] (as defined in the Resolution hereinafter described), if
any,  is  not  reimbursed  in  full  for  the  amount  drawn  on  or  paid  pursuant  to  the  [Credit
Instrument(s)]  (as  defined in  the Resolution)  to  pay all  or  a  portion of the principal  of  and
interest on this Note on the date of such payment, this Note shall become a Defaulted Note (as
defined and with the consequences set forth in the Resolution).


[It  is  hereby certified,  recited  and declared  that  this  Note  (the  “Note”)  represents  an
authorized  issue  of  the  Note  in  the  aggregate  principal  amount  authorized,  executed  and
delivered pursuant to and by authority of a resolution of the governing board of the District duly
passed and adopted heretofore, under and by authority of Article 7.6 (commencing with Section
53850)  of  Chapter  4,  Part  1,  Division  2,  Title  5  of  the  California  Government  Code  (the
“Resolution”),  to  all  of  the  provisions  and limitations  of  which  the  owner  of  this  Note,  by
acceptance hereof,  assents and agrees.   Pursuant to and as more particularly provided in the
Resolution, additional notes may be issued by the District secured by a lien on a parity with the
lien securing this Note.]*


[It  is  hereby certified,  recited  and declared  that  this  Note  (the  “Note”)  represents  an
authorized  issue  of  the  Note  in  the  aggregate  principal  amount  authorized,  executed  and
delivered  pursuant  to  and by authority  of certain  resolutions  of the governing boards of the
District and the County duly passed and adopted heretofore, under and by authority of Article 7.6
(commencing with Section 53850) of Chapter 4, Part 1, Division 2, Title 5 of the California
Government Code (collectively,  the “Resolution”),  to all  of the provisions and limitations of
which the owner of this Note, by acceptance hereof, assents and agrees.  Pursuant to and as more
particularly provided in the Resolution, additional notes may be issued by the District secured by
a lien on a parity with the lien securing this Note.]**


The term “Unrestricted Revenues” means the taxes, income, revenue, cash receipts and
other moneys provided for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 which will be received by or will accrue to the
District  during such fiscal year for the general fund [and capital  fund and/or special  revenue
fund] of the District and which are lawfully available for the payment of current expenses and
other obligations of the District.  As security for the payment of the principal of and interest on
the Note, subject to the payment priority provisions contained in the Resolution, the District has
pledged the first Unrestricted Revenues of the District received in the Repayment Periods set
forth on the face hereof in an amount equal to the corresponding percentages of principal of, and
[in the final Repayment Period,] interest due on, the Note at maturity set forth on the face hereof
(such pledged amounts being hereinafter called the “Pledged Revenues”). As provided in Section
53856 of the California Government Code, subject to the payment priority provisions contained
in the Resolution, the Note and the interest thereon shall be a first lien and charge against, and
shall be payable from the first moneys received by the District from, the Pledged Revenues. As
provided in Section 53857 of the California Government Code, notwithstanding the provisions of
Section 53856 of the California Government Code and the foregoing, the Note shall be a general
obligation  of  the  District  and,  in  the  event  that  on  [the  tenth  business  day  of  each  such
Repayment Period], the District has not received sufficient Unrestricted Revenues to permit the
deposit  into  the  payment  account  established  for  the  Note  of  the  full  amount  of  Pledged
Revenues to be deposited therein from said Unrestricted Revenues in such Repayment Period as


** This paragraph is applicable only if the Note is issued by the District.
*** This paragraph is applicable only if the Note is issued by the County.


A-2


670/852







4135-0131-2801.3


provided in the Resolution, then the amount of any deficiency shall be satisfied and made up
from any other moneys of the District lawfully available for the payment of the principal of the
Note and the interest  thereon, as and when such other moneys are received or are otherwise
legally available, as set forth in the Resolution and subject to the payment priority provisions
contained therein. The full faith and credit of the District is not pledged to the payment of the
principal of or interest on this Note.  The County is not liable for payment of this Note.


This Note is transferable,  as provided by the Resolution,  only upon the books of the
District kept at the office of the Trustee, by the registered owner hereof in person or by its duly
authorized attorney, upon surrender of this Note for transfer at the office of the Trustee, duly
endorsed or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Trustee
duly executed by the registered owner hereof or its duly authorized attorney, and upon payment
of any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer, a
fully registered Note will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees.


The [County,  the]* District  and the Trustee may deem and treat  the registered owner
hereof as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of
principal hereof and interest due hereon and for all other purposes, and [the County,]* the District
and the Trustee shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.


This Note shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose until the Certificate of
Authentication and Registration hereon shall have been signed by the Trustee.


It is hereby certified that all of the conditions, things and acts required to exist, to have
happened and to have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Note do exist, have
happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by the Constitution
and statutes of the State of California and that the amount of this Note, together with all other
indebtedness of the District, does not exceed any limit prescribed by the Constitution or statutes
of the State of California.


[IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of Supervisors of the County has caused this Note
to be executed by the manual or facsimile signature of a duly authorized officer of the County
and countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of its duly authorized officer and caused
its official seal to be affixed hereto either manually or by facsimile impression hereon as of the
date of authentication set forth below.]*


** Applicable only if the Note is issued by the County.


A-3


671/852







RESOLUTION CERTIFICATE


I, Kris Munro, Secretary of the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City Schools District,
hereby certify as follows:


The foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution duly adopted at a regular
meeting  of the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City Schools District  duly and regularly
conducted on the               day of                                           , 2020 in accordance with law, including in accordance
with Executive Order N-29-20, signed by the Governor of the State of California on March 17,
2020, and entered in the minutes thereof, of which meeting all of the members of the Governing
Board had due notice and at which a quorum thereof was acknowledged, and that at said meeting
the resolution was adopted by the following vote:


AYES:


NOES:


ABSENT:


ABSTAIN:


An agenda of said meeting  was posted at  least  72 hours  before said meeting  at  133
Mission Street, Suite 100, Santa Cruz, California, a location freely accessible to members of the
public, and on the website, and a brief general description of said resolution appeared on said
agenda.


I have carefully compared the same with the original minutes of said meeting on file and
of record in the administrative office; the foregoing resolution is a full, true and correct copy of
the original resolution adopted at said meeting and entered in said minutes; and said resolution
has not been amended, modified or rescinded since the date of its adoption, and the same is now
in  full  force  and  effect.   The  Maximum  Amount  of  Borrowing  specified  in  the  foregoing
resolution is $5,000,000.


Dated:                                                                         , 20__


________________________________________
Kris Munro
Secretary of the Governing Board
of the Santa Cruz City Schools District


672/852







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Bond Project Notices of Completion 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept three Bond project notices of completion. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This work has been inspected and complies with the plans and specifications of the vendor 
contracts. The District has determined that this project is complete. The Board is asked to 
accept completion of these projects by approving the attached Notices of Completion, which 
will be duly filed with the County. Normally the District would file the Notices of Completion 
with the County of Santa Cruz. Due to the pandemic, the County offices are closed and until the 
notices can be filed it is being brought before the board. In order to comply with Public 
Contract Code, these Notices of Completion must be made official so that the District can pay 
the contractor by required timelines and not incur financial penalties.  
 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


CONTRACTOR PROJECT Completion Date 


CRW Industries, Inc. Natural Bridges Elementary School ADA Walkway 10/15/2020 


Abacherli Fence Co. Santa Cruz High School Fencing Replacement 10/15/2020 


Hankin Specialty Elevators 
Inc. 


Westlake Elementary School New Wheelchair Lift 09/01/2020 


673/852







       Santa Cruz City Schools 


           Facility Services 
   536 Palm Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


                   (831) 429-3904 
 


NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 


Date:                  November 4, 2020  


 


To:  CRW Industries, Inc.   


 


Project:  Natural Bridges Elementary School ADA Walkway, 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


 


THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT HEREBY GIVES NOTICE THAT:  


 


 


The address of this School District is 133 Mission Street, Suite 100, Santa Cruz, California 95060. 


 


 


On June 19, 2020, this District contracted with:  CRW Industries, Inc. 5346 Scotts Valley Drive, Ste. E 


Scotts Valley, CA 95066 as Contractor; and with Western Surety Company as Surety for said Contractor, 


for work of ADA Walkway performed on District grounds at: Natural Bridges Elementary School, 255 


Swift Street, Santa Cruz CA 95060. 


 


It has been certified that this work has been inspected and complies with the plans and specifications, and 


that the Contractor competed the work on  October 15, 2020   .  


The work of improvement described above is accepted as completed, and the Assistant Superintendent 


for Business Services has filed for recording this Notice as a Notice of Completion in connection with 


that contract.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


_________________________________________ 


Jim Monreal 


Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
 


674/852







       Santa Cruz City Schools 


           Facility Services 
   536 Palm Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


                   (831) 429-3904 
 


NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 


Date:                  November 4, 2020  


 


To:  Abacherli Fence Co. 


 


Project:  Santa Cruz High School Fence Replacement, 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


 


THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT HEREBY GIVES NOTICE THAT:  


 


 


The address of this School District is 133 Mission Street, Suite 100, Santa Cruz, California 95060. 


 


 


On June 18, 2020, this District contracted with: Abacherli Fence Co. 3125 Porter Street, Soquel, CA 


95073 as Contractor; and with Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company as Surety for said Contractor, for 


work of Fence Replacement performed on District grounds at: Santa Cruz High School 415 Walnut Ave, 


Santa Cruz Ca 95060. 


 


It has been certified that this work has been inspected and complies with the plans and specifications, and 


that the Contractor competed the work on   October 15th, 2020   .  


The work of improvement described above is accepted as completed, and the Assistant Superintendent 


for Business Services has filed for recording this Notice as a Notice of Completion in connection with 


that contract.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


_________________________________________ 


Jim Monreal 


Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
 


675/852







       Santa Cruz City Schools 


           Facility Services 
   536 Palm Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


                   (831) 429-3904 
 


NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 


Date:                  November 4, 2020  


 


To:  Hankin Specialty Elevators, Inc. 


 


Project:  Westlake Elementary School Replacement Wheelchair Lift – Lower Campus, 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


 


THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT HEREBY GIVES NOTICE THAT:  


 


 


The address of this School District is 133 Mission Street, Suite 100, Santa Cruz, California 95060. 


 


 


On March 23, 2020, this District contracted with: Hankin Specialty Elevators, Inc. 3237 Fitzgerald Road, 


Rancho Cordova, CA 95742 as Contractor; and with Western Surety Company as Surety for said 


Contractor, for work of Replacement Wheelchair Lift – Lower Campus performed on District grounds at: 


Westlake Elementary School 1000 High Street, Santa Cruz CA 95060. 


 


It has been certified that this work has been inspected and complies with the plans and specifications, and 


that the Contractor competed the work on    September 1, 2020     .  


The work of improvement described above is accepted as completed, and the Assistant Superintendent 


for Business Services has filed for recording this Notice as a Notice of Completion in connection with 


that contract.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


_________________________________________ 


Jim Monreal 


Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
 


676/852







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Certificated Personnel Actions 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the certificated personnel actions as submitted. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 


California Education Code and the negotiated contract. 


  


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #1:  All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 


career opportunities. 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


 
 
 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


677/852







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


2020-2021 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS: 


 


Certificated: 


 


Amber Al-Khatib Sears, Read 180/System 44 Professional Development, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 


- 5/27/21, not to exceed 7 hours. 


 


Adam Anapolsky, After School Tutoring, Santa Cruz High, 9/16/20 - 5/25/21, not to exceed 150 hours. 


 


Gerri Ashton, Restorative Justice Professional Development, Branciforte Small Schools, 10/21/20 - 


6/15/21, not to exceed 42 hours. 


 


Dawn Baxter, PBIS Committee, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 17 hours. 


 


Andrew Castro, Small Group Tutoring, Branciforte Middle, 10/9/20 - 1/5/21, not to exceed 205 hours. 


 


Anne Cleveland, Music Enrichment Provider, Westlake Elementary,  10/12/20 - 4/30/20, not to 


exceed 120 hours. 


 


Dana Cooper, PBIS Committee, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 17 hours. 


 


Dana Cooper, Read 180/System 44 Professional Development, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, 


not to exceed 7 hours. 


 


Dana Cooper, iReady Math Professional Development, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to 


exceed 4 hours. 


 


Sarah Corbin, PBIS Committee, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 17 hours. 


 


Luis Curiel, ELD Taskforce, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Luis Curiel, iReady Math Professional Development, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to 


exceed 4 hours. 


 


Casey Denning, PBIS Committee, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 17 hours. 


 


Lars Gilbert, PBIS Committee, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 17 hours. 


 


678/852







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


Rhea Hadzis, Read 180/System 44 Professional Development, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, 


not to exceed 7 hours. 


 


Zoe Iyer, iReady Math Professional Development, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to 


exceed 4 hours. 


 


Nicole Lawrence, Read 180/System 44 Professional Development, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 


5/27/21, not to exceed 7 hours. 


 


Jessica Murray, ELD Taskforce, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Gwendolyn Rendon, ELD Taskforce, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Catherine Rodecker, Trauma Informed Instruction Professional Development, Mission Hill Middle,  


8/16/20 - 6/30/21, not to exceed 60 hours. 


 


Nadine Said, Read 180/System 44 Professional Development, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, 


not to exceed 7 hours. 


 


Jon Sapp, iReady Math Professional Development, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to 


exceed 4 hours. 


 


Elizabeth Shafer, PBIS Committee, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 17 hours. 


 


Elizabeth Shafer, iReady Math Professional Development, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not 


to exceed 4 hours. 


 


Kyle Suess, PBIS Committee, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 17 hours. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


679/852







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


 


AGENDA ITEM:         Classified Personnel Actions 


  
MEETING DATE:    November 4, 2020    


 


FROM:                    Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 


  
THROUGH:             Kris Munro, Superintendent   


  


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 
           
BACKGROUND: 
The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 
SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 
  
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
  
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social-emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


680/852







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS  


 


Reviewed by Classified Personnel Director: Keneé Houser 10/26/20 


 


•Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular):   


Tovar Ramirez, Andrea, Paraeducator- MH, 2.4hrs/9mos, effective 10/8/20 


Transfer:  


Silva, Panuncio, Paraeducator-Special Education, 5hrs/9mos, transfer from SHS to SC, effective 


8/12/20 


Retirement: 


Anderson, Katherine , Paraeducator - Special Education - BMS,  5hrs/9mos, last day of work 


11/30/20 


Mullowney, Thomas, Paraeducator - Special Education, HH, 5hrs/9mos, last day of work 


12/29/20 


Separation from Service: None 


 


•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 


New Temporary Employees:  


Bermudez, Victor, Paraeducator - Special Education, Various, effective 9/29/20 


Parks, Elianne, Office Assistant - Various, effective, 10/14/20 


Existing Temporary Employees/EWR:  


Glasgow, Amy, ELPAC Examiner - CIA, not to exceed 60 hrs, 9/16 - 12/15/20 


Existing Regular Employees/EWR: 


Aceves Gagne, Marina, Paraeducator-After School-SQ, not to exceed 100 hrs, 9/16/20 - 5/29/21 


Aguilar, Mayra, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention-DL, not to exceed 12 hrs, 10/6-10/20/20 


Carranza, Helena, Paraeducator-DL, not to exceed 90 hrs, 9/29 - 12/31/20 


Castillo Elizondo, Elva, Interpreter/Translator - DO, not to exceed 5 hrs, 9/15 - 12/15/20 


Gonzales, Elisa, ELPAC Examiner - CIA, not to exceed 100 hrs, 9/16 - 12/15/20 


Lawrence, Gloriana, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention-DL, not to exceed 12 hrs, 10/6-


10/20/20 


Lewis, Heather, Paraeducator-After School-SS, not to exceed 82 hrs, 10/26/20 - 5/26/21 


681/852







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


Mansnerus, Lidia, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention-DL, not to exceed 12 hrs, 10/6-


10/20/20 


Marizette, Gail, Office Assistant-BV, not to exceed 96 hrs, 10/8/20 - 3/15/21 


Mojica Garcia, Cesar, Head Custodian-MO, not to exceed 6 hrs, 8/17 - 9/15/20 


Orellana, Jocelyn, Paraeducator-After School - GA, not to exceed 270 hrs, 10/16/20 - 12/31/20 


Parks, Elianne, Office Assistant - BMS, not to exceed 96 hrs, 10/19 - 11/3/20 


Robles-Ruiz, Rodrigo, Day Custodian-MO, not to exceed 6 hrs, 8/17 - 9/15/20 


Scholten, Ulrich, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 50 hrs, 10/16/20 - 1/15/21 


Serna Castaneda, Jessica, ELPAC Examiner - CIA, not to exceed 100 hrs, 9/16 - 12/15/20 


Silva-Robles, Fe, Interpreter/Translator - BMS, not to exceed 37 hrs, 9/7/20 - 5/27/21 


Tolamatl, Hector, Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 6 hrs, 8/17 - 9/15/20 


Tuson, Kim, SCIL Committee - CUR, stipend not to exceed $1650, 10/16/20 - 5/15/21  


Walls, April, Paraeducator-After School - SHS, not to exceed 165 hrs, 10/5/20 - 5/27/21 


Weizman, Naomi, Paraeducator-After School - GA, not to exceed 270 hrs, 10/16/20 - 5/14/21 


 


•Eligibility Lists Established• 


Health Office Assistant  


Office Assistant  


Paraeducator  


Paraeducator - Special Education  


 


 


 


 


682/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Gifts 
 
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the following gifts donated to the Santa Cruz City School District. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Board Policy/Regulation 3290, the Governing Board may accept on behalf of and 
for the District, any bequest, gift of money or gift of property, valued at $100 or more, that is 
presented to the District.  A letter of appreciation will be sent to the donors.  
 
Student Services 
Youth Resource Bank of Santa Cruz County donated $300 in Ross gift cards to support families.  
 
Facilities Services 
The Home Depot donated $1,620.86 in products to support the safe implementation of small 
cohorts on school sites. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


683/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.4.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Consultant Service Agreement: Governance Meeting Facilitation 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve consultant service agreement for facilitation for Governance meetings in the 2020-21 
school year. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Leadership Associates Coach and former Superintendent Carolyn Post will provide support to 
the Santa Cruz City School Governance team through meeting facilitation and planning. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Not to exceed $2,500, LCFF Base (Unrestricted). 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


684/852







685/852







686/852







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Central Coast Construction Company Contract: Santa Cruz High 
School Dust Collector Installation 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Central Coast Construction Company contract for Santa Cruz High School dust collector 
installation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of the installation of a new dust collector at Santa Cruz High School. This 
project was discussed and approved by the site bond committee. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$36,075.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.11% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


687/852







 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 


 
This Agreement effective December 1st, by and between Santa Cruz City Schools, Santa Cruz County, 
California, hereinafter called the "Owner" and Cen-Con Inc., hereinafter called the "Contractor." 
 
WITNESSETH: That the Contractor and the Owner for the consideration hereinafter named agree as 
follows: 
 
ARTICLE I.  SCOPE OF WORK.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials, 
including tools, implements, and appliances required, and to perform all the work in a good and 
workmanlike manner, free from any and all liens and claims from mechanics, material suppliers, 
subcontractors, artisans, machinists, teamsters, freight carriers, and laborers required for: 
 
Santa Cruz High School – Dust Collector  
 
The extent of work includes but is not limited to:  


 Remove existing 12” dia. main exhaust duct connecting existing interior 10” dia. ducts to exterior 
exhaust. Enlarged duct penetration through exterior wall. 


 Replace dry rot damaged diagonal sheathing as needed surrounding duct penetration. Replace in 
kind w/ kiln dried lumber. 


 Remove (E) switch disconnect located on exterior wall. 
 Provide new 14” dia. roof-mounted main exhaust ductwork connecting exterior dust collection 


unit to existing interior dust collection network. Connect exiting 10” dia. ducts. Waterproof at 
exterior wall penetration. 


 Install Oneida Air System, 20 hp direct drive dust collector (unit provided by SCCS): 
o Anchor dust collector unit to existing concrete pad. 
o Connect duct collector to existing electrical panel: 


 Provide conduits, j-boxes, wiring, etc. to connect power to unit. 
o Connect 14” dia. ductwork. 
o Connect on/off switch to existing switch location in woodshop classroom. 


 Fabricate and install protective shroud over Dust Collector Motor  
o 22 ga. Galvanized iron cap and iron angle legs. No paint.  


All in strict compliance with the coordination therefore provided by: 
 


Bartos Architecture 
1730 South Amphlett Blvd, Suite 225 


San Mateo, CA 94402 
 
and other contract documents relating thereto. 
 
Article II, Contract Documents 
The Contractor and the Owner agree that all of the documents listed in Article 1.1.1 of the General 
Conditions form the Contract Documents which form the Contract. 
 
Article III, Time to Complete and Liquidated Damages 
Time is of the essence in this contract, and the time of completion for this Project shall be by  
January 15th, 2021. Failure to complete the Project within the time and in the manner provided for by the 
Contract Documents shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages of $50.00 for each calendar day 
by which completion of the Project is delayed beyond the completion date. The actual occurrence of 


688/852







damages and the actual amount of the damages which the Owner would suffer if the Project were not 
completed within the specified times set forth are dependent upon many circumstances and conditions 
which could prevail in various combinations and, from the nature of the case, it is impracticable and 
extremely difficult to fix the actual damages.  Damages which the Owner would suffer in the event of 
delay include, but are not limited to, loss of the use of the Project, disruption of activities, costs of 
administration, supervision and the loss suffered by the public.   
Accordingly, the parties agree that the amount set forth above shall be presumed to be the amount of 
damages which the Owner shall directly incur upon failure of the Contractor to complete the Project 
within the time specified, during or as a result of each calendar day by which completion of the Project is 
delayed beyond the completion date.  If the Owner accepts any work or makes any payment under this 
Agreement after a default by reason of delays, the payment or payments shall in no respect constitute a 
waiver or modification of any Agreement provisions regarding time of completion and liquidated 
damages. 
 
If the Contractor becomes liable under this section, the Owner, in addition to all other remedies provided 
by law, shall have the right to withhold any and all retained percentages of payments and/or progress 
payments, and to collect the interest thereon, which would otherwise be or become due the Contractor 
until the liability of the Contractor under this section has been finally determined.  If the retained 
percentages and withheld progress payments appear insufficient to discharge all liabilities of the 
Contractor incurred under this Article, the Contractor and its sureties shall continue to remain liable to 
the Owner for such liabilities until all such liabilities are satisfied in full. 
 
Article IV, Payments 
The Owner agrees to pay the Contractor in current funds for the performance of the Contract Thirty Six 
Thousand and seventy five dollars ($36,075.00) and to make payments on account thereof as provided in 
the General Conditions. 
 
Article V, Changes 
Changes in this Agreement or in the Work to be done under this Agreement shall be made as provided in 
the General Conditions. 
 
Article VI, Termination 
The Agreement may be terminated as provided in the General Conditions. 
 
Article VII, Prevailing Wages 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1770 et seq. of the Labor Code of the State of California, which are 
hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof, the Director of Industrial Relations has 
determined the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and 
overtime work in the locality in which the work is to be performed, for each craft, classification or type of 
worker needed to execute this Contract.  Per diem wages shall be deemed to include employer payments 
for health and welfare, pension, vacation, apprenticeship or other training programs, and similar 
purposes.  Copies of the rates are on file at the Owner's principal office and are available upon request.  
The rate of prevailing wage for any craft, classification or type of workmanship to be employed on this 
Project is the rate established by the applicable collective bargaining agreement which rate so provided is 
hereby adopted by reference and shall be effective for the life of this Agreement or until the Director of 
the Department of Industrial Relations determines that another rate be adopted.  It shall be mandatory 
upon the Contractor and on any subcontractor to pay not less than the said specified rates to all workers 
employed in the execution of this Agreement. 
 
The Contractor and any subcontractor under the Contractor as a penalty to the Owner shall forfeit not 
more than Fifty Dollars ($50.00) for each calendar day or portion thereof for each worker paid less than 
the stipulated prevailing rates for such work or craft in which such worker is employed.  The difference 
between such stipulated prevailing wage rates and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar day 


689/852







or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than the stipulated prevailing wage rate shall be 
paid to each worker by the Contractor or Subcontractor. 
 
The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall keep or cause to be kept an accurate record for work on this 
Project showing the names, addresses, social security numbers, work classification, straight time and 
overtime hours worked and occupations of all laborers, workers and mechanics employed by them in 
connection with the performance of this Contract or any subcontract thereunder, and showing also the 
actual per diem wage paid to each of such workers, which records shall be open at all reasonable hours to 
inspection by the Owner, its officers and agents and to the representatives of the Division of Labor Law 
Enforcement of the State Department of Industrial Relations.  Contractor and Subcontractor shall comply 
with Labor Code section 1776. 
 
 
A pre-job conference shall be held with the Contractor and Subcontractors to discuss federal and state 
labor law requirements applicable to the Project.  The Contractor and Subcontractors shall maintain, and 
furnish with each Application for Payment to Owner, certified copies of all weekly payrolls for the period 
covered by the Application for Payment containing a statement of compliance signed under penalty of 
perjury. Owner shall review, and, if appropriate, audit payroll records to verify compliance with Chapter 1, 
Part 7 of Division 2 of the California Labor Code.  Owner shall withhold contract payments when payroll 
records are delinquent or inadequate.  Owner shall withhold contract payments equal to the amount of 
underpayment and applicable penalties when, after investigation, it is established that underpayment has 
occurred. 
 
Article VIII, Working Hours 
In accordance with the provisions of Sections 1810 to 1815, inclusive, of the Labor Code of the State of 
California, which are hereby incorporated and made a part hereof, the time of service of any worker 
employed by the Contractor or a Subcontractor doing or contracting to do any part of the Work 
contemplated by this Agreement is limited and restricted to eight hours during any one calendar day and 
forty hours during any one calendar week, provided, that work may be performed by such employee in 
excess of said eight hours per day or forty hours per week provided that compensation for all hours 
worked in excess of eight hours per day, and forty hours per week, is paid at a rate not less than one and 
one-half (1½) times the basic rate of pay.  The Contractor and every Subcontractor shall keep an accurate 
record showing the name of and the actual hours worked each calendar day and each calendar week by 
each worker employed by them in connection with the Work.  The records shall be kept open at all 
reasonable hours to inspection by representatives of the Owner and the Division of Labor Law 
Enforcement.  The Contractor shall as a penalty to the Owner forfeit Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) for each 
worker employed in the execution of this Agreement by the Contractor or by any subcontractor for each 
calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to work more than eight hours in any one 
calendar day, and forty hours in any one calendar week, except as herein provided. 
 
Article IX, Apprentices 
The Contractor agrees to comply with Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, Sections 1777.5 and 1777.6 of the 
California Labor Code, which are hereby incorporated and made a part hereof.  These sections require 
that contractors and subcontractors employ apprentices in apprenticeable occupations in a ratio of not 
less than one hour of apprentice's work for each five hours of work performed by a journeyman (unless 
an exemption is granted in accordance with Section 1777.5) and that contractors and subcontractors shall 
not discriminate among otherwise qualified employees as indentured apprentices on any public works 
solely on the ground of sex, race, religious creed, national origin, ancestry or color.  Only apprentices as 
defined in Labor Code Section 3077, who are in training under apprenticeship standards and who have 
signed written apprentice agreements, will be employed on public works in apprenticeable occupations.  
The responsibility for compliance with these provisions and Labor Code section 1777.5 is fixed with the 
Contractor for all apprenticeable occupations. 
 


690/852







Article X, Indemnification and Insurance 
The Contractor will defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its governing board, officers, agents, 
trustees, and employees as provided in the Contract Documents. 
 
By this statement the Contractor represents that it has secured the payment of Workers' Compensation in 
compliance with the provisions of the Labor Code of the State of California and during the performance of 
the work contemplated herein will continue so to comply with said provisions of said Code.  The 
Contractor shall supply the Owner with certificates of insurance evidencing that Workers' Compensation 
Insurance is in effect and providing that the Owner will receive thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation. 
 
Contractor shall provide the insurance set forth in the General Conditions.   
 
 
Article XI, Entire Agreement 
The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties relating to the Project, and 
supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreement between the parties, oral or written, including the 
Owner's award of the Project to Contractor, unless such agreement is expressly incorporated herein.  The 
Owner makes no representations or warranties, express or implied, not specified in the Contract.  The 
Contract is intended as the complete and exclusive statement of the parties’ agreement pursuant to Code 
of Civil Procedure section 1856. 
 
Article XII, Execution of Other Documents 
The parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in the execution of any and all other documents and in 
the completion of any additional actions that may be necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect 
to the terms and intent of the Contract. 
 
ARTICLE XIII.  EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS 
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the signatures may appear on separate 
signature pages.  A copy, or an original, with all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully 
executed Agreement. 
 
Article XIV, Binding Effect 
Contractor, by execution of this Agreement, acknowledges that Contractor has read this Agreement and 
the other Contract Documents, understands them, and agrees to be bound by their terms and conditions.  
The Contract shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Contractor and the Owner and 
their respective successors and assigns. 
 
Article XV, Severability 
If any provision of the Contract shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, 
such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.  The Contract shall 
be governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or 
with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of California for 
the County of Santa Clara, subject to transfer of venue under applicable State law. 
 
Article XVI, Amendments 
The terms of the Contract shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any 
manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed by the parties and approved or ratified by the 
Governing Board. 
 
Article XVII, Assignment of Contract 
The Contractor shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise any or all of its rights, 
burdens, duties or obligations without the prior written consent of the surety on the payment bond, the 
surety on the performance bond and the Owner. 


691/852







Article XVIII, Written Notice 
Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual or 
member of the firm or to an officer of the corporation for whom it was intended, or if delivered at or sent 
by registered or certified or overnight mail to the last business address known to the person who gives 
the notice. 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools   


District  Name of Company as Licensed 
   
133 Mission Street Suite 100   
Santa Cruz , California 95060   


Address  Address 
   
(831) 429-3904   


Telephone Number  Telephone Number 
   
   
   


Signature  Signature 
   
   
   


Name / Title  Name / Title 
   


   


  Contractor License Number 
   
   


  Class / Expiration Date 
   
  Corporate Seal (if any): 


 
Attachments:  
General Conditions for Contract of Construction 
Attachments described in Article I, Scope of Work. 
 
Note 
Contractor must give the full business address of the Contractor and sign with Contractor’s usual 
signature.  Partnerships must furnish the full name of all partners and the Agreement must be signed in 
the partnership name by a general partner with authority to bind the partnership in such matters, 
followed by the signature and designation of the person signing.  The name of the person signing shall 
also be typed or printed below the signature.  Corporations must sign with the legal name of the 
corporation, followed by the name of the state of incorporation and by the signature and designation of 
the chairman of the board, president or any vice president, and then followed by a second signature by 
the secretary, assistant secretary, the chief financial officer or assistant treasurer. All persons signing must 
be authorized to bind the corporation in the matter.  The name of each person signing shall also be typed 
or printed below the signature.  Satisfactory evidence of the authority of the officer signing on behalf of a 
corporation shall be furnished. 


692/852







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Dilbeck & Sons Quote: Mission Hill Middle School Entry Doors 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Dilbeck & Sons quote for Mission Hill Middle School entry doors in the main 
building. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of removal and replacement of the entry doors at Mission Hill Middle 
School. These doors reflect the historic nature of the building and as such need to be custom 
ordered. The current doors are failing. This project was discussed and approved by the site 
bond committee. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$17,154.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.09% of the overall site budget 
$17,648,740.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Mission Hill Middle School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


693/852







694/852







695/852







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Fiber Optic Telecom International Quote: Districtwide Electronic 
Key Cards 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Fiber Optic Telecom International quote for Districtwide electronic key cards. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board previously approved and the District purchased hardware for a keyless electronic 
lock system. This system allows for additional safety measures that include the ability to 
lockdown the campus remotely. In addition, it will give everyone in the District their own 
personal electronic ID card/key programmed to the appropriate doors where they need access. 
This proposal consists of the creation of the key cards and a corresponding database that will 
be utilized with the new lock system. This is part of the Districtwide plan for site security and 
key management. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$17,760.00, Measure A & B Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


696/852







 


 
Fiber Optic Telecom International 


831 Gale Drive, Unit 2, Campbell, CA – 95008 | 408.761.9543 | jaiwhowalks@hotmail.com 


 


Quote for Planning and Analysis of Districtwide SCCS Implementation of SA Guardian System 


Attention Mr. Trevor Miller 


Organization Santa Cruz City Schools District (SCCS) 


Address 133 Mission Street Suite 100 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


Contact Email trevormiller@sccs.net 


Contact Phone (831) 429-3410 


 


Planning and analysis of Districtwide (approx. 12 sites) SCCS implementation of SA Guardian System 


a) Interfacing personnel databases with Alpha card printer application 
b) Analysis of personnel data for importing into SA Guardian System 
c) Implementation process flow 
d) Work with district personnel to create a key card for every district employee  
e) Create a control data base for key card control for new system 


 


Project Task Estimate: 


T&M rate $148.00 / hour 


Estimated effort 80 Hours 


Effort NOT to exceed 120 Hours 


 


 


Sincerely, 


Jai Sharma         Date: 10/22/2020 
Fiber Optic Telecom International 
408.761.9543 
jaiwhowalks@hotmail.com  
831 Gale Drive, Unit 2 
Campbell, CA – 95008  


697/852







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Kier & Wright Change Order #1 for Westlake Elementary School 
Boundary Survey for Fencing   


    
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Kier & Wright change order #1 for Westlake Elementary School boundary survey 
for fencing. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of additional survey work to develop the easement between Peace 
United Community Church and Westlake Elementary School. This change is required because an 
unmarked PG&E gas line was identified during the initial assessment. Neither the Church nor 
the District knew that the line existed prior to the initial survey work. The previously approved 
contract amount was $23,900.00 and the new total contract, including this change order, will 
be $43,300.00. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     $14,400.00, (81.17% increase to the contract), Measure B Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


698/852







 


 


 


3350 Scott Boulevard Bldg. 22 


Santa Clara, CA 95054 


408-762-863.3 


WWW.KIERWRIGHT.COM 


October 14, 2020 


A18021-002 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
Attn: Trevor Miller 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 


RE:  Request for Change Order # 1  
Westlake Elementary School, Santa Cruz 
PO# 20-01445 


Dear Trevor, 


We request your approval of the following changes to our original contract 
under Purchase Order PO20-01445 for the project located at Westlake 
Elementary School, Santa Cruz The additional fees identified in the attached 
request are needed to cover additional survey work along the Church School 
property. 


After authorization, the fees outlined herein will be billed in addition to costs 
approved under our original contract, in addition to any previously approved 
fees for additional work, and in addition to any previously authorized change 
orders.  


Please complete and sign the form at the end of this document to indicate 
your approval. If you have any questions about the additional work described 
herein or if any additional information is needed, please do not hesitate to 
contact me directly. 


Sincerely, 


KIER & WRIGHT 


RYAN AMAYA, PLS  


PRINCIPAL 
ramaya@kierwright.com,  
(408) 727-6665 


 


 


699/852







Santa Cruz City Schools | Westlake Fencing  Kier + Wright  |  Page 2 


CHANGE ORDER # 1 
CHANGE ORDER # 1 
1) Additional Topographic Survey  ................................................................................................................................... $ 2,800 
Additional work to update the topographic survey to show the existing PG&E line as located and painted. 
2) Property line Stake ($2,500 per mobilization)  ....................................................................................................... $ 5,000 
Two (2) mobilizations included in Change Order. 
3) Fence-Line Easement for Church Property  ........................................................................................................... $ 3,600 
To provide a Fence-Line Easement Plat & Legal over the adjacent Church Property. 
4) Coordination  ......................................................................................................................................................................... $ 3,000 
Total Fee Increase Under Proposed CO# 1 ................................................................................................................... $ 14,400 


The terms, conditions, obligation of payment and exclusions approved upon authorization of our original 
contract still apply. Kier & Wright will continue to use the billing information provided in the “Responsible Party 
Information” form that was completed and submitted to us upon approval of the original contract. 


FEE SUMMARY 
The original sum from the contract signed on 3/19/2020 was:  $23,900 


The net change by previously authorized change orders is: $0.00 


The contract sum prior to this change order was: $23,900 


Authorizing this change order will increase the existing contract sum by the amount of: $14,400 


The total approved contract sum after this change order is added will be: $38,300 


  


700/852







Santa Cruz City Schools | Westlake Fencing  Kier + Wright  |  Page 3 


CHANGE ORDER APPROVAL 
   


Company Name  Project Name 


   


Approved By (Signature)  Name 


   


Date  Change Order # 


 


701/852







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Kier & Wright Proposal for Mission Hill Middle School Land Survey 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Kier & Wright proposal for Mission Hill Middle School land survey. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of land surveying services, including topographic and utility location 
surveys at Mission Hill Middle School for the new switchgear project.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$7,200.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.04% of the overall site budget 
$17,648,740.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Mission Hill Middle School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


702/852







 


 


 


2850 Collier Canyon Road 


Livermore, CA  94551 


925.245.8788 


WWW.KIERWRIGHT.COM 


October 20, 2020 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
Attn: Trevor Miller 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, Ca 95060 


RE:  Surveying Services Proposal for 
425 King Street, Santa Cruz 


Dear Trevor, 


We are pleased to submit the following proposal to provide land surveying 


services for the above-referenced property in Santa Cruz. Our proposed 


contract includes fees for the following. 


• Design-level topographic survey for the area shown on the attached 


exhibit 


Should you authorize us to proceed with the scope proposed herein, Kier & 


Wright will need a copy of any site or improvement plans that you may have.  


The proposed survey will be completed approximately 3 weeks after we 


receive a signed copy of this proposal. Please note that we are always 


sensitive to our clients’ needs. Should your project schedule require a more 


accelerated timeline, please give me a call so that we can discuss this. 


Thank you for inviting Kier & Wright to submit a proposal for this project. If you 


have any questions or comments regarding the information outlined herein, 


please feel free to contact me directly. 


 


Sincerely, 


KIER & WRIGHT 


 


 


 


Ryan Amaya, PLS  


PRINCIPAL 


ramaya@kierwright.com, (408) 727-6665 


 


703/852







 


Santa Cruz City Schools  |  Mission Hills Middle School  Kier + Wright  |  Page 2 


SURVEYING SERVICES PROPOSAL 


SCOPE OF WORK 
Design-level Topographic Survey ....................................................................................................................................... $ 7,200 


This includes the preparation of a topographic and utility survey. The topographic survey will show surface 


features such as curbs, gutters, sidewalk, spot elevations, and contours for the area shown on the attached 


Exhibit. On-site utilities will be shown based on field inspection underground utility locating and as shown on 


any existing record drawings to be provided by the client, if available.  


Underground utilities will be located by Subdynamic Locating Services and will work as a sub-consultant to 


Kier & Wright and will attempt to locate all detectable utilities according to the USA North Guidelines, California 


Code Section 4216-4216.9 within the area of work shown on the attached Exhibit. Please note that all 


underground utilities may not be able to be located, particularly plastic pipe. 


Total Proposed Fee .................................................................................................................................................................... $ 7,200 


ITEMS TO BE SUPPLIED BY CLIENT 
1) Any available record drawings showing existing utilities. 


EXCLUSIONS 
1) Printing, plotting and delivery (billed at cost plus 10%). 


2) Utility Research fee (fees charged by the utility companies). 


 


  


704/852







Santa Cruz City Schools |  Mission Hills Middle School   Kier + Wright  |  Page 3 


OBLIGATION OF PAYMENT 
The Entity identified in the attached Responsible Party Information Form will be responsible for payment of all 


services and reimbursable expenses (printing, plotting, delivery, overnight mail) rendered by Kier & Wright Civil 


Engineers and Surveyors, Inc. (Kier & Wright) in conjunction with the above-referenced project per the proposal 


dated October 20, 2020. If the project is terminated by the Entity, the Entity shall notify Kier & Wright, and Kier 


& Wright is entitled to payment by the Entity for all services and reimbursable expenses rendered up to the 


date of cancellation. If Kier & Wright is to be paid out of escrow and the project falls out of escrow or escrow 


does not close, the Entity is responsible for payment of all services and reimbursable expenses rendered by 


Kier & Wright. 


APPROVAL 
If the terms of this proposal meet with your approval and you wish to have us proceed with the services 


described herein, please sign below, complete the project/billing information form on the next page and either 


email or mail a copy of the signed proposal to my attention.  


Approved by:    Date:  
  


705/852







Santa Cruz City Schools |  Mission Hills Middle School   Kier + Wright  |  Page 4 


RESPONSIBLE PARTY INFORMATION FORM 


Company/Entity Name: 
 


Agreement Authorized by (Name, Title) 
 


PROJECT INFORMATION 


Project Manager Name: 
 


Phone Number: 
 


Mobile Phone Number:  
 


Email Address: 
 


EMERGENCY CONTACT 


Name: 
 


Phone Number: 
 


BILLING INFORMATION 


Bill to the attention of (Name): 
 


Address: 
 


City, State, Zip: 
 


Phone Number: 
 


Fax Number: 
 


Do you authorize us to send monthly invoices by email?  Yes  No 


Billing Email Address: 
 


P.O. # (if required): 
 


S.O.W. # (if required): 
 


 


706/852







707/852



ft

Cloud







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Moore Twining Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering of   
    Gault Elementary School New Classroom Building 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Moore Twining proposal for geotechnical engineering of Gault Elementary School’s 
new classroom building. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of geotechnical engineering and a geohazards investigation for the new 
two-story modular classroom building at Gault Elementary School, as required by the Division 
of State Architect.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$11,400.00, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.12% of the overall site budget 
$9,226,851.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Gault Elementary School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


708/852







www.mooretwining.com
PH: 559.268.7021
FX:  559.268.7126
2527 Fresno Street
Fresno, CA 93721


October 16, 2020 MTP 20-0919


Mr. Trevor Miller
Director of Facilities
Santa Cruz City Schools
133 Mission Street, Suite 100
Santa Cruz, California 94518


Subject: Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering and Geologic/Seismic Hazards  Investigation
Proposed 2-Story Modular Classroom Building
Gault Elementary School
1320 Seabright Avenue
Santa Cruz, California


Dear Mr. Miller:


We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal to conduct a geotechnical engineering and
geohazards investigation for the above referenced project.  This proposal outlines our understanding
of the proposed project, describes our scope of services, provides our estimate of fees for our
services, and details the terms and limitations of our work.  Our fee estimate assumes that the work
will be subject to California Prevailing Wage Laws.


PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND ANTICIPATED CONSTRUCTION


The following project description is based on our review of satellite images of the site area and
information provided by Mr. Brian Anderson with Bartos Architecture, including an enlarged
demolition site plan, sheet A1.3, and an enlarged site plan, sheet A1.5C.  Thess plans are referred
to herein as “Demolition Plan” and “Site Plan”.


Gault Elementary School is located at 1320 Seabright Avenue in Santa Cruz, California.  The area
of the proposed classroom is bordered to the north by a landscape strip with large/mature trees,
sidewalk and Effey Avenue beyond, to the east by two portable classroom buildings, a sidewalk and
Sumner Avenue beyond, to the south by a courtyard area with mature trees and classroom buildings
beyond, and to the west by an access driveway.


The site plan provided indicates that the proposed 2-story classroom building will be about 4,800
square feet in plan area.  The proposed building will be located in the northeast portion of the
campus in an area partially occupied by three (3) portable classroom building.  It is our
understanding that these three (3) portable classroom buildings, and the two (2) portable classrooms
located east of the proposed building, will be removed.  The majority of the remaining area proposed


709/852







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 20-0919
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation October 16, 2020
Proposed 2-Story Modular Classroom Building
Gault Elementary School
Santa Cruz, California Page 2


for the new classroom building appears to be occupied by Portland cement concrete and asphaltic
concrete walkways.  The area of the campus and proposed new classroom area appear to be relatively
flat.


ANTICIPATED SOIL CONDITIONS


Based on review of the NRCS Web Soil Survey, the building site is indicated to be underlain by
“Watsonville Loam ,“comprising silty sands, clayey sands and silts.


According to the Geologic Map of Santa Cruz County, compiled by Earl E Brabb (1997), the site
is underlain by Pleistocene age “Lowest emergent coastal terrace deposits.”  These deposits are
described as sands and gravels.  The referenced map indicates that the Pliocene and upper Miocene
Purisima Formation underlies the coastal terrace deposits.  This formation is described as: “Very
thick bedded yellowish-gray tuffaceous and diatomaceous siltstone containing thick interbeds of
bluish -gray, semi-friable, fine grained andesitic sandstone.


The depth to groundwater at the proposed building site is not known.  However, based on our
geotechnical drilling experience in the City of Santa Cruz area, there is a potential for shallow
groundwater at the site.   Based on our review of the City of Santa Cruz Local Hazard Mitigation
Plan 2012 update, Figure 6 - “Areas in Santa Cruz Potentially Vulnerable to Liquefaction,” the
subject site is not mapped in a liquefaction  hazard zone.


PURPOSE OF INVESTIGATION


The purpose of the investigation will be to conduct an exploration program for the proposed project,
evaluate the data collected during the field and laboratory operations, and provide geotechnical
engineering parameters for use in project design.  The intent of this investigation is also to satisfy
the requirements of the 2019 California Building Code (CBC), as related to geotechnical
investigations.  The intent of the investigation is also to satisfy the requirements of the California
Administrative Code, DSA IR A-4, and California Geological Survey (CGS Note 48) as related to
geohazards investigations.


This proposal does not include site specific ground motion procedures.  It is recommended that the
project structural engineer be consulted to determine whether a ground motion hazard analysis will
be required for the project in accordance with ASCE 7-16, Section 11.4.8, assuming both Site
Classes D or E.  If the structural engineer determines that a ground motion hazard analysis should
be conducted, our firm should be contacted to provide a proposal/fee estimate for this additional
service.


710/852







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 20-0919
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation October 16, 2020
Proposed 2-Story Modular Classroom Building
Gault Elementary School
Santa Cruz, California Page 3


SCOPE OF SERVICES


Moore Twining Associates, Inc. will provide the following services in connection with this project.


A. Research


Moore Twining will review existing soil survey reports, geologic maps, existing flood plain maps,
dam and tsunami inundation maps, volcanic hazard maps, etc., and existing geotechnical engineering
report(s) previously prepared at the campus which are made available by the client.


B. Field Investigation


Prior to the start of the field investigation, Moore Twining will mark the site for Underground
Service Alert for public utility clearance and clearance by Santa Cruz City School staff for known
facilities.  This proposal includes a site meeting with District personnel to mark and discuss access
to the boring locations.  This proposal assumes the portions of the proposed building site will be
accessible to a truck mounted drill rig. It is anticipated that some of the trees located south of the
proposed classroom may require trimming to allow drill rig access.  This proposal assumes tree
trimming will be provided by others.


In addition, this proposal includes the services of a private utility locating service to reduce the
potential for damage to existing unmarked utilities at the boring locations.


Three (3) borings are proposed for the field exploration.  It is anticipated that two (2) of the borings
will be drilled in or near the area of the proposed building,  using a truck-mounted CME-75 drill rig
equipped with hollow stem augers.  It is anticipated that these borings will be drilled near the east
and west ends of the proposed classroom, to depths of 15 and 50 feet, or to drilling refusal,
whichever occurs first.  A hand augered boring is proposed in the center area of the proposed
classroom building.  This proposal includes coring of pavements, as necessary.


This estimate is preliminary, the exact location, number, and depth of borings may be revised based
on site constraints, and the soil conditions encountered.  At the completion of the drilling and
sampling operations, the boring holes will be backfilled with soil cuttings.  Excess cuttings (if any)
will be spread in landscaped areas at the site.  The backfill will be capped with asphalt cold patch
or rapid set concrete materials.  Some settlement of the backfill should be anticipated over time.
During our field exploration, standard penetration testing will be conducted and both bulk and
relatively undisturbed samples will be obtained for laboratory analysis.


It should be noted that during drilling operations, noise disruption may occur and pedestrian access
would have to be restricted around the work area to a safe distance.  So, an optional cost is provided
for crew overtime to conduct the field investigation outside of normal business hours.


711/852







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 20-0919
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation October 16, 2020
Proposed 2-Story Modular Classroom Building
Gault Elementary School
Santa Cruz, California Page 4


C. Laboratory Testing


We will perform laboratory tests to determine pertinent engineering and index properties of the soils
at the site.  These will include tests for moisture and density, sieve analyses, shear strength, Atterberg
Limits, expansion index, and consolidation.  In addition, we will conduct pH, resistivity, sulfate
content, and chloride content tests on near-surface soil samples to evaluate soil corrosivity.  The
types of tests conducted may be adjusted based on the subsurface soil conditions encountered.


D. Analysis and Recommendations


We will consult with your design professionals concerning our findings and to discuss
recommendations and alternatives (if needed).


The geotechnical engineering report will contain our findings, analysis, conclusions, and
recommendations for project design, including the following:


1. A description of general subsurface soil and groundwater conditions encountered;


2. Site soil classification for seismic design in accordance with the 2019 California Building
Code;


3. Recommendations for earthwork construction, including site and subgrade preparation, and
engineered fill;


4. Recommendations for temporary excavations, trench excavation, trench backfill, and
excavation stability;


5. Foundation design parameters including allowable soil bearing capacity, foundation depth,
coefficient of friction, active and passive soil pressures, and seismic design parameters;


6. Estimates of static settlement for foundation design;


7. Evaluation of the potential for liquefaction and seismic settlements;


8. Recommendations for exterior concrete flatwork;


9. Evaluation of soil corrosivity potential; and


10. Final test boring logs and laboratory test results.


712/852







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 20-0919
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation October 16, 2020
Proposed 2-Story Modular Classroom Building
Gault Elementary School
Santa Cruz, California Page 5


The geohazards portion of the report will contain at least the following:


1. Evaluation of geologic/seismic hazards including distance from site to nearest active faults,


2. Regional geology and regional fault maps, preparation of a geologic map of the site and
geologic cross sections (using boring data from the geotechnical engineering investigation),


3. Evaluation of historic seismicity, preparation of a historical earthquake epicenter map
relative to the site, and


4. Evaluations of other potential geologic hazards such as flooding, landslides, seiches,
tsunamis and volcanic activity in accordance with the CGS requirements.


Moore Twining’s professional services will be performed, our findings obtained, and our
recommendations prepared in accordance with generally-accepted geotechnical engineering
principles and practices at the time the work is performed.  This warranty is in lieu of all other
warranties either expressed or implied.


DELIVERABLES


Upon project completion, an electronic copy of the report will be provided to the client.  If desired,
up to four (4) hard copies of the report can be distributed by Moore Twining.


FEE ESTIMATE


Based on the information provided, the geotechnical engineering and geologic/seismic hazards
investigation can be provided for an estimated base fee of $11,400 as indicated in Table No. 1.  Also,
the “add” fee for performing the proposed investigation outside of regular business hours would be
$1,100 (if required/desired), as noted in Table No. 2.


713/852







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 20-0919
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation October 16, 2020
Proposed 2-Story Modular Classroom Building
Gault Elementary School
Santa Cruz, California Page 6


Table No. 1
Summary of Tasks and Estimated Fee for Geotechnical Engineering and Geohazard


Investigation


Description of Service Estimated Fee


Private Utility Locator $1,100


On-site Meeting with Santa Cruz City School Staff and Marking
Boring Locations On Site for Public Utility Clearance and Clearance
by Santa Cruz City School Staff for Known Facilities


$650


Drilling Soil Borings $3,650


Staff Engineer/Geologist to Log Soil Borings, and Collect Soil
Samples


$1,500


Laboratory Testing $1,400


Engineering Analysis and Report Preparation $3,100


Estimated Fee: $11,400


Table No. 2
Summary of Fees for Performing the Proposed Investigation Outside of


Regular Business Hours (if Required by Owner)


Description of Optional Service Estimated Fee


Shift Differential for Weekend or Holiday Work $1,100


The fee in this proposal is valid for a period of 60 days from the date of this proposal.  If site
conditions differ significantly from those anticipated as stated in this proposal, additional studies
may be necessary.  All additional work will be done only after the situation has been discussed and
client authorization had been obtained.


Soil samples collected during this investigation will be retained for thirty days from the date of the
final report, at which time samples will be discarded unless a written request is received from the
client to retain the samples longer.  Moore Twining will retain the samples for a longer period of
time, at the request of our client, at a nominal charge for storage.


714/852







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 20-0919
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation October 16, 2020
Proposed 2-Story Modular Classroom Building
Gault Elementary School
Santa Cruz, California Page 7


The cost in this proposal includes transmitting the final copies of the report to the client via first class
U.S. Mail.  If it is desired that reports be express mailed or transmitted via facsimile machine, the
additional cost will be charged in addition to the above lump sum fee on the final invoice.


Payment is due upon receipt of invoice.  A finance charge may be added to all balances over thirty
days old.  This is computed at a rate of 1.5% per month which is an annual percentage rate of 18%.
A monthly progress invoice will be issued for work completed during each month.  A final invoice
will be issued upon project completion.


SCHEDULE


It is anticipated that our field investigation will begin within about ten (10) days from authorization
to proceed.  Additional time may be required to schedule drilling for weekend work, if this is
required by the client.  The geotechnical engineering - geologic/seismic hazard assessment report
is anticipated to be completed about four (4) weeks from completion of the field investigation.  If
the report is desired sooner, Moore Twining should be notified of the project schedule requirements
and a revised proposal can be prepared.


TERMS


This proposal and the enclosed Agreement set forth the terms and conditions under which Moore
Twining Associates, Inc., will conduct the proposed Geotechnical Investigation.  If you find these
to be acceptable, please complete the client block and sign on the space provided on page 1 of the
agreement, initial in the client space provided at the top of page 2 and return.  Upon receipt of the
contract, we will sign and return a copy for your records.  Receipt of the signed agreement, or written
notice to proceed will serve as our notice to proceed and constitute permission to enter the site.  To
enter a property not owned by our client, Moore Twining would require written permission from the
property owner or his agent.


Moore Twining will not begin the investigation discussed in this proposal unless: 1) an executed
contract from the client, or 2) written authorization which is subject to the terms of the agreement,
is received.  A professional services agreement is attached to this proposal.


715/852







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 20-0919
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation October 16, 2020
Proposed 2-Story Modular Classroom Building
Gault Elementary School
Santa Cruz, California Page 8


ADDITIONAL SERVICES


Moore Twining can provide additional services related to the project, if desired.  Our firm can
provide construction inspection services in support of the project.  In addition, our firm can conduct
a review of the foundation and grading plans for conformance with the recommendations of the
geotechnical report.  However, these services are not included within the scope of this fee estimate.
A fee proposal can be provided when the plans have been received and a construction schedule is
known.


LIMITATION OF PROPOSAL


The client shall provide the right of entry to the project site.  This proposal assumes reasonable site
access by a truck mounted drilling rig.  The base fee in this proposal assumes the field exploration
will be conducted during normal business hours.  Items to be provided by the client, if available,
include a site plan showing structure locations, site grading, clearance of boring locations from
known underground utilities, and any special design requirements.


This proposal does not include site specific ground motion procedures (see this proposal under
Purpose of Investigation).


No liability is assumed for damage to underground facilities or other site features that are not
accurately marked on the campus or shown on available site plans.


This proposal specifically excludes environmental assessment.  If this service is desirable, our firm
would be pleased to prepare a separate proposal for such an assessment.  Hazardous materials or
certain types of hazardous materials may exist at a site where there is no reason to believe they could
or should be present.  The discovery of unanticipated hazardous materials constitutes a changed
condition mandating a renegotiation of the scope of work or termination of services.  We will notify
you as soon as practically possible should unanticipated hazardous materials or suspected hazardous
materials are encountered.  We will take any and all measures that in our professional opinion are
justified to preserve and protect the health and safety of our personnel and the public, and/or the
environment.  The additional cost of such work would be charged on a time-and-expense basis over
and above the lump sum fee for the geotechnical study.


716/852







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 20-0919
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation October 16, 2020
Proposed 2-Story Modular Classroom Building
Gault Elementary School
Santa Cruz, California Page 9


CLOSING


We appreciate being considered for this work.  If you have any questions regarding this proposal,
please contact me at (800) 268-7021.


Sincerely,
MOORE TWINING ASSOCIATES, INC.


Read L. Andersen, RGE 2810
Manager
Geotechnical Engineering Division


enclosure: Professional Services Agreement


717/852







PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT


Santa Cruz City Schools and Moore Twining Associates, Inc.


Agreement entered into at      Fresno, California


made this  day of , 2020 by and between


Client: Consultant:


Name Santa Cruz City Schools  Name Moore Twining Associates, Inc.


Address 133 Mission Street, Suite 300 Address 2527 Fresno Street
Santa Cruz, California 95069 Fresno, California  93721


Phone Phone (559) 268-7021
FAX FAX (559) 268-7126


Santa Cruz City Schools and Moore Twining Associates, Inc. agree as follows:


Santa Cruz City Schools (hereafter called Client) intends to:


Retain consultant to provide geotechnical engineering services, as detailed in the attached proposal, identified as MTP 20-0919, dated October 16, 2020,
hereinafter called "project".


A. Moore Twining Associates, Inc. (hereafter called Moore Twining) agrees to perform the following scope of services:


Provide Geotechnical Engineering services for the project outlined in the attached proposal, identified as  MTP 20-0919, dated October 16, 2020.


B. Client agrees to compensate Moore Twining for such services as follows:


Pursuant to the attached proposal, MTP 20-0919, dated October 16, 2020.   Payment is due upon receipt of invoice.  A finance charge may be added to
all balances over 30 days old.  This is computed at a rate of 1.5% per month which is an annual percentage rate of 18%.


C. This Agreement is subject to provisions 1 through 19 attached herewith and made a part hereof.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby execute this agreement on the dates and upon the provisions stated.


Client Santa Cruz City Schools Consultant Moore Twining Associates, Inc.


By By


Name/Title Name/Title Read Andersen,  Geotechnical Engineering Manager


Date Signed Date Signed


718/852







Provisions of Agreement (Reference MTP 20-0919)                                      Client Initial_______ Moore Twining ________


Client and Moore Twining agree that the following provisions shall be part of their agreement:


1. This agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of client and Moore Twining.  This agreement shall not be assigned by either client
or Moore Twining without the prior written consent of the other.


2. All documents produced by Moore Twining under this agreement shall remain the property of Moore Twining and may not be used by client for any other endeavor without the
written consent of Moore Twining.


3. Unless otherwise stated, Moore Twining will have access to the Site for activities necessary for the performance of their services.  Moore Twining will take precautions to minimize
damage due to these activities, but have not included in the fee the cost of restoration of any resulting damage.


4. Unless otherwise specified, this agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.


5. Client agrees not to permit any other person to use plans, drawings, or other work product prepared by Moore Twining, which plans, drawings, or other work product are not final
and which are not signed, and stamped or sealed by Moore Twining.  If Moore Twining's work product exists in electronic or computerized format, or is transferred in electronic
or computerized format, the stamp, seal and signature shall be original and may not be a computer-generated copy, photocopy, or facsimile transmission of the original.


6. Client agrees that if client requests services not specified pursuant to the scope of services description within this agreement, client agrees to pay for all such additional services
as extra work according to Moore Twining's current fee schedule.


7. This agreement may be terminated by the client or Moore Twining should the other fail to perform its obligations hereunder.  In the event of termination, client shall pay Moore
Twining for all services rendered to the date of termination, all reimbursable expenses, and reimbursable termination expenses.


8. Client acknowledges that Moore Twining is not responsible for the performance of work or Site safety by third parties including, but not limited to, the construction contractor and
its subcontractors.


9. Client shall pay the costs of checking and inspections fees, zoning and annexations applications fees, assessment fees, soils engineering fees, soils testing fees, aerial topography
fees, and all other fees, permits, bond premiums, title company charges, blueprints and reproductions, and all other charges not specifically covered by the terms of this agreement.


10. Moore Twining is not responsible for delay caused by activities or factors beyond Moore Twining's reasonable control, including but not limited to, delays by governmental agencies,
acts of God, failure of client to furnish timely information or approve or disapprove of Moore Twining's services or work product promptly, faulty performance by client or other
contractors or governmental agencies.  When such delays beyond Moore Twining's reasonable control occur, client agrees Moore Twining is not responsible for damages nor shall
Moore Twining be deemed to be in default of this agreement.


11. Moore Twining shall not be liable for damages resulting from the actions or inactions of governmental agencies including, but not limited to permit processing, environmental impact
reports, dedications, general plans and amendments thereto, zoning matters, annexations or consolidations, use or conditional use permits, project or plan approvals, and building
permits.


12. Moore Twining makes no representation concerning the estimated quantities and probable costs made in connection with maps, plans, specifications, reports or drawings other than
that all such costs are estimates only and actual costs will vary.  It is the responsibility of client to verify costs.  In addition, estimates of land areas provided under this agreement
are not to be considered precise unless consultant specifically agrees to provide the precise determination of such areas.


13. Client agrees that in accordance with generally accepted construction practices, construction contractor will be required to assume sole and complete responsibility for job site
conditions during the course of construction of the project, including all safety of all persons and property; that this requirement shall be made to apply continuously and not be limited
to normal working hours, and client further agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Moore Twining harmless from any and all liability, real or alleged, in connection with the
performance of service on this project, excepting liability arising from the sole negligence of Moore Twining.


14. Moore Twining makes no warranty, either expressed or implied, as to its findings, recommendations, plans, specifications, or professional advice except that the service or work
product were performed pursuant to generally accepted standards of practice in California in effect at the time of performance.


15. In the event the client agrees to, permits, authorizes, constructs or permits construction of changes in the plans, specifications, and documents or does not follow recommendations
or reports prepared by Moore Twining pursuant to this agreement, which changes are not consented to in writing by Moore Twining, client acknowledges that the changes and their
effects are not the responsibility of Moore Twining and client agrees to release Moore Twining from all liability arising from the use of such changes and further agrees to defend,
indemnify and hold harmless Moore Twining, its officers, directors, principals, agents and employees from and against all claims, demands, damages or costs arising from the changes
and their effects.


16. In the event client discovers or becomes aware of changed field or other conditions which necessitate clarification, adjustments, modifications or other changes during any phase
of the project, client agrees to notify Moore Twining and engage Moore Twining to prepare the necessary clarifications, adjustments, modifications or other changes to Moore
Twining's services or work product before activities commence or further activity proceeds.  Further, client agrees to have a provision in its construction contracts for the project
which requires the contractor to notify client of any changes in field or other conditions so that client may in turn notify Moore Twining pursuant to this paragraph.


17. Client shall indemnify and hold harmless Moore Twining and all of its personnel from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including reasonable attorney
fees) arising out of or resulting from the performance of the services, provided that any such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in whole or in part by the negligent act,
omission, and/or strict liability of client, anyone directly or indirectly employed by the client (except Moore Twining), or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.


18. In recognition of the relative risks, rewards, and benefits of the project to both client and Moore Twining, the risks have been allocated such that client agrees that, to the fullest
extent permitted by law, Moore Twining's total liability to client and to all contractors and subcontractors for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, damages, or claim
expenses arising out of this agreement from any cause or causes, shall not exceed ten (10) times Moore Twining’s fee or $50,000.00, whichever is less.  Such causes include, but
are not limited to, Moore Twining’s negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract, or breach of warranty.


19. (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement and except for the provisions of (b) and ©, if a dispute arises regarding Moore Twining's fees pursuant to this contract,
and if the fee dispute cannot be settled by discussions between client and Moore Twining, both client and Moore Twining agree to attempt to settle the fee dispute by mediation
through the American Arbitration Association [or other mediation service] before recourse to arbitration. If mediation does not resolve the fee dispute, such dispute shall be settled
by binding arbitration in accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association, and judgment upon the award rendered by the
Arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. (b) does not preclude or limit Moore Twining's right to elect to file an action for collection of fees if the amount
in dispute is within the jurisdiction of the small claims court. ©) does not preclude or limit Moore Twining's right to elect to perfect or enforce applicable mechanics lien remedies.


719/852







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Palace Business Solutions Proposal for Santa Cruz High School 
Office Furniture 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Palace Business Solutions proposal for Santa Cruz High School office furniture. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of a new desk for the Santa Cruz High School office to complete the 
administration furniture replacement. This was the only area of the office that was not part of 
the original furniture order.  This furniture will allow for social distancing during the pandemic. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,652.46, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.005% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


720/852







Palace Business Solutions P R O P O S A L2606 Chanticleer Ave., Santa Cruz, CA 95065
10-06-2020Furniture Division


Todd Trowbridge, Regional Vice President
P 831.476.3815 ext.352   C 831.247.1866
toddt@gopalace.com


SCCS SC High School 3 Leg HA Base


Unit Sell


TaxableLine # MFG Product Qty. Extended Sell


1 WRT FDEX5472-4272EOC-F24-PS-X 1 $872.50


3 Leg Fundamentals EX base $872.50 True


2 WRT AWC-JOINKIT-B 1 $52.25


Joining Kits $52.25 True


3 WRT FRT 1 $0.00


Freight $0.00 True


4 SAF 2175 1 $125.40


Swivel-Mount CPU Holder $125.40 True


Join your worksurfaces together


5 SB RDI-E 1 $462.40


PICK UP DELIVER ASSEBLE $462.40 True


Stair Carry


SCCS SC High School 3 Leg HA Base_v1.0_tc_201005 Page 1 of 2


721/852







Palace Business Solutions P R O P O S A L2606 Chanticleer Ave., Santa Cruz, CA 95065
10-06-2020Furniture Division


Todd Trowbridge, Regional Vice President
P 831.476.3815 ext.352   C 831.247.1866
toddt@gopalace.com


SCCS SC High School 3 Leg HA Base


Unit Sell


TaxableLine # MFG Product Qty. Extended Sell


Sub-Total Customer Price $1,512.55


9.25% Sales Tax $139.91


Total Customer Price $1,652.46


Terms and Conditions:
Final Acceptance of Proposal under Palace Furniture Terms and Conditions of Sale.
All furniture is non-returnable. This proposal is valid for 30 days.


Applicable local taxes will be added at time of invoice.


Date:


Autorized Buyer Printed Name and Title:


Purchase Order Number or Name for Purchase Order Approval:


Autorized Buyer's Signature:


Notes:


SCCS SC High School 3 Leg HA Base_v1.0_tc_201005 Page 2 of 2


722/852







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.8. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  SC Systems Inc. Quote for Soquel High School Wire Cleanup 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the SC Systems Inc. quote for Soquel High School wire cleanup. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of the identification of cables connected to existing equipment and the 
removal of abandoned low voltage cables in the 200 building at Soquel High School. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,440.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.004% of the overall site budget 
$34,830,967.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Soquel High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


723/852







10/10/2020 


 C10 Lic. #1000919 / ACO#7627 
 950 34th Ave, Santa Cruz CA, 95062 
 831-251-0781 / ashley@scsystemsca.com / www.scsystemsca.com 


 
PROPOSAL 


 
THE FOLLOWING IS A PROPOSAL FOR:  
Santa Cruz City Schools – Abandoned Wire Cleanup – 200 Bldg. 
Soquel High School 
 
SCOPE OF WORK: 
Remove abandoned low voltage cables per job walk for bldg.200.  ID cables that are still 
connected to equipment for district to determine usage. 
 
PARTS: 
NA 
 
All installation, programing and testing for the above scope shall be included in this proposal and 
performed in a workmanlike manner to applicable codes. 
Any additions or changes to the above scope must be agreed upon by SCCS and SC Systems.  
The only inclusions in this proposal are the ones listed above. Any additional work not included 
in this proposal, but required by the local inspector or other authority, will be subject to 
additional charges.  
This proposal incorporates SC Systems general terms and conditions.  Progress payments shall be 
billed at a maximum of 30 day intervals for the value of work and material furnished.  Final 
payment shall be due no later than 30 days after the work described in the Proposal is 
substantially complete. 
 
 
PRICE:  Not to exceed 16hrs @ $90/hr ($1440)  
            
CUSTOMER ACCEPTANCE OF THE ABOVE TERMS: 
 
Customer Signature Date 
 
 


724/852







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.9. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Swinerton Builders Change Order #4 for Soquel High School 
Modernization Phase 2 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Swinerton Builders change order #4 for Soquel High School modernization phase 2. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of additional vape detectors in the 200 and 300 building restrooms, 
replacement of failing condensing unit, painting scope additions, millwork reductions, removal 
and replacement of duct installation in building 200, casework in room 206, electrical and 
plumbing survey for room 203, additional sinks in room 220B, sanitary sewer repair in loop, 
abatement, gutter guard material change, and electrical change from wire mold to electrical 
towers. Items from the change order were discussed with the site bond committee throughout 
the construction process. The previously approved contract amount was $10,336,819.17 and 
the new total contract, including this change order, will be $10,724,076.02. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #4    $387,256.85, (3.74% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


725/852







726/852







Page 1 of 2 


Swinerton Builders CHANGE ORDER REQUEST  
# 0006 


2880 Lakeside Drive, Suite 300 DATED: 05/26/2020 
Santa Clara, CA 95054 
 


 


        


  


Project Name:  Soquel HS Bldg 100 & 200 Modernization  Project #: 18090226 
 
 
To:   Santa Cruz City Schools 
 405 Old San Jose Road 


Santa Cruz, CA   
 
Title:   Change Order #3 
Notes: PCI's 33A, 33B, 87, 90, 94, 96, 97, 99, 102, 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 109, 111, 112, 115, 118, 
119, 120, 121, 122, 126, 127, 128, 130, 131, and 132 provide additional details 
 


PCI Description                 Total Amount  
0033A Reversal of PCI 0033 .00 
0033B New PCI 0033 - Added Chatfield & Clarke Panels in the Admin Entry 


Room 
.00 


0087 Added Vape Detectors for Bldg. 200 & 300 Bathrooms 6,861.30 
0090 Replace CU/FCU in Bldg. 200 Courtyard 12,770.00 
0094 Painting Scope Changes 45,041.60 
0096 Millwork Changes -326.00 
0097 Remove & Reinstall Whiteboards in Rm 218 .00 
0099 Remove and Replace Duct Insulation in Bldg. 200 83,581.00 
0102 Room 206 - Diversified Casework 63,882.00 
0103 Room 203 Electrical Survey 1,845.28 
0104 Added Sinks and Faucets in Room 220B 2,398.50 
0105 Lighting Cost Associated with CCD 04 .00 
0106 Added Acoustic Ceiling Tiles, Room 215 .00 
0107 Replacing Wiremold in Room 206 .00 
0109 Sanitary Sewer Repair Pool to Loop 80,363.25 
0111 Rework / Added Wiremold Under Whiteboards in Rms 212, 219, 223 .00 
0112 Added Tack Panels in Bldg. 200 .00 
0115 Added Abatement of Unforeseen Conditions 28,534.00 
0118 Room 206 Plumbing 31,930.00 
0119 Circuits for FSDs in Room 215 .00 
0120 Room 203 Plumbing Scanning / Investigation 1,197.00 
0121 Credit for Unused Contract Work .00 
0122 Added GC's .00 
0126 Guy Wires for New Fans .00 
0127 Replacement of 3 Mag Starters in Bldg. 100 .00 
0128 Gutter Guard Material Change 806.00 
0130 Electrical Design Change, Outlets to be installed in Towers, 211, 212, 


219, 223 
13,338.00 


0131 CCD #6 Electrical Scope for New Diversified Cabinets 15,034.92 


727/852







Page 2 of 2 


0132 T&M Locate and Troubleshoot Heating Transformers in W Mezzanine .00 
 


Total 387,256.85 
 


The Original Contract Sum was................................................................................... 9,908,388.00 
Previously Approved Changes..................................................................................... 428,431.17 
The Contract Sum Prior to This Change Order was..................................................... 10,336,819.17 
The Contract Sum will increase by............................................................................... 387,256.85 
The New Contract Sum Including This Change Order.................................................. 10,724,076.02 
The Original Contract End Date was............................................................................ 08/31/2020 
Time Changes Prior to this Change Order was............................................................ 63 Days 
The Revised Contract End Date Prior to this Change................................................... 11/02/2020 
The Contract Time Will Change By.............................................................................. 0 Days 
The Revised Contract End Date including this Change is............................................. 11/26/2020 


 


This change order includes settlement of all direct costs associated with the changes described herein. 


 


ACCEPTED:  


Swinerton Builders Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


By:   By:    


Date:    Date:    


728/852







 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Reopening Plan Update 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Staff continue to support a robust distance learning program as well as in-person and virtual 
supports, while planning for expansion of our in-person instructional services beginning in 
January.   
 
This update will include information on: 
 
Current COVID health data 
Each meeting, staff provides updated information on local COVID health data and our county 
status on the State’s Blueprint for Economic Recovery.   
 
Reopening Flowchart 
The flowchart outlines our District decision making process for expanding in-person instruction.  
 
Expansion of Small Cohorts 
Small academic cohorts began on October 19th.  Staff will update the Board on expansion of  
small cohorts in the District.  
 
Proposed timeline for Beginning Hybrid Instruction 
The Reopening Advisory Committee discussed a proposal from sites to begin in-person hybrid 
schedules following the Martin Luther King Jr. Holiday.  The intent of this start date is to 
account for potential community gatherings over the holiday break that may contribute to 
spread of the virus and ensure the safest start possible for students and staff.    
 
In addition, there was a proposal to have students incrementally return, so that our youngest 
students in each grade span have dedicated time to learn and practice new protocols before all 
students return.  Staff will present potential schedules that illustrate an incremental return to 
in-person instruction.  
 
Facilities Preparation for Hybrid Instructional Schedule 
Facilities staff began preparing sites for in-person services and instruction over the summer. 
Some of that preparation was disrupted when spaces were needed for fire evacuations. With 
small cohorts and preparation for Hybrid instruction, sites again are being prepared for social 
distancing.  Staff will share photographs of this site preparation.  
 


729/852







 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


 
Update on Hybrid & 100% Distance Learning Planning 
The Superintendent's Reopening Advisory Committee is continuing to meet and explore 
schedule options for both Hybrid and 100% Distance Learning.  Staff will present an update on 
the committee’s process and discussions.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
To be determined as plans for various instructional models are finalized. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


730/852







SCCS 
Reopening 
Schools 
Update


November 4, 2020


731/852







Tonight’s Update


• County COVID Data 
• Reopening Flow Chart
• Expansion of Small Cohorts
• Proposed Timeline for Beginning Hybrid Instruction
• Facilities Preparation for Hybrid Instructional Schedule
• Update on Hybrid & 100% Distance Learning Planning


732/852







New State 
Monitoring 
System


• Rate of new cases and test positivity rate 
determine tiered placement 


• Santa Cruz County - 4.2 new cases 
per 100,000 residents


• Santa Cruz County - 2.1% positivity 
rate


• Santa Cruz County placed on Tier 3 -
“Moderate” Risk


• Counties must remain in a tier for at 
least 3 weeks before moving forward


• To move forward, county must meet 
next tier’s criteria for two consecutive 
weeks


• If county metrics worsen for two 
consecutive weeks, county moves to a 
more restrictive tier733/852







734/852







735/852







736/852







Expansion of Small Cohorts


● Gault - 10/19
● Branciforte Middle - 10/26
● Harbor High School - 10/27
● Santa Cruz and Soquel High Schools  - 11/2
● Bay View and Westlake - 11/3
● Branciforte Small Schools - 11/5
● Mission Hill - 11/6
● DeLaveaga - 11/9


737/852







Branciforte 
Middle School 
Small Cohorts


738/852







Proposed Timeline for Expanding In-Person Services to 
Hybrid Instruction Elementary


Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday


4


-Small Cohorts Resume


-Distance Learning 


Resumes 


5


ALL Distance 


Learning


6


ALL Distance 


Learning


7


ALL Distance 


Learning


8


ALL Distance 


Learning


11


ALL Distance 


Learning


12


ALL Distance 


Learning


13


ALL Distance 


Learning


14


TK- 2 async to transition 


3rd-5th Distance 


Learning


15


TK- 2 async to transition


3rd-5th Distance 


Learning


18


MLK Day -


No School


19


TK- 2 async to transition


3rd-5th Distance 


Learning


20


ALL Distance 


Learning


21


TK-2 In person starts


3-5 Distance 


Learning


22


TK-2 In person


3-5 Async to transition


25


TK-2 In person


3-5 Async to transition


26


TK-2 In person


3-5 Async to transition


27


ALL Distance 


Learning


28


TK-5th in person


29


TK-5th in person


739/852







Proposed Timeline for Expanding In-Person Services 
to Hybrid Instruction MS & HS


Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday


4


Staff Work Day


5


PD Day


6


Distance Learning 


Resumes - Period 1


7


Distance Learning  


Resumes - Period 2


8


Distance Learning 


Resumes - Period 3


11


Distance Learning  


Resumes - Period 4


12


Distance Learning  


Resumes - Period 5


13


Distance Learning  


Resumes - Period 6


14


Distance Learning  & 


Training students for 


return


15


Distance Learning  & 


Training students for 


return


18


MLK Day -


No School


19


6th/9th Group 1


Orientation


20


6th/9th Group 2 


Orientation


21


6th/9th Group 1 


Day 1


22


6th/9th Group 2 


Day 1


25


(Distance Learning) 


& Intro day


26


All Secondary 


Students Group 1 


Day 1


27


All Secondary 


Students Group 2 


Day 1


28


All Secondary 


Students  Group 1 


Day 2


29


All Secondary 


Students  Group 2  


Day 2


740/852







Facilities Preparation for Hybrid Instruction 


● Ventilation assessment districtwide


● Physical set up of classrooms / removal and storage of furniture


● Set up of social distancing makers


● Installation of plexiglass barriers


741/852







Facilities 
Preparation for 
Hybrid Instruction


742/852







Facilities 
Preparation for 
Hybrid Instruction


743/852







Facilities 
Preparation for 
Hybrid Instruction


744/852







Facilities Preparation 
for Hybrid Instruction


745/852







Update on Hybrid & 100% Distance Learning 
Planning


● Reopening Advisory Committee reviewed both elementary and secondary 


potential schedules 


● Staff are conducting surveys of secondary students, all parents and all staff


● Principals are reviewing proposals with staff


● Staff will host a webinar on November 5 for parents to ask questions about the 


various scenarios in the surveys


● Reopening Advisory Committee will continue to meet to review community input 


from surveys before making a recommendation on November 9


746/852







Questions


747/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Board Policy 5121: Grades and Evaluation of Student Achievement 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the new policy as submitted for fourth or final reading.   


 
BACKGROUND: 
These recommendations reflect recent changes in education code and/or case law.  The policy 
has been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required customization for Santa Cruz City 
Schools has been included.  Highlighted modifications were made based on trustee input. This 
is standard grading policy received from CSBA, and additional language has been added to 
address grading practices during county, state, or federal emergencies.   
  
As this policy is new to the district, there is no current policy for comparison review.  
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 


748/852







Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement    


BP  5121  


 


The Governing Board believes that grades serve a valuable instructional purpose by helping 


students and parents/guardians understand performance expectations and identifying the 


student's areas of strength and those areas needing improvement. Parents/guardians and 


students have the right to receive course grades that represent an accurate evaluation of the 


student's academic performance. 


 


(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 


(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall work collaboratively with staff to establish a grading 


system for all comprehensive sites that shall be applied to all students in that course and grade 


level. The grading systems, for comprehensive and alternative schools shall be presented to the 


School Board for final approval. Alternative schools that do not assign grades may utilize a 


variable credit system. Teachers shall inform students and parents/guardians how academic 


performance will be evaluated in the classroom.  


 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


 


A teacher shall base a student's grades solely on the quality of the student's academic work and 


his/her mastery of course content based on district standards. Students shall have the 


opportunity to demonstrate this mastery through a variety of methods, including, but not 


limited to, tests, projects, portfolios, and/or class discussion as appropriate. Other elements 


that are not a direct measure of knowledge and understanding of course content, such as 


attendance, effort, student conduct, and work habits, shall not be factored into the academic 


grade but may be reported separately.  Parents and students may appeal a grade if any ed code 


provisions are violated.  


 


(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 


(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 


 


Whenever a student misses an assignment or assessment due to either an excused or 


unexcused absence, he/she shall be given full credit for subsequent satisfactory completion of 


the assignment or assessment. 


 


749/852







(cf. 6154 - Homework/Makeup Work) 


 


Students in grades K-3 shall receive progress reports at the end of each grading period rather 


than letter grades. 


 


At all grade levels, report cards may include reports of student progress on specific academic 


standards applicable to the course and grade level. 


 


When reporting student performance to parents/guardians, teachers may add narrative 


descriptions, observational notes, and/or samples of classroom work in order to better describe 


student progress in specific skills and subcategories of achievement. 


 


A report card for a student with a disability may contain information about his/her disability, 


including whether that student received special education or related services, provided that the 


report card informs parents/guardians about their child's progress or level of achievement in 


specific classes, course content, or curriculum. However, transcripts that may be used to inform 


postsecondary institutions or prospective employers of the student's academic achievements 


shall not contain information disclosing the student's disability. 


 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 


(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 


 


A grade assigned by the teacher shall not be changed by the Board or the Superintendent 


except as provided by law, Board policy, or administrative regulation. (Education Code 49066) 


 


Education Code 49066 specifies:  


(a) When grades are given for any course of instruction taught in a school district, the grade 
given to each pupil shall be the grade determined by the teacher of the course and the 
determination of the pupil’s grade by the teacher, in the absence of clerical or mechanical 
mistake, fraud, bad faith, or incompetency, shall be final. 


(b) The governing board of the school district and the superintendent of such district shall not 
order a pupil’s grade to be changed unless the teacher who determined such grade is, to the 
extent practicable, given an opportunity to state orally, in writing, or both, the reasons for 
which such grade was given and is, to the extent practicable, included in all discussions relating 
to the changing of such grade. 


(c) No grade of a pupil participating in a physical education class, however, may be adversely 
affected due to the fact that the pupil does not wear standardized physical education apparel 


750/852







where the failure to wear such apparel arises from circumstances beyond the control of the 
pupil. 


 


(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall determine the methodology to be used in calculating 


students' grade point average (GPA), including the courses to be included within the GPA and 


whether extra grade weighting shall be applied to Advanced Placement, International 


Baccalaureate, honors, and/or concurrent postsecondary courses. 


 


Final Grades During County/State/Federal Emergencies  


During times of emergencies, such as the global pandemic, fires, earthquakes, or other such 


disasters, the District may need to make a dramatic adjustment to the instructional program. 


This level of disruption to the learning environment as well as the uncertainty of stable learning 


environments available to students, impacts school staff’s ability to deliver instruction to 


students that is comparable to what occurs under ordinary circumstances. As such, the District 


may choose to adopt a grading system to adjust to the situation (eg: pass/fail; credit/no credit; 


narrative evaluation). In such a situation, the Superintendent or designee will work 


collaboratively with stakeholders and the Board to adopt an alternative grading system. This 


modified grading system shall be presented to the School Board for final approval. 


 


 


(cf. 6141.4 - International Baccalaureate Program) 


(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement) 


(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 


(cf. 6172.1 - Concurrent Enrollment in College Classes) 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


48070 Promotion and retention 


48205 Excused absences 


48800-48802 Enrollment of gifted students in community college 


48904-48904.3 Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 


49066 Grades; finalization; physical education class 


49067 Mandated regulations regarding student's achievement 


49069.5 Students in foster care, grades and credits 


51242 Exemption from physical education based on participation in interscholastic athletics 


69432.9 Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average 


76000-76002 Enrollment in community college 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


751/852







10060 Criteria for reporting physical education achievement, high schools 


30008 Definition of high school grade point average for student aid eligibility 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Owasso Independent School District v. Falvo, (2002) 534 U.S. 426 


Las Virgenes Educators Association v. Las Virgenes Unified School District, (2001) 86 Cal.App.4th 1 


Swany v. San Ramon Valley Unified School District, (1989) 720 F.Supp. 764 


Johnson v. Santa Monica-Malibu Unified School District Board of Education, (1986) 179 Cal.App.3d 593 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Research-Supported Strategies to Improve the Accuracy and Fairness of Grades, Governance Brief, July 2016 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS CORRESPONDENCE 


Report Cards and Transcripts for Students with Disabilities, October 17, 2008 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Student Aid Commission: http://www.csac.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


 


 


 


 


 


 


(11/03 7/09) 7/16 


 


752/852







                                  AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM   Update on School Resource Officer Programs  
      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools contracts with both the Santa Cruz Police Department and the Santa 
Cruz County Sheriff’s Office to provide the School Resource Officer program to our schools.  
 
Officers with a desire to work with students elect to become School Resource Officers, and it is 
critical to recognize that School Resource Officers differ from general law enforcement officers. 
They are provided specific training focused on the establishment of strong relationships with 
students, staff and site administration. The focus of the program is to provide staff training, 
maintain a safe campus environment, identify trespassers and be responsive to any threats to 
the campus. The School Resource Officer does not become involved in administrative 
behavioral matters with students. 
 
School Resource Officers also conduct home visits and welfare checks with administration, and 
work with the attendance team and families to bring truant students back to campus, 
encouraging them to stay in school. Other specialized services include supporting the 
surrounding community by addressing loitering, speeding or noise disturbances, and connecting 
with youth who need support to diversion programs. When needed, School Resource Officers 
will investigate criminal matters that affect the school.  
 
Threat assessments are also an important part of a School Resource Officer’s role. The Santa 
Cruz Police Department and Sheriff's Office were both lead partners in developing the 
Countywide Threat Assessment Protocol.  When presented with a threat that comes from on or 
off campus, the School Resource Officer is an instrumental part of the threat assessment team 
that determines whether or not a threat is viable. Identifying the source of off campus threats 
and tracing threats made through technology and social media are also critical services 
provided by our law enforcement partners. Safety checks of students involved in a threat as 
well as providing security on campus and in school neighborhoods during a threat are 
important and essential functions of the School Resource Officer.  
 


The essential purpose of the School Resource Officer program is to ensure the safety of 
students and staff, establish and maintain positive relationships with the entire school 
community, and provide crisis and emergency training. Partnership with School Resource 


753/852







                                  AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1. 


Officers continues to be an important part of our efforts to keep students, staff and campuses 
safe.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Yearly expenses funded by LCFF Base (Unrestricted):    


● Sheriff School Resource Officer at Soquel High = $72,977 
● SCPD School Resource Officer all other schools = $38,126 


  
The School Resource Officer program directly supports the following District goals and their 
corresponding metrics: 
 


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students.  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community.  
 


Prepared by Gail Atlansky, Director of Student Services 


754/852







School Resource Officer Program
Santa Cruz City Schools


November 4, 2020


755/852







What is a School Resource Officer (SRO)


● A sworn law enforcement officer


● Explicitly selected and trained:


○ Both Santa Cruz Police Department SROs and Santa Sherriff 
SROs complete a 40 hour course to prepare for serving in 
schools 


○ Course prepares officers to support schools,
including learning relevant laws and methods of
developing relationships with students, staff, and 
administration


○ Specific training is ongoing after original course
756/852







Role of SRO
● Serves as a protector and positive role model for 


students


● Provides crisis and emergency training to  faculty 
and staff


● Supports school safety plans


● Maintains safe and secure school environment and 
presence


● Deters or identifies trespassers on campus


● Helps conduct threat assessments


● Increases response times to threats on campus
757/852







Role of SRO


continued…


● Conducts home visits and welfare checks with administration


● Works with attendance team and families to bring
truant students back to campus and encourages
them to stay in school


● Provides service to surrounding community by addressing 
loitering, speeding or noise disturbances


● Responsible for investigating crimes


● Connects youth who need support to diversion
programs


758/852







Threat Assessment & School Safety


● SROs helped to develop our countywide 
threat assessment plan


● SCPD and Santa Cruz County Sheriff's 
Department are instrumental in helping to 
conduct threat assessments that come from 
both on campus and off campus


759/852







Threat Assessment & School Safety
Continued...


● Law enforcement is essential in helping to:


○ determine if a threat is viable


○ identify the source of off campus threats


○ trace threats made through technology 
and social media


○ conduct safety checks with those involved 
in a threat


○ provide security on campus and in school 
neighborhoods during a threat


760/852







SRO Program Costs


● For 2019-20 school year:


○ Sheriff SRO @ Soquel High = $72,977
○ SCPD SRO all other schools = $38,126


761/852







Goals of SRO Program


● Support students and families who have been 
victims of crimes


● Protect all students and staff 


● Build positive relationships between officers and 
young people 


762/852







Successful SRO Program Practices


● Allow only those officers who express a desire to 
serve in schools and are trained to work with 
youth to become SROs


● Implement training requirements for any officer 
who will serve on a campus (de-escalation, 
implicit bias, youth development, etc.)


● Ensure administrators are clear that the SRO is 
not a school administrator and that SRO’s should 
not engage in school discipline


763/852







Questions 


764/852







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Soquel High School and Branciforte Small Schools: Northwest 
Evaluation Association Measures of Academic Progress Contract 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the contract for the Northwest Evaluation Association Measure of Academic Progress 
(MAP) for use in math courses at Soquel High and math and reading assessment at Branciforte 
Small Schools. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools has been using the Response to Intervention framework to provide a 
systematic approach for meeting every child’s academic and social-emotional needs. As part of 
the Response to Intervention framework, it is essential that sites have universal screeners for 
both math and English. A universal screener is an assessment given to all students for the 
purpose of providing an objective check or measure of each student’s level of learning. In 
addition, it is essential that schools have objective and valid progress monitoring tools as a 
means for measuring student growth and progress throughout the year.  
 
This year, 2020-21, has presented many challenges due to COVID-19 and beginning the school 
year in distance learning. For the past three school years, Santa Cruz City Schools has used the 
Northwest Evaluation Association’s Measure of Academic Progress (MAP) nationally normed 
academic growth assessments for both Math and Reading. Due to the complications of distance 
learning, as a district we put a pause on MAP testing for the 2020-21 school year. However, 
Soquel High math teachers would like to pilot administering MAP in distance learning as well as 
in hybrid learning when we are able to move to a hybrid schedule. Having one comprehensive 
school, Soquel High, administering MAP now allows us to implement MAP on a smaller scale 
and use this school as a pilot. This pilot will then help to inform us on a districtwide scale what 
we need to have in place to administer MAP district wide in the 2021-22 school year should we 
continue to find ourselves in a distance learning and/or hybrid schedule in the 2021-22 school 
year. Additionally, administering MAP to Soquel High math students is part of the 2020-21 
Soquel High Single Plan for Student Achievement.  
 
Additionally, all of the Santa Cruz City Schools Small Schools (Costanoa, Ark Independent High 
School, Alternative Family Education, and Monarch Elementary) would like to implement MAP 
in both Reading and Math this school year. Monitoring the progress of our students in these 
alternative programs will help to give teachers, parents, and students valuable feedback 
regarding their growth and progress in both Reading and Math. Additionally, implementing 


765/852







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2 
 


MAP is part of the Costanoa Comprehensive Support and Improvement Plan, which is 
embedded in Costanoa’s Single Plan for Student Achievement and is also a part of the other 
Small Schools’ Single Plan for Student Achievement. 
 
Measure of Academic Progress Growth Assessment System: 
● Targeted Students -  


○ 1st - 12th Grades are taking the Measure of Academic Progress Growth Assessments in 
Reading and Math  


○ Measure of Academic Progress Growth Spanish Math Supplement for Newcomers 
(English Learners that have lived in the United States for less than three years and have 
little to no English language proficiency). 


 
● Number of students served = 856 (546 Soquel High & 310 Small Schools) 
 
● Measure of Academic Progress Purpose and Goals 


○ Provide schools with a universal screener as well as a progress monitoring nationally 
norm referenced tool for determining their students’ current skills and areas of 
readiness to learn new skills. 


○ Provide valuable and meaningful data that teachers can immediately use to help inform 
instruction to meet specific areas of student need. 


○ Empower students to set clear and purposeful goals based on data to track their 
growth and progress. 


○ Give teachers, schools, and the district data points on the effectiveness of Tier 1 
instructional practices - practices which provides all students with foundational skills 
prior to intervention. 


 


● Measure of Academic Progress Strengths 
○ The type of actionable, accurate data about each student and class that a teacher gains 


from Measure of Academic Progress has great potential to impact instruction, as well 
as impact each student’s ability to better understand their own level of learning and 
make realistic goals for growth. 


○ Measure of Academic Progress Growth assessments are also available in Spanish, 
which means Newcomers and students in primary language programs would be able to 
access them. 


○ Measure of Academic Progress Growth provides many different data report types 
specifically for the district, teacher, and student/parent.   


○ Measure of Academic Progress Growth assessments also align with the Common Core 
State Standards and have a report that predicts California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress scores. We have seen these predictions to be very accurate. 


 
● Measure of Academic Progress Successes  


○ All schools (elementary, middle, and high) have completed three years of Measure of 
Academic Progress testing 


766/852







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2 
 


○ Measure of Academic Progress data has been used in previous years by Response to 
Intervention Coordinators and Schools to ensure all students are making academic 
progress, and if not, moving students to interventions to provide more support.  


 
● Evaluation Criteria  


○ Measure of Academic Progress will be successful if teachers are using it to inform 
instruction and students’ increase their growth in reading and math as measured by 
Measure of Academic Progress.  


○ The district will seek Teacher, Response to Intervention Coordinator, and Site Admin 
feedback on Measure of Academic Progress administration, needs, supports, and 
impact. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
$9,344.70 = Total  
 
$5,159.70 = Measure of Academic Progress Growth Math (Integrated 1 & 2 @ Soquel High) - 
Soquel High Learning Loss Mitigation funds (Restricted) 
 
$4,185 = Measure of Academic Progress Growth Reading and Math (Grades 3-12 @ Small 
Schools) - Small Schools Learning Loss Mitigation funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 


767/852







Schedule A – Hyperlink MSA 121 NW Everett Street, Portland, OR 97209 Employer ID#: 93-0686108
US Partner Sales Quote Tel: 503.624.1951 | Fax: 503.639.7873 | www.nwea.org Page 1 of 1


Schedule A


SALES ORDER


Company Address: 121 NW Everett Street
Portland, OR 97209


License Start Date: 08/01/2020
License End Date: 07/31/2021


Created Date: 10/22/2020
Quote Number: 00029484
Partner ID: 13240


Prepared By: Shelley Ghannam
Phone:
Email: shelley.ghannam@nwea.org


Contact Name: Julia Hodges
Phone: (831) 419-5335
Email: juliahodges@sccs.net


Bill To Name: Santa Cruz City High School 
District


Bill To Address: 133 Mission St. Ste. 100
Santa Cruz, CA 95060


Ship To Name: Santa Cruz City High School 
District


Ship To Address: 133 Mission St. Ste 100
Santa Cruz, CA 95060


Product Sales Price Quantity Total Price


MAP Growth Single Subject $9.45 546 $5,159.70
MAP Growth K-12 $13.50 310 $4,185.00


Quote Subtotal $9,344.70
Estimated Tax $0.00


Grand Total $9,344.70


Notes
Line item # 3 for 90 MAP Growth is for Costanoa Continuation High School.


Terms and Conditions
This Schedule A is subject to NWEA’s terms and conditions located at: https://legal.nwea.org/. By signing this Schedule A you 
agree you have read and understood the terms and agree to them. 


If this schedule includes virtually delivered professional learning or workshops, then cancellation is subject to the Virtual 
Workshop Cancellation Policy: at http://legal.nwea.org/supplementalterms.html.


Information about NWEA’s collection, use, and disclosure of Student Information can be found here: 
https://legal.nwea.org/nwea-privacy-and-security-for-pii.html 


NWEA’s W9 can be found at: https://legal.nwea.org/nwea-w-9.html


Until this Schedule A is signed, the terms identified here are valid for 90 days from the date above. Please confirm the billing 
address, or specify changes to your account manager.


Signature


Signature:


\s1\


Printed Name:


\n1\


Date:


\d1\


Title


\t1\


768/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 15-20-21 Establishing Measure T & U Oversight 
Committee and Bylaws 


 
MEETING DATE: November 4, 2020  
 
FROM: Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution 15-20-21, establishing the new Oversight Committee and approve the new 
Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Bylaws. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On March 3, 2020, the voters of the District approved, by more than two-thirds vote, Measures 
“U” (Elementary School District) and “T” (High School District) (together, the “Measures”). Each 
Measure approved the levy of an education parcel tax on parcels within the respective District.  
Each Measure included a commitment that an independent citizen’s oversight committee 
would be established for the purpose of reviewing expenditure of parcel tax proceeds to ensure 
they are spent only for the specific uses enumerated in the Measures.  
 
The Measures were renewals and modifications of existing parcel taxes previously approved by 
the voters. A citizen’s oversight committee was previously established and seated for the 
purpose of reviewing expenditures of proceeds of the existing parcel taxes.  
 
The purpose of this item is to replace the existing citizen’s oversight committee with a new 
citizen’s oversight committee, and to adopt bylaws and operational guidelines for the new 
citizen’s oversight committee. The Measures I, J, O & P oversight committee bylaws are 
attached to compare to the proposed bylaws.  
 
The membership requirements, meeting requirements, and other operational guidelines for the 
new committee, largely mirror that of the old committee, with only minor improvements.  
 


FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


769/852







 


SC240197 1 


BEFORE THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


RESOLUTION NO. 15-20-21 


 


 
RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS EDUCATION 


PARCEL TAX CITIZENS’ OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE, TERMINATING THE 


EXISTING PARCEL TAX OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE, AND ADOPTING BYLAWS 


AND OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES FOR THE NEW COMMITTEE 


 
 


WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz City School District (the “District”), being a “Common 


Administration District,” is comprised of the Santa Cruz City Elementary School District (the 


“Elementary School District”) and the Santa Cruz City High School District (the “High School 


District”), which districts together share common administration and are governed by this Board 


of Education (this “Board”); and 


 


WHEREAS, the Elementary School District through this Board, submitted to the voters of 


the Elementary School District pursuant to Article XIIIA of the California Constitution, and 


California Government Code Sections 50075 et seq., 50079 et seq., and 53722 et seq. 


(collectively, the “Law”), a measure proposing to levy an education parcel tax on all non-exempt 


parcels in the Elementary School District (“Measure “U”), and ordered an election to be held on 


March 3, 2020 for such purpose; and 


 


WHEREAS, the High School District through this Board, submitted to the voters of the High 


School District pursuant to the Law, a measure proposing to levy an education parcel tax on all 


non-exempt parcels in the High School District (“Measure “T” and, together with Measure U, 


the “Measures”), and ordered an election to be held on March 3, 2020 for such purpose; and 


 


WHEREAS, both Measures were approved by the voters of the Elementary School District 


and the High School District, respectively, by at least two-thirds vote, as required by the Law; 


and 


 


WHEREAS, prior to the approval of the Measures, the voters of the District had, at prior 


elections held within the District, approved Measure “J,” Measure “P,” Measure “O,” and 


Measure “I” (the “Prior Measures”) each Prior Measure authorizing the levy of a separate 


education parcel tax on parcels in the Elementary School District and the High School District; 


and 


 


WHEREAS, pursuant to the Prior Measures, the Board established an independent citizen’s 


oversight committee (the “Prior Oversight Committee”) to inform the public concerning the 


expenditure and uses of revenue from the parcel taxes levied under the Prior Measures, adopted 


bylaws for the Prior Oversight Committee, and appointed members to serve on the Prior 


Oversight Committee; and 


 


770/852







 


SC240197 2 


WHEREAS, the purpose and effect of Measure U was to combine, replace and renew the 


parcel taxes under Measure J, Measure P, and that portion of Measure O which generated funds 


for middle school (grades 6 through 8) educational programs; and 


 


WHEREAS, the purpose and effect of Measure T was to combine, replace and renew the 


parcel taxes under Measure I, and that portion of Measure O which generated funds for high 


school (grades 9 through 12) educational programs; and 


 


WHEREAS, as a result of the above, commencing with fiscal year 2020-21, parcel taxes are 


no longer levied under the Prior Measures; and  


 


WHEREAS, all parcel tax proceeds collected under Measure J, Measure P, and Measure I, 


have been expended and, some parcel tax proceeds collected under Measure O remain unspent; 


and 


 


WHEREAS, the Board is required to establish an independent Citizen’s Oversight 


Committee (the “Oversight Committee”), and appoint members thereto, to review the 


expenditure of proceeds from the education parcel tax levied under the Measures and ensure such 


proceeds are expended for the specific purposes set forth in the Measures; and 


 


WHEREAS, in the interest of the most efficient use of District and community resources, 


and to secure the benefit of a trained, experienced, and competent oversight body, it is the desire 


of this Board to (i) establish the Oversight Committee, (ii) dissolve the Prior Oversight 


Committee, (iii) appoint the membership of the Prior Oversight Committee to serve on the 


Oversight Committee, and (iv) adopt bylaws and operational guidelines for the Oversight 


Committee; and 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY 


SCHOOL DISTRICT HEREBY RESOLVES, DETERMINES, AND ORDERS AS 


FOLLOWS: 
 


Section 1.  Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 


 


Section 2.  Findings and Determinations.  This Board, pursuant to documentation on file with 


the District and available to this Board, hereby finds and determines as follows:  


 


(a) All proceeds of parcel taxes authorized by Measure J, Measure P, and Measure I 


have been expended. 


 


(b) Some proceeds of parcel taxes authorized by Measure O remain unspent. 


 


(c) The Prior Oversight Committee has prepared annual written reports with respect 


to expenditures of proceeds of parcel taxes authorized by Measure J, Measure P, 


and Measure I, consistent with the purpose of the Prior Oversight Committee, and 


this Board has received all such reports. 


 


(e) It is appropriate to take action to dissolve the Prior Oversight Committee at this 


time based upon the foregoing.  


771/852







 


SC240197 3 


 


Section 3.  Establishment of Measure U and Measure T Oversight Committee. 
 


The new Oversight Committee is hereby established as required by Measure U and 


Measure T.  


 


Section 4.  Purpose and Duties of Oversight Committee.   The Oversight Committee shall 


review the expenditure of proceeds of the education parcel taxes levied under Measure U and 


Measure T to ensure such proceeds are expended for the specific purposes set forth in the each 


of the respective Measures.  In addition, the Oversight Committee shall review the expenditure 


of remaining proceeds of parcel taxes previously levied under Measure O, until such time as all 


Measure O proceeds have been expended. The Oversight Committee shall inform the District 


and the public concerning the expenditures reviewed by it, and advise the public as to whether 


the District has complied with the commitments of the Measures, all according to the bylaws and 


operational guidelines hereinafter adopted.  


 


Section 5.  Dissolution of Prior Oversight Committee.  Pursuant to the findings and 


determinations made herein, the duties and purpose of the Oversight Committee having been 


discharged, except with respect to unspent proceeds of parcel taxes levied under Measure O, the 


duty to review the expenditure of which having been passed to the Oversight Committee pursuant 


to Section 4 above, this Board hereby orders that the Prior Oversight Committee is dissolved 


effective upon the adoption of this Resolution.  


 


Section 6.  Members.  The Oversight Committee shall consist of no less than five (5) and no 


more than seven (7) members, serving terms of four (4) years, without compensation.  Oversight 


Committee members shall be individuals at least 18 years of age who reside or work in the 


boundaries of the District, and members of the committee shall include at least (at the time of 


their appointment) one (1) member who is active in a business organization representing the 


business community located within the District; one (1) member who is a member of a senior 


citizens’ organization; one (1) member who is a parent or guardian of a child enrolled in the 


Elementary School District; one (1 member who is a parent or guardian of a child enrolled in the 


High School District; and one (1) member who is a member of the community at large.  A single 


committee member may satisfy more than one of the foregoing categories.  No employee or 


official of the District shall be appointed and no vendor, contractor, or consultant of the District 


shall be appointed to the Oversight Committee.  Officers of the Oversight Committee, including 


a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and Secretary, shall be elected by the Oversight Committee.   


 


Section 7.  Meetings of the Oversight Committee.  The Oversight Committee shall hold regular 


quarterly meetings.  This Board may set special or emergency committee meetings as needed, 


either by request from the Oversight Committee or on its own initiative.  Oversight Committee 


meetings shall be held at the District Office, 133 Mission Street, Santa Cruz, California, or such 


other District facility as may be suitable.  The Oversight Committee may change the time and 


place of any meeting or subsequent meetings, provided that adequate notice is given to the public 


as required by law, and to District staff so that District staff may fulfill the District’s obligations 


pursuant to Section 8 hereof.  All Oversight Committee meetings shall be open to the public as 


required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code section 54950 and 


following).  


 


772/852







 


SC240197 4 


Section 8.  Duties of the District.  The District shall provide the Oversight Committee with 


records of all expenditures of proceeds of parcel taxes collected by the District.  District staff and 


consultants are directed to provide the Oversight Committee with responses to any and all 


questions, concerns, findings, and recommendations submitted by the Oversight Committee to 


the District upon a majority vote of the Oversight Committee.  District staff are directed to 


provide the necessary and appropriate notices of the public meetings to be held by the Oversight 


Committee.  District staff are directed to provide the Oversight Committee with any necessary 


technical and administrative assistance in furtherance of its purpose and sufficient resources to 


publicize its conclusions.  These resources shall include the ability to make the Oversight 


Committee’s Minutes, reports, and documents available for public viewing on the District’s 


website. In keeping with this Board’s policy and practice, public participation and input regarding 


issues being considered by the Oversight Committee are to be encouraged and welcomed by the 


District. 


 


Section 9.  Bylaws.  The Board hereby adopts the Bylaws and Operational Guidelines for the 


Oversight Committee that are attached as Exhibit “A” and incorporated by this reference. 


 


Section 10.  Appointment of Members.  The Board hereby appoints members to the Oversight 


Committee, as set forth in Exhibit “B,” attached hereto.   


 


Section 11.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately after its adoption. 


 


* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  


 


 PASSED AND ADOPTED on November 4, 2020, by the following vote: 


 


AYES: _________________ 


 


NOES: _________________ 


 


ABSENT OR NOT VOTING: ___________________ 


 


 


 


      ________________________________________ 


      President, Board of Education of the 


      Santa Cruz City School District 


 


 


CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY: 


 


 


________________________________________ 


Clerk of the Board of Education of the 


Santa Cruz City School District


773/852







 


A-1 


 


BYLAWS AND OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES FOR THE  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS EDUCATION PARCEL TAX  


CITIZEN’S OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 


 


PREAMBLE 


In accordance with the commitments of the Santa Cruz City School District (“District”) 


expressed in the language of each of the parcel tax measures “Measure O” passed by the voters 


on November 17, 2015, “Measure U” passed by the voters on March 3, 2020, and “Measure T” 


passed by the voters on March 3, 2020, the District’s Board of Education (the “Board”) has 


established this Education Parcel Tax Citizen’s Oversight Committee (this “Committee”). The 


Board is the common governing board of the Santa Cruz Elementary School District (the 


“Elementary School District”) and the Santa Cruz High School District (the “High School 


District”), which districts together make up the District as a “Common Administration District.”  


SECTION I.  PURPOSE AND DUTIES 


1.1. Purpose.  The Board established the Committee to inform the public concerning the 


expenditure and uses of revenues from parcel tax measures passed by the voters for the 


purpose of supporting District programs and services. The Committee’s charge is to 


review and report on the expenditure of parcel tax revenues and to ensure said revenue is 


expended in accordance with the stated purposes of each parcel tax measure, including 


but not limited to: 


 Measure O: Funding middle and high school student career technical education, STEM 


(science, technology, engineering and math) programs, visual and performing arts and 


job-training instructional programs; and after-school athletic and enrichment programs in 


middle and high schools to protect student safety, health and well-being. 


 Measure U: Funding elementary and middle school science, art, and music, and after 


school athletic, enrichment, and academic support programs, to keep students safe, 


healthy, and engaged, attract and retain highly qualified teachers, provide library and 


counseling services, and maintain smaller class sizes.  


 Measure T: Protecting educational quality in local high schools, funding high school 


career technical education, science, technology, engineering, visual and performing arts, 


counseling, library and athletic programs, to keep students safe and engaged. 


1.2. Duties.  Committee members shall be expected to attend regularly scheduled Committee 


meetings, review all pertinent information provided to the Committee, and abide by the 


provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (the “Brown Act”) (Gov. Code § 54950 et seq.) 


and all rules of conduct established in these Bylaws.  


In furtherance of its purpose the Committee will engage in the following activities: 


A. Receive and review copies of all annual written reports prepared by the District’s 


chief fiscal officer as required by each of the parcel tax measures.  


774/852







 


A-2 


B. Receive and review expenditure reports produced by the District to ensure that 


parcel tax revenue was expended in accordance with the specific purposes set 


forth in the ballot language of each parcel tax measure as approved by the voters. 


C. Prepare and present to the Board, in open session, an annual written report 


(“Annual Report”) which will include: 


i. A statement indicating whether the District’s parcel tax revenue 


expenditures for the preceding year were made in accordance with the 


stated purposes of each parcel tax measure. 


ii. A summary of the Committee’s proceedings for the preceding year. 


SECTION II. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 


2.1. Appointment and Terms.  The Committee shall consist of no fewer than five (5) and no 


greater than seven (7) members. Committee members shall be appointed by the Board to 


serve a term of four (4) years, without compensation, provided that the initial members 


of the Committee appointed by the Board concurrently with the establishment of the 


Committee may be appointed for two (2) year initial terms, in order to stagger the term 


expirations of Committee members. Following the expiration of a term, the Board may 


reappoint the same member for a new term, or appoint a new member or, if the remaining 


Committee members number five or more, leave the position vacant, at the Board’s sole 


discretion. 


2.2. Composition.  Committee members shall be comprised of, at a minimum: 


  


 1.  One (1) member who, at the time of appointment, is active in a business 


organization representing the business community within the District. 


 


2.  One (1) member who, at the time of appointment, is a member of a senior 


citizens’ organization. 


 


3.  One (1) member who, at the time of appointment, is the parent or guardian of a 


child enrolled in the Santa Cruz Elementary School District. 


 


4.  One (1) member who, at the time of appointment, is the parent or guardian of a 


child enrolled in the Santa Cruz City High School District.  


A single member may be appointed who satisfies more than one of the above categories.  


No employee or official of the District shall be appointed and no vendor, contractor, or 


consultant of the District shall be appointed to the Committee.   


2.3. Eligibility.  The Committee shall be comprised of individuals who are at least 18 years 


of age and who either live or work within the boundaries of the District. No employee, 


official, vendor, contractor, or consultant of the District shall be appointed to the 


Committee. Committee members may not hold any incompatible office or position during 


their term of membership, as those terms are defined in Article 4.7 of Division 4 of Title 


775/852







 


A-3 


I (commencing with section 1125) of the Government Code, and shall abide by the 


conflict of interest prohibitions contained in Article 4 of Division 4 of Title I 


(commencing with section 1090) of the Government Code. 


2.4. Officers.  Officers of the Committee, including a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and 


Secretary, shall be nominated and elected by the Committee annually at the last 


Committee meeting of each calendar year.  The Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson must 


be members of the Committee. The Secretary may, but need not be, a member of the 


Committee.  Officers shall be elected for a one-year term and shall not be term-limited. 


2.4.1.  Duties of the Chairperson. The Committee Chairperson shall have the following 


duties:  


A. Call Committee meetings. 


B. Establish the agenda for each Committee meeting, in consultation with District 


staff and with input from the Committee.  


C. Preside over each Committee meeting, following the adopted Rules of Procedure.  


D. The Chair or his/her Committee-approved designee shall serve as spokesperson 


for the Committee in all representations of the Committee to the public, the Board, 


and the media. 


2.4.2.  Duties of the Vice-Chair.  The Vice-Chairperson shall perform each of the duties 


of the Chairperson as necessary in the absence of the Chairperson. 


2.4.3.  Duties of the Secretary.  The Secretary shall have the following duties:  


A. Record and maintain minutes of all meetings of the Committee. 


B. Distribute minutes of all meetings of the Committee to all Committee members, 


to the Board, and to District staff for posting on the District’s website. 


C. Distribute Committee meeting agendas to all Committee members, to all other 


persons requesting copies of the agenda so that provisions of the Brown Act are 


followed, and to District staff for posting on the District’s website. 


D. Distribute all Committee reports to all Committee members, to the Board, and to 


District staff for posting on the District’s website. 


E. Keep all documents officially received by the Committee in the course of its 


business, and to forward copies of all such documents to the District staff. 


F. Prepare all necessary correspondence of the Committee. 


G. Arrange and coordinate meeting locations and teleconferences of the Committee. 


776/852







 


A-4 


H. Take roll at each Committee meeting and maintain Committee member 


attendance records.  


2.5. Vacancies.  If a Committee position becomes vacant for any reason, and such vacancy 


results in a total of less than five (5) remaining members, the Committee Chairperson 


shall request that the Board fill the vacancy by appointment pursuant to Section 2.1.  


Unless failure to act will result in the inability to meet a Committee quorum, if six months 


or less remain of the unexpired four-year term, the Board may choose to leave that 


position vacant for the remainder of the term. Committee members appointed to fill 


vacant, unexpired terms may be appointed to serve for the remainder of such unexpired 


term, to there be reappointment to a succeeding full four-year term. 


 A replacement Committee member may be appointed by the Board if one of the following 


events occur:  


A. A Committee member submits a written resignation to the Board, with a copy to 


the Committee Chairperson;  


B. The Committee removes a member pursuant to the procedure set forth in Section 


2.6 below.  


2.6. Removal.  A motion to remove a member for cause, including non-attendance at meetings 


per section 3.11 below, violating these Bylaws, or violating the District’s adopted norms, 


shall be approved by an affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of the members 


present at a Committee meeting, a quorum being present.  The motion and its result shall 


be communicated in writing to the member under consideration and to the Board 


President within one week after the meeting that the motion was approved. Removal shall 


be effective immediately upon passing the motion. If the motion fails, the member under 


consideration shall not be subject to double jeopardy. 


SECTION III. COMMITTEE MEETINGS 


3.1. Regular Meetings.  The Committee shall hold four (4) regular meetings each year, one 


in each calendar year quarter. The date upon which, and the hour and place at which, each 


such regular meeting shall be held shall be fixed by the Board.  To the extent permitted 


by the Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown Act”), such meetings may be held by 


teleconference. 


3.2. Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the Committee may be called by the Board, at the 


Board’s discretion or upon request of the Chairperson, in accordance with the provisions 


of the Brown Act, as amended or supplemented from time to time.  To the extent 


permitted by the Brown Act, such meetings may be held by teleconference. 


3.3. Notice.  All meetings of the Committee shall be called, noticed, held, and conducted 


subject to the provisions of the Brown Act. 


3.4. Minutes.  The Secretary of the Committee shall cause minutes of all meetings of the 


Committee to be kept and shall, as soon as possible after each meeting, cause a copy of 


the minutes to be forwarded to District staff for posting on the District’s website. Minutes 


777/852







 


A-5 


of Committee proceedings and all documents received and reports issued shall be a matter 


of public record. The District shall provide secretarial/clerical services to assist the 


Committee Chair in preparation, distribution, and posting of minutes for all Committee 


meetings. Minutes published before adoption by the Committee shall always be labeled 


“Draft Minutes.” 


3.5. Quorum.  A majority of the Committee members shall constitute a quorum for the 


transaction of business, except that less than a quorum may adjourn from time to time. 


3.6. Agendas.  Agendas for regular Committee meetings will be prepared by the Chairperson, 


in consultation with District staff and with input from the committee. All documents 


applicable to agenda items shall be distributed in advance of meetings. Any member of 


the Committee may submit a request for placing an item on a future agenda. Agendas 


may include a consent calendar for routine, non-controversial items. These items must be 


clearly identified on published agendas. Any member of the Committee or public may 


request at the meeting that an item be added to the consent calendar or be pulled for 


discussion. Agendas shall include that the Committee will take public comment at the 


beginning of the meeting. After roll-call and the establishment of a quorum, meetings will 


begin with a consent calendar if appropriate. 


3.8. Committee Voting.  Each Committee member shall be entitled to one (1) vote.  No action 


shall be taken by the Committee except upon the affirmative vote of the majority of those 


Committee members present and voting. An agendized action item may be approved by 


a simple majority of Committee members in attendance, a quorum being present. 


Members must be present to vote. 


3.8. Rules of Procedure.  Meetings shall be conducted with courtesy and decorum and in 


accordance with Robert’s Rules of Order. 


3.9. California’s Open Meeting Law.  All meetings of the Committee shall be open to the 


public and shall be noticed and conducted in strict compliance with the Brown Act. 


3.10. Public Participation.  Any member of the public present at a meeting may address the 


Committee during the period designated for public comment. The Chairperson may, at 


his/her discretion, choose in advance to place an equal time limit on all speakers. 


3.11. Attendance.  Regular attendance at Committee meetings is a fundamental obligation of 


every member of the Committee. Absences are disruptive to Committee activity and 


representation. Failure to attend two consecutive meetings without acceptable reason 


announced in advance shall constitute due cause for member removal. Members 


anticipating an absence must call or email the Chairperson or Secretary no later than 24 


hours before the scheduled meeting. Committee attendance reports shall be kept and 


maintained by the Secretary. 


SECTION IV. COMMITTEE REPORTS  


4.1. Annual Reports.  The Committee shall prepare a written report annually, detailing the 


Committee’s findings with respect to the expenditure of parcel tax proceeds. The annual 


report shall be duly approved as to substance by an affirmative vote of not less than two-


778/852







 


A-6 


thirds of the members present at a Committee meeting, a quorum being present, and be 


faithfully articulated to the public only by the Committee Chairperson or an approved 


designee. The annual report shall also be submitted to the District and the Board.  


4.2. Minority Reports.  Reports of minority viewpoints will be allowed. All such reports, 


written and/or oral, that represent the minority’s position must be reviewed, be duly 


approved as to substance without prejudice by a vote of the Committee, and be faithfully 


articulated to the public only by a designated minority spokesperson. To avoid the need 


for minority reports, and to maximize the working relationships on and public confidence 


in the Committee, all due diligence should be pursued to resolve divisive issues during 


the review process, thereby attaining fullest possible Committee support for the content 


of public reports. 


4.3. Individual Member Viewpoints.  Any member of the Committee may speak as an 


individual on parcel tax issues but must clearly state for the record that such statements 


are their own personal views which do not necessarily represent those of the Committee 


or the District. 


SECTION V. AMENDMENTS  


5.1. Effective Upon Board Approval.  These Bylaws and Operational Guidelines shall be 


effective upon approval of the Board. 


5.2. Amendments.  These Bylaws and Operational Guidelines may be amended, changed, 


added to, or repealed by the Board as deemed necessary.  Additional or supplemental 


operational guidelines or procedures may be adopted by the Committee by a majority 


vote of all the members of the Committee, providing such additional or supplemental 


operational guidelines or procedures are not in conflict with these Bylaws and 


Operational Guidelines, any Resolution or Ordinance of the Board, or any state law, 


including but not limited to the provisions of the Brown Act and the Education Code. 


779/852







 


B-1 


EXHIBIT B – COMMITTEE MEMBER APPOINTMENTS 


 


Rob Darrow, Community at Large Representative 


Matt Farrell, Senior Organization Representative 


Linnaea Holgers, Business Community Representative 


Carol McKee, Elementary Parent Representative 


Isabelle Tuncer, Secondary Parent Representative  


780/852







1 
PTOC Bylaws SCCS  - Rev 090617 final 


Santa Cruz City School District  
Parcel Tax Oversight Committee 


 


Bylaws 


Revised 9/6/17 – Board Approved 9/13/17 


1.0 Preamble 


In accordance with the ballot language of the Santa Cruz City School District (“District”) parcel tax 
measures passed by the voters, the Board of Education (“Board”) has established a Parcel Tax Oversight 
Committee (“Committee”) which shall have the duties and rights set forth in these Bylaws. 


2.0 Name, Purpose, and Duties 


2.1 Name 


The name of this organization shall be the "Parcel Tax Oversight Committee” hereinafter referred to as 
the "Committee." 


2.2 Purpose 


The Board established the Committee to inform the public concerning the expenditure and uses of 
revenues from parcel tax measures passed by the voters for the purpose of supporting District programs 
and services.  The Committee’s charge is to review and report on the expenditure of parcel tax revenues 
and to ensure said revenue is expended in accordance with the stated purposes of each parcel tax 
measure, including but not limited to: 


• Measure I: Supports Grades 9-12 Library & Counseling services 


• Measure J: Supports Grades K-8 Art & Music programs, Library programs & Counseling 
services  


• Measure O: Funds middle and high school student career technical education, STEM 
(science, technology, engineering and math) programs, visual and performing arts and job-
training instructional programs; and  after-school athletic and enrichment programs in middle 
and high schools to protect student safety, health and well-being. 


• Measure P: Supports Grades K-3 Class Size Reduction, lowered Class Sizes in Grades 4-6, 
Library services, Art supplies, Life Lab, and other K-6 programs. 


At the discretion of the Board, the Committee’s obligations as set forth in these Bylaws may also be 
extended to future voter-approved parcel taxes supporting District programs and services. 
 
2.3 Duties 


Committee members shall be expected to attend its regularly scheduled meetings, review all pertinent 
information provided to the Committee, and abide by the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (the 
“Brown Act”) (Gov. Code § 54950 et seq.) and all rules of conduct established in these Bylaws. In 
furtherance of its purpose the Committee will engage in the following activities: 


A. Receive and review expenditure reports produced by the District to ensure that parcel tax 
revenue was expended in accordance with the purposes set forth in the ballot language of 
each parcel tax measure as approved by the voters. 


B. Receive and renew annual training regarding the requirements of the Brown  Act. 


781/852







2 
PTOC Bylaws SCCS  - Rev 090617 final 


C. Prepare and present to the Board, in open session, an annual written report (“Annual 
Report”) which will include:  


D. A statement indicating whether the District’s parcel tax revenue expenditures for the 
preceding year were made in accordance with the stated purposes of each parcel tax 
measure. 


E. A summary of the Committee’s proceedings for the preceding year. 


3.0 Committee Composition  


The Committee shall consist of a minimum of five members (and a maximum of seven), including the 
following community representation:  


A. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be active in a business organization 
representing the business community of the District;  


B. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be a member of the community at large;  


C. One member shall, at the time of the appointment, be a member of a Senior Citizen’s 
Organization,   


D. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be a parent or guardian of a child enrolled 
in the Elementary District;  


E. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be a parent or guardian of a child enrolled 
in the High School District.  


F. A single individual may be appointed as a representative of more than one of the above 
categories, if applicable.  


 
3.1 Eligibility 


A. The Committee shall be comprised of individuals who are at least 18 years of age and who 
either live or work within the boundaries of the District.  


B. No employee, official, vendor, contractor, or consultant of the District shall be appointed to 
the Committee.  


C. Committee members shall be subject to prohibitions regarding incompatibility of office 
pursuant to Government Code sections 1125-1129 and financial interest in contracts 
pursuant to Government Code sections 1090-1099. 


 


3.2 Term of Service 


A. Committee members serve without compensation and for no more than two consecutive 
terms. 


B. Appointed Committee members shall be seated for a 4 year term in July of each year, except 
those appointed to replace vacancies.   


3.3 Replacing a Committee Member 


A. If a Committee position becomes vacant, the Committee Chair shall request that the Board 
appoint a replacement in accordance with the process set forth in these Bylaws at Section 3.  


B. Unless failure to act results in the inability to meet a Committee quorum, if six months or less 
remain of the unexpired four-year term, the Board may choose to leave that position vacant 
for the remainder of the term. 


C. A replacement Committee member may be appointed by the Board if one or more of the 
following events occur: 


782/852







3 
PTOC Bylaws SCCS  - Rev 090617 final 


1. The Committee member submits a written resignation to the Board, with a copy to the 
Committee Chair; 


2. The Committee approves a motion to remove a member for cause, including non-
attendance at meetings (ref: Section 5.8 below), violating these Bylaws, and/or violating 
the District’s adopted norms. A motion to remove a member shall be approved by an 
affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of the members present at a Committee 
meeting, a quorum being present. The motion and its result shall be communicated in 
writing to the member under consideration and to the Board President within one week 
after the meeting that the motion was approved. Removal shall be effective immediately 
upon passing the motion. If the motion fails, the member under consideration shall not be 
subject to double jeopardy. 


D. Committee members appointed to fill vacant, unexpired terms may apply and shall be eligible 
for reappointment to a succeeding full four-year term. 


4.0 Committee Officers 


Officers of the Committee shall be a Chair, and a Vice-Chair.  


4.1 Elections 


At the September meeting each year, the Committee shall place into nomination and elect a Chair and a 
Vice-Chair.  


4.2 Term of Office 


Officers shall be elected for a one-year term and shall not be term-limited except for the limit on the terms 
of Committee members set forth in Section 3.2 above. 


4.3 Duties of the Chair 


A. The Chair shall call Committee meetings (ref: Section 5.0 below). 


B. The Chair shall, in consultation with District staff and with input from the Committee, establish 
the agenda for each Committee meeting. (ref: Section 5.1 below) 


C. The Chair shall preside over each Committee meeting, following the adopted Rules of 
Procedure (ref: Section 5.4 below). 


D. The Chair or his/her Committee-approved designee shall serve as spokesperson for the 
Committee in all representations of the Committee to the public, the Board, and the media 
(ref: Section 6.0.A and 6.0.B below). 


E. The Chair may appoint a Parliamentarian to assist in complying with Robert’s Rules of Order 
during Committee meetings (ref: Section 5.4 below). 


4.4 Duties of the Vice-Chair 


The Vice-Chair shall perform each of the duties of the Chair as necessary in the absence of the Chair. 


4.5 Duties of the District-Designated Secretary 


A. Subject to review by the Chair before publishing, the District-designated Secretary shall 
provide oversight in the preparation, recording, and distribution by District-provided support of 
the following documents in accordance with the Brown Act: 


• Committee meeting agendas; 


• All reports, materials, and meeting packets as required by or addressed to the Committee; 


783/852







4 
PTOC Bylaws SCCS  - Rev 090617 final 


• The minutes of Committee meetings (ref: Section 5.8 below); 


• All written material submitted by the public during Committee meetings; 


• All official correspondence addressed to the Committee; 


• Reports adopted by the Committee; 


• Committee attendance records (ref: Section 5.8, below). 


B. The District-designated Secretary shall take and record roll at the beginning of each 
Committee meeting to determine the existence of a quorum. If a quorum ceases to exist 
during a meeting, the District-designated Secretary shall immediately inform the Chair. 


4.6 Succession 


The Vice-Chair will accede to Chair when a vacancy occurs in that office. In the event of a vacancy in the 
office of Vice-Chair, the position will be filled by election, agendized at its next regular Committee 
meeting. 


5.0 Meetings 


A. All Committee meetings subject to the Brown Act will be held in a fully-accessible District 
facility. 


B. The Committee shall meet at least quarterly. 


C. Committee members shall be available to attend Board of Education meetings when reports 
relating to parcel tax measures are presented. 


5.1 Agendas   


A. The Committee will take public comment at the beginning of each meeting. 


B. Agendas for regular Committee meetings will be prepared by its Chair, in consultation with 
District staff and with input from the committee (ref: Section 4.3.B above).  All documents 
applicable to agenda items shall be distributed in advance of meetings. 


C. Any member of the Committee may submit a request for placing an item on a future agenda. 


D. Agendas may include a consent calendar for routine, non-controversial items. These items 
must be clearly identified on published agendas. Any member of the Committee or public 
may request at the meeting that an item be added to the consent calendar or be pulled for 
discussion. 


E. After roll-call and the establishment of a quorum, meetings will begin with a consent calendar 
if appropriate. 


5.2 Quorum 


Actions may be undertaken at a meeting only if half-plus-one of Committee members in office are 
present. 


5.3 Committee Voting 


Unless otherwise specified in these Bylaws (ref: Sections 3.3.C.2 and 6.0.B), an agendized action item 
may be approved by a simple majority of Committee members in attendance, a quorum being present 
(ref: Section 5.2).  Members must be present to vote. 


784/852







5 
PTOC Bylaws SCCS  - Rev 090617 final 


5.4 Rules of Procedure 


Meetings shall be conducted with courtesy and decorum and in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order. 


5.5 California's Open Meeting Law 


All meetings of the Committee shall be open to the public and shall be noticed and conducted in strict 
compliance with the Brown Act. 


5.6 Public Participation 


Any member of the public present at a meeting may address the Committee during the period designated 
for public comment. The Chair may, at his/her discretion, choose in advance to place an equal time limit 
on all speakers. 


5.7 Minutes 


Minutes of Committee proceedings and all documents received and reports issued shall be a matter of 
public record, and to the extent practicable, the District shall make them available on the District’s 
website. The District shall provide secretarial/clerical services to assist the Committee Chair in 
preparation, distribution, and posting of minutes for all Committee meetings (ref: Section 4.5 above). 
Minutes published before adoption by the Committee shall always be labeled "Draft Minutes." 


5.8 Attendance 


Regular attendance at Committee meetings is a fundamental obligation of every member of the 
Committee. Absences are disruptive to Committee activity and representation. Failure to attend two 
consecutive meetings without acceptable reason announced in advance shall constitute due cause for 
member removal (ref: Section 3.3.). 


A. Members anticipating an absence must call or email the Committee Chair or District-
designated Secretary no later than 24 hours before the scheduled meeting. 


B. Committee attendance reports will be distributed annually and upon request by the Chair. 


5.9 Committee Reports 


A. The Committee shall prepare regular reports on its activities. A report shall be issued at least 
once each year. 


B. Any such reports, written and/or oral, that represent the Committee’s position must proceed 
from Committee review, be duly approved as to substance by an affirmative vote of not less 
than two-thirds of the members present at a Committee meeting, a quorum being present, 
and be faithfully articulated to the public only by the Committee Chair or an approved 
designee. 


C. Reports of minority viewpoints will be allowed. All such reports, written and/or oral, that 
represent the minority’s position must be reviewed, be duly approved as to substance without 
prejudice by a vote of the Committee, and be faithfully articulated to the public only by a 
designated minority spokesperson.  To avoid the need for minority reports, and to maximize 
the working relationships on and public confidence in the Committee, all due diligence should 
be pursued to resolve divisive issues during the review process, thereby attaining fullest 
possible Committee support for the content of public reports. 


D. Any member of the Committee may speak as an individual on parcel tax issues but must 
clearly state for the record that such statements are their own personal views which do not 
necessarily represent those of the Committee or the District. 


 


785/852







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Fieldturf Proposal for Mission Hills Middle School Athletic Field 
Replacement 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Fieldturf proposal for Mission Hill Middle School athletic field replacement. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of purchase and installation of a new artificial field including all baseball, 
softball and soccer markings and synthetic track resurfacing at Mission Hill Middle School. This 
will replace the existing field that has reached the end of its useful life and has areas that no 
longer pass impact tests. This is being purchased through the California Multiple Award 
Schedule contract 4-06-78-0031A. This was discussed and approved by the site bond 
committee.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$2,783,284.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 15.77% of the overall site budget 
$17,648,740.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Mission Hill Middle School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


786/852







 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


  


 
175 N. Industrial Blvd, Calhoun, GA  30701 • Toll Free: 1-800-724-2969 • Website: http://www.fieldturf.com 


 


CMAS QUOTATION  


CA LICENSE # 849044 
CMAS Contract # 4-06-78-0031A 


 
This QUOTATION is dated this 2nd day of October 2020. 
 
Between: Mission Hills Middle School (The “Customer”) 
  250 Tamarack Dr. 


Union City, CA 94587  
       
And:  FieldTurf USA, Inc.  (The “Supplier”)     


175 N. Industrial Blvd 
Calhoun, GA 30701   


 
  Tel: 1-800-724-2969 
  Fax: (514) 340-9374 
 
 
WHEREAS Supplier wishes to sell, supply and install an artificial in-filled playing surface 
identified as FieldTurf 2” Vertex Prime CORE PureSelect for use as an outdoor field 
measuring approximately 94,759 sq. ft. as well as 1,584 sq yds of BSS 2000RE and BSS 
300 track surfacing to the Customer located at Mission Hills Middle School located at 250 
Tamarack Dr., Union City, CA 94587 
 
WHEREAS the Customer wishes to purchase same on the preliminary terms and conditions 
set out below;  
 
 
QUOTATION / ESTIMATE DETAILS: 
 
THE PRODUCT  
 
The Supplier hereby agrees to sell, to supply and to install FieldTurf 2” Vertex Prime CORE 
PureSelect, 2 inches thick outdoor artificial grass in-filled playing surface for use as a 
Baseball/Softball/Soccer field measuring approximately 94,759 sq. ft. (the “Product”) to be 
installed on a suitable existing base at the Site as well as 1,584 sq yds of BSS 2000RE and 
BSS 300 track surfacing.  
 
SUPPLY OF PRODUCT 


 
The Supplier shall perform the work required by this Agreement as diligently and 
expeditiously as is consistent with the highest professional standards and the orderly 
progress of the work and in a good and workmanlike fashion, and subject to and in 
accordance with the terms and conditions hereof. 


787/852







 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


  175 N. Industrial Blvd, Calhoun, GA  30701 • Toll Free: 1-800-724-2969 • Website: http://www.fieldturf.com 


 


 
The Supplier requires a minimum of 6 weeks lead time from the acceptance of layouts and 
approval of all plans prior to any work commencing at the Site. 
 
SITE PREPARATION WORK 
 


The Supplier shall provide the site preparation work (limited to minor touch-ups of the base 
surface) in accordance with the specifications provided in this Letter of Commitment.  The 
site preparation work will be subject to the same conditions and requirements indicated in 
Section 7 “Installation” hereof.  Notwithstanding, any work regarding the base and ensuring 
its planarity is specifically excluded from the Supplier’s scope of work.  On occasion, a base 
will present unique issues, once uncovered upon removal of the existing turf, which may 
require the import of additional materials and/or the provision of labor to remedy planarity or 
other deflections in the existing surface.  In the event this becomes necessary at the Site, 
FieldTurf can assist with this process at an additional cost.   
 
PRICE 
 
The purchase price for the Product fully installed shall be $2,496,629(the “Purchase Price”), 


as set out below, plus any other permanent inlaid lines, logos, applicable taxes, bonding cost 
and any other unforeseen costs.  
  
The Purchase Price is subject to increase if affected by a tax increase, new taxes, and levies 
or any new legally binding imposition affecting the transaction.  
 
 
A 2 Inch, FieldTurf Vertex Prime CORE PureSelect series turf:    
 


Cost per square foot (approximately)  $5.05/SF 


Sub Total: $478,448 


Inlaid Baseball markings INCLUDED 


Inlaid Softball markings   INCLUDED 


Inlaid Soccer markings INCLUDED 


Base Work (Scope attached) $1,543,175 


Brock Powerbase YSR and Mirafi 140N Liner $207,932 


Velcro Replacement Kits for softball and baseball fields $27,270 


Replacement of Soccer goal mouth, corner kick areas, goal kick 
areas, and bases 


$34,340 


Maintenance Equipment (GreensGroomer with Spring Tine Rake and 
Extension wings, and Litterkat with tow-behind magnet) 


$14,645 


8 year 3rd Party Insured Warranty INCLUDED 


788/852







 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


  175 N. Industrial Blvd, Calhoun, GA  30701 • Toll Free: 1-800-724-2969 • Website: http://www.fieldturf.com 


 


GMAX Testing (5 Total) $7,575 


Pre-Shipment Testing (1 Total) $2,222 


Beynon Synthetic Track Surfacing 
BSS 2000RE 7mm & BSS 300 
1,584 Total Square yards of BSS 2000RE, includes  
192 square yards of BSS 300 


$114,665 


5 Year Track Warranty INCLUDED 


CMAS Fees INCLUDED 


Bonding Costs  $28,368 


Sales Tax on materials only (9.25%) $37,989 


Total Contract Cost $2,496,629 


 
Alternate 1  
Protective Barrier Netting      ADD $272,869 
 
Alternate 2 
SWPPP plan and QSP/QSD services throughout the project (3 months) ADD $13,786 
 
 
The Purchase Price shall be payable to Supplier by way of wire transfer or banker’s cheque 
in accordance with the following payment schedule:  
 


i) Thirty five percent (35%) of the Purchase Price due upon Customer’s 


execution of the Supplier’s Sales Agreement; 
 


ii) Thirty-five percent (35%) of the Purchase Price on delivery and receipt of 


the components of the Product to the Site; 
 


iii) Twenty percent (20%) of the Purchase Price upon completion of the work; 


 
iv) Remaining balance ten percent (10%) upon the signing of the Certificate of 


Completion.  
 
The Supplier will issue an invoice to Customer upon the occurrence of each of the events 
listed above, and payment of each invoice is due within 10 days following the date to the 
applicable invoice. 
 
Any unpaid balance bears interest at a rate of 10% per year.  
 
ACCEPTANCE 
 
Upon the Supplier giving the Customer notice of completion of the work, the parties agree, 
acting reasonably, to mutually determine whether same conforms to the requirements of this 


789/852







 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


  175 N. Industrial Blvd, Calhoun, GA  30701 • Toll Free: 1-800-724-2969 • Website: http://www.fieldturf.com 


 


Agreement and in the event the parties mutually determine that there are deficiencies, the 
Supplier will undertake to correct the deficiencies noted (“Acceptance”); 
 


Upon Acceptance, both parties sign the Certificate of Completion in the form currently in 
force; 
 
The Warranty currently in force takes effect upon the signing of the Certificate of Completion. 
 
No use whatsoever shall be made of the field by the Customer until the Certificate of 
Completion is signed and delivered to Supplier. 
 
Any such use will be deemed as Acceptance of the field, triggering final payment and will 
automatically void any and all warranty of the work, subject to the reinstatement of the 
Warranty later at the discretion of the Supplier upon the signing of the Certificate of 
Completion and final payment. 
 
The Customer shall prohibit use of the field if the Customer alleges said field to be 
incomplete or dangerous.  For greater security, in the event that the Customer deems the 
field to be incomplete or dangerous the Customer will immediately notify its insurers of this 
additional risk. 
  
 
 
INSTALLATION 
 
The installation of the Product shall be performed by Supplier’s designated and approved 
installers. The Customer agrees to allow representatives of Supplier all necessary 
uninterrupted access and suitable staging area to the site for purposes of installation, and 
inspection.  All lighting and electrical supply must be operational during the installation 
process.  
 
Minimum staging area required is 11,371 square feet and no more than 100 feet from the 


field. Minimum access should be 15 feet wide by 15 feet high. A 25 feet wide by 25 feet long 
hard or paved surface area located within 50 feet of the playing surface shall be provided for 
purposes of proper mixing of in-fill material.  Access to any field will include suitable bridging 
by the Customer over the field curbs from the staging area to permit suitable access to the 
field by low clearance vehicles.  
 
Force Majeure.  No Party shall be liable for delay or failure to perform under this Agreement 
if such delay or failure is due to any contingency beyond its reasonable control, including 
acts of God, war, explosion, fire, flood or civil disturbance or labor actions, disputes and 
disruptions by the employees or sub-trades of either Party hereto or delay or destruction 
caused by public carrier. 
 
In addition to force majeure, the parties recognize that in certain cases severe weather while 
not constituting force majeure could delay the installation process of the work contemplated 
under this agreement.  


790/852







 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


  175 N. Industrial Blvd, Calhoun, GA  30701 • Toll Free: 1-800-724-2969 • Website: http://www.fieldturf.com 


 


 
The Supplier shall not be responsible for any acts of violence or vandalism. The Customer 
holds Supplier harmless and indemnifies the Supplier from vandalism and acts of violence 
regarding the present project. 
 
The Customer understands that it is to its benefit and therefore undertakes to accept and 
store for the length of the warranty period, the remaining synthetic turf left over from the 
project in case of need.   
  
 
THIS QUOTATION IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE 
SUPPLIER’S STANDARD SALES AGREEMENT WHICH SHALL PREVAIL OVER THIS 
QUOTATION, AND BE SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE FROM TIME TO TIME.  
 
THIS QUOTATION IS OPEN FOR ACCEPTANCE FOR A PERIOD OF 3 MONTHS, AFTER 
WHICH TIME, IF NOT ACCEPTED, IT WILL BE NULL AND VOID.  
 
FOR QUESTIONS, PLEASE CONTACT YOUR FIELDTURF REPRESENTATIVE IN 
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA; ANDREW ROWLEY BY TELEPHONE (707) 586-2066, EMAIL 
INFO@FIELDTURFNORCAL.COM, OR FAX (707) 313-0167.  
 
 
 
 
ACCEPTED QUOTATIONS, DULY SIGNED SHALL BE SENT TO: 
 
1- DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES (DGS), PROCUREMENT DIVISION, DATA 
MANAGEMENT, 707 THIRD STREET, 2ND FLOOR, WEST SACREMENTO, CALIFORNIA, 
95605-2811 (IMS#Z-1).  
 
AND  
 
2- FIELDTURF USA, INC. 7445 COTE-DE-LIESSE ROAD, SUITE 200, MONTREAL, 
QUEBEC, H4T 1G2, TELEPHONE (514) 340-9311, FAX (514) 340 9374 
ATTENTION: LINDSAY AGATTAS, PRICING AND PROJECT MANAGER.  
 
READ, AGREED, AND ACCEPTED 
 
 
Per:____________________________________ 


 


791/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: J-13A Attendance Waiver 
 
MEETING DATE: November 4, 2020  
 
FROM: Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the J-13A Attendance Waiver application. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In August of this year, wildfires in the Santa Cruz mountains forced hundreds of District families 
and staff members to evacuate their homes. On August 25, 2020 Santa Cruz County declared a 
state of emergency. In response to the evacuations, Santa Cruz City Schools cancelled classes 
from August 21 through August 28. Pursuant to Education Code 41422, school districts may 
apply for a waiver in the event of an emergency that forces school closure.  The waiver allows 
the District to receive the same apportionment despite missed instructional days. 
 
Due to the wildfires at the start of the school year, Santa Cruz City Schools will apply for the J-
13A waiver. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$492,384 -- Elementary 
$1,261,600 -- Secondary  
Total projection -- $1,753,984 based on current funding. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 
 


792/852







FORM J-13A, REVISED DECEMBER 2017 
SECTION A: REQUEST INFORMATION  


• This form is used to obtain approval of attendance and instructional time credit pursuant to Education Code (EC) sections 41422, 46200, 46391, 46392 and California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 5, Section 428. 
• Only schools that report Principal Apportionment average daily attendance (ADA) for the purpose of calculating a K–12 Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) entitlement should submit this form. 
• Refer  to the instructions  and frequently asked questions at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/pa/j13a.asp  for information regarding the completion of this form.


PART I: LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCY (LEA) 


   
 


   


    
           


 


  


  


  


 


  


  


 


 


  


     LEA NAME: COUNTY CODE: DISTRICT CODE: CHARTER NUMBER (IF APPLICABLE): 


LEA SUPERINTENDENT OR ADMINISTRATOR NAME: FISCAL YEAR: 


ADDRESS: COUNTY NAME: 


CITY: STATE: ZIP CODE: 


CONTACT NAME: TITLE: PHONE: E-MAIL: 


        PART II:  LEA TYPE AND SCHOOL SITE INFORMATION APPLICABLE TO THIS REQUEST (Choose only one LEA type): 
     


  
   


     


☐ SCHOOL DISTRICT ☐ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION (COE) ☐  CHARTER SCHOOL  
Choose one of the following: Choose one of the following: 


☐ All district school sites 
☐


☐  
☐


All COE school sites 
   Select district school sites Select COE school sites 


PART III:  CONDITION(S)  APPLICABLE TO THIS REQUEST:  


 


  


    
        


            
 


 
      


         
                                


                     
 


       
          


              
            


           
      


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS 


 


☐ There was a Declaration of a State of Emergency by the Governor of California during the dates associated with this request. 


☐ SCHOOL CLOSURE: When one or more schools were closed because of conditions described in EC Section 41422. LCFF apportionments should be maintained and instructional time credited in Section B for the 
school(s) without regard to the fact that the school(s) were closed on the dates listed, due to the nature of the emergency. Approval of this request authorizes the LEA to disregard these days in the computation of 
ADA (per EC Section 41422) without applicable penalty and obtain credit for instructional time for the days and the instructional minutes that would have been regularly offered on those days pursuant to EC Section 
46200, et seq. 


☐ MATERIAL DECREASE: When one or more schools were kept open but experienced a material decrease in attendance pursuant to EC Section 46392 and CCR, Title 5, Section 428. Material decrease requests that 
include all school sites within the school district must demonstrate that the school district as a whole experienced a material decrease in attendance. Material decrease requests for one or more but not all sites within the school 
district must show that each site included in the request experienced a material decrease in attendance pursuant to EC Section 46392 and CCR, Title 5, Section 428. The request for substitution of estimated days of 
attendance for actual days of attendance is in accordance with the provisions of EC Section 46392. Approval of this request will authorize use of the estimated days of attendance in the computation of LCFF 
apportionments for the described school(s) and dates in Section C during which school attendance was materially decreased due to the nature of the emergency. 


☐ There was a Declaration of a State of Emergency by the Governor of California during the dates associated with this request. 


LOST OR DESTROYED ATTENDANCE RECORDS: When attendance records have been lost or destroyed as described in EC Section 46391. Requesting the use of estimated attendance in lieu of attendance that 
cannot be verified due to the loss or destruction of attendance records. This request is made pursuant to EC Section 46391: 


“Whenever any attendance records of any district have been lost or destroyed, making it impossible for an accurate report on average daily attendance for the district for any fiscal year to be rendered, which fact 
shall be shown to the satisfaction of the Superintendent of Public Instruction by the affidavits of the members of the governing board of the district and the county superintendent of schools, the Superintendent of 
Public Instruction shall estimate the average daily attendance of such district. The estimated average daily attendance shall be deemed to be the actual average daily attendance for that fiscal year for the 
making of apportionments to the school district from the State School Fund.” 


☐ 


Form J-13A | 1 793/852







FORM J-13A, REVISED DECEMBER 2017 


SECTION B: SCHOOL CLOSURE  ☐ Not Applicable (Proceed to Section C) 
PART I: NATURE OF EMERGENCY (Describe in detail.) ☐ Supplemental Page(s) Attached 


PART II: SCHOOL INFORMATION (Use the supplemental Excel form at http ://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/pa/j13a.asp if more than 10 lines are needed for this request. Attach a copy of a school calendar. If the request is for 
multiple school sites, and the sites have differing school calendars, attach a copy of each different school calendar to the request.) 


A B C D E F G H I 


School Name School Code Site Type 
Days in School 


Calendar 
Emergency Days 


Built In 
Built In Emergency 


Days Used Date(s) of Emergency Closure Closure Dates Requested 
Total Number of 
Days Requested 


   
 


   


  


   
  


               
             


         
     


          


       
      


 


      


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS 


PART III: CLOSURE HISTORY (List closure history for all schools in Part II. Refer to the instructions for an example.) 
A B C D E F 


School Name School Code Fiscal Year Closure Dates Nature 


Weather 
Related 
Yes/No 


Form J-13A | 2 794/852







   
 


 


  


  
    


FORM J-13A, REVISED DECEMBER 2017 


SECTION C: MATERIAL DECREASE  Not Applicable (Proceed to Section D) 
PART I: NATURE OF EMERGENCY (Describe in detail.) Supplemental Page(s) Attached 


PART II: MATERIAL DECREASE CALCULATION (Use the supplemental Excel file at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/pa/j13a.asp if more than 10 lines are needed for this request. Refer to the instructions for information 
on completing the form including the definition of “normal” attendance.) 


           
  


        


  
 


     
 


  


A B C D E F G* H 


School Name School Code 
“Normal” Attendance 


(October/May) 
Dates Used for Determining 


“Normal” Attendance Date of Emergency Actual Attendance 
Qualifier: 90% or 


Less (F/C) 
Net Increase of 


Apportionment Days (C-F) 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


-


-


-


-


-


-


-


-


-


-


   Total: 


         
      


        


PART III: MATERIAL DECREASE CALCULATION FOR CONTINUATION HIGH SCHOOLS (Provide the attendance in hours. Use the supplemental Excel file at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/pa/j13a.asp if more than 5 
lines are needed for this request. Refer to the instructions for information on completing the form including the definition of “normal” attendance.) 


A B C D E F G* H 
    


          


 


Date Used for Determining Actual Attendance Qualifier: 90% or Net Increase of Hours 
School Name School Code “Normal” Attendance Hours “Normal” ttendance Date of Emergency Hours Less (F/C) (C-F) 


Total: 


      


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS 


☐ 
☐ 


*Qualifier should be 90% or less except when the governor declares a state of emergency or in the case of a Necessary Small School (NSS) site.


Form J-13A | 3 795/852







FORM J-13A, REVISED DECEMBER 2017 


SECTION D: LOST OR DESTROYED ATTENDANCE RECORDS ☐ Not Applicable (Proceed to Section E) 
PART I: PERIOD OF REQUEST The entire period covered by the lost or destroyed records commences with _______________________________ up to and including _______________________________. 
PART II: CIRCUMSTANCES (Describe below circumstances and extent of records lost or destroyed.) 


   
 


   


                


  


    
        


PART III: PROPOSAL (Describe below the proposal to reconstruct attendance records or estimate attendance in the absence of records.)        


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS 


Form J-13A | 4 796/852







FORM J-13A, REVISED DECEMBER 2017 


SECTION E: AFFIDAVIT 
PART I:  AFFIDAVIT OF SCHOOL DISTRICT, COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, OR CHARTER SCHOOL  GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS  – All applicable sections below must be completed to process this J-13A request. 


PART II: APPROVAL BY SUPERINTENDENT OF CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORIZER (Only applicable to charter school requests) 


We, members constituting a majority of the governing board of ___ hereby swear (or affirm) that the foregoing statements are true and are based on official records. _______________________________________________, 
Board Members Names Board Members Signatures 


 
 


 
    


   
    


   
 


   


  


  
 


      


 
 


 


  
   


 


 


 


 
  


 


  
  


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS 


At least a majority of the members of the governing  board shall execute this affidavit.  


Subscribed and sworn (or affirmed) before me, this  day of __ _____________________________,  ______________.  _______________________________ 


Witness


 


 


:  Title: ounty, California 
(Name) (Signature) 


______________________________ of  ________________________________ C


Superintendent (or designee): 


  


Authorizing LEA Name:
(Name) (Signature) 


PART III: AFFIDAVIT OF COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
The information and statements contained in the foregoing request are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. 


County Superintendent of Schools (or designee):


  


(Name) (Signature) 


Subscribed and sworn (or affirmed) before me, this _______________________________ day of __ _____________________________,  ______________.  


Witness: 


COE contact/individual respons
Name: 


(Name) 


ible for completing this section: 
Title: 


(Signature) 


Phone: 


Title: ____ ounty, California 


E-mail:


_______________________ of  ____________________________ C


  


Form J-13A | 5 797/852







CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS, FORM J-13A (REVISED DECEMBER 2017)
SUPPLEMENTAL FORM FOR SCHOOL CLOSURE
SECTION B - PART II: SCHOOL INFORMATION


LEA NAME: FISCAL YEAR: 2020-2021


A B C D E F G H I


School Name
School 
Code Site Type


Days in 
School 


Calendar


Emergency 
Days Built 


In


Built In 
Emergency 
Days Used


Date(s) of Emergency 
Closure


Closure Dates 
Requested


Total 
Number of 


Days 
Requested


Bayview Elementary 6049860 Traditional 180 0 0 08/21/2020-8/28/2020 08/21/20-8/28/20 6
DeLaveaga Elementary 6049886 Traditional 180 0 0 08/21/2020-8/28/2020 08/21/20-8/28/20 6
Gault Elementary 6049894 Traditional 180 0 0 08/21/2020-8/28/2020 08/21/20-8/28/20 6
Westlake Elementary 6049928 Traditional 180 0 0 08/21/2020-8/28/2020 08/21/20-8/28/20 6
Branciforte Middle School 6060149 Traditional 180 0 0 08/21/2020-8/28/2020 08/21/20-8/28/20 6
Mission Hill Middle School 6060156 Traditional 180 0 0 08/21/2020-8/28/2020 08/21/20-8/28/20 6
Harbor High School 4432340 Traditional 180 0 0 08/21/2020-8/28/2020 08/21/20-8/28/20 6
Santa Cruz High School 4437109 Traditional 180 0 0 08/21/2020-8/28/2020 08/21/20-8/28/20 6
Soquel High School 4437406 Traditional 180 0 0 08/21/2020-8/28/2020 08/21/20-8/28/20 6
Alternative Family Education 4430195 Alternative School 180 0 0 08/21/2020-8/28/2020 08/21/20-8/28/20 6
Ark Independent Study 4430096 Alternative School 180 0 0 08/21/2020-8/28/2020 08/21/20-8/28/20 6
Costanoa High School 4436960 Continuation School 180 0 0 08/21/2020-8/28/2020 08/21/20-8/28/20 6
Monarch Elementary 6108203 Alternative School 180 0 0 08/21/2020-8/28/2020 08/21/20-8/28/20 6


Santa Cruz City School District
Refer to the instructions and frequently asked questions at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/pa/j13a.asp  for information regarding the completion of this form. Before 
printing, select and hide all unused rows. Contact CDE if the request requires more than the allotted rows.


Page 1 of 1
798/852







 


 


BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr 
Ms. Rose Filicetti 
Ms. Sandra Nichols 
Ms. Sue Roth 
Mr. Dana M. Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez 
Mr. Bruce Van Allen 


400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 ⬩ Tel (831) 466-5600 ⬩ Fax (831) 466-5607 ⬩ www.santacruzcoe.org 
 
August 31, 2020 
 
Attn: Elizabeth Dearstyne, Director 
California Department of Education 
1430 N. Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
Re: Letter in Support of J13-A Waivers for Santa Cruz County Schools 
 
Dear Ms. Dearstyne, 
 
Due to the extensive impacts the CZU Lightning Complex fire has had on all Santa Cruz County school                  
districts, I am writing to respectfully request that the California Department of Education accept J13-A               
waivers for all schools in Santa Cruz County, both within and beyond evacuation zones, who have had to                  
suspend instructional programs due to evacuations and environmental hazards. 
 
The CZU Lightning Complex fire has been named the second largest fire in California’s history. As of this                  
morning, the CZU Lightning Fire has scorched 84,860 acres of land in the Santa Cruz mountain region,                 
forcing 77,000 people to evacuate their homes and destroying at least 861 residences and counting. 77,000                
people represent over 30% of our county’s population who have been directly impacted by this event. The                 
damage caused by this fire has still not been fully accounted for as damage inspection teams continue to                  
review devastated areas of our community.  
 
The fire has imposed severe loss and disruption to a significant percentage of Santa Cruz County school                 
personnel and the families we serve. Beyond the four school districts which were ordered to evacuate and                 
remain physically inaccessible at this time, five other school districts were forced to suspend instructional               
programs because the number of staff directly impacted by the fires and unable to work was too great to                   
continue to operate. Families and school personnel in our county are reeling from complete or partial loss of                  
their homes, ongoing evacuations, hazardous air quality index (AQI) of over 150, power outages, inability to                
access distance learning programs due to loss of devices, and the impacts of closure of feeder school                 
districts.  
 
Our county is coming together to support each other and rebuild, but in the meantime, we ask for your                   
support during this extremely difficult time to accept the submission of J13-A forms from all Santa Cruz                 
County school districts. Should you have any questions or require further information, please feel free to                
contact me at (831)466-5900 or fsabbah@santacruzcoe.org. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Dr. Faris Sabbah  
County Superintendent of Schools 
 


 


799/852







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


800/852







801/852







802/852







BEFORE THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


RESOLUTION NO.____________ 


On the motion of Supervisor  ________________ 
Duly seconded by Supervisor ________________ 
The following resolution is adopted:  


RESOLUTION RATIFYING EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY 


WHEREAS, Santa Cruz County Code Section 2.26.040 empowers the Director of 
Emergency Services to proclaim the existence or threatened existence of a local emergency when 
said county is affected or likely to be affected by a public calamity and the County Board of 
Supervisors is not in session, subject to ratification by the County Board of Supervisors within 
seven (7) days; and  


WHEREAS, conditions of extreme peril to safety of persons and property have arisen 
within this County, caused by the wildfires known as the CZU August Lightning Complex Fires, 
that began on or about August 15, 2020, and have destroyed structures and threatened numerous 
residences and acres of valuable wildland and watershed resulting in evacuations and 
displacement of residents; road closures; areas of isolation; damage to property and utility 
systems; and damage to critical infrastructure and endangered species within the County of 
Santa Cruz; and 


WHEREAS, the wildfires continue burning out of control, with minimal containment 
reported as of this date; the wildfires have charred in excess of 50,000 acres in the Counties of 
Santa Cruz and San Mateo, damaged or destroyed multiple homes and structures, are threatening 
numerous residences and accessory buildings, and damaged power, phone and other critical 
infrastructure in the fire area; have caused the evacuation of approximately 64,000 people, with 
more people expected to be required to evacuate in response to the fires; and there is a 
continuing and imminent threat to yet more persons and properties; and 


WHEREAS the Director of Emergency Services of the County of Santa Cruz did 
proclaim the existence of a Local Emergency within said County on the 19th day of August, 
2020;  


NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the 
proclamation of a Local Emergency by the Director of Emergency Services of the County of 
Santa Cruz is hereby ratified, and that said Local Emergency shall be deemed to continue to exist 
until its termination is proclaimed by the County Board of Supervisors of the County of Santa 
Cruz.  


// 


185-2020


McPherson
Coonerty


Adopted 08/25/2020
Board of SupervisorsDOC-2020-701


DocuSign Envelope ID: AE966F84-A33D-4C36-869B-C9E5196D3239
04.a


X


803/852







PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Santa Cruz, State of 
California, this ____ day of August, 2020, by the following vote:  


______________________________ 
GREG CAPUT 
CHAIRPERSON OF SAID BOARD 


ATTEST: 


______________________________ 
SUSAN GALLOWAY 
CLERK OF THE BOARD  


APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


______________________________ 
COUNTY COUNSEL 


Distribution:  Board of Supervisors 
Governor Newsom 
Santa Cruz County Sheriff-Coroner 
Santa Cruz County Office of Emergency Services  
Emergency Consolidated Communications Center  
Congressmember Jimmy Panetta 
Congressmember Anna Eshoo 
Senator Bill Monning 
Assemblymember Mark Stone 
California Office of Emergency Services 
City of Santa Cruz Emergency Services Coordinator  
City of Capitola Emergency Services Coordinator 
City of Scotts Valley Emergency Services Coordinator 
City of Watsonville Emergency Services Coordinator  
County Counsel 
Public Works 
General Services 


AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:


SUPERVISORS
SUPERVISORS
SUPERVISORS
SUPERVISORS


25th


Leopold, Friend, Coonerty, McPherson, Caput
None


None
None


8/21/2020  (AMS# 9521) 


DocuSign Envelope ID: AE966F84-A33D-4C36-869B-C9E5196D3239


804/852







BY THE DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 
OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


PROCLAMATION OF EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY 


WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 5279 of the County of Santa Cruz, codified as Santa Cruz 
County Code, Section 2.26.040, empowers the Director of Emergency Services to proclaim the 
existence or threatened existence of a local emergency when said county is affected or likely to 
be affected by a public calamity; and 


WHEREAS, the wildfires known as the CZU August Lightning Complex Fires that 
began on August 15, 2020 have destroyed structures and threatened numerous residences and 
acres of valuable wildland and watershed resulting in evacuations and displacement ofresidents; 
road closures; areas of isolation; damage to property and utility systems; and damage to critical 
infrastructure and endangered species within the County of Santa Cruz; and 


WHEREAS, the wildfires are still burning out of control, with minimal containment 
reported as of this date; the wildfires have charred in excess of 11,000 acres in the Counties of 
Santa Cruz and San Mateo, damaged or destroyed multiple homes and structures, are threatening 
numerous residences and accessory buildings, and damaged power, phone and other critical 
infrastructure in the fire area; and there is an imminent threat to yet more properties at risk for 
additional damage and/or destruction; and, 


WHEREAS, efforts to bring these wildfires under control, and to assist the affected 
population and restore the burned area and/or recover from the effects of the wildfire damage, 
involve assets from Santa Cruz County government, other local governments in Santa Cruz 
County, and other local governments within California, as well as California State and federal 
fire and law enforcement assets, the American Red Cross and other volunteer organizations; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Emergency Services has contacted each member of the 
Board of Supervisors to inform them of the facts giving rise to the existence or threatened 
existence oflocal emergency, and received their advice and counsel, and granted the Board the 
opportunity to come into session; and 


WHEREAS, neither the chairperson nor a majority of the Board has deemed it necessary 
to come into session: 


NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS PROCLAIMED AS FOLLOWS: 


I. The wildfires extant in the County of Santa Cruz pose a threat to the safety of 
persons and their property, and that such conditions have existed since 08:00 am on August 16, 
2020 and are projected to continue for, at a minimum, eleven (11) days from the date this 
Proclamation is executed. 


2. A local emergency, as defined in Government Section 8558(c) and Public 
Contract Code Section 1102, now exists throughout the County of Santa Cruz. 


Exhibit 


DocuSign Envelope ID: AE966F84-A33D-4C36-869B-C9E5196D3239


805/852











Emergency Consolidated Communications Center 
Congressmember Jimmy Panetta 
Congressmember Anna Eshoo 
Senator Bill Manning 


Assemblymember Mark Stone 
California Office of Emergency Services 
City of Santa Cruz Emergency Services Coordinator 
City of Capitola Emergency Services Coordinator 


City of Scotts Valley Emergency Services Coordinator 
City of Watsonville Emergency Services Coordinator 
County Counsel 
Public Works 


DocuSign Envelope ID: AE966F84-A33D-4C36-869B-C9E5196D3239


807/852







Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: AE966F84A33D4C36869BC9E5196D3239 Status: Completed


Subject: Resolution 185-2020 adopted Aug 25 BOS (DOC-2020-701) eSignature


Source Envelope: 


Document Pages: 5 Signatures: 5 Envelope Originator: 


Certificate Pages: 2 Initials: 0 Susan Galloway


AutoNav: Enabled


EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled


Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)


408 St Peter Street


Saint Paul, MN  55102


susan.galloway@co.santa-cruz.ca.us


IP Address: 69.5.90.9      


Record Tracking
Status: Original


             8/25/2020 12:06:05 PM


Holder: Susan Galloway


             susan.galloway@co.santa-cruz.ca.us


Location: DocuSign


Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Jason M. Heath


Jason.Heath@co.santa-cruz.ca.us


Accela, Inc.


Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device


Using IP Address: 63.194.190.100


Sent: 8/25/2020 12:06:07 PM


Viewed: 8/25/2020 4:02:16 PM 


Signed: 8/25/2020 4:02:31 PM


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign


Greg Caput


Greg.Caput@co.santa-cruz.ca.us


eSign


Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device


Using IP Address: 63.194.190.100


Sent: 8/25/2020 4:02:32 PM


Viewed: 8/26/2020 9:47:15 AM 


Signed: 8/26/2020 9:47:23 AM


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign


Susan Galloway


Susan.Galloway@co.santa-cruz.ca.us


Chief Deputy, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors


County of Santa Cruz


Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)


Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device


Using IP Address: 24.245.77.224


Sent: 8/26/2020 9:47:25 AM


Viewed: 8/27/2020 10:09:26 AM 


Signed: 8/27/2020 10:09:43 AM


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign


CBD eSignature


CBD.eSignature@co.santa-cruz.ca.us


Clerk of the Board of Supervisors


County of Santa Cruz


Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)


Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device


Using IP Address: 24.245.77.224


Sent: 8/27/2020 10:09:45 AM


Viewed: 8/27/2020 10:10:41 AM 


Signed: 8/27/2020 10:11:25 AM


Freeform Signing


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign


In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp


808/852







Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp


Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp


Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp


Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp


Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Jillian Ritter


Jillian.Ritter@co.santa-cruz.ca.us


eSign


Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)


Sent: 8/27/2020 10:11:26 AM


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign


County Administrative Office


Nancy.Weitzel@santacruzcounty.us


Accela, Inc.


Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)


Sent: 8/27/2020 10:11:27 AM


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign


Witness Events Signature Timestamp


Notary Events Signature Timestamp


Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 8/27/2020 10:11:27 AM


Certified Delivered Security Checked 8/27/2020 10:11:27 AM


Signing Complete Security Checked 8/27/2020 10:11:27 AM


Completed Security Checked 8/27/2020 10:11:27 AM


Payment Events Status Timestamps


809/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Opening of Sunshine Period for Santa Cruz City Schools to the 


Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers K-12 Unit for the 2020-
21 School Year 


 
DATE:    November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Santa Cruz City Schools’ 2020-21 contract proposals to the Greater Santa Cruz 
Federation of Teachers’ K-12 Unit for sunshining. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Santa Cruz City Schools’ contract proposals are being submitted for sunshining at the 
November 4, 2020 Board Meeting.  This in accordance with the Employees Relations Act for 
public notice of contract proposals before official negotiations may begin.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Undetermined at this time. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 
 
 
 
 


810/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1 
 


Board of Trustees 


Sheila Coonerty, John Owen, Cynthia Ranii, Jeremy Shonick, Patricia Threet, Deborah Tracy-Proulx, Claudia Vestal 


 


 


 


133 Mission Street, Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95060  |  (831) 429-3410  |  www.sccs.net  


   Kris Munro                  Molly Parks           Jimmy Monreal         Dorothy Coito 


Superintendent of           Assistant Superintendent    Assistant Superintendent               Assistant Superintendent 


     Schools               Human Resources         Business Services    Educational Services 


     


 


   


2020-21 Sunshine Items 


from SCCS to GSCFT 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


November 4, 2020 


 


 
The Santa Cruz City Schools proposes to open on the following articles for negotiations with the Greater Santa 


Cruz Federation of Teachers’, K-12 Unit: 
 
 


 


Article I  Duration 


 


Article VII  Hours of Employment 


 


Article XIII  Class Size 


 


Article XIV  Evaluation Procedure 


 


Article XVII Salary and Fringe Benefits 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


811/852







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1 
 


Board of Trustees 


Sheila Coonerty, John Owen, Cynthia Ranii, Jeremy Shonick, Patricia Threet, Deborah Tracy-Proulx, Claudia Vestal 


 


812/852







 


                                       AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.5.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution 19-20-21: In Defense of Democracy 
 
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Take action as appropriate on the resolution of The Santa Cruz City Schools Board to join other 
local elected officials in supporting the tenets of Democracy. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools understands the United States has a proud and long history of 
democracy with free and fair elections, and as such, both educators and school board trustees 
swear an oath upon being hired or seated as public servants to uphold the United States 
Constitution. Therefore, the Santa Cruz City School District supports and defends the tenets of 
Democracy. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 


813/852







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
RESOLUTION # 19-20-21 


SCHOOLS MUST DEFEND DEMOCRACY 
 
Whereas, the United States has a proud and long history of democracy with free and fair elections, 
and the documented foreign interference in our elections and threats to our democratic process are 
unprecedented and represent the most direct threat historically to American democracy; and 
 
Whereas, if a candidate for the highest office in the United States, or associates of the candidate 
attempt to obstruct, subvert, sabotage, overturn or reject a fair and complete count of presidential 
ballots, school districts, the cornerstone of our Democracy, must respond with statements and 
teaching that both inform our students and community  and defend the democratic process, the 
United States Constitution, and an orderly transfer of power that is one of the historic hallmarks of 
American democracy; and  
 
Whereas, as public educators and school board trustees, each and every one of us swore an oath 
upon being hired or seated as public servants to uphold the United States Constitution:  
 
Therefore, be it resolved, that Santa Cruz City Schools will publicly call for: 
 


1. The counting of every vote 
2. Ballot boxes and vote counting places to be protected 
3. A winner of an election should not be declared until all votes are counted 
4. A peaceful transition of power must occur 
5. Our elected representatives at National, State and Local level must defend a fair voting 


process 
6. Teachers, following state standards for civics education, will teach about the tradition of fair 


elections, vote counting and the peaceful transfer of power in a way appropriate to the grade 
level, developmental level and subject matter of the class they teach 


7. Our school district to be ready to provide mental health support as needed to students and 
staff around any trauma that may occur during the election process 


 
And 
 
Therefore be it resolved that Santa Cruz City Schools will join other local elected officials in 
supporting the tenets of our Democracy.   
 
Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
Abstain: 
 
Approved on this date, November 4, 2020. 
 
 
 
__________________________________   ______________________________ 
Signed, Superintendent     Signed, Board President 


814/852







    


                                                                                                                    AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.5.2.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Board Policy Updates 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2020 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the revised/deleted/new policies as submitted for second and/or final reading and 
adoption.   


 
BACKGROUND: 
Policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board policy book updating process, which 
uses CSBA recommendations for review and change approximately six times per year in 
participating districts.  These recommendations reflect recent changes in education code 
and/or case law.  The policies have been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required 
customization for Santa Cruz City Schools has been included.  The Policy Guidesheet provides a 
basic overview of the policy changes.   


In addition to the regular board policy updates, staff has included a proposed revision to 
BP6141.2 Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs. This policy has been updated in order 
to ensure that all students and families are able to participate in school activities, 
extracurricular and co-curricular activities and special events.  The policy calls for the 
Superintendent or designee to distribute an annual holiday calendar and a shorter list of 
“Observances That May Impact Attendance.” It notes that schools shall avoid scheduling exams, 
athletic events/contests and other special events, such as assemblies, field trips, and back-to-
school nights, on days identified as “Observances That May Impact Attendance.” 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


815/852







CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET 


July 2020 


 


 
Board Policy 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance 


Policy updated to reflect NEW STATE REGULATIONS (Register 2020, No. 21) which provide that 


complaints regarding meal counting and claiming, reimbursable meals, eligibility of children or adults, or 


use of cafeteria funds and allowable expenses should be submitted directly to the California Department of 


Education (CDE), and complaints alleging discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, 


age, or disability should be submitted to the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA).  Complaints regarding 


other program requirements or other bases for discrimination are to be investigated and resolved at the district 


level. Policy also deletes the USDA nondiscrimination statement that must be included on all forms of 


communication regarding program availability, which is now presented in the accompanying exhibit. 


 


Board Policy 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment 


Policy updated to reflect NEW FEDERAL REGULATIONS (85 Fed. Reg. 30026) which require that 


complaints of behavior that meets the federal definition of sexual harassment be addressed through new Title 


IX complaint procedures. Title of compliance officer changed to Title IX Coordinator pursuant to federal 


regulations, and responsibility assigned to Title IX Coordinator to receive complaints and determine the 


appropriate complaint procedure to use. 


 


Board Policy 5145.6 - Parental Notifications 


Policy updated for gender neutrality and to update legal references based on new laws reflected in the 


accompanying exhibit. 


 


Board Policy 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment 


Policy updated to include examples of actions to reinforce the district's sexual harassment policy, consistent 


with NEW LAW (AB 34, 2019) which requires posting the sexual harassment policy on the district's web 


site and NEW LAW (AB 543, 2019) which requires displaying a poster and providing the sexual harassment 


policy in student orientations. Policy also reflects NEW FEDERAL REGULATIONS (85 Fed. Reg. 30026) 


which require that complaints of behavior that meets the federal definition of sexual harassment be addressed 


through new Title IX complaint procedures. Title of compliance officer changed to Title IX Coordinator 


throughout policy pursuant to federal regulations. 


 


Board Policy 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity 


Policy updated to add statement on equal access and equal opportunities for participation in physical 


education regardless of gender, gender expression, sexual orientation, and mental or physical disability, as 


included in CDE's Federal Program Monitoring instrument. Policy also reflects U.S. Department of Health 


and Human Services recommendations for moderate to vigorous physical activity in children, clarifies 


credential requirements for teachers of physical education, and reflects the requirement that students who 


have been granted a permanent exemption from physical education must still be offered physical education 


courses of at least 400 minutes each 10 school days. 


 


Board Policy 6159 - Individualized Education Program 


Policy updated to include the requirement, formerly in BP/AR 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special 


Education, to provide a free appropriate public education (FAPE) to students who have been suspended or 


expelled from school or who are placed by the district in a nonpublic, nonsectarian school. Policy adds the 


requirement to provide FAPE to individuals age 18-21 who are incarcerated in an adult correctional facility 


if they had been identified as students with disabilities or had an individualized education program (IEP) in 


their prior educational placement. Paragraph on the rights of foster parents moved to AR. 


 


 


Board Policy 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards for Special Education 


Policy updated to encourage early, informal resolution of any dispute regarding special education services. 


Policy also reflects NEW STATE REGULATIONS (Register 2020, No. 21) which establish a complaint 


816/852







process, separate from UCP, for complaints alleging noncompliance with federal or state laws related to the 


provision of FAPE to students with disabilities, such as the district's violation of the federal Individuals with 


Disabilities in Education Act or state law on special education, violation of a settlement agreement, failure 


to implement a due process hearing order, or physical safety concerns that interfere with the provision of 


FAPE. 


 


Board Policy 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for Special Education 


Policy updated to include the provision of nonpublic, nonsectarian school and agency (NPS/A) services in 


the comprehensive local plan of the Special Education Local Plan Area.  Policy reflects NEW LAW (AB 


1172, 2019) which requires districts to verify that the NPS/A provides staff training in the use of practices 


and interventions specific to the unique behavioral needs of the student population at the NPS/A.  Policy also 


reflects the requirement for the district to pay the full amount of the school's tuition or, as amended by AB 


1172, the fees for the agency.  Legal cite for Education Code 56366.3 deleted as it has been repealed. 


 


 


817/852







BP  6141.2  Instruction Current Policy 


Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs    


The Governing Board recognizes that students' education would be incomplete without an understanding 


of the role of religion in society. As appropriate for a particular course, teachers may objectively discuss 


the influences of various religions, using religious works and symbols to illustrate their relationship with 


culture, literature or the arts. The Board expects that such instruction will identify principles common to 


all religions and foster respect for the diversity of religions and customs in the world. 


(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 


In order to respect each student's individual right to freedom of religious practice, religious indoctrination 


is clearly forbidden in the public schools. Instruction about religion shall not promote or denigrate the 


beliefs or customs of any particular religion or sect, nor should a preference be shown for one religious 


viewpoint over another. Staff members shall be highly sensitive to their obligation not to interfere with 


the religious development of any student in whatever tradition the student embraces. 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 


(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion) 


(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 


(cf. 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access) 


Staff shall not endorse, encourage or solicit religious or anti-religious expression or activities among 


students during class time. As part of their official duties, staff shall not lead students in prayer or other 


religious activities. However, staff shall not prohibit or discourage any student from praying or otherwise 


expressing his/her religious belief as long as this does not disrupt the classroom. 


(cf. 5127 - Graduation Ceremony and Activities) 


Students may express their beliefs about religion in their homework, artwork and other class work if the 


expression is germane to the assignment. Such work shall be judged by ordinary academic standards. 


(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 


(cf. 6144 - Controversial Issues) 


(cf. 6154 - Homework/Make-up Work) 


818/852







While teaching about religious holidays is a permissible part of the educational program, celebrating 


religious holidays is not allowed in the public schools. School-sponsored programs shall not be, nor have 


the effect of being, religiously oriented or a religious celebration. School and classroom decorations may 


express seasonal themes that are not religious in nature. 


Music, art, literature or drama programs having religious themes are permitted as part of the curriculum 


for school-sponsored activities and programs if presented in an objective manner and as a traditional part 


of the cultural and religious heritage. The use of religious symbols that are part of a religious holiday is 


permitted as a teaching aid or resource provided that such symbols are displayed as an example of cultural 


and religious heritage of the holiday and are temporary in nature. 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


38130-38138 Civic Center Act 


46014 Absences for religious purposes 


51511 Religious matters properly included in courses of study 


51938 Right of parent/guardian to excuse from sexual health instruction 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


4071-4074 Equal Access Act 


6061 School prayer 


7904 School prayer 


COURT DECISIONS 


Lassonde v. Pleasanton Unified School District, (2003, 9th Cir.) 320 F.3d 979 


Cole v. Oroville Union High School District, (2000, 9th Cir.) 228 F.3d 1092 


Lemon v. Kurtzman, (1971) 403 U.S. 602 


Management Resources: 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer in Public Elementary and Secondary Schools, February 


2003 


Religion in the Public Schools: A Joint Statement of Current Law, April 1995 


WEB SITES 


819/852







California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted: February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


 


 


BP  6141.2  Instruction _ Proposed Revised Policy 


Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs    


The Governing Board recognizes that students' education would be incomplete without an understanding 


of the role of religion in society. As appropriate for a particular course, teachers may objectively discuss 


the influences of various religions, using religious works and symbols to illustrate their relationship with 


culture, literature or the arts. The Board expects that such instruction will identify principles common to 


all religions and foster respect for the diversity of religions and customs in the world. 


The board honors the rich cultural diversity of our students and our community. For many 


students in our schools, the observance of religious and cultural traditions is an important part of 


their personal, family, and community life. These traditions help the students understand and 


preserve their own value systems, cultures, customs and history.  


In order to ensure that all students and families have the opportunity to participate in school 


activities, extracurricular and co-curricular activities and special events, the Superintendent or 


designee shall also distribute an annual holiday calendar and a shorter list of “Observances That 


May Impact Attendance.” Schools shall avoid scheduling exams, athletic events/contests and other 


special events, such as assemblies, field trips, and back-to-school nights, on days identified as 


“Observances That May Impact Attendance.” The list of “Observances That May Impact 


Attendance” shall be:  


Rosh Hashanah  


Yom Kippur  


Good Friday  


Christmas  


Eid-al-Fitr  


Eid-al-Adha  


820/852







Birth of Baha’u’llah  


Naw Ruz 


(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 


In order to respect each student's individual right to freedom of religious practice, religious indoctrination 


is clearly forbidden in the public schools. Instruction about religion shall not promote or denigrate the 


beliefs or customs of any particular religion or sect, nor should a preference be shown for one religious 


viewpoint over another. Staff members shall be highly sensitive to their obligation not to interfere with 


the religious development of any student in whatever tradition the student embraces. 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 


(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion) 


(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 


(cf. 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access) 


Staff shall not endorse, encourage or solicit religious or anti-religious expression or activities among 


students during class time. As part of their official duties, staff shall not lead students in prayer or other 


religious activities. However, staff shall not prohibit or discourage any student from praying or otherwise 


expressing his/her religious belief as long as this does not disrupt the classroom. 


(cf. 5127 - Graduation Ceremony and Activities) 


Students may express their beliefs about religion in their homework, artwork and other class work if the 


expression is germane to the assignment. Such work shall be judged by ordinary academic standards. 


(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 


(cf. 6144 - Controversial Issues) 


(cf. 6154 - Homework/Make-up Work) 


While teaching about religious holidays is a permissible part of the educational program, celebrating 


religious holidays is not allowed in the public schools. School-sponsored programs shall not be, nor have 


the effect of being, religiously oriented or a religious celebration. School and classroom decorations may 


express seasonal themes that are not religious in nature. 


Music, art, literature or drama programs having religious themes are permitted as part of the curriculum 


for school-sponsored activities and programs if presented in an objective manner and as a traditional part 


of the cultural and religious heritage. The use of religious symbols that are part of a religious holiday is 


821/852







permitted as a teaching aid or resource provided that such symbols are displayed as an example of cultural 


and religious heritage of the holiday and are temporary in nature. 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


38130-38138 Civic Center Act 


46014 Absences for religious purposes 


51511 Religious matters properly included in courses of study 


51938 Right of parent/guardian to excuse from sexual health instruction 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


4071-4074 Equal Access Act 


6061 School prayer 


7904 School prayer 


COURT DECISIONS 


Lassonde v. Pleasanton Unified School District, (2003, 9th Cir.) 320 F.3d 979 


Cole v. Oroville Union High School District, (2000, 9th Cir.) 228 F.3d 1092 


Lemon v. Kurtzman, (1971) 403 U.S. 602 


Management Resources: 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer in Public Elementary and Secondary Schools, February 


2003 


Religion in the Public Schools: A Joint Statement of Current Law, April 1995 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


822/852







adopted: February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


 


823/852







CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 


Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3555(a) 


 


NUTRITION PROGRAM COMPLIANCE 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the district's responsibility to comply with state and federal 


nondiscrimination laws as they apply to the district's nutrition programs. The district shall not deny 


any individual the benefits or service of any nutrition program or discriminate on any basis 


prohibited by law. 


 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 


(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 


(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 


 


Compliance Coordinator 


 


The Board shall designate a compliance coordinator for nutrition programs, who may also be 


the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures, to ensure 


compliance with the laws governing the district's nutrition programs.  


 


The responsibilities of the compliance coordinator include, but are not limited to: 


 


1. Providing the name of the compliance coordinator, and the Section 504 coordinator and 


Title IX coordinator if different from the compliance coordinator, to the California 


Department of Education (CDE) and other interested parties 


 
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 


 


2. Annually providing mandatory civil rights training to all frontline staff who interact with 


program applicants or participants and to those who supervise frontline staff 


 


The subject matter of such training shall include, but not be limited to, collection and use 


of data, effective public notification systems, complaint procedures, compliance review 


techniques, resolution of noncompliance, requirements for reasonable accommodation of 


persons with disabilities, requirements for language assistance, conflict resolution, and 


customer service. 


 


3. Establishing admission and enrollment procedures that do not restrict enrollment of 


students on the basis of race, ethnicity, national origin, or disability, including preventing 


staff from incorrectly denying applications and ensuring that such persons have equal 


access to all programs 


 


824/852







(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 


 


4. Sending a public release announcing the availability of the child nutrition programs and/or 


changes in the programs to public media and to community and grassroots organizations 


that interact directly with eligible or potentially eligible participants 


 


5. Communicating the program's nondiscrimination policy and applicable complaint 


procedures, as provided in the section "Notifications" below 


 


6. Providing appropriate translation services when a significant number of persons in the 


surrounding population have limited English proficiency 


 


7. Ensuring that every part of a facility is accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities 


and that participants with disabilities are not excluded from the benefits or services due to 


inaccessibility of facilities 


 


8. Ensuring that special meals are made available to participants with disabilities who have a 


medical statement on file documenting that their disability restricts their diet 


 
(cf. 5141.27 - Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs) 


 


9. Implementing procedures to process and resolve civil rights (discrimination) complaints 


and program-related complaints, including maintaining a complaint log, working with the 


appropriate person to resolve any complaint, and referring the complainant to the 


appropriate state or federal agency when necessary 


 


10. Developing a method, which preferably uses self-identification or self-reporting, to collect 


racial and ethnic data for potentially eligible populations, applicants, and participants 


 
(cf. 5022 - Students and Family Privacy Rights) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement) 


 


Notifications 


 


The compliance coordinator shall ensure that the U.S. Department of Agriculture's (USDA) 


"And Justice for All" civil rights poster or a substitute poster approved by the USDA's Food and 


Nutrition Service is displayed in areas visible to the district's nutrition program participants, such 


as food service areas and school offices. 


 


The compliance coordinator shall notify the public, all program applicants, participants, and 


potentially eligible persons of their rights and responsibilities and steps necessary to participate 


in the nutrition programs. Applicants, participants, and the public also shall be advised of their 


right to file a complaint, how to file a complaint, the complaint procedures, and that a complaint 


may be file anonymously or by a third party. 


 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


825/852







 


In addition, the compliance coordinator shall ensure that all forms of communication available 


to the public regarding program availability shall contain, in a prominent location, a statement 


provided by USDA about the district's status as an equal opportunity provider and the 


address of the agency with responsibility to handle complaints made against the district. 


 


Forms of communication requiring this nondiscrimination statement include, but are not limited 


to, web sites, public information releases, publications, and posters, but exclude items such as 


cups, buttons, magnets, and pens that identify the program when the size or configuration 


makes it impractical. The nondiscrimination statement need not be included on every page of 


program information on the district's or school's web site, but the statement or a link to the 


statement shall be included on the home page of the program information. 


 


A short version of the nondiscrimination statement, as provided by USDA, may be used on 


pamphlets, brochures, and flyers in the same print size as the rest of the text. 


 


Complaints of Discrimination 


 


A complaint alleging discrimination in the district's nutrition program(s) on the basis of race, 


color, national origin, sex, age, or disability shall, within 180 days of the alleged 


discriminatory act, be filed or referred to USDA at:  (5 CCR 15582) 
 


U.S. Department of Agriculture, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights, 1400 


Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, D.C. 20250-9410, (866) 632-9992, (800) 877-


8339 (Federal Relay Service - English, deaf, hard of hearing, or speech disabilities), 


(800) 845-6136 (Federal Relay Service - Spanish), fax (202) 690-7442, or email 


program.intake.usda.gov. 
 


Complaints of discrimination on any other basis shall be investigated by the district using the 


process identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 
 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


Complaints Regarding Noncompliance with Program Requirements 


  


Any complaint alleging that the district has not complied with program requirements 


pertaining to meal counting and claiming, reimbursable meals, eligibility of a child or adult, 


use of cafeteria funds and allowable expenses shall be filed with or referred to CDE.  


(Education Code 49556; 5 CCR 15584) 


 


Complaints of noncompliance with any other nutrition program requirements shall be 


submitted to and investigated by the district using the following procedures. 
 


Complaints may be filed by a student or the student's parent/guardian by phone, email, or 


letter. The complaint shall be submitted within one year from the date of the alleged violation 


and shall include the following:  (5 CCR 15581) 


 


826/852







1. A statement that the district has violated a law or regulation relating to its child 


nutrition program 


 


2. The facts on which the statement is based 


 


3. The name of the district or the school against which the allegations are made 


 


4. The complainant's contact information 


 


5. The name of the student if alleging violations regarding a specific student 


 


The district shall investigate and prepare a written report pursuant to 5 CCR 4631.  (5 CCR 


15583) 


 


Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the district's compliance 


coordinator shall investigate the complaint and prepare a written report to be sent to the 


complainant within 60 days of the district's receipt of the complaint.  (5 CCR 15583; 5 CCR 


4631) 


 


If the complainant is not satisfied with the findings in the district's report, the complainant 


may appeal the decision to CDE by filing a written appeal within 30 days of receiving the 


decision.  (5 CCR 4632) 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


42238.01  Definitions for purposes of funding 


48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 


49060-49079  Student records 


49490-49590  Child nutrition programs 


PENAL CODE 


422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


3080  Application of section 


4600-4670  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


15580-15584  Child nutrition programs complaint procedures 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 


1681-1688  Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 


2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 


12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 


210.19  National School Lunch Program, additional responsibilities 


210.23  National School Lunch Program, district responsibilities 


215.7  Special Milk Program, requirements for participation 


215.14  Special Milk Program, nondiscrimination 


827/852







220.7  School Breakfast Program, requirements for participation 


220.13  School Breakfast Program, special responsibilities of state agencies 


225.3  Summer Food Service Program, administration 


225.7  Summer Food Service Program, program monitoring and assistance 


225.11  Summer Food Service Program, corrective action procedures 


226.6  Child and Adult Care Food Program, state agency administrative responsibilities 


250.15  Out-of-condition donated foods, food recalls, and complaints 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.101-35.190  Americans with Disabilities Act 


36.303  Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability, public accommodations, auxiliary aids and services 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


100.1-100.13  Nondiscrimination in federal programs, effectuating Title VI 


104.1-104.39  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


106.1-106.61  Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX, especially: 


106.9  Dissemination of policy 


 
Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Civil Rights and Complaint Procedures for the U.S. Department of Agriculture Child Nutrition Programs, 


June 2018 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICE PUBLICATIONS 


Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement - Nutrition Programs and Activities, FNS Instruction 113-1, 


November 2005 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Notice of Non-Discrimination, August 2010 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 


U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Services:  http://www.fns.usda.gov 


U.S. Department of Agriculture, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ascr.usda.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www2.ed.gov/ocr 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 (7/10  7/16)  7/20 


 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 


All rights reserved. 


828/852







CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 


All Personnel BP 4119.11(a) 


 4219.11 


SEXUAL HARASSMENT 4319.11 


 


The following policy shall apply to all district employees, interns, volunteers, contractors, job 


applicants, and other persons with an employment relationship with the district. 


 


The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe work environment that is free of harassment 


and intimidation. The Board prohibits sexual harassment against district employees and retaliatory 


behavior or action against any person who complains, testifies, or otherwise participates in the 


complaint process established for the purpose of this policy. 


 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 


 


Sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, harassment that is based on the sex, gender, 


gender identity, gender expression, or sexual orientation of the victim and harassment based on 


pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions. 


 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall take all actions necessary to ensure the prevention, 


investigation, and correction of sexual harassment, including but not limited to: 


 


1. Providing training to employees in accordance with law and administrative regulation 


 


2. Publicizing and disseminating the district's sexual harassment policy to employees and 


others to whom the policy may apply 


 


3. Ensuring prompt, thorough, fair, and equitable investigation of complaints 


 


4. Taking timely and appropriate corrective/remedial action(s), which may require interim 


separation of the complainant and the alleged harasser and subsequent monitoring of 


developments 


 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the district's 


strategies to prevent and address harassment. Such evaluation may involve conducting regular 


anonymous employee surveys to assess whether harassment is occurring or is perceived to be 


tolerated, partnering with researchers or other agencies with the needed expertise to evaluate the 


district's prevention strategies, and using any other effective tool for receiving feedback on systems 


and/or processes. As necessary, changes shall be made to the harassment policy, complaint 


procedures, or training. 


829/852







 


Sexual Harassment Reports and Complaints 


 


District employees who feel that they have been sexually harassed in the performance of their 


district responsibilities or who have knowledge of any incident of sexual harassment by or against 


another employee shall immediately report the incident to their direct supervisor, a district 


administrator, or the district's Title IX Ccoordinator. Employees may bypass their supervisor 


in filing a complaint if the supervisor is the subject of the complaint. A supervisor or administrator 


who receives a harassment complaint shall promptly notify the Title IX Coordinator. 


 


Once notified, the Title IX Coordinator shall ensure the complaint is addressed through 


either AR 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures for 


complaints meeting the Title IX definition of sexual harassment or AR 4030 - 


Nondiscrimination in Employment for complaints meeting the state definition, as applicable, 


and shall offer supportive measures to the complainant. 


 
(cf. 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaints) 


 


 


Upon investigation of a sexual harassment complaint, any district employee found to have 


engaged or participated in sexual harassment or to have aided, abetted, incited, compelled, or 


coerced another to commit sexual harassment in violation of this policy shall be subject to 


disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with law and the applicable 


collective bargaining agreement. 


 
(cf. 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Reports) 


(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, especially: 


12940  Prohibited discrimination 


12950  Sexual harassment; distribution of information 


12950.1  Sexual harassment training 


LABOR CODE 


1101  Political activities of employees 


1102.1  Discrimination:  sexual orientation 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 


11009  Employment discrimination 


11021  Retaliation 


11023  Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction 


11024  Sexual harassment training and education 


11034  Terms, conditions, and privileges of employment 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs  


830/852







Legal Reference:  (continued) 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


106.1-106.9  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs or activities 


106.51 106.82  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in employment in education programs or activities 


COURT DECISIONS 


Department of Health Services v. Superior Court of California, (2003) 31 Cal.4th 1026 


Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2275 


Burlington Industries v. Ellreth, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2257 


Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 1989 


Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Serv. Inc., (1998) 118 S.Ct. 998 


Meritor Savings Bank, FSB v. Vinson et al., (1986) 447 U.S. 57 


 
Management Resources: 


U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS 


Promising Practices for Preventing Harassment, November 2017 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 


Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/index.html 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 (12/16  3/18)  7/20 


 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 


All rights reserved. 


831/852







CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 


Students BP 5145.6(a) 


 


PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS 


 


 


The Governing Board desires to promote effective communication between the school and the 


home and to keep parents/guardians informed regarding educational programs, school operations, 


and the legal rights of students and their parents/guardians. The Superintendent or designee shall 


send parents/guardians all notifications required by law and any other notifications the 


Superintendent or designee believes will promote parental understanding and involvement. 


 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 


(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


Notice of the rights and responsibilities of parents/guardians as specified in Education Code 48980 


shall be sent at the beginning of each academic year and may be provided by regular mail, in 


electronic form when so requested by the parent/guardian, or by any other method normally used 


by the district for written communication with parents/guardians.  (Education Code 48981) 


 


No activity specified in Education Code 48980 shall be undertaken with respect to any particular 


student unless the student's parent/guardian has been informed of such action through the annual 


notification or other separate special notification. Such notice shall state the activity that will be 


undertaken and the approximate date on which the activity will occur.  (Education Code 48983-


48984) 


 


The annual notification shall include a request that the parent/guardian sign the notice and return 


it to the school or, if the notice is provided in electronic format, that the parent/guardian submit a 


signed acknowledgment of receipt of the notice to the school. The parent/guardian's signature is 


an acknowledgment of receipt of the information but does not indicate that consent to participate 


in any particular program has been given or withheld.  (Education Code 48982) 


 


Whenever a student enrolls in a district school during the school year, the student's 


parents/guardians shall be given all required parental notifications at that time. 
 


Notifications shall be presented in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent 


practicable, in a language that parents/guardians can understand. 
 


Whenever 15 percent or more of the students enrolled in a district school speak a single primary 


language other than English, as determined from the California Department of Education census 


data collected pursuant to Education Code 52164, all notices sent to the parent/guardian of any 


such student shall, in addition to being written in English, be written in the primary language, and 


may be responded to either in English or the primary language.  (Education Code 48981, 48985) 


832/852







 


Whenever an employee learns that a student's parent/guardian is unable to understand the district's 


printed notifications for any reason, the employee shall inform the principal or designee, who shall 


work with the parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of communication. 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


221.5  Prohibited sex discrimination 


231.5  Sexual harassment policy 


234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 


262.3  Appeals for discrimination complaints; information regarding  availability of civil remedies 


310  Language acquisition programs 


313  Reclassification of English learners, parental consultation 


313.2  Long-term English learner, notification 


440  English language proficiency assessment; instruction in English language development 


8483  Before/after school program; enrollment priorities 


17288  Building standards for university campuses 


17611.5-17612  Notification of pesticide use 


32221.5  Insurance for athletic team members 


32255-32255.6  Right to refuse harmful or destructive use of animals 


32390  Fingerprint program; contracts; funding; consent of parent/guardian 


33479.3 The Eric Paredes Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act 


35160.5  Extracurricular and cocurricular activities 


35178.4  Notice of accreditation status 


35182.5  Advertising in the classroom 


35183  School dress codes; uniforms 


35186  Complaints concerning deficiencies in instructional materials and facilities 


35211  Driver training; district insurance, parent/guardian liability 


35256  School Accountability Report Card 


35258  School Accountability Report Card 


35291  Rules for student discipline 


37616  Consultation regarding year-round schedule 


39831.5  School bus rider rules and information 


44050  Employee codes of conduct, employee interactions with students 


44808.5  Permission to leave school grounds 


46010.1  Notice regarding excuse to obtain confidential medical services 


46014  Regulations regarding absences for religious purposes 


46600-46611  Interdistrict attendance agreements 


48000  Minimum age of admission 


48070.5  Promotion or retention of students 


48204  Residency requirements 


48205  Absence for personal reasons 


48206.3  Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions 


48207-48208  Students with temporary disabilities in hospitals 


48213  Prior notice of exclusion from attendance 


48216  Immunization 


48260.5  Notice regarding truancy 


48262  Need for parent conference regarding truancy 


48263  Referral to school attendance review board or probation department 


48301  Interdistrict transfers 


48412  Certificate of  proficiency 


48432.3  Voluntary enrollment in continuation education 


48432.5  Involuntary transfers of students 


48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students 


48900.1  Parental attendance required after suspension 


833/852







48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 


48904.3  Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 


48906  Notification of release of student to peace officer 


48911  Notification in case of suspension 


48911.1  Assignment to supervised suspension classroom 


48912  Closed sessions; consideration of suspension 


48915.1  Expelled students; enrollment in another district 


48916  Readmission procedures 


48918  Rules governing expulsion procedures 


48929  Transfer of student convicted of violent felony or misdemeanor 


48980  Required notification at beginning of term 


48980.3  Notification of pesticide use 


48981  Time and means of notification 


48982  Parent signature acknowledging receipt of notice 


48983  Contents of notice 


48984  Activities prohibited unless notice given 


48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 


48987  Child abuse information 


49013  Use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints regarding student fees 


49063  Notification of parental rights 


49067  Student evaluation; student in danger of failing course 


49068  Transfer of permanent enrollment and scholarship record 


49069  Absolute right to access 


49070  Challenging content of student record 


49073  Release of directory information 


49073.6  Student records, social media 


49076  Access to student records 


49077  Access to information concerning a student in compliance with court order 


49403  Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunization 


49423  Administration of prescribed medication for student 


49451  Physical examinations: parent's refusal to consent 


49452.5  Screening for scoliosis 


49452.7  Information on type 2 diabetes 


49452.8  Oral health assessment 


49456  Results of vision or hearing test 


49471-49472  Insurance 


49475  Student athletes; concussions and head injuries 


49476  Student athletes; opioid fact sheet 


49480  Continuing medication regimen for nonepisodic conditions 


49510-49520  Duffy-Moscone Family Nutrition Education and Services Act of 1970 


49557.5  Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017; notice of negative balance in meal 


account 


51225.1 Exemption from district graduation requirements 


51225.2 Course credits 


51225.3  Graduation requirements; courses that satisfy college entrance criteria 


51229  Course of study for grades 7-12 


51513  Personal beliefs; privacy 


51938  HIV/AIDS and sexual health instruction 


52164  Language census 


52164.1  Census-taking methods; determination of primary language; assessment of language skills 


52164.3  Reassessment of English learners; notification of results 


54444.2  Migrant education programs; parent involvement 


56301  Child-find system; policies regarding written notification rights 


56321  Special education: proposed assessment plan 


56321.5-56321.6  Notice of parent rights pertaining to special education 


56329  Written notice of right to findings; independent assessment 


834/852







56341.1  Development of individualized education program; right to audio record meeting 


56341.5  Individualized education program team meetings 


56343.5  Individualized education program meetings 


56521.1  Behavioral intervention 


58501  Alternative schools; notice required prior to establishment 


60615  Exemption from state assessment 


60641  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 


69432.9  Submission of grade point average to Cal Grant program 


 
CIVIL CODE 


1798.29  District records, breach of security 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


1596.857  Right to enter child care facility 


1597.16  Licensed child care centers, lead testing  


104420  Tobacco use prevention 


104855  Availability of topical fluoride treatment 


116277  Lead testing of school drinking water 


120365-120375  Immunizations 


120440  Sharing immunization information 


124100-124105  Health screening and immunizations 


PENAL CODE 


626.81  Notice of permission granted to sex offender to volunteer on campus 


627.5  Hearing request following denial or revocation of registration 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


852  Exemptions from state assessments 


863  Reports of state assessment results 


3052  Behavioral intervention 


4622  Notification of uniform complaint procedures 


4631  Uniform complaint procedures; notification of decision and right to appeal 


4917  Notification of sexual harassment policy 


11303  Reclassification of English learners 


11511.5  English language proficiency assessment; test results 


11523  Notice of proficiency examinations 


18066  Child care policies regarding excused and unexcused absences 


18094-18095  Notice of Action; child care services 


18114  Notice of delinquent fees; child care services 


18118-18119  Notice of Action; child care services 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 


2951  Hearing tests 


6040  Time period to obtain needed immunizations 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act 


1232h  Privacy rights 


1415  Procedural safeguards 


6311  State plan 


6312  Local educational agency plans 


6318  Parent and family engagement 


7704  Impact Aid; policies and procedures related to children residing on Indian lands 


7908  Armed forces recruiter access to students 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


1758  Child nutrition programs 


11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 


245.5  Eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals 


245.6a  Verification of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals 


835/852







 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.7  Student records, annual notification 


99.30 Disclosure of personally identifiable information 


99.34  Student records, disclosure to other educational agencies 


99.37  Disclosure of directory information 


104.32  District responsibility to provide free appropriate public education 


104.36  Procedural safeguards 


104.8  Nondiscrimination 


106.8  Notification of contact information for Title IX coordinator 


106.9  Dissemination of policy, nondiscrimination on basis of sex 


200.48 Teacher qualifications 


222.94  Impact Aid; district responsibilities 


300.300  Parent consent for special education evaluation 


300.322  Parent participation in IEP team meetings 


300.502  Independent educational evaluation of student with disability 


300.503  Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of student with disability 


300.504  Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities 


300.508  Due process complaint 


300.530  Discipline procedures 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 40 


763.84  Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions 


763.93  Asbestos management plans 


 
Management Resources: 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 


Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement -- Nutrition Programs and Services, FNS Instruction 113-1, 2005 


WEB SITES 


U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 (11/12  3/18)  7/20 


 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 


All rights reserved 


836/852







CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 


Students BP 5145.7(a) 


 


SEXUAL HARASSMENT 


 


The Governing Board is committed to maintaining a safe school environment that is free from 


harassment and discrimination. The Board prohibits, at school or at school-sponsored or school-


related activities, sexual harassment targeted at any student by anyone. The Board also prohibits 


retaliatory behavior or action against any person who reports, files a complaint or testifies about, 


or otherwise supports a complainant in alleging sexual harassment. 


 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


 


The district strongly encourages students who feel that they are being or have been sexually 


harassed on school grounds or at a school-sponsored or school-related activity by another student 


or an adult, or who have experienced off-campus sexual harassment that has a continuing effect 


on campus, to immediately contact their teacher, the principal, the district's Title IX 


Coordinator, or any other available school employee. Any employee who receives a report or 


observes an incident of sexual harassment shall notify the Title IX Coordinator. 


 


Once notified, the Title IX Coordinator shall ensure the complaint is addressed through Title 


IX complaint procedures or uniform complaint procedures, as applicable, and shall offer 


supportive measures to the complainant. 


 
 (cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 (cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 


 (cf. 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall inform students and parents/guardians of the district's 


sexual harassment policy by disseminating it through parent/guardian notifications, 


publishing it on the district's web site, and including it in student and staff handbooks.  All 


district staff shall be trained regarding the policy. 


 


Instruction/Information 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all district students receive age-appropriate 


information on sexual harassment. Such instruction and information shall include: 


 


837/852







1. What acts and behavior constitute sexual harassment, including the fact that sexual 


harassment could occur between people of the same sex and could involve sexual violence 


 


2. A clear message that students do not have to endure sexual harassment under any 


circumstance 


 


3. Encouragement to report observed incidents of sexual harassment even when the alleged 


victim of the harassment has not complained 


 


4. A clear message that student safety is the district's primary concern, and that any separate 


rule violation involving an alleged victim or any other person reporting a sexual harassment 


incident will be addressed separately and will not affect the manner in which the sexual 


harassment complaint will be received, investigated, or resolved 
  


5. A clear message that, regardless of a complainant's noncompliance with the writing, 


timeline, or other formal filing requirements, every sexual harassment allegation that 


involves a student, whether as the complainant, respondent, or victim of the harassment, 


shall be investigated and action shall be taken to respond to harassment, prevent 


recurrence, and address any continuing effect on students 


 


6. Information about the district's procedures for investigating complaints and the person(s) 


to whom a report of sexual harassment should be made 


 


7. Information about the rights of students and parents/guardians to file a civil or criminal 


complaint, as applicable, including the right to file a civil or criminal complaint while the 


district investigation of a sexual harassment complaint continues 


 


8. A clear message that, when needed, the district will implement supportive measures to 


ensure a safe school environment for a student who is the complainant or victim of sexual 


harassment and/or other students during an investigation. 


 


Disciplinary Actions 


 


Upon completion of an investigation of a sexual harassment complaint, any student found to have 


engaged in sexual harassment or sexual violence in violation of this policy shall be subject to 


disciplinary action. For students in grades 4-12, disciplinary action may include suspension and/or 


expulsion, provided that, in imposing such discipline, the entire circumstances of the incident(s) 


shall be taken into account. 


 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


 


Upon investigation of a sexual harassment complaint, any employee found to have engaged in 


sexual harassment or sexual violence toward any student shall be subject to disciplinary action, 


up to and including dismissal, in accordance with law and the applicable collective bargaining 


agreement. 


838/852







 
(cf. 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Report) 


(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


 


Record-Keeping 


 


In accordance with law, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of all reported 


cases of sexual harassment to enable the district to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive 


harassing behavior in district schools. 


 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 


48900  Grounds for suspension or expulsion 


48900.2  Additional grounds for suspension or expulsion; sexual harassment 


48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 


48980  Notice at beginning of term 


48985  Notices, report, statements and records in primary language 


CIVIL CODE 


51.9  Liability for sexual harassment; business, service and professional relationships 


1714.1  Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


12950.1  Sexual harassment training 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4600-4670  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1092  Definition of sexual assault 


1221 Application of laws 


1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 34 


12291  Definition of dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


1983  Civil action for deprivation of rights 


2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 


2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy 


106.1 106.82  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs 


COURT DECISIONS 


Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567 


Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003, 9th Cir.) 324 F.3d 1130 


Reese v. Jefferson School District, (2000, 9th Cir.) 208 F.3d 736 


Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education, (1999) 526 U.S. 629 


Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 524 U.S. 274 


Oona by Kate S. v. McCaffrey, (1998, 9th Cir.) 143 F.3d 473 


Doe v. Petaluma City School District, (1995, 9th Cir.) 54 F.3d 1447 


 
Management Resources: 


839/852







CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming 


Students, Policy Brief, February 2014 


Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Q&A on Campus Sexual Misconduct, September 2017 


Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 


Sexual Harassment:  It's Not Academic, September 2008 


Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance:  Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other Students, or 


Third Parties, January 2001 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 


All rights reserved. 


840/852







CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 


Instruction BP 6142.7(a) 


 


PHYSICAL EDUCATION AND ACTIVITY 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the positive benefits of physical activity on student health, well-


being, and academic achievement. The district shall provide all students the opportunity to be 


physically active on a regular basis through high-quality physical education instruction and may 


provide additional opportunities for physical activity throughout the school day. The district's 


physical education and activity programs shall support the district's coordinated student wellness 


program and encourage students' lifelong fitness. 


 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 


(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 


 


Physical education classes shall be conducted in the coeducational, inclusive manner 


prescribed by law. The district shall provide instruction in physical education that provides 


equal access and equal opportunities for participation for all students in grades 1-12 


regardless of gender, sexual orientation, and mental or physical disability.  (Education Code 


220, 221.5, 33352; 5 CCR 4900, 4930, 4931, 4940, 4960; 34 CFR 106.33, 106.34, 300.108) 


 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


 


The district's physical education program shall provide a developmentally appropriate sequence of 


instruction aligned with the state's model content standards and curriculum framework. 


 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 


(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 


 


The district's physical education program shall engage students in age-appropriate moderate to 


vigorous physical activity, as defined in the accompanying administrative regulation, including 


aerobic, muscle-strengthening, and bone-strengthening activities. The Superintendent or 


designee shall develop strategies to monitor the amount of moderate to vigorous physical activity 


that takes place in the physical education instructional program. 


 


For grades 9-12, the overall course of study shall include the effects of physical activity upon 


dynamic health, the mechanics of body movement, aquatics, gymnastics and tumbling, individual 


and dual sports, rhythms and dance, team sports, and combatives.  (Education Code 33352; 5 CCR 


10060) 


 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 


(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 


 


 


841/852







The Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies to supplement physical education 


instruction with additional opportunities for students to be physically active before, during, and 


after the school day. 


 
(cf. 1330.1 - Joint Use Agreements) 


(cf. 5142.2 - Safe Routes to School Program) 


(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development Program) 


(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 


(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 


 


Students with disabilities shall be provided instruction in physical education in accordance with 


their individualized education program or Section 504 accommodation plan. 


 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 


(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 


 


During air pollution episodes, extreme weather, or other inclement conditions, physical education 


staff shall make appropriate adjustments to the program or shall seek alternative indoor space to 


enable students to participate in active physical education. 


 
(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety) 


(cf. 5141.7 - Sun Safety) 


(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management) 


(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 


 


Staffing 


 


Physical education instruction shall be delivered by appropriately credentialed teachers who may 


be assisted by instructional aides, paraprofessionals, and/or volunteers. 


  
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 


(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 


(cf. 4112.21 - Interns) 


(cf. 4113 - Assignment) 


(cf. 4222 - Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals) 


 


The district shall provide physical education teachers with continuing professional development, 


including classroom management and instructional strategies designed to keep students engaged 


and active and to enhance the quality of physical education instruction and assessment. 


 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 


 


Physical Fitness Testing 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall annually administer the physical fitness test designated by 


the State Board of Education (FITNESSGRAM) to students in grades 5, 7, and 9.  (Education Code 


60800; 5 CCR 1041) 


 


842/852







Temporary Exemptions  


 


The Superintendent or designee may grant a student a temporary exemption from physical 


education under either of the following conditions:  (Education Code 51241) 


 


1. The student is ill or injured and a modified program to meet the student's needs cannot be 


provided. 


 


2. The student is enrolled for one-half time or less. 


 


Two-Year Exemptions 


 


With the student's consent, the Superintendent or designee may exempt a student from physical 


education courses for any two years during grades 10-12 provided that the student has satisfactorily 


met at least five of the six standards of the FITNESSGRAM in grade 9.  (Education Code 51241) 
 


Upon request by students and/or their parents/guardians, the Superintendent or designee may 


administer the FITNESSGRAM to students in grades 10-12 who need to pass the test in order to 


qualify for a two-year exemption from physical education courses. 


 


Students in grades 10-12 who have been granted a two-year exemption shall be offered a variety 


of elective physical education courses of not less than 400 minutes each 10 school days.  


(Education Code 51222) 


 


Such students shall not be permitted to attend fewer total hours of courses and classes than they 


would have attended if enrolled in a physical education course.  (Education Code 51241) 


 
(cf. 6112 - School Day) 


 


Permanent Exemptions 
 


The Superintendent or designee may grant a student a permanent exemption from physical 


education under any of the following conditions:  (Education Code 51241) 


 


1. The student is age 16 years or older and has been enrolled in grade 10 for one or more 


academic years. However, such a student shall not be permitted to attend fewer total hours 


of courses and classes than the student would have attended if enrolled in a physical 


education course. 


 


2. The student is enrolled as a postgraduate student. 


 


3. The student is enrolled in a juvenile home, ranch, camp, or forestry camp school with 


scheduled recreation and exercise. 


 


Other Exemptions 


 


 


843/852







The Superintendent or designee may grant a student an exemption from physical education under 


the following special circumstances: 


 


1. When the student is in any of grades 10-12 and is excused for up to 24 clock hours in order 


to participate in automobile driver training. However, any such student shall attend a 


minimum of 7,000 minutes of physical education instruction during the school year.  


(Education Code 51222) 


 


2. When the student is in any of grades 10-12, attends a regional occupational center or 


program, and, because of the travel time involved, would experience hardship to attend 


physical education courses. Any such student shall have a minimum school day of 180 


minutes.  (Education Code 52316) 


 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 


 


3. When the student is in high school and is engaged in a regular school-sponsored 


interscholastic athletic program carried on wholly or partially after regular school hours.  


(Education Code 51242) 


 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 


 


Program Evaluation 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board each school's FITNESSGRAM 


results for each applicable grade level.  The Superintendent or designee shall also report to the 


Board regarding the number of instructional minutes offered in physical education for each grade 


level, the number of two-year and permanent exemptions granted pursuant to Education Code 


51241, and any other data agreed upon by the Board and the Superintendent or designee to evaluate 


program quality and the effectiveness of the district's program in meeting goals for physical 


activity and student well-being. 


 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 


(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


220  Prohibition of discrimination 


221.5  Sex equity in education 


33126  School accountability report card 


33350-33354  CDE responsibilities re: physical education 


35256  School accountability report card 


44250-44277  Credential types 


49066  Grades; physical education class 


51210  Course of study, grades 1-6 


51220  Course of study, grades 7-12 


51222  Physical education 


51223  Physical education, elementary schools 


51241  Temporary, two-year or permanent exemption from physical education 


51242  Exemption from physical education for athletic program participants 


52316  Excuse from attending physical education classes; regional occupational center/program 


844/852







60800  Physical performance test 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


1040 1044 Physical performance test 


1047-1048  Testing variations and accommodations 


3051.5  Adapted physical education for individuals with exceptional needs 


4600 4670  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary educational programs receiving state or 


federal financial assistance 


10060  Criteria for high school physical education programs 


80020  Additional assignment authorizations for specific credentials 


80037  Designated subjects teaching credential; special teaching authorization in physical education 


80046.1  Added authorization to teach adapted physical education 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794  Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


1758b  Local wellness policy 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


106.33  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex; comparable facilities 


106.34  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex; access to classes and schools 


300.108  Assistance to states for the education of children with disabilities; physical education 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


53 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 230 (1970) 


COURT DECISIONS 


Doe v. Albany Unified School District (2010) 190 Cal.App.4th 668 


Cal200 et al. v. San Francisco Unified School District et al. (2013), San Francisco Superior Court, Case 


No. CGC-13-534975 


Cal200 et al. v. Oakland Unified School District et al. (San Francisco Superior Court, Case No. CPF-14-


513959 


 


 
Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student Wellness Policies, 2012 


Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide, 2012 


Active Bodies, Active Minds: Physical Activity and Academic Achievement, Fact Sheet, February 2010 


Maximizing Opportunities for Physical Activity Through Joint Use of Facilities, Policy Brief, February 


2010 


Maximizing Opportunities for Physical Activity During the School Day, Fact Sheet, November 2009 


Moderate to Vigorous Physical Activity in Physical Education to Improve Health and Academic Outcomes, 


Fact Sheet, November 2009 


Physical Education and California Schools, Policy Brief,  October 2007 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Physical Education Framework for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through Grade 12, 2009 


Physical Education Model Content Standards for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through Grade 


12, January 2005 


CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS 


School Health Index (SHI): A Self-Assessment and Planning Guide, Elementary School, 2017 


School Health Index (SHI): A Self-Assessment and Planning Guide, Middle/High School, 2017 


COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS 


The Administrator's Assignment Manual, 2019 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES PUBLICATIONS 


Physical Activity Guidelines for Americans, 2nd Edition, 2018 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education  


845/852







California Healthy Kids Resource Center: http://www.californiahealthykids.org 


California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition): 


http://www.californiaprojectlean.org 


Centers for Disease Control and Prevention:  http://www.cdc.gov 


Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 


Healthy People 2010: http://www.healthypeople.gov 


National Association for Sport and Physical Education https://www.pgpedia.com/n/national-association-


sport-and-physical-education 


President's Council on Sports, Fitness and Nutrition: http://www.fitness.gov 


U.S. Department of Health and Human Services: http://www.health.gov 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 (2/10  3/16)  7/20 


 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 


All rights reserved. 


846/852







CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 


Instruction BP 6159.1(a) 


 


PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS AND COMPLAINTS FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION 


 


The Governing Board recognizes its obligation to provide a free appropriate public education 


(FAPE) to students with disabilities and to uphold the rights of parents/guardians to be 


involved in educational decisions regarding their child.  Parents/guardians of students with 


disabilities shall receive written notice of their rights under the federal Individuals with 


Disabilities Education Act.  
 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 


(cf. 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for Special Education) 


(cf. 6159.3 - Appointment of Surrogate Parent for Special Education Students) 


(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 


(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 


 


Whenever there is a dispute between the district and the parent/guardian of a student with 


disabilities regarding the identification, assessment, or educational placement of the student 


or the provision of FAPE to the student, the Superintendent or designee shall encourage the 


early, informal resolution of the dispute at the school level to the extent possible. The district 


or parent/guardian may also request mediation and/or a due process hearing in accordance 


with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.  


 


The Superintendent or designee shall represent the district in any due process hearing conducted 


with regard to district students and shall inform the Board about the result of the hearing. 


 


Any complaint alleging the district's noncompliance with federal or state laws or regulations 


related to the provision of a free appropriate public education to students with disabilities 


shall be filed in accordance with 5 CCR 3200-3205. 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


56000  Education for individuals with disabilities 


56001  Provision of the special education programs 


56020-56035  Definitions 


56195.7  Written agreements 


56195.8  Adoption of policies for programs and services 


56300-56385  Identification and referral, assessment 


56440-56447.1  Programs for individuals between the ages of three and five years 


56500-56509  Procedural safeguards, including due process rights 


56600-56606  Evaluation, audits and information 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


3000-3100  Regulations governing special education, especially: 


847/852







3080-3089  Procedural safeguards 


3200-3205  Special education compliance complaints 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


11434 Homeless assistance 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.10-99.22  Inspection, review and procedures for amending education records 


104.36  Procedural safeguards 


300.1-300.818  Assistance to states for the education of students with disabilities, especially: 


300.150-300.153  State compliance complaints 


300.500-300.520  Procedural safeguards and due process for parents and students 


COURT DECISIONS 


Winkelman v. Parma City School District, (2007) 550 U.S. 516 


 


Management Resources: 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Education, Special Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se 


Office of Administrative Hearings, Special Education Division: 


https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH/Case-Types/Special-Education 


U.S. Department of Education, Office of Special Education Programs: 


http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osers/osep 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 (11/06  3/09)  7/20 


 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 


All rights reserved. 


848/852







CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 


Instruction BP 6159.2(a) 


 


NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL AND AGENCY SERVICES FOR SPECIAL 


EDUCATION 


 


The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to provide a free appropriate public education 


to students with disabilities in accordance with law.  When the district is unable to provide direct 


special education and/or related services to students with disabilities, the Board may enter into a 


contract with a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency (NPS/A) to meet student needs 


consistent with the comprehensive local plan of the Special Education Local Plan Area. 


 
(cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education) 


 (cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 


 


Prior to entering into a contract to place any student in an NPS/A, the Superintendent or designee 


shall verify that the school or agency is certified to provide special education and related services 


to individuals with disabilities and complies with staff training requirements in accordance with 


Education Code 56366 and 56366.1.  In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall monitor, 


on an ongoing basis, the certification of any NPS/A with which the district has a contract to ensure 


that the certification has not expired. 


 


No district student shall be placed in an NPS/A unless the student's individualized education 


program (IEP) team has determined that an appropriate public education alternative does not exist 


and that the placement is appropriate for the student.  (Education Code 56342.1) 


 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 


 


The district shall pay to the NPS/A the full amount of the tuition or fees, as applicable, for 


students with disabilities who are enrolled in programs or receiving services provided by the 


NPS/A.  (Education Code 56365) 


 


In accordance with law, any student with disabilities placed in an NPS/A shall have all the rights 


and protections to which students with disabilities are generally entitled, including, but not limited 


to, procedural safeguards, due process rights, and periodic review of the student's IEP. 


 
(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education) 


 


During the period when any student with disabilities is placed in an NPS/A, the student's IEP team 


shall retain responsibility for monitoring the student's progress towards meeting the goals 


identified in the IEP. 


 


849/852







The Superintendent or designee may apply to the Superintendent of Public Instruction to waive 


any of the requirements of Education Code 56365, 56366, and 56366.6.  (Education Code 


56366.2) 


 
(cf. 1431 - Waivers) 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


56034-56035  Definitions of nonpublic, nonsectarian school and agency 


56042  Placement not to be recommended by attorney with conflict of interest 


56101  Waivers 


56163  Certification 


56168  Responsibility for education of student in hospital or health facility school 


56195.8  Adoption of policies 


56342.1  Individualized education program; placement 


56360-56369 Implementation of special education 


56711  Computation of state aid 


56740-56743  Apportionments and reports 


56760  Annual budget plan; service proportions 


56775.5  Reimbursement of assessment and identification costs 


56836.20-56836.21  Special education funding; SELPA contracts with nonpublic nonsectarian schools 


FAMILY CODE 


7911-7912 Interstate compact on placement of children 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


7570-7587  Interagency responsibilities for providing services to disabled children; especially: 


7572.55  Seriously emotionally disturbed child; out-of-state placement 


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


362.2  Out-of-home placement for IEP 


727.1  Out-of-state placement of wards of court 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


3001  Definitions 


3051-3051.24  Special education; standards for related services and staff qualifications 


3060-3070  Nonpublic, nonsectarian school and agency services 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1400-1487  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


300.129-300.148 Children with disabilities in private schools 


COURT DECISIONS 


Agostini v. Felton, (1997) 521 U.S. 203, 117 S.Ct. 1997 


 
Management Resources: 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office of Special Education and Rehabilitative Services:  


http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osers 


 


 (6/99  4/13)  7/20 


 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 


All rights reserved. 


850/852







CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 


Instruction BP 6159(a) 


 


INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide full educational opportunities to all students with 


disabilities.  Students with disabilities shall receive a free appropriate public education (FAPE) 


and, to the maximum extent possible, shall be educated in the least restrictive environment with 


nondisabled students. 


 
(cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education) 


 (cf. 3541.2 - Transportation for Students with Disabilities) 


(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


(cf. 6146.4 - Differential Graduation and Competency Standards for Students with Disabilities) 


(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education) 


(cf. 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for Special Education) 


(cf. 6159.3 - Appointment of Surrogate Parent for Special Education Students) 


(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 


(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 


 


For each student with disabilities, an individualized education program (IEP) shall be 


developed which identifies the special education instruction and related services to be 


provided to the student.  The Superintendent or designee shall develop administrative regulations 


regarding the membership of the IEP team, the team's responsibility to develop and regularly 


review the IEP, the contents of the IEP, and the development, review, and revision processes. 


 


The district shall make FAPE available to individuals with disabilities ages 3-21 who reside 


in the district, including:  (Education Code 56040; 20 USC 1412; 34 CFR 300.17, 300.101, 


300.104) 


 


1. Students who have been suspended or expelled from school  


 


2. Students who are placed by the district in a nonpublic, nonsectarian school 


 


3. Individuals age 18-21 years who are incarcerated in an adult correctional facility and 


were identified as being an individual with disabilities or had an IEP in their prior 


educational placement  


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


46392  Emergencies 


51225.3  Requirements for high school graduation and diploma 


56040.3  Assistive technology 


56055  Rights of foster parents pertaining to foster child's education 


851/852







56136  Guidelines for low incidence disabilities areas 


56195.8  Adoption of policies 


56321  Development or revision of IEP 


56321.5  Notice to include right to electronically record 


56340.1-56347  Instructional planning and individualized education program 


56350 56354  IEP for visually impaired students 


56380  IEP reviews; notice of right to request 


56390-56392  Certificate of completion, special education 


56500-56509  Procedural safeguards 


60640-60649  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 


FAMILY CODE 


6500-6502  Age of majority 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


7572.5  Seriously emotionally disturbed child, expanded IEP team 


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


300  Children subject to jurisdiction 


601 Minors habitually disobedient 


602  Minors violating law defined as crime 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


853-853.5  State assessments, accommodations 


3021-3029  Identification, referral and assessment 


3040-3043  Instructional planning and the individualized education program 


3051-3053  Implementation of the individualized education program 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 


1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


300.1-300.818  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Marshall v. Monrovia Unified School District, (9th Circuit, 2010) 627 F.3d 773 


Schaffer v. Weast (2005) 125 S. Ct. 528 


Shapiro v. Paradise Valley Unified School District, No. 69 (9th Circuit, 2003) 317 F.3d 1072 


Sacramento City School District v. Rachel H.  (9th Cir. 1994) 14 F.3d 1398 


Endrew F. v. Douglas County School District Re-1, 137 S. Ct. 988 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 157 (2002) 


 
Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Frequently Asked Questions: Promotion, Retention, and Grading (Students with Disabilities) 


California Practitioners' Guide for Educating English Learners with Disabilities, July 2019 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office of Special Education and Rehabilitative Services:  


http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osers/osep 
 


 


 


 


 


 (11/03  3/06)  7/20 


 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 


All rights reserved 


852/852





		Agenda 11.04.20

		SPSA Cover November 4, 2020

		AFE- SPSA (2020)

		ARK- SPSA (2020)

		Bay View- SPSA (2020)

		Branciforte Middle- SPSA (2020)

		Delaveaga- SPSA (2020)

		Gault- SPSA (2020)

		Harbor High- SPSA (2020)

		Mission Hill- SPSA (2020)

		Monarch- SPSA (2020)

		Santa Cruz High- SPSA (2020)

		Soquel High- SPSA (2020)

		Westlake- SPSA (2020)

		8.1.1.2 Gault Annual Williams Report Cover (2020)

		Gault Summary - Williams 2020-21

		2020-21 Williams Report to SCCS Board

		Gault&apos;s Williams Sufficiency Assurance 2020-2021

		8.1.2.1. POs Bids & Quotes cover

		8.1.2.1. PO BOARD REPORT FOR 110420 MEETING

		8.1.2.2. Vendor Warrants Register Cover

		8.1.2.2. Oct 13 - Oct 27 2020 Warrant Register

		Long Term Debt Annual Report

		8.1.2.4. 1st Qtr Investment Report 2020-21 cover

		8.1.2.4. 20-21 Int History

		8.1.2.4. 20-21 Interest History Memo

		8.1.2.5. TRAN Resolution cover 11.04.20

		8.1.2.5. SCCS est. TRAN Economics

		8.1.2.5. Santa Cruz City Schools District-resolution

		8.1.2.5. Santa Cruz City Schools District-resolution-certificate

		8.1.2.6. Notice of Completion Bond Project Cover

		8.1.2.6. Notice of Completion Bond Project

		Personnel Actions - Certificated

		Personnel Actions – Classified 

		Gifts

		8.2.4.1. CSA - Governance Meeting Facilitation 20-21 Cover

		8.2.4.1. Carolyn Post CSA

		8.3.1. Central Coast Construction Company Contract Santa Cruz High School Dust Collector Installation Cover

		8.3.1. Central Coast Construction Company Contract Santa Cruz High School Dust Collector Installation

		8.3.2. Dilbeck & Sons Quote Mission Hill Middle School Entry Doors Cover

		8.3.2. Dilbeck & Sons Quote Mission Hill Middle School Entry Doors

		8.3.3. Fiber Optic Telecom International Quote Districtwide Electronic Key Cards Cover

		8.3.3. Fiber Optic Telecom International Quote Districtwide Electronic Key Cards

		8.3.4. Kier & Wright Change Order 1 Westlake Elementary School Boundary Survey for Fencing Cover

		8.3.4. Kier & Wright Change Order 1 Westlake Elementary School Boundary Survey for Fencing(NE)

		8.3.5. Kier & Wright Proposal Mission Hill Middle School Land Survey Cover

		8.3.5. Kier & Wright Proposal Mission Hill Middle School Land Survey

		8.3.6. Moore Twining Proposal Geotechnical Engineering Gault Elementary School New Classroom Building Cover

		8.3.6. Moore Twining Proposal Geotechnical Engineering Gault Elementary School New Classroom Building

		8.3.7. Palace Business Solutions Proposal for Santa Cruz High School Office Furniture Cover

		8.3.7. Palace Business Solutions Proposal for Santa Cruz High School Office Furniture

		8.3.8. SC Systems Inc Quote Soquel HIgh School Wire Cleanup Cover

		8.3.8. SC Systems Inc Quote Soquel HIgh School Wire Cleanup

		8.3.9. Swinerton Builders Change Order 4 Soquel High School Modernization Phase 2 Cover

		8.3.9. Swinerton Builders Change Order 4 Soquel High School Modernization Phase 2

		8.5.1.1. Update on School Reopening Plan Cover 11.04.20

		SCCS Reopening Schools Update 11.4.20

		8.5.1.2. BP 5121 Cover 11.04.20

		8.5.1.2. BP 5121 Grades_Eval of Student Achievement (Fourth Revision)

		SRO Board Cover November 2020-2021

		SRO Staff Report_Presentation

		8.5.2.2 MAP Contract Cover

		MAP Contract Attachment

		8.5.3.1. Resolution 15-20-21 and Bylaws Cover

		8.5.3.1. Resolution Establishing Measure T-U COC and Bylaws

		8.5.3.1. PTOC Bylaws SCCS Measures I, J, O, P - Rev 091317

		8.5.3.3. Fieldturf Proposal Mission Hills Middle School Athletic Field Replacement Cover

		8.5.3.3. Fieldturf Proposal Mission Hills Middle School Athletic Field Replacement

		8.5.3.3. J-13A Waiver cover

		8.5.3.3. SCCS J13A Waiver App

		8.5.3.3. SCCS Fire Closure j13a supplement

		8.5.3.3. 8-26-2020 Ltr in Support of J13-A Waivers for All Districts

		8.5.3.3. Declaration of Local Health Emergency August 26, 2020

		8.5.3.3. Local Emergency

		8.5.4.1- Cover - Sunshine SCCS to GSCFT 2020-21

		8.5.4.1 - Attachment - Sunshine SCCS to GSCFT 2020-21

		8.5.5.1. Resolution 19-20-21 Defense of Democracy Cover

		8.5.5.1. Resolution 19-20-21 SCCS Resolution for Democracy for Board

		Cvr Board Policy Updates Second and Final Reading

		Guide Sheet 7-20

		BP  6141.2  Instruction  Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs - Current Policy + Proposed Policy   

		BP 3555

		BP 4119.11 4219.11 4319.11

		BP 5145.6

		BP 5145.7

		BP 6142.7

		BP 6159.1

		BP 6159.2

		BP 6159




